
                                             City of Lemon Grove                              
City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, February 18, 2020, 6:00 p.m. 
 

Lemon Grove Community Center 
3146 School Lane, Lemon Grove, CA 

 
The City Council also sits as the Lemon Grove Housing Authority, Lemon Grove Sanitation District 

Board, Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board, and 
Lemon Grove Successor Agency 

 

Call to Order 

Pledge of Allegiance:   

Changes to the Agenda: 

Public Comment: 

(Note: In accordance with State Law, the general public may bring forward an item not 
scheduled on the agenda; however, the City Council may not take any action at this meeting. 
If appropriate, the item will be referred to staff or placed on a future agenda.) 

 

City Council Oral Comments and Reports on Meetings Attended at the Expense of the City. 
(GC 53232.3 (d)) (53232.3.(d) states that members of a legislative body shall provide brief reports on meetings 
attended at the expense of the local agency at the next regular meeting of the legislative body.) 
 

City Manager Report: 
 

1. Consent Calendar: 

(Note: The items listed on the Consent Calendar will be enacted in one motion unless 
removed from the Consent Calendar by Council, staff, or the public.) 

A. Waive Full Text Reading of All Ordinances on the Agenda 

Reference:  Kristen Steinke, City Attorney 
Recommendation: Waive the full text reading of all ordinances included in this 

agenda;  Ordinances shall be introduced and adopted by 
title only. 

B. City of Lemon Grove Payment Demands 

Reference:  Rod Greek, Interim Finance Manager 
Recommendation:  Ratify Demands 

C. Approval of Meeting Minutes 

Regular Meeting 
February 4, 2020 

 
Reference:  Shelley Chapel, City Clerk 
Recommendation:  Approve Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Lemon Grove City Council Meeting  February 18, 2020 
 

 
 

D. Accept FY 2017-2018 Sewer CIP Project as Complete (Sanitation District Item) 

Reference:  Mike James, Assistant City Manager / Public Works Director 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution entitled, “A Resolution of the Lemon Grove 
Sanitation District, California, Accepting the Fiscal Year 2017-18 Sewer Capital 
Improvement Project (Contract No. 2019-11) as Complete.” 
 
 

Continued Public Hearing: 
 
2. Continuation of Public Hearing to Consider Conditional Use Permit Application CUP-

190-0002,  A Request to Establish a Medical Marijuana Dispensary at 3515-3521 Harris 
Street in Special Treatment Area III, Regional Commercial. 

 
Reference:  Noah Alvey, Community Development Manager 
Recommendation:  Continue the Public Hearing for consideration of CUP-190-0002, 
direct staff to re-notice the public hearing based on actions by the San Diego 
Superior Court, and provide that no new sensitive uses shall prejudice the 
application. 

 
 

Reports to Council: 

3. Acceptance of the Drainage Master Plan Update Final Report 

Reference:  Mike James, Assistant City Manager / Public Works Director 
Recommendation: That the City Council adopt a resolution accepting the Drainage 
Master Plan Update.   
 

4. Lemon Grove Homelessness Partnership Plan 

Reference:  Mike James, Assistant City Manager / Public Works Director 
Recommendation:  Receive report and direction to staff regarding the Lemon Grove 
Homelessness Partnership Plan. 

5. FY 2019-2020 Mid-Year Budget 

Reference:  Rod Greek, Interim Finance Manager 
Recommendation:   
1)   Adopt a resolution approving the Fiscal Year 2019-20 City of Lemon Grove Mid-

Year Budget, and  
2)   Adopt a resolution approving the Fiscal Year 2019-20 Appropriations Limit, and  
3)   Authorize the transfer of $804,924 from the FY 18-19 Fund balance to the City’s 

115 Trust for investment towards future CalPERS obligations. 

Closed Session: 

 
1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

Government Code Section 54956.9b 
Number of potential cases: 1 

 

Adjournment 



City of Lemon Grove City Council Meeting  February 18, 2020 
 

 
 
 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), the City of Lemon Grove will provide special 
accommodations for persons who require assistance to access, attend and/or participate in meetings of the 
City Council.  If you require such assistance, please contact the City Clerk at (619) 825-3800 or email 
schapel@lemongrove.ca.gov.  A full agenda packet is available for public review at City Hall. 

 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF NOTIFICATION AND POSTING   
  
STATE OF CALIFORNIA )   

COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO) SS   

CITY OF LEMON GROVE)   
  
I, Shelley Chapel, MMC, City Clerk of the City of Lemon Grove, hereby declare under penalty of 

perjury that a copy of the above Agenda of the Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Lemon Grove, California, was delivered and/or notice by email not less than 72 hours before the 

hour of 5:00 p.m. on February 14, 2019, to the members of the governing agency, and caused 

the agenda to be posted on the City’s website at www.lemongrove.ca.gov and at Lemon Grove 

City Hall, 3232 Main Street Lemon Grove, CA 91945.   
  

/s/: Shelley Chapel  
Shelley Chapel, MMC, City Clerk  

 



  

 

CITY OF LEMON GROVE 
 

CITY COUNCIL  

STAFF REPORT 
Item No.  1.A 

Meeting Date: February 18, 2020 

Submitted to: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

Department:   City Manager’s Office 

Staff Contact:  Kristen Steinke, City Attorney 

Item Title:    Waive the Full Text Reading of all Ordinances  

 

Summary:  Waive the full text reading of all ordinances included in this agenda. Ordinances 

shall be introduced and adopted by title only. 
  

Environmental Review: 

 Not subject to review  Negative Declaration 

 Categorical Exemption, Section        Mitigated Negative Declaration 

 

Fiscal Impact: None. 

 

Public Notification: None. 

 



  

 

CITY OF LEMON GROVE 
 

CITY COUNCIL  
STAFF REPORT 

Item No.  1.B 

Meeting Date: February 18, 2020 

Submitted to: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

Department:   City Manager’s Office 

Staff Contact:  Rod Greek, Interim Finance Manager 

Item Title:    City of Lemon Grove Payment Demands  

 
Recommended Action:  Ratify Demands. 

Environmental Review: 

 Not subject to review  Negative Declaration 

 Categorical Exemption, Section        Mitigated Negative Declaration 

 

Fiscal Impact: None. 
 
Public Notification: None. 
 



City of Lemon Grove Demands Summary

Approved as Submitted: 

Rod Greek, Interim Administrative Services Director ACH/AP Checks 01/23/20‐02/05/20 376,815.24

For Council Meeting: 02/18/20

Payroll ‐ 01/28/20 124,646.28

Total Demands 501,461.52

CHECK NO INVOICE NO VENDOR NAME

CHECK 

DATE Description INVOICE AMOUNT

CHECK 

AMOUNT

ACH 63284730 WEX Bank 01/23/2020 Fuel ‐ Fire Dept ‐ Dec'19 74.27 74.27

ACH Refill 1/22/20 Pitney Bowes Global Financial Services LLC 01/23/2020 Postage Usage 1/22/20 250.00 250.00

ACH Jan15‐Jan28 20 Calpers Supplemental Income 457 Plan 01/30/2020 457 Plan 1/15/20‐1/28/20 8,160.63 8,160.63

ACH Jan28 20 Employment Development Department 01/30/2020 State Taxes 1/28/20 6,828.25 6,828.25

ACH Jan28 20 US Treasury 01/31/2020 Federal Taxes 1/28/20 24,568.75 24,568.75

ACH Jan20 Wage Works 01/31/2020 FSA Reimbursement ‐ Jan'20 2,813.60 2,813.60

ACH Jan20 Power Pay Biz/Evo 02/03/2020 Online Credit Card Processing ‐ Jan'20 92.76 92.76

ACH Feb 2020 Pers Health 02/04/2020 Pers Health Insurance ‐ Feb'20 48,165.58 48,165.58

ACH Refill 2/3/20 Pitney Bowes Global Financial Services LLC 02/04/2020 Postage Usage 2/3/20 250.00 250.00

ACH Jan20 Authorize.Net 02/05/2020 Merchant Fees ‐Jan'20 30.15 30.15

ACH 10251588 LEAF 02/05/2020 Ricoh C3502 Copier System‐PW Yard ‐ Jan'20 160.51 160.51

12523 14172063 AT&T 01/29/2020 Phone Service‐ 12/13/19‐1/12/20 84.16 124.43

14221190 Fire Backup Phone Line‐ 12/22/19‐1/21/20 40.27

12524 5656001542 AutoZone, Inc. 01/29/2020 High Mileage Motor Oil ‐ LGPW#17 '99 Ford F350 15.48 75.80

5656005373 Windshield Wiper ‐ LGPW Backhoe 420E 17.23

5656920858 Diesel Exhaust Fluid/Cleaner/Degreaser ‐ Sanitation 43.09

12525 34592‐IN Aztec Landscaping Inc. 01/29/2020 Landscape Mgmt Svc ‐ Dec'19 9,183.41 9,183.41

12526 1/28/20 California State Disbursement Unit 01/29/2020 Wage Withholding Pay Period Ending 1/28/20 161.53 161.53

12527 2304 Clark Telecom & Electric Inc. 01/29/2020 Street Light Dig‐Alert Markouts ‐ Dec'19 255.35 6,240.25

2305 Street Light Repairs ‐ Dec'19 3,276.05

2315 St Light Knockdown Pole Replacement/7909 Broadway ‐ Dec'19 2,708.85

12528 202000007 County of SD/Assessor/Recorder/Clerk 01/29/2020 Recording Services‐ 12/2/19 32.00 32.00

12529 20199630 Dudek 01/29/2020 Prof Svcs: Inspection Support Svc/Grove Hill Proj 11/30‐12/27/19 2,375.00 3,050.00

20199631 Prof Svcs: Inspection Support Svc/Sewer CIP Proj 11/30‐12/27/19 675.00

12530 INV1016984 George Hills Company 01/29/2020 TPA Claims‐ Adjusting/Other Services ‐ Dec 19 1,595.50 1,595.50

12531 1000000010942395 Globalstar USA, Inc. 01/29/2020 Satellite Service 12/16/19‐1/15/20 172.59 172.59

12532 43581 Harris & Associates 01/29/2020 Prof Svcs:LG Rdwy & Lighting Dist‐Review&Audit 11/24/19‐12/28/19 13,938.75 13,938.75

12533 PS020046747 Hawthorne Machinery Co 01/29/2020 Equip Maint‐ CAT 420E Backhoe‐ Edge Cutting/Bolts/Nuts 198.91 198.91

12534 97770 Horton, Oberrecht, Kirkpatrick & Martha, APC01/29/2020 Legal Svcs: GHC0019886 5,000.00 15,345.34

97925 Legal Svcs: GHC0019886 5,000.00

98410 Legal Svcs: GHC0019886 5,345.34

12535 00071928 Hudson Safe‐T‐ Lite Rentals 01/29/2020 Parking Markers/Bollard Installation at 8119 Broadway 97.43 97.43

12536 Jan28 20 ICMA 01/29/2020 ICMA Deferred Compensation Pay Period Ending 1/28/20 780.77 780.77

12537 4775211 Mallory Safety and Supply, LLC 01/29/2020 HazMat Spill Kit/Safety Glasses/Hi Visibility Sign 175.35 175.35

12538 Reimb: 1/27/20 Malone, Audrey 01/29/2020 Reimb: Certificate Holders & Foil Seals ‐ KIVA Graduation 105.51 105.51

12539 1070223 Michael Baker International 01/29/2020 Prof Svc: As‐Needed Engineering Svcs thru 11/30/19 26,379.75 26,379.75

12540 19087 Norman A Traub Associates LLC 01/29/2020 Legal Svcs ‐ 8/24/19‐11/22/19 4,403.77 4,403.77

12541 WO‐64752‐1 Office Advantage, Inc. 01/29/2020 Office Supplies‐ Fire 89.56 102.26

WO‐64752‐2 Office Supplies‐ Fire 12.70

12542 150918 Pacific Sweeping 01/29/2020 Street Sweeping/Parking Lot ‐ Nov'19 6,428.55 12,857.10

151119 Street Sweeping/Parking Lot ‐ Dec'19 6,428.55

12543 1/20/2020 SDG&E 01/29/2020 3225 Olive‐ 12/18/19‐1/20/20 147.19 147.19

12544 Jan 2 Southern CA Firefighters Benefit Trust 01/29/2020 LG Firefighters Benefit Trust 1/2/20 830.70 2,492.10



Jan 16 LG Firefighters Benefit Trust 1/16/20 830.70

Jan 30 LG Firefighters Benefit Trust 1/30/20 830.70

12545 0462‐8 The Sherwin‐Williams Co. 01/29/2020 Graffiti Paint 144.33 144.33

12546 72460513 Vulcan Materials Company 01/29/2020 Asphalt 373.57 578.29

72468183 Asphalt 102.36

72468184 Asphalt 102.36

12547 1/22/2020 Wells Fargo 01/29/2020 AT&T ‐ Backup City Hall Internet‐ 12/23/19‐1/22/20 85.60 8,502.77

1900909910 Cintas ‐ Janitorial Supplies ‐ 11/14/19 1,012.63

4036195180 Cintas ‐ Janitorial Supplies ‐ 11/27/19 201.34

4036778607 Cintas ‐ Janitorial Supplies ‐ 12/5/19 201.34

4037358807 Cintas ‐ Janitorial Supplies ‐ 12/12/19 201.34

4037944601 Cintas ‐ Fire ‐ Janitorial Supplies ‐ 12/19/19 359.39

4038470447 Cintas ‐ Janitorial Supplies ‐ 12/26/2019 201.34

4039045552 Cintas ‐ Janitorial Supplies ‐ 1/2/20 201.34

4039666785 Cintas ‐ Janitorial Supplies ‐ 1/9/20 201.34

81995051 Corelogic ‐ Image Requests ‐ Nov'19 11.00

12/1/2019 Cox ‐ Main Phone/Fire 12/1/19‐12/30/19 441.17

12/12/2019 Cox ‐ Calsense Modem Line:2259 Washington 12/11/19‐1/10/20 23.11

12/19/2019 Cox ‐ Phone/PW Yard/2873 Skyline‐ 12/19/19‐1/18/20 214.93

12/6/2019 Cox ‐ Calsense Modem Line: 7071 Mt Vernon 12/6/19‐1/5/20 20.32

12/10/2019 Cox ‐ Calsense Modem Line:8235 Mt Vernon 12/9/19‐1/8/20 94.39

12/1/2019 Cox ‐ Phone/City Hall 12/1/19‐12/31/19 978.77

11/29/2019 Cox ‐ Internet/Comm Ctr‐ 11/29/19‐12/29/19 75.00

12/18/2019 Cox ‐ City Manager/Copy Room Fax Line‐ 12/18/19‐1/17/20 4.25

11/27/2019 Cox ‐ City Hall Fire Alarm 11/27/19‐12/26/19 45.63

11/29/2019 Cox ‐ PEG Circuit Svc‐ 11/30/19‐12/29/19 2,896.56

12/4/2019 Cox ‐ Phone/Rec Ctr/3131 School Ln‐ 12/4/19‐1/3/20 98.02

75954 House of Automation ‐ Service Call ‐ PW Yard 335.00

3103566492 Pitney Bowes ‐ Postage Meter Rental 9/30/19‐12/29/19 180.75

9843463522 Verizon ‐ Modems‐ Cardiac Monitors ‐ 11/4/19‐12/3/19 14.04

9844131337 Verizon ‐ City Phone Charges‐ 11/13/19‐12/12/19 129.35

9844131893 Verizon ‐ Mobile Broadband Access‐ 11/13/19‐12/12/19 76.02

9844131338 Verizon ‐ PW Tablets‐ 11/13/19‐12/12/19 198.80

12548 2619‐4 Rev Charles King Company, Inc. 02/05/2020 2017‐18 Sewer CIP Contract # 2019‐11 thru 9/30/19 20,601.48 20,601.48

12549 FRS0000189 City of El Cajon 02/05/2020 Overtime Reimbursement ‐ Hays 12/8/19 1,179.09 83,433.07

FRS0000189 Overtime Reimbursement ‐ Kinoshita 11/30/19 1,208.74

FRS0000189 Overtime Reimbursement ‐ Cameron 12/21/19 1,238.93

FRS0000189 Overtime Reimbursement ‐ Diaz 12/22/19 1,269.68

FRS0000189 Overtime Reimbursement ‐ Garcia 12/19/19 1,238.93

FRS0000189 Overtime Reimbursement ‐ Kelsen 12/18/19 1,301.53

FRS0000189 Overtime Reimbursement ‐ Kinoshita 12/14/19 1,208.74

FRS0000189 Overtime Reimbursement ‐ Nevin 12/14/19 1,443.73

FRS0000189 Overtime Reimbursement ‐ Paddock 12/17/19 1,269.68

FRS0000189 Overtime Reimbursement ‐ Pinson 12/20/19 1,238.93

FRS0000189 Overtime Reimbursement ‐ Sanchez 12/30/19 1,179.09

HCA0000303 HCFA Assessments ‐ QTR 3 FY19/20 65,300.00

HFTA000167 HFTA Fees ‐  QTR 3 FY19/20 4,356.00

12550 FY18‐19 LG County of San Diego‐ Dept of Public Works 02/05/2020 District Operation & Maintenance Charges FY2018‐19 6,904.00 6,904.00

12551 3501 County of San Diego‐ Registrar of Voters 02/05/2020 Petition Signature Verification ‐ Trans & Use Tax 12,007.00 31,007.00

3521 Mar 3, 2020 Presidential Primary Election ‐ Advance Deposit 19,000.00

12552 Cox Home Cox Home Security 02/05/2020 Refund/Cox Home Security/Overpaid Business License Fees 190.00 190.00

12553 2020CA Election DFM Associates 02/05/2020 2020 CA Elections Code Book/Paperback 56.84 56.84

12554 dsb20190292 Dig Safe Board 02/05/2020 State Fee/Regulatory Monthly Costs/Dig Alert 2019 57.13 57.13

12555 Oct‐Dec19 Division of the State Architect 02/05/2020 State CASP Fee ($1),($4) ‐ 10/1/19‐12/31/19 194.80 194.80

12556 Reissue 1/3/17 Drum, Daryn 02/05/2020 Re‐issue: Data Analysis Training/San Jose/Meals/Drum 11/14‐17/16 47.48 47.48

12557 Feb‐20 Fidelity Security Life Insurance Company 02/05/2020 Vision Insurance ‐Feb20 310.26 310.26

12558 2018.024 Firewerx 02/05/2020 FireWerx Wildland Hose Pack 2+1 173.60 173.60

12559 Harris Harris, Donald 02/05/2020 Refund/Harris, Donald/Diversion Deposit CD1‐900‐0066 500.00 500.00

12560 628266 League of California Cities 02/05/2020 League Membership Dues for 2020 10,682.00 10,682.00

12561 1657 League of California Cities,San Diego Division 02/05/2020 2020 League Membership Dues & Meetings‐ SD County Division 1,200.00 1,200.00

12562 1072956 Michael Baker International 02/05/2020 Prof Svc: As‐Needed Engineering Svcs thru 12/31/19 9,301.63 9,301.63

12563 235169 Ninyo & Moore 02/05/2020 6800 Mallard Ct Inspection Svcs thru 12/27/19 1,882.00 4,964.00

235170 1963 Berry St Inspection Svcs thru 12/27/19 3,082.00

12564 Owens Owens, Beverly 02/05/2020 Refund/Owens, Beverly/Deposit ‐ LBH‐ 1/25/20 200.00 200.00

12565 INV00009759 RapidScale Inc. 02/05/2020 Virtual Hosting/Back Up Svc/Cloud Storage 1/31/20 ‐ 2/28/20 3,675.78 3,675.78

12566 Reimb: 1/27/20 Romero, Lydia 02/05/2020 Reimb: Airfare/LCC Homeless Mtg/Sacramento/Romero 11/4/19 204.97 204.97

12567 Jan‐Jun 20 San Diego County Sheriff's Department 02/05/2020 Cal‐ID Program Costs 1/1/20‐6/30/20 3,144.00 3,144.00

12568 8129114508 Shred‐It USA 02/05/2020 Shredding Services 1/22/20 80.22 80.22



12569 CINV‐007937 Trusaic 02/05/2020 2020 ACA Basic Plus Svcs ‐ Initial Deposit 1,500.00 1,500.00

12570 120200391 Underground Service Alert of Southern Ca. 02/05/2020 59 New Ticket Charges ‐ Jan'20 107.35 107.35

376,815.24 376,815.24



CITY OF LEMON GROVE  

  
CITY COUNCIL   

STAFF REPORT  
Item No.  1.C   

Meeting Date:  February 18, 2020  

Submitted to:  Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council  

Department:     City Manager’s Office  

Staff Contact:   Shelley Chapel, City Clerk  

    Schapel@lemongrove.ca.gov  

Item Title:      Approval of City Council Meeting Minutes   

  
Recommended Action:  Approval of City Council Meeting Minutes. 
  

Environmental Review:  
 Not subject to review  Negative Declaration  

 Categorical Exemption, Section        Mitigated Negative Declaration  

  
Fiscal Impact: None.  
  
Public Notification: None.  
    

  
 



MINUTES OF A MEETING OF 
THE LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 4, 2020 
 

The City Council also sits as the Lemon Grove Housing Authority,  
Lemon Grove Sanitation District Board, Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board,  

and Lemon Grove Successor Agency. 
 
Call To Order: 
Mayor Vasquez called the Regular Meeting to order at 6:02 p.m.  
 

Present: Mayor Racquel Vasquez, Mayor Pro Tem Jennifer Mendoza, Councilmember Yadira 
Altamirano, and Councilmember Jerry Jones. 
Absent: Councilmember David Arambula 
 

Staff Members Present: 
Lydia Romero, City Manager, Kristen Steinke, City Attorney, Mike James, Assistant City 
Manager/Public Works Director, Noah Alvey, Community Development Manager, Shelley Chapel, 
City Clerk, Steven Swaney, Fire Chief, Lieutenant Stranger, San Diego County Sheriff’s Office - 
Lemon Grove Substation, and Roberto Hidalgo, Human Resources Manager. 
 

Pledge of Allegiance: 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was led by Councilmember Jones. 
 

Public Comments: No comments. 
 

City Council Oral Comments & Reports on Meetings Attended At City Expense: (G.C. 
53232.3(d)) 
 

Councilmember Y. Altamirano attended the following meetings and events: 
 New City Councilmember Academy hosted by the League of CA Cities 
 Young Men’s Leadership Conference 
 McAlister Graduation Ceremony 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza attended the following meetings and events: 
 Vice-Chair to Transportation, Communication and Public Works Committee Meeting with 

the League of California Cities 
 East County Meeting of the SANDAG Board with Councilmember Jones 
 MTS Board Meeting as Alternate 
 

Mayor Vasquez attended the following meetings and events: 
 SANDAG Meeting 

 
1. Consent Calendar: 

 

A. Waive Full Text Reading of All Ordinances on the Agenda. 
B. Ratification of Payment of Demands 
C. City Council Meeting Minutes for Regular Meeting January 21, 2020. 

Approval of Resolution No. 2020-3504, Authorizing the Submittal of a CalRecycle Local 
Government Waste Tire Enforcement Grant Application in Partnership with the City of 
San Diego – Solid Waste Local Enforcement Agency and Authorizing the City of San 
Diego to Act on Behalf of the City of Lemon Grove to Execute All Necessary Grant 
Documents. 

D. Rejection of Claim – Edward Dominick 
F. Rejection of Claim – Diane Ravelle 
G. Rejection of Claim – Edward Wong 



 
City of Lemon Grove Minutes  February 4, 2020 
 
 

2 
 

 

Action: Motion by Councilmember Jones, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza to 
approve Consent Calendar Items A-G.   
The motion passed by the following vote: 

 Ayes:  Vasquez, Mendoza, Altamirano, Jones 
 Noes:  Arambula 
 
Reports to Council: 
2. Adopted Resolution No. 2020-3705 entitled, “A Resolution of the City Council of the City of 

Lemon Grove, California, Changing the Name of Civic Center Park to Treganza Heritage 
Park.” 

Mayor Vasquez introduced Mike James, Assistant City Manager / Public Works Director who 
gave the report and PowerPoint presentation. 

Appeared to comment were:  Laura Hook, Helen Ofield, Cynthia Hughes-Doyle, Roberta 
Bulling,  

Action: Motion by Councilmember Jones, seconded by Councilmember Altamirano to 
adopt Resolution. The motion passed by the following vote: 
 Ayes:  Vasquez, Mendoza, Altamirano, Jones 
 Noes:  Arambula 
 

3. State of California Senate Bill 50 

Mayor Vasquez introduced Noah Alvey, Community Development Manager who gave the 
report.  This item failed on the Senate floor so not valid. 

 Action:  Staff recommendation was to receive and file. 

Closed Session: 
1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

Government Code Section 54956.9b 
Number of potential cases: 1 

2.   CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION  
Government Code Section 54956.9 
Name of Case:  Citrus St. Partners LLC v. City of Lemon Grove; City Council of the City 
of Lemon Grove 
(CASE NO. 37-2019-00064690-CU-MC-CTL) 

 
City Attorney Kristen Steinke announced the City Council will be adjourning to closed session at 
6:46 p.m. for the purposes above.  
 

City Attorney Steinke reported no reportable action on items discussed in Closed Session.  
 

Adjournment:   
There being no further business to come before the Council, the meeting was adjourned at 6:59 
p.m. to a meeting to be held Tuesday, February 18, 2020, in the Lemon Grove Community Center 
located at 3146 School Lane, for a Regular Meeting.  
 
________________________________________ 
Shelley Chapel, MMC 
City Clerk  



Accept FISCAL YEAR 2017-18 Sewer 

Capital Improvement Project 

 February 18, 2020 

P a g e  | 1 

 

 LEMON GROVE SANITATION DISTRICT 

 

DISTRICT BOARD 

STAFF REPORT 
Item No. 1.D 

Meeting Date: February 18, 2020 

Submitted to: Honorable Chair and Members of the Lemon Grove Sanitation  

 District 

Department: Public Works Department 

Staff Contact: Mike James, Assistant City Manager / Public Works Director 

 mjames@lemongrove.ca.gov  

 Stephanie Boyce, Senior Management Analyst 

 sboyce@lemongrove.ca.gov 

Item Title: Accept the Fiscal Year 2017-18 Sewer Capital Improvement 

Project (Contract No. 2019-11) as Complete 

 

Recommended Action:  Adopt a resolution accepting the Fiscal Year 2017-18 Sewer 

Capital Improvement Project (Contract No. 2019-11) as complete. 
 

Summary:  In support of the Sanitary Sewer Master Plan and associated capital 

improvement project, the Lemon Grove Sanitation District Board (District Board) 

awarded the Fiscal Year 2017-18 Sewer Capital Improvement Project to Charles King 

Company in February 2019.   
 

Background:  On February 19, 2019, Charles King Company was awarded the Fiscal 

Year 2017-18 Sewer Capital Improvement Project (Contract No. 2019-11) with a total bid 

cost of $338,290.00 and a project budget not to exceed $437,896.00.  Since the project 

was awarded, there have been three (3) change orders. Change Order No.1 was issued for 

additional potholing, Change Order No. 2 was issued for the import and export of 

unsuitable backfill material, and Change Order No. 3 was issued for the deduction of 

items not necessary in the completion of the project including  monumentation allowance, 

fence repair and a field order. The overall change orders reflect the deduction of items 

and unforeseen construction items totaled $9,845.10. The final project cost totaled 

$401,843.60 which includes bid advertisement, construction costs, material testing and 

inspection.  On October 21, 2019, the District’s inspector and staff completed the final 

inspection of the improvements and determined the work was completed per the contract 

specifications. 



Accept FISCAL YEAR 2017-18 Sewer 

Capital Improvement Project 

 February 18, 2020 

P a g e  | 2 

 

   

Staff recommends that the District Board adopt a resolution (Attachment A) accepting 

the work as complete, authorizes the District Manager or designee to file a Notice of 

Completion with the County of San Diego, and authorizes staff to release the retention no 

sooner than thirty (30) days after the Notice of Completion has been filed. 

  

Environmental Review: 

 Not subject to review  Negative Declaration 

 Categorical Exemption, Section        Mitigated Negative Declaration 

 

Fiscal Impact: Funding has been allocated from the Sanitation District Capital fund. 

 

Public Notification:  None.   

 

Staff Recommendation:  Adopt a resolution accepting the Fiscal Year 2017-18 Sewer 

Capital Improvement Project (Contract No. 2019-11) as complete. 

 

Attachment: 

Attachment A – Resolution 

 



Accept FISCAL YEAR 2017-18 Sewer 

Capital Improvement Project 

 February 18, 2020 

P a g e  | 3 

 

Attachment A 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  2020 -  

A RESOLUTION OF THE LEMON GROVE SANITATION DISTRICT, 

CALIFORNIA, ACCEPTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2017-18 SEWER CAPITAL 

IMPROVEMENT PROJECT (CONTRACT NO. 2019-11) AS COMPLETE 

 WHEREAS, on February 19, 2019, the Lemon Grove Sanitation Board awarded the 

2017-18 Sewer Capital Improvement Project (Contract No. 2019-11) to Charles King 

Company; and 

WHEREAS, the contract bid amount was established at $338,290.00 and a total 

project budget not to exceed $437,896.00; and  

WHEREAS, three change orders in the total amount of $9,845.10 increased the 

original contract price of $338,290.00 to 348,135.10; and 

WHEREAS, the final project cost of $401,843.60 was allocated for this project 

from the Sanitation District; and  

WHEREAS, on October 21, 2019, Charles King Company completed the scope of 

work as defined by the original contract and change orders; and 

WHEREAS, the District inspector inspected all of the improvements and 

determined that Charles King Company fulfilled its contractual obligations. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Lemon Grove Sanitation District 

hereby: 

1. Accepts the work for the FISCAL YEAR 2017-18 Sewer Capital Improvement 

Project (Contract No. 2019-11) as complete; and  

2. Authorizes the District Manager or designee to file a Notice of Completion with the 

County of San Diego; and  

3. Authorizes district staff to release the retention no sooner than thirty (30) days 

after the Notice of Completion is filed.   

 

          Attachment A 



Accept FISCAL YEAR 2017-18 Sewer 

Capital Improvement Project 

 February 18, 2020 

P a g e  | 4 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED on ______, 2020, the Lemon Grove Sanitation 

District, California, adopted Resolution No. _______, passed by the following vote: 

 

 AYES: 

 NOES: 

 ABSENT: 

 ABSTAIN: 

       

      __________________________ 

      Racquel Vasquez, Chair 

Attest: 

 

__________________________ 

Shelley Chapel, MMC, District Clerk 

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

_________________________ 
Kristen Steinke, District Attorney  



 CUP-190-0002 

 February 18, 2020 

P a g e  | 1 

 

CITY OF LEMON GROVE 
 

CITY COUNCIL 

STAFF REPORT 
Item No. __2__ 

Meeting Date: February 18, 2020 

Submitted to: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

Department: Community Development Department 

Staff Contact: Noah Alvey, Community Development Department 

 nalvey@lemongrove.ca.gov 

Item Title: Continuation of Public Hearing to Consider Conditional Use 

Permit Application CUP-190-0002, A Request to Establish a 

Medical Marijuana Dispensary at 3515-3521 Harris Street in 

Special Treatment Area III, Regional Commercial 

 

 

Recommended Action: Continue the public hearing for consideration of 

CUP-190-0002, direct staff to re-notice the public hearing based on actions 

by the San Diego Superior Court, and provide that no new sensitive uses shall 

prejudice the application. 
 

Summary: This is a request to establish a medical marijuana dispensary (MMD) at 3515-

3521 Harris Street in General Plan Special Treatment Area III, Regional Commercial. The 

project proposes demolition of an existing duplex and improvements to two existing 

buildings to create sales and staff spaces for the MMD as well as off-site parking for 

dispensary staff. Proposed site improvements include new landscape and trees, 

commercial driveway and parking area, and city standard street improvements.  

 

The Application is the subject of a Temporary Restraining Order (TRO) issued by the San 

Diego Superior Court in pending litigation entitled Citrus St Partners LLC v. City of 

Lemon Grove, et al. (SDSC Case No.: 37-2019-00064690-CU-MC-CTL). The TRO 

restricts the City and the City Council from making a final determination on the subject 

CUP application until the Court makes a ruling on the request for Preliminary Injunction 

and includes other restrictions pending the outcome of Petitioner’s motion for 

preliminary injunction. 

 



 CUP-190-0002 

 February 18, 2020 

P a g e  | 2 

 

Prior to the adjournment of the duly noticed public hearing on January 21, 2020, City 

Council moved to continue the public hearing to a date certain of February 18, 2020, with 

the provision that no new sensitive uses shall prejudice the application.  

 

On January 28, 2020, KIM Investments, LLC filed a peremptory challenge with the San 

Diego Superior Court resulting in the re-assignment of the case to a new judge and a new 

hearing date for the motion for a preliminary injunction of May 1, 2020.  

 

Staff recommends that the hearing be continued and that a new public hearing notice be 

distributed based on the outcome of the May 1, 2020, hearing date or subsequent hearing 

dates, as applicable. 

Environmental Review: 

 Not subject to review  Negative Declaration 

 Categorical Exemption, Section        Mitigated Negative Declaration 

 

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact. 

 

Public Notification: Notice of Public Hearing for this item was given in accordance 

with LGMC Section 17.28.020(F) on January 9, 2020. The item was continued at the 

January 21, 2020 to a date certain of February 18, 2020, without further notice pursuant 

to Section 17.28.020(G). 

 

Staff Recommendation: Continue the public hearing for consideration of 

CUP-190-0002, direct staff to renotice the public hearing based on actions by 

the San Diego Superior Court, and provide that no new sensitive uses shall 

prejudice the application. 

 

 

 



 Drainage Master Plan Update 
 February 18, 2020 

P a g e  | 1 

 

CITY OF LEMON GROVE 
 

CITY COUNCIL  
STAFF REPORT 

Item No.  3 

Meeting Date: February 18, 2020 

Submitted to: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

Department: Public Works Department 

Staff Contact: Mike James, Assistant City Manager / Public Works Director 

 mjames@lemongrove.ca.gov 

Item Title: Acceptance of the Drainage Master Plan Update 

 
Recommended Action:  That the City Council adopt a resolution accepting the 
Drainage Master Plan Update.   
 

Summary:  On June 18, 2019, the City Council received and accepted the first, of two, 
phases of the Citywide Drainage Master Plan (DMP) update.  That first phase addressed 
the regulatory drivers that apply to drainage system, created a high resolution geospatial 
data set, assessed all drainage areas in the City, and recommended improvements based 
on closed circuit television results for the corrugated metal pipe (CMP) system.  At that 
same meeting, the City Council directed staff to move forward with the second phase of 
the DMP update that included:  researching and updating the probable construction costs 
and prioritizing recommended capital improvement projects.   

The second phase of the DMP update is now complete and staff presents the DMP update 
for acceptance.  The remaining portion of this report highlights the second phase activities 
that were added to the DMP update.   

 

Discussion:  The DMP update is a comprehensive plan and tool to highlight existing 
storm water conveyance system deficient along with a condition assessment of the CMP 
storm drains throughout the City.  Like the City’s pavement and sewer master plans, the 
DMP update prioritizes capital improvement projects with current cost estimates that will 
be used by the City to make future funding and construction decisions.   
 
As a brief summary, the City is responsible for managing the public storm drain system 
within the City limits (approximately 3.9 square miles) and ensuring that an adequate 
level of service is provided to protect the public from excessive surface flooding 
conditions.  To this end, the need for a comprehensive and high-resolution hydrologic and 
hydraulic (H&H) analysis to evaluate the existing storm water conveyance system level of 
service citywide was identified.  The intent of this study and final report is to build off of 
past micro-studies, and provide a holistic understanding of the City’s storm water 
infrastructure thus, allowing the City to prioritize its maintenance and repairs efforts.   



 Drainage Master Plan Update 
 February 18, 2020 

P a g e  | 2 

 

 
The first phase of the report consisted of four areas:   
 

1. Regulatory Framework:  The City must be responsive to a number of regulatory 
drivers that apply to drainage, storm water infrastructure management, and water 
quality specific to each storm drain outfall system.  These drivers focus on 
addressing one particular storm water related component, each with different 
compliance metrics, timelines, and monitoring requirements.  All of these nuances 
are critical to develop any DMP.   
 

2. High Resolution Geospatial Data:  A high resolution geospatial dataset is essential 
to perform the detailed hydrologic and hydraulic drainage and water quality 
analyses.  Geospatial data necessary for these modeling efforts include:  an 
accurate topographic representation of the study area, ground cover/land use 
information, and existing storm drain inventory.  This section focused on receiving 
and evaluating raw data layers, adjusting the data and making corrections as 
needed, and summarizing the revised dataset for future modeling with field 
verification.   
 

3. Drainage Assessment:  The assessment was accomplished using an integrated 1-
D/2-D H&H model that combines surface and sub-surface drainage patterns 
within the study area to provide a high-resolution surface inundation and storage 
of storm water flow for the duration of a design storm.  This study considers the 2-
year, 10-year and 100-year storm events in order to understand the performance 
of the drainage conveyance system during storms with a higher probability of 
occurrence.   
 

4. Recommended Improvements:  The CMP systems were televised using closed-
circuit television (CCTV) and the results were used to create a condition rating 
from very poor to good.  With each condition a recommended repair technique was 
provided that include the following options: 
 

a. Cured in place pipe (CIPP) lining,  
b. CIPP sectional repairs,  
c. Top Hat (TH) in lateral/main connection sealing,  
d. Pressurized hydrophilic grout and urethane sealant,  
e. Hydro-scouring, and  
f. Pipe removal and replacement.   

 
A summary of the pipe segments rating and quantity is provided in the report.  
Additionally, all repair techniques and number of repairs necessary were included.  
Lastly, ten regional improvement opportunities were included in the report that 
could provide detention or water quality benefits.  The list of each location, the size 
and parcel ownership (in addition to the City) were included in the report.   

 



 Drainage Master Plan Update 
 February 18, 2020 

P a g e  | 3 

 

The second phase of the DMP update focused on the following two (2) tasks:   

1. Probable Construction Costs:  Research available unit costs for project 
construction based on historical bid history or other readily available sources.  Unit 
costs will be provided to the City.  Additionally, a generalized order of magnitude 
opinion of probable construction cost for each of the recommended facilities will 
be provided to aid in the prioritization of projects.   
 

2. Bundling and Prioritization of Recommended Improvements:  Provide 
prioritization scores for each recommended facility to assist in ranking the benefit 
of each potential improvement.  A matrix will consider modeling results as well as 
relevant fields from the existing GIS data.  Areas will be bundled into relevant 
project areas and forecasted for a ten-year period.   

The final report (Attachment B) now contains an updated single source of information 
that: 

1. Analyzed existing storm water conveyance system deficiencies,  
2. Completed a condition assessment of the CMP storm drainage,  
3. Provides for prioritized drainage improvement recommendations for use in the 

City’s capital improvement program, and  
4. Provides surface and subsurface drainage patterns, flowrates, deficiencies, and 

ultimately proposed project recommendations.   

The third and fourth comments above identify the critical needs that have not been 
consolidated prior to this current update to the Master Plan.  The needs identified in the 
report highlight forty-two (42) projects varying in cost from $25,000 up to $10 million 
with a combined cost of $78 million.  These improvements provide storm drain capacity 
benefits and reduce the total volume of surface ponding from 87 acre-feet to 66 acre-feet 
in the 10-year storm event model.  Additionally, staff asked Rick Engineering Company 
to look towards the City’s neighbors and determine if there are areas where the City can 
partner with other public entities to create regional projects for future water quality best 
management practices.  That yielded at least ten (10) potential project locations that could 
involve partnerships with the City of La Mesa, County of San Diego, and City of San Diego.   

This DMP update successfully utilized high-resolution data with an integrated model to 
determine existing deficiencies and identify recommended improvements for drainage 
infrastructure.  The results from this report will assist staff by utilizing it as a guide and a 
resource tool to manage the drainage Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) moving 
forward and will be reflected in the City’s Capital Improvement Program.   

Environmental Review: 

 Not subject to review  Negative Declaration 

 Categorical Exemption, Section        Mitigated Negative Declaration 

Fiscal Impact:  $50,000 was allocated in the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 budget from Fund 
02 – Gas Tax Fund (SB-1 Roadway Maintenance and Rehabilitation Act).    
 
Public Notification:  None.   
 
Staff Recommendation:  That the City Council adopt a resolution (Attachment A) 
approving the Drainage Master Plan Update.   



 Drainage Master Plan Update 
 February 18, 2020 

P a g e  | 4 

 

 
Attachments: 
Attachment A – Resolution 
Attachment B –Drainage Master Plan Update



 Drainage Master Plan Update 
 February 18, 2020 

P a g e  | 5 

 

                                                                                                                               Attachment A 
RESOLUTION NO. 2020 -  

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, 
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE DRAINAGE MASTER PLAN 

WHEREAS, in 1997, the City contracted with ASL Consulting Engineers to create 
a drainage master plan (master plan); and 

WHEREAS, there was a need to perform and update to the master plan that 
would include data collection and compilation, CCTV of the corrugated metal pipe storm 
drain system, existing condition hydrologic and hydraulic analysis, recommend 
improvements, identifying regional improvement opportunities, and develop a final 
drainage master plan update; and 

WHEREAS, in order to complete this update in an economically efficient process 
the expertise of a consulting firm that possess the knowledge, skills, and abilities in 
completing master plans would be needed; and 

WHEREAS, Rick Engineering Company was identified by City staff as a 
consulting firm that has  proven experience in creating and updating master plans in the 
County; and 

WHEREAS, in February 2020, Rick Engineering Company completed the final 
phase of the City’s drainage master plan and submitted the final report to the City; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council reviewed and accepted the final report.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 
Lemon Grove hereby:  

1. Accepts the citywide drainage master plan update prepared by Rick 
Engineering Company; and 

2. Authorizes the City Manager, or designee, to manage the project close out 

process.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED on ______, 2020, the City Council of the City of 
Lemon Grove, California, adopted Resolution No. _______, passed by the following 
vote: 

 AYES: 
 NOES: 
 ABSENT: 
 ABSTAIN: 
      __________________________ 

      Racquel Vasquez, Mayor 

Attest: 
__________________________ 
Shelley Chapel, MMC, City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 
_________________________ 
Kristen Steinke, City Attorney  



City of Lemon Grove
February 2020

Dr ainage 
mas ter  pl an



City of Lemon Grove 
Drainage Master Plan 

February 12, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 

Presented To 
City of Lemon Grove Public 

Works Department 
3232 Main Street 

Lemon Grove, California 91945 

 
 

Presented By 
Rick Engineering Company 

5620 Friars Road 
San Diego, California 92110 

 
P: 1-619-291-0707 
F: 1-619-291-4165 
rickengineering.com 



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

  i  
18473-A.003 

Contents 
 
1.0 INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................................. 1 

1.1 Regulatory Framework .................................................................................................................... 3 
1.1.1 Drainage Infrastructure Requirements .................................................................................... 3 

2.0 HIGH RESOLUTION GEOSPATIAL DATA ........................................................................................ 4 
2.1 Raw Geospatial Data ....................................................................................................................... 5 
2.2 Corrections to GIS Inventory ........................................................................................................... 5 

2.2.1 Desktop Analyses ................................................................................................................. 6 
2.2.2 Field Verification ................................................................................................................... 7 

2.3 Revised Geospatial Data .................................................................................................................. 7 
3.0 DRAINAGE ASSESSMENT ............................................................................................................. 10 

3.1 Drainage Patterns ......................................................................................................................... 11 
3.1.1 Subcatchment Delineations ................................................................................................. 11 
3.1.2 Surface Conveyance ........................................................................................................... 12 

3.2 Existing Condition ......................................................................................................................... 13 
3.2.1 Existing Condition Model Methodology .................................................................................. 13 
3.2.2 Existing Condition Results ................................................................................................... 15 

3.3 Proposed Condition ....................................................................................................................... 17 
3.3.1 Proposed Condition Model Methodology ............................................................................... 17 
3.3.2 Proposed Condition Results ................................................................................................. 18 

4.0 RECOMMENDED IMPROVEMENTS ............................................................................................... 21 
4.1 Interim Solution for CMP Assessment ............................................................................................. 21 
4.2 Regional Locations of Interest ........................................................................................................ 23 
4.3 Drainage Recommendations .......................................................................................................... 23 

4.3.1 Storm Drain Recommendations............................................................................................ 23 
4.3.2 Future Channel Restoration Opportunities ............................................................................. 24 

4.4 Individual Improvement Costs ....................................................................................................... 24 
4.4.1 Selection Criteria ................................................................................................................ 25 
4.4.2 Results .............................................................................................................................. 27 

5.0 CONCLUSIONS ............................................................................................................................. 30 
6.0 REFERENCES ................................................................................................................................ 32 
 

 

 



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

  ii  
18473-A.003 

Tables 
Table 2-1: Geospatial Data Inventory ............................................................................................................ 5 
Table 2-2: Data Source of Drainage Asset Properties ...................................................................................... 8 
Table 2-3: Summary of Original and Existing (revised) Storm Drain Inventory ................................................... 9 
Table 3-1: Existing Conditions Storm Drain Pipe Diameters and Lengths Modeled ............................................ 14 
Table 3-2: Existing Condition Storm Drain Conveyance Capacity Summary ...................................................... 15 
Table 3-3: Existing Condition 2-D Cell Peak Storage Volume 24-HR Storm Events ............................................ 16 
Table 3-4: Existing Condition Storm Drain Outfall Summary ........................................................................... 17 
Table 3-5: Proposed Condition Storm Drain Conveyance Capacity Summary .................................................... 19 
Table 3-6: Proposed Condition 2-D Cell Peak Storage Volume 24-HR Storm Events .......................................... 20 
Table 3-7: Proposed Condition Storm Drain Outfall Summary ......................................................................... 20 
Table 4-1: Summary of Pipe Segment Rating and Quantity ............................................................................ 22 
Table 4-2: Summary of Repair Technique, Quantity, and Length .................................................................... 22 
Table 4-3: Regional Improvement Opportunities ........................................................................................... 23 
Table 4-4: Storm Drain Recommendations Summary ..................................................................................... 24 
Table 4-5: Costs of the Top 5 Prioritized Projects .......................................................................................... 27 
Table 4-6: Comparison of Storm Drain Results of the Top 5 Prioritized Projects ............................................... 28 
Table 4-7: Comparison of Storm Drain Results of All Projects ......................................................................... 28 
Table 4-8: Comparison of Inundated Structures of the Top 5 Prioritized Projects ............................................. 29 
Table 4-9: Comparison of Inundated Structures of All Projects ....................................................................... 29 
 

Figures 
Figure 1-1: DMP Framework ......................................................................................................................... 2 
Figure 2-1: Snapshot of New Storm Drain Information Added to GIS Inventory ................................................. 4 
Figure 2-2: Corrections to GIS Inventory Flowchart ......................................................................................... 6 
Figure 2-3: CMP conduit in the northern portion of Lemon Grove (Left). ........................................................... 7 
Figure 3-1: Drainage Areas of Existing Condition .......................................................................................... 11 
Figure 3-2: Major Subwatershed Drainage Areas .......................................................................................... 12 
Figure 3-3:  Existing Condition Storm Drain Conveyance Capacity .................................................................. 16 
Figure 3-4: Proposed Condition Storm Drain Conveyance Capacity ................................................................. 19 
Figure 4-1: CIP Selection Criteria ................................................................................................................. 26 
 

Appendices 
A. H&H BACKUP 
B. CCTV DATA 
C. GIS DATASET EXHIBITS 
D. INUNDATION MAPS 
E. PROPOSED CONDITIONS 
F. SUMMARY TABLES 
G. COSTS AND PRIORITIZATION 
  



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

  iii  
18473-A.003 

Acronyms/Abbreviations 
Acronym/Abbreviation Definition 
BMP best management practice 
cfs cubic feet per second  
DEM digital elevation model 
DMP drainage master plan 
ft foot, feet 
GIS geographic information system 
H&H  hydrology and hydraulics 
LF linear foot, linear feet 
LiDAR Light Detection and Ranging 
LOS level of service 
NOAA National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration 
NWP nationwide permits 
RCB reinforced concrete box 
RCP reinforced concrete pipe 
ROW right-of-way 
SANDAG San Diego Association of Governments 
SanGIS San Diego Geographic Information Source 
sq. mi. square miles 
SSURGO Soil Survey Geographic Database 
SWMM Storm Water Management Model 
TMDL total maximum daily load 
 
  



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

  iv  
18473-A.003 

Limitations: 
 
The City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan is a comprehensive plan for existing drainage needs within the 

City of Lemon Grove. This report has been prepared for master planning purposes only, as a guide for engineers, 

planners, developers, and City staff. Detailed engineering calculations and investigations should be prepared for 

the implementation of any of the facilities outlined in this study. In addition, coordination with adjacent 

municipalities or state agencies may be required to coordinate drainage improvement efforts that cross 

jurisdictional boundaries. 



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

 
 1  

18473-A.003 

 
The Drainage Master Plan (DMP) has been prepared for the City of Lemon Grove (City) to significantly advance 

the City’s storm water management goals by analyzing existing storm water conveyance system deficiencies 

along with a condition assessment of the CMP storm drains throughout the City in order to inform future decisions 

pertaining to public storm drain infrastructure improvements. The City is responsible for managing the public 

storm drain system within the City limits, and ensuring that an adequate level of service is provided to protect the 

public from excessive surface flooding conditions. To this end, the need for a comprehensive and high-resolution 

hydrologic and hydraulic (H&H) analysis to evaluate the existing storm water conveyance system level of service 

citywide was identified. The City has undergone multiple studies to address the known “hot spots” of the City. 

The intent of this project is to build off of these past efforts and provide a holistic understanding of the City’s 

storm water infrastructure allowing the City to prioritize their efforts. 

The City of Lemon Grove study area limit is approximately 3.9 square miles in area. However, the entire 

watershed area tributary to the City of Lemon Grove study area covers approximately 5.5 square miles due to 

areas draining into and out of the City from the City of San Diego, City of La Mesa, and Spring Valley, a 

community of unincorporated area in San Diego County. Most of the City is within the Chollas Sub-basin draining 

to the West through South Las Chollas Creek, Radio Drive Branch, Encanto Branch, and Jamacha Branch going 

from the north of the City to the South, respectively. The remaining portion to the east of the City drains to the 

east to the La Nacion Sub-basin through Brookside Branch and Spring Valley Creek from north to south 

respectively. Figure 1-1 and the following paragraph provide an overview of the DMP components and the overall 

process that was developed for this project.  

The first, and arguably most critical, component in the DMP framework is the data collection regarding the 

existing storm drain infrastructure and drainage conditions, including corrections to a Geographic Information 

System (GIS) inventory of structure and conveyance features within the study area. The second process in the 

DMP framework is modeling the existing drainage condition to establish a baseline and identify existing drainage 

issues within the study area. Results from the analysis of existing drainage conditions can then be used to review 

locations with problematic drainage patterns and assist in informing solutions including potential areas for 

detention or water quality projects. The third process includes incorporating the proposed drainage 

recommendations into the baseline drainage model creating the ultimate condition proposed condition model. The 

final process is grouping proposed improvements into bundled projects.  

A total of forty-two (42) bundled projects were identified as a part of the DMP. These projects were then 

prioritized based on a prioritization matrix that assesses the length, CCTV rating, and severity of existing capacity 

among other variables and costs. The total cost for the forty-two (42) projects is $78,183,649 and they 

will remove 121 inundated structures from the 10-year storm event. The top five (5) projects based on 



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

2  
18473-A.003 

PProposed Condition BBased on 
110--yyear Level of Service  

PProject Bundling  

CCost Estimates & Prioritization  

PProposed Conditionn Model 

DData Collection, Compilation, 
&& Processing 

  

Existing Drainage Model  

CCTV  

Identify Deficient Drainage Infrastructure  

Recommended Improvement Locations—
Regional Flood Control/Water Quality

Locations 

the prioritization that was established provide much needed backbone infrastructure along the Federal Boulevard 

system and have an estimated cost of $15,459,541 and remove 42 inundated structures from the 10-year storm 

event. 

The DMP along with the associated GIS data set, web tool, and spreadsheets will provide a highly detailed 

drainage improvement plan that will allow the City to easily assess and implement improvements for the area’s 

current flooding issues.  This DMP summarizes the recommendations and presents them within the City of Lemon 

Grove Drainage Master Plan Web Mapping Application (https://maps.rickengineering.com/lgdmp/). 

Figure 1-1: DMP Framework 



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

 
 3  

18473-A.003 

1.1 Regulatory Framework 
When evaluating potential infrastructure improvements, the City must be responsive to a number of regulatory 

drivers that apply to drainage, storm water infrastructure management, and water quality specific to each storm 

drain outfall system. These regulatory drivers are typically focused on addressing one particular storm water-

related component, each with different compliance metrics, timelines, and monitoring requirements. 

Understanding the nuances inherent in meeting the overall regulatory framework in the watershed was a critical 

component in developing the DMP and is summarized in the sections below. 

1.1.1 Drainage Infrastructure Requirements 
The County of San Diego maintains certain regulatory standards for storm water improvements as stipulated in 

the San Diego County Hydraulic Design Manual, dated September 2014. The governing design storm typically 

used as the basis for drainage recommendations is the 100-year storm event, which is consistent with the 

requirements per the 2014 San Diego County Hydraulic Design Manual. One of this study’s objectives was to 

assess the existing drainage infrastructure to determine the current Level of Service (LOS) relative to the County’s 

policies for drainage design. Based on the results of the existing condition models and conversations with City 

staff, a more frequently returning 10-year storm event was selected as the desired LOS for the recommendations 

of this study. The proposed improvements provide an improved system compared to the existing condition with 

the goal to have capacity in the pipes contain the more frequent 10-year storm event that routinely affects 

residents. In addition to not being economically feasible, if the system was upsized to contain the 100-year storm 

event flow, the downstream receiving waters would be negatively affected at every culvert, and crossing. 

Additionally, based on the 2014 San Diego County Hydraulic Design Manual, the storm water conveyance system 

shall be designed so that the combination of storm drain system capacity and overflow (streets and gutter) will be 

able to carry the 100-year frequency storm. Therefore, this DMP modeled the 10-year storm events to assess LOS 

as well as analyzed the 100-year to assess street conveyance.  



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

 
 4  

18473-A.003 

 
A high resolution geospatial dataset is essential to perform detailed hydrologic and hydraulic drainage and water 

quality analyses. Geospatial data necessary for these modeling efforts include: an accurate topographic 

representation of the study area, ground cover/land use information, and existing storm drain inventory. While 

evaluating the data initially collected, it was determined that certain data components (such as the storm drain 

inventory junction points and line work) did not accurately reflect the field conditions and/or did not align spatially 

when compared against the aerial imagery of the study area. An effort to correct and compile the data from 

various sources into one comprehensive dataset was undertaken. Of particular focus during this effort was to 

ensure a correct spatial representation of the storm drain infrastructure, and collect any missing information. A 

revised dataset will also be useful for any future projects that the City or other consultants undertake within the 

study area.  

Figure 2-1 displays a snapshot of the changes that were made to the GIS inventory, which demonstrates the 

amount of new information that was compiled in a representative portion of the study area. 

 
Figure 2-1: Snapshot of New Storm Drain Information Added to GIS Inventory 

 

 
 
 
 
 

The following sections of this report describe the geospatial data received, the process of correcting and 

compiling certain data sets, and the resultant data from the correction process. 

Original GIS Inventory Correction to GIS Inventory Inlet Scale Subcatchment 
Delineations



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

 
 5  

18473-A.003 

This section presents: 

 Raw data layers received and sources (Section 2.1) 

 Data adjustment and correction process (Section 2.2) 

 Summary of the revised dataset (Section 2.3) 

2.1 Raw Geospatial Data 
Rick Engineering Company (RICK) used several data sets in addition to the original data from the City for this 

DMP. All utilized data sets are summarized in Table 2-1 with their associated version dates. 

Table 2-1: Geospatial Data Inventory 
Data Layer Version Date Source (Agency) 

LiDAR  2014 SanGIS, SANDAG, NGA, LECC, Regional Public 
Safety GIS, 18 Incorporated Cities  

Aerial Imagery 2017 County of San Diego 
Topography 2014  SANGIS 
Storm Drain Network Files (Drain 
Conveyance, Drain Structures) 

September 7, 2018 City of Lemon Grove, SanGIS, SANDAG 

Land Use  January 1, 2017 SanGIS, SANDAG 
Hydrologic Soil Groups (SSURGO) November 11, 2013 Natural Resources Conservation Service 
Parcel Layer  February 15, 2018 SanGIS, SANDAG, Assessor/Recorder/County Clerk 
Floodplain Layers  April 7, 2016 Federal Emergency Management Agency 
Municipal Boundaries July 25, 2011 SanGIS, SANDAG 
 

2.2 Corrections to GIS Inventory 
Corrections to the GIS storm drain inventory were required to model the existing conditions of the City of Lemon 

Grove. The completeness of storm drain inventory data was critical in ensuring the effectiveness and practicality 

of subsequent modeling analyses. RICK was tasked with updating the City’s storm drain inventory to more 

accurately reflect the current existing condition of the study area. For the purposes of preparing a DMP, the storm 

drain data necessary for this study consists of the horizontal layout of the existing storm drain system, size and 

material of conduits, and flowline elevations (if feasible). As displayed in Figure 2-2, storm drain inventory 

revisions were conducted in a two-step process; (1) desktop analyses and (2) field verification.  

 

 



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

6  
18473-A.003 

Figure 2-2: Corrections to GIS Inventory Flowchart 

 
 

2.2.1 Desktop Analyses 
Desktop analyses involved updating the storm drain structures and conveyance information in the City’s existing 

GIS dataset based on previous survey data, as-built drawings, aerial imagery, CCTV data, and Google Earth 

observations. The horizontal location of drainage structures in the inventory was corrected to match the aerial 

imagery. RICK utilized survey data from previous projects to assist in assigning invert elevations to drainage 

structures. For structures in which depth measurements were not accessible on site and survey or as-built 

drawing data was not available, engineering judgment was used to assign an invert elevation based on upstream 

DDesktop Analyses  

AAs-Builts Google Earth 
Observations  

CCTV Data 

   

Field Verification   

   
 

Updated and Corrected GIS Inventory 

Original GIS Inventory  



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

 
 7  

18473-A.003 

and downstream drainage connections. A Digital Elevation Model (DEM) was utilized to update rim elevations for 

drainage structures not previously identified in the received data. Google Earth and Street View were used to 

update the location and type of each inlet and drainage structure. 

2.2.2 Field Verification 
Several field visits were conducted as part of the DMP effort to supplement the desktop analyses in correcting the 

GIS inventory. These assessments included storm drain system inventory verification to assess the status of 

assets including inlet locations and sizes, storm drain diameters and materials, structure depths, connectivity, and 

drainage patterns. 

Figure 2-3: CMP conduit in the northern portion of Lemon Grove (Left).  
Spillway in the northern portion of Lemon Grove (Right). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.3 Revised Geospatial Data  
The main objective of the GIS storm drain data revisions was to ensure that a complete and accurate 

representation of the existing drainage system was reflected on the GIS shapefiles. The revisions incorporated 

into the GIS shapefiles were provided back to the City for use outside of this DMP. 

Table 2-2 provides a summary of the changes to the original storm drain inventory received from the City of 

Lemon Grove. The existing inventory was updated for storm drains that were larger than 36 inches in diameter 



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

 
 8  

18473-A.003 

(or considered part of the primary backbone system). The inventory was also updated to add missing drainage 

structures such as inlets, pipe segments, cleanouts, and outlets. Facilities were updated through referencing 

survey and as-built data as well as through Google Earth and Google Street observations conducted via desktop 

analysis. Certain facilities were flagged to be checked in person and those facilities were assessed via site visits 

that were conducted over the course of about three (3) days. As shown, multiple structures and conveyance 

segments were added to the inventory via this process. 

Table 2-2: Data Source of Drainage Asset Properties 
 Desktop Analyses 

Field 
Verification  Surveying 

Data 
As-built 
Data DEM Google Earth/Street 

View Observations 
Structures 

Location X X  X X 
Type of Structures X X  X X 
Rim Elevation X X X  X 
Invert Elevation X X X  X 
Depth   X  X 

Conveyance 
Location / Orientation X X  X X 
Type of Conveyance X X  X X 
Material X X   X 
Diameter X X   X 

Pipe Offsets     X 
 

Below, Table 2-3, provides a summary of the changes to the original storm drain inventory received from the 

City. 
 

  



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

 
 9  

18473-A.003 

Table 2-3: Summary of Original and Existing (revised) Storm Drain Inventory 

Asset Type Original Data 
Set Provided 

Existing 
Condition Revised 

Data 

Change in 
Features 

Percent 
Change 

Structure   
Fitting 7 0 -7 -100% 
Inlet 703 782 79 11% 
Manhole 85 103 18 21% 
Clean out 14 44 30 214% 
Discharge 173 18 -155 -90% 
Channel confluence 0 77 77 100% 
Conduit connection1 0 90 90 100% 
Downstream headwall 0 152 152 100% 
Flowline connection 0 21 21 100% 
Headwall 0 112 112 100% 
Not present 0 1 1 100% 
Outlet 0 21 21 100% 
Outlet, D-25 0 57 57 100% 
Spillway 0 31 31 100% 
Unimproved 0 37 37 100% 
Total 982 1546 564 57% 
Conveyance 

 

Culvert 3 0 -3 -100% 
Ditch 51 89 38 75% 
Drainage facility 698 1058 360 52% 
Earthen channel 46 57 11 24% 
Earthen ditch 13 13 0 0% 
Open channel 52 131 79 152% 
Surface flow/flowline 0 193 193 100% 
swGravity Main 860 0 -860 -100% 
Total 1723 1541 -182 -11% 
1. A conduit connection can be categorized as a structure that connects two (2) or more conduits but was not 
verified in the field. 
 
In order to better define the inventory, the conveyance and structure facilities were reclassified into 
subcategories that are more informative for future needs while keeping the integrity of the existing inventory. 
While the number of assets may have reduced, the overall value of the data has increased and become more 
robust. 
 
 
 
 



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

 
 10  

18473-A.003 

 
Drainage assessment was accomplished using an integrated 1-D/2-D hydrologic and hydraulic (H&H) model that 

combines surface and sub-surface drainage patterns within the study area. One of the most beneficial aspects of 

integrated 1-D/2-D modeling is the ability to render high-resolution surface inundation and storage of storm 

water flow for the duration of a design storm. An existing condition model was prepared, which presented a high 

resolution visual rendering of the combined surface and sub-surface drainage patterns within the study area. For 

the purposes of this study, the 100-year storm event was used to evaluate the storm drain infrastructure to 

inform infrastructure improvements. Other storm events (2-year and 10-year) were also modeled in order to 

understand the performance of the drainage conveyance system during storms with a higher probability of 

occurrence. 

The existing condition H&H model highlighted several areas where the existing drainage infrastructure (i.e., 

inlets, storm drains, and surface street conveyance) is considered deficient in terms of storm water conveyance 

during a 100-year storm event. These deficiencies include locations with storm water ponding above the curb and 

extending onto the sidewalk and into private property. 

The 2-D component of the analysis allowed for the evaluation of the benefit provided to surface conveyance 

capacity after the addition of storm drain infrastructure (i.e. to quantify the benefit of proposed drainage 

improvements). A reasonable objective for future drainage improvements is to reduce flood depths in the ROW to 

6 inches or less, (i.e., flood depths would be less than the standard curb height per San Diego Regional Standard 

Drawings – 2018 and storm water conveyance would be contained within the ROW). Additional information 

regarding the specific drainage H&H methodology used in this study can be found in a memo located in Appendix 

A. 

This section presents the following: 

 Overview of the existing drainage patterns (Section 3.1) 

 Model Setup Methodology (Section 133.2.1) 

 Modeling Results (Section 3.2.2) 

  



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

 
 11  

18473-A.003 

3.1 Drainage Patterns 
The total drainage area in the study is approximately 3,508 acres and drains in a southwesterly direction. The 

topography of the city is characterized by relatively flat to mild slopes in developed areas, and steeper slopes on 

the edge of the city boundary and the valleys formed primarily around Lemon Grove Avenue and Federal 

Boulevard. The drainage infrastructure is a combination of pipes and culverts that are more prevalent along main 

and highly utilized streets such as Broadway and Lemon Grove Avenue, and open channels and ditches that are 

present more in the residential areas.  

3.1.1 Subcatchment Delineations 
RICK utilized semi-automated delineation tools in GIS to create initial delineations of subcatchments and flow 

paths for each inlet. After the initial delineation, RICK modified the subcatchment areas during the QA/QC process 

and ended with 861 subcatchments, as seen in Figure 3-1. Due to the high resolution of the topographic data, 

the GIS delineation tools were able to identify flow paths along curbed roadways, through backyards, and across 

driveways, establishing an effective baseline for subcatchment delineations. 

Figure 3-1: Drainage Areas of Existing Condition 

 
 



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

 
 12  

18473-A.003 

These subcatchments were then combined to create five (5) overall subwatershed systems labeled 1-5 based on 

their location west to east. These systems, as seen in Figure 3-2, can be identified by their major road or 

drainage path. System 1 contains Broadway and Federal Boulevard, System 2 contains Massachusetts Avenue, 

System 3 contains Lemon Grove Avenue, System 4 contains part of Broadway and Sweetwater Road, and System 

5 contains some of Sweetwater Road and consists of the rest of the drainage areas that do not drain to Systems 

1-4. Systems 1-3 have their own unique drainage outlets; all of their respective subcatchments confluence to one 

(1) outfall. System 4 has two (2) outfalls. System 5 is made of a collection of drainage conveyance systems 

whose subcatchments do not share an outfall. System 5 consists of the remaining conveyance facilities not 

included in the other four (4) subwatershed drainage areas. 

Figure 3-2: Major Subwatershed Drainage Areas 

 
 

3.1.2 Surface Conveyance 
An important component of the storm water conveyance system in the Lemon Grove study area is the multitude 

of channels and ditches connecting the conveyance behind and around buildings. There are a few open channels 

of note in the study area. These main channels run behind buildings, adjacent to railroad tracks, and are main 

portions of the backbone drainage system in their respective drainage area system. System 1 has large channels 



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

 
 13  

18473-A.003 

behind the commercial buildings on Federal Boulevard. System 3 has large channels next to the railroad tracks on 

Lemon Grove Avenue. The 2-D mesh provided a way to visualize the surface conveyance.  

Some of these open channels are smaller than the resolution of the 2-D mesh and proved to be a challenge to 

represent in a 2-D model. In order to properly analyze the geometry and conveyance of these open channels, 

they were modeled as 1-D conduits with a 2-D mesh overlay. Larger channels that could be defined solely by the 

DEM were modeled just with 2-D mesh. 

Refer to the existing condition maps located in Appendix A for a visual overview of the surface conveyance 

conditions modeled. 

3.2 Existing Condition 

3.2.1 Existing Condition Model Methodology 
The corrected GIS storm drain inventory discussed in section 2.0 was imported into PCSWMM and formed the 

basis of the 1-D conveyance portion of the study area model. Storm drain networks were visually inspected 

horizontally with reference to aerial imagery and vertically by viewing the storm drain profiles generated within 

the program to verify the suitability of the data.  

The DEM was used to develop a 2-D model surface to represent storm water flows in streets, alleys, open 

channels, and open space areas. A directional 2-D mesh was applied in these areas to represent the preferential 

direction of flow. This surface was coupled to the 1-D storm drain inventory to match the rim elevations at points 

of connection to the storm drain conveyance system. 

The computer modeling approach utilized has the capability to quantify the shallow surface attenuation (aka – 

detention) occurring in the right-of-way (ROW) and its effect to the peak flows entering the storm drain system 

(peak flow rates entering the system may be attenuated, which may reduce the size of required improvements). 

Table 3-1 below shows a breakdown of the storm drain pipes analyzed in the existing condition model.  

  



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

 
 14  

18473-A.003 

Table 3-1: Existing Conditions Storm Drain Pipe Diameters and Lengths Modeled 
 

Diameter (in) Length (ft) Pipe and Culvert Count % 
4 614 2 0.5% 

6 984 5 0.7% 

8 667 4 0.5% 

10 73 1 0.1% 

11 62 1 0% 

12 4,683 58 3.6% 

15 2,147 21 1.6% 

18 33,514 329 25.5% 

20 425 2 0.3% 

21 754 5 0.6% 

24 30,791 246 23.5% 

27 178 3 0.1% 

30 17,432 95 13.3% 

33 1,378 4 1.1% 

36 15,748 82 12.0% 

39 98 1 0.1% 

42 5,117 22 3.9% 

48 6,039 46 4.6% 

54 757 5 0.6% 

57 735 6 0.6% 

60 2,835 12 2.2% 

66 292 2 0.2% 

72 4,447 20 3.4% 

78 1,484 5 1.1% 

Total 131,254 977 100% 

 

See Appendix A for a summary of the hydrologic results of the single-storm model simulations at each storm 

drain outfall modeled within the study area. 

 



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

 
 15  

18473-A.003 

3.2.2 Existing Condition Results 
Modeling results highlighted deficiencies in the LOS of the conveyance system within the study area. This is most 

obvious in the storm drain networks located at Federal Boulevard, Broadway, Broadway and Sweetwater, Lemon 

Grove Avenue, and Madera Street, where a significant length of storm drain pipes identified in the inventory did 

not demonstrate capacity to convey the 100-year storm event. While reviewing the City’s as-builts, it was 

observed that much of the storm drain conveyance currently in place was designed in the 1960’s and 1970’s. It is 

believed that those areas were not designed for the LOS currently required within the City of San Diego drainage 

design standards.  

Model results were obtained for the 24-hour storms at the 2-, 10-, and 100-year return period from the 

precipitation data obtained from NOAA Atlas 14 Precipitation Frequency Data Server (PFDS) as discussed in the 

memo located in Appendix A of this report. The 24-hour storm events were judged to be the most pertinent 

storm events due to the volume of runoff generated and the peak flows generated at the main outfall of each 

storm drain system. 

Modeling results highlighted deficiencies in the level of service (LOS) of the conveyance system within the study 

area and full results can be found in Appendix F.  

During the 100-year storm about 38% of the conveyance distance is below or at capacity. Table 3-2 provides an 

overview of the results observed in the 2-, 10-, and 100-year, 24-hour storm events compared to the surcharging 

conduits of the storm drain network.  

Figure 3-3 depicts the lengths and number of pipes in each conveyance capacity category over 100%. 

Table 3-2: Existing Condition Storm Drain Conveyance Capacity Summary 

Conveyance 
Capacity 

(%)1 

2-Year Storm 10-Year Storm 100-Year Storm 

Pipe Length 
(feet) 

Pipe Length 
(feet) 

Pipe Length 
(feet) 

< 100 111,813 98,635 80,580 

100 - 150 13,324 22,157 35,385 

150 - 200 3,410 5,697 7,905 

> 200 2,562 4,620 7,239 

Total 131,109 131,109 131,109 
1. Conveyance capacity is the max full flow in the pipe compared to the maximum flow the pipe is designed 

to convey. 



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

 
 16  

18473-A.003 

 
 

Figure 3-3:  Existing Condition Storm Drain Conveyance Capacity 

 
 
Undersized storm drain facilities caused a significant amount of storm water to pond on the street surfaces. In 

many locations water ponds in excess of one (1) foot on the surface at the low points. Table 3-3 provides a 

summary overview of the peak storm water stored on the 2-D surface and the overall corresponding ponding 

depth. The structures experiencing the various flood depths are counted alongside their respective depths.  

Table 3-3: Existing Condition 2-D Cell Peak Storage Volume 24-HR Storm Events 

Ponding 
Depth 

(inches) 

2-Year Storm 10-Year Storm 100-Year Storm 
Volume 
(Ac.-Ft.) 

Structures 
(#) 

Volume 
(Ac.-Ft.) 

Structures 
(#) 

Volume 
(Ac.-Ft.) 

Structures 
(#) 

0 - 6 11.42 293 43.85 409 21.99 499 

6 - 12 9.83 59 13.44 89 22.34 181 

> 12 34.85 61 29.84 94 105.34 139 

Total 56.10 413 87.14 592 149.67 819 
 

Refer to the existing condition maps located in Appendix C for a visual representation of the depths and limits of 

surface inundation within the study area. Table 3-4 presents a summary table of peak flow rate results at the 

storm drain outfall locations obtained from the modeling efforts. 

  

13,324 
22,157 

35,531 
3,410 

5,697 

7,905 

2,562 

4,620 

7,239 

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

2-Year Storm 10-Year Storm 100-Year Storm

Le
ng

th
 o

f S
to

rm
 D

ra
in

 P
ip

es
 (f

ee
t)

>200%
150% - 200%
100% - 150%



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

 
 17  

18473-A.003 

Table 3-4: Existing Condition Storm Drain Outfall Summary 

System ID Drainage 
Area (ac.) 

Peak Flow Rates (cfs) 
        2-YR            10-YR           100-YR 

1 1317.2 563.2 967.2 1724.3 

2 245.4 132.08 196.5 353.6 

3 1120.3 523.5 912 1604 

4 600.2 345.4 551 1021.6 

5 457.6 357.9 614.6 987.8 

3.3 Proposed Condition 

3.3.1 Proposed Condition Model Methodology 
Results from the existing condition models were evaluated in several aspects to determine an effective balanced 

approach to decrease the amount of surface ponding, and increase storm drain pipe capacities in the study area. 

The September 2014 San Diego County Hydraulic Design Manual states that storm drains in conjunction with 

surface drainage are to be designed to convey the 100-year storm. However, based on the severity of the 

deficiencies in the existing condition drainage infrastructure and subsequent conversations with City staff, it was 

decided that recommendations for the deficient infrastructure would target a 10-year level of service.  

The objective of the recommended improvements aimed to reduce inundated structures during the 10-year storm 

event by improving storm drain pipes in the same drainage basin. The recommended pipe improvements were 

then bundled into CIP scale projects, providing drainage solutions for the area’s most prone to drainage issues in 

the existing condition. The CIP projects provide city officials with the ability to streamline the drainage 

improvement process by providing a graphical representation of drainage needs throughout the City to be 

referenced during future projects of all types, thus allowing for the strategic bundling of multi-objective projects 

to reduce overall cost to the City and decrease the amount of time residents are impacted by construction 

 improvements that could be completed to collectively improve the surrounding area. The bundled projects 

provide city officials with a list of storm drain pipes that can be improved concurrently, decreasing the amount of 

time the street is impacted by construction. 

Inundated structures were utilized as indicators of deficient drainage infrastructure and deficient facilities most 

likely resulting in the inundated structures were flagged for improvement. The combined peak flow from the 

surface and sub-surface conveyance model were used to size the deficient infrastructure. The improvements had 

to be recommended around several constraints; new alignments were not part of the process in this study, so the 

improvements had to stay within the existing alignments. Additionally, channels and ditches were not 



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

 
 18  

18473-A.003 

recommended for improvements. With all these constraints the improvements for this study were recommended 

to the maximum extent practicable. Recommendations also included proposed improvements from other projects. 

These previous studies prepared by Rick Engineering included the August 17, 2014 “City of Lemon Grove Storm 

Drain Assessment of Existing Corrugated Metal Pipe (CMP) Facilities” and the July 6, 2018 “Flood Control 

Feasibility Analysis Report Along Federal Boulevard, Between Central Avenue and San Miguel Avenue in Lemon 

Grove, California.” 

In order to determine when additional barrels would be added in lieu of simply upsizing of the existing storm 

drain network, the following was considered during the evaluation process. If the proposed storm drain size was 

too large when proposed in conjunction with the existing invert elevations and resulted in an exposed storm pipe, 

additional barrels with smaller pipe diameters were recommended instead.  

 

The proposed condition also considered the results of the CMP closed-circuit television (CCTV). Pipes that had a 

rating over zero (0) were replaced with RCP and any pipes upstream and downstream were also considered as 

candidates to be replaced. In some cases, the material of the pipe needed to be changed but the size did not in 

order to pass the 10-year flow. 

3.3.2 Proposed Condition Results 
The goal of this study was to compile and identify areas most frequently prone to flooding in order to alleviate 

the flooding of structures and major roadway corridors to the extent feasible through storm drain improvements. 

The method of improving drainage conditions throughout the City was to replace existing infrastructure, in place, 

with infrastructure that has the capacity to convey the selected LOS. In order to provide feasible improvements, 

the recommended infrastructure is to be replaced in the current alignment to reduce the probability of conflicts 

with other utilities during realignment. The alignments of the infrastructure can be adjusted during final design if 

necessary or desired. The recommended storm drain systems were sized accounting for the total flow getting to 

the pipe through both surface and subsurface conveyance. The decided upon Level of Service (LOS) for this study 

was for the storm drains to convey the 10-year event and for the combined storm drain and road way to convey 

larger events where feasible. The recommended improvements outlined in this study provide a significant LOS 

increase throughout the City and reduce the number of structures affected by stormwater inundation.  

From these considerations, of the modeled 991 pipes, 277 were recommended to be upsized or replaced with 

RCP. 

The 2-, 10-, and 100-year storm events were analyzed and Table 3-5 presents a summary overview of the impact 

that the replacement of storm drain infrastructure had on the entire storm drain pipe conveyance system 



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

 
 19  

18473-A.003 

modeled in the proposed condition. Table 3-5 depicts the lengths and number of pipes in each conveyance 

capacity category over 100%. 

Table 3-5: Proposed Condition Storm Drain Conveyance Capacity Summary 
 

Conveyance 
Capacity 

(%)1 

2-Year Storm 10-Year Storm 100-Year Storm 

Pipe Length 
(feet) 

Pipe Length 
(feet) 

Pipe Length 
(feet) 

< 100 126,941 115,166 89,255 

100 - 150 3,787 14,036 35,097 

150 - 200 1,792 1,618 4,660 

> 200 466 2,166 3,975 

Total 132,986 132,986 132,986 
1. Conveyance capacity is the max full flow in the pipe compared to the maximum flow the pipe is designed 

to convey. 

Figure 3-4: Proposed Condition Storm Drain Conveyance Capacity 

 
 
The storm drain facilities were upsized to reduce surface flooding and convey the 10-year storm event within the 

pipes and 100-year storm event within the street. Even though pipes are over 100% capacity, this does not mean 

3,787 

14,036 

35,097 

1,792 

1,618 

4,660 

466 

2,166 

3,975 

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

40,000

45,000

2-Year Storm 10-Year Storm 100-Year Storm

Le
ng

th
 o

f S
to

rm
 D

ra
in

 P
ip

es
 (f

ee
t)

>200%
150% - 200%
100% - 150%



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

 
 20  

18473-A.003 

that there is flooding at each of these facilities. A pipe flowing over 100% could just indicate that that particular 

pipe is flowing under pressure. The results of the proposed infrastructure are more appropriately reflected in the 

number of flooded structures.  

Table 3-6 provides a summary overview of the impact that the replacement of storm drain infrastructure had on 

the surface ponding conditions. The structures experiencing the various flood depths are counted alongside their 

respective depths.  

Table 3-6: Proposed Condition 2-D Cell Peak Storage Volume 24-HR Storm Events 

Ponding 
Depth 

(inches) 

2-Year Storm 10-Year Storm 100-Year Storm 
Volume 
(Ac.-Ft.) 

Structures 
(#) 

Volume 
(Ac.-Ft.) 

Structures 
(#) 

Volume 
(Ac.-Ft.) 

Structures 
(#) 

0 - 6 8.94 248 34.33 317 18.58 447 

6 - 12 5.79 44 9.69 67 16.79 116 

> 12 30.56 59 22.41 80 71.75 121 

Total 45.29 351 66.43 464 107.11 684 

Decrease from 
Existing  

Condition 
56.10 62 20.71 128 42.56 135 

 
There are local sumps throughout the city and some structures have ponding around their perimeter due to a 

local sump. Therefore, those structures might not have a project near them and will experience local ponding in 

both the existing and proposed conditions.  
 

Refer to the existing condition maps located in Appendix C for a visual representation of the depths and limits of 

surface inundation within the study area. Table 3-7 presents a summary table of peak flow rate results at the 

storm drain outfall locations obtained from the modeling efforts under the proposed conditions. 

Table 3-7: Proposed Condition Storm Drain Outfall Summary 

System ID Drainage 
Area (ac.) 

Peak Flow Rates (cfs) 
        2-YR            10-YR           100-YR 

1 1317.2 743 1,140 1,704 

2 245.4 131 225 356 

3 1120.3 633 1,068 1,637 

4 600.2 401 645 925 

5 457.6 353 621 1,037 
 



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

 
 21  

18473-A.003 

 

4.1 Interim Solution for CMP Assessment 
Field surveying was prepared for the CMP portion of the five (5) identified systems. Refer to Appendix B for 

backup information from the field survey.  Refer to Attachment C for exhibits showing each CMP section. 

Based on the results of the field survey, the CMP systems were televised using closed-circuit television (CCTV) by 

Affordable Pipeline Services.  

There are 149 segments that were surveyed, and a rating system was used by Affordable Pipeline. Grades were 

assigned and they are as follows: 

5 – Most severe 
4 – Severe 
3 – Moderate 
2 – Minor to Moderate 
1 – Minor 
0 – Minor or No Televising Available 
 

According to results from the televised survey, CMP conditions range from “minor” to “most severe”. Many 

sections are classified as severe by way of debris accumulation and damage through corrosion where: the bottom 

half of the pipes are missing, large diameter holes are prevalent, or severe corrosion has made many small holes 

throughout a particular segment. Other segments are classified as severely damaged by way of deformation and 

deformation is characterized as severe if it restricts flow and/or the structural integrity of the pipe and prevents 

repair.  Segments classified as moderate have light corrosion and/or debris accumulation and segments classified 

as minor are in good condition with no or minor corrosion and no or minor debris accumulation.  

The repair techniques can be summarized into six (6) methods and they are as follows: 

- Cured in Place Pipe (CIPP) Lining 
- Cured in Place Pipe Sectional Repairs 
- Top Hat (TH) in Lateral/Main Connection Sealing 
- Pressurized Hydrophilic Grout and Urethane Sealant 
- Hydro-Scouring 
- Pipe Removal and Replacement 
 

Refer to Appendix B for definitions of each of these repair techniques. The least costly repairs are those that are 

fully clogged with sediment and debris and they can be repaired by hydro-scour. The next least costly of the 

repairs are those with severe corrosion and multiple holes that are less than one (1)-foot diameter and these can 

be repaired with CIPP lining. The costliest set of repairs are those that are severely deformed or corroded with 



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

 
 22  

18473-A.003 

sections of pipe missing or large diameter holes (greater than one (1)-foot diameter) and these will require pipe 

removal and replacement. Below is a summary of the CMP condition and the amount of each type of 

recommended repair. 

Table 4-1: Summary of Pipe Segment Rating and Quantity 

Grade/Rating Number of Pipe Segments 

5 – Most Severe 56 

4 - Severe 14 

3 - Moderate 56 

2 – Minor to Moderate 5 

0 – Minor or No Televising Available 18 

Total 149 
 

Table 4-2: Summary of Repair Technique, Quantity, and Length 

Repair Technique Segment 
Quantity 

Segment 
Length (ft) 

1 - Cured in Place Pipe (CIPP) Lining 20 1,860 

2 - Cured in Place Pipe Sectional Repairs 1 430 

3 - Top Hat (TH) in Lateral/Main Connection Sealing 1 -- 

4 - Pressurized Hydrophilic Grout and Urethane Sealant 4 895 

5 - Hydro-Scouring 47 4,915 

6 - Pipe Removal and Replacement 28 1,043 

Total 101 9,143 
 

About one third or 49 of the inspected CMP’s require rehabilitation or replacement. Twenty-eight (28) pipes are 

either fully clogged with debris or have significant debris and need hydro-scouring. The remaining pipes have 

minor to moderated severity and do not require significant repair or maintenance.     

Refer to Appendix B for backup information from the televised survey (CCTV), results, maps, and summary 

tables. 



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

 
 23  

18473-A.003 

4.2 Regional Locations of Interest 
Regional Improvement Opportunities that could provide detention or water quality benefits were identified 

through visual inspection. The size of the contributing drainage areas and land parcel ownership were the major 

contributing factors for identifying regional opportunities. A conscious effort was made to limit the identification of 

regional opportunities to parcels owned by the City; however, some locations on private parcels were identified as 

well in certain circumstances due to constraints in the public ROW, like lack of adequate space. The regional 

opportunities were also chosen based on their proximity to the outfall of the subwatershed system to maximize 

the impact of treatment. 

In total ten (10) locations are currently identified as potentially viable regional improvement opportunities. The 

locations are listed below in Table 4-3 and refer to Appendix C for an exhibit of the locations. 

Table 4-3: Regional Improvement Opportunities 

Regional Improvement Opportunities 

ID Contributing 
Area (ac) 

Impervious Area 
(ac) Parcel Ownership 

1 57.8 45.3 Thaidigsman Family Trust 
2 324.4 201.2 Lemon Grove Alano Club 
3 33.2 20.4 Retail Portfolio 30-1 LLC 
4 14.4 7.5 Lemon Grove School District 
5 54.6 33.4 Erickson Linda R 
6 62.2 34.4 Shra Crockett Inc 
7 124.3 74.1 Caltrans 
8 208.5 128.2 City of Lemon Grove 
9 35.3 17.1 Union Pacific Railroad Co. 

10 32.8 19.9 Senior Community Centers/Community Health 
Partnerships 

4.3 Drainage Recommendations 
The following sections present summaries of the various structures associated with the drainage infrastructure.  

4.3.1 Storm Drain Recommendations 
The recommendations for the storm drain pipe system consist of addressing deficient facilities that, based off the 

modeling results, caused or contributed to inundation of structures during the 10-year storm event. The 10-year 

storm event was targeted to improve the level of service during the more frequent storm events. 

 
In addition to replacing storm drain pipes by their capacity, the material of the pipe was also considered. CMP 

rated above 0 are recommended for replacement. The CMP facilities recommended for replacement were 



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

 
 24  

18473-A.003 

recommended for conversion to RCP pipe of the appropriate size to convey the 10-year flow at the location. Pipes 

upstream and downstream were assessed and if they were CMP, were also recommended for replacement. Table 

4-4 compares the number of drainage facilities in the existing and proposed condition. For a visual representation 

of the proposed storm drain improvements, refer to the maps provided in Appendix E. 

Junctions were edited in response to editing the pipes they were connected with but these changes were minor 

and the changes are not analyzed between the existing and proposed conditions. 

 

Table 4-4: Storm Drain Recommendations Summary 

Facility type 

Existing Condition Proposed Condition 
Total Replaced % Replace 

Storm Drain (LF)1 265,225 226,576 85 
1 Includes lengths from dual pipe systems. 

4.3.2 Future Channel Restoration Opportunities 
 
As previously stated, small channels were assigned dimensions and had an overlay of 2D mesh and larger 

channels were modeled with the 2D mesh. In the proposed condition, channels were not the focus of proposed 

improvements. However, as part of the effort in analyzing the proposed condition results, channels that are in 

flooded areas are flagged for potential improvements. Refer to Appendix E for locations of proposed channels. 

4.4 Individual Improvement Costs 
Appendix C has maps of results from the 2-, 10-, and 100-year storm event models. These maps visually highlight 

the deficiencies within the citywide drainage system encountered during the modeling efforts. A visual 

observation of the drainage infrastructure displayed on these maps led to the conclusion that the City’s drainage 

deficiencies are not concentrated within one central location, but rather they are distributed throughout various 

neighborhoods and watersheds. This data is crucial for determination of implementation strategies. 

 

As a goal of this study, the results from the Citywide DMP have been leveraged to develop potential Capital 

Improvement Program (CIP) projects to address the drainage deficiencies where they occur. This was 

accomplished via a series of steps: 

 Hydrologic and hydraulic analysis of the backbone storm drain infrastructure throughout the City. 

 Recommending storm drain pipe size improvements for infrastructure which was determined to have 

deficient conveyance capacity.  



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

 
 25  

18473-A.003 

 Determining individual priority for the recommended storm drain infrastructure improvements based on 

hydrologic and hydraulic analysis results and other applicable data.  

 Grouping individual infrastructure improvements into CIP project bundles based on geographic location. 

 
This process led to the development of bundled CIP projects which were then evaluated in more detail to 

determine potential benefits and/or consequences that may arise during the implementation process. After these 

projects were vetted, the recommended improvements were entered into a hydrologic and hydraulic model to 

determine the extent of the benefit yielded by the recommendations. The following sections provide further 

explanations of this process.  

4.4.1 Selection Criteria 

The method for selecting potential CIP projects involved the development of scoring criteria, as outlined in Figure 

4-1. These criteria were developed to rate the efficiency of all existing storm drain segments and then assess the 

bundled projects by their effect on inundated buildings. The first set of criteria generates a simplified ranking 

system ranging from a score of 0 - 55 with 55 being the highest possible score to determine the importance of 

providing recommendations for the system. An extra 25 points are awarded to a pipe based on its CCTV rating, 

represented by the CMP Score. Summing the Raw Total with the Synergy Bonus Points, the highest possible 

rating for a pipe is 80 points. 

Once all existing storm drains were scored, the criteria were further refined to prioritize based on bundled 

project; each bundled project was assessed based on its effect on reducing flooding to buildings. The projects 

were bundled based on their proximity and connection to one another. Analyzing the area upstream and 

downstream from a project allowed for each individual project to be assessed based on its effect on the buildings 

in the area. Each project area was visually inspected to confirm that buildings were not negatively affected by a 

project upstream or downstream. The individual scoring and bundled project assessment were combined in a 

final project prioritization step that assigned values based on a project’s standing in flood reduction and number 

of priority assets. This resulted in projects with scores between 30 and 100.  

Cost was factored in to the Flood Reduction Score by including normalized values from FEMA’s Estimated Flood 

Loss Potential into the bundled projects’ flood reduction score. FEMA has loss potential costs associated with 

depth of flooding. The costs used in this analysis are normalized averages of three ranges: 1-6 inches, 6-12 

inches, and 12-48 inches. Refer to Appendix G for the FEMA data. 

This dual assessment in the prioritization process allows for the proposed improvements to be used both on the 

individual scale and project scale. There are costs for each of the forty-two (42) bundled projects as well as costs 

for each individual pipe that is proposed for improvements. 



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

 
 26  

18473-A.003 

Figure 4-1: CIP Selection Criteria 

Rating Criteria (per asset) Max. Score Subcriteria 
Score 

Public Safety 35   
Land Use Impacts   (0 to 20) 

Adjacent to High-Priority Land Use   20 
Adjacent to Developed Land Use   10 
Adjacent to Vacant Land Use   0 

Within Major Roads   (0 to 15) 
Conveyance Characteristics     
Ease of Implementation 20   

Projects within Existing City Ownership, Right-
of-Way, or Easement   20 

Projects Located on Unimproved Property/Vacant   15 
Raw Total 55   
     

Synergy Bonus Points 25   
CMP Score   (0 to 25) 

Score 5   25 
Score 4   20 
Score 3   15 
Score 2   10 
Score 1   5 

Synergy Total 25   
Overall Project Score 80   

Project Prioritization       
Flood Reduction Score 60 (0 to 60) 

Highest Ranked 10% of Projects   60 
Second Ranked 30% of Projects   40 
Lowest Ranked 60% of Projects   20 

Normalized Project Score Per Weighted 
Asset Score 40 (0 to 40) 

Highest Ranked 10% of Projects   40 
Second Ranked 30% of Projects   20 
Lowest Ranked 60% of Projects   10 

 
 
 



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

 
 27  

18473-A.003 

4.4.2  Results 
 
From the extensive and detailed modeling came forty-two (42) potential CIP projects that encompass all the 

proposed conditions modeling. However, this DMP has provided more detailed information on the top five (5) 

feasible CIP projects with the most favorable flood control benefits. These five (5) CIP projects are viable 

drainage improvements which can be implemented to provide a better level of service for their respective areas 

with minimal adverse effect on the connecting systems. These projects have been selected to address known 

hotspots within the City and reduce existing deficiencies by upsizing existing infrastructure. The projects in this 

section are not based on priority. 

The results of the top five (5) project bundles are displayed in Table 4-5. Refer to Appendix G for the summary 

table of improvements and costs for all forty-two (42) projects. 

The total cost of CIP projects is $78,183,649 and remove 121 structures from experiencing inundation. The top 

five (5) CIP projects range in price from $78,856.37 to $10,026,193.78 and include storm drain and culvert 

improvements. The top five (5) projects remove forty-two (42) structures from experiencing flooding. This 

spectrum of project sizes and types allows the City a broad array of projects from which to select. The potential 

for storm drain improvements made System 1 the most likely to have the most desirable projects.   

Table 4-6 provides a comparison of results between the existing and proposed conditions for the top five (5) 

projects while Table 4-7 provides a comparison of results between the existing and proposed conditions for all 

forty-two (42) projects. Below, Table 4-8, provides a comparison of inundated structures for the top five (5) 

projects while Table 4-9 provides a comparison of inundated structures for all forty-two (42) projects. The 

number of structures experiencing ponded water decreases in the proposed condition due to the proposed 

improvements.  

Table 4-5: Costs of the Top 5 Prioritized Projects 

Project 
Bundle ID Capital Cost Soft Cost 

(32% P&D) Total Project Cost 

1_1  $ 1,173,106.71   $    563,091.22   $   1,736,197.93  
1_3  $      53,281.33   $      25,575.04   $        78,856.37  
1_11  $ 1,623,433.18   $    779,247.92   $   2,402,681.10  
1_2  $ 6,774,455.26   $ 3,251,738.52   $ 10,026,193.78  
1_9  $    821,359.05   $    394,252.35   $   1,215,611.40  
SUM $10,445,635.52 $5,013,905.05 $15,459,540.58 

 

  



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

 
 28  

18473-A.003 

Table 4-6: Comparison of Storm Drain Results of the Top 5 Prioritized Projects 
Conduits: 

Subtotal of 
Deficiencies 

(LF)  

2-Year Capacity 10-Year Capacity 100-Year Capacity 

<100 100-
150 

150-
200 >200 <100 100-

150 
150-
200 >200 <100 100-150 150-

200 >200 

Existing  
Conditions 5,284 2,017 660 191 3,707 2,859 1,261 324 2,852 3,596 1,105 598 

Proposed  
Conditions 4,528 4,119 260 613 6,539 2,320 564 97 4,528 4,119 260 613 

Flood 
Reduction  
Benefit  
from  
Proposed  
Conditions 

756 (2,102) 400 (422) 2,832 539 697 227 1,676 (523) 845 (15) 

% Change 14% -104% 61% -221% 76% 19% 55% 70% 59% -15% 76% -3% 

 

Table 4-7: Comparison of Storm Drain Results of All Projects 
Conduits: 

Subtotal of 
Deficiencies 

(LF)  

2-Year Capacity 10-Year Capacity 100-Year Capacity 

<100 100-150 150-
200 >200 <100 100-

150 
150-
200 >200 <100 100-

150 
150-
200 >200 

Existing  
Conditions 27,614 9,569 2,847 2,190 18,524 15,833 4,378 3,485 13,753 19,081 4,653 4,732 

Proposed  
Conditions 42,300 1,242 495 180 35,683 7,295 564 675 24,872 16,900 1,255 1,190 

Flood 
Reduction  
Benefit  
from  
Proposed  
Conditions 

14,686 8,327 2,352 2,010 17,159 8,538 3,814 2,810 11,119 2,181 3,398 3,542 

% Change 53% 87% 83% 92% 93% 54% 87% 81% 81% 11% 73% 75% 

 

  



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

 
 29  

18473-A.003 

Table 4-8: Comparison of Inundated Structures of the Top 5 Prioritized Projects 
 

 Ponding 2-Year 
Storm 

10-Year 
Storm 

100-Year 
Storm  Depth 

 
(inches) Structures 

(#) 
Structures 

(#) 
Structures 

(#) 
   

Existing 

0 - 6 91 109 113 

6-12 21 28 49 
> 12 17 21 31 
Total 129 158 193 

Proposed 

Ponding 
Depth Structures 

(#) 
Structures 

(#) 
Structures 

(#) (Inches) 
0 - 6 66 85 119 
6-12 16 10 31 
> 12 16 21 25 
Total 98 116 175 

Comparison Difference 31 42 18 
 
 
 

Table 4-9: Comparison of Inundated Structures of All Projects 

 Ponding 2-Year 
Storm 

10-Year 
Storm 

100-Year 
Storm  Depth 

 (inches) Structures 
(#) 

Structures 
(#) 

Structures 
(#)    

Existing 

0 - 6 278 384 472 
6-12 51 71 161 
> 12 45 73 112 
Total 374 528 745 

Proposed 

Ponding 
Depth Structures 

(#) 
Structures 

(#) 
Structures 

(#) (Inches) 
0 - 6 236 304 426 
6-12 37 42 99 
> 12 44 61 96 
Total 317 407 621 

Comparison Difference 57 121 124 
 



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

 
 30  

18473-A.003 

 
This DMP successfully utilized high-resolution data with an integrated PCSWMM modeling approach to determine 

existing deficiencies and identify recommended improvements for drainage infrastructure. The results from the 

project and subsequent prioritization provide the City of Lemon Grove with recommendations to be used in the 

City’s planning and CIP. The results significantly advance the City’s storm water management goals by not only 

assessing each individual pipe but by bundling recommendations into tangible projects. The value of the results 

of this project is that now the City has assessments for all of its storm drain pipes at its disposal with all of the 

results provided in a user-friendly web application tool.  

The 1-D/2-D H&H model provides a visual representation of surface drainage in the City of Lemon Grove during 

different storm events. During the 2-, 10-, and 100-year, 24-hour storms, significant flooding occurs along 

Federal Boulevard and Lemon Grove Avenue. Additionally, during the 100-year, 24-hour storm a section of 

Broadway and the intersection of Broadway and Sweetwater Way experience significant flooding. The modeling 

also provides a list of deficient systems. In the 2-, 10-, and 100-year, 24-hour storm events there are 135, 227, 

and 347 deficient conduits, respectively. 

This study provides ten (10) potential regional locations for future water quality BMPs. The delineations created 

for the entire watershed created the opportunity to calculate the contributing areas to each of these regional 

improvement opportunities. These locations were chosen based on the surrounding space and the contributing 

area. Additionally, channels were visually inspected and those that could be retrofitted in the future were flagged 

and included in the final package of these project’s efforts. 

Based on the results from the existing condition model, recommendations for the storm drain pipes were made 

and included upsizing and/or changing the material to RCP. Based on their surcharging junctions while conveying 

the 10-year storm event, pipes were upsized to be able to convey the flow without causing flooding. The goal 

was to improve the 10-year level of service, contain the flow within the street during the 100-year storm event, 

and decrease the amount of structures flooding in the 2-, 10-, and 100-year storm events. The drainage modeling 

and recommendations outlined in this report were able to reduce the total volume of surface ponding from 

approximately 87.14 acre-feet to 66.43 acre feet in the 10-year storm event. The drainage recommendations 

consist of storm drain replacement based on existing capacity and material. Based on location and system, 

recommendations were bundled into projects and resulted in forty-two (42) projects that vary in cost from 

$25,343 to $10,026,194. The combined cost for all the recommendations for these projects totals approximately 

$78,183,649. These costs can be looked at on an individual pipe level or project level. In addition to this, each 

individual pipe is prioritized based on its location and CCTV rating. On a project scale, the project is prioritized 

based on its effect on the structures upstream and downstream of its location. The five top priority projects range 



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

 
 31  

18473-A.003 

from $78,856 to $10,026,194 and remove forty-two (42) structures from experiencing flooding in the 10-year 

storm event and 121 structures in the 100-year storm event.  

In summary, this study provides improvement costs for each individual pipe and bundles and prioritizes them into 

CIP-level projects. The City now has forty-two (42) bundled projects to support the City’s CIP, paving the way for 

city staff to use each project to apply for grant money funding. Additionally, the City has a list of flagged channels 

recommended for future improvements in order to pursue water quality benefits that will be experienced by both 

the City of Lemon Grove and downstream receiving waters. Rather than reacting to problems when they arise, 

the City aims to take a proactive approach by moving forward with the information provided in the bundled 

projects. With the utilization of grant funding and local taxes, the City can use the list of bundled implementation 

ready projects this study produced to efficiently implement improvements. All the information collected and 

assessed during the study can be referenced within a user-friendly web-application for years to come. 

 



18473-A City of Lemon Grove Drainage Master Plan 
 

 
 32  

18473-A.003 

 
County of San Diego. 2005a. County Drainage Design Manual. 

https://www.sandiegocounty.gov/dpw/floodcontrol/floodcontrolpdf/drainage-designmanual05.pdf. 

County of San Diego, 2003. San Diego County Hydrology Manual.  

CSDDPW (County of San Diego, Department of Public Works). 2014. San Diego County Hydraulic Design Manual. 
County of San Diego, Department of Public Works, Flood Control Section, San Diego, CA. 

NOAA (National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration). 2011. Precipitation Frequency Atlas of the United 

States, Volume 6, Version 2, Precipitation Frequency Data Server (PFDS). NOAA Atlas 14. Revised 2014. Accessed 

January 2019. https://hdsc.nws.noaa.gov/hdsc/pfds/pfds_map_cont.html 

Rick Engineering. August 17, 2014. City of Lemon Grove Storm Drain Assessment of Existing Corrugated Metal 

Pipe (CMP) Facilities. San Diego CA: Dennis C. Bowling. 

Rick Engineering. July 6, 2018. Flood Control Feasibility Analysis Report Along Federal Boulevard, Between 

Central Avenue and San Miguel Avenue in Lemon Grove, California. San Diego CA: Brendan Hastie. 

Rossman, L. 2016. Storm Water Management Model Reference Manual Volume I – Hydrology. EPA/300/R-

15/162A. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, National Risk Management Research Laboratory, Cincinnati, OH. 

The BIG Cost of Flooding. July 19, 2017. Retrieved from https://www.fema.gov/media-

library/assets/documents/132744 

USACE (U.S. Army Corps of Engineers). 1982. Hydrologic Analysis of Ungaged Watersheds Using HEC-1. Training 

Document No. 15. HEC TD-15. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Hydrologic Engineering Center, Davis, CA. 

  



 

 

 



Appendix A
Hydrologic and Hydraulic Model Methodology Memo

1.0 Hydrologic Methodology and Modeling
PCSWMM uses EPA’s SWMM Version 5 (SWMM5) engine, which uses the nonlinear reservoir model 
methodology to estimate the rainfall-runoff relationship for a subarea. Nonlinear reservoir modeling uses 
a combination of mass conservation and the Manning Equation to determine the volumetric flow rate 
from a subcatchment. SWMM5 requires several parameters to calculate runoff from each subcatchment.
The parameters include area (in acres), characteristic width of the subcatchment, slope, percent 
impervious, Manning’s “n” values for pervious and impervious overland surfaces, depression storage for 
pervious and impervious surfaces, percent of impervious area with no depression storage, and infiltration 
parameters. 

1.1 Rainfall
Point precipitation data for the City of Lemon Grove study area was obtained from the National Oceanic 
and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) Atlas 14 Precipitation Frequency Data Server (PFDS) (NOAA 
2011). This data was selected because it has a longer period of record than the data presented in the
County of San Diego Hydrology Manual (2003) to best reflect the historical rainfall and flooding events 
specific to the study area. Point rainfall data (total rainfall depth) was obtained for two rain gages nearest
to the study area: Chollas Reservoir and La Mesa to compare with precipitation data obtained at the 
centroid of the study area (See Table 1-1).

Table 1-1: San Diego County local 24-Hour NOAA precipitation depth (inches)

Gage Lat. Long.

2-YR, 
24-HR 
Precip.

(in.)

10-YR,
24-HR  
Precip. 

(in.)

100-YR,
24-HR  
Precip. 

(in.)
Chollas Reservoir 32.7333 -117.0667 1.85 2.95 4.55

La Mesa 32.7675 -117.0233 1.97 3.19 5.03

City of Lemon Grove 
Study Area

32.7333 -117.0344 1.89 2.97 4.11

Source: NOAA 2011.
Notes: in. = inches; Lat. = latitude; Long. = longitude.

Based on this comparison, the rainfall precipitation depth data obtained at the centroid of the City of 
Lemon Grove study area is within range of nearby rain gages for the 2-, 10-, and 100-year storm events.

1.1.1 Rainfall Pattern
Setting up a storm simulation in EPA’s Storm Water Management Model (SWMM) requires a hyetograph 
to distribute rainfall over time throughout the storm duration. Two options were considered:

(2/3, 1/3) distribution as presented in the County of San Diego Drainage Design Manual (2003). 



Appendix A
Hydrologic and Hydraulic Model Methodology Memo

Center distribution, (1/2, 1/2), based on USACE’s HEC TD-15 guidance, Hydrologic Analysis of 
Ungaged Watersheds Using HEC-1 (USACE 1982).

The 24-hour storm duration was selected for the study. The center storm distribution was selected 
because it meets this study’s goals. The center storm distribution provides the peak intensities necessary 
to assess drainage infrastructure at the inlet scale (up to 5-minute rainfall intensities) while preserving 
the total volume of runoff generated from the storm duration. The two options generate the same 
precipitation volume however the (2/3, 1/3) storm distribution generates a greater volume leading up to 
the peak of the storm.

1.1.2 Rainfall Hyetograph Development
To develop the unit intensity duration relationship for the City of Lemon Grove study area, NOAA 
precipitation depth data from three rain gage stations within the study area were obtained for the 2-, 10-, 
and 100-year, 24-hour storm events. The point rainfall depth data obtained from the NOAA PFDS was 
used to generate intensity-duration pairs for the given durations. These intensity-duration pairs are 
incorporated into the rainfall intensity hyetographs. The 100-year precipitation depth data from these rain 
gages and the City of Lemon Grove study area are shown in Figure 1-1 (NOAA 2011). 

Figure 1-1: 100-year, 24-hour precipitation depth

The resulting rainfall intensity-duration data points generated from the NOAA precipitation depth data
were reviewed and plotted for comparison (NOAA 2011). This was done to visually identify any 
discrepancy in the intensity-duration pairs when plotted. The intensity-duration pairs will appear linear on 
a log-log scale. The graphs showed that the rainfall intensity-duration relationship yielded a linear 
relationship for the rainfall data collected at the rain gages, and the precipitation data for the centroid of 

0

1

2

3

4

5

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400

Pr
ec

ip
ita

tio
n 

(in
ch

es
) 

Time (min) 

100-Year 24-Hour Precipitation 
NOAA Atlas 14 - San Diego, CA 

Centroid

Chollas

La Mesa



Appendix A
Hydrologic and Hydraulic Model Methodology Memo

the study area was within range of the 2 nearby rain gages (Figure 1-2). This comparison provides a 
check to verify that the rainfall data obtained directly at the centroid of the City of Lemon Grove study 
area from the NOAA PFDS correlates with the data at the nearest rain gages in the vicinity of the study 
area.

Figure 1-2: 100-year intensity-duration relationship

Since the intensities plotted showed similar patterns for the two gages and the data for the City of Lemon 
Grove area within range of the data obtained at the rain gages, it was determined that the rainfall data 
aggregated for the study area would be appropriate for modeling purposes. The precipitation was 
entered in 5-minute increments. Precipitation depths at certain durations were obtained directly from 
NOAA Atlas 14 as seen in the rainfall data shown in Appendix A (NOAA 2011). Precipitation depths
bounded by the given values were determined by log-log interpolation at 5 minute increments.  

The incremental precipitation data was then arranged into a center-distributed rainfall intensity 
hyetograph with the peak of the storm centered at 12 hours, as seen in Figure 1-3. A (2/3, 1/3) rainfall 
distribution with the storm peak occurring at 16 hours, as described in the 2003 San Diego County 
Hydrology Manual was considered and ultimately not selected for this study. This approach delivers a 
greater volume of rainfall prior to the peak of the storm, which has a significant impact on storage 
volumes on street surfaces and storm drain facilities, compared to the center-distributed balanced storm
(1/2, 1/2 distribution). A storm distribution with the peak rainfall intensity arranged at 12 hours generates 
the necessary peak flows while delivering the full rainfall volume with a symmetric distribution during the 
24-hour storm event.  

0.1

1

10

5 50 500

Ra
in

fa
ll 

In
te

ns
ity

 (i
nc

he
s/

ho
ur

) 

Time (min) 

100-Year 24-Hour Intensity-Duration 
NOAA Atlas 14 - San Diego, CA 

Centroid

Chollas

La Mesa



Appendix A
Hydrologic and Hydraulic Model Methodology Memo

Figure 1-3: 100-year, 24-hour intensity hyetograph

1.1.3 Rainfall Losses
The Green-Ampt Method was used to estimate infiltration potential, which requires the following 
parameters: soil capillary suction head, soil saturated hydraulic conductivity, and initial moisture deficit 
(i.e., the difference between soil porosity and initial moisture content). This method is consistent with the 
guidance presented in the County of San Diego BMP Design Manual (2019) for hydromodification 
management SWMM modeling efforts in San Diego, and further documented in the Storm Water 
Management Model User’s Manual Version 5.1 (Rossman & Huber, 2015). 

Soil parameters were obtained using the listed values in table G.1-4, from Appendix G of the 2019 County 
of San Diego BMP Design Manual. These Green-Ampt soil parameters listed in the table were established
by the manual for use in the San Diego Region, and are within the acceptable ranges specified in Tables 
A.2 and A.3 of the SWMM User’s Manual. The distribution of hydrologic soil groups within the City of 
Lemon Grove study area is based on SANDAG’s ArcGIS feature class for National Resources Conservation 
Service hydrologic soil groups (refer to Appendix A-4 for an exhibit documenting the mapped NRCS 
hydrologic soil groups within the study area). Areas with an “unknown” soil classification were assumed 
to be type D soils for this analysis.



Appendix A
Hydrologic and Hydraulic Model Methodology Memo

The land cover feature class was used to determine the percentage of impervious area for each 
subcatchment based on assigned impervious percentages to each land use. The land use shapes were 
intersected with the inlet drainage area delineations to perform an area-weighting analysis of the average 
impervious cover using GIS tools. Refer to Appendix C for a map which documents the land uses 
throughout the study area and the assigned impervious percentage for each land use. 

To determine the overland Manning’s “n” values and percent impervious parameters, the guidance in 
Appendix G of the 2019 County of San Diego BMP Design Manual was followed. The “n” values are: 0.012
for impervious cover, and 0.15 for pervious cover. These values were established by the BMP Design 
Manual for use in the San Diego region, and are within the acceptable ranges documented in Table 3-5 of 
the Storm Water Management Model Reference Manual Volume I – Hydrology (Rossman 2016). 

1.2 Hydrologic Routing 
Each subcatchment is connected via a conveyance node and link network (inlets and storm drain pipes), 
which routes runoff generated towards the storm drain system outfall. Refer to Section 2.0 for more 
information regarding the hydraulic analysis methodology and modeling procedures.



Appendix A
Hydrologic and Hydraulic Model Methodology Memo

2.0 Hydraulic Methodology and Modeling

2.1 Flow Routing
The PCSWMM platform uses SWMM5 to perform hydraulic calculations and presents the same flow 
routing options as the EPA SWMM computer application. This ensures that the input parameters and 
results obtained are directly compatible between the proprietary PCSWMM program and the public 
domain EPA SWMM program. Flow routing is governed by the equations of continuity, mass, and 
momentum—also known as the St. Venant Flow equations—with flexibility offered to the modeler 
regarding the complexity of the terms considered in the equations. The program allows the modeler to 
select from the Steady Flow, Kinematic Wave, and Dynamic Wave routing options. The normal depth 
equation is used in all routing options to relate flow depth, flow rate, and surface friction.

Steady Flow routing was judged to be inappropriate for modeling this study area as it does not actually 
represent flow routing per a defined time step during the simulation. It is the simplest computation 
method that translates the inflow hydrographs directly downstream without any change in shape and 
simply uses the normal depth equations to relate flow rates, depths, and cross-sectional areas of the 
conveyance network. This method does not represent any backwater effects or pressurized flow, and 
does not take into account the user-defined computational time steps during the storm simulation.

Kinematic Wave routing was not selected for this study as it was incompatible with the 2-D analysis. It 
employs a simplified form of the momentum equation but does not take into account all of the equation’s 
terms. This routing method does not account for any backwater effects or pressurized flow.

Dynamic Wave routing was the option selected for all analyses performed in this study. The purpose of 
this study was to produce a model that would most closely relate the actual conditions of the dynamic 
relationship between surface and subsurface conveyance, and potential flooding concerns. This routing 
option considers all terms of the St. Venant Flow equations and presents the most theoretically correct 
results accounting for backwater effects, pressurized flow, flow attenuation, and reversal of flow. The 
caveat in selecting this routing option, however, was maintaining numerical stability in the model by 
using extremely small computational time steps that resulted in significant simulation times for 2-D
analyses. 

2.2 Conveyance Material and Manning’s Roughness 
Coefficients

The study area was mainly comprised of Reinforced Concrete Pipe (RCP) and cast-in-place concrete pipe 
(CIPCP) storm drain systems, although a few other storm drain materials (asbestos cement, corrugated 
metal, and polyvinyl chloride) were also present in the existing inventory. This was determined through 
examination of the GIS storm drain inventory provided by the City, which was reviewed and updated 
during the course of the data collection and compilation process described in Section 2 of the DMP.  



Appendix A
Hydrologic and Hydraulic Model Methodology Memo

In PCSWMM (and EPA SWMM), the Manning roughness values are associated with a conveyance material 
database. Each channel, pipe, and conduit in the 1-D portion of the model must have a material code 
assigned to it; in that way, the resistance to flow and energy losses along the conduit length can be 
calculated.  

Table 2-1 lists all the material types present within the study area and the associated Manning’s “n” value 
assigned to each material code in the models. 

Table 2-1: Conveyance material abbreviations and Manning’s roughness coefficients
Material Code Material Description Roughness Coefficient
ABS Acrylonitrile butadiene styrene 0.013
ACP Asbestos Cement Pipe 0.013
CIPCP Cast-in-Place Concrete Pipe 0.019
CMP Corrugated Metal Pipe 0.024
HDPE High-density polyethylene 0.013
PVC Polyvinyl Chloride 0.013
RCP/RCB Reinforced Concrete Pipe/Box 0.013
SP Steel Pipe 0.024
VCP Vitrified clay pipe 0.014
The Manning’s conduit roughness values were assigned based on Chapter 3 of the San Diego Hydraulic 
Design Manual (2014). 

2.3 Storm Water Inlet Modeling
The GIS storm water conveyance dataset which was revised and updated during the course of the data 
collection and compilation process includes 23 inlet or catch basin structures for the collection of surface 
runoff from streets, ditches, swales, and overland flow. Undersized storm water inlets can limit the 
efficiency of the existing conveyance infrastructure to collect and convey runoff during storm events. The 
flow interception capacity of each inlet type was estimated based on the inlet structure type, location, 
street slope, and structure dimensions, following the 2014 County of San Diego Hydraulic Design Manual
guidance (CSDDPW 2014). Note that the 50-percent clogging reduction factor was not applied for grated 
catch basin inlets. Flow interception at each inlet was included in the PCSWMM model with inflow rating 
curves as a function of street flow depth. The portion of storm water flows exceeding the capacity of the 
inlet was bypassed to the street conveyance in the 2-D models. 

2.4 Coupled 1-D/2-D Model
The development of the 1-D hydraulic model includes the pipe/open channel drainage network for all 
pipes 36 inches and larger. Pertinent pipes having less than 36-inch diameters also were included in the 
model if they were considered part of the primary backbone storm drain systems. Key hydraulic 
structures that control the flow entering or discharging from the primary system such as inlets, culverts, 
outfalls, and pipes also were included in the 1-D model.



Appendix A
Hydrologic and Hydraulic Model Methodology Memo

The surface storage and conveyance represented by the streets and other surfaces are accounted for in 
the 2-D hydraulic model of the City of Lemon Grove study area. The 2-D model was generated from an 
array of mesh (or grids) with a 10-ft. and 30 ft. resolutions to represent the surface conveyance. A 10-ft.
resolution directional mesh was used to define the drainage patterns of streets and roads, and a 30-ft.
resolution hexagonal mesh was applied globally to the remaining sections of the study area. The 
directional mesh generates 2-D surface cells which are forced along a defined preferential flow path, such 
as a street gutter flowline or alleyway centerline. This is useful for streets and channels. The hexagonal 
mesh generates 2-D surface cells which have six (6) defined flow directions in order to represent more 
possible flow directions across surfaces with less defined flow paths. This option is useful for flatter areas 
that do not have clearly defined flow paths.

The overall 2-D mesh was developed from a high-resolution DEM data set by sampling elevation data at 
points with a 10-ft. or 30-ft. spatial resolution and was used to preserve the preferential flow paths and 
street conveyance that are part of the overall storm water conveyance system.

The two systems were coupled together at points where exchange of storm water between the surface 
conveyance system and the engineered storm water conveyance system could occur—typically at storm 
drain inlets, and outlet structures. The models were linked between nodes in the 1-D minor system 
(subsurface) and the 2-D major system (surface). The coupled models were then run and solved 
simultaneously, representing the storm water conveyance and storage on the street and in the storm 
water collection and conveyance system. The coupling of the 1-D and 2-D models allowed for 
bidirectional exchange of volume between the 2-D surface conveyance system and the engineered 1-D
storm water system. By coupling the models together and solving the hydraulics simultaneously, the 
dynamic exchange of runoff between the surface flow and storm water conveyance system facilities is 
described.

The coupled 1-D/2-D model was executed using the runoff hydrographs resulting from NOAA rainfalls for 
the 2-, 10-, and 100-year storm events based on existing land uses to assess the current system’s 
deficiencies. 



Appendix A
Rainfall Hyetographs – Intensity Vs. Time



Appendix A
Intensity Vs. Duration Data Pairs



Appendix A
Intensity Vs. Duration Data Pairs



Appendix A
Intensity Vs. Duration Data Pairs



Centroid Data 



��������� ��	
����������	��	�
�������	��	�

���������
�����������������
�� ���� ��!�������	��"#$#�%&��'&&&(#��%)��'��&**(���%�	��(����%	��#���(�	��	�%��� ��*

+,--�-./01�234�56/789�:4�59;1<6=�>�
?6@0.<6=�=089A�?986=�B;6C94�D0/<E6;=<04�FG-H�
?0.<.7I9A�J>KLJJJM4�?6=N<.7I9A�O22LKPJ33M�

Q/9C0.<6=A�3>PKPR�E.HH
S�����
	��T�UV�W����
SS�����
	��X�Y�

Z,[+\�Z]QD[Z[\-\[,+�̂]Q_FQ+D̀ �QG\[a-\QG

���b���	��
�c���������	dc�������e	�"c�f�##����e��	�c�g�d�����W������c��	h�����W����c�������
���#���
c�V������U��c�i��#�j����#�kc���#	�X����c��	��#���l��c�W�
��	#�l	k�c�j���m���c�Y	�  �	�

n�����c�����	#�n�	�	�c�f�)i�����i�	�c�j�	����d�h�kc�o����l��
����

pqrrc�p�����#�s	��	���	���
	c���#�	��������c�W���#���

��!�h�#���t���!������
�#�t�W���!(!�	���#�

Ẑ �.0u7/0;

ZvGOu019I�w6<=.�w;9@<w<.0.<6=�E;9x79=@y�91.<80.91�z<.{�|P}�@6=E<I9=@9�<=.9;C0/1�~<=�<=@{91�2

v7;0.<6=
-C9;0N9�;9@7;;9=@9�<=.9;C0/�~y90;1�

2 > � 2P >� �P 2PP >PP �PP 2PPP

�O8<=
PK2>2

����������*��

PK2�J

�������������

PK2|�

�����&����&��

PK>JP

�������������

PK>L:

���������&*��

PKJ2>

����**���*�&�

PKJ3R

���������*���

PKJR:

�����������'�

PK3JL

���&���������

PK3L:

���&�����'�&�

2PO8<=
PK2LJ

����*��������

PK>>P

�����*�������

PK>RP

����&*���&&��

PKJ>|

����'&���*���

PKJ|:

���&�'�������

PK33L

���&������'��

PK�PP

���&���������

PK��J

���*�����'���

PK:>:

���***�������

PK:R>

���*�'������

2�O8<=
PK>2P

����'������&�

PK>::

���������&���

PKJJ|

�����&���*���

PKJ|R

���&&����*���

PK3L|

���&�&�������

PK�32

���*�&�������

PK:P3

���*���������

PK::|

���*�������&�

PKL�L

����&�������

PKR>�

�����*������

JPO8<=
PK>|2

����**���&���

PKJ:R

���&�����**��

PK3LP

���&���������

PK��J

���*�'����'*�

PK::3

����&�����*��

PKL�2

�����'����'��

PKRJR

����&�������

PK|>R

�����'����'�

2KP�

���'**������

2K2�

���'�&������

:PO8<=
PK3P|

���&*&���*�&�

PK�2R

���*&*�������

PK::2

�������������

PKLLL

����*&����*��

PK|J�

���'*'������

2KP:

���������&��

2K2R

������������

2KJ2

���������'��

2K3R

�����������

2K:2

��������&��

>O{;
PK�:�

���*'*�������

PKL2P

�����������'�

PK|PP

���'��������

2KP�

����'�������

2K>:

�����������

2K3>

���������*�

2K�|

�����������

2KL�

���&����&��

2K|R

���*�������

>K2:

���*��&����

JO{;
PK:LR

�������������

PKR�2

���'�&����&�

2KPR

���������&��

2K>:

���������*�

2K�2

�����������

2KLP

���&&������

2K|P

���*�������

>K2P

���������'�

>KJL

������&�&��

>K�R

���'��&����

:O{;
PKR|3

���'*�������

2K2J

����*'���&'�

2K33

��������'*�

2K:|

���*�����'�

>KPJ

����&����'�

>K>|

���'�������

>K�:

������&�&��

>KRJ

������&����

JK>P

����'�*����

JK3R

���&�����*�

2>O{;
2K2:

����'����*��

2K�P

�����������

2K|�

����&���&��

>KJ2

�����������

>KL|

����&�&��&�

JK2:

���*'�*����

JK�3

������*����

JK|>

��������&��

3K3J

�&��*���&��

3KRJ

�&�&��'��*�

>3O{;
2K3>

�����������

2KR|

�����������

>K3|

����'������

>K|L

������&�*��

JK:>

�&����*�&��

3K22

�&�*�������

3K:2

�&�'&������

�K2>

�*��&����&�

�KRP

�*�*��'����

:KJJ

�*������'��

>OI0y
2KL�

����*����*�

>KJ3

��������'&�

JK2P

���'��&����

JKL2

�&����*�&'�

3K�J

�&������*��

�K2�

�*������&��

�KLL

�*����'����

:K3P

����*������

LK>3

���*����'*�

LKR|

�����������

JOI0y
2K|R

���'*���&��

>K::

���&&�&����

JK�>

�&����*����

3K>>

�&����*����

�K2�

�*�&&����&�

�KR�

�*��&�'����

:K��

���������'�

LK>:

���'����*��

RK>2

����&������

RK|3

���������*�

3OI0y
>K2:

�����������

>K|P

����*�&�&��

JKR�

�&�&'�*����

3K:2

�*������*��

�K:J

�*�'*������

:KJ|

������'����

LK2:

���'�����*�

LK|3

���������&�

RK|R

�����������

|KLL

�'�����&���

LOI0y
>K��

����*����'�

JK3>

�&����&����

3K�3

�&��'������

�K3J

�*�'����&��

:K:J

���������&�

LK�3

����&���&��

RK3�

����&����'�

|KJR

�'�&�������

2PK:

�������*�&�

22K:

�����������

2POI0y
>KR>

���*'�&��'�

JKLL

�&�&��*�&��

�KPP

�*�&'����&�

�K|R

������'��&�

LKJP

���������*�

RKJP

�����������

|KJ2

�'���������

2PKJ

����*��&�*�

22KL

����'����'�

2>KR

���&'��'�'�

>POI0y
JK3�

�&��&�*����

3K:>

�*������&��

:K2>

���&��'��*�

LKJ2

���&�������

RK|P

�'���������

2PK2

���&�������

22KJ

����&��*�&�

2>K�

�����������

23K2

����'������

2�K3

����&����*�

JPOI0y
3K23

�&��&�*����

�K�J

�*��*���*&�

LK>|

���&�������

RKLP

�'���������

2PK:

�����������

22K|

����'��*���

2JKJ

�����������

23KL

�����������

2:K:

���������&�

2RKP

��&��������

3�OI0y
3KRR

�*�������'�

:K3R

������'��*�

RK�P

�'�*&������

2PK2

���'�������

2>K>

����&��*���

2JKL

����*��'���

2�KJ

����&����&�

2:KR

��&�&������

2RK|

��*�&����*�

>PK3

���������&�

:POI0y
�K:|

�����������

LK�>

��������'��

|KRP

����'����*�

22K:

�������&���

2JK|

����'������

2�K:

���������&�

2LKJ

��*��������

2|KP

�������*���

>2K>

�����������

>>K|

������&����

����	
�������� �	��	�
�������	��"�	����������h#	���	�h��	����� �	��	�
�����#������ ������#����������	��	��������

p�"h	���������	��	������	����	��"�	����#��	���������	��h������� ��	�����
�� ��	�
	���	���#��j�	����h�h�#��������	
�������� �	��	�
��	��"�	��� ��
�����	����������������	���	��	
���	�
	���	���#����##�h	���	�	�������	����	��h���������#	��������	�#��	��h�������������T��"�	�������	��h��������	���

�	
k	������������h�h#	�"���"�"���	
����������W���	��"�	������"���h	�����	������
���	�#����#����W����#�	��

�#	��	��	 	����pqrr�r#����*���
�"	�� ���"��	��� ��"�����

n�
k���j��



��������� ��	
����������	��	�
�������	��	�

���������
�����������������
�� ���� ��!�������	��"#$#�%&��'&&&(#��%)��'��&**(���%�	��(����%	��#���(�	��	�%��� ��*

+,�-./0123/4

5�
6���7��

8/09�:�/;.2/49

<=/44�93/4;�>;../2?



��������� ��	
����������	��	�
�������	��	�

���������
�����������������
�� ���� ��!�������	��"#$#�%&��'&&&(#��%)��'��&**(���%�	��(����%	��#���(�	��	�%��� &�*

+,-./�01,2/�3/--,45

+,-./�01,2/�6,7

+,-./�01,2/�,/-4,2

8

9
:;6

<64

8

9
=>>;6

?>64

8

9
=>>;6

?>64



��������� ��	
����������	��	�
�������	��	�

���������
�����������������
�� ���� ��!�������	��"#$#�%&��'&&&(#��%)��'��&**(���%�	��(����%	��#���(�	��	�%��� *�*

�
+�
,���-��

�
�
�

.���	���"	��� �/�""	�
	�
0�����#�1
	���
�����2"����	��
�2�"����������

0�����#�3	��	���	���
	�
0�����#�3�	��/	�	��
�&���4���3	��5�������
��#�	��������6�7��������

8�	�����$��5��/�8�	�����9���������
�

���
#��"	��

:

;
<==>?

@=?A



��������� ��	
����������	��	�
�������	��	�

���������
�����������������
�� ���� ��!�������	��"#$#�%&��'&&&(#��%)��'��&**(���%��	����(����%	��#���(�	��	�%��� ��*

+,--�-./01�234�56/789�:4�59;1<6=�>�
?6@0.<6=�=089A�?986=�B;6C94�D0/<E6;=<04�FG-H�
?0.<.7I9A�J>KLJJJM4�?6=N<.7I9A�O22LKPJ33M�

Q/9C0.<6=A�3>PKPR�E.HH
S�����
	��T�UV�W����
SS�����
	��X�Y�

Z,[+\�Z]QD[Z[\-\[,+�̂]Q_FQ+D̀ �QG\[a-\QG

���b���	��
�c���������	dc�������e	�"c�f�##����e��	�c�g�d�����W������c��	h�����W����c�������
���#���
c�V������U��c�i��#�j����#�kc���#	�X����c��	��#���l��c�W�
��	#�l	k�c�j���m���c�Y	�  �	�

n�����c�����	#�n�	�	�c�f�)i�����i�	�c�j�	����d�h�kc�o����l��
����

pqrrc�p�����#�s	��	���	���
	c���#�	��������c�W���#���

��!�h�#���t���!������
�#�t�W���!(!�	���#�

Ẑ �.0u7/0;

ZvGOu019I�w6<=.�w;9@<w<.0.<6=�E;9x79=@y�91.<80.91�z<.{�|P}�@6=E<I9=@9�<=.9;C0/1�~<=�<=@{91�{67;�2

v7;0.<6=
-C9;0N9�;9@7;;9=@9�<=.9;C0/�~y90;1�

2 > � 2P >� �P 2PP >PP �PP 2PPP

�O8<=
2K3�

��������'��

2KR3

����*������

>KJ3

���������&�

>KL:

������&�&��

JKJ2

������*����

JKL3

����&�*��*�

3K2R

�&�������*�

3K:J

�&�*&���&��

�K>3

�&�'��'�*��

�KL2

�&������**�

2PO8<=
2KP3

����'�������

2KJ>

�����������

2K:R

���*�����&�

2K|L

����*���*��

>KJR

������&����

>K:R

������&�*'�

JKPP

������&��'�

JKJ>

���*��*��&�

JKL:

��������&��

3KP|

�����������

2�O8<=
PKR3P

���'�*������

2KP:

������������

2KJ:

����&����*�

2K�|

���&�����*�

2K|>

����&���*��

>K2:

�����������

>K3>

����*�&����

>K:R

������&����

JKPJ

����*�*�&��

JKJP

������*����

JPO8<=
PK�R>

���*�����'���

PKLJ:

�������������

PK|3P

���'�*����*�

2K22

�����*���&��

2KJJ

�����������

2K�P

����'����*�

2K:R

�����������

2KR:

���&'����&�

>K2P

���*�������

>K>|

����'�&�&��

:PO8<=
PK3P|

���&*&���*�&�

PK�2R

���*&*�������

PK::2

�������������

PKLLL

����*&����*��

PK|J�

���'*'������

2KP:

���������&��

2K2R

������������

2KJ2

���������'��

2K3R

�����������

2K:2

��������&��

>O{;
PK>R>

����&'���&*��

PKJ��

���������*���

PK3�P

���&'�����**�

PK�>L

���*&�����*&�

PK:J>

�����*���'���

PKL2>

�������������

PKL|J

�����*������

PKRLL

����*�������

PK||P

���'�����*��

2KPR

���'&�������

JO{;
PK>>:

����������'��

PK>RJ

����&'���&*��

PKJ�|

���&�����*&��

PK3>2

���&*������&�

PK�P3

���*�&����&'�

PK�:L

���***���'&&�

PK:J>

���*������&��

PK:||

�����'�����*�

PKLR|

����������&�

PKR�|

�����'����'�

:O{;
PK23|

�������������

PK2R|

�������������

PK>32

�������������

PK>RJ

����&*���&*��

PKJ3P

����'����*���

PKJRJ

���������*���

PK3>L

���&���������

PK3L>

���&������*��

PK�J3

���&'����'���

PK�R2

���&�'�������

2>O{;
PKP|:

�������������

PK2>�

�����*�������

PK2:>

����&��������

PK2|2

����������&*�

PK>J>

�����������&�

PK>:>

���������&&��

PK>|J

�����*���&���

PKJ>�

����*����***�

PKJ:R

�����������*�

PK3P2

����'*�������

>3O{;
PKP�|

�������������

PKPL|

�������������

PK2P3

�������������

PK2>3

�����'����*��

PK2�2

�����'�����&�

PK2L2

����*��������

PK2|>

����������*&�

PK>2J

����������'��

PK>3>

�����&���&���

PK>:3

�����*���&���

>OI0y
PKPJ:

����&�����*��

PKP3|

����*&�����'�

PKP:�

�����'����'��

PKPLL

�����'�������

PKP|3

����'������*�

PK2PL

����������&��

PK2>P

�����'�������

PK2JJ

����������'&�

PK2�2

�����*�����&�

PK2:3

�������������

JOI0y
PKP>R

�����*����&��

PKPJL

����&�����*&�

PKP3|

����*&�����'�

PKP�|

�������������

PKPL2

�����������'�

PKPR2

�����'�������

PKP|2

����'&�������

PK2P2

����'�����&��

PK223

�����������&�

PK2>3

����������'��

3OI0y
PKP>J

�������������

PKPJP

�����'����&��

PKP3P

����&�����*'�

PKP3R

����*��������

PKP�|

����*�����'��

PKP:L

�������������

PKPL�

�����������*�

PKPRJ

�����������'�

PKP|3

����'��������

PK2P>

����'�����*��

LOI0y
PKP2�

�����&�������

PKP>P

�����������*�

PKP>L

�����*����&��

PKPJ>

����������&��

PKPJ|

����&&����*��

PKP3�

����&'�������

PKP�P

����*������*�

PKP�:

����**����'��

PKP:J

����*��������

PKP:|

�������������

2POI0y
PKP2>

�����������*�

PKP2:

�����*�������

PKP>2

�����������*�

PKP>�

�������������

PKPJP

����������&'�

PKPJ�

����������*&�

PKPJ|

����&�����*��

PKP3J

����&*�������

PKP3|

����&'�������

PKP�J

����&�����'*�

>POI0y
PKPPL

�������������

PKP2P

�������������

PKP2J

�������������

PKP2�

�����&�������

PKP2|

�������������

PKP>2

�����'�������

PKP>3

����������&��

PKP>:

����������&*�

PKP>|

����������*��

PKPJ>

�����*����*��

JPOI0y
PKPP:

�����������'�

PKPPR

�����'�������

PKP2P

�������������

PKP2>

�����������*�

PKP2�

�������������

PKP2L

�����*�������

PKP2|

�����������&�

PKP>P

�������������

PKP>J

�����'����&��

PKP>�

����������&��

3�OI0y
PKPP�

�����*�������

PKPP:

�����������'�

PKPPR

�����'�������

PKPP|

�������������

PKP22

�����������*�

PKP2J

�������������

PKP23

�������������

PKP2:

�������������

PKP2L

�����&�����*�

PKP2|

�����*�������

:POI0y
PKPP3

�����&�������

PKPP�

�������������

PKPPL

�������������

PKPPR

�����'�������

PKP2P

�������������

PKP22

�����������&�

PKP2>

�������������

PKP2J

�����������'�

PKP2�

�������������

PKP2:

�������������

����	
�������� �	��	�
�������	��"�	����������h#	���	�h��	����� �	��	�
�����#������ ������#����������	��	��������

p�"h	���������	��	������	����	��"�	����#��	���������	��h������� ��	�����
�� ��	�
	���	���#��j�	����h�h�#��������	
�������� �	��	�
��	��"�	��� ��
�����	����������������	���	��	
���	�
	���	���#����##�h	���	�	�������	����	��h���������#	��������	�#��	��h�������������T��"�	�������	��h��������	���

�	
k	������������h�h#	�"���"�"���	
����������W���	��"�	������"���h	�����	������
���	�#����#����W����#�	��

�#	��	��	 	����pqrr�r#����*���
�"	�� ���"��	��� ��"�����

n�
k���j��



��������� ��	
����������	��	�
�������	��	�

���������
�����������������
�� ���� ��!�������	��"#$#�%&��'&&&(#��%)��'��&**(���%��	����(����%	��#���(�	��	�%��� ��*

+,�-./0123/4

5�
6���7��

8/09�:�/;.2/49

<=/44�93/4;�>;../2?



��������� ��	
����������	��	�
�������	��	�

���������
�����������������
�� ���� ��!�������	��"#$#�%&��'&&&(#��%)��'��&**(���%��	����(����%	��#���(�	��	�%��� &�*

+,-./�01,2/�3/--,45

+,-./�01,2/�6,7

+,-./�01,2/�,/-4,2

8

9
:;6

<64

8

9
=>>;6

?>64

8

9
=>>;6

?>64



��������� ��	
����������	��	�
�������	��	�

���������
�����������������
�� ���� ��!�������	��"#$#�%&��'&&&(#��%)��'��&**(���%��	����(����%	��#���(�	��	�%��� *�*

�
+�
,���-��

�
�
�

.���	���"	��� �/�""	�
	�
0�����#�1
	���
�����2"����	��
�2�"����������

0�����#�3	��	���	���
	�
0�����#�3�	��/	�	��
�&���4���3	��5�������
��#�	��������6�7��������

8�	�����$��5��/�8�	�����9���������
�

���
#��"	��

:

;
<==>?

@=?A



Chollas Data 



��������� ��	
����������	��	�
�������	��	�

���������
�����������������
�� ���� ��!�������	��"#$�%
�&��%��'����&���%�	��&����%	��#���&�	��	�%��� ��(

)*++�+,-./�012�34-567�82�379/:4;�<�=>*??+@
AB@BA3*CA�

@,.,:4;�CDE�F<GHI0H�
?4J.,:4;�;.67E�@.;�D:7K42�=.-:L49;:.2�M@+N�
?.,:,5O7E�P<QRPPPS2�?4;K:,5O7E�G00RQH88RS�

B-7T.,:4;E�
B-7T.,:4;�U/,.,:4;�67,.O.,.VE�1PH�L,NN

W�����
	��X�YZ�[����
WW�����
	��\�]�

*̂C)_�̂AB=ĈC_+_C*)�̀ABaMB)=b�B@_Cc+_B@

���d���	��
�e���������	fe�������g	�"e�h�##����g��	�e�i�f�����[������e��	j�����[����e�������
���#���
e�Z������Y��e�k��#�l����#�me���#	�\����e��	��#���n��e�[�
��	#�n	m�e�l���o���e�]	�  �	�

p�����e�����	#�p�	�	�e�h�'k�����k�	�e�l�	����f�j�me�q����n��
����

rstte�r�����#�u	��	���	���
	e���#�	��������e�[���#���

��!�j�#���v���!������
�#�v�[���!&!�	���#�

^̀ �,.w5-.9

D̂@Gw./7O�x4:;,�x97J:x:,.,:4;�L97y57;Jz�7/,:6.,7/�{:,|�FH}�J4;L:O7;J7�:;,79T.-/�U:;�:;J|7/V0

D59.,:4;
+T79.K7�97J5997;J7�:;,79T.-�Uz7.9/V

0 < I 0H <I IH 0HH <HH IHH 0HHH

IG6:;
HQ0<H

~���������(��

HQ0I<

~������������

HQ0F<

~������������

HQ<<I

~������������

HQ<8F

~���������(��

HQPH1

~������������

HQPP�

~��������((��

HQPR1

~������������

HQ1<<

~������������

HQ1IF

~����(�������

0HG6:;
HQ0RP

~���(��������

HQ<0R

~������������

HQ<RI

~������������

HQP<<

~����������(�

HQP�8

~��������(���

HQ1PI

~���(��������

HQ1�I

~���������(��

HQIP8

~������������

HQ8H1

~��(���������

HQ8IR

~��((��������

0IG6:;
HQ<HF

~������������

HQ<8P

~������������

HQPPP

~��������(���

HQPFH

~��������(���

HQ18R

~������������

HQI<8

~��(���������

HQI�8

~��((��������

HQ81�

~��(�������(�

HQRP0

~���������(�

HQRFI

~���((������

PHG6:;
HQ<�F

~���(�����(��

HQP81

~����(���(���

HQ180

~������������

HQI1H

~��((��������

HQ81R

~������������

HQR<F

~���������(��

HQ�0<

~�����������

HQ�FR

~����(������

0QH0

~��������((�

0Q0H

~�����������

8HG6:;
HQ1HR

~���(����(���

HQI00

~��(���������

HQ81�

~���(��������

HQRIF

~������������

HQF0H

~�����������

0QH<

~�����������

0Q01

~�����������

0Q<8

~����(������

0Q1<

~����������

0QII

~����������

<G|9
HQI8<

~��(���������

HQ8FF

~���������(��

HQ�R�

~�����������

0QH<

~���(�������

0Q<<

~�����������

0QP�

~����������

0QIP

~����������

0Q8F

~����������

0QF0

~����������

<QH�

~��(�������

PG|9
HQ8RP

~����(�������

HQ�PR

~�����������

0QHI

~�����������

0Q<P

~����������

0Q1R

~����������

0Q8I

~����������

0Q�1

~��(����((�

<QHP

~����������

<Q<F

~����������

<QIH

~����������

8G|9
HQ��1

~���(�������

0Q00

~���������(�

0Q10

~����������

0Q8I

~����������

0QF�

~����������

<Q<P

~���(������

<Q1F

~����������

<QRI

~���(������

PQ00

~�����(�(��

PQP�

~����������

0<G|9
0Q0P

~�����������

0Q1�

~���(������

0QF<

~����������

<Q<R

~����������

<QR1

~�������(��

PQ0H

~��(��(����

PQ18

~���(�(����

PQ�<

~����������

1QP0

~��������(�

1Q8�

~����������

<1G|9
0QPR

~����������

0Q�I

~����������

<Q1R

~����������

<QFI

~�������(��

PQIF

~�����(����

1QHR

~����������

1QII

~��������(�

IQHP

~����������

IQ8I

~(���������

8Q0P

~(���������

<GO.z
0Q8�

~��(�������

<Q<F

~����������

PQH8

~����������

PQ8R

~�����(����

1Q1R

~�������(��

IQH�

~(���������

IQ8R

~(���������

8Q<R

~(���������

RQHI

~�������(��

RQ8I

~����������

PGO.z
0QFH

~����������

<QIF

~����������

PQ1R

~�����(��(�

1Q08

~�����(����

IQHR

~(���������

IQRI

~(���������

8Q1P

~����������

RQ00

~����������

�QHH

~����������

�Q8R

~����������

1GO.z
<QH�

~�������(��

<Q�P

~��(�������

PQRF

~�����(�(��

1QI1

~���(����(�

IQI1

~(���������

8Q<F

~����������

RQHP

~����������

RQRR

~����������

�QRI

~���(������

FQ1F

~����������

RGO.z
<Q18

~����������

PQPP

~����������

1Q11

~����������

IQPP

~(���������

8QIH

~��(�������

RQPF

~����������

�Q<8

~��������(�

FQ0I

~����������

0HQP

~����������

00Q<

~���(������

0HGO.z
<QR<

~����������

PQ8R

~�����(����

1Q��

~(���������

IQ�I

~����������

RQ0P

~��������(�

�Q0H

~�����������

FQH8

~��������(�

0HQH

~����������

00QP

~����������

0<QP

~���(������

<HGO.z
PQP1

~����������

1Q1F

~����������

IQFI

~��������(�

RQ00

~����������

�Q81

~����������

FQR�

~����������

0HQF

~����������

0<Q0

~����������

0PQ8

~����������

01QR

~����������

PHGO.z
1QH0

~�����(����

IQP8

~(�������(�

RQHR

~����������

�Q10

~����������

0HQ<

~����������

00QI

~������(���

0<Q�

~����������

01Q0

~����������

0IQ�

~����������

0RQ0

~����������

1IGO.z
1QRP

~(���������

8Q<8

~��(�������

�Q0F

~����������

FQRH

~��(�����(�

00QR

~������(���

0PQ0

~����������

01Q8

~��������(�

08QH

~����������

0RQ�

~������(���

0FQ<

~�(��������

8HGO.z
IQII

~(������(��

RQ<�

~�������(��

FQ1I

~����������

00Q0

~����������

0PQP

~����������

01QF

~��������(�

08QI

~����������

0�QH

~�(��������

<HQH

~����������

<0QI

~����������

����	
�������� �	��	�
��~����	��"�	����������j#	���	�j��	����� �	��	�
�����#������ ������#����������	��	��~�����

r�"j	���������	��	������	����	��"�	����#��	���������	��j������� ��	�����
�� ��	�
	���	���#��l�	����j�j�#��������	
�������� �	��	�
��	��"�	��~ ��
�����	����������������	���	��	
���	�
	���	���#����##�j	���	�	�������	����	��j�����~���#	��������	�#��	��j�������������X��"�	�������	��j��������	���

�	
m	������������j�j#	�"���"�"���	
��������~�[���	��"�	������"���j	�����	������
���	�#����#����[����#�	��



��������� ��	
����������	��	�
�������	��	�

���������
�����������������
�� ���� ��!�������	��"#$�%
�&��%��'����&���%�	��&����%	��#���&�	��	�%��� ��(

�#	��	��	 	����)*++�+#����(���
�"	�� ���"��	��� ��"�����

,�
-���.��

/0�123456738

,�
-���.��

934:�;�3<2638:

=>388�:738<�?<2236@



��������� ��	
����������	��	�
�������	��	�

���������
�����������������
�� ���� ��!�������	��"#$�%
�&��%��'����&���%�	��&����%	��#���&�	��	�%��� (�)

*+,-.�/0+1.�2.,,+34

*+,-.�/0+1.�5+6

*+,-.�/0+1.�+.,3+1

7

8
9:5

;53

7

8
<==:5

>=53

7

8
<==:5

>=53



��������� ��	
����������	��	�
�������	��	�

���������
�����������������
�� ���� ��!�������	��"#$�%
�&��%��'����&���%�	��&����%	��#���&�	��	�%��� (�(

�
)�
*���+��

�
�
�

,���	���"	��� �-�""	�
	�
.�����#�/
	���
�����0"����	��
�0�"����������

.�����#�1	��	���	���
	�
.�����#�1�	��-	�	��
�2���3���1	��4�������
��#�	��������5�6��������

7�	�����$��4��-�7�	�����8���������
�

���
#��"	��

9

:
;<<=>

?<>@



��������� ��	
����������	��	�
�������	��	�

���������
�����������������
�� ���� ��!�������	��"#$#�%&��'&&&(#��%)��'��**'(���%��	����(����%	��#���(�	��	�%��� ��+

,-..�./012�345�67089:�;5�6:<2=7>�?�
@7A1/=7>�>19:B�C1>�D=:E75�F10=G7<>=15�HC.I�
@1/=/8J:B�K?LMKKKN5�@7>E=/8J:B�O33MLP;;MN�

Q0:R1/=7>B�44SL3S�G/II
T�����
	��U�VW�X����
TT�����
	��Y�Z�

[-\,]�[̂ QF\[\].]\-,�_̂ Q̀ HQ,Fa�QC]\b.]QC

���c���	��
�d���������	ed�������f	�"d�g�##����f��	�d�h�e�����X������d��	i�����X����d�������
���#���
d�W������V��d�j��#�k����#�ld���#	�Y����d��	��#���m��d�X�
��	#�m	l�d�k���n���d�Z	�  �	�

o�����d�����	#�o�	�	�d�g�)j�����j�	�d�k�	����e�i�ld�p����m��
����

qrssd�q�����#�t	��	���	���
	d���#�	��������d�X���#���

��!�i�#���u���!������
�#�u�X���!(!�	���#�

[_�/1v801<

[DCOv12:J�w7=>/�w<:A=w=/1/=7>�G<:x8:>Ay�:2/=91/:2�z=/{�|P}�A7>G=J:>A:�=>/:<R102�~=>�=>A{:2�{78<�3

D8<1/=7>
.R:<1E:�<:A8<<:>A:�=>/:<R10�~y:1<2�

3 ? S 3P ?S SP 3PP ?PP SPP 3PPP

SO9=>
3L44

��������'+�

3L�?

�����������

?LKP

��������'��

?LMP

����&�&�&��

KL?K

������+����

KL;S

����+�+�'��

4LP;

�&������&��

4L4|

�&�&��*����

SLP;

�&����'����

SLS3

�&�''����+�

3PO9=>
3LP4

����'�������

3LKP

���������'�

3L;S

���&�������

3L|K

���*����&*�

?LK?

���������&�

?L;3

����+�&�&'�

?L|3

������&��*�

KL??

���&��+�&��

KL;?

����'����'�

KL|4

���*�����&�

3SO9=>
PL�K;

���'��������

3LPS

����������'�

3LKK

��������*��

3LS;

�����������

3L�M

���+����&*�

?L3P

���*+���'��

?LK4

���'��&����

?LS|

������&��+�

?L|?

����'�+��'�

KL3�

������+�'��

KPO9=>
PLSM�

���+�+���*���

PLM?�

���*������'��

PL|??

���''�������

3LP�

�����+���&��

3L?|

����&���*+�

3L4;

����+������

3L;?

����+������

3LM|

���&&���+��

?LP?

���+&������

?L?P

������&����

;PO9=>
PL4PM

���&+����+���

PLS33

���+�����*�'�

PL;4�

����+����'���

PLMS|

���*�������'�

PL|3P

���'�'������

3LP?

���������&&�

3L34

����'�������

3L?;

����&+���'��

3L4?

���������&�

3LSS

����*������

?O{<
PL?�3

����&*���&&��

PLKSP

���������+���

PL4K|

���&**����&��

PLS3?

���+�+���*���

PL;3?

���+�����''&�

PL;��

����&��������

PLM;;

�����+������

PL�4M

���*�'����*�

PL|S;

���*'����&*�

3LP4

���'������+�

KO{<
PL??4

����������'��

PL?M|

����&&���&&*�

PLKSP

���������+�+�

PL4P|

���&&����+���

PL4�|

���&�����*���

PLSSP

���+&����'���

PL;3?

���+**�������

PL;M;

�����������&�

PLM;4

����+�������

PL�K?

����*�����&�

;O{<
PL34�

�����+����'��

PL3�;

�����������+�

PL?KS

�����*�������

PL?M;

���������&&'�

PLKK3

����*+���+���

PLKMK

���������+���

PL43S

���&�*�������

PL4S|

���&+����*�'�

PLS3|

���&*'���'&��

PLS;S

���&�*����&+�

3?O{<
PLP|4

����'������&�

PL3?K

�����&����+��

PL3S|

����&&�����&�

PL3��

�����*����&��

PL??�

�������������

PL?SM

���������&&&�

PL?�M

���������&���

PLK3M

����&����+&&�

PLKS�

�����&�������

PLK�|

����**����'+�

?4O{<
PLPSM

����������*'�

PLPMM

����*��������

PL3PK

�������������

PL3?K

�����'����+��

PL3SP

�����*�������

PL3MP

����+��������

PL3|P

�����&����&��

PL?P|

����*�����'��

PL?K;

����'����&�'�

PL?SS

���������&���

?OJ1y
PLPKS

����&�����+��

PLP4�

����+��������

PLP;4

�����*����'+�

PLPM;

����**�������

PLP|K

����'������&�

PL3P;

�����'����&��

PL33�

����������+��

PL3K3

�����&����*��

PL34M

�������������

PL3S|

�����'�������

KOJ1y
PLP?;

�����&����&��

PLPK;

����&�����+��

PLP4�

����+������*�

PLPS�

����������*��

PLPMP

�������������

PLP�P

����**�������

PLP�|

����'������&�

PLP||

����'��������

PL333

�����+�������

PL3?P

����������*'�

4OJ1y
PLP??

�������������

PLP?|

�����*����&+�

PLPK|

����&+����+*�

PLP4M

����+������*�

PLPS�

����+�����'��

PLP;;

�����+�������

PLPMK

�������������

PLP�3

����*+�������

PLP|3

����*������&�

PLP||

����'&����&'�

MOJ1y
PLP3S

�����&�����'�

PLP?P

�����'�����&�

PLP?;

�����&����&��

PLPK?

����������&'�

PLPK|

����&&����+'�

PLP44

����&*�����+�

PLP4|

����+�����*��

PLPS4

����+&����'��

PLP;3

����+'�����&�

PLP;M

����+������&�

3POJ1y
PLP33

�����������&�

PLP3S

�����&�������

PLP?P

�����������+�

PLP?4

�������������

PLPKP

����������&*�

PLPK4

����������+��

PLPK�

����&�����+��

PLP4?

����&&�����+�

PLP4M

����&*����*+�

PLPS3

����&�����'��

?POJ1y
PLPPM

�����*�������

PLPP|

�������������

PLP3?

�����������+�

PLP3S

�����&�����'�

PLP3�

�������������

PLP?P

�����'�������

PLP?K

�������������

PLP?S

����������&&�

PLP?�

����������&��

PLPK3

�����&����+&�

KPOJ1y
PLPP;

�����������*�

PLPPM

�����'�������

PLP3P

�������������

PLP3?

�����������+�

PLP34

�����������'�

PLP3;

�����&�������

PLP3�

�����+�������

PLP?P

�������������

PLP??

�����'����&��

PLP?4

�����'����&&�

4SOJ1y
PLPP4

�����+�������

PLPP;

�����������'�

PLPP�

�����'�������

PLPP|

�������������

PLP33

�����������&�

PLP3?

�������������

PLP3K

�����������'�

PLP3S

�������������

PLP3M

�����&�������

PLP3�

�����&�������

;POJ1y
PLPP4

�����&�����+�

PLPPS

�����+�����*�

PLPPM

�����*�������

PLPP�

�����'�������

PLPP|

�������������

PLP3P

�����������&�

PLP33

�����������+�

PLP3K

�����������*�

PLP34

�������������

PLP3S

�������������

����	
�������� �	��	�
�������	��"�	����������i#	���	�i��	����� �	��	�
�����#������ ������#����������	��	��������

q�"i	���������	��	������	����	��"�	����#��	���������	��i������� ��	�����
�� ��	�
	���	���#��k�	����i�i�#��������	
�������� �	��	�
��	��"�	��� ��
�����	����������������	���	��	
���	�
	���	���#����##�i	���	�	�������	����	��i���������#	��������	�#��	��i�������������U��"�	�������	��i��������	���

�	
l	������������i�i#	�"���"�"���	
����������X���	��"�	������"���i	�����	������
���	�#����#����X����#�	��

�#	��	��	 	����qrss�s#����+���
�"	�� ���"��	��� ��"�����

o�
l���k��



��������� ��	
����������	��	�
�������	��	�

���������
�����������������
�� ���� ��!�������	��"#$#�%&��'&&&(#��%)��'��**'(���%��	����(����%	��#���(�	��	�%��� ��+

,-�./0123405

6�
7���8��

901:�;�0</305:

=>055�:405<�?<//03@



��������� ��	
����������	��	�
�������	��	�

���������
�����������������
�� ���� ��!�������	��"#$#�%&��'&&&(#��%)��'��**'(���%��	����(����%	��#���(�	��	�%��� &�+

,-./0�12-30�40..-56

,-./0�12-30�7-8

,-./0�12-30�-0.5-3

�

�
���

���

�

�
�		��


	��

�

�
�		��


	��



��������� ��	
����������	��	�
�������	��	�

���������
�����������������
�� ���� ��!�������	��"#$#�%&��'&&&(#��%)��'��**'(���%��	����(����%	��#���(�	��	�%��� +�+

�
,�
-���.��

�
�
�

/���	���"	��� �0�""	�
	�
1�����#�2
	���
�����3"����	��
�3�"����������

1�����#�4	��	���	���
	�
1�����#�4�	��0	�	��
�&���5���4	��6�������
��#�	��������7�8��������

9�	�����$��6��0�9�	�����:���������
�

���
#��"	��

;

<
=>>?@

A>@B



La Mesa Data 



��������� ��	
����������	��	�
�������	��	�

���������
�����������������
�� ���� ��!�������	��"#$#�%&��'('�)#��%*��'���&&)���%�	��)����%	��#���)�	��	�%��� ��+

,-..�./012�345�67089:�;5�6:<2=7>�?�
@7A1/=7>�>19:B�@1�C:215�D10=E7<>=15�FG.H�
@1/=/8I:B�J?KL;LMN5�@7>O=/8I:B�P33LKQ?JJN�

R0:S1/=7>B�MJJKQ3�E/HH
T�����
	��U�VW�X����
TT�����
	��Y�Z�

[-\,]�[̂ RD\[\].]\-,�_̂ R̀ FR,Da�RG]\C.]RG

���b���	��
�c���������	dc�������e	�"c�f�##����e��	�c�g�d�����X������c��	h�����X����c�������
���#���
c�W������V��c�i��#�j����#�kc���#	�Y����c��	��#���l��c�X�
��	#�l	k�c�j���m���c�Z	�  �	�

n�����c�����	#�n�	�	�c�f�*i�����i�	�c�j�	����d�h�kc�o����l��
����

pqrrc�p�����#�s	��	���	���
	c���#�	��������c�X���#���

��!�h�#���t���!������
�#�t�X���!)!�	���#�

[_�/1u801<

[vGPu12:I�w7=>/�w<:A=w=/1/=7>�E<:x8:>Ay�:2/=91/:2�z=/{�|Q}�A7>E=I:>A:�=>/:<S102�~=>�=>A{:2�3

v8<1/=7>
.S:<1O:�<:A8<<:>A:�=>/:<S10�~y:1<2�

3 ? M 3Q ?M MQ 3QQ ?QQ MQQ 3QQQ

MP9=>
QK3?J

�����&����+��

QK3ML

����&��������

QK?Q3

����(�����+&�

QK?JL

�����(�������

QK?�;

���������&(��

QKJ?J

�����&���+�'�

QKJ;Q

����'����+'��

QKJ||

����������++�

QK4M3

���&�����(+&�

QK4|3

���&&(���'���

3QP9=>
QK3L;

����+��������

QK??M

����������'��

QK?�|

����+����&+��

QKJ4Q

���������+���

QK43Q

���&�������'�

QK4;J

���&(��������

QKM3L

���&�+���(���

QKML?

���+�&���'���

QK;4;

���+���������

QKLQ4

���+������+�

3MP9=>
QK?3J

����'������'�

QK?L?

���������&���

QKJ4|

���������+���

QK433

���&+��������

QK4|M

���&�(���(�(�

QKM;Q

���+&����'�&�

QK;?M

���+'(�������

QK;|?

����������++�

QKL�?

�����+������

QK�M3

����������(�

JQP9=>
QK?|;

����+����&�(�

QKJL�

���&�(���+���

QK4�4

���+�+�������

QKML3

���+'&���(�(�

QK;�L

����������(��

QKLLL

���(��������

QK�;L

���((�������

QK|;Q

���'�����&��

3KQ�

���'(�������

3K3�

�����'���'��

;QP9=>
QK43L

���&���������

QKMJ?

���++(���(+��

QK;�?

����'��������

QK�Q4

���(((�������

QK|;|

���''�������

3KQ|

�����(���+��

3K??

����&����(��

3KJM

�����������

3KMJ

�����������

3K;;

����+���+(�

?P{<
QKMLL

���+�+���(�+�

QKLJQ

���(���������

QK|?|

���''(������

3KQ|

�����&���&&�

3KJ3

��������(��

3K4L

�����������

3K;4

���������'�

3K�3

���&+���+��

?KQM

���+�������

?K??

������&����

JP{<
QK;|3

����������&&�

QK�LM

���'&&����(�

3K3?

����&����&��

3KJ3

��������(��

3KML

�����������

3KLL

���&�������

3K|L

��������(��

?K3�

���(�����'�

?K4M

���'+�&����

?K;L

������&��+�

;P{<
QK|3;

���'(�������

3K3L

���������+��

3KMQ

����(������

3KLL

���+'����(�

?K3J

���'����(��

?K43

������&����

?K;|

������&��(�

?K|L

������+����

JKJM

���&��+�'��

JK;M

���+����&��

3?P{<
3K3�

���������+��

3KM;

���&�������

?KQ;

���'����+��

?K4;

����+�&����

JKQQ

���+��&�'��

JK43

���((�+�+��

JK�?

���������(�

4K?4

�&��+���'��

4K�Q

�&�+��(��+�

MK?J

�&����'�'&�

?4P{<
3K44

����'���(��

3K|L

���'�������

?K;4

���&��&����

JK3|

���''�&�'+�

JK|?

�&�&��+�'+�

4K4L

�&�'�������

MKQJ

�+��'�(�&��

MK;Q

�+�+��'��(�

;KJL

�+��&����'�

;K|;

��������('�

?PI1y
3K�?

���(�������

?K4J

����&����&�

JK??

������&�'(�

JK�L

�&�&(�+��+�

4KL4

�&������'+�

MK4Q

�+�+'�(�('�

;KQL

�+����'�('�

;KL;

���&&���'(�

LK;|

����+����+�

�K43

�(�������'�

JPI1y
?KQ|

����&���+&�

?KLM

���+��&����

JK;3

�&��(�+����

4KJ?

�&�'�����'�

MK?L

�+�++�(�&��

;KQQ

�+��(�'�+��

;KL4

���+�������

LKMQ

��������'��

�KMJ

�(�+'������

|KJJ

�(�����&���

4PI1y
?K?|

��������((�

JKQQ

���(&�&�+��

JK|J

�&�++�+����

4K;�

�+��'������

MKL3

�+����(����

;K4|

���&'������

LK?|

�����������

�K3?

�(�+�������

|K?4

�'�������+�

3QK3

�'�+���+���

LPI1y
?KL?

���&��&��'�

JKM;

�&��&�+��+�

4K;;

�+������+&�

MKM;

�+��&�(��&�

;KL�

���'�������

LKL3

�(�&�������

�K;L

�'���������

|K;M

�'�(�������

33KQ

���&&��+���

3?KQ

����+��(�'�

3QPI1y
?K||

���(&�&�+'�

JK|?

�&�++�+��'�

MK3M

�+����(����

;K3M

���&+�'����

LKMQ

�(�&�������

�KM4

�'��(������

|K;Q

�'�'(������

3QKL

���+&��&���

3?K?

����+��(�+�

3JKJ

���'�������

?QPI1y
JK;J

�&����+����

4K�?

�+��&���(��

;KJ;

����'�'�+��

LK;?

�(�(�������

|KJ?

�'�������&�

3QK;

���'���&���

33K|

���(�������

3JKJ

�������'���

3MK3

���������&�

3;KM

�����������

JQPI1y
4KJ3

�&�'�������

MKL;

������(�'��

LK;4

�(�(�������

|K3;

�'��(������

33K?

���++��&�(�

3?K�

�����������

34KJ

����(������

3MK|

����(����(�

3�K3

��&�'��+�&�

3|KL

��+����'�+�

4MPI1y
MKQ4

�+�+�������

;KLL

����+�'��'�

|KQQ

�'���������

3QK�

���&'����'�

3JK?

�������(���

3MKQ

����+������

3;K�

��&�(������

3�K;

��+�'��+���

?3K3

��(������+�

?JKQ

��(���&����

;QPI1y
MK�J

������(�''�

LK�M

�(�������&�

3QK4

����&������

3?KM

�������+�'�

3MKJ

�����������

3LKJ

��+�&����+�

3|K4

����'��+���

?3KM

��(����'���

?4K?

����+�&��(�

?;KJ

����+�&(�(�

����	
�������� �	��	�
�������	��"�	����������h#	���	�h��	����� �	��	�
�����#������ ������#����������	��	��������

p�"h	���������	��	������	����	��"�	����#��	���������	��h������� ��	�����
�� ��	�
	���	���#��j�	����h�h�#��������	
�������� �	��	�
��	��"�	��� ��
�����	����������������	���	��	
���	�
	���	���#����##�h	���	�	�������	����	��h���������#	��������	�#��	��h�������������U��"�	�������	��h��������	���

�	
k	������������h�h#	�"���"�"���	
����������X���	��"�	������"���h	�����	������
���	�#����#����X����#�	��

�#	��	��	 	����pqrr�r#����+���
�"	�� ���"��	��� ��"�����

n�
k���j��



��������� ��	
����������	��	�
�������	��	�

���������
�����������������
�� ���� ��!�������	��"#$#�%&��'('�)#��%*��'���&&)���%�	��)����%	��#���)�	��	�%��� ��+

,-�./0123405

6�
7���8��

901:�;�0</305:

=>055�:405<�?<//03@



��������� ��	
����������	��	�
�������	��	�

���������
�����������������
�� ���� ��!�������	��"#$#�%&��'('�)#��%*��'���&&)���%�	��)����%	��#���)�	��	�%��� &�+

,-./0�12-30�40..-56

,-./0�12-30�7-8

,-./0�12-30�-0.5-3

9

:
;<7

=75

9

:
>??<7

@?75

9

:
>??<7

@?75



��������� ��	
����������	��	�
�������	��	�

���������
�����������������
�� ���� ��!�������	��"#$#�%&��'('�)#��%*��'���&&)���%�	��)����%	��#���)�	��	�%��� +�+

�
,�
-���.��

�
�
�

/���	���"	��� �0�""	�
	�
1�����#�2
	���
�����3"����	��
�3�"����������

1�����#�4	��	���	���
	�
1�����#�4�	��0	�	��
�&���5���4	��6�������
��#�	��������7�8��������

9�	�����$��6��0�9�	�����:���������
�

���
#��"	��

;

<
=>>?@

A>@B



��������� ��	
����������	��	�
�������	��	�

���������
�����������������
�� ���� ��!�������	��"#$�%
�&��%�'(')*�&���%��	����&����%	��#���&�	��	�%��� ��'

+,--�-./01�234�56/789�:4�59;1<6=�>�?-�@AB-�
B.0.<6=�CDE�F3G3HIJ�

?6K0.<6=�=089E�?0�@9104�L0/<M6;=<04�NB-O�
?0.<.7P9E�I>QH:HJR4�?6=S<.7P9E�G22HQF>IIR�

A/9T0.<6=E�
A/9T0.<6=�U1.0.<6=�89.0P0.0VE�JIF�M.OO

W�����
	��X�YZ�[����
WW�����
	��\�]�

,̂C+_�̂ ÀLĈC_-_C,+�à AbNA+Lc�AB_C@-_AB

���d���	��
�e���������	fe�������g	�"e�h�##����g��	�e�i�f�����[������e��	j�����[����e�������
���#���
e�Z������Y��e�k��#�l����#�me���#	�\����e��	��#���n��e�[�
��	#�n	m�e�l���o���e�]	�  �	�

p�����e�����	#�p�	�	�e�h�(k�����k�	�e�l�	����f�j�me�q����n��
����

rstte�r�����#�u	��	���	���
	e���#�	��������e�[���#���

��!�j�#���v���!������
�#�v�[���!&!�	���#�

â�.0w7/0;

D̂BGw019P�x6<=.�x;9K<x<.0.<6=�M;9y79=Kz�91.<80.91�{<.|�}F~�K6=M<P9=K9�<=.9;T0/1�U<=�<=K|91�|67;V2

D7;0.<6=
-T9;0S9�;9K7;;9=K9�<=.9;T0/�Uz90;1V

2 > J 2F >J JF 2FF >FF JFF 2FFF

JG8<=
2Q3�

����'���)��

2Q��

���������)�

>Q32

�����������

>Q�3

���*��*�')�

IQ3I

���)��'�**�

IQ��

�*��'������

3QI>

�*�*����)'�

3QH}

�*��'����*�

JQ32

�*��'�)�)��

JQ�}

�'��*���)��

2FG8<=
2QF:

����������)�

2QIJ

����*����*�

2QHI

���'�������

>QF3

��������'��

>Q3:

����)�*����

>QH�

����)�*����

IQ2F

���*��'����

IQ3I

����'�'����

IQ��

���)�����*�

3Q>>

���������'�

2JG8<=
FQ�J>

���)������*�

2QF}

���������*��

2Q3F

����)������

2Q:3

���*�������

2Q}�

�����������

>Q>3

���)�������

>QJF

������*�*��

>QHH

������*�)��

IQ2I

������'�'��

IQ3F

���**����*�

IFG8<=
FQJ}>

���'�����)���

FQHJ:

����*��������

FQ}:�

����������)�

2Q23

����'����*��

2QIH

��������)'�

2QJJ

�����������

2QHI

���*����*��

2Q}>

���'�������

>Q2H

����'�*����

>QI:

������*�'��

:FG8<=
FQ32H

���*���������

FQJI>

���''�����'��

FQ:�>

����)��������

FQ�F3

�������������

FQ}:}

���))�������

2QF}

���������'��

2Q>>

����*�������

2QIJ

�����������

2QJI

�����������

2Q::

����'���'��

>G|;
FQ>��

����'����*')�

FQI:J

���*�����''��

FQ3:3

���*���������

FQJ3J

���'�������'�

FQ:J3

�����*�������

FQHIH

����)��������

FQ�>2

������������

FQ}FH

����)�����'�

2QF>

���)�����'��

2Q22

���)������'�

IG|;
FQ>IF

�����*����))�

FQ>}2

����''���*���

FQIH2

���*�����''��

FQ3I:

���*������*��

FQJ>I

���'���������

FQJ�}

���'�����)���

FQ:J:

�������������

FQH>J

����*��������

FQ�2H

����)�������

FQ���

�����)���*��

:G|;
FQ2JI

�����������'�

FQ2}:

�����'����*��

FQ>J2

���������*�'�

FQ>}:

����'����*���

FQIJ:

���������'���

FQ3F>

���*���������

FQ33}

���*'������'�

FQ3}:

���*�)����))�

FQJ:F

���*�)���)���

FQ:F}

���'���������

2>G|;
FQF}�

�������������

FQ2IF

�������������

FQ2H2

����'*�����)�

FQ>F3

����������'��

FQ>3}

���������*�'�

FQ>�I

���������*���

FQI2H

����'����'���

FQIJ>

���������'���

FQI}�

�������������

FQ3I3

�����)����'��

>3G|;
FQF:F

�����*����)��

FQF�>

����)��������

FQ22F

�������������

FQ2II

�������������

FQ2:I

����*��������

FQ2�:

�����'����*��

FQ>2F

����)��������

FQ>I3

�����'���*���

FQ>:J

���������*�)�

FQ>}F

�����*���'�*�

>GP0z
FQFI�

����**����''�

FQFJ2

����''�������

FQF:H

����������)��

FQF�2

����)��������

FQF}}

�����*�������

FQ22I

�����*����*��

FQ2>H

�������������

FQ232

�������������

FQ2:F

�������������

FQ2HJ

����������'*�

IGP0z
FQF>}

����������*'�

FQFI�

����*'����''�

FQFJF

����''�������

FQF:F

����������)��

FQFHI

�������������

FQF�I

�����������*�

FQF}3

����)��������

FQ2F3

����������*��

FQ22�

�������������

FQ2IF

�������������

3GP0z
FQF>3

�������������

FQFI2

�����)����*��

FQF32

����*�����'��

FQF3}

����'������)�

FQFJ}

����������)��

FQF:�

�����������*�

FQFH:

�������������

FQF�J

�����)�������

FQF}:

����)*�������

FQ2FJ

����))����'��

HGP0z
FQF2:

�����'�������

FQF>2

�������������

FQF>�

�����'����*��

FQFII

����������*��

FQF3F

����*'����'��

FQF3:

����*������)�

FQFJ>

����'��������

FQFJH

����'�����)'�

FQF:J

�������������

FQFH>

�����*�������

2FGP0z
FQF2>

�����������'�

FQF2:

�����'�������

FQF>2

�������������

FQF>:

����������*��

FQFI2

����������*��

FQFI:

����������''�

FQF3F

����*��������

FQF3J

����*��������

FQFJ2

����*��������

FQFJ:

����'�����))�

>FGP0z
FQFF�

�����)�������

FQF2F

�������������

FQF2I

�������������

FQF2:

�����'�������

FQF2}

�����������'�

FQF>>

�����������)�

FQF>J

����������*��

FQF>�

����������*��

FQFI2

�����'����'��

FQFI3

����������'��

IFGP0z
FQFF:

�����������)�

FQFF�

�����)�������

FQF22

�������������

FQF2I

�������������

FQF2:

�����*�������

FQF2�

�������������

FQF>F

�������������

FQF>>

�����)�������

FQF>J

����������*'�

FQF>H

����������*��

3JGP0z
FQFFJ

�����'�������

FQFF:

�����������)�

FQFF�

�����)�������

FQF2F

�������������

FQF2>

�������������

FQF23

�����������)�

FQF2:

�����*�������

FQF2H

�����'�������

FQF>F

�������������

FQF>2

����������*��

:FGP0z
FQFF3

�����'�������

FQFFJ

�������������

FQFFH

�������������

FQFF}

�������������

FQF22

�����������*�

FQF2>

�������������

FQF2I

�����������)�

FQF2J

�������������

FQF2H

�����*�����*�

FQF2�

�����*�������

����	
�������� �	��	�
�������	��"�	����������j#	���	�j��	����� �	��	�
�����#������ ������#����������	��	��������

r�"j	���������	��	������	����	��"�	����#��	���������	��j������� ��	�����
�� ��	�
	���	���#��l�	����j�j�#��������	
�������� �	��	�
��	��"�	��� ��
�����	����������������	���	��	
���	�
	���	���#����##�j	���	�	�������	����	��j���������#	��������	�#��	��j�������������X��"�	�������	��j��������	���

�	
m	������������j�j#	�"���"�"���	
����������[���	��"�	������"���j	�����	������
���	�#����#����[����#�	��

�#	��	��	 	����rstt�t#����'���
�"	�� ���"��	��� ��"�����



��������� ��	
����������	��	�
�������	��	�

���������
�����������������
�� ���� ��!�������	��"#$�%
�&��%�'(')*�&���%��	����&����%	��#���&�	��	�%��� ��'

+�
,���-��

./�012345627

+�
,���-��

8239�:�2;15279

<=277�9627;�>;1125?



��������� ��	
����������	��	�
�������	��	�

���������
�����������������
�� ���� ��!�������	��"#$�%
�&��%�'(')*�&���%��	����&����%	��#���&�	��	�%��� *�'

+,-./�01,2/�3/--,45

+,-./�01,2/�6,7

+,-./�01,2/�,/-4,2

8

9
:;6

<64

8

9
=>>;6

?>64

8

9
=>>;6

?>64



��������� ��	
����������	��	�
�������	��	�

���������
�����������������
�� ���� ��!�������	��"#$�%
�&��%�'(')*�&���%��	����&����%	��#���&�	��	�%��� '�'

�
+�
,���-��

�
�
�

.���	���"	��� �/�""	�
	�
0�����#�1
	���
�����2"����	��
�2�"����������

0�����#�3	��	���	���
	�
0�����#�3�	��/	�	��
�*���4���3	��5�������
��#�	��������6�7��������

8�	�����$��5��/�8�	�����9���������
�

���
#��"	��

:

;
<==>?

@=?A



 

 

 



CCTV PACP Rating and Repair Recommendation Summary Table

Item Setup PSR From MH To MH Length
(ft)

Diameter
(in)

Structural 
Rating

Operation & 
Maintenance 

Rating

Overall 
Rating

* Recommended Repair  
(See repair technique form 
for numerical definitions)

Notes/Comments/Recommendations

1 115 ST-STR-871 ST-STR-871 ST-STR-973 204.5 42 573G 3222 573G 5,1 Pipe in bad condition, rehabilitation is recommended. 

2 120 ST-STR-1047 ST-STR-1430 ST-STR-1047 155.7 18 523E 0 523E 6 Large hole in pipe, so replacement is recommended.

3 77 ST-STR-373 ST-STR-373 ST-STR-61 117.7 30 523C 3122 523C 5,1

4 1 ST-STR-849 ST-STR-851 ST-STR-849 233.7 24 3GOO 5131 513H 6 Large hole in pipe, so replacement is recommended.

5 93 ST-STR-609 ST-STR-609 ST-STR-612 222 24 513H 3121 513H 5,1

6 92 ST-STR-610 ST-STR-610 ST-STR-609 188.4 24 513F 2100 513F 5,1 Medium sized hole at end of pipe.

7 85 ST-STR-993 ST-STR-993 ST-STR-311 103.9 30 3COO 5131 513C 5 Remove large debris. Visible portions of pipe look good.

8 80 ST-STR-321 ST-STR-320 ST-STR-321 29.1 18 513A 0 513A 5,1

9 156 ST-STR-781 ST-STR-781 ST-STR-159 103.8 18 5738 0 5738 5,1

10 81 ST-STR-320 ST-STR-320 ST-STR-45 11.2 18 5532 5100 5632 6 Large holes in pipe, so replacement is recommended.

11 67 ST-STR-64 ST-STR-390 ST-STR-64 65.1 18 553A 4121 5541 6 Large holes in pipe, so replacement is recommended.

12 142 ST-STR-558 ST-STR-558 ST-STR-557 26.1 18 5400 3221 5432 6 Replace pipe, entire bottom half of pipe is missing.

13 171 ST-STR-393 ST-STR-393 ST-STR-394 65.2 20 5338 3100 5338 6 Large holes in pipe, so replacement is recommended.

14 83 ST-STR-346 ST-STR-346 ST-STR-347 17.9 18 5334 0 5334 6 Large holes in pipe, so replacement is recommended.

15 148 ST-STR-479 ST-STR-479 ST-STR-213 17 18 5333 0 5333 6 Replace pipe, entire bottom half of pipe is missing.

16 35 ST-STR-603 ST-STR-593 ST-STR-603 6.0 18 5331 2100 5331 6 Replace pipe, entire bottom half of pipe is missing.

17 21 ST-STR-936 ST-STR-936 ST-STR-1021 8.9 18 5241 0 5241 6 Large hole in pipe, so replacement is recommended.

18 34 ST-STR-593 ST-STR-593 ST-STR-591 2.0 18 5241 0 5241 6 Pipe deformed, therefore replacement recommended.

19 61 ST-STR-496 ST-STR-496 ST-STR-498 220.4 36 523G 4131 5241 5,1 Remove large debris at downstream end, and CIPP line entire pipe.

20 43 ST-STR-697 ST-STR-697 ST-STR-698 38.4 30 5239 0 5239 6 Large hole in pipe, so replacement is recommended.

21 63 ST-STR-774 ST-STR-774 ST-STR-775 69.4 18 5238 0 5238 5,1

22 70 ST-STR-195 ST-STR-195 ST-STR-390 21.9 30 5234 0 5234 6 Large hole in pipe, so replacement is recommended.

23 150 ST-STR-213 ST-STR-213 ST-STR-93 21.2 18 5234 0 5234 6 Large holes in pipe, so replacement is recommended.

24 30 ST-STR-598 ST-STR-598 ST-STR-118 8.0 18 5231 3100 5232 5,1 Remove large debris at downstream end, and CIPP line entire pipe.

25 60 ST-STR-738 ST-STR-147 ST-STR-738 9.7 18 5232 2100 5232 6 Replace pipe, entire bottom half of pipe is missing.

26 158 ST-STR-773 ST-STR-773 ST-STR-157 3 18 5231 3100 5232 5,1 Remove large debris at downstream end, re-establish pipe outfall, and CIPP line 
entire pipe.

27 39 ST-STR-592 ST-STR-592 ST-STR-588 1 18 5231 2100 5231 6 Replace pipe, entire bottom half of pipe is missing.

28 145 ST-STR-198 ST-STR-198 ST-STR-199 3 18 5231 0 5231 6 Replace pipe, entire bottom half of pipe is missing.

29 161 ST-STR-994 ST-STR-358 ST-STR-994 3 18 5131 5100 5231 5,1 or 6 Half full of debris and can't see condition of bottom of pipe.

30 40 ST-STR-1029 ST-STR-1029 ST-STR-692 450.8 24 3QOO     5142 5142 5,2 CIPP line CMP portion of pipe for 430-feet.

31 76 ST-STR-254 ST-STR-254 ST-STR-203 70 18 5132 4200 5142 4 Pipe overall in good condition, a couple small holes and medium deformation 
blocking 20% of flow area. 

32 17 ST-STR-656 ST-STR-658 ST-STR-656 206.0 18 513G 4100 5141 5,1 Remove large debris. Corrosion and medium sized hole at end of pipe.

33 32 ST-STR-1018 ST-STR-1017 ST-STR-1018 174.5 24 5130 4131 5141 5,1 Remove large debris, and CIPP line entire pipe.

34 84 ST-STR-346 ST-STR-347 ST-STR-346 3 18 5131 4100 5141 6 Large holes in pipe, so replacement is recommended.

35 136 ST-STR-701 ST-STR-701 ST-STR-135 1.1 15 5100 4100 5141 5 Inspection abandoned, pipe full of debris, clean and re-inspect.

36 13 ST-STR-868 ST-STR-868 ST-STR-976 30.9 18 3800 5131 5139 5,3,1 Lateral protruding into mainline and will need to be made flush in order to 
rehabilitate entire pipe.

37 87 ST-STR-311 ST-STR-313 ST-STR-311 47.6 24 5139 2900 5139 5,1 Remove large debris, and CIPP line entire pipe.

38 124 ST-STR-201 ST-STR-201 ST-STR-927 74.1 16 5138 3121 5138 6 Pipe deformed, replacement is recommended.

39 53 ST-STR-714 ST-STR-714 ST-STR-715 33.9 18 5137 0 5137 5,1 Remove large debris, and CIPP line entire pipe.

40 14 ST-STR-867 ST-STR-867 ST-STR-975 26.6 18 5135 0 5135 5,1 Corrosion and medium size hole.

41 15 ST-STR-659 ST-STR-659 ST-STR-660 27.2 18 5134 0 5134 6 Pipe collapsing and deformed, replacement is recommended.

42 126 ST-STR-202 ST-STR-202 ST-STR-201 16.4 12 5132 3121 5133 6 Pipe collapsing, replacement is recommended.

43 19 ST-STR-626 ST-STR-626 ST-STR-936 12.3 18 5132 0 5132 5,1 Pipe heavily corroded, and medium deformation blocking 20% of flow area. 

44 38 ST-STR-591 ST-STR-592 ST-STR-591 8.4 18 5131 2100 5131 6 Large hole in pipe, so replacement is recommended.

45 119 ST-STR-432 ST-STR-431 ST-STR-432 53.3 18 0 5131 5131 5 Pipe completely clogged with sediment.

46 134 ST-STR-710 ST-STR-710 ST-STR-138 2.0 12 5131 2100 5131 6 Large holes in pipe, so replacement is recommended.

47 162 ST-STR-359 ST-STR-359 ST-STR-58 2.8 18 5131 0 5131 6 Large hole in pipe, so replacement is recommended.

48 166 ST-STR-370 ST-STR-371 ST-STR-370 74.0 18 5131 0 5131 6 Large hole in pipe, so replacement is recommended.

49 5 ST-STR-850 ST-STR-850 ST-STR-849 127.4 21 5130 0 5130 6 Corrosion and large hole in pipe, so replacement is recommended.

50 105 ST-STR-1045 ST-STR-813 ST-STR-1045 136.4 60 5130 2200 5130 4 Pipe in ok condition and is too large to to CIPP line. Hydrophilic grout and 
urethane sealant is recommended to repair several small holes.

51 147 ST-STR-482 ST-STR-199 ST-STR-482 18.2 18 5100 2200 5122 5 Significant amount of debris and sediment. Pipe in ok condition.

52 28 ST-STR-410 ST-STR-410 ST-STR-409 47.6 18 5100 0 5100 Pipe in good to ok condition.

53 65 ST-STR-387 ST-STR-387 ST-STR-386 1.0 18 0 5100 5100 5 Pipe full of debris, clean and re-inspect, signs of corrosion present.

54 69 ST-STR-390 ST-STR-390 ST-STR-94 3.0 30 5100 0 5100 6 Large hole in pipe, so replacement is recommended.

55 90 ST-STR-779 ST-STR-779 ST-STR-778 1 18 0 5100 5100 5 Inspection abandoned, pipe full of debris, clean and re-inspect.

56 143 ST-STR-502 ST-STR-502 ST-STR-1009 2.0 12 5100 0 5100 5
Inspection abandoned, pipe has water and debris, corrosion can be seen, at 
minimum CIPP lining will be required, however, condition of bottom of pipe is 
unknown, clean and re-inspect.

57 97 ST-STR-617 ST-STR-617 ST-STR-122 258.6 52 0 4238 4238 5 Pipe in overall good condition, some debris and standing water.

58 7 ST-STR-864 ST-STR-864 ST-STR-865 291.2 30 0 4231 4231 5 Pipe appears in good condition, remove sediment and debris.

59 99 ST-STR-413 ST-STR-413 ST-STR-68 140.2 24 0 4200 4200 Pipe in overall good condition.

60 130 ST-STR-272 ST-STR-272 ST-STR-271 2.0 12 0 4200 4200 5 Pipe appears in ok condition, remove sediment and debris.

61 50 ST-STR-715 ST-STR-715 ST-STR-713 148.7 24 3400 4100 4134 1 Pipe has some corrosion and small holes.

62 12 ST-STR-881 ST-STR-873 ST-STR-881 208.4 48 3100 4131 4132 5 Pipe appears in good condition, remove sediment and debris.

63 139 ST-STR-560 ST-STR-560 ST-STR-559 9.5 12 3200 4100 4132 5,1 Pipe has some corrosion and small holes. Remove sediment and debris.

64 6 ST-STR-863 ST-STR-864 ST-STR-863 57.6 30 0 4131 4131 5 Pipe in good condition, remove sediment and debris.

65 123 ST-STR-927 ST-STR-1013 ST-STR-927 119.4 15 0 4131 4131 5 Pipe in ok condition, remove sediment and debris.
66 4 ST-STR-815 ST-STR-815 ST-STR-1044 28.7 24 0 4100 4100 Pipe in overall good condition.

67 74 ST-STR-203 ST-STR-203 ST-STR-204 227.1 30 0 4100 4100 5 Standing water in pipe. Remove sediment and debris and locate downstream 
manhole.

68 100 ST-STR-405 ST-STR-405 ST-STR-406 1 14 0 4100 4100 5 Pipe over half full of sediment and debris. Clean and re-inspect to see condition 
of pipe.

69 167 ST-STR-382 ST-STR-215 ST-STR-382 1.0 18 0 4100 4100 5 Pipe over half full of sediment and debris. From what can be seen, pipe in poor 
condition. Clean and re-inspect to see condition of rest of pipe.

70 168 ST-STR-215 ST-STR-215 ST-STR-63 1.0 18 0 4100 4100 5 Pipe over half full of sediment and debris. Clean and re-inspect to see condition 
of pipe.

71 101 ST-STR-977 ST-STR-977 ST-STR-872 354.8 48 3MOO 3100 3MOO 5,4 Pipe in ok condition. Consider hydrophilic grout on bottom of pipe.  

72 114 ST-STR-986 ST-STR-972 ST-STR-986 333.2 36 3LOO 0 3LOO 5,4 Pipe in ok condition. Consider hydrophilic grout on bottom of pipe.  

73 102 ST-STR-872 ST-STR-872 ST-STR-870 297.5 36 3KOO 2100 3K21 5 Pipe in ok condition and doesn't need any rehabilitation at this time.



Item Setup PSR From MH To MH Length
(ft)

Diameter
(in)

Structural 
Rating

Operation & 
Maintenance 

Rating

Overall 
Rating

* Recommended Repair  
(See repair technique form 
for numerical definitions)

Notes/Comments/Recommendations

74 95 ST-STR-613 ST-STR-613 ST-STR-614 234.1 36 3HOO 3100 3HOO 5 Some sediment and debris, pipe in ok condition.
75 128 ST-STR-955 ST-STR-955 ST-STR-142 181.0 29 3FOO 3200 3FOO 5 Some sediment and debris, pipe in ok condition.

76 44 ST-STR-693 ST-STR-693 ST-STR-948 162.3 20 3EOO 0 3EOO

The remaining segments with overall scores of 3 and 2 broadly represent minor 
maintenance and/or repair that may require hydroscour and/or grout. An in-
depth review of the inspection of these segments is not done at this time. More 
emphasis and focus should be geared towards the above segments with overall 
ratings of 4's and 5's and those segments include recommendations to 
rehabilitate or replace. 

77 107 ST-STR-1052 ST-STR-961 ST-STR-1052 156 57 3EOO 0 3EOO
78 25 ST-STR-612 ST-STR-612 ST-STR-611 97.3 24 3COO 0 3COO
79 113 ST-STR-972 ST-STR-854 ST-STR-972 100.3 57 3COO 0 3COO
80 153 ST-STR-754 ST-STR-754 ST-STR-155 118.7 24 3COO 0 3COO
81 51 ST-STR-718 ST-STR-718 ST-STR-717 178.8 24 3COO 3121 3C21
82 23 ST-STR-210 ST-STR-211 ST-STR-210 56.2 18 3AOO 0 3AOO
83 56 ST-STR-952 ST-STR-952 ST-STR-953 182.0 30 3AOO 0 3AOO
84 62 ST-STR-497 ST-STR-496 ST-STR-497 49.6 18 3900 3100 3AOO
85 118 ST-STR-431 ST-STR-431 ST-STR-77 68.9 18 3AOO 0 3AOO
86 27 ST-STR-192 ST-STR-614 ST-STR-192 56.6 36 3AOO 2100 3A21
87 52 ST-STR-716 ST-STR-716 ST-STR-717 34.6 18 3900 0 3900
88 103 ST-STR-870 ST-STR-870 ST-STR-871 97.2 36 3800 2300 3823
89 46 ST-STR-688 ST-STR-688 ST-STR-687 36.8 18 3800 0 3800
90 106 ST-STR-961 ST-STR-1045 ST-STR-961 42.3 57 3800 0 3800
91 109 ST-STR-1053 ST-STR-1052 ST-STR-1053 92.8 57 3800 0 3800
92 111 ST-STR-1055 ST-STR-971 ST-STR-1055 80.9 57 3800 0 3800
93 8 ST-STR-865 ST-STR-865 ST-STR-974 41.0 24 3700 0 3700
94 18 ST-STR-1021 ST-STR-1021 ST-STR-625 32.6 30 3700 0 3700
95 24 ST-STR-628 ST-STR-628 ST-STR-210 34.6 18 3700 0 3700
96 117 ST-STR-422 ST-STR-74 ST-STR-422 32.4 24 3600 3100 3700
97 47 ST-STR-947 ST-STR-132 ST-STR-947 13.7 22 3500 2100 3521
98 151 ST-STR-750 ST-STR-752 ST-STR-750 22.6 15 3500 2100 3521
99 64 ST-STR-383 ST-STR-383 ST-STR-384 40.4 14 3500 0 3500

100 94 ST-STR-609 ST-STR-612 ST-STR-609 23.8 24 3500 0 3500
101 96 ST-STR-616 ST-STR-617 ST-STR-616 25 52 3500 0 3500
102 86 ST-STR-311 ST-STR-313 ST-STR-311 13.2 24 3300 3123 3423
103 157 ST-STR-764 ST-STR-765 ST-STR-764 21.2 12 3400 2100 3421
104 29 ST-STR-998 ST-STR-998 ST-STR-913 150.2 42 3400 0 3400

105 42 ST-STR-699 ST-STR-697 ST-STR-699 8.4 30 3400 0 3400

106 82 ST-STR-321 ST-STR-321 ST-STR-320 2.2 18 3300 3100 3400

107 59 ST-STR-738 ST-STR-738 ST-STR-147 11.4 18 3300 2100 3321

108 138 ST-STR-677 ST-STR-678 ST-STR-677 14.3 18 3300 2100 3321
109 2 ST-STR-851 ST-STR-851 ST-STR-1052 24.2 18 3300 0 3300
110 3 ST-STR-1046 ST-STR-1046 ST-STR-815 117.7 24 3200 3100 3300
111 71 ST-STR-395 ST-STR-395 ST-STR-995 15.1 18 3300 0 3300
112 55 ST-STR-713 ST-STR-713 ST-STR-952 207.9 30 3200 2100 3221
113 89 ST-STR-778 ST-STR-778 ST-STR-957 61.7 18 0 3200 3200
114 116 ST-STR-823 ST-STR-823 ST-STR-1051 3 18 3100 3100 3200
115 125 ST-STR-202 ST-STR-201 ST-STR-202 2 12 3100 3100 3200
116 9 ST-STR-866 ST-STR-974 ST-STR-866 43.4 18 3100 2100 3121
117 49 ST-STR-718 ST-STR-717 ST-STR-718 56.9 24 0 3121 3121
118 78 ST-STR-372 ST-STR-373 ST-STR-372 206 18 3100 2100 3121
119 146 ST-STR-198 ST-STR-199 ST-STR-198 7.5 18 3100 2100 3121
120 11 ST-STR-873 ST-STR-1056 ST-STR-873 39.5 48 0 3100 3100
121 48 ST-STR-717 ST-STR-715 ST-STR-717 390.1 24 3100 0 3100
122 73 ST-STR-985 ST-STR-995 ST-STR-985 169 30 3100 0 3100
123 110 ST-STR-971 ST-STR-1053 ST-STR-971 263 57 3100 3100 3100
124 57 ST-STR-806 ST-STR-806 ST-STR-173 124.8 18 3000 2100 3021
125 22 ST-STR-211 ST-STR-211 ST-STR-627 120.3 18 3000 0 3000

126 112 ST-STR-854 ST-STR-1055 ST-STR-854 138.5 57 3000 0 3000

127 10 ST-STR-1056 ST-STR-977 ST-STR-1056 38.4 48 0 2100 2100

128 122 ST-STR-451 ST-STR-450 ST-STR-451 12.5 12 0 2100 2100
129 137 ST-STR-677 ST-STR-677 ST-STR-678 21.2 18 0 2100 2100
130 144 ST-STR-481 ST-STR-198 ST-STR-481 29.0 18 0 2100 2100
131 163 ST-STR-369 ST-STR-369 ST-STR-368 8.2 18 0 2100 2100
132 26 ST-STR-619 ST-STR-618 ST-STR-619 16.5 18 0 0 0 Pipe in good condition.
133 45 ST-STR-948 ST-STR-948 ST-STR-690 3.3 18 0 0 0 Pipe in good condition.
134 58 ST-STR-739 ST-STR-738 ST-STR-739 42.3 18 0 0 0 Pipe in good condition.
135 72 ST-STR-995 ST-STR-203 ST-STR-995 30.3 30 0 0 0 Pipe in good condition.
136 79 ST-STR-376 ST-STR-376 ST-STR-374 9.9 24 0 0 0 Pipe in good condition.
137 104 ST-STR-814 ST-STR-813 ST-STR-814 18 24 P     0000 0 0 Pipe in good condition.
138 121 ST-STR-78 ST-STR-433 ST-STR-78 0.1 18 0 0 0 Drop connection, unable to video pipe.
139 127 ST-STR-726 ST-STR-726 ST-STR-955 27.7 29 0 0 0 Pipe in good condition.
140 131 ST-STR-720 ST-STR-720 ST-STR-722 1.0 18 0 0 0 5 Pipe underwater, outfall not found, clean and re-inspect.
141 132 ST-STR-721 ST-STR-721 ST-STR-720 1.0 18 0 0 0 5 Pipe underwater, clean and re-inspect.
142 135 ST-STR-701 ST-STR-135 ST-STR-701 1.0 15 0 0 0 6 Collapsed pipe, repair or replace.
143 141 ST-STR-553 ST-STR-553 ST-STR-928 25.5 16 0 0 0 Pipe in good condition.
144 152 ST-STR-751 ST-STR-751 ST-STR-754 83.7 24 0 0 0 Pipe in good condition.

145 154 ST-STR-295 ST-STR-294 ST-STR-295 1 18 0 0 0 5 Pipe full of debris, clean and re-inspect.
146 155 ST-STR-340 ST-STR-341 ST-STR-340 1 12 0 0 0 5 Pipe full of sediment and debris, clean and re-inspect.
147 160 ST-STR-53 ST-STR-896 ST-STR-53 1 12 0 0 0 Pipe in good condition.

148 164 ST-STR-369 ST-STR-368 ST-STR-369 1.0 18 0 0 0 5 Camera blocked by sediment and debris. Pipe in ok condition.

149 165 ST-STR-368 ST-STR-368 ST-STR-190 1.0 15 0 0 0 Pipe in good condition.





























REPAIR TECHNIQUES

1. Cured In Place Pipe (CIPP) Lining

The CIPP lining process involves inserting a resin-saturated flexible lining into the 
existing pipe. The lining looks like a very large sock or flexible tube. Air or water under 
pressure is forced into the tube, which turns the lining inside out and causes it to fit 
tightly to the existing pipe walls. Hot air or water is circulated throughout the tube to 
harden the resin, completing the curing process. When the curing process is completed, 
a new pipe has been created that is free of cracks and holes that allow rainwater and 
roots to enter the pipe and cause operational problems such as stoppages and 
overflows. The finished product has a 50-year design life, the same as that of a brand 
new pipe.

2. Cured In Place Pipe (CIPP) Sectional Repairs

Sectional CIPP repairs apply to facilities that do not require the entire pipe to be 
rehabilitated. If a particular pipe is damaged in isolated locations, then CIPP sectional 
repairs can typically be applied and the repairs range from three to thirty feet in length 
with diameters ranging from six inches to forty-eight inches. Unlike full-length liners, a 
sectional repair may be any distance from the manhole.

3. Top Hat (TH) In Lateral/Main Connection Sealing

This utilizes a specially shaped liner, which looks just like a Top Hat (TH) or inverted ‘T’. 
The stem of the TH forms the section of liner that is placed into the lateral pipe while the 
TH crossbar sits against the inner wall of the main. Resin impregnation of the liner 
material allows it to be positioned using a specially designed remote control robotic 
installer and held in position for curing of the resin. Once cured, the robot and retention 
system are removed leaving the ‘T’-shaped liner forming a seal across the lateral/main 
joint. The TH stem can be made to pass as deep into the lateral if necessary. 

4. Pressurized Hydrophilic Chemical Grout and Urethane Sealant

Pressurized hydrophilic grout is primarily used for the repair of defects in water 
environments. The grout is typically injected under pressure, as a liquid into and/or 
around a leak. Once in contact with water, the grout reacts, filling voids and sealing 
defects. Hydrophilic grout requires water for the reaction to occur and creates flexible, 
resilient repairs. It can bond to wet surfaces, and has the ability to expand or contract 
within the voids.  

5. Hydro-Scouring

The hydro scouring method effectively removes grit and grease accumulation from 
sewer lines. High water pressure scours the inside of the sewer pipelines, restoring the 
hydraulic capacity. 

6. Pipe Removal and Replacement

Removal and replacement is recommended if the pipe cannot be rehabilitated. 



 

 

 



94

12
5



94

12
5

12
5

til
iti

es



94

12
5

12
5



94

12
5

12
5



94

12
5

12
5



94

12
5

12
5

3

7

1

10

2

9

4

8
6

5



 

 



450

450

40
0

45
0

450

45
0

450

450

450

400

45
0

45
0

450

450

450

45
0

400

500

40
0

45
0

450

450

500
400

40
0

45
0

450

40
0

450

50
0

45
0

50
0

450

45
0

450

450
450

400

500

45
0

50
0

50
0

450

450

50
0

45
0

450

45
0

0

55
0

0

65
0

40
0

450
40

0

450

45
0

40
0

450

400



45
0

45
0

40
0

45
0

450

40
0

35
0

40
0

450

450

94



40
0

40
0

450

400

450
450

450

450

450

400

450



350

40
0

45
0

400

45
0

450

400



45
0

65
0

500

70
0 65

0

45
0

780

73
0

680

640

600

580

570

560

550

540

74
0

72
070

0

740

71
0

55
0

54
0 52

0 51
0

790

780

760

620

590

590

570

820

800
790

57
0

56
0

84
0

83
0

770

730

690

69
0

66
0

62
0

630
59

0

53
0

0

77
0

61
0

810

60
0

80
0

750

490



40
0

40
0

30
0

450

30
0

450

450

450

450

450

450

300

450

450

350
400

12
5



450

450

40
0

45
0

450

45
0

450

450

450

400

45
0

45
0

450

450

450

45
0

400

500

40
0

45
0

450

450

500
400

40
0

45
0

450

40
0

450

50
0

45
0

50
0

450

45
0

450

450
450

400

500

45
0

50
0

50
0

450

450

50
0

45
0

450

45
0

0

55
0

0

65
0

40
0

450
40

0

450

45
0

40
0

450

400



45
0

45
0

40
0

45
0

450

40
0

35
0

40
0

450

450

94



40
0

40
0

450

400

450
450

450

450

450

400

450



350

40
0

45
0

400

45
0

450

400



45
0

65
0

500

70
0 65

0

45
0

780

73
0

680

640

600

580

570

560

550

540

74
0

72
070

0

740

71
0

55
0

54
0 52

0 51
0

790

780

760

620

590

590

570

820

800
790

57
0

56
0

84
0

83
0

770

730

690

69
0

66
0

62
0

630
59

0

53
0

0

77
0

61
0

810

60
0

80
0

750

490



40
0

40
0

30
0

450

30
0

450

450

450

450

450

450

300

450

450

350
400

12
5



450

450

40
0

45
0

450

45
0

450

450

450

400

45
0

45
0

450

450

450

45
0

400

500

40
0

45
0

450

450

500
400

40
0

45
0

450

40
0

450

50
0

45
0

50
0

450

45
0

450

450
450

400

500

45
0

50
0

50
0

450

450

50
0

45
0

450

45
0

0

55
0

0

65
0

40
0

450
40

0

450

45
0

40
0

450

400



45
0

45
0

40
0

45
0

450

40
0

35
0

40
0

450

450

94



40
0

40
0

450

400

450
450

450

450

450

400

450



350

40
0

45
0

400

45
0

450

400



45
0

65
0

500

70
0 65

0

45
0

780

73
0

680

640

600

580

570

560

550

540

74
0

72
070

0

740

71
0

55
0

54
0 52

0 51
0

790

780

760

620

590

590

570

820

800
790

57
0

56
0

84
0

83
0

770

730

690

69
0

66
0

62
0

630
59

0

53
0

0

77
0

61
0

810

60
0

80
0

750

490



40
0

40
0

30
0

450

30
0

450

450

450

450

450

450

300

450

450

350
400

12
5



450

450

40
0

4
5
0

450

4
5
0

450

450

450

400

45
0

45
0

450

450

450

45
0

400

500

4
0
0

4
5
0

450

450

500
400

4
0
0

45
0

450

40
0

450

50
0

45
0

5
0
0

450

4
5
0

450

450
450

400

500

45
0

5
0
0

50
0

450

450

50
0

45
0

450

4
5
0

0

5
5
0

0

6
5
0

4
0
0

450

400

450

4
5
0

4
0
0

450

400



450

4
5
0

4
0
0

4
5
0

450

4
0
0

35
0

40
0

450

450

UV94



40
0

4
0
0

450

400

450
450

450

450

450

400

50



350

40
0

45
0

400

45
0

450

400



4
5
0

6
5
0

500

7
0
0 6

5
0

45
0

7
2
0

7
0
0

6
8
0

6
5
0 6
0
0

710

690

670

650

820

69
0

55
0

5
4
0

5
3
0

51
0

620

590

590

570

800

780

77
0

5
7
0

5
6
0

760

7
4
0

730

64
0

61
0

760

5
9
0

79
0

5
1
0

5
2
0 490



40
0

4
0
0

30
0 30

0

450

300

450

450

450

450

450

450

300

450

450

350
400

UV125



450

450

40
0

4
5
0

450

4
5
0

450

450

450

400

45
0

45
0

450

450

450

45
0

400

500

4
0
0

4
5
0

450

450

500
400

4
0
0

45
0

450

40
0

450

50
0

45
0

5
0
0

450

4
5
0

450

450
450

400

500

45
0

5
0
0

50
0

450

450

50
0

45
0

450

4
5
0

0

5
5
0

0

6
5
0

4
0
0

450

400

450

4
5
0

4
0
0

450

400



450

4
5
0

4
0
0

4
5
0

450

4
0
0

35
0

40
0

450

450

UV94



40
0

4
0
0

450

400

450
450

450

450

450

400

50



350

40
0

45
0

400

45
0

450

400



4
5
0

6
5
0

500

7
0
0 6

5
0

45
0

7
2
0

7
0
0

6
8
0

6
5
0 6
0
0

710

690

670

650

820

69
0

55
0

5
4
0

5
3
0

51
0

620

590

590

570

800

780

77
0

5
7
0

5
6
0

760

7
4
0

730

64
0

61
0

760

5
9
0

79
0

5
1
0

5
2
0 490



40
0

4
0
0

30
0 30

0

450

300

450

450

450

450

450

450

300

450

450

350
400

UV125



450

450

40
0

4
5
0

450

4
5
0

450

450

450

400

45
0

45
0

450

450

450

45
0

400

500

4
0
0

4
5
0

450

450

500
400

4
0
0

45
0

450

40
0

450

50
0

45
0

5
0
0

450

4
5
0

450

450
450

400

500

45
0

5
0
0

50
0

450

450

50
0

45
0

450

4
5
0

0

5
5
0

0

6
5
0

4
0
0

450

400

450

4
5
0

4
0
0

450

400



450

4
5
0

4
0
0

4
5
0

450

4
0
0

35
0

40
0

450

450

UV94



40
0

4
0
0

450

400

450
450

450

450

450

400

50



350

40
0

45
0

400

45
0

450

400



4
5
0

6
5
0

500

7
0
0 6

5
0

45
0

7
2
0

7
0
0

6
8
0

6
5
0 6
0
0

710

690

670

650

820

69
0

55
0

5
4
0

5
3
0

51
0

620

590

590

570

800

780

77
0

5
7
0

5
6
0

760

7
4
0

730

64
0

61
0

760

5
9
0

79
0

5
1
0

5
2
0 490



40
0

4
0
0

30
0 30

0

450

300

450

450

450

450

450

450

300

450

450

350
400

UV125



 

 















 

 

 



(c
fs

)
(c

fs
)

20
1

RE
CT

_O
PE

N
0.

00
66

2
O

th
er

0
0

0
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
13

43
5

RC
P

8.
04

0.
1

13
.8

3
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
09

33
3

Ea
rt

he
n

4.
81

0
8.

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
08

12
1

RC
P

0
0

6.
02

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

27
74

6
O

th
er

1.
78

0.
02

2.
96

8
1

RE
CT

_O
PE

N
0.

28
10

7
O

th
er

6.
67

0.
01

11
.2

5
0

3
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

78
5

O
th

er
17

5.
6

0.
3

22
3.

11
30

1
RE

CT
_O

PE
N

0.
00

48
4

O
th

er
10

.2
7

0
30

.9
8

8
1

RE
CT

_C
LO

SE
D

0.
01

60
1

RC
B

17
5.

71
0.

31
22

3.
18

8
1

RE
CT

_C
LO

SE
D

0.
05

06
6

RC
B

17
5.

73
0.

18
22

3.
19

30
1

RE
CT

_O
PE

N
0.

31
31

O
th

er
43

.1
2

0
54

.1
30

1
RE

CT
_O

PE
N

0.
76

12
2

O
th

er
2.

01
0

3.
34

30
1

RE
CT

_O
PE

N
0.

00
04

1
O

th
er

14
4.

81
0.

02
15

3.
64

30
1

RE
CT

_O
PE

N
0.

01
04

O
th

er
63

.7
8

0
12

7.
38

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
57

1
RC

P
1.

48
0.

11
3.

27
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

78
6

HD
PE

5.
21

0.
17

8.
28

30
1

RE
CT

_O
PE

N
0.

04
55

5
O

th
er

0
0

0
20

1
TR

AP
EZ

O
ID

AL
0.

01
24

4
O

th
er

25
.0

2
0.

13
41

.0
6

7
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
68

1
RC

B
58

.4
1.

06
69

.0
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
73

CM
P

14
.4

4
0.

71
21

.4
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
71

RC
P

17
.1

8
0.

46
31

.0
7

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
83

2
RC

P
54

.7
3

0.
9

64
.5

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
08

91
8

RC
P

9.
73

0.
31

18
.7

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
11

36
O

th
er

0
0

0
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
10

30
4

O
th

er
5.

04
0.

34
7.

96
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
68

01
O

th
er

2.
81

0.
07

4.
46

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

07
77

7
CM

P
8.

39
0.

25
14

.6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
06

30
2

Co
nc

re
te

0.
71

0.
02

1.
26

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

01
68

5
O

th
er

0.
69

0.
03

1.
24

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
07

2
Co

nc
re

te
11

.2
5

0.
7

19
.8

8
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

59
7

Co
nc

re
te

15
.3

9
1.

29
27

.0
4

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

13
00

8
O

th
er

15
.9

2
0.

23
27

.8
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
09

O
th

er
15

.8
6

0.
67

26
.9

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
91

2
Co

nc
re

te
0.

67
0.

02
1.

21
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
03

54
3

O
th

er
0.

67
0.

02
1.

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

31
4

CM
P

2.
51

0.
37

3.
92

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
29

7
CO

N
C

0
0

0
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

45
3

CO
N

C
0

0
0

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
44

2
CM

P
12

.4
6

0.
65

19
.7

7
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

10
7

CO
N

C
7.

28
0.

31
12

.5
8

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
68

2
CO

N
C

2.
66

0.
14

4.
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
68

4
CO

N
C

2.
95

0.
16

4.
82



(c
fs

)
(c

fs
)

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

07
78

CO
N

C
13

.0
8

0.
21

24
.4

7
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
32

88
CO

N
C

13
.1

0.
1

25
.5

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

63
8

CO
N

C
13

.1
0.

3
25

.5
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
44

1
RC

P
15

.2
3

0.
19

26
.5

1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

68
3

CO
N

C
55

.2
4

0.
47

80
.9

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

77
8

CO
N

C
49

.6
6

0.
39

78
.6

7
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

68
8

CO
N

C
35

.9
2

0.
46

50
.5

9
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
49

84
8

CO
N

C
0

0
0

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

16
02

RC
P

12
.5

1
0.

14
21

.8
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

11
35

8
RC

P
13

.7
2

0.
18

24
.1

1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

26
RC

P
22

.5
1

0.
89

22
.8

1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

21
5

RC
P

22
.5

2.
15

22
.7

9
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
23

77
3

CO
N

C
1.

63
0.

01
2.

79
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
26

30
7

CO
N

C
0.

91
0.

01
1.

52
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
49

54
1

O
th

er
0

0
0

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

28
41

6
CO

N
C

1.
07

0.
01

1.
83

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
91

5
RC

P
1.

31
0.

09
2.

33
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
08

17
5

RC
P

2.
56

0.
09

4.
48

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

09
97

RC
P

2.
55

0.
08

4.
46

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
03

9
RC

P
2.

51
0.

14
4.

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

04
7

RC
P

3.
21

0.
3

5.
53

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
18

5
RC

P
3.

46
0.

3
5.

91
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

73
7

RC
P

32
.7

4
0.

37
47

.0
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
15

9
RC

P
6.

4
0.

41
11

.0
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

12
25

4
RC

P
1.

26
0.

03
2.

11
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

45
9

RC
P

5.
43

0.
76

8.
78

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
92

8
RC

P
12

.7
9

0.
5

20
.7

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

86
2

RC
P

11
.8

8
1.

22
15

.2
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
04

5
RC

P
12

.9
2

0.
86

15
.9

9
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

99
RC

P
12

.9
3

0.
87

14
.8

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

85
2

RC
P

0.
56

0.
06

3.
48

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
71

3
RC

P
1.

12
0.

04
2.

99
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

59
9

RC
P

2.
3

0.
17

4.
16

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
10

5
RC

P
82

.2
7

1.
38

82
.5

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

14
8

RC
P

4.
64

0.
41

9.
07

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
91

9
RC

P
18

.4
0.

59
22

.3
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
80

6
RC

P
20

.0
8

1.
14

25
.4

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
28

99
5

RC
P

20
.9

9
0.

17
27

.0
7

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

14
71

8
Co

nc
re

te
1.

65
0.

03
2.

26
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

49
CO

N
C

25
.6

3
0.

4
37

.1
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
37

4
CO

N
C

1.
61

0.
25

2.
69

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

25
10

1
CO

N
C

1.
93

0.
04

3.
15



(c
fs

)
(c

fs
)

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
81

3
CO

N
C

0.
32

0.
02

0.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

28
11

8
CO

N
C

0.
31

0
0.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

76
CO

N
C

1.
77

0.
09

5.
7

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
13

5
CO

N
C

2.
04

0.
05

8.
88

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
03

CO
N

C
2.

6
0.

07
7.

94
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

76
4

CO
N

C
2.

19
0.

11
3.

59
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

54
7

CO
N

C
6.

39
0.

38
10

.5
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
88

5
CO

N
C

6.
35

0.
13

10
.4

7
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

55
RC

P
11

.7
9

0.
9

12
.9

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
90

4
CO

N
C

48
.1

7
0.

3
84

.6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
34

51
1

CO
N

C
10

.5
3

0.
08

17
.5

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

92
2

CO
N

C
9.

97
0.

46
16

.6
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
57

4
CO

N
C

8.
3

0.
48

14
.0

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
11

27
2

CO
N

C
0.

32
0.

01
0.

51
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

49
9

CO
N

C
1

0.
14

1.
66

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
30

5
CO

N
C

16
.6

3
2.

87
16

.6
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
59

6
RC

P
75

.2
7

0.
97

83
.9

9
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
26

59
4

O
th

er
0.

04
0

0.
06

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

17
65

4
O

th
er

0.
1

0
0.

19
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
03

16
7

O
th

er
1.

05
0.

04
1.

67
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

88
4

CO
N

C
0.

4
0.

01
0.

63
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

43
9

CO
N

C
1.

49
0.

04
2.

36
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

15
5

CO
N

C
1.

97
0.

08
3.

12
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

64
6

CO
N

C
0.

28
0.

02
0.

43
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

24
1

CO
N

C
43

.1
2

0.
13

54
.1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
47

7
CM

P
12

.1
2

0.
81

11
.5

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
06

71
3

CO
N

C
1.

39
0.

02
2.

25
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

01
6

CO
N

C
43

.1
3

0.
15

54
.1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

27
74

1
CO

N
C

41
.9

1
0.

35
52

.1
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

07
91

1
CO

N
C

1.
14

0.
02

1.
75

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
97

2
CO

N
C

40
.1

4
1.

03
49

.6
7

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

15
39

3
CO

N
C

0.
48

0.
01

0.
75

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
63

3
CO

N
C

0.
48

0.
01

0.
74

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
97

3
CO

N
C

40
.1

8
1.

03
49

.6
7

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
29

5
CO

N
C

0.
32

0.
01

3.
71

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

15
41

3
CO

N
C

3.
41

0.
04

5.
79

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
21

9
CO

N
C

3.
42

0.
08

5.
79

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
97

3
CO

N
C

36
.2

2
0.

93
45

.4
8

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
97

2
CO

N
C

3.
7

0.
09

6.
46

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
5

CO
N

C
30

.8
0.

35
50

.5
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
85

9
CO

N
C

1.
66

0.
02

2.
8

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
55

4
CO

N
C

5.
88

0.
35

10
.8



(c
fs

)
(c

fs
)

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
11

8
CO

N
C

8.
25

0.
59

10
.2

7
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

11
8

CO
N

C
43

.9
1

3.
12

44
.3

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

11
7

CO
N

C
44

.5
1

5.
75

45
.2

9
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

14
5

CO
N

C
0.

56
0.

02
0.

91
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

32
5

CO
N

C
0.

66
0.

03
1.

08
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
16

19
8

CO
N

C
0.

81
0.

01
1.

31
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

43
CO

N
C

0.
48

0.
02

0.
77

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
60

4
CO

N
C

0.
52

0.
03

0.
84

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

27
24

6
RC

P
0.

05
0

0.
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
13

7
RC

P
2.

48
0.

02
4.

64
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
14

97
4

CO
N

C
16

.7
4

0.
11

30
.4

1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

77
RC

P
13

.5
2

0.
45

23
.6

7
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
11

93
7

Co
nc

re
te

3.
18

0
5.

22
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

07
5

CO
N

C
0

0
5.

66
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

31
5

RC
P

11
.0

1
0.

23
19

.4
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

11
21

5
AB

S
19

.4
6

0.
9

21
.1

9
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

90
2

RC
P

53
.3

5
0.

56
85

.7
2

6
1

TR
IA

N
GU

LA
R

0.
00

68
9

CO
N

C
0.

29
0.

05
0.

72
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

00
9

RC
P

60
.4

6
0.

42
10

1.
98

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

07
51

6
Co

nc
re

te
0.

5
0.

02
0.

61
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

52
8

RC
P

12
.9

4
0.

46
22

.7
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

36
58

9
RC

P
12

.9
5

0.
09

22
.7

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
31

95
7

RC
P

12
.9

5
0.

1
22

.7
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
61

6
RC

P
12

.8
9

0.
73

25
.2

7
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

94
1

CO
N

C
3.

18
0.

14
5.

23
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
26

87
1

RC
P

12
.8

9
0.

11
24

.4
9

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
91

8
RC

P
13

.3
7

0.
62

25
.8

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
03

5
CO

N
C

24
.7

4
0.

36
41

.7
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
26

3
RC

P
50

.6
5

0.
42

85
.4

7
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
14

14
7

RC
P

50
.7

0.
33

85
.5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
49

6
RC

P
48

.3
0.

56
81

.5
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
10

7
RC

P
0.

62
0.

02
0.

98
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

66
5

RC
P

3.
35

0.
2

5.
76

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
69

3
RC

P
1.

58
0.

08
2.

66
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

94
4

RC
P

9.
81

0.
96

17
.6

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

3
RC

P
2.

21
0.

12
3.

9
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

28
4

RC
P

3.
1

0.
14

5.
45

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
50

9
RC

P
9.

82
0.

37
17

.6
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

07
56

RC
P

0.
62

0.
02

0.
98

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
10

9
RC

P
0.

75
0.

07
1.

22
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

74
4

RC
P

5.
06

0.
36

8.
73

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
43

RC
P

4.
91

0.
2

8.
85



(c
fs

)
(c

fs
)

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
69

RC
P

4.
98

0.
16

8.
82

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
91

3
RC

P
4.

93
0.

34
8.

82
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

49
RC

P
2.

75
0.

37
4.

94
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

39
7

RC
P

12
.9

8
0.

27
22

.1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
07

37
6

RC
P

4.
18

0.
15

7.
14

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
31

5
RC

P
2.

22
0.

14
3.

91
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

34
8

RC
P

2.
21

0.
11

3.
9

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
19

6
RC

P
24

.6
3

0.
48

41
.8

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

64
2

RC
P

11
.4

5
0.

21
19

.5
9

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

47
78

7
RC

P
1.

18
0.

02
1.

88
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
06

20
2

Ea
rt

he
n

24
.5

4
0

33
.7

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

02
07

5
Ea

rt
he

n
28

.5
9

0
41

.5
3

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

01
68

9
Ea

rt
he

n
28

.3
1

0
41

.2
2

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

15
14

5
Ea

rt
he

n
0.

27
0

0.
43

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

17
54

2
Ea

rt
he

n
4.

25
0

7.
89

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

28
53

7
Ea

rt
he

n
3.

39
0

6.
31

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

17
84

5
Ea

rt
he

n
20

.2
1

0
22

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

12
7

RC
P

1.
28

0.
02

2.
04

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
46

3
RC

P
30

.5
2

0.
47

47
.2

8
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

98
9

RC
P

30
.5

7
0.

75
50

.2
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
49

1
RC

P
30

.2
4

0.
39

46
.6

8
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

89
4

RC
P

1.
97

0.
14

3.
55

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

03
06

2
Co

nc
re

te
0

0
0

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
96

9
RC

P
2.

42
0.

16
4.

26
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
24

24
2

RC
P

4.
25

0.
08

7.
89

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
70

4
RC

P
4.

07
0.

24
7.

61
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

39
RC

P
0.

78
0.

04
1.

21
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
15

23
8

RC
P

3.
4

0.
08

6.
32

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
44

1
RC

P
0.

6
0.

05
0.

92
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

15
3

RC
P

19
.3

3
1.

71
19

.7
7

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
28

7
RC

P
0.

3
0.

01
0.

47
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
01

31
6

Co
nc

re
te

0.
57

0.
03

0.
89

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
15

6
RC

P
19

.7
1.

28
20

.0
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
48

5
RC

P
2.

39
0.

33
4.

22
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

27
9

RC
P

2.
28

0.
14

4.
03

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

16
67

1
RC

P
4.

11
0.

1
7.

67
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

83
9

RC
P

2.
15

0.
12

3.
83

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
68

9
RC

P
20

.2
1

1.
48

22
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
01

84
1

Co
nc

re
te

1.
06

0.
04

2.
16

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
-0

.1
72

56
Ea

rt
he

n
0

0
0

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
45

RC
P

15
.2

5
1.

21
16

.9
9

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
79

2
RC

P
1.

29
0.

06
2.

65



(c
fs

)
(c

fs
)

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
78

8
RC

P
15

4.
15

0.
41

26
1.

53
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
12

58
6

RC
P

0.
64

0.
05

1.
06

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
28

9
RC

P
13

.0
2

1.
09

14
.9

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

16
6

RC
P

11
.8

5
1.

04
13

.9
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
83

2
RC

P
1.

11
0.

05
2.

16
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

70
9

RC
P

3.
29

0.
19

6.
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
05

1
RC

P
4.

39
0.

15
7.

99
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
22

80
3

RC
P

0.
56

0.
01

0.
95

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
92

3
RC

P
9.

25
0.

92
11

.7
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

12
85

7
RC

P
0.

99
0.

03
1.

82
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
07

57
2

RC
P

0.
99

0.
03

1.
81

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

15
91

1
RC

P
1.

37
0.

03
2.

28
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
11

24
2

CO
N

C
3.

79
0.

03
9.

88
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

22
RC

P
12

.4
1

1.
07

14
.3

1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
16

69
3

RC
P

4.
86

0.
11

8
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
02

93
6

Co
nc

re
te

0
0

0
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
02

81
7

Co
nc

re
te

0
0

0
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
01

18
9

Co
nc

re
te

0
0

0
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
04

38
4

Co
nc

re
te

0
0

0
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
02

52
9

Co
nc

re
te

0
0

0
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
03

36
1

Co
nc

re
te

0
0

0
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
02

58
7

Co
nc

re
te

0
0

0
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
02

73
9

Co
nc

re
te

0
0

0
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
08

72
CO

N
C

6.
84

0.
06

13
.1

6
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
31

86
6

Co
nc

re
te

0
0

0
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
09

84
5

Co
nc

re
te

0.
57

0.
01

0.
89

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

10
00

3
Co

nc
re

te
1.

05
0.

02
2.

15
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
01

02
4

Co
nc

re
te

1.
05

0.
06

2.
15

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

00
90

8
Co

nc
re

te
0.

05
0

0.
08

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

11
33

4
Co

nc
re

te
0.

05
0

0.
08

5
1

TR
IA

N
GU

LA
R

0.
25

46
1

Co
nc

re
te

20
.2

1
0.

09
22

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

37
84

5
RC

P
0

0
0

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

16
51

5
RC

P
30

.1
0.

18
46

.3
9

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

50
05

6
RC

P
0.

16
0

0.
24

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
56

3
RC

P
24

.5
4

0.
2

33
.6

9
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
09

18
3

RC
P

0.
8

0.
01

2.
29

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

07
95

6
Ea

rt
he

n
1.

32
0

4.
03

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

16
62

9
Ea

rt
he

n
2.

01
0

6.
18

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

15
21

6
Ea

rt
he

n
2.

81
0

9.
67

3.
5

1
TR

IA
N

GU
LA

R
0.

04
74

2
Co

nc
re

te
0

0
0

3.
5

1
TR

IA
N

GU
LA

R
0.

03
47

5
Co

nc
re

te
0

0
0

3.
5

1
TR

IA
N

GU
LA

R
0.

02
01

1
Co

nc
re

te
0

0
0



(c
fs

)
(c

fs
)

3.
5

1
TR

IA
N

GU
LA

R
0.

03
24

2
Co

nc
re

te
0.

57
0.

06
2.

4
3.

5
1

TR
IA

N
GU

LA
R

0.
02

97
8

Co
nc

re
te

0
0

0
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
29

98
6

CM
P

1.
51

0.
02

5.
21

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
61

2
RC

P
33

.7
6

0.
79

61
.4

8
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

81
4

RC
P

22
.1

8
0.

58
39

.8
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

64
2

RC
P

32
.6

4
0.

89
59

.3
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
98

4
RC

P
3.

47
0.

33
6.

21
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

38
8

RC
P

4.
63

0.
21

8.
21

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
59

RC
P

53
.3

0.
69

82
.4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
86

2
RC

P
7.

6
0.

2
13

.6
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
46

6
RC

P
39

.3
0.

86
70

.3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

79
2

RC
P

0
0

0
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

61
3

RC
P

3.
07

0.
18

5.
38

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

23
97

5
CO

N
C

21
.4

1
0.

19
37

.1
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
05

8
CO

N
C

3.
84

0.
17

6.
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
73

9
CO

N
C

25
.2

4
0.

85
39

.9
9

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

15
62

4
CO

N
C

8.
83

0.
1

15
.1

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

84
CO

N
C

1.
24

0.
03

2.
15

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

09
16

9
RC

P
8.

94
0.

13
15

.4
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
80

2
RC

P
8.

08
0.

27
22

.0
9

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
05

2
RC

P
35

.2
5

0.
89

40
.2

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

25
3

RC
P

14
.6

7
1.

29
14

.6
5

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

03
94

Ea
rt

he
n

12
.1

1
0

19
.8

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

01
04

4
Ea

rt
he

n
25

.0
1

0
30

.9
8

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

04
28

5
Ea

rt
he

n
3.

34
0

5.
7

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

06
10

7
Ea

rt
he

n
2.

71
0

4.
92

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

05
72

9
Ea

rt
he

n
1.

21
0

1.
97

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

09
77

Ea
rt

he
n

6.
38

0
10

.7
6

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

00
10

7
Ea

rt
he

n
7.

79
0.

01
11

.3
2

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

13
61

2
Ea

rt
he

n
7.

92
0

11
.5

2
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
02

86
1

Ea
rt

he
n

16
.6

1
0

19
.1

1
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
01

53
5

Ea
rt

he
n

23
.4

3
0

29
.1

4
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
08

39
3

Ea
rt

he
n

16
.0

5
0

19
.6

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

60
2

CO
N

C
16

.6
1.

25
19

.1
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
25

8
CO

N
C

25
.0

1
1.

15
30

.9
8

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
44

5
CO

N
C

16
.0

5
2.

29
19

.8
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
13

6
RC

P
6.

38
0.

27
10

.7
7

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
95

8
RC

P
41

.9
4

0.
34

60
.7

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

17
1

RC
P

16
.3

4
0.

2
27

.4
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

71
11

RC
P

22
.1

4
0.

25
35

.6
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
93

2
RC

P
1.

3
0.

07
2.

11
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

89
RC

P
0.

6
0.

06
0.

96



(c
fs

)
(c

fs
)

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

16
31

9
RC

P
0.

25
0.

01
0.

41
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

62
2

RC
P

2.
42

0.
08

3.
83

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
33

RC
P

5.
07

0.
26

8.
76

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

25
31

HD
PE

0
0

0
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

99
1

RC
P

1.
3

0.
02

2.
39

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
34

6
RC

P
28

.7
5

0.
38

47
.5

1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
15

35
8

RC
P

0
0

0
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
07

14
7

RC
P

0
0

0
5.

5
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
54

1
CM

P
53

.5
2.

01
53

.3
6

5.
5

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

89
5

CM
P

53
.5

1.
57

53
.3

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

45
8

RC
P

0
0

0
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

40
4

RC
P

0.
54

0.
01

0.
96

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
31

8
RC

P
0.

53
0.

01
0.

95
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

61
2

RC
P

2.
69

0.
15

3.
25

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
64

RC
P

0
0

0.
98

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
RC

P
0

0
0

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
95

RC
P

0
0

0
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

85
5

RC
P

0
0

0
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

97
1

RC
P

4.
34

0.
19

7.
61

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
47

2
SP

15
.3

8
0.

43
27

.3
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
95

8
RC

P
4.

33
0.

2
7.

61
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

47
3

RC
P

4.
33

0.
12

7.
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
38

3
RC

P
7.

84
0.

56
13

.8
8

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
04

4
RC

P
0

0
0

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
46

5
RC

P
0

0
0

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
03

5
RC

P
0

0
0

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
24

9
RC

P
0

0
0

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
11

7
CM

P
36

.0
6

4.
74

35
.2

1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
08

94
1

RC
P

10
.8

2
0.

05
20

.6
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
74

RC
P

10
.8

2
0.

19
20

.7
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
76

7
RC

P
37

.2
3

0.
16

56
.8

8
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

59
4

RC
P

38
.0

5
0.

16
56

.3
9

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
24

9
RC

P
7.

39
0.

39
22

.1
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

21
43

RC
P

1.
02

0
1.

65
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

37
7

CO
N

C
15

.4
3

0.
61

27
.5

1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

52
4

CO
N

C
15

.3
9

0.
52

27
.4

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

28
3

RC
P

34
4.

91
1.

17
35

4.
05

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
24

6
RC

P
49

.6
0.

44
50

.3
8

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
74

5
AB

S
0.

77
0.

11
1.

26
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
06

32
5

AB
S

0.
67

0.
07

1.
06

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

07
32

2
RC

P
3.

47
0.

36
4.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

76
3

AB
S

2.
1

0.
27

3.
44



(c
fs

)
(c

fs
)

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

14
23

5
RC

P
1.

79
0.

05
3.

15
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

11
3

AB
S

0.
92

0.
18

1.
53

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
45

4
CM

P
1.

83
0.

33
3.

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

04
3

SP
0.

26
0.

03
0.

46
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
07

52
6

RC
P

0
0

0
8

1
RE

CT
_C

LO
SE

D
0.

02
26

1
RC

B
21

4.
3

0.
32

24
1.

33
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
19

52
2

RC
P

6.
39

0.
14

11
.5

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

30
9

AB
S

7.
57

1.
17

7.
57

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
02

3
AB

S
10

.7
3

0.
59

18
.7

4
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
16

41
RC

P
3.

52
0.

06
6.

18
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

26
2

RC
P

0.
29

0.
07

0.
59

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
57

RC
P

0.
06

0.
02

0.
14

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

13
64

7
CM

P
5.

65
0.

27
10

.3
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
99

2
RC

P
33

.4
2

0.
17

36
.0

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

33
RC

P
29

.2
5

0.
06

77
.7

8
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

36
5

RC
P

58
.6

5
0.

68
76

.0
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
39

1
RC

P
17

6.
37

0.
84

32
2.

21
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

34
1

RC
P

17
4.

16
0.

89
29

9.
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
03

9
RC

P
16

2.
55

0.
61

28
2.

45
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

57
1

RC
P

10
8.

45
0.

33
19

5.
21

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
47

5
RC

P
79

.5
2

0.
19

14
4.

57
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

70
9

RC
P

79
.3

2
0.

36
14

7.
69

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
77

RC
P

33
.1

0.
37

74
.4

8
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

57
2

RC
P

57
.7

3
0.

3
11

9.
93

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
46

8
RC

P
8.

82
0.

11
14

.3
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
05

2
RC

P
11

.5
2

0.
07

20
.8

9
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

09
HD

PE
0.

65
0.

1
1.

06
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

61
2

HD
PE

2.
86

0.
57

4.
77

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
42

HD
PE

2.
85

0.
24

4.
77

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
64

1
HD

PE
1.

06
0.

08
1.

8
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

04
8

HD
PE

1.
85

0.
28

3.
08

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
59

6
RC

P
0.

17
0

2.
95

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
07

5
RC

P
42

9.
37

0.
98

55
8.

01
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
14

56
RC

P
2.

15
0.

05
3.

62
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

63
3

RC
P

2.
51

0.
19

4.
26

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
51

RC
P

2.
5

0.
19

4.
25

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
25

7
HD

PE
2.

74
0.

17
4.

88
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

51
8

RC
P

33
.1

5
1.

19
35

.2
2

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

19
96

1
Ea

rt
he

n
0.

13
0

0.
21

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
84

5
HD

PE
3.

14
0.

53
5.

52
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

82
1

RC
P

3.
09

0.
35

5.
46

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
59

8
RC

P
14

.7
4

1.
11

24
.1

5



(c
fs

)
(c

fs
)

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
73

7
RC

P
11

.1
6

0.
81

20
.0

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

14
4

RC
P

16
.4

4
0.

27
29

.4
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
44

9
RC

P
23

.1
5

0.
14

39
.6

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

67
8

RC
P

2.
18

0.
02

6.
51

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

16
21

3
PV

C
0.

91
0.

18
1.

53
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

38
7

RC
P

20
.2

9
0.

32
32

.6
8

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
55

RC
P

2.
56

0.
09

5.
09

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
65

3
RC

P
2.

56
0.

09
5.

07
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
07

85
8

RC
P

2.
55

0.
04

5.
06

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
97

8
PV

C
2.

21
0.

21
3.

82
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
08

80
5

RC
P

2.
23

0.
07

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
10

04
7

CM
P

2.
14

0.
12

3.
73

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
71

6
CM

P
11

.1
8

1.
08

15
.8

9
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

71
6

RC
P

5.
12

0.
58

8.
57

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

11
57

2
RC

P
1.

39
0.

01
3.

35
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

66
9

RC
P

7.
33

0.
43

12
.7

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

53
4

CM
P

35
.9

6
1.

84
35

.9
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
69

RC
P

12
0.

63
0.

62
18

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

15
RC

P
59

.3
2

0.
5

69
.4

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

16
8

RC
P

98
.6

6
1

11
4.

46
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

17
5

RC
P

12
4.

68
0.

84
16

3.
01

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
35

5
RC

P
57

.8
8

0.
47

65
.4

7
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

83
7

RC
P

2.
37

0.
13

4.
28

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
00

8
CM

P
13

.9
7

1.
1

14
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

22
4

CM
P

17
.8

4
1.

75
18

.5
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
33

2
RC

P
3.

99
0.

31
4.

25
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

59
RC

P
2.

14
0.

09
3.

91
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
08

43
2

AB
S

6.
93

0.
37

18
.1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
45

3
RC

P
0.

96
0.

06
1.

77
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

61
9

RC
P

0.
18

0
0.

27
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
06

69
3

RC
P

1.
01

0.
04

1.
73

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

11
59

1
CO

N
C

0
0

0
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
00

75
7

CO
N

C
1.

6
0.

12
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
30

5
RC

P
0.

2
0.

1
0.

44
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
01

63
6

CO
N

C
0

0
0

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

17
87

8
CM

P
0.

85
0.

1
1.

5
16

1
RE

CT
_C

LO
SE

D
0.

00
78

8
RC

B
27

7.
5

0.
22

52
7.

52
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
06

16
9

RC
P

0.
03

0
0.

05
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
04

79
4

CO
N

C
0

0
0

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

09
82

3
CO

N
C

0
0

0
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
07

03
6

CO
N

C
2.

03
0.

05
3.

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

77
4

CM
P

5.
03

0.
66

8.
11



(c
fs

)
(c

fs
)

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
14

7
CM

P
28

.9
9

0.
55

50
.9

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

04
3

RC
P

0.
9

0.
04

1.
43

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
27

8
RC

P
1.

43
0.

12
17

.8
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
96

6
RC

P
2.

16
0.

21
3.

64
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
17

58
5

Co
nc

re
te

2.
83

0.
07

4.
77

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
91

9
CM

P
0.

24
0.

04
0.

39
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

50
4

HD
PE

0.
26

0.
03

0.
43

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
10

5
CM

P
0.

26
0.

04
0.

43
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
06

32
8

CM
P

1.
86

0.
13

3.
34

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
85

9
RC

P
9.

04
0.

63
15

.2
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
18

9
CM

P
6.

87
0.

49
12

.1
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

47
94

7
CM

P
3.

18
0.

04
5.

8
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

08
3

RC
P

11
.7

8
0.

71
20

.7
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

08
1

CM
P

20
.8

2
0.

9
36

.5
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
20

5
HD

PE
3.

46
0.

65
4.

75
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
15

23
7

CM
P

5.
46

0.
25

8.
53

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
50

6
CM

P
6.

31
1.

56
9.

76
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

53
4

CM
P

3.
84

0.
54

6.
79

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
26

3
RC

P
80

.6
8

0.
37

21
9.

18
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

92
9

RC
P

4.
35

0.
3

7.
63

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
70

4
CM

P
3.

83
0.

8
6.

58
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

24
HD

PE
4.

01
0.

08
6.

88
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
27

65
5

CM
P

0
0

0
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
01

47
8

EA
R

0.
6

0.
2

0.
96

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

19
01

5
CM

P
3.

45
0.

14
5.

69
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
09

57
8

CM
P

18
.9

3
0.

28
29

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
98

8
RC

P
1.

33
0.

06
2.

31
4

1
RE

CT
_O

PE
N

0.
02

47
9

Co
nc

re
te

0
0

0
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

56
4

RC
P

79
.5

1.
59

78
.9

2
8

1
RE

CT
_O

PE
N

0.
00

96
1

Co
nc

re
te

5.
17

0.
1

8.
53

5
1

RE
CT

_O
PE

N
0.

02
82

6
Co

nc
re

te
0.

17
0

0.
26

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
06

CM
P

5.
23

0.
89

7.
91

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
58

7
RC

P
6.

31
0.

21
9.

73
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

78
4

RC
P

7.
9

0.
64

12
.6

9
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
87

27
6

PV
C

1.
17

0.
22

1.
83

8
1

RE
CT

_O
PE

N
0.

00
91

5
EA

R
1.

79
0.

02
3.

16
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

57
6

HD
PE

97
.2

7
0.

89
18

2.
34

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
55

4
CM

P
0.

94
0.

08
1.

56
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

81
2

HD
PE

97
.8

3
0.

51
18

2.
97

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
37

9
RC

P
21

.1
6

1.
52

22
.4

5
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
02

19
6

Ea
rt

he
n

1.
64

0.
34

2.
83

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
51

7
CM

P
1.

3
0.

15
2.

12



(c
fs

)
(c

fs
)

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

04
Co

nc
re

te
0.

48
0.

02
0.

61
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
15

09
CO

N
C

5.
11

0.
06

8.
05

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
52

2
RC

P
87

.5
0.

27
15

4.
09

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

14
64

3
CM

P
2.

81
0.

13
4.

47
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

97
6

CM
P

1.
42

0.
25

2.
46

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

17
01

7
CM

P
0.

51
0.

02
0.

88
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

79
8

HD
PE

1.
87

0.
04

3.
43

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

46
87

3
HD

PE
2.

39
0.

02
4.

33
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

96
9

HD
PE

7.
52

0.
36

11
.9

9
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

33
3

CM
P

16
.5

0.
37

26
.9

9
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
10

33
4

Ea
rt

he
n

24
.0

1
0.

05
38

.9
5

20
1

RE
CT

_O
PE

N
0.

10
31

8
Ea

rt
he

n
24

0
38

.9
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
90

3
HD

PE
0.

86
0.

04
1.

38
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

15
4

HD
PE

0.
89

0.
05

1.
43

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
58

5
HD

PE
6.

74
0.

34
10

.7
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
86

2
HD

PE
7.

55
0.

42
12

.0
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
44

9
HD

PE
0.

51
0.

03
0.

79
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

63
8

HD
PE

0.
41

0.
03

0.
63

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
45

8
AB

S
14

.1
0.

4
25

.2
7

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
86

2
HD

PE
4.

94
0.

56
9.

1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

96
2

HD
PE

1.
08

0.
07

1.
71

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
61

4
HD

PE
0.

19
0.

01
0.

29
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

74
6

HD
PE

0.
54

0.
03

0.
82

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

13
08

2
HD

PE
4.

52
0.

06
7.

69
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
01

77
CO

N
C

0.
83

0.
02

1.
91

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
65

2
HD

PE
1.

57
0.

12
2.

56
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

32
2

HD
PE

2.
05

0.
11

3.
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
45

2
HD

PE
1.

03
0.

08
1.

59
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

85
2

HD
PE

1.
28

0.
07

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

16
7

HD
PE

4.
25

0.
2

6.
74

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
78

3
CM

P
0.

66
0.

12
1.

05
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

62
1

HD
PE

2.
45

0.
3

3.
89

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
49

5
HD

PE
3.

52
0.

21
5.

62
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
06

93
5

HD
PE

1.
18

0.
04

1.
84

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

10
68

5
HD

PE
4.

79
0.

06
7.

61
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

96
RC

P
7.

02
0.

48
12

.3
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
36

6
RC

P
8.

89
1.

4
15

.3
5

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

10
96

2
Co

nc
re

te
0

0
0

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

05
94

5
Co

nc
re

te
0

0
0

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

02
62

6
Co

nc
re

te
1.

35
0.

08
2.

7
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
14

24
6

Co
nc

re
te

1.
97

0.
05

3.
52

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

08
58

7
Co

nc
re

te
1.

37
0.

05
2.

6



(c
fs

)
(c

fs
)

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
22

4
RC

P
1.

15
0.

04
2.

11
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

10
5

RC
P

28
.3

5
0.

19
52

.5
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

07
41

4
RC

P
0.

64
0.

02
1.

14
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

93
8

RC
P

27
.5

8
0.

1
51

.1
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
11

1
CM

P
16

.8
6

0.
52

28
.3

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

98
4

CM
P

24
.1

9
0.

45
41

.1
8

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
88

7
CM

P
5.

24
0.

67
9.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

58
7

RC
B

20
.3

1
0.

42
36

.8
8

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
50

2
CM

P
12

.5
1.

39
18

.7
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

58
7

CM
P

11
.1

5
1.

22
16

.2
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
87

1
CM

P
37

.3
0.

43
66

.5
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
77

8
CM

P
2.

8
0.

3
8.

16
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

90
6

HD
PE

4.
39

2.
13

4.
47

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

12
35

8
AB

S
4.

19
0.

11
8.

48
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

62
RC

P
65

.9
4

0.
78

11
7.

55
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
07

06
2

CM
P

0.
76

0.
02

1.
32

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
71

2
RC

P
72

.3
6

0.
38

12
8.

25
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

35
6

RC
P

56
.1

6
0.

21
10

4.
15

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
67

8
RC

P
56

.2
3

0.
48

10
4.

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

81
RC

P
54

.2
4

0.
28

99
.9

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

17
8

RC
P

3.
73

0.
46

6.
69

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
74

7
RC

P
25

.2
0.

2
44

.5
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
09

CM
P

5.
4

0.
42

10
.3

7
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
09

78
4

CM
P

10
.5

7
0.

09
19

.1
7

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
93

3
RC

P
25

.1
8

0.
03

44
.7

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

68
2

AB
S

2.
78

0.
2

4.
75

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

24
52

AB
S

2.
77

0.
05

4.
74

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
22

6
AB

S
5.

64
0.

36
9.

75
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
06

19
8

AB
S

5.
63

0.
22

9.
73

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
60

7
AB

S
4.

86
0.

59
9.

31
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

52
7

RC
P

25
.2

8
0.

05
78

.0
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
04

6
RC

P
19

.3
7

0.
12

34
.3

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

82
RC

P
19

.3
9

0.
32

34
.3

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
10

42
5

RC
P

11
.4

4
0.

05
20

.7
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
80

6
CM

P
6.

55
1.

28
9.

47
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
02

29
3

Co
nc

re
te

0.
11

0.
01

0.
17

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

07
43

3
Co

nc
re

te
0.

19
0.

01
0.

31
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

03
3

CM
P

10
.5

9
0.

85
15

.9
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
07

13
2

Co
nc

re
te

0.
16

0.
01

0.
24

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
26

4
RC

P
1.

34
0.

09
2.

45
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

90
1

RC
P

9.
61

0.
45

17
.2

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

82
9

RC
P

17
.2

0.
39

31
.1

4



(c
fs

)
(c

fs
)

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

09
67

RC
P

1.
36

0.
04

2.
55

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
93

5
AB

S
2.

18
0.

09
3.

98
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

08
5

CM
P

19
.2

8
0.

51
22

.1
6

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

10
27

2
Co

nc
re

te
0.

7
0.

02
1.

21
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

52
RC

P
0.

84
0.

06
1.

53
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
31

42
5

Co
nc

re
te

0.
08

0
0.

12
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
16

37
8

Co
nc

re
te

0.
53

0.
01

1.
06

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

04
03

9
Co

nc
re

te
0.

23
0.

01
0.

45
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

19
CM

P
4.

46
0.

53
7.

87
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

51
4

CM
P

5.
57

0.
8

8.
06

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
97

8
CM

P
4.

31
0.

88
5.

24
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

45
6

HD
PE

4.
05

0.
57

6.
91

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
15

4
CO

N
C

26
.6

0.
22

44
.8

7
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
10

70
3

RC
P

2.
92

0.
08

6.
28

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
64

6
RC

P
37

.6
7

0.
33

69
.7

7
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

90
2

RC
P

50
.3

0.
37

92
.6

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

22
RC

P
51

.2
2

0.
32

94
.1

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

32
7

RC
P

18
.7

8
0.

23
32

.3
9

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
09

AB
S

3.
16

0.
05

6.
13

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
55

7
AB

S
1.

34
0.

04
2.

32
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

37
8

AB
S

1.
3

0.
05

2.
26

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

15
74

6
CM

P
1.

36
0.

06
2.

37
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
06

16
1

CM
P

24
.1

0.
18

32
.9

6
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
01

14
5

CO
N

C
2.

34
0.

15
3.

35
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

88
4

CM
P

2.
31

0.
43

4.
13

67
1

RE
CT

_C
LO

SE
D

0.
00

80
2

RC
B

2.
54

0.
21

4.
58

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
66

6
CM

P
10

.8
9

2.
34

12
.2

5
1.

5
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

03
10

1
CO

N
C

10
.9

9
1.

04
12

.1
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

07
75

6
RC

P
7.

03
0.

24
7.

39
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

39
9

SP
16

.8
5

0.
2

30
.0

6
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
02

73
4

CO
N

C
0.

55
0.

02
0.

99
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
13

72
6

HD
PE

0.
7

1.
02

0.
67

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
49

2
RC

P
15

.9
9

1.
01

17
.4

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

64
1

RC
P

28
.4

7
0.

33
43

.7
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
81

9
RC

P
69

.8
9

1.
16

79
.6

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

74
8

RC
P

67
.8

7
0.

53
79

.4
9

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
83

3
RC

P
75

.1
3

0.
82

79
.5

1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

40
3

RC
P

19
1.

32
20

.8
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
13

2
RC

P
4.

78
0.

05
8.

57
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

78
6

RC
P

18
.0

7
0.

11
32

.3
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

09
63

2
RC

P
8.

01
0.

25
13

.7
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
91

9
RC

P
17

.9
9

0.
14

32
.2

3



(c
fs

)
(c

fs
)

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
26

7
RC

P
7

0.
32

6.
37

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

36
14

4
RC

P
2.

4
0.

04
3.

72
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
01

30
1

CO
N

C
30

5.
17

0.
11

53
5.

07
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

06
7

RC
P

7.
37

0.
49

10
.7

1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

36
9

RC
P

10
.7

8
0.

88
15

.9
8

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
70

1
CM

P
10

.6
3

1.
04

15
.2

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

27
HD

PE
2.

14
0.

1
2.

9
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

61
2

CM
P

8.
83

0.
96

8.
95

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

01
98

8
EA

R
7.

24
0

11
.9

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

02
87

9
EA

R
0

0
0

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

15
85

9
Co

nc
re

te
0.

12
0

0.
22

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
19

9
RC

P
36

.4
1

0.
81

53
.0

7
5

1
HO

RI
Z_

EL
LI

PS
E

0.
00

13
1

CM
P

14
4.

75
2.

78
15

3.
3

5
1

HO
RI

Z_
EL

LI
PS

E
0.

00
42

2
CM

P
14

3.
58

3.
31

15
1.

95
5

1
HO

RI
Z_

EL
LI

PS
E

0.
13

69
3

CM
P

14
3.

73
0.

27
15

2.
12

5
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
67

7
CM

P
92

.9
3

1.
08

92
.0

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

35
2

CM
P

45
.2

8
2.

11
44

.3
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
66

1
CM

P
41

.0
4

0.
88

40
.8

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

25
6

CM
P

14
.3

4
0.

78
16

.0
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
86

2
PV

C
6.

38
0.

13
11

.3
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
48

3
CM

P
0.

63
0.

16
1.

06
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
07

68
3

RC
P

3.
12

0.
11

5.
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
77

6
CM

P
88

.4
3

1.
29

89
.3

8
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
35

13
RC

P
3.

41
0.

05
5.

67
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

35
2

RC
P

40
.7

3
1.

55
43

.7
7

5
1

RE
CT

_C
LO

SE
D

0.
01

17
1

CM
P

79
.2

7
0.

82
79

.2
4

6
1

RE
CT

_C
LO

SE
D

0.
02

26
1

RC
B

79
.2

6
0.

47
79

.2
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
13

2
PV

C
1.

54
2.

59
1.

51
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

84
4

RC
P

56
.5

9
0.

5
83

.1
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
43

9
CM

P
0.

04
0.

01
3.

31
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

34
2

CM
P

11
.1

0.
94

11
.5

9
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

86
5

RC
P

45
.2

7
0.

63
55

.5
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

10
63

3
CM

P
0

0
0

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
57

5
RC

P
60

.8
2

0.
56

80
.1

7
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

93
6

CM
P

4.
69

0.
59

7.
89

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
85

1
CM

P
6.

4
0.

43
10

.6
8

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
32

4
AB

S
0

0
0

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
74

3
RC

P
14

.6
7

0.
75

26
.9

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
-0

.0
20

02
RC

P
0.

17
0.

01
2.

66
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0
SP

9.
02

27
.2

4
9.

14
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

05
8

RC
P

7.
9

0.
13

14
.4

8
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

75
2

SP
10

.5
1

1.
41

10
.9

7



(c
fs

)
(c

fs
)

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
27

RC
P

11
.4

9
0.

45
20

.2
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
82

8
RC

P
9.

98
0.

23
17

.9
8

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
25

RC
P

0.
47

0.
02

0.
96

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
10

3
CM

P
8.

92
0.

51
10

.1
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
35

5
SP

8.
91

1.
39

10
.0

9
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

79
2

RC
P

0
0

0.
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
19

5
RC

P
17

.4
3

0.
93

17
.6

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

12
5

RC
P

0
0

0
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

86
7

RC
P

17
.5

2
0.

46
16

.9
9

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

11
21

5
RC

P
3.

86
0.

03
6.

23
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

88
5

CM
P

7.
75

0.
69

7.
77

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
73

1
CM

P
11

.6
7

1.
11

11
.4

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

58
1

RC
P

28
.5

5
1.

66
29

.8
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
18

9
RC

P
4.

12
0.

36
7.

42
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

52
9

RC
P

5.
71

1.
3

5.
67

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
30

4
RC

P
0.

74
0.

05
1.

39
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

06
1

PV
C

0.
2

0.
03

0.
45

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
93

2
RC

P
4.

02
0.

28
6.

78
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

94
5

PV
C

8.
89

1.
79

10
.1

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

37
9

HD
PE

0.
87

0.
13

1.
56

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
32

8
RC

P
9.

65
1.

6
11

.5
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
85

RC
B

16
.9

7
0.

44
29

.8
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
35

4
RC

P
15

.3
1

0.
44

26
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

06
3

RC
P

17
.2

1
0.

43
29

.4
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
69

9
CM

P
17

0.
59

29
.8

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

08
8

AB
S

21
.8

1.
99

22
.0

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

26
9

RC
P

96
.7

6
0.

6
12

4.
05

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
44

4
CM

P
2.

04
0.

54
3.

55
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

89
1

AB
S

4.
21

0.
27

7.
33

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
15

AB
S

5.
05

0.
73

8.
96

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
80

3
RC

P
13

0.
3

0.
34

22
1.

71
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

13
9

RC
P

1.
51

0.
06

2.
9

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
26

4
RC

P
3.

14
0.

03
7.

68
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

15
9

RC
P

2.
81

0
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
90

5
CO

N
C

13
.9

9
0.

14
25

.3
9

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
31

7
CO

N
C

14
.5

4
0.

63
27

.7
9

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
31

6
RC

P
13

3.
07

0.
56

24
1.

23
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
13

89
2

RC
P

8
0.

2
14

.2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

62
3

RC
P

13
4.

21
0.

4
22

8.
89

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
69

9
RC

P
13

8.
99

0.
54

23
5.

29
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

70
9

RC
B

13
8.

89
0.

39
23

5.
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
04

8
CM

P
15

.3
4

0.
28

31
.9

2



(c
fs

)
(c

fs
)

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

02
25

1
AS

PH
AL

T
5.

6
0.

3
9.

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

47
4

CM
P

10
.6

0.
55

16
.9

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
06

67
5

AB
S

4.
08

0.
44

7.
26

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
74

4
HD

PE
14

.3
8

0.
48

24
.1

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

80
6

HD
PE

1.
41

0.
1

2.
52

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
48

9
HD

PE
1.

4
0.

07
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

70
5

HD
PE

9.
18

0.
48

15
.5

7
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
17

17
HD

PE
1.

22
0.

08
2.

12
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

09
5

HD
PE

6.
02

1.
17

6.
07

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

09
90

1
CM

P
10

.5
4

0.
39

18
.4

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

30
8

RC
P

5.
75

0.
48

11
.1

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

48
1

AB
S

2.
41

0.
29

4.
78

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
36

9
RC

P
3.

22
0.

26
5.

66
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

78
5

CM
P

3.
2

0.
42

5.
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
37

3
CM

P
9.

56
0.

51
15

.0
7

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
55

9
CM

P
2.

52
0.

28
4.

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

64
8

CM
P

20
.4

1
0.

56
32

.3
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
53

5
CM

P
20

.3
5

0.
49

32
.2

7
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

71
4

RC
P

20
.3

0.
59

32
.1

7
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

71
1

RC
P

58
.4

1
1.

69
85

.6
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
27

4
RC

P
63

.3
0.

33
10

4.
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
81

9
CM

P
1.

48
0.

29
2.

61
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

28
7

CM
P

2.
13

0.
7

3.
78

3
1

RE
CT

_C
LO

SE
D

-0
.0

04
RC

B
2.

7
0.

24
4.

51
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

08
7

HD
PE

3.
72

0.
2

6.
14

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
12

CM
P

0.
06

0
0.

09
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

94
8

CM
P

11
.4

0.
11

20
.3

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

68
9

CM
P

29
.5

6
0.

99
29

.6
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
25

8
RC

P
3.

39
0.

18
6.

56
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
07

88
9

Co
nc

re
te

0.
27

0.
01

0.
44

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

05
77

1
Co

nc
re

te
0.

05
0

0.
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
58

1
AB

S
0.

58
0.

21
0.

86
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

40
2

AB
S

3.
28

1.
45

4.
92

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
01

5
AB

S
5.

02
0.

7
4.

75
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

85
1

RC
P

7.
64

0.
79

9.
25

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
11

HD
PE

6.
62

1.
76

6.
73

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
41

7
RC

P
2.

35
0.

19
3.

83
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

02
3

CM
P

7.
37

0.
58

12
.8

7
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

87
6

CM
P

10
.2

8
1.

32
15

.6
8

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
47

7
VC

P
1.

39
1.

01
1.

5
4

1
RE

CT
_O

PE
N

0.
00

57
2

Ea
rt

he
n

1.
89

0.
13

4.
18

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
03

1
RC

P
3.

5
0.

97
4.

45



(c
fs

)
(c

fs
)

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
98

2
RC

P
33

.8
2

0.
17

51
.5

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
10

12
8

CO
N

C
4.

13
0.

06
6.

81
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

69
2

RC
P

15
.2

8
0.

28
27

.5
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
85

RC
P

15
.2

7
0.

25
27

.4
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
27

9
RC

P
1.

59
0.

07
2.

84
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

56
2

RC
P

17
.3

5
0.

11
31

.4
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
67

3
RC

P
21

.2
6

0.
63

39
.2

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

09
2

RC
P

23
.4

4
0.

32
43

.2
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
69

6
RC

P
23

.3
6

0.
14

41
.4

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
08

30
6

RC
P

28
.6

8
0.

24
52

.9
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
34

2
RC

P
33

.0
5

0.
53

60
.3

1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
16

79
6

CM
P

0.
12

0.
01

0.
18

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
78

7
RC

P
9.

33
0.

66
16

.3
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

34
33

RC
P

0.
28

0.
01

0.
45

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
52

9
RC

P
11

6.
94

0.
38

13
8.

67
0

2
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

31
1

RC
P

13
0.

17
1.

04
13

0.
21

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
45

1
CM

P
14

.3
2

2.
09

14
.3

1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

41
4

CM
P

16
.9

4
4.

62
17

.0
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
41

5
RC

P
53

.2
3

1.
09

81
.3

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

85
RC

P
29

.8
7

0.
18

54
.5

1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

40
8

RC
P

11
5.

61
0.

43
31

1.
67

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

09
32

1
EA

R
0

0
0

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
08

9
RC

P
54

.1
8

1.
27

55
.9

7
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

12
4

CM
P

2.
99

0.
5

4.
33

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
07

CM
P

8.
72

0.
69

10
.3

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
07

89
5

CM
P

2.
53

0.
16

4.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
97

8
RC

P
37

.4
0.

19
59

.3
9

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
97

8
RC

P
37

.4
9

0.
19

58
.9

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
04

4
HD

PE
3.

44
0.

48
4.

25
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
01

18
7

Ea
rt

he
n

53
7.

3
0.

08
88

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

97
8

RC
P

41
.8

9
0.

21
67

.4
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
94

7
RC

P
15

4.
07

0.
56

26
1.

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

08
9

RC
P

15
3.

96
0.

54
26

1.
18

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
84

3
RC

P
1.

18
0.

03
2.

03
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

76
4

RC
P

15
7.

42
0.

43
26

7.
78

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
81

3
HD

PE
7.

19
0.

31
15

.2
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
39

6
HD

PE
10

.6
3

0.
4

25
.8

4
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
01

41
7

Ea
rt

he
n

55
1.

4
0.

37
91

1.
75

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

01
33

8
Ea

rt
he

n
53

7.
86

0.
37

89
6.

82
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

-0
.1

14
33

Ea
rt

he
n

45
9.

15
0.

11
69

0.
02

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
16

6
CO

N
C

3.
29

0.
63

5.
16

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

19
09

8
HD

PE
13

.7
1

0.
14

13
.9

6



(c
fs

)
(c

fs
)

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
97

6
RC

P
0.

99
0.

07
1.

86
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
03

7
Ea

rt
he

n
54

2.
83

0.
05

90
9.

66
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
01

39
1

Ea
rt

he
n

54
3.

45
0.

04
91

7.
34

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
05

6
CO

N
C

3.
92

0.
03

12
.3

8
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

48
6

RC
P

30
.8

9
1.

08
47

.2
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
83

1
RC

P
45

.3
9

0.
14

68
.3

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

81
8

RC
P

29
.6

4
0.

23
44

.1
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
85

4
CM

P
20

9.
63

1.
84

23
5.

02
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
11

69
6

CM
P

24
.3

6
1.

25
24

.4
7

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

29
33

3
CM

P
4.

17
0.

06
15

.7
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
84

9
RC

P
17

5.
39

0.
36

32
0.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

04
1

CM
P

61
.4

1
0.

26
12

4.
82

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
56

4
CM

P
61

.1
8

0.
21

12
4.

47
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

27
1

RC
P

66
.7

7
0.

24
13

2.
98

9
1

RE
CT

_C
LO

SE
D

0.
01

74
8

RC
B

13
3.

53
0.

3
24

4.
76

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
71

6
RC

P
65

.3
7

0.
15

13
3.

67
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

34
9

CM
P

0.
42

0.
01

0.
56

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

16
12

9
CM

P
1.

05
0.

02
1.

59
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

84
RC

P
17

5.
48

0.
2

32
0.

25
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

68
7

CM
P

19
0.

43
0.

7
21

8.
69

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
34

3
RC

P
31

.9
8

0.
82

33
.2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
20

6
RC

P
22

.4
0.

49
29

.4
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
33

8
RC

P
18

.6
7

0.
48

20
.7

8
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

3
HD

PE
4.

53
0.

18
7.

7
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

30
4

HD
PE

4.
53

0.
18

7.
7

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
50

7
HD

PE
4.

51
0.

09
7.

68
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

26
5

RC
P

24
0.

96
0.

41
45

4.
16

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
-0

.0
06

51
RC

P
35

.4
7

1.
94

29
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

81
RC

P
7.

92
0.

05
10

.0
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
86

8
CM

P
1.

31
0.

25
1.

27
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

-0
.0

00
7

RC
P

22
.1

8
0.

84
28

.8
7

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
48

2
RC

P
63

.3
5

0.
36

10
6.

49
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
31

21
5

RC
P

63
.3

4
0.

08
10

6.
49

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
40

7
HD

PE
3.

46
0.

08
5.

66
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

25
7

RC
P

29
.1

1
0.

31
49

.0
3

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

02
04

9
Co

nc
re

te
33

8.
29

0.
13

41
1.

97
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
01

42
7

Co
nc

re
te

33
1.

66
0.

15
40

1.
61

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

00
49

5
Co

nc
re

te
33

7.
28

0.
26

40
2.

82
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
02

72
2

Co
nc

re
te

33
2.

05
0.

11
40

0.
84

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

05
10

9
Co

nc
re

te
12

1.
4

0.
03

17
7.

81
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
01

88
3

Co
nc

re
te

33
1.

19
0.

03
42

2.
15

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

07
35

1
RC

P
38

.6
6

0.
21

65
.0

3



(c
fs

)
(c

fs
)

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
49

5
AB

S
0.

78
0.

18
1.

27
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

87
7

CM
P

15
7.

31
1.

37
15

6.
07

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
02

6
CM

P
15

3.
27

1.
23

15
4.

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

38
7

CM
P

11
2.

34
0.

43
11

1.
85

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
95

CM
P

11
.2

0.
94

14
.0

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

69
2

RC
P

6.
37

0.
47

11
.1

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

96
5

AB
S

1.
41

0.
16

1.
52

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
98

8
RC

P
20

.9
0.

93
20

.8
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

84
2

CM
P

4.
81

0.
38

5.
06

8
1

RE
CT

_O
PE

N
0.

02
25

4
RC

B
22

9.
01

0.
39

43
7.

81
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
07

66
3

CM
P

12
.7

0.
81

12
.5

3
4.

6
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
42

9
CM

P
34

.0
5

1.
44

33
.6

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

13
3

CM
P

18
.7

9
0.

87
18

.6
8

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
01

9
CM

P
7.

95
0.

98
8.

54
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

18
2

CM
P

11
.9

8
0.

3
21

.7
7

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
22

2
CM

P
15

.3
2

0.
46

27
.4

1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

76
2

CM
P

11
.9

7
1.

27
11

.6
8

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
19

6
CM

P
9.

98
1.

18
12

.7
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
65

7
CM

P
4.

51
0.

62
7.

59
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

26
2

HD
PE

10
.4

6
2.

61
9.

84
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
08

02
5

CM
P

3.
38

0.
21

6.
17

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
41

9
RC

P
67

.8
6

0.
65

90
.9

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

23
8

RC
P

68
.8

9
0.

45
73

.7
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
20

7
CM

P
61

.4
7

1.
74

62
.7

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
10

59
2

RC
P

0.
55

0.
03

0.
96

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
03

9
CM

P
61

.3
7

0.
77

62
.6

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

17
4

RC
P

59
.9

7
3.

51
78

.0
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
64

6
RC

P
59

.9
5

0.
9

78
.0

9
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

13
2

RC
P

67
.5

1
0.

57
90

.5
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
93

7
RC

P
8.

13
0.

05
13

.4
9

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

07
01

8
HD

PE
0.

96
0.

1
1.

52
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

96
6

CM
P

15
2.

19
1.

26
15

3.
67

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
73

2
HD

PE
0.

63
0.

09
1.

01
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

52
7

RC
P

9.
46

0.
2

15
.9

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

67
2

RC
P

56
.5

1
0.

17
90

.1
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

55
13

8
RC

P
0.

79
0

1.
31

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
25

5
RC

P
54

.3
7

0.
14

83
.9

8
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

59
4

RC
P

3.
9

0.
04

6.
48

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

07
20

1
HD

PE
3.

66
0.

06
6.

11
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

68
5

RC
P

6.
4

0.
34

20
.9

8
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
02

97
6

Co
nc

re
te

0
0

0
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

43
2

CM
P

15
.2

7
0.

34
29

.4
4



(c
fs

)
(c

fs
)

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
99

8
PV

C
0.

24
0.

58
0.

42
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
10

04
3

Co
nc

re
te

0
0

0
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
09

15
Co

nc
re

te
0

0
0

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

20
00

8
RC

P
2.

66
0.

01
4.

41
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
07

00
2

CO
N

C
23

.1
1

0.
21

31
.2

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
02

87
8

Co
nc

re
te

15
.8

6
2.

6
19

.9
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
49

2
CO

N
C

21
.6

4
0.

25
28

.7
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
86

4
RC

P
16

.3
8

0.
24

29
.3

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

46
9

HD
PE

4.
01

0.
32

6.
87

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
42

6
N

ot
 m

od
el

ed
24

.2
9

0.
7

38
.2

2
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
04

21
9

O
th

er
0.

29
0.

04
0.

52
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
10

62
3

RC
P

4.
3

0.
13

7.
73

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
23

3
CM

P
24

.0
9

0.
53

37
.7

7
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
08

84
1

RC
P

8.
42

0.
27

14
.8

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
08

94
9

RC
P

10
.9

5
0.

35
19

.2
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

07
28

7
RC

P
7.

19
0.

25
12

.6
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
11

8
RC

P
16

.5
6

1.
49

23
.8

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

61
6

RC
P

16
.1

3
1.

96
20

.1
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
38

7
RC

P
12

.7
1.

03
12

.1
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
68

2
RC

P
15

.9
1

1.
17

16
.7

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
10

76
1

RC
P

18
.9

9
0.

55
31

.1
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
31

7
RC

P
3.

24
0.

27
8.

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
07

20
4

CM
P

15
.7

8
0.

26
23

.6
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
63

4
CM

P
2.

46
0.

2
4.

39
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
19

86
7

CO
N

C
0.

21
0

0.
34

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
61

1
CM

P
53

.7
8

1.
27

63
.8

8
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
01

34
1

CO
N

C
12

.5
1

0.
72

2.
31

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

04
95

1
O

th
er

1.
05

0.
01

2
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
17

94
5

O
th

er
1.

48
0.

02
2.

77
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

74
4

RC
P

22
.9

2
1.

17
36

.9
7

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

06
74

O
th

er
10

.6
8

0.
21

20
.4

5
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
03

53
9

O
th

er
0

0
0

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
77

7
RC

P
52

.4
6

0.
41

96
.5

1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

64
8

RC
P

1.
85

0.
22

2.
84

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

02
57

6
CO

N
C

0
0

0
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
33

92
2

CM
P

19
.2

7
0.

09
33

.5
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
45

6
RC

P
71

.6
8

0.
32

12
7.

18
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
10

04
8

RC
P

31
.5

9
0.

44
33

.0
7

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

10
36

7
CM

P
5.

25
0.

29
8.

95
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
08

46
8

O
th

er
3.

44
0.

01
6.

06
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
07

68
4

RC
P

6.
52

0.
22

11
.2

7
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

63
7

RC
P

6.
77

0.
4

11
.6

7



Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
In

fl
(1

00
-y

e

03
34

1.
40

3
0

34
4.

21
0

22
0.

37
YE

S
34

4.
41

0
24

8.
78

YE
S

34
4.

7
0

71
34

6.
77

1
0

34
6.

77
0

0
YE

S
34

6.
77

0
0.

01
YE

S
34

7.
93

0
75

34
7.

27
5

0
34

7.
27

0
0

YE
S

34
7.

28
0

0
YE

S
34

9.
03

0
25

32
9.

82
5

0
33

2.
46

0
33

8.
29

N
O

33
2.

69
0

41
1.

97
N

O
33

3.
3

0
92

32
8.

59
2

0
33

0.
6

0
33

7.
28

N
O

33
0.

79
0

40
3.

43
N

O
33

1.
5

0
49

32
6.

44
9

0
32

8.
25

0
33

1.
66

N
O

32
8.

4
0

40
1.

61
N

O
32

9.
36

0
74

32
2.

37
4

0
32

3.
28

0
33

2.
05

N
O

32
3.

45
0

40
3.

36
N

O
32

4.
14

0
01

30
3.

90
1

0
30

6.
01

0
33

6.
28

N
O

30
6.

42
0

49
8.

94
N

O
30

7.
76

0
49

44
2.

14
9

0
44

2.
3

0
0.

67
YE

S
44

2.
34

0
1.

21
YE

S
44

2.
4

0
27

39
8.

27
3

39
5.

5
0

24
.0

1
YE

S
39

5.
58

0
38

.9
5

YE
S

39
5.

62
0

63
40

7.
05

9
0

40
6.

66
0

0
YE

S
40

6.
66

0
0

YE
S

40
6.

66
0

38
37

9.
73

8
0

37
9.

89
0

4.
81

YE
S

37
9.

95
0

8.
3

YE
S

38
0.

03
0

.4
39

8.
92

9
11

.5
29

38
8.

88
0

17
5.

6
YE

S
38

9.
13

0
22

3.
11

YE
S

38
9.

9
0

.6
38

9.
57

5
5.

97
5

38
4.

59
0

17
5.

71
YE

S
38

4.
76

0
22

3.
18

YE
S

38
5.

28
0

01
35

2.
20

1
6.

5
34

6.
14

0
2.

5
YE

S
34

6.
28

0
4.

25
YE

S
34

6.
46

0
12

41
4.

41
2

0
41

4.
41

0
0

YE
S

41
4.

41
0

0
YE

S
41

4.
41

0
.5

31
4.

06
7

10
.5

67
30

4.
68

0
28

.2
N

O
30

5.
14

0
52

.2
5

N
O

30
5.

75
0

88
37

3.
33

5
0

37
4.

17
0

10
3.

49
YE

S
37

4.
71

0
18

4.
43

YE
S

37
5.

6
0

19
39

3.
91

9
7

38
8.

64
0

72
.2

9
YE

S
38

9.
35

0
12

8.
12

YE
S

39
0.

18
0

82
36

0.
28

2
0

36
0.

32
0.

04
0.

04
YE

S
36

0.
33

0.
06

0.
06

YE
S

36
0.

35
0.

09
51

35
5.

65
1

0
36

0.
69

1.
44

13
.7

YE
S

36
0.

7
2.

41
13

.8
4

YE
S

36
0.

7
4.

06
46

35
4.

44
6

0
36

0.
08

0
13

5.
93

YE
S

36
0.

32
0

19
4.

64
YE

S
36

0.
58

0
63

35
7.

96
3

9
34

9.
68

0
25

.2
3

YE
S

34
9.

91
0

44
.5

7
YE

S
35

0.
42

0
25

34
8.

92
5

9
34

0.
92

0
30

.7
4

N
O

34
1.

54
0

81
.8

3
N

O
34

2.
58

0
74

37
3.

97
4

0
37

4.
44

11
.4

5
11

.4
5

YE
S

37
4.

6
20

.7
5

20
.7

5
YE

S
37

4.
82

37
.1

2
21

37
4.

02
1

0
37

4.
17

0
3.

52
YE

S
37

4.
21

0
6.

18
YE

S
37

4.
25

0
37

37
6.

54
8

0
37

7.
49

7.
43

10
.1

1
YE

S
37

7.
91

14
.0

1
18

.3
2

YE
S

37
8.

8
24

.4
2

97
40

8.
99

7
0

40
9.

14
0

1.
49

YE
S

40
9.

19
0

2.
77

YE
S

40
9.

25
0

59
40

7.
59

0
40

7.
9

0
2.

22
YE

S
40

8.
01

0
4.

04
YE

S
40

8.
16

0
09

44
3.

09
0

44
3.

22
0.

69
4.

85
YE

S
44

3.
24

1.
36

6.
29

YE
S

44
3.

26
2.

35
36

46
1.

22
6

0
46

2.
81

7.
06

7.
06

YE
S

46
2.

88
12

.7
5

12
.7

5
YE

S
46

2.
92

22
.6

3
58

45
7.

85
8

0
45

8.
37

0.
26

7.
29

YE
S

45
8.

42
0.

4
11

.9
1

YE
S

45
8.

51
0.

6
37

49
8.

61
3

0
49

9.
92

5.
17

17
.3

6
YE

S
50

0.
27

9.
42

9.
75

YE
S

50
0.

65
16

.5
1

02
48

0.
57

9
0

48
0.

9
2.

96
13

.0
4

YE
S

48
0.

95
5.

46
18

.9
1

YE
S

48
1

9.
4

94
49

0.
69

4
8

48
4.

47
0.

18
10

.9
4

YE
S

48
6.

57
0.

29
16

.2
4

YE
S

48
6.

78
0.

46
33

43
7.

46
5

4.
46

5
43

3.
51

2.
02

2.
68

YE
S

43
3.

66
3.

77
4.

44
YE

S
43

3.
85

6.
52

.7
37

5.
55

7
0.

55
7

37
4.

05
0

0.
05

YE
S

37
4.

27
0

0.
09

YE
S

37
4.

56
0

30
44

2.
83

5
12

.8
35

43
1.

54
0

77
.2

8
YE

S
43

1.
65

0
88

.8
3

YE
S

43
1.

88
0

11
41

8.
95

2
7.

95
2

41
6.

48
0

53
.8

YE
S

41
9.

21
0

63
.9

YE
S

42
1.

11
0

43
41

9.
74

3
0

42
0.

91
0.

98
32

.8
1

YE
S

42
1.

74
1.

58
47

.2
5

YE
S

42
4.

42
2.

52
59

44
9.

15
9

6
44

5.
44

0
9.

43
YE

S
44

6.
41

0
15

.7
3

YE
S

44
7.

58
0

95
44

4
99

5
5

44
5

37
0

11
48

YE
S

44
5

68
0

20
2

YE
S

44
6

08
0

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

 Ju
nc

tio
ns

 R
es

ul
ts

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
 

10
-y

ea
r

10
0-

ye
ar



Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
In

fl
(1

00
-y

e

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

 Ju
nc

tio
ns

 R
es

ul
ts

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
 

10
-y

ea
r

10
0-

ye
ar

16
39

4.
71

6
7

39
0.

32
0

13
8.

92
YE

S
39

1.
28

0
23

6.
12

YE
S

39
5.

74
0

09
39

2.
30

9
0

39
4.

87
1.

67
12

5.
73

YE
S

39
6.

86
2.

69
15

2
YE

S
39

8.
62

4.
31

08
41

7.
20

8
5

41
7.

48
0

26
.7

1
YE

S
41

7.
77

0
37

.0
1

YE
S

41
7.

89
0

64
43

0.
76

4
0

43
1.

8
0

0.
16

YE
S

43
1.

81
0

0.
24

YE
S

43
1.

81
0

18
39

1.
01

8
0

39
5.

32
0

63
.3

YE
S

39
5.

7
0

10
4.

69
YE

S
39

5.
89

0
39

44
2.

47
5

0
44

3.
93

7.
4

7.
59

YE
S

44
4.

42
13

.4
9

13
.6

8
YE

S
44

4.
46

23
.3

1
06

41
6.

80
6

7
41

0.
91

11
.0

2
33

.8
YE

S
41

1.
19

20
.4

4
51

.4
2

YE
S

41
1.

48
36

.4
4

76
33

2.
69

1
0

33
4.

21
19

.2
8

19
.2

8
N

O
33

5.
14

33
.5

4
33

.5
4

N
O

33
5.

94
60

.2
93

33
0.

19
3

0
33

4.
65

18
.0

7
15

5.
71

N
O

33
5.

07
32

.1
4

17
0.

06
N

O
33

5.
59

57
.6

25
33

3.
38

9.
13

32
9.

23
0

13
1.

49
N

O
33

4.
39

0
34

4.
94

N
O

33
5.

17
0

33
38

2.
41

4.
08

38
0.

09
5.

29
48

.0
2

YE
S

38
2.

89
9.

27
60

.4
2

YE
S

38
3.

08
14

.8
5

13
39

1.
51

3
7.

5
38

6.
44

0
15

3.
96

YE
S

38
7.

61
0

26
1.

18
YE

S
39

1.
62

0
.5

38
6.

89
2

10
.3

92
37

9.
35

0
15

7.
38

YE
S

38
0.

29
0

27
7.

46
YE

S
38

2.
34

0
27

37
5.

50
4

0
37

7.
4

2.
39

37
.1

5
YE

S
37

7.
43

4.
27

55
.9

7
YE

S
37

7.
47

7.
09

89
41

2.
18

9
5.

5
40

7.
75

0
31

.8
3

YE
S

40
8.

06
0

49
.0

5
YE

S
40

8.
32

0
18

40
7.

41
8

7
40

1.
49

8.
02

37
.3

1
YE

S
40

1.
75

13
.4

2
57

.3
9

YE
S

40
2.

03
22

.5
5

22
39

6.
92

2
7

39
2.

69
0

45
.4

4
YE

S
39

4.
48

0
68

.3
2

YE
S

39
6.

05
0

01
39

7.
70

1
7

39
2.

7
0

38
.1

6
YE

S
39

4.
52

0
58

.4
6

YE
S

39
6.

11
0

83
39

5.
74

1
12

.7
41

38
5.

71
0

17
5.

93
YE

S
38

6.
89

0
32

1.
08

YE
S

39
0.

23
0

83
39

5.
86

4
10

.0
34

39
1.

78
0

20
9.

63
YE

S
39

3.
18

0
23

5.
04

YE
S

39
4.

65
0

87
39

7.
87

0
39

8.
19

2.
83

2.
83

YE
S

39
8.

25
4.

63
4.

63
YE

S
39

8.
32

7.
55

86
40

5.
75

0
40

4.
85

0
2.

97
YE

S
40

4.
87

0
5.

38
YE

S
40

4.
9

0
.3

38
0.

26
5.

96
37

6.
86

0
22

.6
YE

S
37

7.
89

0
29

.5
5

YE
S

37
8.

84
0

45
39

7.
45

8
39

4.
85

0
16

5.
65

YE
S

39
6.

41
0

16
7.

18
YE

S
39

7.
5

0
24

39
7.

97
4

7.
75

39
6.

02
0

15
3.

26
YE

S
39

7.
42

0
15

4.
59

YE
S

39
8.

38
0

29
40

1.
72

9
4

39
7.

95
0

0.
78

YE
S

39
8.

43
0

1.
27

YE
S

40
0.

29
0

64
40

1.
21

4
7.

75
40

1.
33

0
15

7.
39

YE
S

40
1.

83
0

15
6.

06
YE

S
40

2.
01

0
.6

41
6.

35
9

6.
75

9
41

6.
64

0
61

.4
9

YE
S

41
6.

75
0

62
.7

4
YE

S
41

6.
86

0
17

42
5.

11
7

0
42

5.
59

4.
06

8.
15

YE
S

42
5.

73
6.

77
13

.5
2

YE
S

42
5.

9
11

93
33

3.
49

3
0

33
7.

27
0.

11
46

.7
7

N
O

33
7.

9
0.

17
72

.4
2

N
O

33
8.

25
0.

28
29

39
8.

95
1

16
.6

61
38

3.
65

0
50

.7
YE

S
38

4.
16

0
85

.5
YE

S
38

9.
63

0
73

44
1.

73
9

43
3.

36
0

5.
12

YE
S

43
3.

59
0

8.
84

YE
S

52
1.

31
0

91
45

9.
58

5
8.

67
5

45
1.

29
0

2.
23

YE
S

45
1.

42
0

3.
92

YE
S

52
9.

36
0

38
45

5.
65

2
8.

27
2

44
7.

73
0

2.
22

YE
S

44
7.

85
0

3.
91

YE
S

52
9.

99
0

24
44

2.
71

6
6.

47
6

43
6.

6
0

3.
1

YE
S

43
6.

72
0

5.
45

YE
S

52
4.

35
0

82
44

2.
08

7.
26

43
5.

28
0

4.
93

YE
S

43
5.

46
0

8.
82

YE
S

50
5.

64
0

92
44

7.
81

8
10

.8
98

43
7.

49
0

9.
12

YE
S

43
7.

69
0

15
.8

9
YE

S
51

3.
44

0
82

44
8.

26
2

8.
44

2
44

0.
16

0
2.

21
YE

S
44

0.
28

0
3.

9
YE

S
52

7.
32

0
.1

46
2.

78
6

9.
68

6
45

3.
45

0
2.

24
YE

S
45

3.
57

0
3.

93
YE

S
53

4.
18

0
04

44
9.

18
6

6.
14

6
44

3.
39

0
2.

21
YE

S
44

3.
5

0
3.

9
YE

S
52

6.
65

0
10

42
1.

92
7

11
.9

27
41

0.
16

0
0.

62
YE

S
41

0.
2

0
0.

98
YE

S
46

1.
18

0
09

43
9

89
6

0
43

9
99

0
2

84
YE

S
44

0
01

0
3

61
YE

S
44

0
03

0



Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
In

fl
(1

00
-y

e

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

 Ju
nc

tio
ns

 R
es

ul
ts

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
 

10
-y

ea
r

10
0-

ye
ar

43
45

4.
34

3
0

45
4.

44
0

2.
11

YE
S

45
4.

5
0

4.
14

YE
S

45
4.

54
0

92
35

0.
39

2
0

35
0.

39
0

0
YE

S
35

0.
39

0
0

YE
S

35
0.

39
0

97
44

5.
99

7
0

44
6.

37
0

6.
22

YE
S

44
6.

43
0

10
.5

9
YE

S
44

6.
51

0
32

28
5.

76
8

0
29

0.
63

0
35

8.
12

N
O

29
0.

85
0

43
5.

27
N

O
29

2.
2

0
02

43
1.

60
2

0
43

2.
09

0
15

.9
7

YE
S

43
2.

24
0

28
.0

4
YE

S
43

2.
43

0
35

27
6.

63
5

0
28

0.
01

0
55

7.
07

N
O

28
0.

48
0

91
5.

67
N

O
28

1.
11

0
33

28
5.

23
3

0
28

7.
73

0
54

3.
82

N
O

28
8.

39
0

91
0.

95
N

O
28

9.
76

0
03

31
9.

99
3

0
31

1.
89

0
0.

91
N

O
31

1.
9

0
1.

52
N

O
31

1.
95

0
45

42
9.

40
7

0
42

9.
51

0
1.

98
YE

S
42

9.
64

0
5.

27
YE

S
42

9.
83

0
31

31
6.

03
1

0
31

7.
95

0
35

6.
04

N
O

31
8.

19
0

44
8.

71
N

O
31

9
0

83
42

5.
58

3
0

42
5.

64
0

4.
1

YE
S

42
5.

66
0

6.
62

YE
S

42
5.

69
0

81
43

1.
88

1
0

43
4.

27
0

45
.7

4
YE

S
43

5.
2

0
79

.4
1

YE
S

43
6.

85
0

01
42

5.
70

1
0

42
5.

75
0

1.
97

YE
S

42
5.

76
0

3.
12

YE
S

42
5.

78
0

29
39

2.
82

9
0

39
3.

01
0

43
.1

2
YE

S
39

3.
04

0
54

.1
YE

S
39

3.
06

0
08

43
7.

94
3

4.
53

5
43

3.
56

0
44

.5
1

YE
S

43
3.

56
0

45
.2

9
YE

S
43

3.
56

0
49

30
7.

49
0

31
1.

5
0

53
.6

6
N

O
31

2
0

13
5.

16
N

O
31

3.
26

0
26

42
9.

22
6

0
42

9.
56

0
8.

68
YE

S
42

9.
63

0
15

.4
4

YE
S

42
9.

73
0

54
40

9.
93

4
5.

18
40

5.
92

0
37

.4
9

YE
S

40
6.

24
0

59
.5

2
YE

S
40

6.
9

0
77

43
4.

82
5

0
43

4.
92

0
2.

54
YE

S
43

5
0

5.
25

YE
S

43
5.

06
0

37
41

4.
93

7
5

41
0.

03
0

0.
17

YE
S

41
1.

85
0

3.
11

YE
S

41
2.

3
0

82
42

2.
68

2
7

41
5.

75
0

0.
17

YE
S

41
5.

77
0

0.
27

YE
S

41
5.

79
0

.2
29

0.
41

9
3.

21
9

29
2.

45
0

18
.3

N
O

29
5.

6
0

24
.1

6
N

O
29

5.
98

0
17

29
2.

51
7

4.
5

29
3.

19
0

18
.9

9
N

O
29

4.
7

0
31

.1
3

N
O

29
5.

41
0

25
39

2.
02

5
1

39
2.

84
0

25
.6

6
YE

S
39

3.
04

0
36

.2
YE

S
39

3.
22

0
40

44
1.

07
3

1.
07

3
44

0.
65

0
2.

54
YE

S
44

0.
7

0
4.

58
YE

S
44

0.
75

0
06

31
6.

50
6

5
31

1.
98

0.
26

10
.9

3
N

O
31

2.
16

0.
4

20
.8

3
N

O
31

2.
34

0.
61

28
35

1.
45

9
0

35
1.

28
0

0.
02

YE
S

35
1.

29
0

0.
02

YE
S

35
1.

29
0

35
30

4.
93

5
3.

5
30

3
0

3.
21

N
O

30
3.

62
0

3.
72

N
O

30
6.

13
0

54
35

4.
56

6
0.

56
6

35
4.

01
0

0.
04

YE
S

35
4.

01
0

0.
14

YE
S

35
4.

02
0

35
41

4.
19

2
0

41
4.

07
0

0.
71

YE
S

41
4.

08
0

1.
13

YE
S

41
4.

1
0

47
43

8.
34

7
0

43
8.

37
0

0.
32

YE
S

43
8.

38
0

0.
54

YE
S

43
8.

39
0

44
44

8.
44

4
0

44
8.

62
0

0.
71

YE
S

44
8.

68
0

1.
26

YE
S

44
8.

74
0

35
44

3.
33

5
0

44
3.

56
0

0.
69

YE
S

44
3.

63
0

1.
24

YE
S

44
3.

71
0

31
40

0.
33

1
0

40
1.

55
0

15
.9

2
YE

S
40

2.
29

0
27

.8
5

YE
S

41
1.

94
0

13
41

4.
25

9
1.

25
9

41
5.

03
0

17
.0

1
YE

S
41

5.
19

0
29

.8
8

YE
S

41
5.

44
0

29
41

3.
87

7
0

41
4.

08
0

18
.2

6
YE

S
41

4.
15

0
24

.7
4

YE
S

41
4.

26
0

46
43

9.
24

6
11

.5
42

9.
09

0
15

.3
9

YE
S

42
9.

65
0

27
.4

3
YE

S
43

5.
42

0
77

43
7.

07
7

6
43

1.
08

0
0

YE
S

43
1.

08
0

0
YE

S
43

4.
87

0
76

43
6.

67
6

5
43

1.
68

0
0

YE
S

43
1.

68
0

0
YE

S
43

4.
83

0
05

43
7.

80
5

0
43

7.
85

0
0.

58
YE

S
43

7.
86

0
0.

97
YE

S
43

7.
88

0
13

43
3.

27
5

0
43

2.
53

0
10

.9
9

YE
S

43
2.

55
0

14
.3

YE
S

43
2.

58
0

06
47

6
12

3
6

91
7

46
9

96
0

5
49

YE
S

47
0

68
0

9
06

YE
S

47
3

81
0



Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
In

fl
(1

00
-y

e

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

 Ju
nc

tio
ns

 R
es

ul
ts

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
 

10
-y

ea
r

10
0-

ye
ar

12
49

5.
58

6
9.

67
4

48
6.

34
0

13
.1

YE
S

48
6.

51
0

25
.5

6
YE

S
48

6.
76

0
.5

28
3.

03
7

5.
53

7
28

2.
57

0
22

.5
1

N
O

28
2.

88
0

24
.1

1
N

O
28

3.
67

0
.2

28
2.

04
5

4.
84

5
28

2.
33

0
22

.5
1

N
O

28
2.

67
0

22
.8

1
N

O
28

3.
43

0
49

30
6.

84
9

0
30

8.
97

0
33

3.
62

N
O

30
9.

38
0

50
4.

24
N

O
31

0.
61

0
86

45
9.

93
7

0.
75

1
45

9.
22

0
1.

93
YE

S
45

9.
24

0
3.

15
YE

S
45

9.
25

0
08

49
4.

57
55

.4
62

43
9.

36
0

2.
27

YE
S

43
9.

43
0

3.
57

YE
S

43
9.

51
0

79
48

0.
00

9
1.

00
9

47
9

0
0

YE
S

47
9

0
0

YE
S

47
9

0
21

43
3.

10
5

7.
08

4
42

6.
62

0
4.

12
YE

S
42

6.
78

0
6.

67
YE

S
42

7.
01

0
95

48
3.

48
2

34
.2

87
44

9.
47

0
2.

28
YE

S
44

9.
53

0
3.

59
YE

S
44

9.
62

0
33

42
1.

53
3

6
41

5.
61

0
0.

32
YE

S
41

5.
63

0
0.

5
YE

S
41

5.
65

0
28

40
6.

28
13

39
3.

76
0

6.
39

YE
S

39
3.

9
0

10
.5

4
YE

S
39

4.
08

0
25

34
8.

92
5

0
34

9.
55

0
28

.2
9

YE
S

34
9.

83
0

53
.9

3
YE

S
35

0.
17

0
66

44
9.

40
7

13
.1

41
43

7.
97

0.
59

40
.3

2
YE

S
44

3.
11

0.
92

51
.9

YE
S

44
2.

95
1.

42
82

45
0.

58
2

5
44

5.
85

0
3.

42
YE

S
44

5.
93

0
5.

79
YE

S
44

6.
03

0
66

44
3.

86
7

11
.0

01
43

4.
56

0
40

.1
8

YE
S

43
6.

03
0

49
.6

7
YE

S
43

6.
63

0
07

44
7.

07
5

44
2.

19
0

0.
48

YE
S

44
2.

22
0

0.
75

YE
S

44
2.

25
0

44
47

9.
04

7
0.

54
7

47
8.

34
0

0
YE

S
47

8.
34

0
0

YE
S

47
8.

34
0

57
42

0.
95

7
7

41
5

0
43

.1
8

YE
S

41
5.

13
0

54
.1

2
YE

S
41

5.
21

0
53

41
1.

53
7

40
5.

7
0

43
.1

3
YE

S
40

5.
84

0
54

.1
YE

S
40

5.
92

0
97

43
9.

19
7

4
44

3.
51

0
5.

88
YE

S
44

4.
68

0
10

.8
YE

S
44

7.
01

0
45

33
6.

40
9

0
33

7.
91

0
17

.5
5

N
O

33
8.

04
0

35
.5

N
O

33
8.

74
0

67
49

2.
56

7
0

49
2.

74
0

0.
5

YE
S

49
2.

75
0

0.
61

YE
S

49
2.

78
0

54
36

3.
99

8
9.

99
8

35
4.

42
0

12
.9

4
YE

S
35

4.
56

0
22

.7
2

YE
S

35
4.

74
0

45
33

1.
94

5
5

32
7.

37
0

12
.9

5
N

O
32

7.
52

0
22

.7
4

N
O

32
7.

7
0

46
32

4.
54

6
5

31
9.

99
0

12
.8

9
N

O
32

0.
16

0
25

.2
7

N
O

32
0.

33
0

33
31

3.
03

3
5

31
1.

65
0

12
.8

9
N

O
31

2.
08

0
24

.4
9

N
O

31
3.

83
0

72
49

0.
41

9
0

49
0

0
0.

55
YE

S
49

0.
01

0
0.

99
YE

S
49

0.
03

0
55

32
4.

95
5

5
32

1.
22

0
12

.9
5

N
O

32
1.

8
0

22
.7

3
N

O
32

2.
93

0
16

40
6.

11
6

0
40

6.
17

0
1.

32
YE

S
40

6.
19

0
2.

36
YE

S
40

6.
23

0
26

37
5.

22
6

0
37

5.
69

0
2.

81
YE

S
37

5.
82

0
4.

46
YE

S
37

5.
99

0
62

43
6.

77
3

7.
15

3
43

0.
28

0
9.

81
YE

S
43

0.
55

0
17

.6
4

YE
S

49
6.

71
0

.2
41

6.
52

2
14

.3
22

40
3.

65
0

46
.6

1
YE

S
40

4.
49

0
79

.1
4

YE
S

44
1.

78
0

.8
43

7.
23

3
15

.4
33

42
2.

76
0

24
.6

3
YE

S
42

3.
55

0
41

.8
3

YE
S

50
2.

57
0

26
43

8.
12

6
8.

5
43

0.
38

0
12

.9
3

YE
S

43
0.

88
0

21
.7

YE
S

43
5.

79
0

31
44

7.
83

1
4.

5
44

3.
71

0
2.

55
YE

S
44

3.
83

0
4.

46
YE

S
44

3.
99

0
85

46
9.

88
5

7.
5

46
2.

67
0

2.
56

YE
S

46
2.

76
0

4.
48

YE
S

46
2.

87
0

64
42

3.
76

4
4.

5
42

1.
69

0
12

.7
9

YE
S

42
5.

01
0

20
.7

4
YE

S
42

5.
77

0
38

45
0.

13
8

3
44

9.
97

0
19

.0
3

YE
S

45
0.

02
0

27
.6

7
YE

S
45

0.
07

0
.8

42
2.

62
1

6.
82

1
41

6.
91

0
12

.9
2

YE
S

42
1.

05
0

15
.9

9
YE

S
42

3.
2

0
76

41
9.

87
6

16
.5

40
8.

43
0

22
.1

8
YE

S
41

4.
27

0
31

.3
7

YE
S

41
8.

97
0

33
41

1.
53

3
4.

5
40

8.
6

0
1.

86
YE

S
41

5.
94

0
3.

91
YE

S
42

1.
22

0
4

43
3

95
7

20
55

7
41

5
02

0
36

89
YE

S
42

5
63

0
63

15
YE

S
48

7
15

0



Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
In

fl
(1

00
-y

e

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

 Ju
nc

tio
ns

 R
es

ul
ts

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
 

10
-y

ea
r

10
0-

ye
ar

93
35

7.
79

3
4.

5
35

3.
68

3.
44

3.
44

YE
S

35
3.

82
6.

16
6.

16
YE

S
35

4.
01

10
.6

3
27

32
9.

42
7

3
32

6.
71

0.
71

0.
71

N
O

32
6.

8
1.

22
1.

22
N

O
32

6.
9

1.
95

91
44

1.
85

0
44

1.
91

0.
72

0.
72

YE
S

44
1.

92
1.

23
1.

23
YE

S
44

1.
93

1.
97

19
45

1.
81

9
0

45
1.

83
0.

5
0.

5
YE

S
45

1.
84

0.
87

0.
87

YE
S

45
1.

84
1.

4
04

50
6.

22
2

2.
22

2
50

4
0

0
YE

S
50

4
0

0
YE

S
50

4
0

73
41

8.
86

9
0

41
9.

03
0.

18
0.

18
YE

S
41

9.
05

0.
27

0.
27

YE
S

41
9.

09
0.

42
61

37
2.

76
1

5.
5

37
0.

07
2.

83
56

.1
3

YE
S

37
2.

81
4.

64
97

.9
5

YE
S

37
3.

14
7.

33
41

42
6.

44
1

7
41

9.
44

0
0

YE
S

42
0.

31
0

5.
27

YE
S

42
6.

71
0

18
42

6.
00

9
8.

00
9

41
8

0
0

YE
S

41
8.

34
0

6.
06

YE
S

41
8.

77
0

85
31

4.
08

5
3.

5
31

1.
06

3.
39

3.
39

N
O

31
1.

18
5.

47
5.

47
N

O
31

1.
33

8.
64

37
37

5.
63

7
5.

5
37

0.
92

1.
8

23
.1

3
YE

S
37

1.
05

2.
98

31
.2

1
YE

S
37

1.
17

4.
87

01
37

4.
52

4
0

37
2.

63
1.

69
1.

69
YE

S
37

2.
64

2.
8

2.
8

YE
S

37
2.

65
4.

58
14

37
2.

14
0

37
4.

57
2.

71
21

.6
6

YE
S

37
5.

16
4.

26
28

.8
2

YE
S

37
5.

71
6.

67
11

30
4.

81
1

4.
5

30
1.

11
0.

9
19

.0
4

N
O

30
4.

77
1.

49
33

.2
9

N
O

30
6.

98
2.

39
14

49
9.

01
4

0
49

9.
92

0
25

.3
5

YE
S

50
0.

27
0

4.
87

YE
S

50
0.

65
0

58
31

3.
85

8
4.

5
30

9.
89

8.
43

8.
43

N
O

31
0.

09
14

.8
7

14
.8

7
N

O
31

3.
55

25
.4

9
82

31
4.

38
2

4.
5

31
0.

24
4.

3
4.

3
N

O
31

0.
37

7.
74

7.
74

N
O

31
0.

85
13

.3
2

17
31

0.
81

7
4.

5
30

6.
93

2.
55

10
.9

7
N

O
30

7.
32

4.
61

19
.4

7
N

O
31

1.
66

8.
09

18
31

0.
71

8
4.

5
30

6.
73

2.
92

7.
21

N
O

30
7.

01
5.

07
12

.8
N

O
31

0.
18

8.
99

.7
29

1.
38

6
4.

68
6

29
0.

55
0.

46
16

.7
6

N
O

29
0.

95
0.

75
23

.4
9

N
O

29
2.

45
1.

24
21

29
1.

02
1

3.
5

29
2.

47
4.

46
4.

46
N

O
29

4.
41

7.
35

7.
35

N
O

29
5.

33
11

.6
7

04
29

0.
10

4
3.

5
29

0.
36

1.
99

26
.7

6
N

O
29

0.
65

3.
45

55
.7

3
N

O
29

2.
47

5.
79

08
33

2.
60

8
3

33
0.

55
13

.4
9

13
.4

9
N

O
33

0.
95

23
.6

2
23

.6
2

N
O

33
2.

22
42

.3
2

82
30

6.
68

2
3

30
4.

16
7.

68
8.

5
N

O
30

4.
33

13
.4

3
15

.0
9

N
O

30
4.

58
23

.1
9

67
45

4.
91

0
45

4.
65

0
7.

24
YE

S
45

4.
67

0
11

.9
3

YE
S

45
4.

72
0

27
30

5.
72

7
5

30
1.

38
0.

45
6.

78
N

O
30

1.
64

0.
73

11
.6

7
N

O
30

5.
51

1.
17

22
30

4.
52

2
5

29
9.

93
3.

52
3.

52
N

O
30

0.
04

5.
72

5.
72

N
O

30
0.

18
9.

1
53

30
1.

45
3

5
29

7.
1

4.
08

7.
57

N
O

29
7.

29
6.

48
12

.1
6

N
O

29
7.

55
10

.2
6

45
30

1.
45

5
29

7.
35

0.
72

7.
04

N
O

29
7.

7
1.

1
12

.1
3

N
O

29
8.

06
1.

68
06

43
5.

30
6

2
43

4.
62

8.
92

11
.2

9
YE

S
44

0.
96

15
.5

7
19

.8
7

YE
S

45
0.

82
26

.3
39

43
7.

33
9

5
43

4.
01

4.
25

15
.4

4
YE

S
44

0.
09

7.
17

27
.0

4
YE

S
44

6.
56

11
.8

4
38

45
0.

43
8

5.
5

44
5.

57
0.

7
15

.2
4

YE
S

44
5.

8
1.

13
28

.9
1

YE
S

44
6.

13
1.

79
05

47
5.

20
5

5
47

0.
72

2.
66

2.
66

YE
S

47
0.

89
4.

41
4.

41
YE

S
47

3.
96

7.
16

29
44

1.
50

3
12

.5
03

42
9.

57
0

4.
54

YE
S

42
9.

75
0

7.
69

YE
S

42
9.

95
0

27
47

5.
58

8
5.

86
1

47
0.

28
0.

3
2.

95
YE

S
47

0.
73

0.
47

4.
86

YE
S

47
3.

9
0.

72
47

47
5.

74
7

5
47

1.
51

7.
27

7.
27

YE
S

47
1.

79
12

.5
6

12
.5

6
YE

S
47

4.
86

20
.7

5
45

47
4.

84
5

5
47

0.
32

2.
58

2.
58

YE
S

47
0.

73
4.

29
4.

29
YE

S
47

3.
89

6.
98

35
47

4.
76

3
6.

42
8

46
9.

46
0.

4
14

.3
8

YE
S

47
0.

56
0.

63
24

.0
7

YE
S

47
3.

38
1

45
47

6.
33

9
6.

88
9

47
0.

23
0.

44
7.

71
YE

S
47

0.
72

0.
67

13
.2

3
YE

S
47

4.
04

1.
01

37
47

2.
03

7
3

46
9.

52
0.

97
0.

97
YE

S
47

0.
6

1.
5

1.
5

YE
S

47
2.

58
2.

32
88

47
5.

98
8

4.
5

47
1.

68
1.

09
1.

09
YE

S
47

1.
73

1.
7

1.
7

YE
S

47
1.

79
2.

61
42

47
2

23
4

6
49

2
46

7
03

2
45

18
88

YE
S

46
9

93
4

01
30

54
YE

S
47

1
3

6
38



Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
In

fl
(1

00
-y

e

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

 Ju
nc

tio
ns

 R
es

ul
ts

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
 

10
-y

ea
r

10
0-

ye
ar

02
47

9.
88

4
0

46
0.

42
0

0.
12

YE
S

46
0.

42
0

0.
22

YE
S

46
0.

43
0

45
47

3.
74

5
5

46
8.

97
1.

73
1.

73
YE

S
46

9.
03

2.
69

2.
69

YE
S

46
9.

79
4.

17
95

46
8.

95
5

46
4.

89
1.

35
1.

35
YE

S
46

9.
01

2.
12

2.
38

YE
S

46
9.

83
3.

29
33

47
4.

53
3

4.
5

47
1.

11
28

.8
8

28
.8

8
YE

S
47

4.
65

50
.6

5
50

.6
5

YE
S

47
4.

75
81

.0
8

74
46

7.
93

2
8.

35
8

46
3.

75
2.

14
61

.8
5

YE
S

46
7.

55
3.

44
80

.7
3

YE
S

46
8.

16
5.

46
71

49
3.

67
1

5
48

9.
48

0.
32

13
.1

YE
S

48
9.

84
0.

51
25

.5
4

YE
S

49
4.

12
0.

79
64

46
6.

56
4

9
46

3.
57

1.
98

54
.3

YE
S

46
7.

26
3.

08
78

.5
2

YE
S

46
7.

89
4.

76
95

29
0.

79
5

5
28

6.
3

8.
97

12
.5

1
N

O
28

6.
46

15
.3

1
21

.8
6

N
O

28
6.

76
25

.2
7

31
29

3.
63

7
0

29
3.

19
4.

78
4.

78
N

O
29

3.
21

8.
82

8.
82

N
O

29
3.

24
15

.1
3

44
28

5.
84

4
5

28
2.

6
0.

07
13

.6
1

N
O

28
3.

16
0.

1
23

.8
8

N
O

28
4.

52
0.

15
88

39
1.

38
6

1.
50

6
39

1.
49

0
14

4.
75

YE
S

39
1.

62
0

15
3.

3
YE

S
39

2.
07

0
29

32
3.

42
9

5
31

8.
6

1.
63

1.
63

N
O

31
8.

65
2.

8
2.

8
N

O
31

8.
71

4.
72

75
35

6.
07

5
5

35
1.

2
0.

92
0.

92
YE

S
35

1.
24

1.
53

1.
53

YE
S

35
1.

28
2.

49
71

36
7.

87
1

5
36

3
1.

08
1.

08
YE

S
36

3.
04

1.
84

1.
84

YE
S

36
3.

09
3.

08
19

46
9.

69
4.

5
46

5.
5

1.
31

1.
31

YE
S

46
5.

6
2.

33
2.

33
YE

S
46

5.
73

3.
96

56
47

0.
05

6
5.

5
46

4.
86

1.
25

2.
56

YE
S

46
4.

95
2.

15
4.

47
YE

S
46

5.
07

3.
56

66
44

2.
66

6
4.

5
43

8.
73

0.
82

3.
3

YE
S

43
8.

93
1.

32
5.

68
YE

S
44

0.
6

2.
13

83
44

0.
48

3
6.

5
43

4.
66

0
6.

49
YE

S
43

4.
92

0
11

.2
3

YE
S

43
8.

94
0

79
43

9.
37

9
4.

5
43

5.
45

3.
45

3.
45

YE
S

43
5.

66
5.

91
5.

91
YE

S
43

9.
27

9.
86

03
46

5.
00

3
4.

5
46

0.
69

1.
27

1.
27

YE
S

46
0.

75
2.

14
2.

14
YE

S
46

0.
81

3.
41

32
43

5.
03

2
4.

5
43

1.
49

5.
47

5.
47

YE
S

43
2.

17
8.

95
8.

95
YE

S
43

7.
93

14
.3

1
73

42
1.

07
3

0
42

1.
4

0
26

.0
8

YE
S

42
1.

76
0

36
.7

2
YE

S
42

4.
42

0
.1

42
3.

22
2

6.
12

2
41

8.
18

1.
3

12
.9

1
YE

S
42

1.
98

2.
13

17
.2

9
YE

S
42

3.
8

3.
42

71
41

1.
97

1
4.

5
40

8.
57

0.
51

0.
64

YE
S

41
9.

25
0.

78
4.

16
YE

S
42

1.
2

1.
21

64
41

2.
14

4.
5

40
8.

59
1.

12
1.

12
YE

S
41

6.
02

1.
81

2.
45

YE
S

42
1.

2
2.

89
59

40
8.

95
9

3.
5

41
5.

2
3.

48
5.

06
YE

S
41

8.
64

5.
58

9.
03

YE
S

42
1.

07
8.

83
97

41
1.

11
9

14
.1

19
39

7.
66

1.
6

20
.9

9
YE

S
39

7.
76

2.
57

27
.0

7
YE

S
39

7.
95

4.
04

94
41

9.
79

4
0

42
0.

91
10

.2
1

26
.0

7
YE

S
42

1.
18

17
.4

9
37

.4
4

YE
S

42
1.

45
29

.2
9

52
47

4.
95

2
4.

5
47

0.
93

1.
52

1.
52

YE
S

47
1.

08
2.

52
2.

52
YE

S
47

1.
27

4.
09

12
47

4.
81

2
4.

5
47

0.
51

0.
41

2.
02

YE
S

47
0.

56
0.

63
3.

32
YE

S
47

0.
63

0.
97

83
50

2.
88

3
5

49
8.

5
12

.8
3

12
.8

3
YE

S
49

8.
77

25
.0

9
25

.0
9

YE
S

49
9.

2
47

.6
9

74
47

4.
67

4
5

46
9.

84
0.

78
0.

78
YE

S
46

9.
87

1.
22

1.
22

YE
S

46
9.

92
1.

9
97

42
2.

79
7

0
42

2.
9

0
6.

4
YE

S
42

2.
93

0
10

.6
8

YE
S

42
4.

42
0

.8
47

5.
71

8
9.

91
8

46
6.

05
0.

6
2.

05
YE

S
46

6.
12

0.
93

3.
23

YE
S

46
6.

19
1.

44
55

48
1.

55
5

47
6.

71
0.

17
0.

7
YE

S
47

6.
75

0.
26

1.
11

YE
S

47
6.

79
0.

4
55

48
5.

05
5

5
48

0.
2

0.
53

0.
53

YE
S

48
0.

24
0.

86
0.

86
YE

S
48

0.
29

1.
36

29
48

8.
29

5
48

3.
35

0.
27

0.
27

YE
S

48
3.

37
0.

43
0.

43
YE

S
48

3.
38

0.
66

76
43

1.
97

6
5

42
7.

37
1.

96
1.

96
YE

S
42

7.
49

3.
26

3.
26

YE
S

42
7.

65
5.

22
84

46
5.

88
4

7
46

3.
67

2.
24

57
.3

9
YE

S
46

7.
33

3.
63

83
.7

9
YE

S
46

7.
97

5.
78

76
44

2.
47

6
5

43
8

2.
52

2.
77

YE
S

43
8.

15
4.

09
4.

5
YE

S
43

8.
35

6.
55

29
44

6.
62

9
5

44
1.

73
0.

26
0.

26
YE

S
44

1.
75

0.
41

0.
41

YE
S

44
1.

78
0.

64
41

42
1

14
1

5
41

6
33

0
32

0
32

YE
S

41
6

38
0

51
0

51
YE

S
41

6
43

0
8



Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
In

fl
(1

00
-y

e

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

 Ju
nc

tio
ns

 R
es

ul
ts

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
 

10
-y

ea
r

10
0-

ye
ar

84
40

6.
78

4
12

39
5.

09
0.

28
2.

04
YE

S
39

7.
02

0.
43

12
.1

3
YE

S
40

2.
09

0.
66

15
40

8.
91

5
15

39
4.

26
0.

58
2.

6
YE

S
39

7.
15

0.
94

11
.9

3
YE

S
40

2.
15

1.
52

13
40

2.
71

3
7

39
6.

62
4.

38
6.

54
YE

S
39

6.
92

7.
22

10
.7

5
YE

S
39

7.
4

11
.7

1
09

40
1.

20
9

5
39

6.
71

2.
21

2.
21

YE
S

39
6.

98
3.

62
3.

62
YE

S
39

7.
45

5.
88

99
40

4.
99

9
15

39
1.

24
2.

93
48

.1
7

YE
S

39
1.

71
4.

64
84

.6
3

YE
S

39
2.

23
7.

31
18

39
3.

18
5

38
9.

17
8.

3
8.

3
YE

S
38

9.
55

14
.0

6
14

.0
6

YE
S

39
0.

72
23

.6
3

.2
39

5.
21

4
9.

01
4

38
6.

58
0.

58
10

.5
3

YE
S

38
6.

69
0.

96
17

.5
7

YE
S

38
6.

84
1.

57
.3

39
2.

92
5

5.
62

5
38

8.
27

1.
73

9.
99

YE
S

38
8.

61
2.

82
16

.8
1

YE
S

38
9.

17
4.

55
19

44
8.

01
9

4.
5

44
3.

62
0.

33
0.

33
YE

S
44

3.
65

0.
52

0.
52

YE
S

44
3.

68
0.

82
.4

43
5.

59
9

3.
19

9
43

5.
23

0.
98

0.
98

YE
S

43
5.

36
1.

64
1.

64
YE

S
43

6.
85

2.
69

13
45

4.
46

5
0

45
2.

71
0

0
YE

S
45

2.
71

0
0

YE
S

45
2.

71
0

32
43

4.
95

9
2.

95
9

43
5.

22
46

.9
6

47
.9

2
YE

S
43

5.
34

84
.2

6
85

.9
YE

S
43

6.
85

13
7.

2
03

43
0.

90
3

5
42

6.
29

0.
49

1.
98

YE
S

42
6.

39
0.

78
3.

13
YE

S
42

6.
51

1.
24

88
41

2.
18

8
0

41
2.

8
0.

28
2.

67
YE

S
41

3.
04

0.
43

4.
2

YE
S

41
4.

33
0.

65
83

41
5.

88
3

3
41

3.
06

0.
29

0.
29

YE
S

41
3.

1
0.

45
0.

45
YE

S
41

4.
36

0.
69

38
43

3.
43

8
5

42
8.

6
0.

4
0.

4
YE

S
42

8.
64

0.
64

0.
64

YE
S

42
8.

68
1

16
41

3.
31

6
0

41
3.

53
0.

41
1.

07
YE

S
41

3.
58

0.
64

1.
69

YE
S

41
4.

33
0.

99
83

43
4.

83
7

42
8.

09
1.

1
1.

5
YE

S
42

8.
15

1.
73

2.
37

YE
S

42
8.

23
2.

71
77

50
1.

67
7

0
50

2.
25

10
.2

4
10

.2
4

YE
S

50
2.

46
18

.6
6

18
.6

6
YE

S
50

2.
75

32
.2

5
74

44
5.

07
4

5
44

0.
23

0.
35

0.
35

YE
S

44
1.

61
0.

54
4.

23
YE

S
44

3
0.

82
33

43
9.

43
3

5
43

4.
65

1.
42

1.
42

YE
S

43
4.

7
2.

29
2.

29
YE

S
43

4.
77

3.
65

79
43

5.
77

9
5

43
1.

6
0.

95
41

.9
1

YE
S

43
1.

7
1.

49
52

.1
4

YE
S

43
1.

76
2.

31
33

43
5.

85
5

2.
85

5
43

3.
19

0.
67

1.
15

YE
S

43
3.

23
1.

03
1.

76
YE

S
43

3.
28

1.
56

72
44

4.
45

6
5.

48
4

44
0.

51
0.

3
36

.3
2

YE
S

44
5.

19
0.

49
59

.0
6

YE
S

44
6.

1
0.

72
77

45
1.

57
7

5
44

6.
98

3.
41

3.
41

YE
S

44
7.

1
5.

78
5.

78
YE

S
44

7.
25

9.
6

52
44

5.
95

2
5

44
1.

37
3.

71
3.

71
YE

S
44

5.
22

6.
3

6.
3

YE
S

44
6.

14
10

.4
7

32
45

3.
43

2
5.

5
44

8.
18

1.
69

1.
69

YE
S

44
8.

25
2.

84
2.

84
YE

S
44

8.
34

4.
68

96
45

0.
34

2
7.

34
6

44
4.

02
2.

14
30

.8
YE

S
44

6.
16

3.
56

50
.5

2
YE

S
46

3.
89

5.
81

89
45

0.
98

9
5

44
6.

09
0.

48
0.

48
YE

S
44

6.
12

0.
75

0.
75

YE
S

44
6.

15
1.

15
45

45
4.

07
20

.5
25

44
1.

82
0.

33
44

.5
7

YE
S

44
2.

11
0.

53
45

.3
8

YE
S

44
2.

42
0.

84
19

44
1.

45
6

7.
83

7
44

2.
53

10
5.

11
11

1.
28

YE
S

44
2.

82
18

3.
78

18
3.

78
YE

S
44

3.
15

31
5.

85
87

43
6.

28
7

0
43

9.
4

0
8.

92
YE

S
43

9.
4

0
10

.1
2

YE
S

43
9.

41
0

85
44

2.
22

6
8.

44
1

44
2.

55
2.

24
20

.8
9

YE
S

44
2.

75
3.

6
40

.4
3

YE
S

44
3.

07
5.

72
15

44
8.

69
5

14
.4

8
44

3.
33

0.
43

18
.7

9
YE

S
44

4.
79

0.
67

30
.9

1
YE

S
44

8.
05

1.
04

97
45

3.
45

5
19

.1
58

44
3.

47
0.

17
18

.3
5

YE
S

44
5.

14
0.

29
30

.2
2

YE
S

44
8.

94
0.

46
39

44
1.

53
9

5
44

4.
06

9.
28

9.
28

YE
S

44
6.

62
15

.6
6

15
.6

6
YE

S
45

2.
71

25
.7

8
39

44
2.

21
8

7.
57

9
44

3.
95

0.
41

9.
69

YE
S

44
6.

33
0.

62
16

.2
9

YE
S

45
1.

93
0.

94
21

44
5.

12
9

10
.7

08
44

3.
7

1.
08

18
.1

7
YE

S
44

5.
75

1.
76

29
.9

4
YE

S
45

0.
42

2.
82

94
44

6.
57

8
12

.0
84

44
3.

82
1.

29
17

.0
8

YE
S

44
6.

06
2.

01
28

.1
7

YE
S

45
1.

28
3.

12
73

43
8.

89
2

4.
11

9
44

3.
93

0.
44

3.
13

YE
S

44
6.

26
0.

67
6.

47
YE

S
45

1.
65

1.
02

91
43

7.
84

1
2.

93
1

44
3.

9
0.

48
3.

59
YE

S
44

6.
16

0.
73

7.
17

YE
S

45
1.

38
1.

12
99

43
7

49
9

2
5

44
3

56
2

28
5

87
YE

S
44

4
82

3
66

10
79

YE
S

44
7

37
5

8



Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
In

fl
(1

00
-y

e

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

 Ju
nc

tio
ns

 R
es

ul
ts

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
 

10
-y

ea
r

10
0-

ye
ar

86
47

8.
28

6
5.

5
47

3.
55

6.
02

6.
02

YE
S

47
3.

83
10

.7
1

10
.7

1
YE

S
47

4.
19

17
.9

4
47

45
7.

04
7

5
45

2.
28

0.
11

0.
67

YE
S

45
2.

34
0.

17
1.

08
YE

S
45

2.
41

0.
27

19
45

6.
19

5
45

1.
32

0.
16

0.
81

YE
S

45
1.

36
0.

26
1.

32
YE

S
45

1.
4

0.
4

.8
45

8.
15

2
5.

35
2

45
3.

01
0.

05
0.

57
YE

S
45

3.
07

0.
08

0.
92

YE
S

45
3.

13
0.

15
38

45
8.

63
8

5
45

3.
82

0.
48

0.
48

YE
S

45
3.

87
0.

77
0.

77
YE

S
45

3.
93

1.
23

83
45

8.
18

3
5

45
3.

42
0.

05
0.

52
YE

S
45

3.
48

0.
07

0.
84

YE
S

45
3.

56
0.

11
72

43
3.

07
2

5.
5

43
1.

62
16

.7
4

16
.7

4
YE

S
43

5.
26

30
.3

8
30

.3
8

YE
S

43
6.

99
54

.9
8

01
49

5.
50

1
0

49
5.

65
0.

53
0.

82
YE

S
49

5.
66

0.
86

0.
86

YE
S

49
5.

68
1.

33
.5

43
2.

56
2

8.
06

2
42

6.
42

0
53

.3
6

YE
S

43
3.

7
0

97
.2

YE
S

43
4.

68
0

04
45

0.
60

4
0

45
0.

74
0

3.
15

YE
S

45
0.

79
0

5.
35

YE
S

45
0.

86
0

54
37

6.
65

4
6

37
1.

91
24

.8
24

.8
YE

S
37

2.
36

41
.8

7
41

.8
7

YE
S

37
3.

17
69

.5
1

.6
40

2.
97

11
.3

7
39

2.
98

1.
86

48
.2

8
YE

S
39

3.
59

3.
11

81
.5

2
YE

S
40

7.
25

5.
11

39
39

8.
82

6
12

.4
36

38
7.

38
2.

67
50

.7
YE

S
38

7.
72

4.
45

85
.5

YE
S

39
3.

07
7.

32
.6

37
8.

94
1

6.
34

1
37

4.
41

0.
12

60
.5

7
YE

S
37

5.
08

0.
19

10
2.

09
YE

S
37

6.
39

0.
28

55
44

1.
67

6.
12

43
6.

15
4.

92
4.

92
YE

S
43

6.
39

8.
83

8.
83

YE
S

50
6.

41
15

.4
8

27
44

9.
52

4
8.

25
4

44
1.

68
4.

98
4.

98
YE

S
44

1.
82

8.
83

8.
83

YE
S

51
4.

46
15

.1
5

42
43

7.
45

7
7.

03
7

43
1.

6
5.

01
9.

9
YE

S
43

4.
15

8.
89

17
.6

4
YE

S
50

3.
92

15
.3

4
55

44
1.

86
7

8.
31

7
43

3.
81

0.
76

0.
76

YE
S

43
3.

89
1.

23
1.

23
YE

S
52

1.
91

1.
98

47
45

4.
61

6
7.

61
6

44
7.

63
2.

75
2.

75
YE

S
44

7.
86

4.
77

4.
77

YE
S

51
5.

62
7.

92
94

45
2.

22
9

7.
28

9
44

5.
33

0.
85

4.
19

YE
S

44
5.

45
1.

4
7.

15
YE

S
51

4.
82

2.
31

27
43

1.
23

3
4.

23
3

42
8.

6
0

9.
65

YE
S

42
8.

87
0

11
.5

6
YE

S
42

9.
21

0
68

44
3.

84
9

8.
16

9
43

5.
81

1.
18

1.
18

YE
S

43
5.

85
1.

88
1.

88
YE

S
50

5.
52

2.
96

07
44

0.
73

5
14

.6
65

42
6.

7
0.

78
11

.4
7

YE
S

42
6.

91
1.

22
19

.6
2

YE
S

50
4.

78
1.

89
46

43
7.

15
4

11
.6

94
42

6.
17

8.
23

13
.0

1
YE

S
42

6.
42

13
.8

5
22

.1
4

YE
S

50
5.

42
23

.7
2

.8
47

0.
70

9
15

.9
09

45
5.

07
2.

24
2.

24
YE

S
45

5.
16

3.
93

3.
93

YE
S

53
5.

01
6.

58
.9

42
1.

03
9

8.
13

9
41

3.
05

0.
62

0.
62

YE
S

41
3.

09
0.

98
0.

98
YE

S
46

1.
23

1.
53

21
44

7.
81

9
8.

60
9

43
9.

6
0.

97
3.

1
YE

S
43

9.
73

1.
67

5.
45

YE
S

52
7.

08
2.

7
98

44
2.

53
2

12
.5

52
43

0.
24

0.
27

1.
64

YE
S

43
0.

31
0.

42
2.

61
YE

S
50

4.
96

0.
67

.5
41

4.
63

8.
13

40
6.

89
1.

59
1.

59
YE

S
40

7.
02

2.
66

2.
66

YE
S

44
2.

5
4.

23
.8

45
4.

93
8.

13
44

7.
26

0.
61

3.
36

YE
S

44
7.

41
1

5.
93

YE
S

51
5.

39
1.

64
16

43
7.

25
3

15
.0

93
42

3.
13

0.
24

24
.6

4
YE

S
42

3.
78

0.
37

42
.0

3
YE

S
50

3.
27

0.
56

51
41

4.
45

1
1

41
5.

08
0

17
YE

S
41

5.
32

0
29

.8
6

YE
S

41
5.

72
0

61
44

8.
74

1
8.

13
1

44
0.

8
1.

41
1.

41
YE

S
44

0.
85

2.
38

2.
38

YE
S

52
1.

94
3.

77
.9

43
4.

02
8

8.
12

8
42

6.
35

2.
54

12
.3

YE
S

42
6.

51
4.

19
21

.7
6

YE
S

49
1.

86
6.

77
62

44
3.

87
5

11
.2

55
43

2.
85

0.
2

1.
38

YE
S

43
2.

91
0.

32
2.

2
YE

S
50

5.
47

0.
5

99
41

4.
12

8
8.

13
8

40
6.

53
8.

15
9.

71
YE

S
40

6.
69

13
.7

8
16

.4
YE

S
44

2.
47

22
.6

7
73

39
1.

79
7

18
.7

97
37

3.
18

1.
29

1.
29

YE
S

37
3.

22
2.

05
2.

05
YE

S
37

3.
27

3.
26

46
39

0.
01

3
23

.5
53

36
7.

67
0.

54
30

.5
2

YE
S

36
8.

05
0.

84
47

.2
9

YE
S

37
2.

11
1.

29
68

38
7.

89
2

19
.8

92
36

9.
1

0.
24

30
.2

3
YE

S
36

9.
43

0.
38

46
.6

8
YE

S
37

2.
5

0.
6

27
40

5.
62

7
0

40
5.

79
0

20
.2

1
YE

S
40

5.
79

0
22

YE
S

40
5.

83
0

48
38

6.
84

8
0

38
6.

85
0

0
YE

S
38

6.
85

0
0

YE
S

38
6.

85
0

97
40

1
21

4
4

21
4

39
9

15
0

23
94

YE
S

39
9

28
0

32
27

YE
S

39
9

38
0



Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
In

fl
(1

00
-y

e

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

 Ju
nc

tio
ns

 R
es

ul
ts

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
 

10
-y

ea
r

10
0-

ye
ar

13
42

9.
19

8
2.

06
8

42
7.

45
1.

07
1.

07
YE

S
42

7.
59

2.
18

2.
18

YE
S

42
7.

74
3.

96
38

42
9.

33
7

9.
95

7
41

9.
97

0
2.

42
YE

S
42

0.
19

0
4.

26
YE

S
42

0.
56

0
.3

43
2.

75
6

9.
45

6
42

3.
71

0.
18

2.
44

YE
S

42
3.

85
0.

28
4.

29
YE

S
42

4.
05

0.
43

45
43

4.
69

9.
24

42
5.

83
0.

14
2.

28
YE

S
42

5.
97

0.
22

4.
04

YE
S

42
6.

15
0.

34
56

43
6.

55
4

8.
99

4
42

7.
91

0.
2

2.
17

YE
S

42
8.

03
0.

31
3.

86
YE

S
42

8.
2

0.
49

30
43

8.
44

4
8.

44
4

43
0.

38
1.

97
1.

97
YE

S
43

0.
51

3.
55

3.
55

YE
S

43
0.

7
6.

21
78

42
5.

21
5

9.
43

5
41

6.
1

0.
05

4.
11

YE
S

41
6.

22
0.

08
7.

67
YE

S
41

6.
36

0.
12

06
42

5.
18

5
8.

12
5

41
7.

27
0.

17
0.

78
YE

S
41

7.
31

0.
26

1.
22

YE
S

41
7.

38
0.

39
86

43
7.

08
6

0
43

9.
12

3.
96

9.
53

YE
S

43
9.

66
6.

75
16

.0
1

YE
S

43
9.

7
11

.6
6

53
42

3.
83

7
8.

30
7

41
5.

85
2.

64
3.

4
YE

S
41

5.
97

5.
14

6.
32

YE
S

41
6.

12
9.

02
27

40
4.

32
7

0
40

4.
49

0
3.

4
YE

S
40

4.
53

0
6.

32
YE

S
40

4.
58

0
44

38
1.

44
0

38
1.

73
0

4.
25

YE
S

38
1.

81
0

7.
89

YE
S

38
1.

89
0

62
42

5.
75

2.
13

42
3.

72
0.

05
0.

05
YE

S
42

3.
74

0.
08

0.
08

YE
S

42
3.

77
0.

13
07

42
5.

20
2

2.
13

2
42

3.
12

0
0.

05
YE

S
42

3.
13

0
0.

08
YE

S
42

3.
15

0
84

42
5.

93
3

2.
09

3
42

4.
12

0.
58

0.
58

YE
S

42
4.

18
0.

9
0.

9
YE

S
42

4.
25

1.
39

47
43

5.
59

8
8.

12
8

43
5.

9
0.

89
21

.9
3

YE
S

43
6.

6
1.

41
25

.1
6

YE
S

43
7.

05
2.

19
06

43
5.

53
2

8.
47

2
43

4.
38

0.
6

0.
6

YE
S

43
4.

98
0.

91
0.

91
YE

S
43

5.
66

1.
4

86
42

2.
78

6
0

42
4.

03
0

20
.2

1
YE

S
42

4.
07

0
22

YE
S

42
4.

43
0

82
41

9.
98

2
0

41
9.

99
0

0.
3

YE
S

42
0

0
0.

47
YE

S
42

0
0

98
44

8.
66

8
0

44
8.

4
0

0
YE

S
44

8.
4

0
0

YE
S

44
8.

4
0

17
42

5.
26

4
8.

26
4

41
7.

05
0.

16
0.

16
YE

S
41

7.
06

0.
24

0.
24

YE
S

41
7.

08
0.

38
18

37
8.

81
8

0
37

8.
82

0
0

YE
S

37
8.

82
0

0
YE

S
37

8.
82

0
41

46
1.

53
1

7.
12

1
45

4.
58

0.
99

0.
99

YE
S

45
9.

77
1.

71
1.

71
YE

S
46

1.
98

2.
81

72
46

5.
83

9
6.

11
9

46
0.

13
2.

6
2.

6
YE

S
48

2.
1

4.
43

4.
63

YE
S

47
8.

13
7.

24
87

46
5.

47
6

6.
58

9
45

9.
58

1.
92

4.
51

YE
S

48
0.

93
3.

32
8.

99
YE

S
47

7.
25

5.
52

.2
46

9.
35

7.
15

46
2.

63
3.

07
3.

07
YE

S
46

8.
42

5.
32

5.
32

YE
S

47
0.

33
8.

82
25

46
9.

36
6

8.
11

6
46

1.
72

1.
74

4.
81

YE
S

46
7.

89
3.

01
8.

31
YE

S
47

0.
06

4.
97

.3
46

1.
80

7
7.

50
7

45
7.

83
0.

22
0.

88
YE

S
46

3.
31

0.
39

2.
67

YE
S

46
5.

26
0.

63
54

46
1.

57
6

7.
57

6
45

7.
77

3.
92

11
.6

4
YE

S
46

3.
24

6.
95

19
.4

3
YE

S
46

5.
2

11
.7

1
85

46
6.

09
10

.8
05

45
8.

22
0

9.
1

YE
S

46
5.

03
0

16
.9

8
YE

S
46

7.
75

0
07

45
1.

00
7

0
45

1.
01

0
0

YE
S

45
1.

01
0

0
YE

S
45

1.
01

0
.3

46
2.

80
4

7.
50

4
45

5.
74

3.
29

3.
29

YE
S

46
1.

91
5.

92
5.

92
YE

S
46

4.
79

10
.5

50
46

2.
57

7
12

.5
77

45
4.

57
0

12
.5

9
YE

S
46

1.
69

0
15

.3
3

YE
S

46
3.

65
0

54
46

2.
65

6
10

.1
16

45
4.

87
0.

57
0.

57
YE

S
46

1.
84

0.
92

0.
92

YE
S

46
3.

76
1.

45
78

46
2.

89
7

6.
11

7
45

7
1.

11
1.

11
YE

S
46

1.
89

1.
92

1.
92

YE
S

46
4.

67
3.

2
27

46
3.

40
3

7.
13

3
45

6.
52

1.
11

1.
11

YE
S

45
7.

13
1.

89
1.

89
YE

S
46

8.
11

3.
1

84
46

2.
96

8
7.

12
8

45
6.

15
1.

73
1.

73
YE

S
45

7.
16

2.
98

2.
98

YE
S

46
8

4.
91

63
45

9.
76

1
8.

13
1

45
1.

75
0.

53
0.

53
YE

S
45

7.
05

0.
87

1.
98

YE
S

46
0.

87
1.

38
59

45
4.

72
4

8.
13

4
44

6.
92

2.
24

2.
85

YE
S

45
1.

15
3.

77
4.

74
YE

S
45

6.
45

6.
07

52
45

5.
64

7
8.

12
7

44
7.

72
0.

62
0.

62
YE

S
45

1.
11

1.
05

1.
37

YE
S

45
6.

47
1.

69
15

45
4.

27
9

9.
12

9
44

5.
3

0.
7

0.
7

YE
S

45
1.

07
1.

5
1.

5
YE

S
45

6.
18

2.
96

86
43

6
08

6
3

43
6

44
1

89
22

41
YE

S
43

6
58

3
37

38
12

YE
S

43
6

77
5

73



Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
In

fl
(1

00
-y

e

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

 Ju
nc

tio
ns

 R
es

ul
ts

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
 

10
-y

ea
r

10
0-

ye
ar

.2
46

1.
32

3
10

.1
23

45
2.

92
1.

37
1.

37
YE

S
46

0.
11

2.
26

2.
26

YE
S

46
2.

25
3.

57
45

46
1.

11
5

12
.9

7
45

2.
53

0
13

.2
5

YE
S

45
9.

72
0

14
.9

YE
S

46
1.

9
0

95
45

4.
85

2
12

.5
57

44
5.

15
0

22
.6

6
YE

S
45

1.
03

0
27

.3
1

YE
S

45
6.

12
0

48
43

4.
60

8
8.

12
8

43
4.

38
0

20
.2

4
YE

S
43

4.
94

0
20

.4
7

YE
S

43
5.

62
0

83
46

3.
00

9
12

.6
26

45
4.

87
0

10
.5

7
YE

S
46

1.
84

0
11

.4
YE

S
46

3.
72

0
29

46
1.

41
1

8.
12

1
45

3.
48

0
0.

99
YE

S
45

9.
8

0
1.

95
YE

S
46

2
0

79
46

1.
42

9
12

.9
5

45
2.

92
0

12
.9

9
YE

S
46

0.
1

0
14

.9
3

YE
S

46
2.

19
0

45
45

9.
33

1
13

.3
86

44
9.

94
0

15
.6

9
YE

S
45

6.
93

0
19

.2
5

YE
S

46
0.

3
0

61
40

7.
71

6
0

40
7.

19
0

1.
83

YE
S

40
7.

21
0

3.
3

YE
S

40
7.

22
0

26
45

5.
38

9
8.

12
9

44
7.

6
4.

87
4.

87
YE

S
45

1.
13

8.
26

8.
26

YE
S

45
6.

58
13

.4
5

14
45

8.
04

8
3.

13
4

45
4.

91
0

0
YE

S
45

4.
91

0
0

YE
S

45
4.

91
0

05
45

5.
67

3.
62

45
2.

05
0

0
YE

S
45

2.
05

0
0

YE
S

45
2.

05
0

87
45

2.
90

6
2.

03
6

45
0.

87
0

0
YE

S
45

0.
87

0
0

YE
S

45
0.

87
0

42
44

9.
96

2
3.

62
44

6.
34

0
0

YE
S

44
6.

34
0

0
YE

S
44

6.
34

0
54

44
7.

57
4

3.
62

44
3.

95
0

0
YE

S
44

3.
95

0
0

YE
S

44
3.

95
0

98
44

4.
11

8
3.

62
44

0.
5

0
0

YE
S

44
0.

5
0

0
YE

S
44

0.
5

0
81

44
1.

43
3.

62
43

7.
81

0
0

YE
S

43
7.

81
0

0
YE

S
43

7.
81

0
91

43
8.

31
1

3.
62

43
4.

69
0

0
YE

S
43

4.
69

0
0

YE
S

43
4.

69
0

39
43

7.
01

3.
62

43
3.

39
0

0
YE

S
43

3.
39

0
0

YE
S

43
3.

39
0

23
45

5.
32

3
0

45
7.

47
0

2.
7

YE
S

45
7.

48
0

4.
51

YE
S

45
7.

5
0

85
42

7.
01

5
2.

13
42

5.
1

0
1.

05
YE

S
42

5.
19

0
2.

15
YE

S
42

5.
29

0
15

42
7.

65
7

2.
14

2
42

5.
9

0
1.

06
YE

S
42

6.
05

0
2.

16
YE

S
42

6.
21

0
99

46
0.

17
9

11
.2

8
44

9.
96

0
3.

32
YE

S
45

7.
07

0
6.

14
YE

S
46

0.
9

0
35

40
5.

16
5

5.
63

39
9.

83
0

4.
25

YE
S

39
9.

94
0

7.
89

YE
S

40
0.

08
0

75
43

0.
33

9
6.

58
9

42
3.

89
0.

3
0.

3
YE

S
42

3.
92

0.
48

0.
48

YE
S

42
3.

96
0.

76
.5

42
7.

79
2

4.
29

2
42

5.
66

1.
53

20
.2

1
YE

S
42

5.
99

2.
54

22
YE

S
43

1.
39

3.
84

21
46

0.
24

1
2.

12
45

8.
12

0
0

YE
S

45
8.

12
0

0
YE

S
45

8.
12

0
04

42
5.

13
4

2.
13

42
3.

17
0

0.
57

YE
S

42
3.

2
0

0.
89

YE
S

42
3.

25
0

25
37

2.
02

5
0

37
2.

74
2.

17
30

.1
YE

S
37

2.
93

5.
77

46
.4

YE
S

37
3.

47
10

.6
8

79
39

2.
17

9
0

39
3.

05
1.

78
24

.5
8

YE
S

39
3.

22
5.

84
33

.9
9

YE
S

39
3.

57
12

.3
52

43
3.

73
5

11
.2

15
42

4.
8

0
53

.3
5

YE
S

43
2.

26
0

85
.7

2
YE

S
43

4.
47

0
47

37
8.

24
7

0
37

8.
86

0
24

.5
4

YE
S

37
8.

93
0

33
.6

9
YE

S
37

9.
08

0
82

37
3.

58
2

0
37

4.
5

0
28

.8
5

YE
S

37
4.

61
0

41
.9

6
YE

S
37

4.
78

0
59

37
6.

55
9

0
37

7.
02

0
28

.6
YE

S
37

7.
09

0
41

.5
4

YE
S

37
7.

17
0

59
45

6.
75

9
0

45
7.

78
0.

7
0.

7
YE

S
46

3.
3

2.
27

2.
27

YE
S

46
5.

29
5.

35
67

43
0.

88
7

2.
12

42
8.

92
0.

72
0.

72
YE

S
42

9.
04

2.
44

2.
44

YE
S

42
9.

19
6.

14
51

38
1.

62
6

2.
11

6
37

9.
71

0.
78

1.
36

YE
S

37
9.

86
2.

41
4.

44
YE

S
38

0.
04

4.
71

55
34

7.
67

4
2.

12
4

34
5.

87
0.

9
2.

8
YE

S
34

6.
13

2.
88

9.
62

YE
S

34
6.

48
6.

32
04

32
2.

30
4

0
32

2.
39

0.
09

2.
81

N
O

32
2.

46
0.

15
9.

67
N

O
32

2.
55

0.
25

92
42

7.
61

2
2.

12
42

5.
65

0.
7

0.
7

YE
S

42
5.

78
2.

37
2.

37
YE

S
42

5.
94

5.
99

33
39

2.
45

3
2.

12
3

39
0.

54
0.

82
1.

51
YE

S
39

0.
71

2.
84

5.
21

YE
S

39
0.

93
7.

35
1

43
6

1
0

43
9

43
0

3
72

YE
S

43
9

44
0

6
14

YE
S

43
9

45
0



Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
In

fl
(1

00
-y

e

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

 Ju
nc

tio
ns

 R
es

ul
ts

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
 

10
-y

ea
r

10
0-

ye
ar

12
40

4.
42

3
2.

30
3

40
2.

26
0.

42
0.

65
YE

S
40

2.
37

1.
34

2.
11

YE
S

40
2.

49
2.

94
62

38
1.

75
2

2.
13

2
37

9.
81

0.
3

1.
29

YE
S

37
9.

95
0.

96
4.

14
YE

S
38

0.
09

2.
06

25
34

0.
22

5
0

34
0.

38
0.

35
1.

32
N

O
34

0.
46

0.
76

4.
03

N
O

34
0.

54
1.

28
81

36
9.

93
5

2.
12

5
36

8.
08

0.
93

2.
53

YE
S

36
8.

27
3.

02
8.

44
YE

S
36

8.
5

6.
73

32
39

0.
53

2
0

39
0.

53
0

0
YE

S
39

0.
53

0
0

YE
S

39
0.

53
0

42
35

1.
84

2
0

35
1.

84
0

0
YE

S
35

1.
84

0
0

YE
S

35
1.

84
0

39
39

5.
13

9
0

39
5.

14
0

0
YE

S
39

5.
14

0
0

YE
S

39
5.

14
0

18
41

1.
31

8
0

41
1.

32
0

0
YE

S
41

1.
32

0
0

YE
S

41
1.

32
0

66
42

6.
06

6
0

42
7.

02
0

15
.3

YE
S

42
7.

17
0

27
.4

9
YE

S
42

7.
33

0
14

42
0.

91
4

0
42

1.
02

0.
07

0.
07

YE
S

42
1.

07
0.

19
0.

19
YE

S
42

1.
11

0.
33

15
42

6.
15

0
42

6.
33

0.
34

0.
34

YE
S

42
6.

44
1.

08
1.

08
YE

S
42

6.
53

2.
34

40
44

7.
67

8
7.

67
8

44
0.

6
3.

57
8.

16
YE

S
44

0.
82

6.
29

14
.4

4
YE

S
44

1.
27

10
.5

4
52

40
2.

84
10

.3
2

39
4.

22
1.

34
33

.7
4

YE
S

40
2.

75
2.

11
61

.4
5

YE
S

40
6.

99
3.

3
59

45
9.

71
6

8.
12

6
45

2.
19

3.
48

3.
48

YE
S

45
2.

42
6.

22
6.

22
YE

S
45

2.
83

10
.5

3
89

40
1.

93
5

8.
34

6
39

5.
13

11
.1

1
32

.6
3

YE
S

41
1.

62
19

.6
6

59
.3

2
YE

S
41

5.
19

34
.6

4
75

40
2.

43
6

10
.6

86
39

3.
81

3.
23

39
.1

7
YE

S
40

1.
27

5.
49

70
.3

YE
S

40
2.

43
9.

09
26

45
9.

38
6

8.
12

6
45

1.
73

1.
2

4.
67

YE
S

45
1.

89
2.

07
8.

28
YE

S
45

2.
12

3.
46

14
40

2.
37

6
7.

23
6

39
6.

28
15

.3
8

22
.5

2
YE

S
42

6.
51

26
.9

1
39

.8
YE

S
42

0.
02

47
.2

2
24

40
1.

75
4

5.
63

39
6.

12
0

0
YE

S
39

6.
12

0
0

YE
S

39
6.

12
0

82
46

5.
98

2
0

46
6.

94
0

0.
97

YE
S

46
6.

95
0

1.
61

YE
S

46
6.

96
0

82
42

0.
58

2
9.

5
41

2.
01

6.
71

18
.5

5
YE

S
41

7.
58

11
.1

5
25

.0
6

YE
S

42
1.

66
18

.3
3

15
37

8.
15

0
37

8.
33

0
20

.9
9

YE
S

37
8.

36
0

27
.0

7
YE

S
37

8.
42

0
99

44
0.

79
9

0
44

0.
8

0
0

YE
S

44
0.

8
0

0
YE

S
44

0.
8

0
36

37
8.

83
6

0
37

8.
84

0
0

YE
S

37
8.

84
0

0
YE

S
37

8.
84

0
33

44
7.

83
3

0
44

9.
4

0
3.

28
YE

S
44

9.
44

0
4.

92
YE

S
44

9.
45

0
41

34
3.

50
3

0
34

2.
94

0
0

YE
S

34
2.

94
0

0
YE

S
34

2.
94

0
67

29
8.

54
5

5.
77

8
29

3.
88

3.
81

3.
81

N
O

29
8.

94
6.

57
6.

57
N

O
29

9.
05

10
.7

5
47

30
3.

53
5

5.
78

8
29

8.
34

21
.4

1
21

.4
1

N
O

29
9.

53
37

.0
9

37
.0

9
N

O
30

1.
18

62
.2

6
47

30
5.

53
5.

78
3

29
9.

99
1.

25
1.

25
N

O
30

0.
07

2.
16

2.
16

N
O

30
0.

15
3.

48
87

30
0.

36
5

5.
77

8
29

5.
07

0.
12

8.
94

N
O

29
6.

6
0.

19
15

.3
3

N
O

29
7.

59
0.

29
07

30
4.

38
7

5.
78

29
9.

03
7.

6
8.

84
N

O
29

9.
16

13
15

.1
5

N
O

29
9.

36
22

.3
1

67
29

5.
24

9
2.

78
2

29
3.

24
1.

64
7.

72
N

O
29

5.
95

2.
78

24
.3

1
N

O
29

6.
2

4.
43

37
29

7.
65

6
6.

71
9

29
2.

55
0

35
.7

8
N

O
29

6.
4

0
55

.2
2

N
O

29
7.

06
0

06
28

1.
80

6
4

28
2.

67
3.

63
38

.6
6

N
O

28
2.

83
5.

82
47

.3
4

N
O

28
2.

96
9.

2
07

29
8.

19
5.

78
3

29
3.

85
0.

07
25

.2
1

N
O

29
9.

01
0.

11
40

.2
8

N
O

29
9.

43
0.

18
69

44
3.

66
9

0
44

4.
22

0
7.

82
YE

S
44

4.
29

0
14

.1
5

YE
S

44
4.

37
0

82
43

9.
22

6
7.

40
6

43
2.

21
0.

94
3.

57
YE

S
43

2.
33

1.
52

6.
01

YE
S

43
2.

47
2.

43
08

35
7.

69
8

21
.6

18
33

7.
23

0
41

.9
4

N
O

33
7.

5
0

60
.7

5
N

O
33

7.
86

0
62

35
5.

95
5

7.
33

5
34

9.
13

2.
53

22
.1

4
YE

S
34

9.
28

4.
46

35
.6

6
YE

S
34

9.
48

7.
53

22
42

0.
40

4
8.

18
4

41
2.

47
0.

6
0.

6
YE

S
41

2.
55

0.
96

0.
96

YE
S

41
2.

65
1.

53
28

40
7.

92
8

0
40

7.
98

0
3.

55
YE

S
40

8
0

5.
98

YE
S

40
8.

02
0

17
34

2
31

7
0

34
3

3
0

46
25

09
YE

S
34

3
43

0
71

31
08

YE
S

34
3

51
1

09



Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
In

fl
(1

00
-y

e

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

 Ju
nc

tio
ns

 R
es

ul
ts

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
 

10
-y

ea
r

10
0-

ye
ar

82
44

0.
41

2
7.

59
2

43
3.

16
2.

64
2.

64
YE

S
43

3.
27

4.
51

4.
51

YE
S

43
3.

39
7.

27
25

38
7.

52
5

0
38

8.
15

7.
59

8.
67

YE
S

38
8.

36
12

.9
9

14
.8

YE
S

38
8.

71
22

.9
8

92
41

8.
78

9
6.

86
9

41
2.

26
0.

72
1.

32
YE

S
41

2.
35

1.
18

2.
13

YE
S

41
2.

46
1.

92
85

38
3.

68
5

0
38

3.
79

0
6.

38
YE

S
38

3.
81

0
10

.7
7

YE
S

38
3.

83
0

77
37

3.
47

7
0

37
3.

66
0

12
.1

5
YE

S
37

3.
69

0
19

.8
YE

S
37

3.
71

0
51

35
5.

51
0

35
5.

78
0

7.
93

YE
S

35
5.

82
0

11
.5

2
YE

S
35

6.
56

0
59

40
6.

45
9

0
40

6.
49

0
1.

3
YE

S
40

6.
49

0
2.

11
YE

S
40

6.
51

0
12

35
7.

48
4

20
.3

64
33

8.
14

0
41

.8
7

N
O

33
8.

4
0

60
.6

7
N

O
33

8.
73

0
45

35
6.

52
6.

07
35

1.
54

19
.6

19
.6

YE
S

35
3.

45
31

.3
3

31
.3

3
YE

S
35

6.
78

49
.2

5
95

34
5.

99
5

0
34

6.
6

0
25

.0
1

YE
S

34
6.

66
0

30
.9

8
YE

S
34

6.
69

0
27

36
5.

02
7

0
36

6.
81

8.
94

13
.2

6
YE

S
36

7.
64

14
.4

22
.0

4
YE

S
36

9.
06

22
.4

9
48

36
0.

44
8

0
36

1.
01

0
7.

84
YE

S
36

1.
16

0
11

.3
5

YE
S

36
1.

29
0

67
44

3.
86

7
0

44
4

0.
88

10
.9

8
YE

S
44

4.
09

1.
48

24
.7

8
YE

S
44

4.
18

2.
38

55
35

4.
15

5
0

35
5.

96
15

.5
3

24
.9

6
YE

S
35

7.
15

26
.7

2
42

.6
9

YE
S

35
9.

23
43

.2
8

54
35

3.
95

4
0

35
4.

54
0

16
.0

5
YE

S
35

5.
87

0
19

.8
3

YE
S

35
8.

02
0

49
35

0.
94

9
0

35
2.

95
1.

48
16

.4
YE

S
35

5.
87

2.
25

20
.4

YE
S

35
8.

02
3.

43
05

35
0.

10
5

0
35

1.
78

0
16

.6
YE

S
35

4.
39

0
19

.1
5

YE
S

35
6.

56
0

91
34

8.
91

0
35

1.
77

7.
81

25
.0

9
YE

S
35

4.
38

12
.5

8
31

.0
8

YE
S

35
6.

56
19

.6
1

04
39

0.
23

4
2.

13
38

8.
29

0
3.

34
YE

S
38

8.
34

0
5.

7
YE

S
38

8.
39

0
34

34
9.

13
4

0
35

1.
77

0
23

.9
6

YE
S

35
4.

38
0

29
.8

2
YE

S
35

6.
56

0
67

34
8.

96
7

0
34

9.
52

0
39

.4
8

YE
S

35
0.

46
0

94
.6

4
YE

S
35

1.
99

0
14

37
8.

53
9

6.
39

9
37

2.
92

2.
32

16
.2

4
YE

S
37

3.
28

4.
14

29
.2

5
YE

S
37

9.
38

7.
25

61
37

8.
66

5.
05

37
4.

48
13

.9
13

.9
YE

S
37

5.
36

25
.1

3
25

.1
3

YE
S

37
9.

58
44

.4
3

59
44

1.
05

9
0

44
1.

48
0

1.
39

YE
S

44
1.

5
0

1.
5

YE
S

44
1.

52
0

19
42

6.
46

2
14

.2
72

41
3.

05
0

13
.8

5
YE

S
41

3.
4

0
24

.8
6

YE
S

41
7.

32
0

.5
42

1.
10

6
6.

60
6

41
5.

54
13

.8
2

13
.8

2
YE

S
41

6.
04

24
.8

6
24

.8
6

YE
S

42
2.

78
43

.8
1

51
40

8.
75

1
0

40
8.

81
0

13
.8

5
YE

S
40

8.
83

0
24

.8
3

YE
S

40
8.

86
0

02
34

1.
74

2
5.

72
2

33
6.

12
0.

25
0.

25
N

O
33

6.
15

0.
42

0.
42

N
O

33
6.

18
0.

66
91

30
9.

39
1

0
30

9.
4

0
0.

25
N

O
30

9.
4

0
0.

41
N

O
30

9.
4

0
02

32
9.

40
2

0
32

9.
92

0
42

.0
2

N
O

33
0.

03
0

60
.8

4
N

O
33

1.
01

0
85

30
3.

18
5

0
31

1.
46

0
50

0.
05

N
O

31
1.

95
0

69
5.

54
N

O
31

3.
28

0
54

44
2.

52
4

0.
52

4
44

2.
31

0
8.

6
YE

S
44

2.
39

0
16

.8
1

YE
S

44
2.

48
0

36
33

2.
43

6
0

33
6.

61
0

35
4.

22
N

O
33

6.
68

0
53

4.
06

N
O

33
8.

17
0

81
33

3.
18

1
0

33
6.

85
4.

32
32

1.
94

N
O

33
7

6.
8

48
4.

8
N

O
33

8.
64

10
.6

5
04

40
5.

42
1

6.
38

1
40

5.
31

0
53

.5
YE

S
40

5.
99

0
53

.3
6

YE
S

40
6.

22
0

32
28

8.
98

0
28

8.
88

3.
81

3.
81

N
O

28
8.

9
6.

55
6.

55
N

O
28

8.
93

11
.0

3
72

28
7.

16
2

0
28

4.
72

0
0

N
O

28
4.

72
0

0
N

O
28

4.
72

0
31

29
0.

3
0

29
0.

05
1.

69
1.

69
N

O
29

0.
06

2.
99

2.
99

N
O

29
0.

07
4.

99
23

28
9.

02
3

5
28

4.
02

0
0

N
O

28
4.

02
0

0
N

O
28

4.
57

0
59

29
1.

25
9

5
28

6.
26

0
0

N
O

28
6.

26
0

0
N

O
28

6.
26

0
36

39
0.

63
6

0
39

0.
64

0
0

YE
S

39
0.

64
0

0
YE

S
39

0.
64

0
01

45
6

90
1

0
45

6
95

0
4

58
YE

S
45

6
95

0
4

62
YE

S
45

6
95

0



Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
In

fl
(1

00
-y

e

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

 Ju
nc

tio
ns

 R
es

ul
ts

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
 

10
-y

ea
r

10
0-

ye
ar

32
43

9.
13

3
7.

13
3

43
2

0
0

YE
S

43
2

0
0

YE
S

43
2

0
.5

43
8.

76
7

11
.2

67
42

8.
1

0
4.

53
YE

S
42

8.
28

0
7.

7
YE

S
42

8.
47

0
96

45
0.

09
6

5.
5

44
5.

67
28

.5
4

29
.6

1
YE

S
44

6.
69

51
.8

9
53

.8
8

YE
S

47
5.

46
91

.2
8

06
28

4.
40

6
5

27
9.

41
0

0
N

O
27

9.
41

0
0

N
O

27
9.

41
0

41
28

9.
84

1
11

27
8.

84
0

0
N

O
27

8.
84

0
0

N
O

27
8.

84
0

37
28

8.
33

7
11

27
7.

34
0

0
N

O
27

7.
34

0
0

N
O

27
7.

34
0

59
28

1.
15

9
5

27
6.

3
0

0.
54

N
O

27
6.

35
0

0.
96

N
O

27
6.

57
0

68
39

6.
06

8
0

39
7.

83
15

.9
20

.7
5

YE
S

39
8.

6
29

.1
5

37
.2

6
YE

S
39

9.
78

49
.7

6
69

27
7.

26
9

5
27

3.
74

0
2.

33
N

O
27

4.
27

0
3.

01
N

O
27

7.
43

0
65

28
4.

66
5

5
27

9.
81

0
0.

54
N

O
27

9.
85

0
0.

96
N

O
27

9.
91

0
07

28
7.

60
7

5
28

2.
61

0
0

N
O

28
2.

61
0

0
N

O
28

2.
61

0
09

27
8.

30
9

4.
5

27
3.

81
0

0
N

O
27

4.
23

0
0.

97
N

O
28

0.
41

0
85

28
7

2
28

5.
6

0
4.

34
N

O
28

5.
81

0
7.

61
N

O
28

6.
09

0
.5

28
8.

1
3.

6
28

5.
1

0
4.

34
N

O
28

5.
31

0
7.

61
N

O
28

5.
6

0
96

28
8.

96
5

28
4.

43
0

4.
33

N
O

28
4.

59
0

7.
61

N
O

28
5.

05
0

.5
28

8.
17

5.
67

28
3.

54
3.

78
7.

94
N

O
28

3.
97

6.
8

14
.1

2
N

O
28

4.
84

12
.3

7
07

42
9.

30
7

0
42

9.
37

0
0.

21
YE

S
42

9.
39

0
0.

35
YE

S
42

9.
41

0
56

33
5.

95
6

0
33

5.
96

0
0

N
O

33
5.

96
0

0
N

O
33

5.
96

0
81

30
7.

48
1

4.
5

30
2.

98
0

0
N

O
30

2.
98

0
0

N
O

30
2.

98
0

32
30

9.
63

2
9.

5
30

0.
13

0
0

N
O

30
0.

13
0

0
N

O
30

0.
13

0
13

30
2.

61
3

5
29

7.
61

0
0

N
O

29
7.

61
0

0
N

O
29

7.
61

0
03

29
4.

10
3

5
28

9.
1

0
0

N
O

28
9.

1
0

0
N

O
28

9.
1

0
66

30
7.

39
2

0
30

7.
27

0
0

N
O

30
7.

27
0

0
N

O
30

7.
27

0
42

28
3.

74
2

0
28

3.
74

0
0

N
O

28
3.

74
0

0
N

O
28

6.
83

0
46

28
2.

11
3

0
27

9.
94

0
75

.1
3

N
O

28
0.

09
0

89
.1

2
N

O
28

3.
52

0
57

31
4.

57
6

30
9.

5
0

10
.8

2
N

O
30

9.
87

0
20

.6
4

N
O

31
0.

27
0

61
44

3.
96

1
0

44
4.

09
0

4.
86

YE
S

44
4.

14
0

9.
32

YE
S

44
4.

2
0

59
42

3.
85

9
0

42
3.

89
0

1.
58

YE
S

42
3.

9
0

2.
82

YE
S

42
3.

92
0

08
42

2.
08

0
42

2.
35

0
20

.8
7

YE
S

42
2.

39
0

25
.8

5
YE

S
42

2.
39

0
13

41
7.

12
2

8.
40

9
40

9.
82

0
33

.8
2

YE
S

41
0.

1
0

51
.5

3
YE

S
41

0.
4

0
74

33
0.

63
9

0
33

4.
67

0
15

6.
9

N
O

33
5.

08
0

20
2.

5
N

O
33

5.
64

0
38

34
0.

91
8

2.
91

8
33

9.
46

0
33

.0
5

N
O

33
9.

71
0

60
.3

1
N

O
33

9.
88

0
11

39
6.

01
1

4.
5

39
1.

97
0

2.
53

YE
S

39
2.

13
0

4.
5

YE
S

39
2.

34
0

74
39

9.
37

4
0

39
9.

37
0

0
YE

S
39

9.
37

0
0

YE
S

39
9.

37
0

87
39

9.
18

7
4

39
5.

78
0

41
.8

9
YE

S
39

6
0

67
.4

2
YE

S
39

6.
38

0
63

38
5.

86
3

3
38

7.
27

0
44

.5
YE

S
38

7.
42

0
72

.6
2

YE
S

38
7.

67
0

94
40

2.
29

4
0

40
2.

33
0

0.
64

YE
S

40
2.

34
0

1.
06

YE
S

40
2.

35
0

76
37

8.
88

9
2.

88
9

37
8.

92
0

16
5.

68
YE

S
37

9.
62

0
27

8.
63

YE
S

38
0.

69
0

14
37

5.
21

4
1

37
6.

18
0

3.
29

YE
S

37
7.

18
0

40
.4

5
YE

S
37

8.
11

0
68

37
0.

89
2

0
37

4.
31

0
18

9
YE

S
37

5.
31

0
32

7.
8

YE
S

37
6.

26
0

76
36

7.
07

6
0

37
0.

79
0

24
2.

43
YE

S
37

1.
92

0
42

0.
91

YE
S

37
2.

79
0

82
35

8
08

2
0

36
1

99
0

27
2

87
YE

S
36

2
87

0
40

2
75

YE
S

36
4

13
0



Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
In

fl
(1

00
-y

e

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

 Ju
nc

tio
ns

 R
es

ul
ts

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
 

10
-y

ea
r

10
0-

ye
ar

66
43

2.
66

4
42

8.
66

0
0

YE
S

42
8.

66
0

0
YE

S
42

8.
66

0
96

43
1.

29
6

0
43

1.
33

0
1.

11
YE

S
43

1.
34

0
1.

93
YE

S
43

1.
37

0
27

41
9.

92
7

0
42

0.
77

0
21

.1
9

YE
S

42
1.

04
0

41
.5

3
YE

S
42

1.
3

0
89

37
3.

89
0

37
6.

71
0

82
.9

5
YE

S
37

7.
84

0
18

0.
17

YE
S

37
8.

75
0

41
37

3.
41

0
37

6.
72

0
18

.6
7

YE
S

37
7.

85
0

20
.7

8
YE

S
37

8.
76

0
04

34
3.

80
4

0
34

8.
94

9.
05

25
1.

68
YE

S
34

9.
46

15
.4

42
1.

62
YE

S
35

0.
06

27
.0

7
17

36
4.

91
7

0
36

5.
24

0
3.

18
YE

S
36

5.
31

0
5.

23
YE

S
36

5.
39

0
87

33
5.

18
7

0
34

0.
79

0
40

3.
75

N
O

34
1.

54
0

70
0.

95
N

O
34

3.
08

0
43

33
5.

84
3

0
34

0.
82

3.
88

28
1.

68
N

O
34

1.
79

6.
52

60
4.

5
N

O
34

3.
46

10
.7

2
03

33
3.

40
3

0
33

7.
1

0
32

1.
88

N
O

33
7.

41
0

45
3.

49
N

O
33

8.
97

0
52

31
4.

35
2

0
31

4.
83

0
15

.7
6

N
O

31
5.

04
0

27
.8

5
N

O
31

5.
68

0
77

43
3.

57
7

11
.5

42
4.

45
0

53
.3

YE
S

43
1.

77
0

82
.4

YE
S

43
4.

15
0

.1
45

1.
75

2
7.

65
2

44
4.

61
0

3.
14

YE
S

44
4.

82
0

5.
52

YE
S

44
5.

08
0

95
37

8.
23

8
0

37
7.

91
0

0.
92

YE
S

37
7.

91
0

1.
53

YE
S

37
7.

92
0

58
38

8.
00

8
4.

25
38

3.
91

0
0.

26
YE

S
38

3.
96

0
0.

43
YE

S
38

4
0

88
40

7.
88

6
41

3.
67

0
76

.4
2

YE
S

41
4.

67
0

86
.0

8
YE

S
41

7.
08

0
.2

40
0.

69
8

4.
49

8
40

1.
1

0
79

.2
6

YE
S

40
1.

98
0

79
.2

4
YE

S
40

2.
37

0
31

44
1.

03
1

4.
5

43
9.

46
0

8.
91

YE
S

43
9.

48
0

10
.0

9
YE

S
43

9.
5

0
89

44
6.

98
9

5.
5

44
1.

49
0

0
YE

S
44

1.
49

0
0

YE
S

44
1.

49
0

64
39

7.
86

4
5.

5
39

3.
66

13
.2

3
16

.9
YE

S
39

4.
19

21
.9

6
28

.4
5

YE
S

39
8.

2
35

.2
2

49
35

6.
44

9
9

34
8.

35
0.

35
25

.5
2

YE
S

34
9.

06
0.

55
93

.1
5

YE
S

35
0.

1
0.

86
52

33
4.

52
5

33
6.

45
7.

24
33

8.
26

N
O

33
6.

9
12

.6
3

43
8.

18
N

O
33

7.
75

21
.7

1
27

38
6.

12
7

4.
5

38
3.

48
1.

37
12

.5
2

YE
S

38
5.

48
2.

48
18

.6
8

YE
S

38
6.

74
4.

05
96

38
5.

89
6

5
38

1.
93

0.
18

20
.3

1
YE

S
38

2.
38

0.
28

37
.1

3
YE

S
38

6.
47

0.
44

66
28

0.
66

0
28

2.
75

0
55

1.
4

N
O

28
3.

4
0

92
2.

3
N

O
28

5.
38

0
01

45
9.

23
6

7.
22

6
45

7.
68

0
83

.8
8

YE
S

45
9.

58
0

11
4.

86
YE

S
46

0.
05

0
.5

42
8.

38
3.

88
42

5.
61

7.
02

7.
02

YE
S

42
6.

95
12

.4
7

12
.4

7
YE

S
42

8.
95

21
.8

5
64

45
5.

26
4

4.
5

45
2.

14
1.

18
5.

64
YE

S
45

6.
32

2.
09

9.
94

YE
S

45
7.

11
3.

52
55

45
6.

35
5

4.
5

45
2.

63
4.

48
4.

48
YE

S
45

6.
45

8.
14

8.
14

YE
S

45
7.

11
14

.2
77

40
3.

97
7

5.
5

39
9.

77
0

24
.1

8
YE

S
40

0.
21

0
37

.9
YE

S
40

3.
61

0
08

39
4.

00
8

5.
5

39
0.

05
0.

25
24

.3
2

YE
S

39
0.

77
0.

59
38

.3
2

YE
S

39
2.

36
1.

02
07

37
3.

00
7

4.
5

36
9.

38
6.

52
7.

56
YE

S
36

9.
96

12
.4

8
14

.8
4

YE
S

37
3.

35
21

.8
3

46
34

7.
96

5.
5

34
3.

78
0

24
.9

YE
S

34
4.

48
0

45
.0

3
YE

S
34

7.
56

0
48

31
2.

14
8

6
30

6.
92

4.
89

17
N

O
30

7.
19

8.
33

30
.5

9
N

O
30

7.
6

14
.9

9
58

42
3.

25
8

4.
5

41
8.

94
0.

41
0.

41
YE

S
41

8.
98

0.
64

0.
64

YE
S

41
9.

34
0.

99
54

33
1.

45
4

0
33

3.
52

0
32

9.
81

N
O

33
3.

79
0

40
7.

19
N

O
33

4.
73

0
28

43
7.

02
8

4.
5

43
3.

36
4.

71
4.

71
YE

S
43

3.
73

7.
95

7.
95

YE
S

43
7.

12
13

.5
1

02
43

5.
40

2
4.

5
43

1.
61

1.
4

6.
07

YE
S

43
1.

89
2.

32
10

.1
7

YE
S

43
4.

42
3.

86
35

43
7.

33
5

6.
5

43
3.

87
1.

17
12

.8
7

YE
S

43
4.

06
1.

97
12

.9
6

YE
S

43
4.

18
3.

27
19

37
3.

01
9

4.
5

36
9.

05
0.

53
5.

77
YE

S
36

9.
26

0.
87

10
.3

7
YE

S
36

9.
58

1.
43

99
43

0.
99

0
43

1.
26

1.
54

2.
88

YE
S

43
1.

34
2.

56
4.

85
YE

S
43

1.
43

4.
27

92
42

5
29

2
4

5
42

2
79

1
06

6
52

YE
S

42
5

18
1

81
10

14
YE

S
42

5
87

2
98



Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
In

fl
(1

00
-y

e

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

 Ju
nc

tio
ns

 R
es

ul
ts

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
 

10
-y

ea
r

10
0-

ye
ar

55
36

7.
45

5
0

36
7.

46
0

0.
13

YE
S

36
7.

46
0

0.
21

YE
S

36
7.

46
0

82
42

1.
18

2
0

42
1.

39
4.

16
14

.4
YE

S
42

1.
44

6.
78

21
.3

YE
S

42
1.

49
11

98
44

1.
43

9
0

44
0.

82
0

3.
09

YE
S

44
0.

91
0

5.
46

YE
S

44
1.

01
0

26
40

4.
02

6
7

39
7.

14
1.

03
1.

03
YE

S
39

7.
17

1.
65

1.
65

YE
S

39
7.

21
2.

62
46

40
2.

34
6

4
39

8.
64

0.
78

0.
78

YE
S

39
8.

72
1.

27
1.

27
YE

S
40

0.
38

2.
05

57
40

5.
57

4
40

1.
93

2.
12

2.
12

YE
S

40
2.

04
3.

46
3.

46
YE

S
40

3
5.

56
18

33
2.

01
8

0
33

5.
95

0
57

6.
18

N
O

33
6.

48
0

62
7.

99
N

O
33

7.
76

0
07

40
7.

07
4

40
3.

25
0.

67
0.

67
YE

S
40

3.
3

1.
07

1.
07

YE
S

40
3.

36
1.

69
74

33
7.

27
4

3.
5

33
6.

93
0.

26
16

.1
5

N
O

33
6.

98
0.

41
29

.3
5

N
O

33
7.

55
0.

65
04

43
0.

00
4

0
49

0.
34

15
.8

6
15

.8
6

YE
S

53
0.

5
27

.9
6

27
.9

6
YE

S
53

0.
5

48
.9

4
38

42
6.

83
8

6
42

1.
54

8.
65

8.
97

YE
S

42
1.

75
14

.3
9

14
.9

YE
S

42
2.

03
23

.9
1

11
40

1.
53

8
0

40
0.

16
0

2.
6

YE
S

40
0.

17
0

4.
6

YE
S

40
0.

2
0

06
45

0.
56

5.
5

44
6.

36
13

.3
7

13
.3

7
YE

S
44

6.
94

24
.2

6
24

.2
6

YE
S

45
4.

07
44

.1
2

26
44

8.
52

6
5.

5
44

3.
64

8.
29

8.
29

YE
S

44
3.

87
15

.0
7

15
.0

7
YE

S
44

4.
18

26
.4

4
37

44
2.

91
6

5.
91

6
43

7.
33

1.
42

4.
14

YE
S

43
7.

42
2.

4
6.

82
YE

S
43

7.
53

3.
98

37
32

5.
38

7
4.

25
32

2.
11

4.
6

19
.4

6
N

O
32

5.
68

7.
96

22
.5

7
N

O
32

6.
02

13
.4

6
82

43
1.

38
2

4.
5

42
7.

43
2.

56
5.

26
YE

S
42

7.
62

4.
45

8.
96

YE
S

42
7.

83
7.

38
47

41
1.

01
7

3.
67

40
7.

35
0

0
YE

S
40

7.
35

0
0

YE
S

40
7.

35
0

27
41

5.
59

7
3.

67
41

1.
93

0
0

YE
S

41
1.

93
0

0
YE

S
41

1.
93

0
96

39
9.

29
6

0
40

1.
05

0
3.

43
YE

S
40

1.
08

0
6.

12
YE

S
40

1.
1

0
97

43
3.

39
7

3
43

0.
63

1.
06

1.
06

YE
S

43
0.

7
1.

8
1.

8
YE

S
43

2.
07

3
.3

43
4.

55
4

3.
25

4
43

1.
56

0.
65

0.
65

YE
S

43
1.

63
1.

06
1.

06
YE

S
43

2.
59

1.
73

72
43

4.
59

4
3.

87
4

43
1.

17
1.

23
1.

87
YE

S
43

1.
32

2.
07

3.
12

YE
S

43
2.

56
3.

42
12

38
3.

11
2

4
37

9.
45

0.
92

0.
92

YE
S

37
9.

55
1.

54
1.

54
YE

S
37

9.
68

2.
52

71
33

7.
71

0
33

9.
29

26
.3

4
45

.6
4

N
O

33
9.

93
46

.6
3

84
N

O
34

0.
8

85
.4

2
57

45
1.

10
7

4.
25

44
7.

53
3.

18
3.

18
YE

S
44

7.
84

5.
62

5.
62

YE
S

45
0.

87
9.

54
43

38
8.

34
3

28
36

1.
28

11
.1

4
38

.6
7

YE
S

36
1.

59
19

.1
7

67
.0

9
YE

S
36

1.
92

31
.1

2
86

41
4.

28
6

4.
5

41
0.

16
3.

45
3.

45
YE

S
41

0.
29

6.
16

6.
16

YE
S

41
0.

45
10

.4
5

12
43

6.
91

2
4.

5
43

2.
63

1.
81

1.
81

YE
S

43
2.

7
3.

19
3.

19
YE

S
43

2.
78

5.
21

77
39

8.
47

7
0

39
8.

79
0

11
.9

7
YE

S
39

9.
01

0
24

.9
2

YE
S

39
9.

26
0

45
41

3.
04

5
3

41
3

3.
48

3.
48

YE
S

41
3.

05
6.

47
6.

47
YE

S
41

3.
11

10
.8

3
98

44
4.

89
8

4.
5

44
0.

75
2.

16
2.

16
YE

S
44

0.
85

3.
6

3.
6

YE
S

44
0.

98
5.

78
58

43
6.

95
8

3
43

7.
41

0.
57

2.
72

YE
S

43
7.

45
0.

9
4.

48
YE

S
43

7.
49

1.
41

72
38

7.
67

2
0

38
7.

82
4.

84
4.

84
YE

S
38

7.
85

8.
33

8.
33

YE
S

38
7.

88
13

.8
3

83
44

9.
98

3
0

44
9.

98
0

0
YE

S
44

9.
98

0
0

YE
S

44
9.

98
0

93
30

1.
99

3
4.

5
30

3.
94

2.
87

10
9.

15
N

O
30

4.
4

4.
94

15
1.

23
N

O
30

4.
79

8.
44

01
30

2.
90

1
5

30
4.

42
11

.3
7

12
8.

93
N

O
30

4.
92

20
.4

7
21

1.
33

N
O

30
5.

23
36

.1
2

.5
30

2.
86

3
3.

36
3

30
3.

69
1.

3
57

.7
7

N
O

30
4.

1
2.

19
92

.2
8

N
O

30
4.

52
3.

53
89

32
5.

48
9

4.
5

32
1.

31
1.

57
1.

57
N

O
32

1.
42

2.
86

2.
86

N
O

32
1.

54
4.

8
64

32
4.

76
4

4.
5

32
0.

51
0.

84
2.

41
N

O
32

0.
6

1.
49

4.
34

N
O

32
0.

69
2.

49
07

36
9.

49
4

0.
42

4
37

1.
99

0
13

7.
38

YE
S

37
2.

47
0

24
6.

05
YE

S
37

2.
83

0
37

31
7

93
7

4
5

31
3

68
2

85
2

85
N

O
31

3
76

5
02

5
02

N
O

31
3

86
8

42



Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
In

fl
(1

00
-y

e

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

 Ju
nc

tio
ns

 R
es

ul
ts

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
 

10
-y

ea
r

10
0-

ye
ar

24
31

1.
12

4
0

31
1.

44
2.

01
3.

95
N

O
31

1.
67

3.
67

12
.4

1
N

O
31

1.
97

6.
18

29
28

3.
82

9
0

28
5.

96
14

.5
55

3.
29

N
O

28
6.

49
24

.9
5

92
8.

24
N

O
28

8.
32

42
.3

2
24

43
8.

12
4

5
43

3.
8

5.
41

5.
41

YE
S

43
4.

03
9.

55
9.

55
YE

S
43

4.
39

16
.6

.3
43

0.
8

4.
5

42
7.

32
10

.6
2

11
.1

8
YE

S
42

8.
18

19
20

.0
5

YE
S

43
0.

57
31

.0
3

22
44

4.
32

2
0

44
4.

34
0

0.
91

YE
S

44
4.

35
0

1.
53

YE
S

44
4.

36
0

87
46

5.
85

7
3.

67
46

2.
43

0.
91

0.
91

YE
S

46
2.

51
1.

54
1.

54
YE

S
46

2.
61

2.
45

31
43

0.
43

1
5.

5
42

5.
83

0
16

.3
8

YE
S

42
6.

17
0

29
.3

5
YE

S
42

6.
65

0
16

45
8.

91
6

0
45

8.
92

0
0

YE
S

45
8.

92
0

0
YE

S
45

8.
92

0
35

47
0.

13
5

0
47

0.
13

0
0

YE
S

47
0.

13
0

0
YE

S
47

0.
13

0
49

43
7.

84
9

0
43

7.
92

0
2.

14
YE

S
43

7.
95

0
3.

73
YE

S
43

8
0

68
45

3.
96

8
4.

5
44

9.
89

2.
16

2.
16

YE
S

45
0.

02
3.

76
3.

76
YE

S
45

0.
19

6.
18

37
45

0.
53

7
0

45
0.

54
0

0
YE

S
45

0.
54

0
0

YE
S

45
0.

54
0

13
44

9.
51

3
0

44
9.

82
5.

82
5.

82
YE

S
44

9.
89

10
.2

9
10

.2
9

YE
S

44
9.

98
17

.4
6

21
40

0.
52

1
4

39
7.

84
12

.8
3

15
.6

6
YE

S
39

8.
49

22
.8

2
29

.6
6

YE
S

40
2.

9
40

.1
1

14
44

2.
11

4
4.

5
43

7.
91

2.
23

2.
23

YE
S

43
8

4
4

YE
S

43
8.

11
6.

85
85

41
4.

84
1

5.
99

1
41

4.
27

0
55

.6
3

YE
S

41
5.

69
0

83
.1

3
YE

S
41

6.
04

0
08

29
7.

60
8

0
29

9.
55

0
23

8.
7

N
O

30
1.

18
0

46
7.

22
N

O
30

1.
93

0
35

43
0.

43
5

3
42

7.
8

2.
21

2.
21

YE
S

42
7.

92
3.

82
3.

82
YE

S
42

8.
07

6.
21

42
36

6.
44

2
4.

5
36

2.
63

7.
36

7.
36

YE
S

36
5.

31
12

.9
7

12
.9

8
YE

S
36

6.
68

22
.6

77
36

3.
77

7
5

36
0.

49
9.

59
22

.4
5

YE
S

36
3.

62
16

.6
8

38
.0

8
YE

S
36

5.
09

29
.5

3
51

36
3.

55
1

4.
5

36
0.

59
5.

1
5.

1
YE

S
36

3.
81

8.
96

8.
96

YE
S

36
5.

09
15

.7
5

71
35

1.
67

1
0

35
1.

71
0

0.
34

YE
S

35
1.

72
0

0.
56

YE
S

35
1.

73
0

42
35

5.
44

2
3

35
2.

56
0.

17
0.

17
YE

S
35

2.
62

0.
28

0.
28

YE
S

35
2.

67
0.

43
17

35
6.

71
7

0
35

6.
74

0
0.

3
YE

S
35

6.
75

0
0.

62
YE

S
35

6.
76

0
38

35
9.

83
8

2
35

8.
06

0.
45

0.
45

YE
S

35
8.

14
0.

79
0.

79
YE

S
35

8.
24

1.
29

92
34

1.
49

2
6

33
6.

99
2.

5
59

.3
9

N
O

33
7.

14
4.

35
69

.6
4

N
O

33
8

7.
16

32
29

3.
53

2
0

29
6.

75
0

54
0.

95
N

O
29

7.
56

0
93

1.
88

N
O

29
8.

93
0

21
36

3.
02

1
6

35
8.

47
6.

39
57

.9
7

YE
S

35
8.

58
10

.6
8

65
.7

3
YE

S
35

8.
91

17
.0

4
18

32
9.

51
8

5
32

9.
92

13
.8

8
48

.9
1

N
O

33
0.

28
24

.0
4

85
.6

9
N

O
33

0.
65

39
.9

1
25

32
9.

25
6

32
5.

74
1.

9
98

.6
5

N
O

32
9.

69
3.

21
12

4.
04

N
O

33
0.

33
5.

16
35

31
4.

23
5

6.
5

31
0.

19
7.

84
12

4.
61

N
O

31
5.

21
13

.2
18

6.
67

N
O

31
6.

37
22

.1
8

05
32

4.
40

5
6.

5
31

9.
91

14
.1

6
12

0.
64

N
O

32
4.

27
24

.2
1

19
4.

13
N

O
32

5.
65

44
.0

6
42

34
3.

74
2

0
34

4.
13

2.
03

36
YE

S
34

4.
27

3.
42

65
.1

7
YE

S
34

4.
38

5.
51

78
39

2.
67

8
4.

5
38

8.
55

2.
37

2.
37

YE
S

38
8.

68
4.

28
4.

28
YE

S
38

8.
85

7.
29

81
39

1.
58

1
4.

5
38

7.
53

4.
06

6.
42

YE
S

38
7.

69
7.

29
11

.5
7

YE
S

38
7.

91
12

.9
4

14
32

3.
81

4
0

32
3.

92
0

6.
39

N
O

32
3.

97
0

11
.5

2
N

O
32

4.
02

0
43

31
1.

84
3

0
31

3.
52

0
33

4.
23

N
O

31
3.

88
0

53
2.

04
N

O
31

5.
04

0
91

29
0.

99
1

4.
5

29
1.

13
4.

17
19

.4
1

N
O

29
1.

51
7.

31
32

.5
4

N
O

29
2.

47
12

.2
3

44
29

3.
94

4.
5

29
4.

05
12

.6
9

17
.1

2
N

O
29

4.
18

22
.1

1
30

.0
1

N
O

29
4.

37
40

.1
3

51
27

6.
60

1
4.

25
27

3.
68

1.
6

1.
69

N
O

27
4.

33
2.

69
2.

92
N

O
29

7.
85

4.
42

.9
28

3.
14

7
0.

24
7

28
2.

91
0

0.
02

N
O

28
2.

91
0

0.
02

N
O

28
2.

91
0

8
28

6
59

3
79

28
3

56
0

53
1

38
N

O
28

3
98

0
89

2
44

N
O

28
4

85
1

43



Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
In

fl
(1

00
-y

e

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

 Ju
nc

tio
ns

 R
es

ul
ts

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
 

10
-y

ea
r

10
0-

ye
ar

93
29

2.
29

3
4.

5
28

7.
99

1.
01

1.
01

N
O

28
8.

05
1.

73
1.

73
N

O
28

8.
12

2.
81

53
38

1.
25

3
0

38
1.

25
0

0
YE

S
38

1.
25

0
0

YE
S

38
1.

25
0

89
34

2.
78

9
0

34
3.

21
1.

61
1.

61
YE

S
34

3.
34

3.
02

3.
02

YE
S

34
3.

48
5.

09
21

29
9.

02
1

0
30

1.
74

0
33

8.
19

N
O

30
2.

11
0

50
5.

61
N

O
30

3.
33

0
72

34
1.

77
2

0
34

1.
82

0
1.

63
N

O
34

1.
84

0
3.

07
N

O
34

1.
86

0
96

36
4.

49
6

0
36

4.
58

0
0.

2
YE

S
36

4.
6

0
0.

44
YE

S
36

4.
62

0
32

36
7.

83
2

3
36

5.
06

0.
36

0.
36

YE
S

36
5.

16
0.

65
0.

65
YE

S
36

5.
26

1.
04

81
39

0.
48

1
0

39
0.

48
0

0
YE

S
39

0.
48

0
0

YE
S

39
0.

48
0

26
36

8.
51

7
0

36
6.

54
0.

98
0.

98
YE

S
36

6.
55

1.
82

1.
82

YE
S

36
6.

56
2.

98
64

37
0.

96
4

0
37

0.
96

0
0

YE
S

37
0.

96
0

0
YE

S
37

0.
96

0
49

38
1.

94
9

3
37

8.
95

0
0

YE
S

37
8.

95
0

0
YE

S
37

8.
95

0
43

33
9.

34
3

0
33

9.
34

0
0

N
O

33
9.

34
0

0
N

O
33

9.
34

0
96

28
9.

19
6

0
29

1.
69

0
54

0.
88

N
O

29
2.

35
0

89
7.

76
N

O
29

3.
38

0
86

35
9.

08
6

4
35

5.
3

0.
89

0.
89

YE
S

35
5.

38
1.

56
1.

56
YE

S
35

5.
46

2.
56

73
33

0.
91

8
0

33
0.

7
0

0.
85

N
O

33
0.

71
0

1.
5

N
O

33
0.

73
0

32
36

1.
33

2
0

36
1.

33
0

0
YE

S
36

1.
33

0
0

YE
S

36
1.

33
0

74
37

0.
06

9
0

36
9.

97
0

0
YE

S
36

9.
97

0
0

YE
S

36
9.

97
0

99
32

5.
29

9
0

32
5.

35
0

2.
03

N
O

32
5.

37
0

3.
6

N
O

32
5.

39
0

84
33

5.
38

4
0

33
5.

67
2.

04
2.

04
N

O
33

5.
76

3.
61

3.
61

N
O

33
5.

86
5.

9
33

31
1.

63
3

4.
5

30
8

3.
74

4.
95

N
O

30
9.

69
6.

3
8.

11
N

O
31

1.
79

10
.6

7
35

31
0.

68
5

4.
25

30
6.

96
1.

93
7.

02
N

O
30

9.
37

3.
38

22
.7

8
N

O
31

1.
55

5.
73

45
31

3.
64

5
3.

5
31

0.
34

0.
73

2.
4

N
O

31
0.

39
1.

19
3.

72
N

O
31

0.
45

1.
95

81
32

6.
63

1
4.

25
32

4.
37

13
.8

14
.6

9
N

O
32

6.
87

24
.5

5
26

.3
6

N
O

32
7.

01
43

.8
52

34
4.

65
2

0
34

4.
66

1.
21

1.
21

YE
S

34
4.

67
2

2
YE

S
34

4.
67

3.
29

39
33

9.
36

8
0

33
8.

44
0.

19
0.

19
N

O
33

8.
45

0.
31

0.
31

N
O

33
8.

45
0.

48
17

32
5.

41
7

0
32

5.
42

0
0

N
O

32
5.

42
0

0
N

O
32

5.
42

0
75

36
0.

87
5

0
36

0.
88

0
0

YE
S

36
0.

88
0

0
YE

S
36

0.
88

0
55

36
1.

56
4

6.
56

4
35

5.
96

1.
91

12
.9

2
YE

S
35

6.
37

3.
4

22
.7

9
YE

S
35

7.
36

5.
69

23
36

1.
52

3
5

35
7.

18
11

.0
2

11
.0

2
YE

S
35

7.
44

19
.3

7
19

.3
7

YE
S

35
8.

09
33

.0
6

71
41

4.
83

7
0

41
4.

17
0

0
YE

S
41

4.
17

0
0

YE
S

41
4.

17
0

47
35

5.
79

7
0

35
5.

65
0

0
YE

S
35

5.
65

0
0

YE
S

35
5.

65
0

59
38

9.
25

9
3.

5
38

6.
85

10
.0

8
10

.7
8

YE
S

38
7.

78
17

.6
5

19
.0

3
YE

S
38

9.
4

28
.8

4
26

38
9.

72
6

4.
5

38
6.

02
1.

78
12

.3
9

YE
S

38
6.

42
3.

09
21

.8
2

YE
S

38
8.

31
5.

16
33

41
7.

70
1

0
41

8.
06

0
23

.1
5

YE
S

41
8.

26
0

39
.6

6
YE

S
41

8.
49

0
22

40
9.

42
2

0
40

9.
62

0.
31

0.
31

YE
S

40
9.

68
0.

54
0.

54
YE

S
40

9.
74

0.
86

26
32

8.
43

9
2.

43
9

32
6.

35
1.

46
1.

46
N

O
33

0.
03

2.
36

64
.6

N
O

33
1.

07
3.

78
39

33
5.

33
9

4.
5

33
1.

04
0.

92
0.

92
N

O
33

1.
09

1.
45

1.
45

N
O

33
1.

15
2.

3
84

35
1.

18
4

4.
5

34
7.

13
0.

37
2.

52
YE

S
34

7.
28

0.
65

4.
26

YE
S

34
7.

46
1.

03
62

37
3.

86
2

4.
5

36
9.

6
0

2.
16

YE
S

36
9.

67
0

3.
64

YE
S

36
9.

75
0

79
37

4.
17

9
4.

5
37

0.
14

2.
17

2.
17

YE
S

37
0.

29
3.

64
3.

64
YE

S
37

0.
48

5.
78

32
43

2.
92

3
0.

92
3

43
2.

33
1.

35
1.

35
YE

S
43

2.
44

2.
3

2.
3

YE
S

43
2.

58
3.

76
85

40
1

04
7

16
04

7
38

5
17

0
03

0
27

YE
S

38
5

21
0

05
0

43
YE

S
38

5
26

0
07



Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
In

fl
(1

00
-y

e

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

 Ju
nc

tio
ns

 R
es

ul
ts

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
 

10
-y

ea
r

10
0-

ye
ar

83
38

9.
31

6.
31

38
3.

37
1.

64
1.

89
YE

S
38

3.
49

2.
96

3.
38

YE
S

38
3.

65
4.

89
.6

37
7.

15
3

0
37

6.
64

0.
56

2.
41

YE
S

37
6.

65
0.

9
4.

22
YE

S
37

6.
67

1.
4

15
34

7.
11

5
4.

5
34

3.
35

5.
96

6.
94

YE
S

34
3.

72
10

.3
9

12
.3

3
YE

S
34

7.
52

17
.5

6
39

33
5.

33
9

5.
5

33
1.

65
0.

99
20

.9
5

N
O

33
3.

67
1.

57
37

.2
4

N
O

33
5.

69
2.

47
74

33
5.

02
4

4.
75

33
1.

83
8.

63
11

.8
1

N
O

33
4.

29
15

.1
1

20
.9

2
N

O
33

5.
79

26
.2

1
01

33
4.

50
1

0
33

4.
77

3.
17

3.
18

N
O

33
4.

86
5.

78
5.

8
N

O
33

5.
8

9.
57

61
33

7.
06

1
5

33
7.

13
0

0
N

O
33

7.
13

0
0.

01
N

O
33

7.
13

0
01

44
2.

01
4

43
9.

94
1

4.
44

YE
S

44
3.

92
1.

69
6.

31
YE

S
44

3.
97

2.
72

45
44

4.
64

5
4

44
1.

26
3.

53
3.

53
YE

S
44

5.
38

6.
1

6.
1

YE
S

44
5.

48
9.

97
68

41
0.

18
4.

5
40

5.
71

4.
58

4.
58

YE
S

40
5.

73
8.

06
8.

06
YE

S
40

5.
74

13
.7

9
91

39
8.

41
4.

5
39

4.
17

1.
33

1.
38

YE
S

39
4.

25
2.

28
2.

38
YE

S
39

4.
36

4.
02

33
39

9.
43

3
3

39
6.

43
0

0
YE

S
39

6.
43

0
0

YE
S

39
6.

55
0

21
42

5.
42

1
0

42
5.

93
5.

46
5.

46
YE

S
42

6.
24

9.
68

9.
68

YE
S

42
6.

31
16

.7
22

44
2.

32
2

4.
5

43
8.

59
3.

83
3.

83
YE

S
43

8.
89

6.
79

6.
79

YE
S

44
0.

1
11

.7
9

38
44

1.
73

8
4.

5
43

7.
8

0.
53

4.
37

YE
S

43
8.

02
0.

85
7.

64
YE

S
43

8.
37

1.
36

48
43

6.
98

3.
5

43
4.

05
0.

76
5.

08
YE

S
43

4.
22

1.
19

8.
77

YE
S

43
4.

47
1.

85
14

43
7.

21
4

4.
5

43
3.

55
0.

35
4.

18
YE

S
43

3.
91

0.
57

7.
15

YE
S

43
7.

21
0.

91
52

43
7.

55
2

4.
5

43
4.

01
3.

84
3.

84
YE

S
43

4.
48

6.
6

6.
6

YE
S

43
7.

55
10

.8
3

81
44

1.
88

1
4.

5
43

7.
5

0.
62

0.
62

YE
S

43
7.

53
0.

96
0.

96
YE

S
43

7.
56

1.
47

47
44

1.
74

7
12

43
0.

12
0

4.
01

YE
S

43
0.

25
0

6.
87

YE
S

43
0.

39
0

98
39

4.
39

8
5.

5
39

0.
07

0.
95

24
.3

8
YE

S
39

0.
53

1.
52

41
.4

8
YE

S
39

4.
42

2.
38

91
43

8.
01

3
0

43
8.

09
0.

61
0.

61
YE

S
43

8.
11

0.
98

0.
98

YE
S

43
8.

13
1.

55
48

43
8.

04
8

0
43

8.
66

3
3

YE
S

43
8.

69
5.

25
5.

25
YE

S
43

8.
72

8.
89

78
43

3.
17

8
5

42
9.

24
9.

51
9.

51
YE

S
43

1.
12

16
.6

6
16

.6
6

YE
S

43
3.

67
28

.3
22

42
8.

42
2

5
42

4.
97

1.
58

10
.8

9
YE

S
42

7.
72

2.
74

17
.7

9
YE

S
42

8.
61

4.
45

05
41

1.
20

5
4.

5
40

7.
08

3.
46

3.
46

YE
S

40
7.

19
5.

7
5.

7
YE

S
40

7.
34

9.
16

45
43

3.
69

5
4.

25
43

0.
15

0
2.

9
YE

S
43

0.
43

0
4.

87
YE

S
43

2.
04

0
77

43
2.

02
4.

25
42

8.
19

0
2.

86
YE

S
42

8.
33

0
4.

77
YE

S
42

8.
47

0
25

39
9.

96
5

0
39

9.
83

0
0

YE
S

39
9.

84
0

0
YE

S
39

9.
84

0
53

43
9.

85
3

0
43

9.
97

0
5.

6
YE

S
44

0.
02

0
10

YE
S

44
0.

09
0

08
40

1.
70

8
0

40
2.

49
0

0.
17

YE
S

40
2.

5
0

0.
26

YE
S

40
2.

5
0

71
39

5.
87

1
0

39
6.

35
0

5.
17

YE
S

39
6.

37
0

8.
53

YE
S

39
6.

4
0

16
39

6.
81

6
0

39
7.

05
5.

23
5.

23
YE

S
39

7.
13

8.
61

8.
61

YE
S

39
7.

24
14

.0
4

67
40

4.
36

7
0

40
4.

4
0.

18
0.

18
YE

S
40

4.
4

0.
27

0.
27

YE
S

40
4.

41
0.

4
67

40
1.

92
3

0
40

0.
71

2.
23

2.
23

YE
S

40
0.

73
3.

85
3.

85
YE

S
40

0.
75

6.
26

91
40

8.
29

1
4.

5
40

4.
83

3.
8

5.
26

YE
S

40
5.

5
6.

06
8.

19
YE

S
40

7.
92

9.
55

25
40

7.
69

5
4.

67
40

3.
55

1.
16

6.
38

YE
S

40
3.

68
1.

93
9.

78
YE

S
40

3.
87

3.
13

69
39

2.
43

9
4.

67
38

8.
74

1.
8

8.
07

YE
S

38
9.

11
2.

96
12

.5
6

YE
S

39
0.

18
4.

73
33

43
5.

73
3

3
43

2.
89

1.
17

1.
17

YE
S

43
2.

94
1.

83
1.

83
YE

S
43

3
2.

85
.7

41
1.

90
9

7.
20

9
40

6.
71

0.
6

97
.8

4
YE

S
40

7.
8

0.
98

18
3.

69
YE

S
40

9.
17

1.
59

86
38

0.
22

1
3.

13
5

37
7.

38
0

15
.2

7
YE

S
37

7.
51

0
29

.4
4

YE
S

37
7.

59
0

74
41

1
67

4
4

5
40

7
46

0
94

0
94

YE
S

40
7

85
1

57
1

57
YE

S
41

0
09

2
61



Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
In

fl
(1

00
-y

e

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

 Ju
nc

tio
ns

 R
es

ul
ts

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
 

10
-y

ea
r

10
0-

ye
ar

39
38

7.
39

0
38

7.
75

0
1.

22
YE

S
38

8.
02

0
2.

13
YE

S
38

8.
35

0
39

44
7.

55
8.

55
44

6.
64

7.
24

9.
95

YE
S

44
6.

8
12

.5
6

17
.7

5
YE

S
44

6.
9

21
.1

1
40

44
8.

48
2

8.
48

2
44

6.
64

2.
35

4.
56

YE
S

44
6.

84
3.

95
4.

5
YE

S
44

6.
99

6.
34

57
46

6.
87

3
9.

87
3

46
3.

5
3.

85
88

.1
7

YE
S

46
7.

04
6.

42
12

0.
48

YE
S

46
7.

27
10

.4
9

05
40

3.
10

5
4.

5
39

9.
05

2.
02

2.
02

YE
S

39
9.

18
3.

35
3.

35
YE

S
39

9.
35

5.
55

99
42

6.
09

9
0

42
6.

31
0

7.
03

YE
S

42
6.

4
0

12
.9

2
YE

S
42

6.
52

0
02

41
5.

32
5

0
41

5.
04

1.
9

2.
27

YE
S

41
5.

05
2.

93
3.

57
YE

S
41

5.
06

4.
5

41
49

5.
64

1
5

49
0.

85
0.

25
0.

27
YE

S
49

0.
9

0.
41

0.
6

YE
S

49
0.

99
0.

65
92

50
2.

99
2

5
49

8.
27

1.
33

1.
33

YE
S

49
8.

36
2.

37
2.

37
YE

S
49

8.
48

4.
18

63
50

1.
46

3
4.

5
49

7.
1

0.
32

0.
32

YE
S

49
7.

15
0.

56
0.

56
YE

S
49

7.
19

0.
9

91
49

2.
59

1
5.

5
48

7.
33

1.
19

1.
54

YE
S

48
7.

41
2

2.
73

YE
S

48
7.

5
3.

21
89

50
6.

89
3

50
3.

89
0

0
YE

S
50

3.
89

0
0

YE
S

50
3.

89
0

33
39

5.
33

3
39

2.
73

0
5.

11
YE

S
39

2.
85

0
8.

05
YE

S
39

3.
03

0
07

41
0.

83
2

3.
83

2
40

7.
33

5.
12

5.
12

YE
S

40
7.

41
8.

07
8.

07
YE

S
40

7.
51

12
.6

1
73

40
9.

77
3

0
40

9.
77

0
0

YE
S

40
9.

77
0

0
YE

S
40

9.
77

0
56

41
0.

65
6

3
40

7.
66

0
0

YE
S

40
7.

66
0

0
YE

S
40

7.
66

0
25

42
9.

02
5

3
42

6.
05

0
2.

21
YE

S
42

6.
06

0
3.

82
YE

S
42

6.
08

0
79

41
1.

17
9

3
40

8.
18

0
0

YE
S

40
8.

18
0

0
YE

S
40

8.
18

0
91

42
6.

29
1

4.
5

42
2.

31
0.

93
1.

44
YE

S
42

2.
49

1.
6

2.
48

YE
S

42
2.

71
2.

58
17

43
3.

11
7

4.
5

42
8.

77
0.

51
0.

51
YE

S
42

8.
82

0.
88

0.
88

YE
S

42
8.

87
1.

41
16

40
7.

31
6

3
40

4.
5

0
2.

81
YE

S
40

4.
55

0
4.

47
YE

S
40

4.
61

0
92

49
5.

69
2

3
49

2.
8

0.
72

0.
72

YE
S

49
2.

84
1.

28
1.

28
YE

S
49

2.
88

2.
11

75
45

6.
57

5
5

45
1.

75
0.

53
2.

39
YE

S
45

1.
8

0.
91

4.
34

YE
S

45
1.

87
1.

46
46

46
1.

44
6

5
45

6.
73

1.
87

1.
87

YE
S

45
6.

83
3.

44
3.

44
YE

S
45

6.
94

5.
78

99
40

0.
5

1.
5

40
0.

33
0

15
.8

6
YE

S
40

0.
69

0
26

.9
YE

S
40

0.
81

0
41

42
4.

14
1

4.
5

41
9.

82
0.

51
0.

51
YE

S
41

9.
87

0.
8

0.
8

YE
S

41
9.

92
1.

24
27

35
7.

82
7

0
35

8.
14

0
24

.5
5

YE
S

35
8.

26
0

41
.3

1
YE

S
35

8.
37

0
25

43
1.

62
5

3.
5

42
8.

32
0.

86
0.

86
YE

S
42

8.
37

1.
38

1.
38

YE
S

42
8.

44
2.

2
77

43
1.

67
7

3.
5

42
8.

4
0.

9
0.

9
YE

S
42

8.
46

1.
44

1.
44

YE
S

42
8.

53
2.

27
77

48
2.

09
4

5.
09

4
47

7.
17

0.
35

0.
54

YE
S

47
7.

21
0.

54
0.

83
YE

S
47

7.
25

0.
82

27
48

2.
02

7
4.

5
47

7.
65

0.
19

0.
19

YE
S

47
7.

68
0.

29
0.

29
YE

S
47

7.
71

0.
45

93
46

7.
09

3
3.

5
46

3.
88

1.
03

1.
03

YE
S

46
3.

95
1.

6
1.

6
YE

S
46

4.
05

2.
47

71
46

6.
87

1
3.

5
46

3.
64

1.
28

1.
28

YE
S

46
3.

72
2

2
YE

S
46

3.
83

3.
1

41
47

8.
04

1
3.

5
47

4.
89

1.
57

1.
57

YE
S

47
4.

98
2.

56
2.

56
YE

S
47

5.
1

4.
05

47
44

5.
34

7
4.

5
44

1.
06

1.
18

1.
18

YE
S

44
1.

11
1.

85
1.

85
YE

S
44

1.
17

2.
88

93
44

0.
39

3
5

43
5.

74
0.

1
4.

79
YE

S
43

5.
83

0.
16

7.
61

YE
S

43
5.

94
0.

24
49

28
4.

96
0

28
6.

93
0

46
0.

04
N

O
28

6.
99

0
52

7.
84

N
O

28
8.

89
0

04
44

0.
70

4
4.

5
43

6.
68

0.
41

3.
52

YE
S

43
6.

81
0.

67
5.

61
YE

S
43

6.
98

1.
06

62
44

1.
66

2
4

43
7.

89
0.

66
0.

66
YE

S
43

7.
95

1.
05

1.
05

YE
S

43
8.

03
1.

66
34

44
0.

93
4

4.
5

43
6.

99
2.

46
2.

46
YE

S
43

7.
16

3.
91

3.
91

YE
S

43
7.

39
6.

14
07

40
1.

57
3.

5
39

9.
13

4.
91

7.
18

YE
S

40
1.

88
9.

23
12

.7
1

YE
S

40
2.

57
16

.0
1

92
40

1
79

2
4

5
39

8
95

1
97

8
89

YE
S

40
1

34
3

53
15

4
YE

S
40

2
56

6
05



Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
In

fl
(1

00
-y

e

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

 Ju
nc

tio
ns

 R
es

ul
ts

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
 

10
-y

ea
r

10
0-

ye
ar

61
40

0.
27

1
3

39
4.

67
0.

41
0.

41
YE

S
39

4.
68

1.
09

1.
09

YE
S

39
4.

68
1.

96
76

40
2.

67
6

3
40

0.
02

0.
15

1.
51

YE
S

40
1.

94
0.

24
2.

84
YE

S
40

2.
63

0.
38

74
41

4.
41

5
0

41
4.

21
0

1.
35

YE
S

41
4.

23
0

2.
7

YE
S

41
4.

25
0

.9
27

4.
05

2.
15

27
3.

55
0

16
.8

2
N

O
27

4.
14

0
11

0.
59

N
O

27
5.

68
0

95
41

9.
45

1
0

41
9.

3
0

0
YE

S
41

9.
3

0
0

YE
S

41
9.

3
0

39
44

8.
03

9
3

44
5.

04
0

0
YE

S
44

5.
04

0
0

YE
S

44
5.

04
0

01
46

1.
00

1
0

46
1.

24
2.

03
2.

03
YE

S
46

1.
32

3.
61

3.
61

YE
S

46
1.

4
5.

91
62

41
3.

16
2

3
41

0.
39

1.
38

1.
38

YE
S

41
0.

47
2.

62
2.

62
YE

S
41

0.
56

4.
53

49
41

7.
24

9
3

41
4.

25
0

0
YE

S
41

4.
25

0
0

YE
S

41
4.

25
0

72
39

6.
07

2
3

39
3.

63
0.

07
2.

04
YE

S
39

3.
8

0.
16

3.
68

YE
S

39
3.

98
0.

28
26

44
4.

92
6

3
44

1.
93

0
0

YE
S

44
1.

93
0

0
YE

S
44

1.
93

0
14

42
1.

14
3

41
8.

44
1.

49
1.

49
YE

S
41

8.
56

2.
9

2.
9

YE
S

41
8.

68
4.

9
92

39
2.

39
2

0
39

2.
44

0
1.

81
YE

S
39

2.
46

0
3.

38
YE

S
39

2.
49

0
92

32
2.

49
2

4.
5

31
8.

57
3.

23
3.

23
N

O
31

8.
81

5.
83

5.
83

N
O

31
9.

23
10

.3
8

32
27

1.
85

2
0

27
3.

55
0

39
4.

73
N

O
27

4.
05

0
72

9
N

O
27

5.
54

0
15

32
4.

71
5

8
31

7.
33

2.
3

5.
5

N
O

31
7.

53
4.

06
9.

84
N

O
31

7.
82

7.
08

66
31

7.
36

6
5

31
2.

71
3.

89
3.

89
N

O
31

2.
83

7.
17

7.
17

N
O

31
2.

97
11

.9
2

63
31

3.
96

3
5.

5
30

9.
02

7.
09

10
.9

6
N

O
30

9.
22

12
.9

20
.0

4
N

O
30

9.
47

22
.1

08
31

1.
90

8
6

30
6.

43
0.

71
11

.4
4

N
O

30
6.

62
1.

14
21

.7
2

N
O

30
6.

9
1.

8
23

31
1.

32
3

7
30

5.
21

0.
26

27
.5

7
N

O
30

5.
6

0.
4

50
.9

6
N

O
30

6.
15

0.
61

98
31

1.
09

8
4.

5
30

6.
75

0.
65

0.
65

N
O

30
6.

8
1.

15
1.

15
N

O
30

6.
86

1.
88

89
31

2.
78

9
0

31
3

1.
18

1.
18

N
O

31
3.

08
2.

16
2.

16
N

O
31

3.
16

3.
66

01
31

1.
50

1
5

30
7.

44
2.

65
2.

65
N

O
30

7.
68

4.
1

4.
1

N
O

30
8.

01
6.

33
99

37
3.

69
9

4.
5

37
0.

08
5.

18
5.

18
YE

S
37

0.
47

9.
51

9.
51

YE
S

37
2.

85
16

.4
3

65
39

3.
76

5
0

39
3.

94
4.

51
4.

51
YE

S
39

4
8.

05
8.

05
YE

S
39

4.
07

14
.0

4
15

38
6.

65
4.

5
38

4.
25

11
.1

8
11

.1
8

YE
S

38
6.

73
20

.0
3

20
.0

3
YE

S
38

6.
87

36
.3

7
95

38
6.

09
5

4.
5

38
2.

17
2.

8
2.

8
YE

S
38

2.
86

5.
1

8.
09

YE
S

38
6.

68
8.

79
22

42
4.

45
8

2.
45

8
42

5.
15

5.
31

5.
31

YE
S

42
5.

25
9.

28
9.

28
YE

S
42

5.
33

15
.6

34
40

3.
34

3
40

3.
37

2.
79

3.
1

YE
S

40
3.

42
4.

81
5.

47
YE

S
40

3.
46

8.
15

82
40

3.
58

2
0

40
3.

82
5.

91
5.

91
YE

S
40

3.
88

9.
79

9.
79

YE
S

40
3.

95
15

.6
4

99
39

2.
19

9
4.

5
38

8.
04

4.
19

4.
19

YE
S

38
8.

19
7.

66
8.

48
YE

S
38

8.
55

13
.2

8
87

39
2.

08
7

8
38

5.
87

9.
42

87
.6

8
YE

S
38

6.
53

16
.2

2
15

4.
03

YE
S

38
7.

21
27

.1
1

34
39

4.
03

4
5

38
9.

25
0.

77
0.

77
YE

S
38

9.
35

1.
32

1.
32

YE
S

39
4.

24
2.

17
16

40
6.

91
6

7
40

1.
47

6.
67

71
.7

9
YE

S
40

2.
07

11
.9

2
12

7.
24

YE
S

40
2.

27
20

.6
5

01
36

6.
05

6
0

36
5.

9
0

0
YE

S
36

5.
9

0
0

YE
S

36
5.

9
0

91
40

9.
59

1
6

40
5.

6
11

.9
1

65
.8

6
YE

S
40

9.
78

21
.1

1
12

0.
61

YE
S

41
0.

25
35

.9
1

55
41

9.
15

5
7

41
3.

6
2.

66
54

.2
5

YE
S

41
4.

2
4.

8
99

.9
3

YE
S

41
5.

29
8.

13
51

41
7.

75
1

7
41

2.
01

2.
7

56
.1

7
YE

S
41

2.
78

4.
91

10
4.

05
YE

S
41

4.
2

8.
52

97
43

2.
97

4
42

9.
45

3.
75

3.
75

YE
S

42
9.

66
6.

72
6.

72
YE

S
43

3
11

.2
5

37
41

6.
93

7
0

41
8.

75
3.

73
3.

73
YE

S
41

8.
77

6.
52

6.
52

YE
S

41
8.

79
10

.9
7

02
37

8.
20

2
6

37
2.

82
5.

71
10

.6
1

YE
S

37
3.

04
9.

78
19

.2
2

YE
S

37
3.

35
16

.8
2

36
37

9
13

6
4

5
37

5
32

2
6

5
4

YE
S

37
5

67
4

53
10

37
YE

S
37

8
74

7
67



Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
In

fl
(1

00
-y

e

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

 Ju
nc

tio
ns

 R
es

ul
ts

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
 

10
-y

ea
r

10
0-

ye
ar

47
41

7.
74

7
5

41
3.

68
0

15
.3

8
YE

S
41

5.
09

0
27

.3
5

YE
S

41
8.

3
0

38
29

4.
13

8
0

29
8.

66
0

43
7.

03
N

O
29

8.
83

0
53

0.
03

N
O

30
0.

71
0

43
35

1.
04

3
4.

5
34

7.
18

2.
9

5.
65

YE
S

34
7.

42
5.

04
9.

76
YE

S
34

7.
84

8.
7

45
41

4.
04

5
4

41
0.

33
3.

54
3.

54
YE

S
41

0.
41

6.
2

6.
2

YE
S

41
0.

52
10

.4
06

35
9.

00
6

4.
5

35
5.

86
6.

56
9.

84
YE

S
35

6.
85

11
.3

8
17

.2
6

YE
S

35
8.

69
19

.8
4

59
37

5.
95

9
6

37
1.

15
7.

94
19

.3
8

YE
S

37
1.

58
13

.9
34

.6
3

YE
S

37
2.

42
24

.1
3

.7
37

6.
7

1
37

5.
7

0
0

YE
S

37
5.

7
0

0
YE

S
37

5.
7

0
12

43
5.

41
2

3
43

2.
51

0.
32

0.
32

YE
S

43
2.

53
0.

51
0.

51
YE

S
43

2.
56

0.
8

26
42

1.
65

3
0

42
1.

34
0

0.
19

YE
S

42
1.

35
0

0.
31

YE
S

42
1.

36
0

07
43

2.
20

7
3

43
1.

68
0.

88
0.

99
YE

S
43

1.
69

1.
38

1.
55

YE
S

43
1.

7
2.

14
13

44
4.

13
3

44
1.

22
0.

16
0.

16
YE

S
44

1.
24

0.
25

0.
25

YE
S

44
1.

26
0.

38
95

29
8.

69
5

0
30

3.
2

0
37

4.
13

N
O

30
3.

5
0

48
2.

9
N

O
30

5.
01

0
04

36
2.

10
4

4.
5

35
7.

95
1.

38
1.

38
YE

S
35

8.
07

2.
5

2.
5

YE
S

35
8.

21
4.

09
29

35
0.

92
9

0
35

1.
04

0
1.

34
YE

S
35

1.
07

0
2.

45
YE

S
35

1.
1

0
93

34
7.

59
3

5
34

3.
87

8.
52

8.
83

YE
S

34
4.

65
15

.3
7

16
.2

YE
S

34
8.

01
26

.1
4

14
38

5.
14

10
37

6.
01

7.
35

17
.2

YE
S

37
6.

39
13

.3
3

31
.1

5
YE

S
37

7.
46

22
.8

5
78

38
6.

77
8

3
38

5.
93

0.
22

0.
26

YE
S

38
5.

93
0.

41
0.

47
YE

S
38

5.
94

0.
66

92
38

2.
69

2
3

37
9.

79
0.

11
0.

11
YE

S
37

9.
82

0.
2

0.
2

YE
S

37
9.

85
0.

33
31

38
0.

03
1

3
37

7.
63

0.
75

0.
86

YE
S

37
8.

08
1.

6
1.

79
YE

S
37

9.
15

2.
83

81
40

3.
98

1
0

40
4.

16
0

0.
26

YE
S

40
4.

26
0

0.
46

YE
S

40
4.

89
0

63
41

1.
06

3
4.

5
40

6.
75

0.
27

0.
27

YE
S

40
6.

8
0.

47
0.

47
YE

S
40

6.
87

0.
76

46
30

6.
13

8
0

31
2.

62
0

51
5.

98
N

O
31

3.
84

0
79

2.
24

N
O

31
4.

95
0

46
44

5.
34

6
3

44
2.

62
3

3
YE

S
44

2.
72

5.
43

5.
43

YE
S

44
2.

83
9.

28
34

42
0.

13
4

3
41

7.
24

0.
18

0.
18

YE
S

41
7.

28
0.

31
0.

31
YE

S
41

7.
31

0.
5

84
43

9.
58

4
3

43
6.

64
0.

1
0.

1
YE

S
43

6.
65

0.
16

0.
16

YE
S

43
6.

67
0.

24
17

41
8.

49
8

3
41

1.
92

0
0.

27
YE

S
41

1.
93

0
0.

46
YE

S
41

1.
93

0
65

42
9.

46
5

5.
5

42
4.

79
3.

79
10

.7
9

YE
S

42
5.

38
6.

8
19

.1
4

YE
S

42
8.

27
12

.2
5

57
45

8.
05

4
1.

05
4

45
7.

07
0.

1
0.

1
YE

S
45

7.
09

0.
16

0.
16

YE
S

45
7.

11
0.

25
78

45
7.

69
9

3.
5

45
3.

79
0.

21
0.

28
YE

S
45

3.
8

0.
35

0.
46

YE
S

45
3.

8
0.

54
92

45
2.

59
2

0
45

2.
61

0
0.

27
YE

S
45

2.
61

0
0.

45
YE

S
45

2.
62

0
32

45
6.

73
2

0
45

6.
98

0
0.

02
YE

S
45

6.
98

0
0.

04
YE

S
45

6.
98

0
98

42
5.

79
8

4.
5

42
1.

56
1.

29
1.

29
YE

S
42

1.
65

2.
34

2.
34

YE
S

42
1.

75
3.

87
21

33
7.

32
1

0
33

7.
56

0.
35

0.
35

N
O

33
7.

63
0.

55
0.

55
N

O
33

7.
71

0.
85

01
41

6.
85

5
0

41
6.

86
0

1.
27

YE
S

41
6.

89
0

2.
31

YE
S

41
6.

92
0

19
40

3.
91

9
0

40
4.

3
0

2.
37

YE
S

40
4.

32
0

4.
32

YE
S

40
4.

35
0

55
43

9.
35

5
0

43
9.

58
1.

38
1.

38
YE

S
43

9.
66

2.
58

2.
58

YE
S

43
9.

75
4.

35
32

45
1.

23
2

3
44

8.
39

0.
72

0.
72

YE
S

44
8.

44
1.

25
1.

25
YE

S
44

8.
49

2.
01

06
40

8.
02

3
2.

02
3

40
6.

28
0.

78
0.

85
YE

S
40

6.
38

1.
43

1.
55

YE
S

40
6.

49
2.

34
99

40
4.

49
9

0
40

4.
63

0
0.

84
YE

S
40

4.
65

0
1.

53
YE

S
40

4.
66

0
23

42
4.

72
3

3
42

1.
77

0.
08

0.
08

YE
S

42
1.

78
0.

12
0.

12
YE

S
42

1.
79

0.
18

57
40

1.
15

7
0

40
1.

31
0.

31
0.

54
YE

S
40

1.
37

0.
63

1.
08

YE
S

40
1.

42
1.

06
34

40
8

23
4

0
40

8
35

0
24

0
24

YE
S

40
8

4
0

46
0

46
YE

S
40

8
44

0
76



Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
In

fl
(1

00
-y

e

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

 Ju
nc

tio
ns

 R
es

ul
ts

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
 

10
-y

ea
r

10
0-

ye
ar

03
48

7.
00

3
0

48
7

0
0

YE
S

48
7

0
0

YE
S

48
7

0
15

45
9.

71
5

0
45

9.
71

0
0

YE
S

45
9.

71
0

0
YE

S
45

9.
71

0
09

45
8.

40
7

0
45

8.
21

0
0

YE
S

45
8.

21
0

0
YE

S
45

8.
21

0
37

46
6.

29
8

0
46

5.
84

0
0

YE
S

46
5.

84
0

0
YE

S
46

5.
84

0
77

42
5.

17
7

4.
5

42
0.

97
0.

27
2.

92
YE

S
42

1.
11

0.
46

6.
28

YE
S

42
1.

82
0.

73
81

42
4.

88
1

8
41

8.
47

0.
45

37
.6

8
YE

S
41

9.
18

0.
78

69
.8

8
YE

S
42

1.
12

1.
25

01
42

7.
70

1
12

41
7.

38
15

.0
1

50
.3

2
YE

S
41

8.
12

26
.9

1
92

.6
7

YE
S

41
9.

83
48

.5
1

15
42

7.
36

1
12

.3
61

41
6.

59
1.

21
51

.2
YE

S
41

7.
33

2.
03

94
.1

3
YE

S
41

8.
96

3.
32

.6
42

0.
6

7
41

5.
39

1.
83

52
.4

8
YE

S
41

6.
21

3.
31

96
.5

3
YE

S
41

7.
7

5.
66

48
42

9.
94

8
4

43
0.

1
17

.6
3

17
.6

3
YE

S
43

0.
19

31
.2

1
31

.2
1

YE
S

43
0.

3
55

.9
7

28
31

7.
12

8
0

32
2.

32
0

42
9.

37
N

O
32

2.
9

0
60

6.
05

N
O

32
4.

13
0

74
42

5.
32

4
5.

25
42

0.
42

1.
73

3.
16

YE
S

42
0.

55
3.

08
6.

13
YE

S
42

1.
58

5.
13

28
42

4.
72

8
7

41
9.

07
3.

99
18

.7
5

YE
S

41
9.

64
7.

26
32

.3
9

YE
S

42
1.

49
12

.6
9

67
43

8.
86

7
0

43
9.

11
0.

93
0.

93
YE

S
43

9.
23

2.
06

2.
06

YE
S

43
9.

37
4.

08
34

43
4.

52
2

0.
52

2
43

4.
45

1.
36

1.
36

YE
S

43
4.

66
2.

36
2.

36
YE

S
43

4.
99

3.
92

01
43

4.
40

1
0

43
4.

81
0

0.
03

YE
S

43
4.

83
0

0.
05

YE
S

43
4.

85
0

78
43

7.
45

8
0

43
7.

63
4.

97
4.

97
YE

S
43

7.
66

8.
95

9.
64

YE
S

43
7.

7
15

.2
6

44
43

7.
24

4
0

43
7.

64
2.

35
2.

4
YE

S
43

7.
71

4.
16

4.
16

YE
S

43
7.

83
7.

01
.5

44
3.

02
5

2.
52

5
44

0.
76

0.
26

2.
56

YE
S

44
0.

91
0.

45
4.

57
YE

S
44

1.
06

0.
71

12
44

6.
41

2
4.

5
44

2.
65

2.
35

2.
35

YE
S

44
2.

93
4.

2
4.

2
YE

S
44

3.
99

7.
07

96
43

9.
59

6
3

43
7.

85
0.

5
11

.3
6

YE
S

43
8.

64
0.

76
12

.7
3

YE
S

43
9.

6
1.

16
83

40
6.

01
0

40
4.

18
0

0
YE

S
40

4.
18

0
0

YE
S

40
4.

18
0

95
44

0.
49

5
3.

5
44

0.
02

10
.8

9
10

.8
9

YE
S

44
0.

75
19

.2
9

19
.2

9
YE

S
44

0.
85

34
.3

4
58

48
2.

12
8

2.
67

47
9.

46
0

0
YE

S
47

9.
46

0
0

YE
S

47
9.

46
0

95
48

2.
19

5
4

47
8.

74
3.

4
3.

71
YE

S
47

9.
02

6.
11

6.
82

YE
S

48
2.

27
10

.4
7

79
46

8.
79

0
46

8.
96

0
3.

7
YE

S
46

9.
01

0
6.

79
YE

S
46

9.
04

0
57

49
1.

85
7

0
49

2.
02

0.
56

0.
56

YE
S

49
2.

07
1

1
YE

S
49

2.
13

1.
61

81
43

3.
88

1
3.

5
43

4.
02

0
5.

59
YE

S
43

4.
07

0
10

.2
YE

S
43

4.
14

0
11

43
8.

64
1

3.
33

43
8.

71
0

4.
05

YE
S

43
8.

75
0

7.
7

YE
S

43
8.

81
0

05
44

8.
00

5
0

44
8.

1
0.

98
11

.7
7

YE
S

44
8.

13
1.

71
18

.0
3

YE
S

44
8.

16
2.

86
34

44
9.

92
7

0
44

9.
86

15
.4

2
15

.5
1

YE
S

44
9.

95
27

.7
7

27
.7

7
YE

S
45

0.
07

50
.5

6
12

42
4.

21
2

0
42

4.
21

0
0

YE
S

42
4.

21
0

0
YE

S
42

4.
21

0
46

40
8.

44
6

0
40

8.
45

0
0

YE
S

40
8.

45
0

0
YE

S
40

8.
45

0
32

41
1.

03
2

4
41

0.
74

13
.9

3
16

.7
7

YE
S

41
1.

45
25

.0
1

25
.9

2
YE

S
41

1.
64

44
.4

6
.5

41
1.

09
4.

59
41

0.
21

3.
53

19
.3

1
YE

S
41

1.
33

6.
41

21
.8

7
YE

S
41

1.
51

11
.3

4
.8

41
1.

16
2

5.
36

2
40

9.
01

2.
7

21
.6

YE
S

41
1.

58
4.

72
24

.3
1

YE
S

41
2.

24
7.

73
55

41
1.

55
6

40
8.

46
1.

14
70

.5
7

YE
S

41
1.

52
2.

02
81

.7
3

YE
S

41
2.

18
3.

36
87

41
3.

38
7

6
40

9.
67

3.
07

30
.0

1
YE

S
41

3.
84

5.
36

52
.6

9
YE

S
41

4.
16

8.
71

56
40

3.
65

6
6.

5
40

4.
09

4.
62

76
.2

2
YE

S
40

4.
64

8.
07

95
.7

2
YE

S
40

4.
96

14
.4

9
63

40
3.

86
3

7
40

3.
91

0.
26

81
.0

3
YE

S
40

4.
56

0.
43

87
.8

5
YE

S
40

4.
93

0.
69

17
43

0.
21

7
6

42
4.

9
0.

22
18

.1
3

YE
S

42
5.

13
0.

35
32

.4
5

YE
S

42
5.

46
0.

53
47

43
0

94
7

6
42

5
41

4
77

4
77

YE
S

42
5

58
8

54
8

54
YE

S
42

5
84

15
18



Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
In

fl
(1

00
-y

e

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

 Ju
nc

tio
ns

 R
es

ul
ts

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
 

10
-y

ea
r

10
0-

ye
ar

62
42

4.
36

2
6

41
9.

91
7.

64
24

.5
3

YE
S

42
0.

51
13

.1
4

41
.4

3
YE

S
42

1.
44

21
.7

2
22

42
4.

22
6

41
9.

16
0.

9
25

.3
3

YE
S

41
9.

46
1.

59
44

.1
YE

S
42

0.
27

2.
67

26
43

6.
02

6
6

43
0.

86
9.

17
13

.7
8

YE
S

43
1.

11
16

.3
7

22
.7

4
YE

S
43

1.
47

29
.0

3
32

43
4.

03
2

5.
5

42
9.

28
2.

19
16

.4
2

YE
S

42
9.

52
3.

68
27

.6
YE

S
42

9.
94

6.
04

77
43

8.
27

7
6

43
2.

83
13

.1
5

13
.1

5
YE

S
43

3.
02

23
.5

9
23

.5
9

YE
S

43
3.

27
42

.0
2

24
44

3.
02

4
3

44
2.

17
0.

29
0.

29
YE

S
44

2.
18

0.
44

0.
44

YE
S

44
2.

18
0.

67
03

43
9.

70
3

0
43

9.
82

0.
22

0.
22

YE
S

43
9.

84
0.

35
0.

35
YE

S
43

9.
87

0.
54

37
43

7.
63

7
0

43
7.

68
0

0.
24

YE
S

43
7.

69
0

0.
36

YE
S

43
7.

71
0

31
47

0.
03

1
9.

5
46

1.
33

0.
16

9.
49

YE
S

46
1.

33
0.

27
9.

65
YE

S
46

1.
34

0.
42

57
45

2.
35

7
3.

5
45

2.
37

1.
62

16
.6

8
YE

S
45

2.
51

3
23

.5
1

YE
S

45
2.

59
5.

21
39

38
7.

23
5

0
38

5.
58

0
2.

83
YE

S
38

5.
59

0
4.

77
YE

S
38

5.
61

0
.3

45
3.

3
4

45
4.

04
5.

86
11

.9
2

YE
S

45
4.

23
10

.5
27

.9
7

YE
S

45
4.

38
17

.7
8

36
46

9.
33

6
4.

5
46

9.
15

0.
18

12
.3

5
YE

S
46

9.
4

0.
27

15
.2

5
YE

S
46

9.
48

0.
42

21
46

5.
52

1
4.

5
46

5.
75

0.
21

12
.4

1
YE

S
46

5.
76

0.
32

13
.0

4
YE

S
46

5.
77

0.
5

07
47

0.
30

7
4.

5
47

1.
67

11
.2

1
19

.3
2

YE
S

47
1.

72
20

.0
9

28
.8

7
YE

S
47

1.
8

35
.2

73
50

8.
67

3
3

50
5.

67
0

0
YE

S
50

5.
67

0
0

YE
S

50
5.

67
0

05
50

8.
70

9
3.

70
9

50
5

0
0

YE
S

50
5

0
0

YE
S

50
5

0
98

51
0.

09
8

0
51

0.
1

0
0

YE
S

51
0.

1
0

0
YE

S
51

0.
1

0
93

48
6.

59
3

0
48

6.
59

0
0

YE
S

48
6.

59
0

0
YE

S
48

6.
7

0
47

50
6.

34
7

4.
5

50
2.

39
2.

17
2.

17
YE

S
50

2.
59

3.
88

3.
88

YE
S

50
2.

9
6.

55
08

37
3.

30
8

0
37

3.
69

0
1.

95
YE

S
37

3.
7

0
3.

25
YE

S
37

3.
72

0
11

49
8.

31
1

4.
5

49
4.

5
1.

59
6.

2
YE

S
49

4.
68

2.
9

8.
85

YE
S

49
8.

74
5.

02
73

49
3.

17
3

4.
5

48
9.

41
1.

73
7.

41
YE

S
49

1.
16

3.
12

11
.7

YE
S

49
3.

32
5.

33
51

48
8.

75
1

4.
5

48
5.

49
3.

73
10

.9
9

YE
S

48
8.

94
6.

75
16

.9
5

YE
S

48
9.

2
11

.8
1

45
47

8.
34

5
4.

5
47

9.
05

2.
5

13
.3

3
YE

S
47

9.
31

4.
1

12
.1

9
YE

S
47

9.
45

6.
42

77
43

6.
67

7
2

43
4.

68
0

0
YE

S
43

4.
68

0
0

YE
S

43
4.

68
0

11
51

2.
21

1
3

50
9.

28
0.

13
0.

13
YE

S
50

9.
3

0.
23

0.
23

YE
S

50
9.

32
0.

36
15

42
0.

31
5

5
41

5.
8

6.
23

6.
42

YE
S

41
5.

96
11

.0
3

11
.3

7
YE

S
41

6.
19

18
.3

9
62

41
0.

37
2.

75
40

8.
8

1.
46

12
.8

3
YE

S
41

1.
94

2.
23

23
.5

7
YE

S
41

2.
31

3.
39

.2
41

4.
29

3.
09

41
1.

94
4.

8
4.

94
YE

S
41

3.
58

8.
12

12
.7

7
YE

S
41

5.
78

13
.9

4
39

40
1.

88
2.

49
40

3.
78

8.
67

72
.8

1
YE

S
40

3.
99

14
.3

5
10

5.
63

YE
S

40
4.

36
23

.5
3

63
40

4.
24

2.
61

40
5.

13
2.

49
15

.0
3

YE
S

40
5.

56
4.

18
24

.0
8

YE
S

40
5.

89
6.

92
45

40
0.

05
3.

6
40

1.
79

8.
72

48
.2

4
YE

S
40

2.
05

15
.3

5
59

.6
7

YE
S

40
2.

44
26

.6
7

62
39

9.
88

4
4.

26
4

40
1.

04
0.

41
10

6.
68

YE
S

40
1.

98
0.

65
10

7.
04

YE
S

40
2.

36
1.

02
06

39
8.

69
1

5.
63

1
40

1.
02

3.
02

14
9.

96
YE

S
40

1.
98

4.
73

15
3.

34
YE

S
40

2.
35

7.
38

54
40

2.
34

2
9.

80
2

39
5.

17
0.

51
14

3.
72

YE
S

39
5.

61
0.

81
15

2.
11

YE
S

39
5.

83
1.

29
24

40
2.

53
1

12
.2

91
39

5.
01

3.
55

14
4.

75
YE

S
39

5.
45

5.
69

15
3.

3
YE

S
39

5.
67

9.
05

11
44

7.
01

1
4.

5
44

2.
86

2.
5

3.
12

YE
S

44
2.

96
4.

14
5.

19
YE

S
44

3.
08

6.
56

08
44

7.
10

8
4.

5
44

3
0.

63
0.

63
YE

S
44

3.
11

1.
06

1.
06

YE
S

44
3.

23
1.

67
46

44
5.

34
6

4.
5

44
1.

08
0.

28
3.

41
YE

S
44

1.
15

0.
48

5.
67

YE
S

44
1.

23
0.

76
23

43
8.

02
3

6.
5

43
4.

24
5

85
.6

1
YE

S
43

4.
4

8.
31

91
.6

8
YE

S
43

4.
55

13
.2

1
02

39
8

61
1

59
40

1
12

4
67

95
38

YE
S

40
1

98
7

71
96

39
YE

S
40

2
36

12
76



Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
In

fl
(1

00
-y

e

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

 Ju
nc

tio
ns

 R
es

ul
ts

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
 

10
-y

ea
r

10
0-

ye
ar

.5
41

8.
13

6
7.

63
6

41
5.

71
4.

06
56

.7
4

YE
S

41
9.

07
6.

66
83

.1
3

YE
S

42
1.

07
10

.8
1

26
42

5.
72

6
4.

5
42

2.
04

0
0.

04
YE

S
42

5.
81

0
3.

31
YE

S
42

5.
88

0
76

43
1.

47
6

4.
5

42
7.

8
0.

36
6.

4
YE

S
42

8.
11

0.
56

10
.6

9
YE

S
43

0.
47

0.
86

64
44

0.
16

4
0

44
0.

16
0

0
YE

S
44

0.
16

0
0

YE
S

44
0.

16
0

35
43

8.
33

5
0

43
8.

33
0

0
YE

S
43

8.
33

0
0

YE
S

43
8.

33
0

35
44

3.
49

3
3.

67
43

4.
92

0.
81

0.
81

YE
S

43
4.

92
1.

29
1.

29
YE

S
43

4.
93

2.
01

32
45

0.
53

2
0

45
0.

53
0

0
YE

S
45

0.
53

0
0

YE
S

45
0.

53
0

14
44

4.
21

4
5

44
0.

51
11

.9
1

14
.7

YE
S

44
1.

09
20

.0
2

25
.5

8
YE

S
44

3.
08

33
92

44
4.

69
2

6
43

9.
58

0.
77

15
.4

3
YE

S
43

9.
88

1.
27

28
.1

6
YE

S
44

0.
3

2.
08

53
46

9.
65

3
0

46
9.

65
0

0
YE

S
46

9.
65

0
0

YE
S

46
9.

65
0

53
41

9.
15

9
0

41
5.

79
6.

06
6.

86
YE

S
41

5.
8

9.
93

11
.5

7
YE

S
41

5.
82

16
.0

7
29

46
9.

32
9

4.
5

46
5.

59
15

.7
7

15
.7

7
YE

S
46

5.
96

28
.3

4
28

.3
4

YE
S

46
9.

45
49

.2
9

54
44

1.
95

4
4.

5
43

7.
96

9.
69

9.
99

YE
S

43
8.

13
16

.9
5

17
.5

8
YE

S
43

8.
39

28
.5

1
71

44
8.

17
1

4.
5

44
5.

6
8.

68
8.

68
YE

S
44

6.
97

14
.4

9
14

.4
9

YE
S

44
8.

79
23

.6
02

44
4.

60
2

5
44

5.
27

0.
59

16
.2

2
YE

S
44

5.
4

0.
92

27
.4

9
YE

S
44

5.
47

1.
43

73
44

8.
67

3
4

44
5.

45
0.

74
0.

74
YE

S
44

6.
41

1.
2

1.
2

YE
S

44
7.

61
1.

93
44

44
9.

11
7

5.
11

7
44

5.
45

0.
35

2.
85

YE
S

44
6.

34
0.

56
4.

92
YE

S
44

7.
78

0.
88

71
44

8.
77

1
4.

5
44

5.
48

2.
69

2.
69

YE
S

44
6.

47
4.

44
4.

44
YE

S
44

8.
11

7.
23

17
44

6.
61

7
4.

5
44

5.
36

0.
05

2.
74

YE
S

44
5.

87
0.

07
4.

9
YE

S
44

6.
6

0.
11

77
44

9.
67

7
4

44
6.

3
0.

65
0.

65
YE

S
44

8.
72

1.
1

1.
1

YE
S

44
9.

23
1.

78
69

45
0.

69
5

44
6.

98
1.

05
17

.9
7

YE
S

45
0.

2
1.

68
30

.8
7

YE
S

45
0.

82
2.

62
47

43
4.

44
7

0
43

4.
52

0
1.

36
YE

S
43

4.
54

0
2.

33
YE

S
43

4.
58

0
69

45
9.

76
9

5
45

5.
8

7.
37

17
.1

YE
S

45
6.

48
12

.6
2

30
.1

1
YE

S
46

0
20

.9
9

83
46

1.
38

3
5

45
7.

03
0.

13
10

.1
3

YE
S

45
7.

32
0.

19
18

.4
8

YE
S

46
0.

68
0.

29
06

44
0.

90
6

4.
5

44
0.

36
0.

17
0.

17
YE

S
44

0.
68

0.
26

2.
59

YE
S

44
1.

03
0.

4
37

44
0.

91
8

3.
91

8
44

1.
08

9.
86

25
.3

2
YE

S
44

1.
19

16
.6

1
39

.3
5

YE
S

44
1.

27
27

.5
06

43
4.

70
6

5.
5

43
5.

4
0.

72
13

.4
5

YE
S

43
5.

61
1.

14
27

.2
YE

S
43

5.
8

1.
76

21
43

9.
02

1
4.

5
43

9.
69

11
.0

6
11

.0
6

YE
S

43
9.

8
19

.5
4

19
.5

4
YE

S
43

9.
91

34
.6

8
87

43
4.

37
3

8.
50

3
43

5.
43

8.
36

37
.9

5
YE

S
43

5.
64

14
.4

7
47

.9
9

YE
S

43
5.

84
24

.2
9

.5
43

4.
52

7
9.

02
7

43
5.

4
7.

48
29

.8
5

YE
S

43
5.

62
12

.7
1

49
.4

6
YE

S
43

5.
81

21
44

43
7.

34
4

4
43

8.
07

11
.8

4
11

.8
4

YE
S

43
8.

22
20

.3
5

20
.3

5
YE

S
43

8.
37

35
.9

8
49

38
7.

80
9

0.
76

38
7.

86
0

7.
9

YE
S

38
8.

09
0

12
.6

9
YE

S
38

8.
37

0
47

43
6.

74
7

4
43

7.
69

4.
47

31
.8

6
YE

S
43

8.
14

7.
58

46
.7

5
YE

S
43

8.
35

13
.0

9
32

45
0.

06
2

1.
83

44
8.

23
0

0
YE

S
44

8.
23

0
0

YE
S

44
8.

23
0

18
44

7.
81

8
0

44
7.

82
0

0
YE

S
44

7.
82

0
0

YE
S

44
7.

82
0

73
50

0.
37

3
6

49
4.

54
1.

02
1.

02
YE

S
49

4.
58

1.
67

1.
67

YE
S

49
4.

64
2.

67
96

45
2.

96
1

45
3.

02
6.

14
6.

14
YE

S
45

3.
1

10
.7

7
10

.7
7

YE
S

45
3.

19
18

.4
7

96
43

4.
79

6
4.

5
43

0.
83

0.
54

0.
73

YE
S

43
2.

26
0.

98
1.

42
YE

S
43

4.
01

1.
57

91
43

8.
09

1
4.

5
43

4.
13

4.
07

4.
07

YE
S

43
4.

31
6.

85
6.

85
YE

S
43

6.
02

11
.2

1
69

43
1.

56
9

3
43

1.
72

7.
52

7.
52

YE
S

43
1.

85
13

13
YE

S
43

1.
97

22
.6

7
79

40
4.

17
9

0
40

5.
02

0
99

.7
6

YE
S

40
5.

4
0

18
4.

94
YE

S
40

5.
88

0
62

43
7

62
4

43
3

74
0

2
0

2
YE

S
43

3
8

0
46

0
46

YE
S

43
4

12
0

88



Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
In

fl
(1

00
-y

e

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

 Ju
nc

tio
ns

 R
es

ul
ts

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
 

10
-y

ea
r

10
0-

ye
ar

54
41

8.
45

4
4

41
5.

66
16

.9
5

16
.9

5
YE

S
41

6.
22

29
.7

9
29

.7
9

YE
S

41
8.

46
53

.7
1

03
40

0.
20

3
2.

5
40

1.
93

2.
91

23
.1

4
YE

S
40

2.
1

4.
92

31
.9

1
YE

S
40

2.
17

8.
06

57
40

1.
55

7
7

39
8.

16
2.

37
97

.1
1

YE
S

40
1.

04
4

12
4.

97
YE

S
40

2.
51

6.
74

91
40

1.
39

1
7.

5
39

7.
95

5.
71

10
1.

32
YE

S
40

0.
65

9.
61

13
5.

31
YE

S
40

2.
05

16
.6

5
33

44
1.

63
3

4.
5

43
7.

92
2.

06
2.

06
YE

S
43

8.
2

3.
58

3.
58

YE
S

43
8.

73
5.

87
54

44
0.

90
4

4.
25

43
7.

1
2.

23
4.

23
YE

S
43

7.
25

3.
88

7.
36

YE
S

43
7.

47
6.

37
32

42
3.

32
0

42
3.

42
0

5.
05

YE
S

42
3.

47
0

8.
96

YE
S

42
3.

51
0

39
39

1.
53

9
0

39
1.

88
0

1.
97

YE
S

39
2.

04
0

3.
42

YE
S

39
2.

14
0

31
42

8.
18

1
4.

25
42

4.
72

0.
91

5.
09

YE
S

42
5.

1
1.

48
8.

77
YE

S
42

7.
47

2.
35

92
39

8.
99

2
9

39
1.

68
1.

82
1.

82
YE

S
39

2.
83

2.
93

2.
93

YE
S

39
6.

95
4.

72
67

39
0.

36
7

0
39

4.
86

0
13

0.
58

YE
S

39
6.

86
0

22
3.

65
YE

S
39

8.
62

0
58

39
8.

95
8

5.
5

39
3.

77
3.

06
3.

14
YE

S
39

3.
94

5.
31

7.
8

YE
S

39
7.

74
9.

11
94

39
5.

19
4

4.
5

39
1.

01
1.

31
1.

51
YE

S
39

2.
03

2.
1

2.
89

YE
S

39
5.

67
3.

35
46

39
4.

64
6

4.
5

39
0.

63
7.

96
8

YE
S

39
1.

36
14

.1
1

14
.1

8
YE

S
39

5.
65

24
.1

3
21

39
4.

71
7.

5
38

9.
57

0.
41

13
8.

99
YE

S
39

0.
64

0.
64

23
5.

42
YE

S
39

5.
23

0.
98

.5
39

0.
95

7
6.

45
7

38
6.

9
0.

74
15

3.
91

YE
S

38
8.

05
1.

2
26

1.
09

YE
S

39
2.

3
1.

94
03

39
1.

60
3

4.
5

39
0.

2
15

.8
6

17
.0

1
YE

S
39

2.
18

28
.2

8
28

.3
1

YE
S

39
2.

53
50

.8
3

04
39

7.
54

4.
5

39
5.

34
0

11
9.

98
YE

S
39

6.
99

0
14

6.
48

YE
S

39
8.

67
0

94
39

6.
96

7
2.

96
7

39
7.

39
4.

31
21

.1
YE

S
39

9.
05

7.
23

21
.4

YE
S

39
9.

1
12

.5
39

6.
91

5
3.

41
5

39
7.

08
3.

04
12

0.
13

YE
S

39
9.

07
5.

15
14

8.
01

YE
S

39
9.

37
8.

8
76

40
3.

77
6

5
40

3.
02

9.
52

27
.1

1
YE

S
40

4.
21

15
.5

8
50

.2
YE

S
40

4.
28

25
.0

7
16

39
9.

81
6

4
40

0.
9

1.
95

28
.6

4
YE

S
40

0.
93

3.
17

35
.7

9
YE

S
40

0.
95

5.
13

26
41

7.
26

5
41

7.
47

4.
47

8.
69

YE
S

41
7.

6
7.

14
23

.1
9

YE
S

41
7.

68
11

.3
8

55
44

0.
43

7
0

44
1

5.
66

5.
66

YE
S

44
1.

27
9.

77
9.

77
YE

S
44

1.
31

16
.6

1
82

44
1.

48
2

0
44

1.
96

5.
06

5.
06

YE
S

44
1.

98
9.

01
9.

01
YE

S
44

2.
02

15
.3

18
43

6.
61

8
5.

5
43

2.
46

0.
59

15
.9

YE
S

43
3.

1
0.

97
32

.5
5

YE
S

43
7.

09
1.

6
98

43
6.

49
8

6
43

1.
44

1.
37

17
.1

8
YE

S
43

2.
2

2.
26

33
.5

4
YE

S
43

6.
84

3.
7

53
43

6.
25

3
4.

5
43

2.
79

6.
6

15
.3

4
YE

S
43

3.
41

11
.5

3
31

.2
9

YE
S

43
7.

09
19

.5
9

37
46

5.
52

5
0

46
5.

04
0

0
YE

S
46

5.
04

0
0

YE
S

46
5.

04
0

01
42

4.
20

1
5

42
0.

63
7.

17
24

.1
1

YE
S

42
4.

6
12

.3
5

42
.2

8
YE

S
42

5.
53

20
.9

8
32

45
1.

13
2

0
45

1.
13

0
0

YE
S

45
1.

13
0

0
YE

S
45

1.
13

0
36

44
8.

83
6

7
44

2.
92

0.
22

14
.6

1
YE

S
44

4.
79

0.
37

24
.9

4
YE

S
44

5.
61

0.
58

93
44

9.
49

3
4

44
5.

96
4.

09
4.

09
YE

S
44

6.
72

7.
32

7.
32

YE
S

44
9.

89
12

.5
1

18
45

2.
11

8
4.

5
44

7.
95

1.
42

1.
42

YE
S

44
8.

06
2.

52
2.

52
YE

S
44

8.
18

4.
14

11
44

5.
61

1
3

44
3.

61
7.

83
9.

2
YE

S
44

5.
3

14
.0

4
16

.5
YE

S
44

5.
95

25
.0

5
72

44
8.

67
2

0
44

9.
21

1.
23

1.
23

YE
S

44
9.

54
2.

13
2.

13
YE

S
44

9.
7

3.
41

99
44

0.
29

9
3.

5
44

0.
93

2.
91

9.
54

YE
S

44
1.

01
5.

23
17

.2
1

YE
S

44
1.

1
8.

89
92

44
0.

29
2

3
44

0.
94

3.
92

6.
13

YE
S

44
1.

02
7.

07
11

.3
4

YE
S

44
1.

11
12

.1
5

98
39

5.
89

8
0

39
5.

92
0

2.
01

YE
S

39
5.

93
0

3.
34

YE
S

39
5.

94
0

92
42

6.
29

2
4

42
2.

69
1.

87
1.

87
YE

S
42

2.
84

3.
36

3.
36

YE
S

42
3.

1
5.

66
03

40
3.

53
5.

5
40

0.
53

17
.3

3
51

.4
7

YE
S

40
1.

72
30

.6
7

87
.5

5
YE

S
40

4.
16

54
.4

3
69

40
3

69
6

39
8

91
0

18
66

34
YE

S
39

9
39

0
28

10
3

96
YE

S
40

0
21

0
43



Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
In

fl
(1

00
-y

e

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

 Ju
nc

tio
ns

 R
es

ul
ts

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
 

10
-y

ea
r

10
0-

ye
ar

72
44

1.
72

5
43

7.
77

0.
76

17
.2

8
YE

S
43

8.
13

1.
25

26
.7

YE
S

43
9.

68
2.

04
96

44
4.

89
6

4.
5

44
1.

58
2.

6
2.

6
YE

S
44

4.
78

4.
57

4.
57

YE
S

44
5.

18
7.

44
.5

44
4.

5
5

44
1.

53
0.

21
12

.2
1

YE
S

44
4.

65
0.

33
19

.7
8

YE
S

44
4.

89
0.

51
64

45
0.

06
4

5
44

6.
07

6.
53

9.
68

YE
S

44
8.

17
11

.7
2

16
.8

5
YE

S
45

0.
23

20
.0

9
.5

45
0.

79
9

4.
29

9
44

7.
05

3.
21

3.
21

YE
S

44
8.

66
5.

78
5.

78
YE

S
45

1.
24

10
.0

4
28

40
1.

52
8

0
40

1.
64

8.
44

8.
44

YE
S

40
1.

98
14

.1
2

14
.1

2
YE

S
40

2.
36

22
.9

86
45

8.
28

6
3.

5
45

5.
81

0.
73

2.
21

YE
S

45
6.

52
1.

27
3.

87
YE

S
45

7.
89

2.
08

71
45

8.
57

1
3.

5
45

5.
84

1.
51

1.
51

YE
S

45
6.

58
2.

66
2.

66
YE

S
45

8.
07

4.
44

.5
45

9.
08

3
4.

58
3

45
5.

71
0.

92
3.

02
YE

S
45

6.
21

1.
66

5.
39

YE
S

45
6.

99
2.

73
25

45
7.

02
5

2
45

7.
48

5.
64

5.
64

YE
S

45
7.

53
9.

97
9.

97
YE

S
45

7.
59

17
.0

8
53

45
4.

25
3

3
45

4.
33

4.
02

6.
62

YE
S

45
4.

39
7.

23
13

YE
S

45
4.

45
12

.5
7

24
43

9.
82

4
2.

5
43

9.
48

3.
71

3.
71

YE
S

43
9.

58
6.

73
6.

73
YE

S
43

9.
64

11
.6

7
95

44
0.

89
5

6.
5

43
4.

46
0.

06
0.

06
YE

S
43

4.
48

0.
09

0.
09

YE
S

43
4.

5
0.

15
35

44
2.

03
5

0
44

3.
03

4.
32

4.
36

YE
S

44
3.

57
7.

91
8.

01
YE

S
44

4.
41

13
.0

8
61

43
7.

61
0

43
7.

91
0

3.
48

YE
S

43
7.

96
0

6.
71

YE
S

43
8.

02
0

41
49

5.
41

0
49

5.
63

0
0.

32
YE

S
49

5.
7

0
0.

56
YE

S
49

5.
78

0
11

46
4.

61
1

0
46

4.
72

0.
28

0.
28

YE
S

46
4.

75
0.

46
0.

46
YE

S
46

4.
78

0.
72

01
45

4.
90

1
0

45
5.

1
0

0.
27

YE
S

45
5.

11
0

0.
44

YE
S

45
5.

12
0

49
46

1.
24

9
0

46
1.

3
1.

52
1.

52
YE

S
46

1.
32

2.
86

2.
86

YE
S

46
1.

35
4.

73
15

45
1.

02
2

2.
87

2
45

0.
07

2.
72

3.
28

YE
S

45
0.

94
4.

83
4.

95
YE

S
45

1.
06

8.
12

.3
45

0.
80

1
2.

50
1

45
0.

08
0.

58
0.

58
YE

S
45

0.
93

0.
99

0.
99

YE
S

45
0.

98
1.

61
28

44
8.

92
8

3.
5

44
9.

6
3.

71
7.

82
YE

S
44

9.
73

6.
55

9.
99

YE
S

44
9.

81
11

07
44

9.
50

7
3

44
9.

77
7.

09
7.

09
YE

S
44

9.
83

12
.5

4
12

.5
4

YE
S

44
9.

9
21

.3
3

43
44

9.
04

3
4

44
9.

36
0.

38
7.

91
YE

S
44

9.
38

0.
63

9.
82

YE
S

44
9.

39
0.

99
.5

44
8.

32
3

3.
82

3
44

5.
86

1.
67

10
.2

9
YE

S
44

8.
4

2.
91

17
.1

9
YE

S
44

8.
66

4.
94

74
44

7.
60

1
0

44
8.

43
0.

94
7.

44
YE

S
44

8.
57

1.
67

13
.9

6
YE

S
44

8.
68

2.
75

21
49

1.
42

1
0

49
1.

57
0

1.
78

YE
S

49
1.

61
0

2.
96

YE
S

49
1.

66
0

28
45

0.
12

8
3.

5
44

7.
07

2.
37

2.
37

YE
S

44
8.

56
4.

09
4.

09
YE

S
45

0.
05

6.
83

83
44

1.
83

0
44

2.
9

0
1.

69
YE

S
44

2.
99

0
2

YE
S

44
3.

09
0

56
44

7.
35

6
0

44
8.

46
0

2.
09

YE
S

44
8.

64
0

4.
12

YE
S

44
8.

83
0

06
43

5.
90

6
3.

5
43

2.
41

0
0

YE
S

43
2.

41
0

0
YE

S
43

2.
41

0
73

41
9.

47
3

3
41

6.
59

2.
85

2.
85

YE
S

41
6.

63
4.

81
4.

81
YE

S
41

6.
68

7.
73

26
45

7.
82

6
0

45
9.

84
5.

95
5.

95
YE

S
45

9.
87

10
.7

4
10

.7
4

YE
S

45
9.

9
19

.1
5

07
45

0.
20

7
0

45
0.

3
0.

22
0.

22
YE

S
45

0.
32

0.
36

0.
36

YE
S

45
0.

34
0.

57
82

46
4.

58
2

0
46

4.
62

0.
4

0.
4

YE
S

46
4.

63
0.

74
0.

74
YE

S
46

4.
65

1.
2

46
46

0.
44

6
0

46
0.

52
0

0.
01

YE
S

46
0.

52
0

0.
02

YE
S

46
0.

52
0

67
44

7.
86

7
3.

5
44

5.
2

4.
89

4.
89

YE
S

44
5.

57
8.

78
8.

79
YE

S
44

6.
31

14
.5

1
54

46
8.

35
4

5.
5

46
4.

5
2.

42
36

.1
9

YE
S

46
8.

51
3.

88
65

.0
6

YE
S

46
8.

7
6.

15
26

44
9.

97
6

4.
25

44
5.

87
0.

49
0.

49
YE

S
44

5.
91

0.
82

0.
82

YE
S

44
5.

96
1.

29
45

43
4.

44
5

5
43

0.
82

8.
25

18
.5

8
YE

S
43

5.
11

14
.7

30
.2

5
YE

S
43

5.
29

26
.5

3
83

43
4.

88
3

5
43

1.
09

9.
86

10
.3

4
YE

S
43

5.
45

17
.5

6
18

.3
7

YE
S

43
5.

73
31

.5
3

71
43

2
87

1
4

42
9

2
1

58
1

58
YE

S
42

9
32

2
83

2
83

YE
S

42
9

47
4

69



Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
In

fl
(1

00
-y

e

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

 Ju
nc

tio
ns

 R
es

ul
ts

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
 

10
-y

ea
r

10
0-

ye
ar

56
41

3.
69

9
7.

13
9

40
7.

73
3.

99
37

.4
7

YE
S

40
8.

04
7.

21
58

.8
YE

S
40

8.
41

12
.0

7
17

43
3.

51
7

0
43

3.
52

0
0

YE
S

43
3.

52
0

0
YE

S
43

3.
52

0
26

37
8.

52
6

8.
5

37
1.

47
4

21
.3

1
YE

S
37

2.
19

7.
18

39
.2

5
YE

S
37

6.
35

12
.5

2
15

39
7.

21
5

4.
5

39
2.

98
1.

59
1.

59
YE

S
39

3.
06

2.
84

2.
84

YE
S

39
3.

17
4.

77
65

39
3.

88
6

0
39

1.
67

0.
61

0.
61

YE
S

39
1.

67
0.

92
0.

92
YE

S
39

1.
67

1.
4

88
39

6.
88

6
39

1.
55

3.
38

17
.3

5
YE

S
39

1.
79

6.
16

31
.4

3
YE

S
39

2.
08

10
.2

4
91

34
5.

19
1

4.
5

34
1.

98
4.

79
33

.0
6

N
O

34
2.

66
8.

01
60

.3
5

YE
S

34
5.

31
13

.4
4

75
36

2.
27

5
5.

5
35

7.
61

6.
25

28
.7

YE
S

35
7.

95
11

.2
9

52
.9

7
YE

S
35

8.
29

18
.6

6
36

37
4.

03
6

5.
5

36
9.

55
2.

72
23

.4
6

YE
S

36
9.

98
4.

87
43

.2
7

YE
S

37
0.

59
8.

06
24

40
8.

52
4

4
40

4.
62

0.
12

0.
12

YE
S

40
4.

64
0.

19
0.

19
YE

S
40

4.
67

0.
29

42
37

6.
14

2
0

37
6.

18
0

0.
12

YE
S

37
6.

18
0

0.
18

YE
S

37
6.

19
0

06
35

4.
20

6
4

35
0.

29
0.

28
0.

28
YE

S
35

0.
31

0.
45

0.
45

YE
S

35
0.

33
0.

71
75

33
3.

77
5

9
32

9.
01

1.
33

17
5.

91
N

O
33

4.
71

2.
25

32
1

N
O

33
6.

32
3.

79
45

33
5.

34
5

6
33

0.
93

0.
45

29
.0

2
N

O
33

5.
08

0.
72

50
.4

1
N

O
33

5.
77

1.
14

74
33

5.
27

4
4.

5
33

1.
75

9.
06

9.
34

N
O

33
5.

64
16

.0
1

16
.4

6
N

O
33

5.
98

27
.9

9
11

33
4.

26
1

6.
25

32
9.

12
0.

89
29

.8
8

N
O

33
4.

4
1.

45
52

.4
N

O
33

5.
5

2.
35

93
33

3.
39

3
9

32
9.

17
0.

31
12

1.
03

N
O

33
4.

65
0.

48
36

3.
82

N
O

33
5.

46
0.

75
95

33
3.

89
5

9
33

0.
73

1.
86

75
.8

4
N

O
33

5.
19

3.
26

11
7.

4
N

O
33

6.
04

5.
86

.3
33

2.
10

9
1.

80
9

33
4.

76
9.

41
40

.3
8

N
O

33
5.

13
16

.2
1

64
.4

7
N

O
33

5.
7

27
.7

9
75

33
1.

47
5

4.
5

33
4.

76
10

.2
8

11
2.

23
N

O
33

5.
2

17
.2

9
19

2.
17

N
O

33
5.

92
29

.6
7

66
33

3.
46

6
8

33
1.

06
3.

07
35

2.
62

N
O

33
4.

89
5.

19
37

0.
97

N
O

33
5.

54
8.

36
99

39
9

0
39

9
0

0
YE

S
39

9
0

0
YE

S
39

9
0

82
37

0.
88

2
0

37
0.

88
0

0
YE

S
37

0.
88

0
0

YE
S

37
0.

88
0

99
36

6.
89

9
4

36
7.

89
6.

24
9.

22
YE

S
36

8.
12

11
.1

4
13

.7
2

YE
S

36
8.

27
19

.3
5

16
36

7.
81

6
4.

5
36

7.
9

3.
1

3.
1

YE
S

36
8.

08
5.

51
5.

51
YE

S
36

8.
2

9.
5

36
41

8.
83

6
0

41
9.

24
2.

83
2.

83
YE

S
41

9.
35

4.
49

4.
49

YE
S

41
9.

5
7.

04
.3

38
1.

8
5.

5
37

8.
49

4.
89

54
.2

7
YE

S
38

2.
49

8.
79

68
.5

7
YE

S
38

2.
83

15
.0

6
31

40
4.

23
1

4.
5

40
0.

13
2.

55
2.

55
YE

S
40

0.
28

4.
52

4.
52

YE
S

40
0.

45
7.

5
48

38
6.

94
8

3
38

7.
51

3.
44

44
.3

8
YE

S
38

7.
8

6.
56

72
.5

YE
S

38
8.

18
10

.9
3

93
40

4.
68

5.
08

7
40

0.
93

4.
89

41
.8

6
YE

S
40

1.
29

9.
05

67
.2

8
YE

S
40

1.
99

16
.2

6
68

42
3.

76
8

3
42

0.
95

0.
65

0.
65

YE
S

42
1

1.
07

1.
07

YE
S

42
1.

07
1.

71
48

39
2.

34
8

3.
5

38
8.

85
0

0
YE

S
38

8.
85

0
0

YE
S

38
9.

14
0

31
38

6.
13

1
9

38
0.

4
6.

57
15

6.
87

YE
S

38
1.

7
10

.9
7

26
5.

11
YE

S
38

3.
86

17
.8

03
38

6.
03

5
38

1.
25

1.
19

1.
19

YE
S

38
1.

32
2.

04
2.

04
YE

S
38

2.
33

3.
39

25
37

8.
62

5
4.

5
37

4.
55

2.
75

2.
75

YE
S

37
6.

46
4.

86
4.

86
YE

S
37

8.
05

8.
27

92
45

4.
23

4
0

45
4.

42
0

0.
72

YE
S

45
4.

48
0

1.
27

YE
S

45
4.

55
0

34
37

7.
23

4
2

37
6.

24
3.

29
3.

29
YE

S
37

7.
37

5.
5

5.
5

YE
S

37
8.

11
9.

05
28

37
7.

12
8

4.
5

37
4.

43
4.

41
7.

14
YE

S
37

6.
33

7.
81

15
.8

8
YE

S
37

7.
64

13
.1

5
28

37
6.

62
8

5
37

4.
39

3.
43

10
.5

8
YE

S
37

5.
98

5.
99

25
.3

9
YE

S
37

7.
16

10
.4

7
77

36
1.

27
7

2
36

1.
62

2.
88

2.
88

YE
S

36
2.

61
4.

72
4.

72
YE

S
36

3.
65

7.
66

.3
39

5.
16

9
1.

86
9

39
3.

99
1.

28
1.

28
YE

S
39

4.
29

2.
26

2.
26

YE
S

39
5.

57
3.

7
71

39
5

97
1

3
39

3
45

1
79

3
05

YE
S

39
3

76
3

22
5

45
YE

S
39

5
21

5
48



Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
In

fl
(1

00
-y

e

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

 Ju
nc

tio
ns

 R
es

ul
ts

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
 

10
-y

ea
r

10
0-

ye
ar

42
43

2.
67

2
2.

83
42

9.
84

0
0

YE
S

42
9.

84
0

0
YE

S
42

9.
84

0
64

42
9.

56
4

3
42

9.
62

0.
67

0.
67

YE
S

42
9.

64
1.

15
1.

15
YE

S
42

9.
67

1.
86

95
43

0.
59

5
3

42
9.

62
0

0.
16

YE
S

42
9.

64
0

0.
02

YE
S

42
9.

67
0

.3
43

0.
23

3
2.

93
3

42
8.

48
0.

66
0.

66
YE

S
43

0.
21

1.
18

1.
18

YE
S

43
0.

29
1.

96
93

43
0.

09
3

3
42

8.
47

2.
59

3.
21

YE
S

43
0.

17
4.

61
5.

78
YE

S
43

0.
24

7.
94

71
42

7.
30

4
0.

59
4

42
6.

81
0

3.
07

YE
S

42
6.

83
0

4.
52

YE
S

42
6.

84
0

16
43

8.
31

6
0

43
8.

7
1.

11
1.

11
YE

S
43

8.
78

1.
94

1.
94

YE
S

43
8.

87
3.

14
72

43
4.

37
2

4.
5

43
0.

54
3.

62
6.

57
YE

S
43

0.
91

6.
48

13
.0

1
YE

S
43

5.
62

11
.4

8
47

41
1.

97
4.

5
40

7.
77

1.
01

1.
01

YE
S

40
8.

09
1.

59
1.

59
YE

S
40

8.
44

2.
51

29
41

9.
42

9
5.

5
41

4.
87

3.
31

28
.8

6
YE

S
41

5.
1

5.
54

42
.5

6
YE

S
41

5.
33

9.
22

00
40

2.
10

4
2.

10
4

40
1.

79
1.

14
1.

14
YE

S
40

1.
8

1.
84

1.
84

YE
S

40
1.

81
2.

93
93

39
6.

69
3

4.
5

39
2.

84
5.

47
7.

39
YE

S
39

7.
18

9.
14

24
.4

8
YE

S
39

7.
59

15
.3

4
15

39
4.

41
5

4.
5

39
6.

81
8.

42
25

.4
1

YE
S

39
7.

22
14

.0
5

57
.7

6
YE

S
39

7.
59

23
.2

4
69

39
4.

50
2

9.
81

2
38

6.
79

0.
45

23
6.

79
YE

S
38

7.
8

0.
71

44
4.

63
YE

S
39

0.
31

1.
11

01
39

6.
40

1
5

39
1.

74
0.

16
4.

17
YE

S
39

2.
06

0.
25

15
.7

1
YE

S
39

2.
76

0.
39

14
39

6.
81

4
5

39
2.

02
0.

64
1.

05
YE

S
39

2.
06

1.
05

1.
6

YE
S

39
2.

14
1.

7
06

38
5.

20
6

9.
5

37
8.

67
2.

35
24

0.
91

YE
S

38
0.

04
3.

83
45

3.
76

YE
S

38
3.

38
6.

13
.7

39
5.

71
6

18
.0

16
37

9.
83

9.
64

65
.2

7
YE

S
38

0.
9

16
.3

13
3

YE
S

38
4.

39
27

.5
8

52
39

0.
85

2
6

38
5.

33
0.

4
48

.5
1

YE
S

38
5.

38
0.

63
85

.1
1

YE
S

38
5.

44
0.

97
68

37
9.

66
8

5
37

7.
09

3.
88

51
.0

3
YE

S
37

7.
99

6.
4

49
.9

9
YE

S
37

8.
89

10
.4

5
11

37
8.

01
1

4
37

8.
73

1.
27

36
.5

4
YE

S
37

9
1.

99
32

.9
3

YE
S

37
9.

34
3.

1
08

37
7.

80
8

3
37

6.
88

0.
53

1.
36

YE
S

37
7.

9
0.

87
1.

33
YE

S
37

8.
57

1.
4

58
37

9.
25

8
5

37
6.

82
10

.4
2

41
.0

1
YE

S
37

7.
91

17
.1

49
.5

6
YE

S
37

8.
81

27
.9

2
97

37
3.

41
0

37
6.

72
3.

56
24

2.
17

YE
S

37
7.

86
6.

03
47

0.
59

YE
S

37
8.

76
9.

96
07

38
0.

50
7

9
37

3.
22

3.
36

63
.2

9
YE

S
37

3.
76

5.
37

10
6.

53
YE

S
37

4.
83

8.
52

75
36

7.
49

6
8.

74
6

36
0.

73
2.

93
10

9.
85

YE
S

36
1.

83
4.

89
20

0.
16

YE
S

36
9.

27
8.

09
87

36
9.

88
7

8
36

3.
97

5.
6

81
.3

9
YE

S
36

4.
89

9.
33

15
2.

78
YE

S
37

0.
58

15
.4

3
95

36
3.

09
5

0
36

3.
78

0
3.

18
YE

S
36

4.
1

0
5.

22
YE

S
36

4.
53

0
07

42
1.

70
7

5
41

7.
96

0
15

.1
1

YE
S

41
9.

64
0

27
.0

5
YE

S
42

9.
08

0
38

35
6.

03
8

5
35

1.
43

0.
4

3.
48

YE
S

35
1.

61
0.

64
6.

01
YE

S
35

2.
58

1.
01

53
35

2.
05

3
6

34
9.

62
2.

96
11

.6
8

YE
S

35
1.

54
4.

87
21

.2
2

YE
S

35
2.

81
7.

95
15

35
2.

11
5

5
34

9.
63

5.
88

9.
08

YE
S

35
1.

53
9.

58
14

.9
YE

S
35

3.
2

15
.5

44
34

8.
18

9
4.

18
9

34
4.

42
8.

04
8.

04
YE

S
34

4.
7

13
.8

2
13

.8
3

YE
S

34
8.

13
24

.7
9

66
37

2.
26

6
5.

5
36

7.
72

2.
69

29
.2

6
YE

S
36

8.
05

4.
47

49
.2

7
YE

S
36

9.
1

7.
33

16
35

9.
34

5
7.

18
5

35
3.

81
4.

38
33

.3
9

YE
S

35
8.

72
7.

11
75

.8
YE

S
36

0.
52

11
.4

2
67

35
9.

39
4

7.
72

4
35

3.
64

2.
41

58
.4

6
YE

S
35

8.
7

3.
98

12
9.

04
YE

S
36

0.
65

6.
5

55
37

5.
75

5
6

37
0.

73
1.

77
26

.5
YE

S
37

1.
04

2.
95

44
.6

8
YE

S
37

1.
5

4.
85

.5
37

1.
11

2
4.

61
2

36
7.

04
3.

2
3.

2
YE

S
36

7.
2

5.
25

5.
25

YE
S

36
7.

4
8.

51
56

36
4.

55
6

6.
5

35
9.

06
0.

22
24

.1
6

YE
S

35
9.

23
0.

33
32

.9
7

YE
S

35
9.

39
0.

49
84

42
5.

28
4

5
42

1.
16

14
.1

8
14

.1
8

YE
S

42
1.

56
25

.5
2

25
.5

2
YE

S
43

1.
22

43
.3

1
.3

34
1.

43
6

5.
13

6
34

2.
37

1.
91

13
6.

11
N

O
34

3.
19

3.
03

23
0.

79
YE

S
34

4.
99

4.
8

2
34

2
84

5
64

34
3

75
10

26
10

4
41

YE
S

34
4

53
17

05
19

5
04

YE
S

34
6

04
28

14



Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
In

fl
(1

00
-y

e

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

 Ju
nc

tio
ns

 R
es

ul
ts

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
 

10
-y

ea
r

10
0-

ye
ar

06
35

1.
10

6
0

35
1.

11
0

0
YE

S
35

1.
11

0
0

YE
S

35
1.

42
0

52
44

3.
95

2
24

42
0.

55
0.

24
9.

19
YE

S
42

0.
72

0.
37

15
.1

4
YE

S
42

0.
95

0.
57

19
41

7.
31

9
3

41
7.

96
0.

24
9.

3
YE

S
41

7.
99

0.
36

15
.3

7
YE

S
41

8.
03

0.
55

85
40

4.
28

5
5

40
0.

34
0.

23
10

.7
6

YE
S

40
2.

55
0.

35
18

.7
9

YE
S

40
3.

86
0.

54
16

45
1.

91
0

45
1.

22
0

4.
94

YE
S

45
1.

24
0

9.
1

YE
S

45
1.

27
0

67
42

2.
42

4.
75

41
8.

43
10

.5
9

10
.5

9
YE

S
41

8.
73

18
.5

3
18

.5
3

YE
S

42
4.

26
31

.8
3

05
39

7.
00

5
4.

5
39

7.
32

3.
26

39
.2

YE
S

39
7.

88
5.

39
11

3.
68

YE
S

39
8.

31
8.

77
91

40
1.

34
1

7.
75

40
1.

4
7.

79
46

.6
3

YE
S

40
1.

79
13

.1
5

50
.4

3
YE

S
40

1.
98

22
.0

8
08

40
2.

65
8

7.
95

40
2.

31
0.

3
11

3.
4

YE
S

40
2.

99
0.

49
13

6.
63

YE
S

40
3.

24
0.

79
72

40
3.

47
2

5
40

3.
03

2.
31

11
.1

4
YE

S
40

3.
87

3.
85

16
.4

9
YE

S
40

4.
15

6.
36

93
41

6.
59

3
4.

5
41

6.
88

3.
55

19
.3

1
YE

S
41

7.
16

6.
18

36
.6

1
YE

S
41

7.
31

10
.3

1
54

41
8.

15
4

4.
5

41
7.

03
6.

59
6.

59
YE

S
41

8.
18

11
.4

3
11

.4
5

YE
S

41
8.

36
19

.0
8

25
40

6.
25

4
40

6.
63

0.
94

1.
79

YE
S

40
6.

79
1.

5
1.

5
YE

S
40

7.
01

2.
38

07
40

5.
60

7
5

40
6.

6
8.

43
25

.3
3

YE
S

40
6.

76
14

.2
5

42
.1

4
YE

S
40

6.
94

24
.1

8
21

40
5.

82
1

5
40

6.
66

5.
84

34
.8

7
YE

S
40

6.
85

9.
69

50
.6

8
YE

S
40

7.
04

15
.9

8
59

40
7.

85
9

4.
5

40
8.

61
22

.6
4

22
.6

4
YE

S
40

8.
68

39
.8

6
39

.8
6

YE
S

40
8.

77
72

.2
6

09
40

7.
70

9
4.

5
40

7.
67

7.
58

7.
7

YE
S

40
7.

86
12

.8
1

17
.6

8
YE

S
40

7.
99

21
.6

9
78

42
0.

47
8

5.
5

41
5.

92
9.

24
12

YE
S

41
6.

84
16

.6
2

21
.9

7
YE

S
42

0.
65

28
.8

5
57

41
8.

45
7

5.
5

41
4.

15
2.

99
15

.5
1

YE
S

41
6.

34
5.

38
28

.1
5

YE
S

41
8.

64
9.

43
12

41
1.

41
2

5
41

1.
71

5.
5

20
.9

5
YE

S
41

1.
86

9.
26

37
.2

YE
S

41
1.

94
15

.4
4

05
40

9.
90

5
4.

5
41

0.
68

1.
47

30
.6

4
YE

S
41

1.
06

2.
4

65
.9

8
YE

S
41

1.
34

3.
88

82
41

4.
58

2
4.

5
41

3.
17

1.
33

10
.0

5
YE

S
41

4.
88

2.
21

17
.7

4
YE

S
41

5.
19

3.
57

34
41

9.
93

4
4.

5
41

7.
79

4.
58

4.
59

YE
S

41
9.

93
7.

89
7.

93
YE

S
42

0.
15

13
.1

5
22

41
7.

72
2

4
41

7.
81

14
.8

6
15

.1
2

YE
S

41
7.

95
26

.3
5

26
.8

4
YE

S
41

8.
08

46
.6

3
18

40
9.

21
4

4.
03

4
40

9.
77

3.
34

35
.1

1
YE

S
40

9.
83

5.
58

37
.1

7
YE

S
40

9.
88

9.
13

78
41

0.
31

5
5.

53
5

40
9.

33
0.

95
34

.1
2

YE
S

40
9.

53
1.

54
33

.8
1

YE
S

40
9.

63
2.

46
82

41
1.

68
3

4.
86

3
41

2.
06

4.
15

91
.9

5
YE

S
41

2.
08

7.
02

95
.9

3
YE

S
41

2.
1

11
.5

2
10

41
5.

47
9

5.
47

9
41

6.
62

0.
78

61
.0

4
YE

S
41

6.
74

1.
25

84
.4

8
YE

S
41

6.
87

1.
96

67
41

6.
86

7
6

41
6.

8
1.

23
68

.8
8

YE
S

41
6.

92
2.

04
92

.4
5

YE
S

41
6.

96
3.

31
32

41
6.

28
2

4.
25

41
6.

58
0.

57
0.

57
YE

S
41

6.
69

0.
94

0.
94

YE
S

41
6.

8
1.

53
51

43
0.

65
1

5.
5

43
1.

6
3.

42
67

.1
8

YE
S

43
5.

2
5.

59
11

2.
44

YE
S

43
6.

85
8.

76
68

42
7.

96
8

6
42

3.
85

0.
34

67
.7

9
YE

S
42

4.
5

0.
55

90
.9

1
YE

S
42

6.
62

0.
87

01
42

6.
20

1
4

42
2.

41
0.

63
0.

63
YE

S
42

2.
46

1.
01

1.
01

YE
S

42
2.

53
1.

59
29

43
3.

52
9

5.
5

42
8.

37
3.

93
3.

93
YE

S
42

8.
47

6.
53

6.
53

YE
S

42
9.

37
10

.5
1

95
35

5.
16

8
0

35
4.

87
1.

04
10

.7
5

YE
S

35
5.

04
1.

82
20

.5
5

YE
S

35
5.

21
2.

91
23

41
7.

69
3

6.
46

3
41

6.
98

8.
79

60
.8

1
YE

S
41

7.
39

14
.8

1
80

.1
4

YE
S

41
7.

81
24

.3
4

12
41

6.
67

2
4.

67
2

41
7.

25
1.

31
58

.6
4

YE
S

41
7.

94
2.

14
76

.0
3

YE
S

41
8.

37
3.

44
32

42
4.

56
9

6.
24

9
41

9.
62

1.
06

54
.3

6
YE

S
41

9.
97

1.
76

83
.9

9
YE

S
42

1.
43

2.
83

72
43

0.
87

2
0

43
1.

14
0.

91
0.

91
YE

S
43

1.
21

1.
47

1.
47

YE
S

43
1.

58
2.

31
95

42
4.

89
5

4
42

1.
11

0.
96

0.
96

YE
S

42
1.

17
1.

52
1.

52
YE

S
42

1.
31

2.
37

27
42

2.
02

7
0

42
2.

03
0

0
YE

S
42

2.
03

0
0

YE
S

42
2.

03
0

06
42

2
06

5
41

7
66

3
66

3
66

YE
S

41
7

95
6

07
6

07
YE

S
41

8
38

9
79



Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
In

fl
(1

00
-y

e

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

 Ju
nc

tio
ns

 R
es

ul
ts

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
 

10
-y

ea
r

10
0-

ye
ar

09
43

3.
80

9
4.

5
42

9.
85

4.
14

6.
19

YE
S

43
0.

08
7.

33
11

.4
8

YE
S

43
2.

46
12

.3
3

39
43

3.
63

9
5.

5
42

9.
45

1.
59

15
.5

5
YE

S
43

0.
04

2.
56

27
.9

1
YE

S
43

5.
36

4.
05

79
43

4.
87

9
8

42
7.

8
0

15
.4

3
YE

S
42

8.
19

0
27

.5
1

YE
S

44
4.

45
0

49
32

7.
04

9
4.

5
32

3.
25

1.
54

3
N

O
32

3.
47

2.
45

4.
87

N
O

32
3.

71
3.

88
36

32
6.

83
6

4.
5

32
2.

68
2.

85
6.

08
N

O
32

2.
78

4.
9

10
.2

5
N

O
32

2.
9

8.
18

.6
30

2.
83

7
3.

23
7

30
3.

79
0

26
.7

7
N

O
30

4.
11

0
25

.8
8

N
O

30
4.

38
0

96
31

7.
59

6
5

31
3

0
5.

24
N

O
31

3.
13

0
9.

35
N

O
31

3.
3

0
02

43
8.

00
2

6
43

2.
54

0
5.

42
YE

S
43

2.
72

0
9.

57
YE

S
43

2.
97

0
56

43
5.

55
6

5
43

1.
08

0
5.

43
YE

S
43

1.
26

0
9.

57
YE

S
43

1.
51

0
27

43
0.

72
7

5
42

6.
56

0
16

.3
4

YE
S

42
6.

89
0

29
.3

YE
S

42
7.

34
0

35
43

1.
35

8
42

4.
1

4.
23

23
.1

4
YE

S
42

4.
34

7.
51

39
.6

5
YE

S
42

4.
71

12
.7

5
44

43
7.

44
4

5
43

2.
72

0
2.

56
YE

S
43

2.
83

0
5.

07
YE

S
43

3.
05

0
48

44
0.

34
8

5
43

5.
77

0
2.

56
YE

S
43

5.
94

0
5.

09
YE

S
43

6.
32

0
72

27
8.

44
2

6.
44

2
27

3.
67

0
3.

02
N

O
27

4.
25

0
4.

22
N

O
27

7.
59

0
24

33
3.

87
6

9.
87

6
32

8.
93

0
46

2.
21

N
O

33
3.

79
0

59
8.

36
N

O
33

4.
52

0
86

44
2.

36
11

.5
43

1.
45

0
4.

05
YE

S
43

1.
65

0
6.

91
YE

S
43

1.
89

0
26

43
2.

85
2

6.
85

2
42

6.
32

0
4.

53
YE

S
42

6.
41

0
7.

7
YE

S
42

6.
51

0
69

33
0.

07
0

33
0.

75
8.

44
8.

44
N

O
33

0.
98

14
.6

7
14

.6
7

N
O

33
1.

35
25

.1
7

39
40

0.
83

9
5

39
6.

25
0

4.
52

YE
S

39
6.

38
0

7.
69

YE
S

39
8.

34
0

38
44

8.
00

2
10

.0
02

44
6.

62
0

84
.3

1
YE

S
44

6.
81

0
86

.0
1

YE
S

44
6.

92
0

82
49

5.
98

2
5.

5
49

0.
68

0
0.

57
YE

S
49

0.
77

0
0.

98
YE

S
49

0.
87

0
81

40
1.

48
1

3
39

9.
17

0
24

.0
1

YE
S

39
9.

35
0

38
.9

5
YE

S
39

9.
44

0
19

42
2.

51
9

4.
5

41
8.

71
0

7.
55

YE
S

41
8.

93
0

12
.0

4
YE

S
41

9.
34

0
.7

43
1.

73
5.

03
42

7.
3

0
6.

84
YE

S
42

7.
49

0
10

.9
1

YE
S

42
7.

76
0

14
42

0.
11

4
4.

5
41

6.
24

0
7.

55
YE

S
41

6.
43

0
12

.0
4

YE
S

41
6.

76
0

93
45

5.
69

3
4.

5
45

1.
62

0
5.

28
YE

S
45

1.
73

0
8.

38
YE

S
45

1.
88

0
78

46
7.

28
4.

5
46

3.
24

0
4.

32
YE

S
46

3.
37

0
6.

86
YE

S
46

3.
54

0
74

47
8.

95
1

4.
95

1
47

4.
33

0
2.

11
YE

S
47

4.
42

0
3.

39
YE

S
47

4.
53

0
89

41
1.

28
9

7
40

6.
25

0
56

.1
6

YE
S

41
0.

33
0

10
4.

15
YE

S
41

1.
7

0
33

38
2.

93
3

4.
5

37
8.

67
0

2.
78

YE
S

37
8.

74
0

4.
75

YE
S

37
8.

83
0

24
34

9.
22

4
4.

5
34

5.
2

0
5.

64
YE

S
34

5.
36

0
9.

75
YE

S
34

5.
58

0
38

37
9.

33
8

11
36

9.
04

0
19

.3
9

YE
S

36
9.

27
0

34
.3

2
YE

S
36

9.
6

0
18

36
8.

21
8

5
36

4.
06

0
17

.2
YE

S
36

4.
41

0
31

.1
4

YE
S

36
6.

87
0

07
35

5.
90

7
5

35
1.

86
0

17
.1

9
YE

S
35

2.
3

0
31

.1
1

YE
S

35
6.

59
0

29
45

5.
57

9
6.

25
45

1.
66

0
5.

57
YE

S
45

5.
51

0
8.

06
YE

S
45

6.
25

0
98

43
4.

39
8

5
42

9.
66

0
1.

36
YE

S
42

9.
74

0
2.

37
YE

S
42

9.
84

0
49

42
7.

94
9

5
42

3.
25

0
1.

34
YE

S
42

3.
34

0
2.

32
YE

S
42

3.
46

0
06

35
1.

86
4

0
35

2.
1

0
9.

61
YE

S
35

2.
75

0
39

.4
YE

S
35

3.
17

0
16

41
3.

51
6

7
40

9.
59

0
46

.0
4

YE
S

41
3.

7
0

67
.5

7
YE

S
41

4.
18

0
85

40
8.

78
5

6
40

5.
36

0
69

.8
9

YE
S

40
6.

75
0

79
.6

4
YE

S
40

7.
16

0
79

42
4.

77
9

6
41

9.
53

0
18

.0
7

YE
S

41
9.

79
0

32
.3

6
YE

S
42

0.
25

0
63

41
5

26
3

6
41

0
19

0
17

99
YE

S
41

4
08

0
32

23
YE

S
41

5
42

0



Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
In

fl
(1

00
-y

e

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

 Ju
nc

tio
ns

 R
es

ul
ts

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
 

10
-y

ea
r

10
0-

ye
ar

83
42

5.
38

3
4.

5
42

2.
04

11
.2

9
11

.2
9

YE
S

42
5.

9
19

.1
1

19
.1

1
YE

S
42

6.
38

31
.9

5
35

44
2.

03
5

6.
5

43
6.

42
0

23
.4

8
YE

S
43

6.
73

0
41

.6
7

YE
S

43
7.

2
0

01
43

5.
78

8
10

.7
78

42
7.

02
0

36
.3

7
YE

S
43

3.
83

0
54

.0
7

YE
S

43
5.

06
0

.3
44

4.
36

2
5.

06
2

44
5.

56
0

17
.9

2
YE

S
44

6.
18

0
30

.5
2

YE
S

44
6.

27
0

31
35

7.
90

5
0

36
0.

11
0

14
2.

72
YE

S
36

1.
06

0
24

4.
27

YE
S

36
1.

74
0

16
44

8.
21

6
4.

5
44

5.
43

0
2.

77
YE

S
44

6.
22

0
4.

81
YE

S
44

7.
45

0
23

44
9.

42
3

5
44

6.
3

0
18

.1
7

YE
S

44
8.

71
0

30
.5

2
YE

S
44

9.
19

0
37

44
1.

10
9

4.
10

9
44

0.
36

0
9.

07
YE

S
44

0.
64

0
10

.4
4

YE
S

44
0.

96
0

24
44

2.
92

4
5.

5
44

0.
36

0
0.

35
YE

S
44

0.
64

0
0.

61
YE

S
44

0.
97

0
87

44
5.

88
7

5.
5

44
0.

39
0

0
YE

S
44

0.
66

0
0.

3
YE

S
44

0.
99

0
43

43
3.

94
3

4.
5

43
0.

82
0

4.
6

YE
S

43
2.

25
0

7.
94

YE
S

43
3.

98
0

63
43

1.
63

4
43

0.
61

0
8.

91
YE

S
43

1.
49

0
10

.1
9

YE
S

43
1.

93
0

14
41

8.
99

6
4.

99
6

41
5.

48
0

16
.9

7
YE

S
41

5.
98

0
29

.8
2

YE
S

41
7.

57
0

.5
39

8.
17

9
3.

67
9

39
8.

46
0

17
.0

9
YE

S
39

9.
42

0
17

.1
5

YE
S

39
9.

44
0

.5
44

8.
75

6
2.

25
6

44
6.

77
0

1.
41

YE
S

44
6.

86
0

2.
52

YE
S

44
6.

97
0

79
44

0.
47

9
4

44
1.

01
0

14
.3

8
YE

S
44

1.
28

0
24

.1
6

YE
S

44
1.

43
0

86
40

7.
68

6
5.

5
40

3.
16

0
20

.3
YE

S
40

3.
56

0
32

.1
7

YE
S

40
5.

64
0

04
42

3.
70

4
13

.5
41

1.
44

0
20

.4
1

YE
S

41
1.

85
0

32
.3

4
YE

S
41

3.
08

0
19

40
8.

61
9

5.
5

40
4.

49
0

20
.3

5
YE

S
40

5.
02

0
32

.2
7

YE
S

40
6.

89
0

46
45

0.
98

6
4.

98
6

44
6.

68
0

3.
22

YE
S

44
8.

58
0

5.
66

YE
S

45
1.

06
0

91
44

1.
49

1
8.

5
43

3.
76

11
.4

7
11

.5
2

YE
S

43
4.

02
20

.4
6

20
.5

5
YE

S
43

4.
38

35
.1

8
33

40
5.

83
3

12
39

4.
89

0
15

.2
8

YE
S

39
5.

28
0

27
.5

4
YE

S
39

5.
79

0
37

36
7.

43
7

5.
5

36
7.

76
0

57
.5

5
YE

S
36

8.
32

0
71

.7
7

YE
S

36
8.

48
0

64
36

3.
66

4
5

36
2.

03
0

2.
95

YE
S

36
2.

97
0

2.
97

YE
S

36
3.

86
0

13
41

2.
51

3
5.

5
40

8.
92

0
28

.8
1

YE
S

40
9.

4
0

42
.5

2
YE

S
40

9.
81

0
42

37
5.

24
2

0
37

5.
56

0
21

.6
1

YE
S

37
5.

73
0

42
.7

2
YE

S
37

6.
09

0
53

40
7.

53
7

40
1.

83
0

29
.8

3
YE

S
40

2.
14

0
45

.0
1

YE
S

40
2.

44
0

09
39

5.
80

9
8

39
2.

68
0

19
0.

93
YE

S
39

4.
39

0
21

8.
89

YE
S

39
5.

77
0

46
39

6.
95

3
15

.4
93

38
3.

34
0

61
.4

1
YE

S
38

4.
24

0
12

4.
82

YE
S

38
6.

97
0

41
38

8.
74

1
11

.5
37

9.
16

0
66

.7
7

YE
S

38
0.

44
0

13
2.

98
YE

S
38

3.
95

0
19

37
6.

19
7

36
9.

95
0

63
.3

5
YE

S
37

0.
17

0
10

6.
49

YE
S

37
1.

25
0

12
37

0.
41

2
9

36
2.

93
0

79
.3

2
YE

S
36

3.
6

0
14

7.
69

YE
S

36
9.

99
0

26
35

3.
32

6
8.

5
34

9.
62

0
17

2.
77

YE
S

35
1.

52
0

29
5.

03
YE

S
35

2.
67

0
44

35
1.

64
7

7.
64

7
34

9.
06

0
17

4.
16

YE
S

35
0

0
29

9.
2

YE
S

35
1.

13
0

85
36

1.
58

5
11

35
3.

41
0

16
3.

27
YE

S
35

8
0

29
2.

58
YE

S
36

0.
42

0
.9

34
3.

9
5

34
4.

04
0

50
.2

3
YE

S
34

4.
33

0
32

.9
6

YE
S

35
0.

28
0

23
42

1.
34

2
0

42
1.

14
4.

4
9.

63
YE

S
42

1.
19

7.
79

18
.7

9
YE

S
42

1.
26

13
.4

4
22

39
9.

02
2

4
39

6.
09

0
3.

54
YE

S
39

8.
38

0
5.

76
YE

S
40

0
0

74
40

0.
52

4
7.

75
40

0.
07

0
15

7.
31

YE
S

40
0.

75
0

15
6.

07
YE

S
40

1.
07

0
11

40
3.

86
1

5.
75

1
40

2.
7

0
11

4.
09

YE
S

40
3.

43
0

11
4.

72
YE

S
40

3.
65

0
48

40
7.

48
2

7.
00

2
40

7.
65

0
53

.9
4

YE
S

40
8.

29
0

57
.3

1
YE

S
40

8.
52

0
01

41
0

60
1

6
41

0
85

0
35

62
YE

S
41

1
14

0
36

9
YE

S
41

1
33

0



Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
In

fl
(1

00
-y

e

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

 Ju
nc

tio
ns

 R
es

ul
ts

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
 

10
-y

ea
r

10
0-

ye
ar

.5
41

5.
86

3
6.

36
3

41
6.

52
0

95
.2

4
YE

S
41

6.
62

0
97

.5
7

YE
S

41
6.

7
0

28
43

1.
52

8
8

42
5.

19
0

67
.6

2
YE

S
42

5.
66

0
91

.1
1

YE
S

42
7.

65
0

78
43

0.
27

8
5.

5
42

6.
63

0
59

.9
7

YE
S

42
7.

42
0

78
.0

6
YE

S
42

9.
28

0
56

42
3.

63
9

0
42

2.
29

0
3.

73
YE

S
42

2.
31

0
6.

69
YE

S
42

2.
33

0
36

42
3.

23
10

.8
7

41
7.

59
0

58
.4

6
YE

S
41

8.
49

0
90

.1
3

YE
S

42
0.

07
0

79
42

5.
39

1
7.

60
1

41
9.

18
0

56
.5

3
YE

S
41

9.
56

0
90

.2
1

YE
S

42
1.

28
0

22
42

5.
32

2
6

42
0.

22
0

9.
7

YE
S

42
0.

51
0

15
.9

8
YE

S
42

1.
3

0
45

38
9.

34
5

9
38

3.
07

0
15

4.
07

YE
S

38
4.

22
0

26
1.

3
YE

S
38

6.
14

0
05

41
3.

30
5

0
41

4.
18

1.
54

15
.8

YE
S

41
4.

4
2.

5
23

.6
4

YE
S

41
4.

61
3.

92
34

40
6.

13
4

6
40

6.
71

0
53

.7
YE

S
40

6.
89

0
52

.8
YE

S
40

7.
08

0
76

43
5.

97
6

4
43

5.
58

1.
81

33
.4

2
YE

S
43

5.
84

3.
03

36
.1

7
YE

S
43

6.
07

4.
88

29
33

8.
72

7
1.

19
8

33
7.

99
3.

45
3.

45
N

O
33

8.
19

6.
34

6.
34

N
O

33
8.

64
10

.7
4

16
29

9.
41

6
0

30
2.

9
26

.2
2

31
3.

07
N

O
30

3.
76

47
.3

3
38

6.
5

N
O

30
4.

92
86

.5
7

93
43

7.
59

3
0

43
8.

23
5.

72
5.

72
YE

S
43

8.
7

9.
95

9.
95

YE
S

43
9.

56
17

.7
1

66
41

2.
96

6
0

41
3.

63
4.

93
27

.1
3

YE
S

41
3.

84
9.

04
47

.3
9

YE
S

41
4.

15
14

.7
9

82
36

6.
82

4
36

2.
99

3.
86

4.
12

YE
S

36
3.

07
6.

76
7.

42
YE

S
36

3.
16

11
.9

1
97

33
5.

89
7

5
33

2.
3

3.
48

37
.3

1
N

O
33

3.
45

6.
03

66
.6

6
N

O
33

3.
76

9.
79

68
40

8.
36

8
0

40
8.

71
0.

66
0.

91
YE

S
40

8.
85

1.
2

1.
66

YE
S

40
9.

05
1.

95
59

40
7.

95
9

5.
5

40
3.

36
0

18
.9

4
YE

S
40

3.
59

0
29

.0
2

YE
S

40
4.

55
0

02
49

5.
70

2
0

49
5.

78
0.

28
0.

28
YE

S
49

5.
8

0.
46

0.
46

YE
S

49
5.

83
0.

74
48

48
8.

14
8

0
48

8.
86

31
.9

1
33

.8
9

YE
S

48
9.

13
57

.9
4

61
.3

7
YE

S
48

9.
54

10
7.

15
97

39
8.

89
7

0
40

0.
32

1.
01

16
.5

2
YE

S
40

0.
68

1.
9

28
.6

7
YE

S
40

0.
78

3.
17

63
45

2.
56

3
0

45
3.

23
4.

94
4.

94
YE

S
45

3.
69

9.
1

9.
1

YE
S

45
5.

26
15

.8
2



e
D'

 o
r H

'
(d

ia
m

et
er

) 
or

 (h
ei

gh
t)

B'
 (w

id
th

)
Ba

rr
el

s
Sh

ap
e

Sl
op

e 
(ft

/f
t)

M
at

er
ia

l
Q

co
n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)
Q

co
n 

vs
 Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
2

(1
0

1
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

51
50

3
CM

P
0

0
0

0
68

5
16

1
RE

CT
_C

LO
SE

D
0.

00
15

5
RC

B
61

7.
05

1.
12

92
3.

17
1.

67
69

5
16

1
RE

CT
_C

LO
SE

D
0.

01
04

CM
P

62
3.

55
0.

44
84

4.
35

0.
59

18
7

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

13
43

5
RC

P
8.

05
0.

1
47

.3
8

0.
57

5.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

42
7

RC
P

14
4.

83
0.

36
23

2.
19

0.
58

4
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

08
12

1
RC

P
0

0
0

0
3.

5
0

3
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
78

5
CM

P
28

9.
03

0.
49

40
8.

32
0.

7
4

8
1

RE
CT

_C
LO

SE
D

0.
01

60
1

RC
B

29
5.

61
0.

53
40

8
0.

73
4

8
1

RE
CT

_C
LO

SE
D

0.
05

06
6

RC
B

29
6.

94
0.

3
40

8.
32

0.
41

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

57
1

RC
P

1.
48

0.
11

2.
8

0.
21

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

23
11

RC
P

5.
2

0.
02

8.
27

0.
03

3.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

39
9

RC
P

9.
17

0.
06

16
.1

7
0.

1
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

68
1

RC
B

11
7.

73
0.

55
20

5.
8

0.
96

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
73

CM
P

14
.8

6
0.

4
27

.1
6

0.
73

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
71

RC
P

14
.6

3
0.

39
25

.9
9

0.
7

4
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
83

2
RC

P
45

.2
4

0.
35

77
.5

1
0.

59
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

08
91

8
RC

P
9.

73
0.

31
18

.7
5

0.
6

1
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

10
36

6
O

th
er

0.
01

0
0.

01
0

1
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

10
30

4
O

th
er

5.
01

0.
34

7.
89

0.
53

1
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

68
01

O
th

er
2.

81
0.

07
4.

46
0.

12
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
07

77
7

CM
P

8.
24

0.
24

14
.5

6
0.

43
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
06

25
6

CO
N

C
0.

71
0.

02
1.

26
0.

03
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

07
2

CO
N

C
11

.3
4

0.
16

19
.9

5
0.

29
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

59
7

CO
N

C
15

.4
3

0.
3

26
.8

6
0.

52
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

09
O

th
er

15
.6

2
0.

66
26

.7
1.

13
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

91
2

CO
N

C
0.

59
0.

02
1.

47
0.

05
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

31
4

CM
P

2.
51

0.
37

3.
92

0.
57

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
29

7
CO

N
C

0
0

0
0

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

05
45

3
CO

N
C

0
0

0
0

3.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

44
2

RC
P

12
.7

8
0.

08
22

.1
7

0.
14

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
10

7
CO

N
C

7.
28

0.
31

12
.5

8
0.

53
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

68
2

CO
N

C
2.

66
0.

14
4.

4
0.

24
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

68
4

CO
N

C
2.

95
0.

16
4.

82
0.

26
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

87
1

CO
N

C
2.

58
0.

12
4.

28
0.

2
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

68
2

CO
N

C
5.

47
0.

29
8.

96
0.

48
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

28
1

CO
N

C
7.

69
0.

3
13

.2
0.

52
1

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

78
8

CO
N

C
0.

93
0.

29
1.

47
0.

46
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
68

3
CO

N
C

14
.1

9
0.

42
23

.9
3

0.
71

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
32

2
CO

N
C

1.
09

0.
04

1.
69

0.
06

2.
5

0
3

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

99
4

RC
P

45
.2

3
0.

26
77

.4
1

0.
45

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

64
8

CO
N

C
1.

61
0.

19
2.

59
0.

31
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
75

9
CO

N
C

18
.7

1
0.

52
30

.4
0.

85
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
07

64
3

CO
N

C
1.

72
0.

03
2.

68
0.

04
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

61
9

CO
N

C
1.

21
0.

07
1.

87
0.

1
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
09

98
2

CO
N

C
28

.8
3

0.
4

50
.5

9
0.

71
3.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
56

5
CO

N
C

22
.1

5
0.

29
34

.2
7

0.
45

3.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

68
3

CO
N

C
47

.6
6

0.
57

73
.4

0.
88

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

07
78

CO
N

C
13

.0
8

0.
21

25
.1

5
0.

4
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
32

88
CO

N
C

13
.1

0.
1

25
.5

5
0.

2
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

63
8

CO
N

C
13

.1
0.

3
25

.5
6

0.
59

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
44

1
RC

P
15

.2
8

0.
19

26
.6

9
0.

33
4

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

68
3

CO
N

C
61

.6
2

0.
52

88
.2

4
0.

74
4

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

77
8

CO
N

C
65

.7
8

0.
52

87
.7

8
0.

69
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
68

8
CO

N
C

36
.1

2
0.

46
71

.6
1

0.
91

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
49

84
8

CO
N

C
0

0
0

0
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
16

02
RC

P
12

.5
1

0.
14

21
.8

6
0.

24
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
11

35
8

RC
P

13
.6

0.
18

23
.9

6
0.

31
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
26

RC
P

52
.5

1
0.

33
92

.9
1

0.
58

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
21

5
RC

P
54

.0
6

0.
45

94
.7

7
0.

79
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
23

77
3

CO
N

C
1.

63
0.

01
2.

79
0.

03
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
26

30
7

CO
N

C
0.

91
0.

01
1.

52
0.

01
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
28

41
6

CO
N

C
1.

07
0.

01
1.

83
0.

02
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
91

5
RC

P
1.

31
0.

09
2.

33
0.

16
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

08
17

5
RC

P
2.

56
0.

09
4.

48
0.

15
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

09
97

RC
P

2.
55

0.
08

4.
46

0.
13

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

03
9

RC
P

2.
51

0.
14

4.
4

0.
24

p
y

Di
m

en
si

on
s

10
-y

ea
r

2-
ye

ar



e
D'

 o
r H

'
(d

ia
m

et
er

) 
or

 (h
ei

gh
t)

B'
 (w

id
th

)
Ba

rr
el

s
Sh

ap
e

Sl
op

e 
(ft

/f
t)

M
at

er
ia

l
Q

co
n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)
Q

co
n 

vs
 Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
2

(1
0

p
y

Di
m

en
si

on
s

10
-y

ea
r

2-
ye

ar

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
12

25
4

RC
P

1.
26

0.
03

2.
11

0.
06

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

45
9

RC
P

5.
43

0.
76

8.
78

1.
23

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
05

92
8

RC
P

12
.7

9
0.

5
20

.7
4

0.
81

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

86
2

RC
P

11
.8

8
1.

22
15

.2
4

1.
56

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

04
5

RC
P

12
.9

2
0.

86
15

.9
9

1.
06

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

99
RC

P
12

.9
3

0.
87

14
.8

6
1

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

85
2

RC
P

0.
55

0.
06

3.
5

0.
36

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
08

71
3

RC
P

1.
12

0.
04

2.
99

0.
1

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

59
9

RC
P

2.
3

0.
17

4.
16

0.
31

3.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

10
5

RC
P

11
2.

84
0.

77
15

7.
28

1.
08

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

14
8

RC
P

4.
64

0.
41

9.
08

0.
81

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
08

91
9

RC
P

18
.4

0.
59

22
.3

1
0.

71
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
80

6
RC

P
20

.0
9

1.
14

25
.4

2
1.

44
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
28

99
5

RC
P

20
.9

9
0.

17
27

.0
7

0.
22

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

49
CO

N
C

23
.9

4
0.

37
35

.0
2

0.
54

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

37
4

CO
N

C
1.

61
0.

25
2.

69
0.

42
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

25
10

1
CO

N
C

1.
93

0.
04

3.
15

0.
06

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

07
58

5
CO

N
C

12
.7

9
0.

21
25

.0
3

0.
4

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
RC

P
1.

94
0.

09
3.

25
0.

14
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

91
3

RC
P

4.
1

0.
19

6.
62

0.
31

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

08
00

3
RC

P
2.

26
0.

04
3.

56
0.

06
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
06

72
2

RC
P

2.
27

0.
04

3.
57

0.
06

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

50
68

2
RC

P
0.

27
0

0.
42

0
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
06

72
2

RC
P

2.
02

0.
03

3.
18

0.
05

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

06
72

2
RC

P
0.

78
0.

01
1.

22
0.

02
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
04

27
1

RC
P

0.
53

0.
01

0.
85

0.
02

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

05
80

5
RC

P
0.

69
0.

01
1.

1
0.

02
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

89
5

RC
P

4.
9

0.
05

8.
36

0.
09

4
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
26

CO
N

C
63

.8
3

0.
4

86
.9

4
0.

54
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
05

67
3

CO
N

C
0.

26
0

0.
41

0.
01

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
63

CO
N

C
2.

73
0.

15
4.

44
0.

25
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

81
3

CO
N

C
0.

32
0.

02
0.

5
0.

02
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
28

11
8

CO
N

C
0.

31
0

0.
5

0
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

76
CO

N
C

1.
77

0.
09

2.
87

0.
15

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
13

5
CO

N
C

2.
04

0.
05

3.
29

0.
08

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
03

CO
N

C
2.

6
0.

07
4.

19
0.

11
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

76
4

CO
N

C
2.

19
0.

11
3.

59
0.

18
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

54
7

CO
N

C
6.

39
0.

38
10

.5
4

0.
63

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

04
88

5
CO

N
C

6.
35

0.
13

10
.4

7
0.

21
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

55
RC

P
1.

12
0.

04
1.

87
0.

07
4

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
05

90
4

CO
N

C
48

0.
14

85
.8

2
0.

25
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
34

51
1

CO
N

C
10

.5
3

0.
08

17
.5

6
0.

13
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

92
2

CO
N

C
9.

97
0.

46
16

.6
4

0.
77

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
57

4
CO

N
C

8.
3

0.
48

14
.0

5
0.

82
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

11
27

2
CO

N
C

0.
32

0.
01

0.
51

0.
01

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

49
9

CO
N

C
1

0.
14

1.
66

0.
22

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

30
5

CO
N

C
16

.6
3

2.
87

16
.6

1
2.

86
4

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

59
6

RC
P

12
0.

63
1.

09
16

2.
1

1.
46

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
88

4
CO

N
C

0.
4

0.
01

0.
63

0.
02

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
43

9
CO

N
C

1.
49

0.
04

2.
36

0.
06

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
15

5
CO

N
C

1.
97

0.
08

3.
12

0.
13

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
64

6
CO

N
C

0.
28

0.
02

0.
43

0.
02

4
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

05
24

1
CO

N
C

43
.0

9
0.

13
54

.1
0.

16
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
06

71
3

CO
N

C
1.

39
0.

02
2.

25
0.

04
4

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
04

01
6

CO
N

C
43

.1
1

0.
15

54
.1

0.
19

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

27
74

1
CO

N
C

41
.8

8
0.

35
52

.1
4

0.
44

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

07
91

1
CO

N
C

1.
14

0.
02

1.
75

0.
03

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
97

2
CO

N
C

40
.1

1
1.

03
49

.6
8

1.
27

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

15
39

3
CO

N
C

0.
48

0.
01

0.
75

0.
01

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

08
63

3
CO

N
C

0.
48

0.
01

0.
74

0.
01

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
97

3
CO

N
C

40
.1

5
1.

03
49

.6
8

1.
27

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
29

5
CO

N
C

0.
32

0.
01

3.
72

0.
14

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

15
41

3
CO

N
C

3.
41

0.
04

5.
79

0.
07

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
21

9
CO

N
C

3.
42

0.
08

5.
79

0.
14

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
97

3
CO

N
C

36
.1

9
0.

93
45

.4
7

1.
17

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
97

2
CO

N
C

3.
7

0.
09

6.
51

0.
17



e
D'

 o
r H

'
(d

ia
m

et
er

) 
or

 (h
ei

gh
t)

B'
 (w

id
th

)
Ba

rr
el

s
Sh

ap
e

Sl
op

e 
(ft

/f
t)

M
at

er
ia

l
Q

co
n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)
Q

co
n 

vs
 Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
2

(1
0

p
y

Di
m

en
si

on
s

10
-y

ea
r

2-
ye

ar

1
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
27

2
CO

N
C

4.
03

2.
17

6.
57

3.
53

1
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
84

5
HD

PE
1.

34
0.

22
2.

3
0.

38
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

11
7

CO
N

C
4.

31
0.

56
6.

73
0.

87
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

11
7

CO
N

C
4.

56
0.

59
6.

87
0.

89
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

33
CO

N
C

9.
28

0.
22

15
.6

7
0.

38
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

11
7

CO
N

C
12

.7
7

1.
65

15
.0

7
1.

94
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
11

7
CO

N
C

21
.4

3
1.

53
31

.3
3

2.
23

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
22

56
2

CO
N

C
8.

79
0.

05
15

.6
5

0.
08

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

51
4

CO
N

C
6

0.
2

10
.6

8
0.

36
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
11

8
CO

N
C

22
.3

3
1.

59
33

.1
2.

35
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
11

8
CO

N
C

22
.4

8
1.

6
33

.3
9

2.
37

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

11
7

CO
N

C
23

.3
7

1.
67

32
.7

7
2.

33
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
12

8
RC

P
4.

5
0.

24
7.

4
0.

4
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
11

8
CO

N
C

27
.3

1
1.

94
37

.2
2

2.
65

4.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

11
8

CO
N

C
15

5.
04

2.
3

22
6.

08
3.

35
4.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
11

7
CO

N
C

17
8.

42
2.

65
24

3.
4

3.
62

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
14

5
CO

N
C

0.
56

0.
02

0.
91

0.
04

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
32

5
CO

N
C

0.
66

0.
03

1.
08

0.
04

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

16
19

8
CO

N
C

0.
81

0.
01

1.
31

0.
01

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
43

CO
N

C
0.

48
0.

02
0.

77
0.

03
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

60
4

CO
N

C
0.

52
0.

03
0.

84
0.

05
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

27
24

6
RC

P
0.

05
0

0.
1

0
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

08
13

7
RC

P
2.

48
0.

02
4.

64
0.

04
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

14
97

4
CO

N
C

16
.7

4
0.

11
30

.4
3

0.
19

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
77

RC
P

13
.5

2
0.

45
23

.6
7

0.
79

4
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
07

5
CO

N
C

0
0

0
0

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

04
31

5
RC

P
11

.0
1

0.
23

19
.4

1
0.

41
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
11

21
5

RC
P

19
.4

8
0.

26
34

.8
2

0.
46

6
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
90

2
RC

P
10

3.
69

0.
26

20
3.

71
0.

51
4

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

00
9

RC
P

60
.4

6
0.

42
10

1.
98

0.
71

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
52

8
RC

P
12

.9
4

0.
46

22
.7

2
0.

81
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
36

58
9

RC
P

12
.9

5
0.

09
22

.7
4

0.
17

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

31
95

7
RC

P
12

.9
5

0.
1

22
.7

3
0.

18
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

61
6

RC
P

12
.9

1
0.

25
22

.6
8

0.
43

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
94

1
CO

N
C

3.
18

0.
14

5.
23

0.
24

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

26
87

1
RC

P
12

.9
0.

04
22

.6
7

0.
07

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
91

8
RC

P
20

.0
6

0.
31

36
.4

7
0.

57
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

03
5

CO
N

C
24

.7
4

0.
36

41
.7

5
0.

62
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

26
3

RC
P

50
.6

5
0.

42
85

.4
7

0.
71

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
14

14
7

RC
P

50
.7

0.
33

85
.5

0.
55

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
04

49
6

RC
P

48
.3

0.
56

81
.5

4
0.

94
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

06
10

7
RC

P
0.

62
0.

02
0.

98
0.

04
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
66

5
RC

P
3.

35
0.

2
5.

76
0.

34
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

69
3

RC
P

1.
58

0.
08

2.
66

0.
14

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

94
4

RC
P

9.
81

0.
96

17
.6

4
1.

73
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
3

RC
P

2.
21

0.
12

3.
9

0.
2

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
04

28
4

RC
P

3.
1

0.
14

5.
45

0.
25

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
06

50
9

RC
P

9.
82

0.
37

17
.6

5
0.

66
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

07
56

RC
P

0.
62

0.
02

0.
98

0.
03

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

10
9

RC
P

0.
75

0.
07

1.
22

0.
11

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

74
4

RC
P

5.
06

0.
36

8.
73

0.
63

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
05

43
RC

P
4.

91
0.

2
8.

85
0.

36
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

05
52

1
RC

P
1.

63
0.

07
2.

6
0.

11
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
05

53
3

RC
P

24
.6

3
0.

46
42

.0
6

0.
79

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

16
4

RC
P

2.
23

0.
12

3.
92

0.
21

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

07
42

8
RC

P
9.

69
0.

16
16

.3
6

0.
27

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

29
1

RC
P

46
.6

0.
63

78
.7

6
1.

06
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

06
93

4
RC

P
1.

37
0.

05
2.

19
0.

08
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

16
10

9
RC

P
1.

4
0.

03
2.

38
0.

06
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

08
18

1
RC

P
9.

1
0.

3
15

.8
5

0.
53

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
34

97
4

RC
P

12
.2

9
0.

2
21

.7
6

0.
35

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
05

65
9

RC
P

3.
1

0.
12

5.
45

0.
22

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
08

59
1

RC
P

2.
24

0.
07

3.
93

0.
13

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

07
5

RC
P

2.
21

0.
12

3.
9

0.
21

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

50
1

RC
P

37
.0

3
0.

74
63

.1
5

1.
26

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

16
3

RC
P

37
.5

8
0.

62
63

.8
9

1.
06



e
D'

 o
r H

'
(d

ia
m

et
er

) 
or

 (h
ei

gh
t)

B'
 (w

id
th

)
Ba

rr
el

s
Sh

ap
e

Sl
op

e 
(ft

/f
t)

M
at

er
ia

l
Q

co
n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)
Q

co
n 

vs
 Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
2

(1
0

p
y

Di
m

en
si

on
s

10
-y

ea
r

2-
ye

ar

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
07

37
6

RC
P

4.
18

0.
15

7.
14

0.
25

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

31
5

RC
P

2.
22

0.
14

3.
91

0.
24

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

34
8

RC
P

2.
21

0.
11

3.
9

0.
2

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

05
19

6
RC

P
24

.6
3

0.
48

41
.8

3
0.

81
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
05

64
2

RC
P

11
.4

5
0.

21
19

.5
9

0.
36

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
47

78
7

RC
P

1.
18

0.
02

1.
88

0.
03

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

12
7

RC
P

1.
28

0.
02

2.
04

0.
03

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

46
3

RC
P

25
.7

6
0.

4
34

.0
8

0.
53

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

98
9

RC
P

25
.7

9
0.

63
34

.1
2

0.
84

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

49
1

RC
P

25
.6

6
0.

33
33

.9
5

0.
44

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

89
4

RC
P

1.
97

0.
14

3.
55

0.
25

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

96
9

RC
P

2.
42

0.
16

4.
26

0.
29

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
24

24
2

RC
P

4.
25

0.
08

7.
89

0.
15

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

70
4

RC
P

4.
07

0.
24

7.
61

0.
44

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

39
RC

P
0.

78
0.

04
1.

21
0.

06
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

15
23

8
RC

P
3.

4
0.

08
6.

32
0.

15
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
44

1
RC

P
0.

6
0.

05
0.

92
0.

07
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
15

3
RC

P
19

.3
3

1.
71

19
.7

7
1.

75
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

06
28

7
RC

P
0.

3
0.

01
0.

47
0.

02
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
15

6
RC

P
19

.7
1.

28
20

.0
2

1.
3

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

48
5

RC
P

2.
39

0.
33

4.
22

0.
58

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

27
9

RC
P

2.
28

0.
14

4.
03

0.
25

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
16

67
1

RC
P

4.
11

0.
1

7.
67

0.
18

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

83
9

RC
P

2.
15

0.
12

3.
83

0.
22

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

68
9

RC
P

20
.2

1
1.

48
22

1.
61

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

45
RC

P
15

.2
5

1.
21

16
.9

9
1.

34
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

79
2

RC
P

1.
3

0.
06

2.
65

0.
13

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

82
5

RC
P

7.
66

0.
8

11
.5

1
1.

21
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
85

RC
P

10
.0

5
1.

04
11

.2
9

1.
17

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

3
RC

P
2.

6
0.

16
5.

65
0.

35
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
88

9
RC

P
4.

36
0.

44
9.

3
0.

94
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

04
45

9
RC

P
4.

78
0.

22
8.

19
0.

37
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
21

RC
P

1.
73

0.
09

2.
98

0.
16

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

20
2

RC
P

1.
1

0.
06

1.
89

0.
1

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

97
4

RC
P

2.
8

0.
15

4.
81

0.
27

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
13

96
5

RC
P

0.
53

0.
01

1.
99

0.
05

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

33
8

RC
P

0.
62

0.
04

1.
09

0.
07

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
06

49
5

RC
P

2.
84

0.
11

4.
54

0.
17

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
11

49
2

RC
P

0.
7

0.
02

1.
51

0.
04

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
05

55
8

RC
P

21
.0

9
0.

85
24

.4
1

0.
99

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

61
7

RC
P

3.
29

0.
16

6.
34

0.
32

6
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
78

8
RC

P
18

0.
98

0.
48

31
2.

42
0.

83
1

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
12

58
6

RC
P

0.
64

0.
05

1.
06

0.
08

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

28
9

RC
P

13
.0

2
1.

09
14

.9
2

1.
25

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

16
6

RC
P

11
.8

5
1.

04
13

.9
1

1.
23

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
04

83
2

RC
P

1.
11

0.
05

2.
16

0.
09

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

70
9

RC
P

3.
29

0.
19

6.
1

0.
35

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
08

05
1

RC
P

4.
39

0.
15

7.
99

0.
27

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
22

80
3

RC
P

0.
56

0.
01

0.
95

0.
02

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

92
3

RC
P

9.
24

0.
92

11
.7

1
1.

16
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

12
85

7
RC

P
0.

99
0.

03
1.

83
0.

05
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

07
57

2
RC

P
0.

99
0.

03
1.

81
0.

06
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

15
91

1
RC

P
1.

37
0.

03
2.

27
0.

05
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

11
24

2
CO

N
C

3.
79

0.
03

9.
88

0.
07

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

22
RC

P
12

.4
1

1.
07

14
.3

1
1.

23
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

16
69

3
RC

P
4.

86
0.

11
8

0.
19

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
08

72
CO

N
C

6.
84

0.
06

13
.1

6
0.

11
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

37
84

5
RC

P
0

0
0

0
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

16
51

5
RC

P
25

.6
1

0.
15

33
.8

8
0.

2
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

50
05

6
RC

P
0.

16
0

0.
24

0
2.

75
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

56
3

RC
P

23
.1

2
0.

19
30

.1
7

0.
24

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

09
18

3
RC

P
0.

8
0.

01
2.

29
0.

03
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
25

68
6

CM
P

0.
72

0.
01

2.
44

0.
04

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

30
28

5
CM

P
1.

36
0.

02
4.

44
0.

07
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
19

29
8

CM
P

0.
7

0.
01

2.
37

0.
04

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

36
98

5
CM

P
1.

96
0.

03
6.

04
0.

08



e
D'

 o
r H

'
(d

ia
m

et
er

) 
or

 (h
ei

gh
t)

B'
 (w

id
th

)
Ba

rr
el

s
Sh

ap
e

Sl
op

e 
(ft

/f
t)

M
at

er
ia

l
Q

co
n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)
Q

co
n 

vs
 Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
2

(1
0

p
y

Di
m

en
si

on
s

10
-y

ea
r

2-
ye

ar

6
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
41

4
RC

P
18

4.
62

0.
68

33
9.

04
1.

24
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
29

98
6

CM
P

1.
51

0.
02

5.
21

0.
08

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
61

2
RC

P
33

.7
8

0.
79

61
.4

5
1.

43
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

81
4

RC
P

22
.1

8
0.

58
39

.8
1.

05
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

64
2

RC
P

32
.6

7
0.

89
59

.3
2

1.
61

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

98
4

RC
P

3.
47

0.
33

6.
21

0.
6

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
04

38
8

RC
P

4.
63

0.
21

8.
21

0.
37

6
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
59

RC
P

10
3.

3
0.

32
20

1.
71

0.
62

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
86

2
RC

P
7.

6
0.

2
13

.6
1

0.
36

4
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
46

6
RC

P
39

.1
5

0.
4

70
.8

9
0.

72
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
79

2
RC

P
0

0
0

0
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
61

3
RC

P
3.

07
0.

18
5.

38
0.

32
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
23

97
5

CO
N

C
21

.4
0.

19
37

.0
8

0.
33

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
05

8
CO

N
C

3.
84

0.
16

6.
61

0.
28

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

73
9

CO
N

C
25

.3
4

0.
47

43
.8

3
0.

81
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
15

62
4

CO
N

C
8.

83
0.

1
15

.1
4

0.
17

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
84

CO
N

C
1.

24
0.

03
2.

15
0.

06
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
09

16
9

RC
P

8.
94

0.
13

15
.3

2
0.

22
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

80
2

RC
P

1.
67

0.
06

2.
89

0.
1

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

05
2

RC
P

35
.4

1
0.

49
61

.2
0.

85
4

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

25
3

RC
P

38
.7

5
0.

54
67

.1
3

0.
93

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

60
2

CO
N

C
13

.0
7

0.
98

16
.3

3
1.

23
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

04
25

8
CO

N
C

17
.1

6
0.

79
23

.1
2

1.
07

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

44
5

CO
N

C
10

.8
9

1.
55

21
.2

6
3.

03
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

05
13

6
RC

P
4.

01
0.

17
6.

46
0.

27
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

08
95

8
RC

P
31

.2
4

0.
25

49
.1

0.
4

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
04

17
1

RC
P

19
.1

2
0.

23
35

.6
8

0.
43

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
71

11
RC

P
22

.1
4

0.
25

35
.6

6
0.

4
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
93

2
RC

P
1.

3
0.

07
2.

11
0.

12
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
89

RC
P

0.
6

0.
06

0.
96

0.
1

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
11

70
4

RC
P

3.
55

0.
1

5.
98

0.
17

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
05

05
RC

P
19

.6
2

0.
83

31
.2

2
1.

32
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
91

4
RC

P
6.

25
0.

3
21

.9
5

1.
06

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

71
9

RC
P

17
.0

8
0.

22
22

.9
2

0.
29

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
07

90
8

RC
P

31
.3

0.
27

49
.1

8
0.

43
1.

75
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

02
3

RC
P

10
.0

3
0.

63
15

.4
8

0.
97

1.
75

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
09

9
RC

P
5.

85
0.

18
11

.9
1

0.
37

4.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

55
5

RC
P

22
4.

32
0.

91
26

1.
46

1.
07

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

24
5

RC
P

22
.0

8
0.

48
40

.1
8

0.
88

2.
25

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

79
7

CO
N

C
2.

63
0.

05
4.

5
0.

09
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

04
37

4
RC

P
13

.9
2

0.
63

25
.1

4
1.

14
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

15
81

1
RC

P
16

.9
4

0.
41

29
.2

9
0.

7
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

60
8

RC
P

13
.8

5
0.

38
24

.8
3

0.
68

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
38

RC
P

13
.8

5
0.

52
24

.8
6

0.
94

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
16

31
9

RC
P

0.
25

0.
01

0.
41

0.
01

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
62

2
RC

P
2.

42
0.

08
3.

82
0.

13
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
33

RC
P

5.
07

0.
26

8.
77

0.
46

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

25
31

HD
PE

0
0

0
0

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

99
1

RC
P

1.
25

0.
02

2.
32

0.
03

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

34
6

RC
P

28
.7

2
0.

38
47

.4
7

0.
63

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

15
35

8
RC

P
0

0
0

0
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
07

14
7

RC
P

0
0

0
0

3.
5

5.
5

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
54

1
RC

P
92

.6
2

1.
25

11
0.

25
1.

49
3.

5
5.

5
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

89
5

RC
P

92
.6

2
0.

97
11

0.
25

1.
16

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
45

8
RC

P
0

0
0

0
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
05

40
4

RC
P

0.
54

0.
01

0.
96

0.
02

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

05
31

8
RC

P
0.

53
0.

01
0.

95
0.

02
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

61
2

RC
P

5.
93

0.
33

5.
25

0.
3

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
06

64
RC

P
0.

76
0.

03
2.

05
0.

08
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

RC
P

0
0

0
0

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
95

RC
P

0
0

0
0

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
85

5
RC

P
0

0
0

0
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

97
1

RC
P

4.
34

0.
19

7.
61

0.
34

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

08
47

2
SP

15
.3

5
0.

43
27

.4
0.

77
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

95
8

RC
P

4.
33

0.
2

7.
61

0.
34

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
47

3
RC

P
4.

33
0.

12
7.

6
0.

21



e
D'

 o
r H

'
(d

ia
m

et
er

) 
or

 (h
ei

gh
t)

B'
 (w

id
th

)
Ba

rr
el

s
Sh

ap
e

Sl
op

e 
(ft

/f
t)

M
at

er
ia

l
Q

co
n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)
Q

co
n 

vs
 Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
2

(1
0

p
y

Di
m

en
si

on
s

10
-y

ea
r

2-
ye

ar

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
04

24
9

RC
P

0
0

0
0

6
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
27

9
RC

P
22

.5
1

0.
1

10
6.

97
0.

48
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
08

94
1

RC
P

10
.2

9
0.

05
19

.7
8

0.
1

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
74

RC
P

10
.3

3
0.

18
19

.2
5

0.
34

4
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
76

7
RC

P
35

.4
4

0.
15

54
.6

0.
23

4
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
59

4
RC

P
36

.2
3

0.
16

53
.7

7
0.

23
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
24

9
RC

P
7.

39
0.

39
12

.2
5

0.
65

4
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

21
43

RC
P

1.
02

0
1.

65
0

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

37
7

CO
N

C
15

.4
3

0.
61

27
.5

1.
09

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

52
4

CO
N

C
15

.3
9

0.
52

27
.4

2
0.

92
7

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

28
3

RC
P

41
2.

83
0.

57
65

0.
54

0.
9

4.
75

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
24

6
RC

P
7.

24
0.

06
30

.8
1

0.
27

1
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
74

5
AB

S
0.

77
0.

11
1.

26
0.

18
1

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
06

32
5

AB
S

0.
67

0.
07

1.
06

0.
12

1
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

07
32

2
RC

P
3.

43
0.

36
5.

36
0.

56
1

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
04

76
3

AB
S

2.
1

0.
27

3.
44

0.
44

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

46
RC

P
5.

91
0.

36
10

.6
2

0.
64

1
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
77

AB
S

5.
66

0.
95

6.
3

1.
06

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

05
62

8
HD

PE
3.

1
0.

06
5.

39
0.

1
6.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
96

4
RC

P
33

0.
59

0.
64

51
0.

01
0.

99
5.

5
4.

7
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

55
4

RC
P

19
1.

53
0.

77
29

3.
9

1.
18

3
5.

5
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

27
1

RC
P

50
.8

2
0.

68
60

.8
2

0.
81

5.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

63
7

RC
P

21
6.

48
0.

81
35

0.
81

1.
31

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
42

5
CO

N
C

9.
08

0.
09

15
.0

3
0.

14
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
27

84
RC

P
0.

72
0.

01
1.

27
0.

01
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
16

5
RC

P
2.

15
0.

12
3.

85
0.

21
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

14
23

5
RC

P
1.

79
0.

05
3.

15
0.

08
1

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

11
3

AB
S

0.
92

0.
18

1.
53

0.
3

1
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

08
77

8
RC

P
1.

86
0.

18
3.

35
0.

32
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
04

3
SP

0.
26

0.
03

0.
46

0.
06

6
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

07
52

6
RC

P
0

0
0

0
4

8
1

RE
CT

_C
LO

SE
D

0.
02

11
1

RC
B

23
7.

43
0.

37
27

0.
27

0.
42

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
19

52
2

RC
P

6.
39

0.
14

11
.5

2
0.

25
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
30

9
AB

S
17

.5
8

0.
92

21
.5

1
1.

13
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

02
3

AB
S

10
.7

0.
27

19
.1

6
0.

49
1

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

26
2

RC
P

0.
32

0.
08

0.
57

0.
14

1
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
57

RC
P

0.
05

0.
02

0.
11

0.
04

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
13

77
9

RC
P

5.
7

0.
15

10
.3

4
0.

27
3.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
99

2
RC

P
53

.1
5

0.
26

15
2.

01
0.

76
6

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

33
RC

P
12

2.
04

0.
25

24
6.

7
0.

51
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

36
5

RC
P

11
8.

66
0.

75
17

4.
51

1.
11

8
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
39

1
RC

P
25

9.
47

0.
45

46
2.

42
0.

81
8

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

34
1

RC
P

24
8.

43
0.

47
44

1.
89

0.
83

6
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
03

9
RC

P
23

7.
93

0.
55

41
6.

48
0.

96
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

57
1

RC
P

15
2.

91
0.

47
27

0.
13

0.
83

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
47

5
RC

P
98

.4
3

0.
24

14
7.

12
0.

36
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

70
9

RC
P

10
1.

98
0.

47
15

0.
58

0.
69

3.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

77
RC

P
53

.2
9

0.
6

11
1.

02
1.

26
3.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
57

2
RC

P
96

.1
8

0.
51

16
2.

26
0.

85
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

46
8

RC
P

9.
3

0.
12

15
.2

6
0.

19
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
06

05
2

RC
P

12
.7

1
0.

08
23

.2
8

0.
14

1.
25

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
09

HD
PE

0.
65

0.
1

1.
06

0.
16

1.
25

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
61

2
HD

PE
2.

86
0.

57
4.

77
0.

94
1.

25
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

42
HD

PE
2.

85
0.

24
4.

77
0.

4
1.

25
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

64
1

HD
PE

1.
06

0.
08

1.
8

0.
13

1.
25

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
04

8
HD

PE
1.

85
0.

28
3.

08
0.

47
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

59
6

RC
P

0.
17

0
0.

26
0.

01
8

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

07
5

RC
P

52
8.

97
0.

56
92

6.
5

0.
98

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
14

56
RC

P
2.

15
0.

05
3.

62
0.

09
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
63

3
RC

P
2.

51
0.

19
4.

26
0.

32
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
51

RC
P

2.
5

0.
19

4.
25

0.
33

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

25
7

HD
PE

2.
74

0.
17

4.
82

0.
31

3.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

-0
.0

00
89

RC
P

51
.5

8
1.

72
81

.9
8

2.
74

1.
25

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
84

5
HD

PE
3.

14
0.

53
5.

52
0.

93
1.

25
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

82
1

RC
P

3.
09

0.
35

5.
46

0.
63

3.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

59
8

RC
P

3.
86

0.
03

15
.6

4
0.

12



e
D'

 o
r H

'
(d

ia
m

et
er

) 
or

 (h
ei

gh
t)

B'
 (w

id
th

)
Ba

rr
el

s
Sh

ap
e

Sl
op

e 
(ft

/f
t)

M
at

er
ia

l
Q

co
n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)
Q

co
n 

vs
 Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
2

(1
0

p
y

Di
m

en
si

on
s

10
-y

ea
r

2-
ye

ar

6
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
14

7
RC

P
22

.8
7

0.
14

53
.0

2
0.

33
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

36
9

RC
P

11
.7

0.
85

38
.8

8
2.

83
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
07

17
1

RC
P

5.
21

0.
09

9.
3

0.
15

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
14

90
5

RC
P

2.
41

0.
06

4.
34

0.
11

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

51
8

RC
P

1.
57

0.
09

2.
86

0.
17

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
21

63
6

RC
P

2.
85

0.
06

5.
02

0.
1

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
34

5
RC

P
54

.4
3

1.
39

84
.4

3
2.

16
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

00
3

RC
P

5.
42

0.
24

9.
57

0.
42

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
38

2
RC

P
5.

43
0.

16
9.

57
0.

27
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

45
RC

P
5.

39
0.

15
9.

5
0.

27
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

73
7

RC
P

11
.2

0.
38

20
.0

2
0.

67
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
14

4
RC

P
16

.4
5

0.
27

29
.3

9
0.

49
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
06

44
9

RC
P

23
.1

6
0.

14
39

.6
2

0.
23

3.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

67
8

RC
P

2.
19

0.
02

6.
51

0.
05

0.
67

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

16
21

3
PV

C
0.

91
0.

18
1.

53
0.

31
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
38

7
RC

P
21

.2
8

0.
34

37
.9

1
0.

6
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

55
RC

P
2.

56
0.

09
5.

09
0.

18
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

65
3

RC
P

2.
56

0.
09

5.
07

0.
17

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

07
85

8
RC

P
2.

55
0.

04
5.

06
0.

08
1

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
08

97
8

PV
C

2.
21

0.
21

3.
82

0.
36

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
08

80
5

RC
P

2.
23

0.
07

4
0.

13
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

10
04

7
CM

P
2.

14
0.

12
3.

73
0.

21
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
71

6
RC

P
12

.1
7

0.
35

21
.8

4
0.

63
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

71
6

RC
P

5.
09

0.
27

8.
94

0.
47

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

11
57

2
RC

P
0.

34
0

0.
82

0
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
66

9
RC

P
7.

33
0.

43
12

.9
7

0.
76

3.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

53
4

RC
P

47
.3

7
0.

3
79

.8
0.

5
4

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

69
RC

P
12

4.
13

0.
45

21
2.

83
0.

77
3.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
15

RC
P

64
.6

2
0.

36
11

1.
99

0.
63

4
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
16

8
RC

P
11

2.
8

0.
53

19
3.

81
0.

92
4.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
17

5
RC

P
12

8.
08

0.
44

21
9.

94
0.

76
3.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
35

5
RC

P
63

.2
7

0.
34

10
9.

57
0.

59
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
83

7
RC

P
2.

37
0.

13
4.

28
0.

24
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
05

00
8

RC
P

17
.1

3
0.

34
30

.1
7

0.
6

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
22

4
RC

P
21

.3
5

0.
53

38
.2

2
0.

94
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

33
2

RC
P

8.
98

0.
69

8.
01

0.
61

2.
25

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
59

RC
P

5.
01

0.
21

5.
45

0.
23

1.
25

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
43

2
RC

P
6.

91
0.

37
11

.7
1

0.
62

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
45

3
RC

P
0.

96
0.

06
1.

77
0.

12
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

61
9

RC
P

0.
18

0
0.

27
0.

01
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

06
69

3
RC

P
1.

01
0.

04
1.

73
0.

06
1

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

30
5

RC
P

0.
24

0.
12

0.
47

0.
24

1
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

17
87

8
CM

P
0.

83
0.

1
1.

53
0.

19
5

10
1

RE
CT

_C
LO

SE
D

0.
01

65
9

RC
B

30
8.

85
0.

3
35

3.
06

0.
34

6
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
87

9
RC

P
98

.3
3

0.
17

20
9.

46
0.

36
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
77

4
RC

P
4.

94
0.

35
8.

1
0.

58
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

04
RC

P
14

.7
2

0.
37

26
.4

2
0.

67
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
32

3
RC

P
3.

18
0.

53
5.

4
0.

91
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

27
67

8
RC

P
5.

98
0.

11
10

.2
1

0.
18

1
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

85
39

8
CM

P
0.

34
0.

02
0.

54
0.

03
4

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

99
3

RC
P

98
.3

3
0.

4
24

2.
5

0.
98

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
14

77
2

RC
P

0.
83

0.
02

1.
51

0.
04

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
32

4
RC

P
10

.6
9

0.
41

18
.9

3
0.

73
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
15

63
4

RC
P

12
.4

1
0.

14
21

.9
6

0.
25

8
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
42

2
RC

P
18

9.
62

0.
32

35
2.

85
0.

6
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

06
71

2
RC

P
17

.1
7

0.
63

30
.6

7
1.

13
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

14
7

CM
P

29
0.

55
50

.8
7

0.
96

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
06

11
6

RC
P

0.
88

0.
03

1.
44

0.
06

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
20

5
RC

P
1.

42
0.

04
2.

36
0.

07
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
96

6
RC

P
2.

16
0.

21
3.

64
0.

35
1.

25
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

91
9

RC
P

0.
24

0.
02

0.
39

0.
04

1.
25

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
50

4
HD

PE
0.

26
0.

03
0.

43
0.

05
1.

25
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

10
5

CM
P

0.
26

0.
04

0.
43

0.
06

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
06

92
9

RC
P

1.
88

0.
07

3.
37

0.
12

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
78

3
RC

P
13

.1
7

0.
66

21
.4

7
1.

07
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

06
18

9
RC

P
6.

92
0.

26
12

.2
9

0.
47



e
D'

 o
r H

'
(d

ia
m

et
er

) 
or

 (h
ei

gh
t)

B'
 (w

id
th

)
Ba

rr
el

s
Sh

ap
e

Sl
op

e 
(ft

/f
t)

M
at

er
ia

l
Q

co
n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)
Q

co
n 

vs
 Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
2

(1
0

p
y

Di
m

en
si

on
s

10
-y

ea
r

2-
ye

ar

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
15

23
7

RC
P

3.
37

0.
08

3.
4

0.
08

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

50
6

RC
P

5.
83

0.
78

9.
07

1.
21

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

53
4

RC
P

3.
84

0.
3

6.
81

0.
52

7
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
26

3
RC

P
16

7.
14

0.
51

31
3.

52
0.

96
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
92

9
RC

P
4.

35
0.

3
7.

63
0.

52
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
70

4
RC

P
3.

84
0.

44
6.

59
0.

75
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
05

24
HD

PE
4.

01
0.

08
6.

87
0.

13
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

27
65

5
CM

P
0

0
0

0
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

19
01

5
CM

P
3.

46
0.

08
5.

7
0.

12
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

09
57

8
RC

P
19

.0
6

0.
15

31
.7

5
0.

25
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
98

8
RC

P
1.

33
0.

06
2.

31
0.

11
4.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
56

4
RC

P
98

.1
6

0.
66

17
8.

79
1.

21
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
06

CM
P

5.
31

0.
49

8.
72

0.
81

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
04

58
7

RC
P

6.
39

0.
28

10
.5

3
0.

47
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

78
4

RC
P

8.
04

0.
4

13
.2

6
0.

66
0.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

87
27

6
PV

C
1.

17
0.

22
1.

83
0.

35
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

57
6

RC
P

50
.5

5
0.

26
60

.1
3

0.
3

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
04

55
4

RC
P

0.
94

0.
04

1.
56

0.
07

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
81

2
RC

P
51

.3
6

0.
15

62
.8

5
0.

18
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

37
9

RC
P

25
.5

6
0.

62
55

.8
9

1.
36

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
51

7
RC

P
1.

31
0.

08
2.

12
0.

13
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

18
1

RC
P

10
4.

34
0.

88
15

5.
15

1.
3

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

04
69

RC
P

10
4.

24
0.

72
14

6.
31

1.
01

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
04

28
7

RC
P

2.
35

0.
11

3.
83

0.
18

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
05

76
8

RC
P

9.
54

0.
38

16
.1

9
0.

64
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
14

9
HD

PE
2.

01
0.

13
3.

34
0.

22
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
60

1
RC

P
0.

37
0.

01
0.

82
0.

03
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

60
5

RC
P

0.
33

0.
02

0.
62

0.
03

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
09

39
1

RC
P

0.
19

0
0.

33
0

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

79
7

RC
P

0.
32

0.
02

0.
56

0.
03

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

09
94

8
CM

P
1.

33
0.

03
2.

36
0.

06
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

21
09

6
RC

P
33

.8
9

0.
18

11
6.

32
0.

62
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
15

09
CO

N
C

5.
05

0.
06

7.
95

0.
09

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
52

2
RC

P
94

.4
0.

29
16

1.
61

0.
5

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
14

64
3

CM
P

2.
81

0.
13

4.
47

0.
21

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

97
6

RC
P

1.
43

0.
14

2.
48

0.
24

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
17

01
7

RC
P

0.
51

0.
01

0.
88

0.
02

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

04
79

8
HD

PE
1.

87
0.

04
3.

43
0.

07
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
46

87
3

HD
PE

2.
39

0.
02

4.
33

0.
03

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

96
9

HD
PE

2.
56

0.
12

4.
09

0.
2

4
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
33

3
RC

P
16

.7
0.

2
22

.5
4

0.
27

4
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

10
33

4
CO

N
C

18
.9

5
0.

04
25

.6
4

0.
06

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
04

90
3

HD
PE

0.
86

0.
04

1.
38

0.
06

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

15
4

HD
PE

0.
89

0.
05

1.
43

0.
08

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

58
5

HD
PE

1.
72

0.
09

2.
77

0.
14

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

86
2

HD
PE

2.
6

0.
15

4.
15

0.
23

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

44
9

HD
PE

0.
51

0.
03

0.
79

0.
05

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

63
8

HD
PE

0.
41

0.
03

0.
63

0.
05

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
45

8
RC

P
14

.2
0.

4
25

.5
6

0.
72

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
04

00
4

RC
P

4.
91

0.
23

9.
06

0.
43

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

90
9

HD
PE

4.
21

0.
23

6.
68

0.
37

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

61
4

HD
PE

0.
19

0.
01

0.
29

0.
02

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

74
6

HD
PE

0.
54

0.
03

0.
82

0.
04

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

13
08

2
HD

PE
4.

53
0.

06
7.

69
0.

09
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
65

2
HD

PE
1.

57
0.

12
2.

56
0.

19
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
32

2
HD

PE
2.

05
0.

11
3.

3
0.

17
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
45

2
HD

PE
1.

03
0.

08
1.

59
0.

13
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
85

2
HD

PE
1.

28
0.

07
2

0.
11

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
04

16
7

HD
PE

4.
22

0.
2

6.
7

0.
31

1
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

08
78

3
RC

P
0.

66
0.

06
1.

05
0.

1
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
62

1
RC

P
2.

45
0.

3
3.

89
0.

47
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
49

5
RC

P
3.

52
0.

21
5.

62
0.

34
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

06
93

5
RC

P
1.

18
0.

04
1.

84
0.

07
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
10

68
5

RC
P

4.
79

0.
06

7.
61

0.
1

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

96
RC

P
7.

19
0.

49
13

.8
9

0.
94

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

36
6

RC
P

9.
19

0.
37

17
.5

1
0.

71



e
D'

 o
r H

'
(d

ia
m

et
er

) 
or

 (h
ei

gh
t)

B'
 (w

id
th

)
Ba

rr
el

s
Sh

ap
e

Sl
op

e 
(ft

/f
t)

M
at

er
ia

l
Q

co
n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)
Q

co
n 

vs
 Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
2

(1
0

p
y

Di
m

en
si

on
s

10
-y

ea
r

2-
ye

ar

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

93
4

RC
P

3.
22

0.
32

5.
82

0.
57

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
83

8
RC

P
5.

51
0.

09
9.

88
0.

16
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
06

92
5

RC
P

3.
88

0.
07

7.
16

0.
12

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
05

92
3

RC
P

10
.9

4
0.

11
20

.0
2

0.
2

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
14

8
RC

P
16

.8
4

0.
14

30
.2

9
0.

26
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
06

80
7

RC
P

10
.8

8
0.

06
20

.1
5

0.
12

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
06

22
4

RC
P

1.
07

0.
04

1.
91

0.
07

4
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
10

5
RC

P
26

.6
8

0.
18

50
.9

5
0.

34
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

07
41

4
RC

P
0.

64
0.

02
1.

14
0.

04
4

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

93
8

RC
P

26
.1

0.
09

49
.8

5
0.

17
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
11

1
RC

P
16

.9
7

0.
28

28
.5

7
0.

48
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

06
03

7
RC

P
24

.2
8

0.
24

41
.3

4
0.

41
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
88

7
RC

P
5.

17
0.

36
9.

49
0.

66
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
04

58
7

RC
B

21
.0

1
0.

43
37

.3
0.

77
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

50
2

RC
P

12
.6

0.
35

22
.5

9
0.

63
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

58
7

RC
P

11
.2

0.
31

20
.0

7
0.

55
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
04

38
2

RC
P

36
.1

9
0.

26
55

.5
4

0.
4

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

77
8

CM
P

3.
17

0.
33

8.
36

0.
88

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
34

5
HD

PE
6.

31
0.

24
11

.3
7

0.
43

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
12

35
8

AB
S

4.
19

0.
11

8.
5

0.
23

4
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
62

RC
P

72
.1

9
0.

39
12

0.
89

0.
66

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

07
06

2
CM

P
0.

76
0.

02
1.

32
0.

04
4

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

71
2

RC
P

78
.7

9
0.

42
13

2.
95

0.
71

4
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
35

6
RC

P
61

.5
0.

23
10

1.
77

0.
39

4
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
67

8
RC

P
61

.4
1

0.
52

10
1.

66
0.

86
4

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

81
RC

P
59

.1
2

0.
31

97
.5

2
0.

5
1

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
05

17
8

RC
P

3.
73

0.
46

6.
69

0.
83

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
74

7
RC

P
25

.1
1

0.
19

44
.7

4
0.

35
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

05
09

CM
P

5.
4

0.
23

10
.3

7
0.

44
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
09

78
4

CM
P

10
.5

9
0.

05
19

.2
0.

09
6

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

93
3

RC
P

11
8.

12
0.

14
24

5.
92

0.
29

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

68
2

AB
S

2.
78

0.
2

4.
75

0.
35

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
24

52
AB

S
2.

77
0.

05
4.

74
0.

09
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
22

6
AB

S
5.

64
0.

36
9.

75
0.

62
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

06
19

8
AB

S
5.

63
0.

22
9.

73
0.

37
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

60
7

RC
P

4.
87

0.
28

8.
74

0.
5

6
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
52

7
RC

P
11

9.
29

0.
23

27
0.

63
0.

52
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
06

04
6

RC
P

19
.3

7
0.

12
34

.4
2

0.
21

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
82

RC
P

19
.3

8
0.

32
34

.4
4

0.
57

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

10
42

5
RC

P
11

.4
1

0.
05

20
.6

8
0.

1
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
80

6
CM

P
6.

55
1.

28
9.

47
1.

85
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

03
3

RC
P

10
.8

5
0.

47
19

.0
2

0.
83

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

26
4

RC
P

1.
34

0.
09

2.
45

0.
16

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
78

7
RC

P
7.

67
0.

38
13

.3
9

0.
67

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
82

9
RC

P
14

.6
5

0.
33

26
.0

3
0.

59
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
04

24
9

RC
P

14
.6

4
0.

31
26

.0
1

0.
56

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
32

2
RC

P
8.

83
0.

69
16

.1
8

1.
26

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
89

1
RC

P
9.

41
0.

3
16

.5
0.

53
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
22

31
5

CO
N

C
2.

98
0.

04
5.

41
0.

07
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

43
5

AB
S

7.
11

0.
48

12
.6

6
0.

85
0.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

04
29

5
AB

S
0

0
0

0
0.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
09

7
AB

S
0.

03
0.

05
0.

05
0.

08
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
34

RC
P

1.
28

0.
07

2.
32

0.
12

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
09

67
RC

P
1.

31
0.

04
2.

51
0.

08
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

04
93

5
AB

S
2.

05
0.

09
3.

55
0.

15
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

08
5

CM
P

20
.5

5
0.

55
36

.3
2

0.
97

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

52
RC

P
0.

83
0.

06
1.

51
0.

12
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
19

RC
P

4.
47

0.
29

8.
15

0.
52

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

51
4

RC
P

5.
65

0.
44

10
.2

4
0.

79
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
97

8
RC

P
5.

55
0.

38
10

.0
7

0.
68

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

45
6

HD
PE

4.
05

0.
57

6.
9

0.
97

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
15

4
CO

N
C

26
.6

0.
22

44
.8

7
0.

38
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

10
70

3
RC

P
1.

18
0.

03
4.

02
0.

12
4

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

64
6

RC
P

39
.6

2
0.

34
69

.6
7

0.
6

4
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
90

2
RC

P
54

.0
4

0.
4

91
.1

8
0.

67
4

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

22
RC

P
55

.2
6

0.
35

92
.4

9
0.

58



e
D'

 o
r H

'
(d

ia
m

et
er

) 
or

 (h
ei

gh
t)

B'
 (w

id
th

)
Ba

rr
el

s
Sh

ap
e

Sl
op

e 
(ft

/f
t)

M
at

er
ia

l
Q

co
n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)
Q

co
n 

vs
 Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
2

(1
0

p
y

Di
m

en
si

on
s

10
-y

ea
r

2-
ye

ar

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
15

74
6

CM
P

1.
36

0.
06

2.
37

0.
1

3.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
06

16
1

CM
P

24
.1

1
0.

18
33

.4
5

0.
25

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

88
4

RC
P

2.
34

0.
24

4.
18

0.
42

0.
92

2.
67

1
RE

CT
_C

LO
SE

D
0.

00
80

2
RC

B
2.

57
0.

21
4.

63
0.

38
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

66
6

RC
P

10
.8

8
0.

59
19

.3
7

1.
05

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
07

75
6

RC
P

7.
03

0.
24

7.
39

0.
25

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

05
39

9
SP

16
.8

5
0.

2
30

.0
6

0.
36

0.
33

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

13
72

6
HD

PE
0.

87
1.

26
0.

87
1.

26
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

49
2

RC
P

20
.2

6
0.

43
31

.7
5

0.
68

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
64

1
RC

P
40

.3
1

0.
47

60
.2

0.
7

4
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
81

9
RC

P
85

.1
2

0.
65

15
4.

37
1.

19
4

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

74
8

RC
P

85
.0

6
0.

31
15

3.
25

0.
55

4
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
83

3
RC

P
93

.2
3

0.
71

16
7.

44
1.

28
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

40
3

RC
P

23
.3

1
0.

55
37

.4
1

0.
88

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
13

2
RC

P
4.

78
0.

05
8.

57
0.

09
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
05

78
6

RC
P

18
.0

7
0.

11
32

.3
6

0.
2

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
09

63
2

RC
P

8.
01

0.
25

13
.7

5
0.

42
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

91
9

RC
P

17
.9

8
0.

14
32

.2
3

0.
24

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
65

5
RC

P
17

.8
6

0.
21

29
.4

3
0.

34
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

18
8

RC
P

27
.8

4
0.

23
51

.0
2

0.
43

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
48

3
RC

P
27

.0
1

0.
58

54
.0

2
1.

17
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

53
1

RC
P

13
.8

6
0.

17
22

.8
7

0.
28

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

07
01

5
RC

P
13

.1
3

0.
07

23
.5

5
0.

13
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
33

3
RC

P
28

.0
5

0.
59

49
.3

9
1.

04
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

05
24

5
CM

P
28

.1
9

0.
3

49
.6

1
0.

53
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

69
7

RC
P

28
.6

5
0.

26
50

.5
3

0.
46

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
71

2
RC

P
35

.0
9

0.
4

62
.0

5
0.

71
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

35
8

RC
P

5.
66

0.
14

10
.2

3
0.

26
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

36
6

CM
P

29
.9

1
0.

74
53

.9
7

1.
34

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

85
9

RC
P

6.
59

0.
46

11
.3

5
0.

79
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
74

6
RC

P
8

0.
58

13
.8

2
1

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
04

26
7

RC
P

4.
65

0.
21

6.
18

0.
28

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
36

14
4

RC
P

2.
41

0.
04

3.
73

0.
06

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

06
7

RC
P

9.
54

0.
63

16
.2

4
1.

08
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

36
9

RC
P

13
.0

1
0.

49
22

.4
8

0.
85

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

93
7

RC
P

13
.1

5
0.

23
22

.7
0.

4
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
90

8
HD

PE
15

.7
0.

28
27

.5
4

0.
49

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

61
2

RC
P

17
.6

8
0.

27
30

.8
6

0.
47

6
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
19

9
RC

P
11

0.
08

0.
58

21
2.

93
1.

13
6

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

11
4

RC
P

27
4.

05
1.

91
37

5.
58

2.
62

6
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
15

5
RC

P
25

4.
72

1.
53

33
7.

99
2.

03
6

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

77
RC

P
27

0.
2

0.
48

35
9.

91
0.

64
6

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

64
2

RC
P

25
5.

97
0.

37
33

6.
33

0.
49

4.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

3
RC

P
75

.2
8

0.
34

13
1.

89
0.

59
3

0
2

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

66
1

RC
P

58
.6

5
0.

34
10

0.
17

0.
58

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
25

6
CM

P
6.

14
0.

18
10

.4
6

0.
31

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

04
86

2
PV

C
6.

38
0.

13
11

.3
1

0.
23

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

48
3

RC
P

0.
63

0.
09

1.
07

0.
15

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
07

68
3

RC
P

3.
12

0.
11

5.
2

0.
18

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
77

6
CM

P
18

9.
11

0.
82

27
5.

46
1.

2
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

35
13

RC
P

3.
41

0.
05

5.
67

0.
09

4
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
35

2
RC

P
11

9.
1

0.
71

16
5.

17
0.

99
3.

5
0

2
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

05
69

2
RC

P
15

0.
22

0.
31

20
4.

88
0.

43
3.

5
0

2
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
26

1
RC

B
14

2.
84

0.
47

20
1.

6
0.

67
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
13

2
RC

P
5.

7
0.

51
9.

58
0.

86
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

84
4

RC
P

45
.2

5
0.

4
77

.6
5

0.
69

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

43
9

RC
P

0.
02

0
0.

03
0

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
04

34
2

RC
P

11
.1

9
0.

51
18

.9
4

0.
87

2.
75

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
86

5
RC

P
33

.7
9

0.
47

56
.5

4
0.

78
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

10
63

3
RC

P
0

0
0

0
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

57
5

RC
P

12
5.

48
0.

64
18

2.
86

0.
93

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

93
6

RC
P

4.
71

0.
32

7.
96

0.
54

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
06

85
1

CM
P

6.
44

0.
43

10
.7

7
0.

72
0.

67
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

32
4

AB
S

0
0

0
0

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

74
3

RC
P

14
.6

7
0.

41
25

.5
6

0.
72

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

-0
.0

13
28

RC
P

0.
16

0.
01

0.
25

0.
02



e
D'

 o
r H

'
(d

ia
m

et
er

) 
or

 (h
ei

gh
t)

B'
 (w

id
th

)
Ba

rr
el

s
Sh

ap
e

Sl
op

e 
(ft

/f
t)

M
at

er
ia

l
Q

co
n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)
Q

co
n 

vs
 Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
2

(1
0

p
y

Di
m

en
si

on
s

10
-y

ea
r

2-
ye

ar

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

46
5

HD
PE

16
.8

9
0.

34
32

.1
2

0.
65

1
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

07
24

1
HD

PE
0.

65
0.

07
1.

1
0.

11
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

05
RC

P
16

.0
3

0.
49

30
.7

2
0.

95
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

14
3

RC
P

9.
33

0.
28

15
.5

6
0.

47
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

46
8

RC
P

12
.5

8
0.

46
22

.2
2

0.
81

1
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

04
49

AB
S

0.
74

0.
1

1.
19

0.
16

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
63

2
RC

P
8.

67
0.

3
14

.4
7

0.
5

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

33
7

RC
P

2.
69

0.
44

4.
43

0.
73

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
19

23
9

HD
PE

0.
62

0.
01

0.
96

0.
02

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
35

8
RC

P
9.

35
0.

35
15

.7
1

0.
6

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

46
2

RC
P

3.
08

0.
43

5.
16

0.
72

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

99
2

RC
P

3.
01

0.
29

4.
96

0.
47

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

92
6

RC
P

3.
02

0.
21

5.
01

0.
34

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
27

RC
P

12
.0

8
0.

47
20

.8
9

0.
82

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
82

8
RC

P
9.

27
0.

21
18

.3
8

0.
42

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

36
8

RC
P

0.
31

0.
01

0.
7

0.
03

6
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
10

3
RC

P
39

.8
8

0.
29

71
.6

5
0.

53
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

92
4

RC
P

39
.3

7
0.

43
70

.5
2

0.
76

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

79
2

RC
P

0
0

0
0

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
19

5
RC

P
22

.9
8

0.
57

37
.5

2
0.

93
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
12

5
RC

P
0

0
0

0
4

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

86
7

RC
P

62
.1

9
0.

46
18

7.
67

1.
4

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
11

21
5

RC
P

0.
72

0.
01

16
.4

2
0.

12
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
88

5
RC

P
11

.0
3

0.
53

19
.3

9
0.

94
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
73

1
RC

P
11

.7
2

0.
33

24
.6

0.
7

3.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

58
1

RC
P

36
.2

6
0.

47
87

.4
2

1.
14

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

18
9

RC
P

4.
66

0.
41

8.
04

0.
7

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
52

9
RC

P
7.

54
0.

27
13

.0
3

0.
47

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

30
4

RC
P

0.
73

0.
05

1.
42

0.
09

1
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
06

1
PV

C
0.

2
0.

03
0.

45
0.

07
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
93

2
RC

P
4.

02
0.

28
6.

77
0.

46
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

94
5

RC
P

12
.1

4
0.

38
21

.0
2

0.
67

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

37
9

HD
PE

0.
9

0.
14

1.
57

0.
24

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

32
8

RC
P

13
.0

7
0.

56
22

.6
7

0.
97

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
85

RC
B

16
.9

8
0.

44
29

.8
3

0.
78

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
35

4
RC

P
15

.3
9

0.
44

27
.2

9
0.

79
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

06
3

RC
P

17
.6

3
0.

45
29

.9
4

0.
76

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

69
9

RC
P

17
.0

3
0.

32
29

.9
1

0.
56

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
08

8
RC

P
28

.0
8

0.
4

42
.3

4
0.

61
4.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
26

9
RC

P
11

3.
56

0.
51

20
6.

22
0.

93
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
44

4
RC

P
2.

05
0.

29
3.

58
0.

51
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

05
89

1
RC

P
4.

23
0.

17
7.

36
0.

29
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
15

RC
P

5.
1

0.
45

8.
72

0.
77

6
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
42

5
RC

P
15

2.
69

0.
55

26
7.

56
0.

97
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

05
13

9
RC

P
1.

51
0.

06
4.

76
0.

2
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

05
26

4
RC

P
3.

2
0.

03
8.

68
0.

09
6

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
04

15
9

RC
P

2.
14

0
16

.7
5

0.
02

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
05

90
5

CO
N

C
13

.9
9

0.
14

25
.4

0.
25

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

31
7

CO
N

C
14

.5
5

0.
63

27
.8

1
1.

2
6

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

31
6

RC
P

15
8.

45
0.

67
27

5.
5

1.
16

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
13

89
2

RC
P

8
0.

2
14

.1
7

0.
36

6
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
62

3
RC

P
15

7.
37

0.
47

27
7.

39
0.

83
4.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
69

9
RC

P
16

2.
83

0.
64

28
5.

96
1.

12
6

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

70
9

RC
B

16
2.

69
0.

46
28

6.
18

0.
8

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
06

04
8

RC
P

19
.3

1
0.

19
31

.5
5

0.
31

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

60
2

RC
P

19
.8

4
0.

38
32

.3
8

0.
62

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
81

5
RC

P
21

.0
8

0.
56

34
.3

0.
9

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

16
2

RC
P

31
.7

0.
53

52
.0

4
0.

86
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
98

4
RC

P
40

.1
5

0.
7

63
.5

8
1.

1
4

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

57
3

RC
P

45
.2

4
0.

42
77

.5
7

0.
71

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
81

4
RC

P
41

.7
5

0.
69

65
.6

9
1.

09
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

26
7

RC
P

41
.7

6
0.

35
65

.0
2

0.
54

4
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
09

RC
P

45
.5

5
0.

22
70

.0
6

0.
34

6
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
82

RC
P

15
2.

02
0.

4
26

6.
75

0.
7

6
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
64

4
RC

P
15

2.
71

0.
45

26
7.

66
0.

79
6

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

99
5

RC
P

11
8

0.
28

21
3.

08
0.

5



e
D'

 o
r H

'
(d

ia
m

et
er

) 
or

 (h
ei

gh
t)

B'
 (w

id
th

)
Ba

rr
el

s
Sh

ap
e

Sl
op

e 
(ft

/f
t)

M
at

er
ia

l
Q

co
n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)
Q

co
n 

vs
 Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
2

(1
0

p
y

Di
m

en
si

on
s

10
-y

ea
r

2-
ye

ar

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
47

4
RC

P
10

.6
8

0.
3

18
.6

4
0.

52
1

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
06

67
5

AB
S

4.
08

0.
44

7.
26

0.
79

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
74

4
HD

PE
14

.3
8

0.
48

24
.1

6
0.

81
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
80

6
HD

PE
1.

41
0.

1
2.

52
0.

18
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
48

9
HD

PE
1.

4
0.

07
2.

5
0.

13
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

70
5

HD
PE

9.
18

0.
48

15
.5

7
0.

82
1

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
17

17
HD

PE
1.

22
0.

08
2.

12
0.

14
1

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

09
5

HD
PE

6.
02

1.
17

6.
07

1.
18

1.
75

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

09
90

1
RC

P
10

.5
6

0.
21

18
.4

7
0.

37
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
30

8
RC

P
5.

75
0.

48
11

.1
3

0.
93

1
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

05
48

1
AB

S
2.

41
0.

29
4.

78
0.

57
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
36

9
RC

P
3.

22
0.

26
5.

78
0.

47
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
78

5
CM

P
3.

2
0.

42
5.

72
0.

75
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

37
3

CM
P

9.
56

0.
51

17
.2

1
0.

91
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
55

9
RC

P
2.

6
0.

15
4.

56
0.

27
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
64

8
RC

P
21

.7
5

0.
33

38
.8

0.
58

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

53
5

RC
P

21
.7

2
0.

28
38

.5
2

0.
5

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

71
4

RC
P

21
.6

4
0.

62
37

.9
9

1.
1

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

71
1

RC
P

45
.5

3
1.

32
43

.7
9

1.
27

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
08

9
RC

P
46

.5
1

0.
48

46
.4

9
0.

48
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
81

9
CM

P
1.

48
0.

29
2.

61
0.

51
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
28

7
CM

P
2.

13
0.

7
3.

78
1.

24
1

3
1

RE
CT

_C
LO

SE
D

-0
.0

04
RC

B
2.

7
0.

24
4.

51
0.

4
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
08

7
HD

PE
3.

72
0.

2
6.

14
0.

33
3.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
12

CM
P

0.
06

0
0.

09
0

3.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

94
8

RC
P

11
.4

5
0.

06
20

.4
3

0.
1

5.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

68
9

RC
P

42
.0

5
0.

15
68

.4
1

0.
25

5.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

68
9

RC
P

18
4.

26
0.

66
29

5.
24

1.
06

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

25
8

RC
P

3.
39

0.
18

6.
56

0.
35

1
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
58

1
AB

S
0.

58
0.

21
0.

86
0.

32
1

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

40
2

AB
S

3.
28

1.
45

4.
92

2.
18

1
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

04
01

5
AB

S
5.

02
0.

7
4.

75
0.

67
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
85

1
RC

P
7.

64
0.

79
9.

25
0.

95
1

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

11
HD

PE
6.

62
1.

76
6.

73
1.

79
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
41

7
RC

P
2.

35
0.

19
4.

08
0.

33
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

05
02

3
CM

P
7.

37
0.

31
8.

33
0.

35
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
48

2
RC

P
10

.2
9

0.
21

24
.2

8
0.

49
1

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

03
1

RC
P

3.
5

0.
97

4.
45

1.
23

1
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
12

8
HD

PE
4.

58
1.

21
4.

62
1.

22
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
05

86
RC

P
0.

97
0.

01
1.

61
0.

01
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

08
64

6
RC

P
15

.7
0.

51
28

.2
0.

91
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

69
2

RC
P

10
.3

1
0.

55
18

.6
9

0.
99

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
40

4
RC

P
18

.5
3

0.
44

33
.1

1
0.

79
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

48
7

RC
P

21
0.

5
37

.2
6

0.
88

1
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

07
55

1
AB

S
1.

58
0.

16
2.

82
0.

29
1.

25
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
23

81
2

CM
P

0.
48

0.
02

0.
81

0.
03

4
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
97

9
RC

P
33

.5
2

0.
17

61
.6

0.
3

4
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
98

2
RC

P
33

.6
0.

17
61

.7
1

0.
31

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

10
12

8
CO

N
C

4.
13

0.
06

6.
81

0.
09

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
69

2
RC

P
15

.2
8

0.
28

27
.5

4
0.

5
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

85
RC

P
15

.2
7

0.
25

27
.4

6
0.

45
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

05
27

9
RC

P
1.

59
0.

07
2.

84
0.

12
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
05

56
2

RC
P

17
.3

5
0.

11
31

.4
2

0.
2

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
67

3
RC

P
21

.2
8

0.
39

39
.2

1
0.

72
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

09
2

RC
P

23
.5

3
0.

2
43

.2
4

0.
37

3.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

69
6

RC
P

23
.3

6
0.

14
41

.4
5

0.
25

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

08
30

6
RC

P
28

.9
3

0.
15

52
.9

3
0.

28
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

34
2

RC
P

33
.3

0.
33

60
.3

3
0.

59
1

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
16

79
6

RC
P

0.
12

0.
01

0.
18

0.
01

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
78

7
RC

P
9.

36
0.

31
16

.4
7

0.
54

1
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

34
33

RC
P

0.
28

0.
01

0.
45

0.
02

6
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
52

9
RC

P
20

.6
4

0.
07

56
.3

6
0.

18
3.

5
0

2
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
88

8
RC

P
18

7.
16

0.
68

25
4.

56
0.

92
3.

5
0

2
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
45

1
RC

P
11

6.
96

0.
48

18
3.

26
0.

76
2.

5
0

2
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
77

1
RC

P
18

.9
4

0.
12

29
.0

7
0.

18
6

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

41
5

RC
P

10
3.

63
0.

21
20

7.
96

0.
41



e
D'

 o
r H

'
(d

ia
m

et
er

) 
or

 (h
ei

gh
t)

B'
 (w

id
th

)
Ba

rr
el

s
Sh

ap
e

Sl
op

e 
(ft

/f
t)

M
at

er
ia

l
Q

co
n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)
Q

co
n 

vs
 Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
2

(1
0

p
y

Di
m

en
si

on
s

10
-y

ea
r

2-
ye

ar

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
07

CM
P

9.
26

0.
4

16
.3

1
0.

7
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

07
89

5
RC

P
2.

54
0.

09
4.

51
0.

15
4

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

97
8

RC
P

36
.3

1
0.

18
67

.8
8

0.
34

4
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
97

8
RC

P
37

.0
9

0.
18

68
.2

9
0.

34
1

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
04

04
4

HD
PE

3.
39

0.
47

4.
41

0.
62

4
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
97

8
RC

P
40

.4
7

0.
2

76
.1

3
0.

38
4.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
94

7
RC

P
18

0.
58

0.
66

31
1.

15
1.

13
4.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
08

9
RC

P
18

0.
48

0.
63

31
1.

21
1.

09
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

84
3

RC
P

1.
18

0.
03

2.
03

0.
05

6
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
76

4
RC

P
18

5.
65

0.
5

32
5.

33
0.

88
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

04
81

3
HD

PE
6.

98
0.

3
12

.5
2

0.
54

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
39

6
HD

PE
10

.2
7

0.
38

18
.4

2
0.

69
1

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

16
6

CO
N

C
3.

27
0.

62
4.

63
0.

88
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
19

09
8

HD
PE

13
.9

1
0.

14
14

.3
4

0.
15

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

58
7

RC
P

3.
41

0.
42

7.
51

0.
93

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

67
AB

S
7.

28
0.

54
9.

86
0.

73
1

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

62
1

HD
PE

1.
27

0.
45

2.
24

0.
8

1
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
88

1
HD

PE
3.

05
0.

43
5.

44
0.

77
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
06

37
5

RC
P

44
.0

3
1.

21
44

.6
6

1.
22

1
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
75

RC
P

0.
66

0.
21

1.
18

0.
38

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
30

4
RC

P
3.

24
0.

26
5.

78
0.

46
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

07
77

7
RC

P
6.

57
0.

22
13

.0
1

0.
44

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
05

45
1

RC
P

27
.0

4
0.

28
40

.1
0.

42
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
71

4
RC

P
28

.1
9

0.
36

43
.6

1
0.

55
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
97

6
RC

P
1

0.
07

1.
93

0.
13

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
08

05
6

CO
N

C
3.

92
0.

03
12

.3
8

0.
11

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

48
6

RC
P

28
.3

6
0.

99
45

.9
9

1.
61

4
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

04
83

1
RC

P
43

.5
4

0.
14

65
.0

8
0.

21
4

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

81
8

RC
P

28
.0

8
0.

22
42

.8
9

0.
33

6.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

85
4

RC
P

37
5.

28
0.

77
61

7.
42

1.
27

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
11

69
6

RC
P

9.
02

0.
25

15
.5

7
0.

43
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
29

33
3

CM
P

0.
16

0
0.

25
0

6.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

84
9

RC
P

21
9.

74
0.

45
32

9.
47

0.
68

6.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

04
1

RC
P

15
6.

46
0.

29
25

6.
18

0.
48

6.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

56
4

RC
P

15
6.

67
0.

24
25

4.
35

0.
39

6.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

27
1

RC
P

17
0.

86
0.

63
26

5.
03

0.
97

3
9

1
RE

CT
_C

LO
SE

D
0.

03
79

5
RC

B
11

1.
94

0.
17

25
4.

14
0.

39
3

9
1

RE
CT

_C
LO

SE
D

0.
00

14
1

RC
B

80
.0

1
0.

64
15

5.
56

1.
24

6.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

71
6

RC
P

16
6.

08
0.

37
26

4.
69

0.
6

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

05
34

9
RC

P
0.

42
0.

01
0.

56
0.

01
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
16

12
9

RC
P

1.
05

0.
01

1.
6

0.
02

6.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

84
RC

P
21

9.
13

0.
25

32
9.

4
0.

37
6.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
68

7
RC

P
36

8.
14

0.
37

57
4.

87
0.

57
4.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
16

7
RC

P
10

.3
6

0.
13

38
.3

2
0.

48
4.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
20

5
RC

P
11

.5
7

0.
13

40
.2

8
0.

45
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

35
5

RC
P

7.
74

0.
19

14
.9

7
0.

38
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

3
HD

PE
4.

53
0.

18
7.

7
0.

3
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

30
4

HD
PE

4.
53

0.
18

7.
69

0.
3

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

04
50

7
HD

PE
4.

52
0.

09
7.

67
0.

16
6.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
26

5
RC

P
38

6.
15

0.
65

58
9.

57
1

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
49

6
RC

P
3.

14
0.

2
8.

7
0.

55
4

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
04

89
RC

P
9.

34
0.

03
11

.9
7

0.
04

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

03
9

RC
P

0.
56

0.
05

2.
02

0.
19

4.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

16
6

RC
P

13
.3

8
0.

17
38

.9
7

0.
49

4
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
48

2
RC

P
63

.3
5

0.
36

10
6.

49
0.

61
4

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
31

21
5

RC
P

63
.3

4
0.

08
10

6.
49

0.
13

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
40

7
HD

PE
3.

46
0.

08
5.

66
0.

14
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

05
25

7
RC

P
29

.1
1

0.
31

49
.0

3
0.

52
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
07

35
1

RC
P

32
.1

5
0.

18
47

.5
6

0.
26

5
0

2
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
17

2
RC

P
24

.0
4

0.
04

49
.9

6
0.

09
5

0
2

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

71
RC

P
19

9.
05

0.
45

35
2.

08
0.

8
5

0
2

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

88
2

RC
P

26
3.

28
0.

37
49

6.
96

0.
7

6
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
94

1
RC

P
31

0.
9

0.
76

46
2.

45
1.

13
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

05
89

6
RC

P
13

.3
5

0.
52

22
.3

8
0.

88
1

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

49
5

AB
S

0.
78

0.
18

1.
27

0.
29

6
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
87

7
RC

P
31

6.
91

0.
8

49
5.

78
1.

25



e
D'

 o
r H

'
(d

ia
m

et
er

) 
or

 (h
ei

gh
t)

B'
 (w

id
th

)
Ba

rr
el

s
Sh

ap
e

Sl
op

e 
(ft

/f
t)

M
at

er
ia

l
Q

co
n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)
Q

co
n 

vs
 Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
2

(1
0

p
y

Di
m

en
si

on
s

10
-y

ea
r

2-
ye

ar

1
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

05
96

5
AB

S
0.

93
0.

11
1.

48
0.

17
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
98

8
RC

P
5.

71
0.

14
11

.9
0.

29
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

04
84

2
CM

P
7.

52
0.

6
12

.2
5

0.
98

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
07

66
3

CM
P

21
.8

9
1.

39
22

.3
8

1.
42

3
4.

6
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

42
9

RC
P

53
.7

1.
23

60
.3

7
1.

38
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
13

3
RC

P
20

.8
5

0.
29

36
.2

6
0.

5
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
01

9
CM

P
1.

44
0.

1
2.

33
0.

16
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
18

2
RC

P
11

.9
9

0.
16

21
.9

6
0.

3
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
22

2
RC

P
15

.4
0.

25
28

.4
6

0.
47

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
76

2
RC

P
19

.5
9

0.
52

34
.6

9
0.

92
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
19

6
RC

P
1.

28
0.

02
2.

09
0.

03
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
65

7
RC

P
4.

56
0.

34
7.

89
0.

58
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

26
2

RC
P

15
.1

1
0.

59
26

.8
6

1.
06

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
08

02
5

CM
P

3.
38

0.
21

6.
24

0.
39

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
41

9
RC

P
67

.7
9

0.
65

91
.0

9
0.

88
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
05

23
8

RC
P

68
.2

0.
45

92
.8

6
0.

61
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

20
7

RC
P

12
7.

1
1.

07
18

3.
98

1.
55

1.
25

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

10
59

2
RC

P
1.

08
0.

05
0.

88
0.

04
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

03
9

CM
P

12
6.

26
0.

48
18

3.
44

0.
69

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

17
4

RC
P

59
.9

6
3.

51
78

.2
3

4.
58

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

64
6

RC
P

59
.9

5
0.

9
78

.5
7

1.
18

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
13

2
RC

P
67

.5
7

0.
57

90
.6

9
0.

77
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
04

93
7

RC
P

8.
13

0.
05

13
.4

9
0.

09
1

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
07

01
8

HD
PE

0.
96

0.
1

1.
52

0.
16

6.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

96
6

RC
P

31
7.

33
0.

62
48

6.
52

0.
94

1
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
73

2
HD

PE
0.

63
0.

09
1.

01
0.

15
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

52
7

RC
P

9.
46

0.
2

17
.8

0.
37

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
67

2
RC

P
11

2.
98

0.
34

21
6.

95
0.

64
3.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

55
13

8
RC

P
0.

79
0

1.
31

0
6

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

25
5

RC
P

10
7.

16
0.

17
20

7.
85

0.
33

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
05

59
4

RC
P

3.
9

0.
04

6.
48

0.
07

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

07
20

1
HD

PE
3.

65
0.

06
6.

06
0.

1
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
68

5
RC

P
6.

78
0.

2
14

.8
9

0.
44

2.
75

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
43

2
CM

P
15

.2
7

0.
34

29
.4

4
0.

66
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

04
09

3
RC

P
10

.2
7

0.
48

22
.8

1
1.

07
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

16
42

8
CM

P
3.

43
0.

15
6.

14
0.

27
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

30
6

RC
P

79
.7

8
0.

55
17

4.
84

1.
21

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
05

42
6

RC
P

6.
09

0.
25

10
.2

5
0.

42
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

05
76

2
CM

P
2.

8
0.

2
4.

45
0.

33
1

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
06

73
CO

N
C

0.
7

0.
11

1.
2

0.
19

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

39
4

CO
N

C
10

.2
8

0.
14

23
.2

8
0.

31
4

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
03

62
1

RC
P

11
9.

53
0.

44
16

5.
45

0.
61

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

06
13

9
RC

P
9.

23
0.

16
18

.7
3

0.
33

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

10
68

RC
P

0.
17

0
0.

27
0

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
23

5
CO

N
C

8.
96

0.
12

14
.7

7
0.

2
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

04
99

8
RC

P
0.

24
0.

01
0.

43
0.

02
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
20

00
8

RC
P

2.
67

0.
01

4.
42

0.
01

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
07

00
2

CO
N

C
23

.1
2

0.
21

31
.2

1
0.

29
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

04
49

2
CO

N
C

21
.6

5
0.

25
28

.7
3

0.
33

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

86
4

RC
P

16
.3

8
0.

24
29

.2
9

0.
42

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

46
9

HD
PE

4.
01

0.
32

6.
87

0.
54

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

42
6

RC
P

24
.5

3
0.

38
41

.2
1

0.
65

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
10

62
3

RC
P

4.
3

0.
13

7.
73

0.
23

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
04

23
3

RC
P

24
.2

8
0.

29
40

.6
4

0.
48

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
08

84
1

RC
P

8.
48

0.
27

14
.9

9
0.

48
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

08
94

9
RC

P
11

.0
1

0.
35

19
.5

6
0.

62
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

07
28

7
RC

P
7.

19
0.

25
12

.7
7

0.
45

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

01
11

8
RC

P
24

.0
9

0.
34

40
.9

1
0.

58
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
00

61
6

RC
P

23
.5

0.
45

40
.2

1
0.

77
3

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

38
7

RC
P

31
.0

4
0.

4
44

.0
5

0.
56

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

68
2

RC
P

19
.1

8
0.

36
33

.8
1

0.
64

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
10

76
1

RC
P

19
.0

2
0.

55
33

.6
6

0.
98

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
01

31
7

RC
P

4.
47

0.
37

7.
35

0.
61

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
07

20
4

RC
P

16
.0

4
0.

15
26

.7
8

0.
24

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
04

63
4

CM
P

2.
46

0.
2

4.
39

0.
36

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

03
61

1
RC

P
42

.1
3

0.
33

71
.8

6
0.

57



e
D'

 o
r H

'
(d

ia
m

et
er

) 
or

 (h
ei

gh
t)

B'
 (w

id
th

)
Ba

rr
el

s
Sh

ap
e

Sl
op

e 
(ft

/f
t)

M
at

er
ia

l
Q

co
n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)
Q

co
n 

vs
 Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
2

(1
0

p
y

Di
m

en
si

on
s

10
-y

ea
r

2-
ye

ar

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

33
92

2
CM

P
19

.2
7

0.
09

33
.5

2
0.

16
4

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

45
6

RC
P

78
.0

7
0.

35
13

1.
69

0.
59

3
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

04
72

7
RC

P
44

.0
3

0.
3

84
.9

8
0.

59
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

10
36

7
RC

P
5.

26
0.

16
8.

96
0.

26
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

07
68

4
RC

P
6.

52
0.

22
11

.2
7

0.
39

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

63
7

RC
P

6.
77

0.
4

11
.6

7
0.

68
2

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
02

89
9

RC
P

3.
5

0.
09

5.
69

0.
15

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

00
55

8
RC

P
7.

04
0.

42
12

.1
3

0.
72

2
0

1
CI

RC
UL

AR
0.

02
13

7
RC

P
7.

53
0.

23
12

.1
0.

37
1

0
1

CI
RC

UL
AR

0.
05

59
1

AC
3.

7
0.

44
6.

79
0.

81



m
e

D'
 o

r H
'

(d
ia

m
et

er
) 

or
 (h

ei
gh

t)
B'

 (w
id

th
)

Ba
rr

el
s

Sh
ap

e
Sl

op
e 

(ft
/f

t)
M

at
er

ia
l

Q
co

n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)

Q
co

n 
vs

 
Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
(1

0

1
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

51
50

3
CM

P
0

0
0

0
1

30
20

1
RE

CT
_O

PE
N

0.
00

66
2

 
0

0
0

0
68

5
16

1
RE

CT
_C

LO
SE

D
0.

00
15

5
RC

B
61

7.
05

1.
12

92
3.

17
1.

67
69

5
16

1
RE

CT
_C

LO
SE

D
0.

01
04

 
62

3.
55

0.
44

84
4.

35
0.

59
18

7
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

13
43

5
RC

P
8.

05
0.

1
47

.3
8

0.
57

5.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
42

7
RC

P
14

4.
83

0.
36

23
2.

19
0.

58
0

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

09
33

3
Ea

rt
he

n
4.

81
0

8.
3

0
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
12

1
RC

P
0

0
0

0
1

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

27
74

6
 

1.
78

0.
02

54
.9

3
0.

53
3

8
1

RE
CT

_O
PE

N
0.

28
10

7
 

6.
94

0.
02

11
.8

7
0.

03
3.

5
0

3
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

78
5

 
28

9.
03

0.
49

40
8.

32
0.

7
30

30
1

RE
CT

_O
PE

N
0.

00
48

4
 

0
0

0
0

4
8

1
RE

CT
_C

LO
SE

D
0.

01
60

1
RC

B
29

5.
61

0.
53

40
8

0.
73

4
8

1
RE

CT
_C

LO
SE

D
0.

05
06

6
RC

B
29

6.
94

0.
3

40
8.

32
0.

41
30

30
1

RE
CT

_O
PE

N
0.

31
31

 
43

.0
9

0
54

.1
0

30
30

1
RE

CT
_O

PE
N

0.
76

12
2

 
2.

01
0

3.
34

0
30

30
1

RE
CT

_O
PE

N
0.

01
62

7
 

26
0.

03
0.

01
34

9.
84

0.
01

30
30

1
RE

CT
_O

PE
N

0.
01

04
 

0
0

0
0

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
57

1
RC

P
1.

48
0.

11
2.

8
0.

21
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

23
11

RC
P

5.
2

0.
02

8.
27

0.
03

2
20

1
TR

AP
EZ

O
ID

AL
0.

01
24

4
 

25
.0

2
0.

13
41

.0
6

0.
21

3.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
39

9
RC

P
9.

17
0.

06
16

.1
7

0.
1

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

68
1

RC
B

11
7.

73
0.

55
20

5.
8

0.
96

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

73
CM

P
14

.8
6

0.
4

27
.1

6
0.

73
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
71

RC
P

14
.6

3
0.

39
25

.9
9

0.
7

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

83
2

RC
P

45
.2

4
0.

35
77

.5
1

0.
59

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
91

8
RC

P
9.

73
0.

31
18

.7
5

0.
6

1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
10

36
6

O
th

er
0.

01
0

0.
01

0
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

10
30

4
O

th
er

5.
01

0.
34

7.
89

0.
53

1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
68

01
O

th
er

2.
81

0.
07

4.
46

0.
12

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
07

77
7

CM
P

8.
24

0.
24

14
.5

6
0.

43
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
25

6
Co

nc
re

te
0.

71
0.

02
1.

26
0.

03
1

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

01
68

5
O

th
er

0.
69

0.
03

1.
23

0.
05

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

07
2

Co
nc

re
te

11
.3

4
0.

16
19

.9
5

0.
29

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

59
7

Co
nc

re
te

15
.4

3
0.

3
26

.8
6

0.
52

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
13

00
8

O
th

er
15

.7
9

0.
22

27
.8

2
0.

39
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
09

O
th

er
15

.6
2

0.
66

26
.7

1.
13

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

91
2

Co
nc

re
te

0.
59

0.
02

1.
47

0.
05

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
03

54
3

O
th

er
0.

59
0.

02
1.

21
0.

03
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
31

4
CM

P
2.

51
0.

37
3.

92
0.

57
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
29

7
CO

N
C

0
0

0
0

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

45
3

CO
N

C
0

0
0

0
3.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

44
2

RC
P

12
.7

8
0.

08
22

.1
7

0.
14

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

10
7

CO
N

C
7.

28
0.

31
12

.5
8

0.
53

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

68
2

CO
N

C
2.

66
0.

14
4.

4
0.

24
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
68

4
CO

N
C

2.
95

0.
16

4.
82

0.
26

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

87
1

CO
N

C
2.

58
0.

12
4.

28
0.

2
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
68

2
CO

N
C

5.
47

0.
29

8.
96

0.
48

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

28
1

CO
N

C
7.

69
0.

3
13

.2
0.

52
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
78

8
CO

N
C

0.
93

0.
29

1.
47

0.
46

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
68

3
CO

N
C

14
.1

9
0.

42
23

.9
3

0.
71

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
32

2
CO

N
C

1.
09

0.
04

1.
69

0.
06

2.
5

0
3

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
99

4
RC

P
45

.2
3

0.
26

77
.4

1
0.

45
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

64
8

CO
N

C
1.

61
0.

19
2.

59
0.

31
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

75
9

CO
N

C
18

.7
1

0.
52

30
.4

0.
85

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
07

64
3

CO
N

C
1.

72
0.

03
2.

68
0.

04
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
61

9
CO

N
C

1.
21

0.
07

1.
87

0.
1

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
09

98
2

CO
N

C
28

.8
3

0.
4

50
.5

9
0.

71
3.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

56
5

CO
N

C
22

.1
5

0.
29

34
.2

7
0.

45
3.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

68
3

CO
N

C
47

.6
6

0.
57

73
.4

0.
88

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
07

78
CO

N
C

13
.0

8
0.

21
25

.1
5

0.
4

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
32

88
CO

N
C

13
.1

0.
1

25
.5

5
0.

2
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0

03
63

8
CO

N
C

13
1

0
3

25
56

0
59

Di
m

en
si

on
s

2-
ye

ar
10

-y
ea

r



m
e

D'
 o

r H
'

(d
ia

m
et

er
) 

or
 (h

ei
gh

t)
B'

 (w
id

th
)

Ba
rr

el
s

Sh
ap

e
Sl

op
e 

(ft
/f

t)
M

at
er

ia
l

Q
co

n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)

Q
co

n 
vs

 
Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
(1

0

Di
m

en
si

on
s

2 -
ye

ar
10

-y
ea

r

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
68

8
CO

N
C

36
.1

2
0.

46
71

.6
1

0.
91

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

49
84

8
CO

N
C

0
0

0
0

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
16

02
RC

P
12

.5
1

0.
14

21
.8

6
0.

24
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

11
35

8
RC

P
13

.6
0.

18
23

.9
6

0.
31

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

26
RC

P
52

.5
1

0.
33

92
.9

1
0.

58
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
21

5
RC

P
54

.0
6

0.
45

94
.7

7
0.

79
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

23
77

3
CO

N
C

1.
63

0.
01

2.
79

0.
03

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
26

30
7

CO
N

C
0.

91
0.

01
1.

52
0.

01
0

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

49
54

1
O

th
er

0
0

0
0

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
28

41
6

CO
N

C
1.

07
0.

01
1.

83
0.

02
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

91
5

RC
P

1.
31

0.
09

2.
33

0.
16

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
17

5
RC

P
2.

56
0.

09
4.

48
0.

15
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
09

97
RC

P
2.

55
0.

08
4.

46
0.

13
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

03
9

RC
P

2.
51

0.
14

4.
4

0.
24

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
04

7
RC

P
3.

21
0.

3
5.

53
0.

51
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

18
5

RC
P

3.
46

0.
3

5.
91

0.
52

2.
75

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
73

7
RC

P
20

.5
9

0.
24

34
.0

4
0.

39
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

15
9

RC
P

6.
4

0.
41

11
.0

1
0.

71
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
12

25
4

RC
P

1.
26

0.
03

2.
11

0.
06

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
45

9
RC

P
5.

43
0.

76
8.

78
1.

23
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

92
8

RC
P

12
.7

9
0.

5
20

.7
4

0.
81

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
86

2
RC

P
11

.8
8

1.
22

15
.2

4
1.

56
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

04
5

RC
P

12
.9

2
0.

86
15

.9
9

1.
06

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
99

RC
P

12
.9

3
0.

87
14

.8
6

1
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

85
2

RC
P

0.
55

0.
06

3.
5

0.
36

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
71

3
RC

P
1.

12
0.

04
2.

99
0.

1
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

59
9

RC
P

2.
3

0.
17

4.
16

0.
31

3.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
10

5
RC

P
11

2.
84

0.
77

15
7.

28
1.

08
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

14
8

RC
P

4.
64

0.
41

9.
08

0.
81

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
91

9
RC

P
18

.4
0.

59
22

.3
1

0.
71

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
80

6
RC

P
20

.0
9

1.
14

25
.4

2
1.

44
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

28
99

5
RC

P
20

.9
9

0.
17

27
.0

7
0.

22
1

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

14
71

8
Co

nc
re

te
1.

65
0.

03
2.

26
0.

04
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

49
CO

N
C

23
.9

4
0.

37
35

.0
2

0.
54

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
37

4
CO

N
C

1.
61

0.
25

2.
69

0.
42

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

25
10

1
CO

N
C

1.
93

0.
04

3.
15

0.
06

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
07

58
5

CO
N

C
12

.7
9

0.
21

25
.0

3
0.

4
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
RC

P
1.

94
0.

09
3.

25
0.

14
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
91

3
RC

P
4.

1
0.

19
6.

62
0.

31
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
00

3
RC

P
2.

26
0.

04
3.

56
0.

06
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
72

2
RC

P
2.

27
0.

04
3.

57
0.

06
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

50
68

2
RC

P
0.

27
0

0.
42

0
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
72

2
RC

P
2.

02
0.

03
3.

18
0.

05
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
72

2
RC

P
0.

78
0.

01
1.

22
0.

02
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
27

1
RC

P
0.

53
0.

01
0.

85
0.

02
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
80

5
RC

P
0.

69
0.

01
1.

1
0.

02
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
89

5
RC

P
4.

9
0.

05
8.

36
0.

09
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
26

CO
N

C
63

.8
3

0.
4

86
.9

4
0.

54
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
67

3
CO

N
C

0.
26

0
0.

41
0.

01
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
63

CO
N

C
2.

73
0.

15
4.

44
0.

25
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
81

3
CO

N
C

0.
32

0.
02

0.
5

0.
02

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
28

11
8

CO
N

C
0.

31
0

0.
5

0
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
76

CO
N

C
1.

77
0.

09
2.

87
0.

15
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
13

5
CO

N
C

2.
04

0.
05

3.
29

0.
08

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

03
CO

N
C

2.
6

0.
07

4.
19

0.
11

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

76
4

CO
N

C
2.

19
0.

11
3.

59
0.

18
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
54

7
CO

N
C

6.
39

0.
38

10
.5

4
0.

63
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
88

5
CO

N
C

6.
35

0.
13

10
.4

7
0.

21
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
55

RC
P

1.
12

0.
04

1.
87

0.
07

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

90
4

CO
N

C
48

0.
14

85
.8

2
0.

25
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

34
51

1
CO

N
C

10
.5

3
0.

08
17

.5
6

0.
13

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

92
2

CO
N

C
9.

97
0.

46
16

.6
4

0.
77

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0
00

57
4

CO
N

C
8

3
0

48
14

05
0

82



m
e

D'
 o

r H
'

(d
ia

m
et

er
) 

or
 (h

ei
gh

t)
B'

 (w
id

th
)

Ba
rr

el
s

Sh
ap

e
Sl

op
e 

(ft
/f

t)
M

at
er

ia
l

Q
co

n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)

Q
co

n 
vs

 
Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
(1

0

Di
m

en
si

on
s

2 -
ye

ar
10

-y
ea

r

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

59
6

RC
P

12
0.

63
1.

09
16

2.
1

1.
46

0
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
26

59
4

O
th

er
0.

04
0

0.
06

0
1

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

17
65

4
O

th
er

0.
1

0
0.

19
0

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
03

16
7

O
th

er
1.

05
0.

04
1.

67
0.

06
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
88

4
CO

N
C

0.
4

0.
01

0.
63

0.
02

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

43
9

CO
N

C
1.

49
0.

04
2.

36
0.

06
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
15

5
CO

N
C

1.
97

0.
08

3.
12

0.
13

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

64
6

CO
N

C
0.

28
0.

02
0.

43
0.

02
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
24

1
CO

N
C

43
.0

9
0.

13
54

.1
0.

16
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
71

3
CO

N
C

1.
39

0.
02

2.
25

0.
04

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

01
6

CO
N

C
43

.1
1

0.
15

54
.1

0.
19

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
27

74
1

CO
N

C
41

.8
8

0.
35

52
.1

4
0.

44
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

07
91

1
CO

N
C

1.
14

0.
02

1.
75

0.
03

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

97
2

CO
N

C
40

.1
1

1.
03

49
.6

8
1.

27
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

15
39

3
CO

N
C

0.
48

0.
01

0.
75

0.
01

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
08

63
3

CO
N

C
0.

48
0.

01
0.

74
0.

01
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
97

3
CO

N
C

40
.1

5
1.

03
49

.6
8

1.
27

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

29
5

CO
N

C
0.

32
0.

01
3.

72
0.

14
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

15
41

3
CO

N
C

3.
41

0.
04

5.
79

0.
07

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

21
9

CO
N

C
3.

42
0.

08
5.

79
0.

14
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
97

3
CO

N
C

36
.1

9
0.

93
45

.4
7

1.
17

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

97
2

CO
N

C
3.

7
0.

09
6.

51
0.

17
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

5
CO

N
C

30
.7

7
0.

35
50

.4
8

0.
58

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
85

9
CO

N
C

1.
66

0.
02

2.
8

0.
03

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

55
4

CO
N

C
3.

91
0.

23
7.

66
0.

45
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
35

5
CO

N
C

3.
9

0.
29

7.
65

0.
57

1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

27
2

CO
N

C
4.

03
2.

17
6.

57
3.

53
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
84

5
HD

PE
1.

34
0.

22
2.

3
0.

38
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
11

7
CO

N
C

4.
31

0.
56

6.
73

0.
87

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

11
7

CO
N

C
4.

56
0.

59
6.

87
0.

89
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
33

CO
N

C
9.

28
0.

22
15

.6
7

0.
38

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

11
7

CO
N

C
12

.7
7

1.
65

15
.0

7
1.

94
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

11
7

CO
N

C
21

.4
3

1.
53

31
.3

3
2.

23
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
22

56
2

CO
N

C
8.

79
0.

05
15

.6
5

0.
08

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
51

4
CO

N
C

6
0.

2
10

.6
8

0.
36

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
11

8
CO

N
C

22
.3

3
1.

59
33

.1
2.

35
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

11
8

CO
N

C
22

.4
8

1.
6

33
.3

9
2.

37
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

11
7

CO
N

C
23

.3
7

1.
67

32
.7

7
2.

33
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

12
8

RC
P

4.
5

0.
24

7.
4

0.
4

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
11

8
CO

N
C

27
.3

1
1.

94
37

.2
2

2.
65

4.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
11

8
CO

N
C

15
5.

04
2.

3
22

6.
08

3.
35

4.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
11

7
CO

N
C

17
8.

42
2.

65
24

3.
4

3.
62

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

14
5

CO
N

C
0.

56
0.

02
0.

91
0.

04
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
32

5
CO

N
C

0.
66

0.
03

1.
08

0.
04

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
16

19
8

CO
N

C
0.

81
0.

01
1.

31
0.

01
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
43

CO
N

C
0.

48
0.

02
0.

77
0.

03
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
60

4
CO

N
C

0.
52

0.
03

0.
84

0.
05

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

27
24

6
RC

P
0.

05
0

0.
1

0
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
08

13
7

RC
P

2.
48

0.
02

4.
64

0.
04

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

14
97

4
CO

N
C

16
.7

4
0.

11
30

.4
3

0.
19

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

77
RC

P
13

.5
2

0.
45

23
.6

7
0.

79
0

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

11
93

7
Co

nc
re

te
3.

18
0

5.
22

0
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
07

5
CO

N
C

0
0

0
0

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

31
5

RC
P

11
.0

1
0.

23
19

.4
1

0.
41

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
11

21
5

RC
P

19
.4

8
0.

26
34

.8
2

0.
46

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

90
2

RC
P

10
3.

69
0.

26
20

3.
71

0.
51

0.
5

6
1

TR
IA

N
GU

LA
R

0.
00

68
9

CO
N

C
0.

29
0.

05
0.

72
0.

13
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
00

9
RC

P
60

.4
6

0.
42

10
1.

98
0.

71
1

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

07
51

6
Co

nc
re

te
0.

5
0.

02
0.

62
0.

02
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
52

8
RC

P
12

.9
4

0.
46

22
.7

2
0.

81
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

36
58

9
RC

P
12

.9
5

0.
09

22
.7

4
0.

17
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

31
95

7
RC

P
12

.9
5

0.
1

22
.7

3
0.

18
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0

00
61

6
RC

P
12

91
0

25
22

68
0

43



m
e

D'
 o

r H
'

(d
ia

m
et

er
) 

or
 (h

ei
gh

t)
B'

 (w
id

th
)

Ba
rr

el
s

Sh
ap

e
Sl

op
e 

(ft
/f

t)
M

at
er

ia
l

Q
co

n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)

Q
co

n 
vs

 
Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
(1

0

Di
m

en
si

on
s

2 -
ye

ar
10

-y
ea

r

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

03
5

CO
N

C
24

.7
4

0.
36

41
.7

5
0.

62
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
26

3
RC

P
50

.6
5

0.
42

85
.4

7
0.

71
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
14

14
7

RC
P

50
.7

0.
33

85
.5

0.
55

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
49

6
RC

P
48

.3
0.

56
81

.5
4

0.
94

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
10

7
RC

P
0.

62
0.

02
0.

98
0.

04
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

66
5

RC
P

3.
35

0.
2

5.
76

0.
34

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

69
3

RC
P

1.
58

0.
08

2.
66

0.
14

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
94

4
RC

P
9.

81
0.

96
17

.6
4

1.
73

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
3

RC
P

2.
21

0.
12

3.
9

0.
2

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
28

4
RC

P
3.

1
0.

14
5.

45
0.

25
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
06

50
9

RC
P

9.
82

0.
37

17
.6

5
0.

66
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
07

56
RC

P
0.

62
0.

02
0.

98
0.

03
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

10
9

RC
P

0.
75

0.
07

1.
22

0.
11

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
74

4
RC

P
5.

06
0.

36
8.

73
0.

63
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

43
RC

P
4.

91
0.

2
8.

85
0.

36
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

52
1

RC
P

1.
63

0.
07

2.
6

0.
11

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

53
3

RC
P

24
.6

3
0.

46
42

.0
6

0.
79

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
16

4
RC

P
2.

23
0.

12
3.

92
0.

21
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

07
42

8
RC

P
9.

69
0.

16
16

.3
6

0.
27

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
29

1
RC

P
46

.6
0.

63
78

.7
6

1.
06

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
93

4
RC

P
1.

37
0.

05
2.

19
0.

08
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
16

10
9

RC
P

1.
4

0.
03

2.
38

0.
06

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
18

1
RC

P
9.

1
0.

3
15

.8
5

0.
53

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

34
97

4
RC

P
12

.2
9

0.
2

21
.7

6
0.

35
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

65
9

RC
P

3.
1

0.
12

5.
45

0.
22

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
59

1
RC

P
2.

24
0.

07
3.

93
0.

13
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

07
5

RC
P

2.
21

0.
12

3.
9

0.
21

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
50

1
RC

P
37

.0
3

0.
74

63
.1

5
1.

26
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

16
3

RC
P

37
.5

8
0.

62
63

.8
9

1.
06

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
69

RC
P

4.
98

0.
16

8.
82

0.
28

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
91

3
RC

P
4.

93
0.

34
8.

82
0.

61
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

49
RC

P
2.

75
0.

37
4.

94
0.

67
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
39

7
RC

P
12

.9
8

0.
27

22
.1

0.
47

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

07
37

6
RC

P
4.

18
0.

15
7.

14
0.

25
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

31
5

RC
P

2.
22

0.
14

3.
91

0.
24

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
34

8
RC

P
2.

21
0.

11
3.

9
0.

2
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
19

6
RC

P
24

.6
3

0.
48

41
.8

3
0.

81
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
64

2
RC

P
11

.4
5

0.
21

19
.5

9
0.

36
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
47

78
7

RC
P

1.
18

0.
02

1.
88

0.
03

0
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
06

20
2

Ea
rt

he
n

23
.1

2
0

30
.1

7
0

0
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
02

07
5

Ea
rt

he
n

25
.7

5
0

36
.7

9
0

0
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
01

68
9

Ea
rt

he
n

24
.2

8
0

31
.4

7
0

0
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
15

14
5

Ea
rt

he
n

0.
27

0
0.

43
0

0
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
17

54
2

Ea
rt

he
n

4.
25

0
7.

89
0

0
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
28

53
7

Ea
rt

he
n

3.
39

0
6.

3
0

0
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
17

84
5

Ea
rt

he
n

20
.2

1
0

22
0

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
12

7
RC

P
1.

28
0.

02
2.

04
0.

03
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

46
3

RC
P

25
.7

6
0.

4
34

.0
8

0.
53

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
98

9
RC

P
25

.7
9

0.
63

34
.1

2
0.

84
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

49
1

RC
P

25
.6

6
0.

33
33

.9
5

0.
44

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
89

4
RC

P
1.

97
0.

14
3.

55
0.

25
1.

5
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
03

06
2

Co
nc

re
te

0
0

0
0

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
96

9
RC

P
2.

42
0.

16
4.

26
0.

29
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
24

24
2

RC
P

4.
25

0.
08

7.
89

0.
15

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
70

4
RC

P
4.

07
0.

24
7.

61
0.

44
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

39
RC

P
0.

78
0.

04
1.

21
0.

06
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
15

23
8

RC
P

3.
4

0.
08

6.
32

0.
15

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
44

1
RC

P
0.

6
0.

05
0.

92
0.

07
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

15
3

RC
P

19
.3

3
1.

71
19

.7
7

1.
75

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
28

7
RC

P
0.

3
0.

01
0.

47
0.

02
1.

5
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
01

31
6

Co
nc

re
te

0.
57

0.
03

0.
89

0.
04

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
15

6
RC

P
19

.7
1.

28
20

.0
2

1.
3

1
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0

00
48

5
RC

P
2

39
0

33
4

22
0

58



m
e

D'
 o

r H
'

(d
ia

m
et

er
) 

or
 (h

ei
gh

t)
B'

 (w
id

th
)

Ba
rr

el
s

Sh
ap

e
Sl

op
e 

(ft
/f

t)
M

at
er

ia
l

Q
co

n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)

Q
co

n 
vs

 
Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
(1

0

Di
m

en
si

on
s

2 -
ye

ar
10

-y
ea

r

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
68

9
RC

P
20

.2
1

1.
48

22
1.

61
1.

5
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
01

84
1

Co
nc

re
te

1.
06

0.
04

2.
16

0.
09

2
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

-0
.1

72
56

Ea
rt

he
n

0
0

0
0

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
45

RC
P

15
.2

5
1.

21
16

.9
9

1.
34

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

79
2

RC
P

1.
3

0.
06

2.
65

0.
13

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
82

5
RC

P
7.

66
0.

8
11

.5
1

1.
21

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
85

RC
P

10
.0

5
1.

04
11

.2
9

1.
17

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
3

RC
P

2.
6

0.
16

5.
65

0.
35

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
88

9
RC

P
4.

36
0.

44
9.

3
0.

94
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

45
9

RC
P

4.
78

0.
22

8.
19

0.
37

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
21

RC
P

1.
73

0.
09

2.
98

0.
16

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
20

2
RC

P
1.

1
0.

06
1.

89
0.

1
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

97
4

RC
P

2.
8

0.
15

4.
81

0.
27

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

13
96

5
RC

P
0.

53
0.

01
1.

99
0.

05
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

33
8

RC
P

0.
62

0.
04

1.
09

0.
07

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
49

5
RC

P
2.

84
0.

11
4.

54
0.

17
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
11

49
2

RC
P

0.
7

0.
02

1.
51

0.
04

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
55

8
RC

P
21

.0
9

0.
85

24
.4

1
0.

99
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

61
7

RC
P

3.
29

0.
16

6.
34

0.
32

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

78
8

RC
P

18
0.

98
0.

48
31

2.
42

0.
83

1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
12

58
6

RC
P

0.
64

0.
05

1.
06

0.
08

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
28

9
RC

P
13

.0
2

1.
09

14
.9

2
1.

25
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

16
6

RC
P

11
.8

5
1.

04
13

.9
1

1.
23

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
83

2
RC

P
1.

11
0.

05
2.

16
0.

09
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

70
9

RC
P

3.
29

0.
19

6.
1

0.
35

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
05

1
RC

P
4.

39
0.

15
7.

99
0.

27
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
22

80
3

RC
P

0.
56

0.
01

0.
95

0.
02

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
92

3
RC

P
9.

24
0.

92
11

.7
1

1.
16

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

12
85

7
RC

P
0.

99
0.

03
1.

83
0.

05
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
07

57
2

RC
P

0.
99

0.
03

1.
81

0.
06

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

15
91

1
RC

P
1.

37
0.

03
2.

27
0.

05
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
11

24
2

CO
N

C
3.

79
0.

03
9.

88
0.

07
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

22
RC

P
12

.4
1

1.
07

14
.3

1
1.

23
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
16

69
3

RC
P

4.
86

0.
11

8
0.

19
1.

5
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
02

93
6

Co
nc

re
te

0
0

0
0

1.
5

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

02
81

7
Co

nc
re

te
0

0
0

0
1.

5
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
01

18
9

Co
nc

re
te

0
0

0
0

1.
5

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

04
38

4
Co

nc
re

te
0

0
0

0
1.

5
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
02

52
9

Co
nc

re
te

0
0

0
0

1.
5

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

03
36

1
Co

nc
re

te
0

0
0

0
1.

5
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
02

58
7

Co
nc

re
te

0
0

0
0

1.
5

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

02
73

9
Co

nc
re

te
0

0
0

0
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
08

72
CO

N
C

6.
84

0.
06

13
.1

6
0.

11
1.

5
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
31

86
6

Co
nc

re
te

0
0

0
0

1.
5

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

09
84

5
Co

nc
re

te
0.

57
0.

01
0.

89
0.

02
1.

5
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
10

00
3

Co
nc

re
te

1.
05

0.
02

2.
15

0.
04

1.
5

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

01
02

4
Co

nc
re

te
1.

05
0.

06
2.

15
0.

12
1.

5
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
00

90
8

Co
nc

re
te

0.
05

0
0.

08
0

1.
5

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

11
33

4
Co

nc
re

te
0.

05
0

0.
08

0
2.

5
5

1
TR

IA
N

GU
LA

R
0.

25
46

1
Co

nc
re

te
20

.2
1

0.
09

22
0.

1
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
37

84
5

RC
P

0
0

0
0

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

16
51

5
RC

P
25

.6
1

0.
15

33
.8

8
0.

2
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
50

05
6

RC
P

0.
16

0
0.

24
0

2.
75

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
56

3
RC

P
23

.1
2

0.
19

30
.1

7
0.

24
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

09
18

3
RC

P
0.

8
0.

01
2.

29
0.

03
0

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

07
95

6
Ea

rt
he

n
1.

32
0

4.
03

0
0

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

16
62

9
Ea

rt
he

n
2.

01
0

6.
18

0
0

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

15
21

6
Ea

rt
he

n
2.

81
0

9.
67

0
0.

75
3.

5
1

TR
IA

N
GU

LA
R

0.
04

74
2

Co
nc

re
te

0
0

0
0

0.
75

3.
5

1
TR

IA
N

GU
LA

R
0.

03
47

5
Co

nc
re

te
0

0
0

0
0.

75
3.

5
1

TR
IA

N
GU

LA
R

0.
02

01
1

Co
nc

re
te

0
0

0
0

0.
75

3.
5

1
TR

IA
N

GU
LA

R
0.

04
44

3
Co

nc
re

te
0

0
0

0
0

75
3

5
1

TR
IA

N
GU

LA
R

0
02

70
2

C
t

0
0

0
0



m
e

D'
 o

r H
'

(d
ia

m
et

er
) 

or
 (h

ei
gh

t)
B'

 (w
id

th
)

Ba
rr

el
s

Sh
ap

e
Sl

op
e 

(ft
/f

t)
M

at
er

ia
l

Q
co

n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)

Q
co

n 
vs

 
Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
(1

0

Di
m

en
si

on
s

2 -
ye

ar
10

-y
ea

r

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
30

28
5

CM
P

1.
36

0.
02

4.
44

0.
07

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
19

29
8

CM
P

0.
7

0.
01

2.
37

0.
04

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
36

98
5

CM
P

1.
96

0.
03

6.
04

0.
08

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
19

88
1

CM
P

0.
19

0
0.

63
0.

01
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

26
79

6
CM

P
0.

65
0.

01
2.

11
0.

03
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

35
95

3
CM

P
2.

8
0.

04
9.

61
0.

13
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

30
97

8
CM

P
1.

13
0.

02
3.

46
0.

05
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
41

4
RC

P
18

4.
62

0.
68

33
9.

04
1.

24
0.

75
3.

5
1

TR
IA

N
GU

LA
R

0.
01

46
7

Co
nc

re
te

0.
15

0.
03

0.
67

0.
11

0.
75

3.
5

1
TR

IA
N

GU
LA

R
0.

03
24

2
Co

nc
re

te
0.

57
0.

06
2.

4
0.

26
0.

75
3.

5
1

TR
IA

N
GU

LA
R

0.
02

97
8

Co
nc

re
te

0
0

0
0

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
29

98
6

CM
P

1.
51

0.
02

5.
21

0.
08

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

61
2

RC
P

33
.7

8
0.

79
61

.4
5

1.
43

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

81
4

RC
P

22
.1

8
0.

58
39

.8
1.

05
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
64

2
RC

P
32

.6
7

0.
89

59
.3

2
1.

61
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

98
4

RC
P

3.
47

0.
33

6.
21

0.
6

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
38

8
RC

P
4.

63
0.

21
8.

21
0.

37
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
59

RC
P

10
3.

3
0.

32
20

1.
71

0.
62

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

86
2

RC
P

7.
6

0.
2

13
.6

1
0.

36
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
46

6
RC

P
39

.1
5

0.
4

70
.8

9
0.

72
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

79
2

RC
P

0
0

0
0

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
61

3
RC

P
3.

07
0.

18
5.

38
0.

32
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

23
97

5
CO

N
C

21
.4

0.
19

37
.0

8
0.

33
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
05

8
CO

N
C

3.
84

0.
16

6.
61

0.
28

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
73

9
CO

N
C

25
.3

4
0.

47
43

.8
3

0.
81

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
15

62
4

CO
N

C
8.

83
0.

1
15

.1
4

0.
17

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

84
CO

N
C

1.
24

0.
03

2.
15

0.
06

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
09

16
9

RC
P

8.
94

0.
13

15
.3

2
0.

22
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
80

2
RC

P
1.

67
0.

06
2.

89
0.

1
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

05
2

RC
P

35
.4

1
0.

49
61

.2
0.

85
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
25

3
RC

P
38

.7
5

0.
54

67
.1

3
0.

93
0

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

03
94

Ea
rt

he
n

10
0

15
.4

7
0

0
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
01

04
4

Ea
rt

he
n

17
.1

5
0

23
.1

2
0

0
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
04

28
5

Ea
rt

he
n

3.
34

0
5.

7
0

0
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
06

10
7

Ea
rt

he
n

2.
68

0
4.

87
0

0
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
05

72
9

Ea
rt

he
n

1.
19

0
1.

96
0

0
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
09

77
Ea

rt
he

n
4.

01
0

6.
46

0
0

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

00
10

7
Ea

rt
he

n
6.

1
0.

01
21

.2
0.

03
0

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

13
61

2
Ea

rt
he

n
5.

85
0

11
.8

5
0

0
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
02

86
1

Ea
rt

he
n

14
.9

2
0

46
.1

1
0

0
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
01

53
5

Ea
rt

he
n

16
.2

7
0

22
.3

5
0

0
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
08

39
3

Ea
rt

he
n

10
.8

9
0

20
.9

9
0

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
60

2
CO

N
C

13
.0

7
0.

98
16

.3
3

1.
23

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
25

8
CO

N
C

17
.1

6
0.

79
23

.1
2

1.
07

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
44

5
CO

N
C

10
.8

9
1.

55
21

.2
6

3.
03

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
13

6
RC

P
4.

01
0.

17
6.

46
0.

27
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
08

95
8

RC
P

31
.2

4
0.

25
49

.1
0.

4
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

17
1

RC
P

19
.1

2
0.

23
35

.6
8

0.
43

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

71
11

RC
P

22
.1

4
0.

25
35

.6
6

0.
4

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
93

2
RC

P
1.

3
0.

07
2.

11
0.

12
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

89
RC

P
0.

6
0.

06
0.

96
0.

1
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
11

70
4

RC
P

3.
55

0.
1

5.
98

0.
17

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
05

RC
P

19
.6

2
0.

83
31

.2
2

1.
32

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
91

4
RC

P
6.

25
0.

3
21

.9
5

1.
06

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
71

9
RC

P
17

.0
8

0.
22

22
.9

2
0.

29
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
07

90
8

RC
P

31
.3

0.
27

49
.1

8
0.

43
1.

75
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

02
3

RC
P

10
.0

3
0.

63
15

.4
8

0.
97

1.
75

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
09

9
RC

P
5.

85
0.

18
11

.9
1

0.
37

4.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
55

5
RC

P
22

4.
32

0.
91

26
1.

46
1.

07
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

24
5

RC
P

22
.0

8
0.

48
40

.1
8

0.
88

2.
25

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
79

7
CO

N
C

2.
63

0.
05

4.
5

0.
09

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
37

4
RC

P
13

.9
2

0.
63

25
.1

4
1.

14
1

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0
15

81
1

RC
P

16
94

0
41

29
29

0
7



m
e

D'
 o

r H
'

(d
ia

m
et

er
) 

or
 (h

ei
gh

t)
B'

 (w
id

th
)

Ba
rr

el
s

Sh
ap

e
Sl

op
e 

(ft
/f

t)
M

at
er

ia
l

Q
co

n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)

Q
co

n 
vs

 
Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
(1

0

Di
m

en
si

on
s

2 -
ye

ar
10

-y
ea

r

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

62
2

RC
P

2.
42

0.
08

3.
82

0.
13

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
33

RC
P

5.
07

0.
26

8.
77

0.
46

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
25

31
HD

PE
0

0
0

0
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

99
1

RC
P

1.
25

0.
02

2.
32

0.
03

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
34

6
RC

P
28

.7
2

0.
38

47
.4

7
0.

63
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

15
35

8
RC

P
0

0
0

0
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

07
14

7
RC

P
0

0
0

0
3.

5
5.

5
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
54

1
RC

P
92

.6
2

1.
25

11
0.

25
1.

49
3.

5
5.

5
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
89

5
RC

P
92

.6
2

0.
97

11
0.

25
1.

16
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
45

8
RC

P
0

0
0

0
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
40

4
RC

P
0.

54
0.

01
0.

96
0.

02
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
31

8
RC

P
0.

53
0.

01
0.

95
0.

02
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
61

2
RC

P
5.

93
0.

33
5.

25
0.

3
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
06

64
RC

P
0.

76
0.

03
2.

05
0.

08
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
RC

P
0

0
0

0
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
95

RC
P

0
0

0
0

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

85
5

RC
P

0
0

0
0

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

97
1

RC
P

4.
34

0.
19

7.
61

0.
34

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
08

47
2

SP
15

.3
5

0.
43

27
.4

0.
77

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

95
8

RC
P

4.
33

0.
2

7.
61

0.
34

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

47
3

RC
P

4.
33

0.
12

7.
6

0.
21

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

38
3

RC
P

7.
84

0.
56

13
.8

8
0.

99
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
04

4
RC

P
0

0
0

0
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
46

5
RC

P
0

0
0

0
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

03
5

RC
P

0
0

0
0

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
24

9
RC

P
0

0
0

0
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
27

9
RC

P
22

.5
1

0.
1

10
6.

97
0.

48
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
94

1
RC

P
10

.2
9

0.
05

19
.7

8
0.

1
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
74

RC
P

10
.3

3
0.

18
19

.2
5

0.
34

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

76
7

RC
P

35
.4

4
0.

15
54

.6
0.

23
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
59

4
RC

P
36

.2
3

0.
16

53
.7

7
0.

23
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

24
9

RC
P

7.
39

0.
39

12
.2

5
0.

65
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

21
43

RC
P

1.
02

0
1.

65
0

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
37

7
CO

N
C

15
.4

3
0.

61
27

.5
1.

09
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

52
4

CO
N

C
15

.3
9

0.
52

27
.4

2
0.

92
7

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
28

3
RC

P
41

2.
83

0.
57

65
0.

54
0.

9
4.

75
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

24
6

RC
P

7.
24

0.
06

30
.8

1
0.

27
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
74

5
AB

S
0.

77
0.

11
1.

26
0.

18
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
32

5
AB

S
0.

67
0.

07
1.

06
0.

12
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

07
32

2
RC

P
3.

43
0.

36
5.

36
0.

56
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
76

3
AB

S
2.

1
0.

27
3.

44
0.

44
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

46
RC

P
5.

91
0.

36
10

.6
2

0.
64

1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

77
AB

S
5.

66
0.

95
6.

3
1.

06
0

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

02
06

9
Ea

rt
he

n
67

0.
77

0.
07

90
9.

6
0.

09
0

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

01
81

1
Ea

rt
he

n
66

9.
07

0.
11

89
1.

94
0.

14
0

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

01
81

1
Ea

rt
he

n
67

4.
18

0.
11

90
1.

24
0.

14
0

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

01
79

3
Ea

rt
he

n
66

5.
81

0.
2

88
6.

86
0.

27
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
62

8
HD

PE
3.

1
0.

06
5.

39
0.

1
6.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

96
4

RC
P

33
0.

59
0.

64
51

0.
01

0.
99

5.
5

4.
7

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

55
4

RC
P

19
1.

53
0.

77
29

3.
9

1.
18

3
5.

5
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
27

1
RC

P
50

.8
2

0.
68

60
.8

2
0.

81
5.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

63
7

RC
P

21
6.

48
0.

81
35

0.
81

1.
31

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

42
5

CO
N

C
9.

08
0.

09
15

.0
3

0.
14

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
27

84
RC

P
0.

72
0.

01
1.

27
0.

01
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

16
5

RC
P

2.
15

0.
12

3.
85

0.
21

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

14
23

5
RC

P
1.

79
0.

05
3.

15
0.

08
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
11

3
AB

S
0.

92
0.

18
1.

53
0.

3
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
77

8
RC

P
1.

86
0.

18
3.

35
0.

32
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

04
3

SP
0.

26
0.

03
0.

46
0.

06
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

07
52

6
RC

P
0

0
0

0
4

8
1

RE
CT

_C
LO

SE
D

0.
02

11
1

RC
B

23
7.

43
0.

37
27

0.
27

0.
42

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

19
52

2
RC

P
6.

39
0.

14
11

.5
2

0.
25

1
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0

03
30

9
AB

S
17

58
0

92
21

51
1

13



m
e

D'
 o

r H
'

(d
ia

m
et

er
) 

or
 (h

ei
gh

t)
B'

 (w
id

th
)

Ba
rr

el
s

Sh
ap

e
Sl

op
e 

(ft
/f

t)
M

at
er

ia
l

Q
co

n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)

Q
co

n 
vs

 
Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
(1

0

Di
m

en
si

on
s

2 -
ye

ar
10

-y
ea

r

1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

57
RC

P
0.

05
0.

02
0.

11
0.

04
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
13

77
9

RC
P

5.
7

0.
15

10
.3

4
0.

27
3.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

99
2

RC
P

53
.1

5
0.

26
15

2.
01

0.
76

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

33
RC

P
12

2.
04

0.
25

24
6.

7
0.

51
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
36

5
RC

P
11

8.
66

0.
75

17
4.

51
1.

11
8

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
39

1
RC

P
25

9.
47

0.
45

46
2.

42
0.

81
8

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
34

1
RC

P
24

8.
43

0.
47

44
1.

89
0.

83
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
03

9
RC

P
23

7.
93

0.
55

41
6.

48
0.

96
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
57

1
RC

P
15

2.
91

0.
47

27
0.

13
0.

83
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
47

5
RC

P
98

.4
3

0.
24

14
7.

12
0.

36
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
70

9
RC

P
10

1.
98

0.
47

15
0.

58
0.

69
3.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

77
RC

P
53

.2
9

0.
6

11
1.

02
1.

26
3.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

57
2

RC
P

96
.1

8
0.

51
16

2.
26

0.
85

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

46
8

RC
P

9.
3

0.
12

15
.2

6
0.

19
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
05

2
RC

P
12

.7
1

0.
08

23
.2

8
0.

14
1.

25
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

09
HD

PE
0.

65
0.

1
1.

06
0.

16
1.

25
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

61
2

HD
PE

2.
86

0.
57

4.
77

0.
94

1.
25

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
42

HD
PE

2.
85

0.
24

4.
77

0.
4

1.
25

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
64

1
HD

PE
1.

06
0.

08
1.

8
0.

13
1.

25
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

04
8

HD
PE

1.
85

0.
28

3.
08

0.
47

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

59
6

RC
P

0.
17

0
0.

26
0.

01
8

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
07

5
RC

P
52

8.
97

0.
56

92
6.

5
0.

98
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
14

56
RC

P
2.

15
0.

05
3.

62
0.

09
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

63
3

RC
P

2.
51

0.
19

4.
26

0.
32

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
51

RC
P

2.
5

0.
19

4.
25

0.
33

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
25

7
HD

PE
2.

74
0.

17
4.

82
0.

31
3.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

-0
.0

00
89

RC
P

51
.5

8
1.

72
81

.9
8

2.
74

0
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
19

96
1

Ea
rt

he
n

0.
13

0
0.

21
0

1.
25

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
84

5
HD

PE
3.

14
0.

53
5.

52
0.

93
1.

25
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

82
1

RC
P

3.
09

0.
35

5.
46

0.
63

3.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
59

8
RC

P
3.

86
0.

03
15

.6
4

0.
12

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
94

1
RC

P
3.

43
0.

13
6.

12
0.

24
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
56

5
RC

P
18

.3
5

0.
32

32
.8

4
0.

57
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
09

86
4

RC
P

2.
15

0.
07

3.
59

0.
11

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

16
9

RC
P

2.
84

0.
02

32
.9

1
0.

19
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
14

7
RC

P
22

.8
7

0.
14

53
.0

2
0.

33
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
36

9
RC

P
11

.7
0.

85
38

.8
8

2.
83

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
07

17
1

RC
P

5.
21

0.
09

9.
3

0.
15

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

14
90

5
RC

P
2.

41
0.

06
4.

34
0.

11
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

51
8

RC
P

1.
57

0.
09

2.
86

0.
17

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

21
63

6
RC

P
2.

85
0.

06
5.

02
0.

1
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
34

5
RC

P
54

.4
3

1.
39

84
.4

3
2.

16
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
00

3
RC

P
5.

42
0.

24
9.

57
0.

42
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
38

2
RC

P
5.

43
0.

16
9.

57
0.

27
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
45

RC
P

5.
39

0.
15

9.
5

0.
27

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

73
7

RC
P

11
.2

0.
38

20
.0

2
0.

67
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

14
4

RC
P

16
.4

5
0.

27
29

.3
9

0.
49

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
06

44
9

RC
P

23
.1

6
0.

14
39

.6
2

0.
23

3.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
67

8
RC

P
2.

19
0.

02
6.

51
0.

05
0.

67
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
16

21
3

PV
C

0.
91

0.
18

1.
53

0.
31

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
38

7
RC

P
21

.2
8

0.
34

37
.9

1
0.

6
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
55

RC
P

2.
56

0.
09

5.
09

0.
18

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

65
3

RC
P

2.
56

0.
09

5.
07

0.
17

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
07

85
8

RC
P

2.
55

0.
04

5.
06

0.
08

1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
08

97
8

PV
C

2.
21

0.
21

3.
82

0.
36

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
80

5
RC

P
2.

23
0.

07
4

0.
13

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

10
04

7
CM

P
2.

14
0.

12
3.

73
0.

21
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

71
6

RC
P

12
.1

7
0.

35
21

.8
4

0.
63

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

71
6

RC
P

5.
09

0.
27

8.
94

0.
47

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
11

57
2

RC
P

0.
34

0
0.

82
0

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
66

9
RC

P
7.

33
0.

43
12

.9
7

0.
76

3.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
53

4
RC

P
47

.3
7

0.
3

79
.8

0.
5

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0
03

69
RC

P
12

4
13

0
45

21
2

83
0

77



m
e

D'
 o

r H
'

(d
ia

m
et

er
) 

or
 (h

ei
gh

t)
B'

 (w
id

th
)

Ba
rr

el
s

Sh
ap

e
Sl

op
e 

(ft
/f

t)
M

at
er

ia
l

Q
co

n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)

Q
co

n 
vs

 
Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
(1

0

Di
m

en
si

on
s

2 -
ye

ar
10

-y
ea

r

3.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
35

5
RC

P
63

.2
7

0.
34

10
9.

57
0.

59
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

83
7

RC
P

2.
37

0.
13

4.
28

0.
24

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

00
8

RC
P

17
.1

3
0.

34
30

.1
7

0.
6

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

22
4

RC
P

21
.3

5
0.

53
38

.2
2

0.
94

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

33
2

RC
P

8.
98

0.
69

8.
01

0.
61

2.
25

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
59

RC
P

5.
01

0.
21

5.
45

0.
23

1.
25

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
43

2
RC

P
6.

91
0.

37
11

.7
1

0.
62

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

45
3

RC
P

0.
96

0.
06

1.
77

0.
12

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

61
9

RC
P

0.
18

0
0.

27
0.

01
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
06

69
3

RC
P

1.
01

0.
04

1.
73

0.
06

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
11

59
1

CO
N

C
0

0
0

0
1

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

00
75

7
CO

N
C

1.
6

0.
12

3
0.

23
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
30

5
RC

P
0.

24
0.

12
0.

47
0.

24
1

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

01
63

6
CO

N
C

0
0

0
0

1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
17

87
8

CM
P

0.
83

0.
1

1.
53

0.
19

5
10

1
RE

CT
_C

LO
SE

D
0.

01
65

9
RC

B
30

8.
85

0.
3

35
3.

06
0.

34
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
87

9
RC

P
98

.3
3

0.
17

20
9.

46
0.

36
1

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

04
79

4
CO

N
C

0
0

0
0

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
09

82
3

CO
N

C
0

0
0

0
1

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

07
03

6
CO

N
C

2.
03

0.
05

3.
6

0.
09

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
77

4
RC

P
4.

94
0.

35
8.

1
0.

58
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
04

RC
P

14
.7

2
0.

37
26

.4
2

0.
67

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
32

3
RC

P
3.

18
0.

53
5.

4
0.

91
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
27

67
8

RC
P

5.
98

0.
11

10
.2

1
0.

18
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

85
39

8
CM

P
0.

34
0.

02
0.

54
0.

03
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
99

3
RC

P
98

.3
3

0.
4

24
2.

5
0.

98
1

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

56
03

7
CO

N
C

0
0

0
0

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
24

20
9

CO
N

C
0

0
0

0
1

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

01
48

CO
N

C
0

0
0

0
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
14

77
2

RC
P

0.
83

0.
02

1.
51

0.
04

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

32
4

RC
P

10
.6

9
0.

41
18

.9
3

0.
73

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
15

63
4

RC
P

12
.4

1
0.

14
21

.9
6

0.
25

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
00

30
3

CO
N

C
0.

27
0.

03
0.

49
0.

06
8

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
42

2
RC

P
18

9.
62

0.
32

35
2.

85
0.

6
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
06

71
2

RC
P

17
.1

7
0.

63
30

.6
7

1.
13

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

14
7

CM
P

29
0.

55
50

.8
7

0.
96

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
11

6
RC

P
0.

88
0.

03
1.

44
0.

06
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
20

5
RC

P
1.

42
0.

04
2.

36
0.

07
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

96
6

RC
P

2.
16

0.
21

3.
64

0.
35

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
18

28
9

Co
nc

re
te

2.
85

0.
06

4.
81

0.
11

1.
25

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
91

9
RC

P
0.

24
0.

02
0.

39
0.

04
1.

25
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

50
4

HD
PE

0.
26

0.
03

0.
43

0.
05

1.
25

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
10

5
CM

P
0.

26
0.

04
0.

43
0.

06
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
06

92
9

RC
P

1.
88

0.
07

3.
37

0.
12

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

78
3

RC
P

13
.1

7
0.

66
21

.4
7

1.
07

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
18

9
RC

P
6.

92
0.

26
12

.2
9

0.
47

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
47

94
7

RC
P

3.
18

0.
02

5.
8

0.
04

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
08

3
RC

P
11

.8
3

0.
28

20
.9

5
0.

49
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
08

1
RC

P
21

.1
7

0.
31

37
.9

9
0.

55
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
20

5
HD

PE
3.

52
0.

67
5.

79
1.

09
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
15

23
7

RC
P

3.
37

0.
08

3.
4

0.
08

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
50

6
RC

P
5.

83
0.

78
9.

07
1.

21
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

53
4

RC
P

3.
84

0.
3

6.
81

0.
52

7
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

26
3

RC
P

16
7.

14
0.

51
31

3.
52

0.
96

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
92

9
RC

P
4.

35
0.

3
7.

63
0.

52
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

70
4

RC
P

3.
84

0.
44

6.
59

0.
75

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

24
HD

PE
4.

01
0.

08
6.

87
0.

13
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
27

65
5

CM
P

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
01

47
8

EA
R

0.
6

0.
2

0.
96

0.
32

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

19
01

5
CM

P
3.

46
0.

08
5.

7
0.

12
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
09

57
8

RC
P

19
.0

6
0.

15
31

.7
5

0.
25

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
98

8
RC

P
1.

33
0.

06
2.

31
0.

11
1

4
1

RE
CT

O
PE

N
0

01
06

6
C

t
0

15
0

01
0

26
0

01



m
e

D'
 o

r H
'

(d
ia

m
et

er
) 

or
 (h

ei
gh

t)
B'

 (w
id

th
)

Ba
rr

el
s

Sh
ap

e
Sl

op
e 

(ft
/f

t)
M

at
er

ia
l

Q
co

n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)

Q
co

n 
vs

 
Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
(1

0

Di
m

en
si

on
s

2 -
ye

ar
10

-y
ea

r

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
06

CM
P

5.
31

0.
49

8.
72

0.
81

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
58

7
RC

P
6.

39
0.

28
10

.5
3

0.
47

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

78
4

RC
P

8.
04

0.
4

13
.2

6
0.

66
0.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
87

27
6

PV
C

1.
17

0.
22

1.
83

0.
35

3
8

1
RE

CT
_O

PE
N

0.
00

91
5

EA
R

1.
7

0.
02

2.
77

0.
03

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

57
6

RC
P

50
.5

5
0.

26
60

.1
3

0.
3

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
55

4
RC

P
0.

94
0.

04
1.

56
0.

07
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
81

2
RC

P
51

.3
6

0.
15

62
.8

5
0.

18
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
37

9
RC

P
25

.5
6

0.
62

55
.8

9
1.

36
1

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

02
19

6
Ea

rt
he

n
0.

89
0.

18
1.

33
0.

27
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
51

7
RC

P
1.

31
0.

08
2.

12
0.

13
3

8
1

RE
CT

_O
PE

N
0.

00
05

6
CO

N
C

1.
24

0.
06

2.
29

0.
11

3
8

1
RE

CT
_O

PE
N

0.
00

21
7

CO
N

C
5.

31
0.

13
9.

18
0.

23
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
18

1
RC

P
10

4.
34

0.
88

15
5.

15
1.

3
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
69

RC
P

10
4.

24
0.

72
14

6.
31

1.
01

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
28

7
RC

P
2.

35
0.

11
3.

83
0.

18
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

76
8

RC
P

9.
54

0.
38

16
.1

9
0.

64
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

14
9

HD
PE

2.
01

0.
13

3.
34

0.
22

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
60

1
RC

P
0.

37
0.

01
0.

82
0.

03
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
60

5
RC

P
0.

33
0.

02
0.

62
0.

03
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
09

39
1

RC
P

0.
19

0
0.

33
0

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
79

7
RC

P
0.

32
0.

02
0.

56
0.

03
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

09
94

8
CM

P
1.

33
0.

03
2.

36
0.

06
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
21

09
6

RC
P

33
.8

9
0.

18
11

6.
32

0.
62

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
09

31
6

Co
nc

re
te

0
0

0
0

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
04

Co
nc

re
te

0.
48

0.
02

12
.2

0.
59

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
15

09
CO

N
C

5.
05

0.
06

7.
95

0.
09

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

52
2

RC
P

94
.4

0.
29

16
1.

61
0.

5
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
14

64
3

CM
P

2.
81

0.
13

4.
47

0.
21

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
97

6
RC

P
1.

43
0.

14
2.

48
0.

24
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
17

01
7

RC
P

0.
51

0.
01

0.
88

0.
02

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

79
8

HD
PE

1.
87

0.
04

3.
43

0.
07

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
46

87
3

HD
PE

2.
39

0.
02

4.
33

0.
03

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
96

9
HD

PE
2.

56
0.

12
4.

09
0.

2
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
33

3
RC

P
16

.7
0.

2
22

.5
4

0.
27

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
10

33
4

Ea
rt

he
n

18
.9

5
0.

04
25

.6
4

0.
06

30
20

1
RE

CT
_O

PE
N

0.
10

31
8

Ea
rt

he
n

18
.8

5
0

25
.4

0
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

90
3

HD
PE

0.
86

0.
04

1.
38

0.
06

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
15

4
HD

PE
0.

89
0.

05
1.

43
0.

08
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

58
5

HD
PE

1.
72

0.
09

2.
77

0.
14

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
86

2
HD

PE
2.

6
0.

15
4.

15
0.

23
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

44
9

HD
PE

0.
51

0.
03

0.
79

0.
05

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
63

8
HD

PE
0.

41
0.

03
0.

63
0.

05
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
45

8
RC

P
14

.2
0.

4
25

.5
6

0.
72

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
00

4
RC

P
4.

91
0.

23
9.

06
0.

43
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

90
9

HD
PE

4.
21

0.
23

6.
68

0.
37

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
61

4
HD

PE
0.

19
0.

01
0.

29
0.

02
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

74
6

HD
PE

0.
54

0.
03

0.
82

0.
04

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
13

08
2

HD
PE

4.
53

0.
06

7.
69

0.
09

1.
5

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

01
77

CO
N

C
0.

83
0.

02
1.

91
0.

05
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

65
2

HD
PE

1.
57

0.
12

2.
56

0.
19

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
32

2
HD

PE
2.

05
0.

11
3.

3
0.

17
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

45
2

HD
PE

1.
03

0.
08

1.
59

0.
13

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
85

2
HD

PE
1.

28
0.

07
2

0.
11

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
16

7
HD

PE
4.

22
0.

2
6.

7
0.

31
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
78

3
RC

P
0.

66
0.

06
1.

05
0.

1
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

62
1

RC
P

2.
45

0.
3

3.
89

0.
47

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
49

5
RC

P
3.

52
0.

21
5.

62
0.

34
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
06

93
5

RC
P

1.
18

0.
04

1.
84

0.
07

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
10

68
5

RC
P

4.
79

0.
06

7.
61

0.
1

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
96

RC
P

7.
19

0.
49

13
.8

9
0.

94
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

36
6

RC
P

9.
19

0.
37

17
.5

1
0.

71
1

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0

11
03

C
t

0
0

0
0



m
e

D'
 o

r H
'

(d
ia

m
et

er
) 

or
 (h

ei
gh

t)
B'

 (w
id

th
)

Ba
rr

el
s

Sh
ap

e
Sl

op
e 

(ft
/f

t)
M

at
er

ia
l

Q
co

n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)

Q
co

n 
vs

 
Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
(1

0

Di
m

en
si

on
s

2 -
ye

ar
10

-y
ea

r

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
08

58
7

Co
nc

re
te

1.
37

0.
05

2.
6

0.
09

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
16

41
3

Co
nc

re
te

0
0

0
0

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
12

31
6

Co
nc

re
te

0
0

0
0

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
25

8
RC

P
7.

55
0.

64
15

.3
6

1.
3

3.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
59

9
RC

P
51

.0
3

0.
4

87
.8

7
0.

69
3.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

63
5

RC
P

52
.6

1
0.

27
90

.6
7

0.
47

3.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
19

9
RC

P
45

.6
1

0.
31

69
.8

0.
47

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
08

13
3

Co
nc

re
te

0
0

0
0

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
00

50
5

Co
nc

re
te

1.
81

0.
25

3.
38

0.
46

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
93

4
RC

P
3.

22
0.

32
5.

82
0.

57
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
83

8
RC

P
5.

51
0.

09
9.

88
0.

16
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
92

5
RC

P
3.

88
0.

07
7.

16
0.

12
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

92
3

RC
P

10
.9

4
0.

11
20

.0
2

0.
2

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

14
8

RC
P

16
.8

4
0.

14
30

.2
9

0.
26

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
06

80
7

RC
P

10
.8

8
0.

06
20

.1
5

0.
12

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
22

4
RC

P
1.

07
0.

04
1.

91
0.

07
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
10

5
RC

P
26

.6
8

0.
18

50
.9

5
0.

34
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
07

41
4

RC
P

0.
64

0.
02

1.
14

0.
04

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

93
8

RC
P

26
.1

0.
09

49
.8

5
0.

17
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

11
1

RC
P

16
.9

7
0.

28
28

.5
7

0.
48

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
03

7
RC

P
24

.2
8

0.
24

41
.3

4
0.

41
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

88
7

RC
P

5.
17

0.
36

9.
49

0.
66

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

58
7

RC
B

21
.0

1
0.

43
37

.3
0.

77
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
50

2
RC

P
12

.6
0.

35
22

.5
9

0.
63

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

58
7

RC
P

11
.2

0.
31

20
.0

7
0.

55
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
38

2
RC

P
36

.1
9

0.
26

55
.5

4
0.

4
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

77
8

CM
P

3.
17

0.
33

8.
36

0.
88

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

34
5

HD
PE

6.
31

0.
24

11
.3

7
0.

43
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
12

35
8

AB
S

4.
19

0.
11

8.
5

0.
23

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

62
RC

P
72

.1
9

0.
39

12
0.

89
0.

66
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

07
06

2
CM

P
0.

76
0.

02
1.

32
0.

04
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
71

2
RC

P
78

.7
9

0.
42

13
2.

95
0.

71
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
35

6
RC

P
61

.5
0.

23
10

1.
77

0.
39

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

67
8

RC
P

61
.4

1
0.

52
10

1.
66

0.
86

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

81
RC

P
59

.1
2

0.
31

97
.5

2
0.

5
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
17

8
RC

P
3.

73
0.

46
6.

69
0.

83
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
74

7
RC

P
25

.1
1

0.
19

44
.7

4
0.

35
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

09
CM

P
5.

4
0.

23
10

.3
7

0.
44

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
09

78
4

CM
P

10
.5

9
0.

05
19

.2
0.

09
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
93

3
RC

P
11

8.
12

0.
14

24
5.

92
0.

29
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

68
2

AB
S

2.
78

0.
2

4.
75

0.
35

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

24
52

AB
S

2.
77

0.
05

4.
74

0.
09

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
22

6
AB

S
5.

64
0.

36
9.

75
0.

62
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
06

19
8

AB
S

5.
63

0.
22

9.
73

0.
37

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

60
7

RC
P

4.
87

0.
28

8.
74

0.
5

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

52
7

RC
P

11
9.

29
0.

23
27

0.
63

0.
52

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
06

04
6

RC
P

19
.3

7
0.

12
34

.4
2

0.
21

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

82
RC

P
19

.3
8

0.
32

34
.4

4
0.

57
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

10
42

5
RC

P
11

.4
1

0.
05

20
.6

8
0.

1
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

80
6

CM
P

6.
55

1.
28

9.
47

1.
85

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
02

29
3

Co
nc

re
te

0.
14

0.
01

0.
22

0.
01

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
07

66
Co

nc
re

te
0.

17
0.

01
0.

27
0.

01
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
03

3
RC

P
10

.8
5

0.
47

19
.0

2
0.

83
1

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

07
13

2
Co

nc
re

te
0.

16
0.

01
0.

24
0.

01
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

26
4

RC
P

1.
34

0.
09

2.
45

0.
16

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

78
7

RC
P

7.
67

0.
38

13
.3

9
0.

67
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
82

9
RC

P
14

.6
5

0.
33

26
.0

3
0.

59
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
24

9
RC

P
14

.6
4

0.
31

26
.0

1
0.

56
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
32

2
RC

P
8.

83
0.

69
16

.1
8

1.
26

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
02

07
6

Co
nc

re
te

0.
11

0.
01

0.
2

0.
01

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
00

67
8

Ea
rt

he
n

0.
53

0.
2

1.
15

0.
43

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
22

11
5

Co
nc

re
te

0.
09

0
0.

15
0

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0
01

89
1

RC
P

9
41

0
3

16
5

0
53



m
e

D'
 o

r H
'

(d
ia

m
et

er
) 

or
 (h

ei
gh

t)
B'

 (w
id

th
)

Ba
rr

el
s

Sh
ap

e
Sl

op
e 

(ft
/f

t)
M

at
er

ia
l

Q
co

n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)

Q
co

n 
vs

 
Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
(1

0

Di
m

en
si

on
s

2 -
ye

ar
10

-y
ea

r

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

43
5

AB
S

7.
11

0.
48

12
.6

6
0.

85
0.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

29
5

AB
S

0
0

0
0

0.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
09

7
AB

S
0.

03
0.

05
0.

05
0.

08
1

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

04
06

Co
nc

re
te

0.
06

0
0.

11
0.

01
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

34
RC

P
1.

28
0.

07
2.

32
0.

12
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
09

67
RC

P
1.

31
0.

04
2.

51
0.

08
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

93
5

AB
S

2.
05

0.
09

3.
55

0.
15

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

08
5

CM
P

20
.5

5
0.

55
36

.3
2

0.
97

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
10

27
2

Co
nc

re
te

0.
69

0.
02

1.
2

0.
04

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
52

RC
P

0.
83

0.
06

1.
51

0.
12

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
31

42
5

Co
nc

re
te

0.
08

0
0.

12
0

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
16

37
8

Co
nc

re
te

0.
53

0.
01

1.
06

0.
03

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
04

03
9

Co
nc

re
te

0.
23

0.
01

0.
45

0.
02

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
19

RC
P

4.
47

0.
29

8.
15

0.
52

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
51

4
RC

P
5.

65
0.

44
10

.2
4

0.
79

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
97

8
RC

P
5.

55
0.

38
10

.0
7

0.
68

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
45

6
HD

PE
4.

05
0.

57
6.

9
0.

97
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
15

4
CO

N
C

26
.6

0.
22

44
.8

7
0.

38
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
10

70
3

RC
P

1.
18

0.
03

4.
02

0.
12

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

64
6

RC
P

39
.6

2
0.

34
69

.6
7

0.
6

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

90
2

RC
P

54
.0

4
0.

4
91

.1
8

0.
67

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

22
RC

P
55

.2
6

0.
35

92
.4

9
0.

58
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
32

7
RC

P
27

.1
5

0.
33

41
.9

6
0.

51
2.

25
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

09
AB

S
3.

15
0.

05
6.

02
0.

1
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
55

7
AB

S
1.

34
0.

04
2.

32
0.

06
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
37

8
AB

S
1.

3
0.

05
2.

26
0.

09
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
15

74
6

CM
P

1.
36

0.
06

2.
37

0.
1

3.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
16

1
CM

P
24

.1
1

0.
18

33
.4

5
0.

25
1

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

01
14

5
CO

N
C

2.
34

0.
15

3.
35

0.
21

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
88

4
RC

P
2.

34
0.

24
4.

18
0.

42
0.

92
2.

67
1

RE
CT

_C
LO

SE
D

0.
00

80
2

RC
B

2.
57

0.
21

4.
63

0.
38

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

66
6

RC
P

10
.8

8
0.

59
19

.3
7

1.
05

1
1.

5
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

03
10

1
CO

N
C

10
.9

5
1.

03
13

.5
4

1.
28

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

07
75

6
RC

P
7.

03
0.

24
7.

39
0.

25
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
39

9
SP

16
.8

5
0.

2
30

.0
6

0.
36

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
02

73
4

CO
N

C
0.

55
0.

02
0.

99
0.

04
0.

33
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
13

72
6

HD
PE

0.
87

1.
26

0.
87

1.
26

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

49
2

RC
P

20
.2

6
0.

43
31

.7
5

0.
68

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

64
1

RC
P

40
.3

1
0.

47
60

.2
0.

7
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
81

9
RC

P
85

.1
2

0.
65

15
4.

37
1.

19
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
74

8
RC

P
85

.0
6

0.
31

15
3.

25
0.

55
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
83

3
RC

P
93

.2
3

0.
71

16
7.

44
1.

28
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
40

3
RC

P
23

.3
1

0.
55

37
.4

1
0.

88
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
13

2
RC

P
4.

78
0.

05
8.

57
0.

09
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
78

6
RC

P
18

.0
7

0.
11

32
.3

6
0.

2
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
09

63
2

RC
P

8.
01

0.
25

13
.7

5
0.

42
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
91

9
RC

P
17

.9
8

0.
14

32
.2

3
0.

24
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
65

5
RC

P
17

.8
6

0.
21

29
.4

3
0.

34
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
18

8
RC

P
27

.8
4

0.
23

51
.0

2
0.

43
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
48

3
RC

P
27

.0
1

0.
58

54
.0

2
1.

17
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
53

1
RC

P
13

.8
6

0.
17

22
.8

7
0.

28
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

07
01

5
RC

P
13

.1
3

0.
07

23
.5

5
0.

13
1

5.
5

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
01

48
9

AS
PH

AL
T

0.
21

0.
01

0.
34

0.
01

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
33

3
RC

P
28

.0
5

0.
59

49
.3

9
1.

04
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

24
5

CM
P

28
.1

9
0.

3
49

.6
1

0.
53

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

69
7

RC
P

28
.6

5
0.

26
50

.5
3

0.
46

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

71
2

RC
P

35
.0

9
0.

4
62

.0
5

0.
71

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

35
8

RC
P

5.
66

0.
14

10
.2

3
0.

26
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
36

6
CM

P
29

.9
1

0.
74

53
.9

7
1.

34
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

85
9

RC
P

6.
59

0.
46

11
.3

5
0.

79
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

74
6

RC
P

8
0.

58
13

.8
2

1
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

26
7

RC
P

4.
65

0.
21

6.
18

0.
28

1
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0

36
14

4
RC

P
2

41
0

04
3

73
0

06



m
e

D'
 o

r H
'

(d
ia

m
et

er
) 

or
 (h

ei
gh

t)
B'

 (w
id

th
)

Ba
rr

el
s

Sh
ap

e
Sl

op
e 

(ft
/f

t)
M

at
er

ia
l

Q
co

n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)

Q
co

n 
vs

 
Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
(1

0

Di
m

en
si

on
s

2 -
ye

ar
10

-y
ea

r

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
93

7
RC

P
13

.1
5

0.
23

22
.7

0.
4

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
90

8
HD

PE
15

.7
0.

28
27

.5
4

0.
49

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
61

2
RC

P
17

.6
8

0.
27

30
.8

6
0.

47
0

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

01
98

8
EA

R
7.

24
0

11
.9

0
1

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

02
87

9
EA

R
0

0
0

0
1

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

27
00

3
Co

nc
re

te
0.

13
0

0.
22

0
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
19

9
RC

P
11

0.
08

0.
58

21
2.

93
1.

13
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
11

4
RC

P
27

4.
05

1.
91

37
5.

58
2.

62
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
15

5
RC

P
25

4.
72

1.
53

33
7.

99
2.

03
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
77

RC
P

27
0.

2
0.

48
35

9.
91

0.
64

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

64
2

RC
P

25
5.

97
0.

37
33

6.
33

0.
49

4.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
3

RC
P

75
.2

8
0.

34
13

1.
89

0.
59

3
0

2
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

66
1

RC
P

58
.6

5
0.

34
10

0.
17

0.
58

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

25
6

CM
P

6.
14

0.
18

10
.4

6
0.

31
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
86

2
PV

C
6.

38
0.

13
11

.3
1

0.
23

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
48

3
RC

P
0.

63
0.

09
1.

07
0.

15
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
07

68
3

RC
P

3.
12

0.
11

5.
2

0.
18

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

77
6

CM
P

18
9.

11
0.

82
27

5.
46

1.
2

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

35
13

RC
P

3.
41

0.
05

5.
67

0.
09

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

35
2

RC
P

11
9.

1
0.

71
16

5.
17

0.
99

3.
5

0
2

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
69

2
RC

P
15

0.
22

0.
31

20
4.

88
0.

43
3.

5
0

2
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

26
1

RC
B

14
2.

84
0.

47
20

1.
6

0.
67

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
13

2
RC

P
5.

7
0.

51
9.

58
0.

86
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
84

4
RC

P
45

.2
5

0.
4

77
.6

5
0.

69
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

43
9

RC
P

0.
02

0
0.

03
0

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
34

2
RC

P
11

.1
9

0.
51

18
.9

4
0.

87
2.

75
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

86
5

RC
P

33
.7

9
0.

47
56

.5
4

0.
78

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

10
63

3
RC

P
0

0
0

0
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
57

5
RC

P
12

5.
48

0.
64

18
2.

86
0.

93
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

93
6

RC
P

4.
71

0.
32

7.
96

0.
54

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
85

1
CM

P
6.

44
0.

43
10

.7
7

0.
72

0.
67

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
32

4
AB

S
0

0
0

0
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

74
3

RC
P

14
.6

7
0.

41
25

.5
6

0.
72

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
-0

.0
13

28
RC

P
0.

16
0.

01
0.

25
0.

02
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
79

1
RC

P
38

.8
6

0.
44

69
.7

9
0.

78
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

05
8

RC
P

7.
9

0.
13

14
.4

8
0.

25
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
75

2
RC

P
29

.4
9

0.
51

54
.3

0.
94

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
69

RC
P

17
.4

6
0.

22
33

.1
1

0.
42

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
46

5
HD

PE
16

.8
9

0.
34

32
.1

2
0.

65
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

07
24

1
HD

PE
0.

65
0.

07
1.

1
0.

11
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
05

RC
P

16
.0

3
0.

49
30

.7
2

0.
95

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

14
3

RC
P

9.
33

0.
28

15
.5

6
0.

47
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
46

8
RC

P
12

.5
8

0.
46

22
.2

2
0.

81
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
49

AB
S

0.
74

0.
1

1.
19

0.
16

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

63
2

RC
P

8.
67

0.
3

14
.4

7
0.

5
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

33
7

RC
P

2.
69

0.
44

4.
43

0.
73

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

19
23

9
HD

PE
0.

62
0.

01
0.

96
0.

02
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
35

8
RC

P
9.

35
0.

35
15

.7
1

0.
6

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
46

2
RC

P
3.

08
0.

43
5.

16
0.

72
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

99
2

RC
P

3.
01

0.
29

4.
96

0.
47

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
92

6
RC

P
3.

02
0.

21
5.

01
0.

34
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
27

RC
P

12
.0

8
0.

47
20

.8
9

0.
82

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

82
8

RC
P

9.
27

0.
21

18
.3

8
0.

42
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

36
8

RC
P

0.
31

0.
01

0.
7

0.
03

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

10
3

RC
P

39
.8

8
0.

29
71

.6
5

0.
53

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

92
4

RC
P

39
.3

7
0.

43
70

.5
2

0.
76

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
79

2
RC

P
0

0
0

0
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
19

5
RC

P
22

.9
8

0.
57

37
.5

2
0.

93
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

12
5

RC
P

0
0

0
0

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

86
7

RC
P

62
.1

9
0.

46
18

7.
67

1.
4

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

11
21

5
RC

P
0.

72
0.

01
16

.4
2

0.
12

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
88

5
RC

P
11

.0
3

0.
53

19
.3

9
0.

94
2

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0
00

73
1

RC
P

11
72

0
33

24
6

0
7



m
e

D'
 o

r H
'

(d
ia

m
et

er
) 

or
 (h

ei
gh

t)
B'

 (w
id

th
)

Ba
rr

el
s

Sh
ap

e
Sl

op
e 

(ft
/f

t)
M

at
er

ia
l

Q
co

n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)

Q
co

n 
vs

 
Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
(1

0

Di
m

en
si

on
s

2 -
ye

ar
10

-y
ea

r

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
30

4
RC

P
0.

73
0.

05
1.

42
0.

09
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
06

1
PV

C
0.

2
0.

03
0.

45
0.

07
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

93
2

RC
P

4.
02

0.
28

6.
77

0.
46

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

94
5

RC
P

12
.1

4
0.

38
21

.0
2

0.
67

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
37

9
HD

PE
0.

9
0.

14
1.

57
0.

24
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

32
8

RC
P

13
.0

7
0.

56
22

.6
7

0.
97

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

85
RC

B
16

.9
8

0.
44

29
.8

3
0.

78
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
35

4
RC

P
15

.3
9

0.
44

27
.2

9
0.

79
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
06

3
RC

P
17

.6
3

0.
45

29
.9

4
0.

76
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

69
9

RC
P

17
.0

3
0.

32
29

.9
1

0.
56

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

08
8

RC
P

28
.0

8
0.

4
42

.3
4

0.
61

4.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
26

9
RC

P
11

3.
56

0.
51

20
6.

22
0.

93
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

44
4

RC
P

2.
05

0.
29

3.
58

0.
51

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
89

1
RC

P
4.

23
0.

17
7.

36
0.

29
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

15
RC

P
5.

1
0.

45
8.

72
0.

77
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
42

5
RC

P
15

2.
69

0.
55

26
7.

56
0.

97
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

13
9

RC
P

1.
51

0.
06

4.
76

0.
2

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
26

4
RC

P
3.

2
0.

03
8.

68
0.

09
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
15

9
RC

P
2.

14
0

16
.7

5
0.

02
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

90
5

CO
N

C
13

.9
9

0.
14

25
.4

0.
25

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
31

7
CO

N
C

14
.5

5
0.

63
27

.8
1

1.
2

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

31
6

RC
P

15
8.

45
0.

67
27

5.
5

1.
16

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

13
89

2
RC

P
8

0.
2

14
.1

7
0.

36
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
62

3
RC

P
15

7.
37

0.
47

27
7.

39
0.

83
4.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

69
9

RC
P

16
2.

83
0.

64
28

5.
96

1.
12

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

70
9

RC
B

16
2.

69
0.

46
28

6.
18

0.
8

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
04

8
RC

P
19

.3
1

0.
19

31
.5

5
0.

31
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

60
2

RC
P

19
.8

4
0.

38
32

.3
8

0.
62

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

81
5

RC
P

21
.0

8
0.

56
34

.3
0.

9
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

16
2

RC
P

31
.7

0.
53

52
.0

4
0.

86
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

98
4

RC
P

40
.1

5
0.

7
63

.5
8

1.
1

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

57
3

RC
P

45
.2

4
0.

42
77

.5
7

0.
71

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

81
4

RC
P

41
.7

5
0.

69
65

.6
9

1.
09

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

26
7

RC
P

41
.7

6
0.

35
65

.0
2

0.
54

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

09
RC

P
45

.5
5

0.
22

70
.0

6
0.

34
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
82

RC
P

15
2.

02
0.

4
26

6.
75

0.
7

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

64
4

RC
P

15
2.

71
0.

45
26

7.
66

0.
79

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

99
5

RC
P

11
8

0.
28

21
3.

08
0.

5
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
56

9
RC

P
15

2.
02

0.
48

26
6.

37
0.

83
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
63

7
CM

P
4.

46
0.

46
7.

13
0.

73
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

73
8

RC
P

27
.9

3
0.

41
45

.8
7

0.
68

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

32
7

RC
P

5.
63

0.
12

9.
73

0.
21

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

47
4

RC
P

10
.6

8
0.

3
18

.6
4

0.
52

1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
06

67
5

AB
S

4.
08

0.
44

7.
26

0.
79

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

74
4

HD
PE

14
.3

8
0.

48
24

.1
6

0.
81

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
80

6
HD

PE
1.

41
0.

1
2.

52
0.

18
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

48
9

HD
PE

1.
4

0.
07

2.
5

0.
13

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

70
5

HD
PE

9.
18

0.
48

15
.5

7
0.

82
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

17
17

HD
PE

1.
22

0.
08

2.
12

0.
14

1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

09
5

HD
PE

6.
02

1.
17

6.
07

1.
18

1.
75

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

09
90

1
RC

P
10

.5
6

0.
21

18
.4

7
0.

37
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

30
8

RC
P

5.
75

0.
48

11
.1

3
0.

93
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
48

1
AB

S
2.

41
0.

29
4.

78
0.

57
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

36
9

RC
P

3.
22

0.
26

5.
78

0.
47

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
78

5
CM

P
3.

2
0.

42
5.

72
0.

75
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
37

3
CM

P
9.

56
0.

51
17

.2
1

0.
91

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
55

9
RC

P
2.

6
0.

15
4.

56
0.

27
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

64
8

RC
P

21
.7

5
0.

33
38

.8
0.

58
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

53
5

RC
P

21
.7

2
0.

28
38

.5
2

0.
5

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
71

4
RC

P
21

.6
4

0.
62

37
.9

9
1.

1
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

71
1

RC
P

45
.5

3
1.

32
43

.7
9

1.
27

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

08
9

RC
P

46
.5

1
0.

48
46

.4
9

0.
48

1
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0

00
81

9
CM

P
1

48
0

29
2

61
0

51



m
e

D'
 o

r H
'

(d
ia

m
et

er
) 

or
 (h

ei
gh

t)
B'

 (w
id

th
)

Ba
rr

el
s

Sh
ap

e
Sl

op
e 

(ft
/f

t)
M

at
er

ia
l

Q
co

n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)

Q
co

n 
vs

 
Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
(1

0

Di
m

en
si

on
s

2 -
ye

ar
10

-y
ea

r

3.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
12

CM
P

0.
06

0
0.

09
0

3.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
94

8
RC

P
11

.4
5

0.
06

20
.4

3
0.

1
5.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

68
9

RC
P

42
.0

5
0.

15
68

.4
1

0.
25

5.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
68

9
RC

P
18

4.
26

0.
66

29
5.

24
1.

06
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

25
8

RC
P

3.
39

0.
18

6.
56

0.
35

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
07

88
9

Co
nc

re
te

0.
27

0.
01

0.
44

0.
02

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
05

77
1

Co
nc

re
te

0.
05

0
0.

1
0

1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

58
1

AB
S

0.
58

0.
21

0.
86

0.
32

1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

40
2

AB
S

3.
28

1.
45

4.
92

2.
18

1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

01
5

AB
S

5.
02

0.
7

4.
75

0.
67

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
85

1
RC

P
7.

64
0.

79
9.

25
0.

95
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
11

HD
PE

6.
62

1.
76

6.
73

1.
79

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
41

7
RC

P
2.

35
0.

19
4.

08
0.

33
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

02
3

CM
P

7.
37

0.
31

8.
33

0.
35

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
48

2
RC

P
10

.2
9

0.
21

24
.2

8
0.

49
2

4
1

RE
CT

_O
PE

N
0.

00
57

2
Ea

rt
he

n
1.

89
0.

13
4.

54
0.

3
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
03

1
RC

P
3.

5
0.

97
4.

45
1.

23
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
12

8
HD

PE
4.

58
1.

21
4.

62
1.

22
0

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

03
56

9
EA

R
0.

19
0

0.
19

0
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
86

RC
P

0.
97

0.
01

1.
61

0.
01

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
64

6
RC

P
15

.7
0.

51
28

.2
0.

91
0

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

04
67

3
EA

R
8.

59
0

15
.1

4
0

0
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
05

24
4

EA
R

8.
59

0
15

.3
4

0
1

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

06
45

2
CO

N
C

0
0

0
0

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
07

10
7

CO
N

C
0.

21
0.

01
0.

35
0.

01
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
69

2
RC

P
10

.3
1

0.
55

18
.6

9
0.

99
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
40

4
RC

P
18

.5
3

0.
44

33
.1

1
0.

79
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
48

7
RC

P
21

0.
5

37
.2

6
0.

88
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

07
55

1
AB

S
1.

58
0.

16
2.

82
0.

29
1.

25
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
23

81
2

CM
P

0.
48

0.
02

0.
81

0.
03

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

97
9

RC
P

33
.5

2
0.

17
61

.6
0.

3
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
98

2
RC

P
33

.6
0.

17
61

.7
1

0.
31

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
10

12
8

CO
N

C
4.

13
0.

06
6.

81
0.

09
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
69

2
RC

P
15

.2
8

0.
28

27
.5

4
0.

5
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
85

RC
P

15
.2

7
0.

25
27

.4
6

0.
45

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
27

9
RC

P
1.

59
0.

07
2.

84
0.

12
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
56

2
RC

P
17

.3
5

0.
11

31
.4

2
0.

2
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
67

3
RC

P
21

.2
8

0.
39

39
.2

1
0.

72
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
09

2
RC

P
23

.5
3

0.
2

43
.2

4
0.

37
3.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

69
6

RC
P

23
.3

6
0.

14
41

.4
5

0.
25

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
08

30
6

RC
P

28
.9

3
0.

15
52

.9
3

0.
28

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

34
2

RC
P

33
.3

0.
33

60
.3

3
0.

59
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

16
79

6
RC

P
0.

12
0.

01
0.

18
0.

01
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
78

7
RC

P
9.

36
0.

31
16

.4
7

0.
54

1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
34

33
RC

P
0.

28
0.

01
0.

45
0.

02
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
52

9
RC

P
20

.6
4

0.
07

56
.3

6
0.

18
3.

5
0

2
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

88
8

RC
P

18
7.

16
0.

68
25

4.
56

0.
92

3.
5

0
2

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
45

1
RC

P
11

6.
96

0.
48

18
3.

26
0.

76
2.

5
0

2
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

77
1

RC
P

18
.9

4
0.

12
29

.0
7

0.
18

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

41
5

RC
P

10
3.

63
0.

21
20

7.
96

0.
41

3.
25

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
85

RC
P

29
.8

6
0.

18
58

.3
9

0.
36

8
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

40
8

RC
P

15
8.

17
0.

27
31

1.
08

0.
53

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
09

32
1

EA
R

0
0

0
0

3.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
08

9
RC

P
59

.5
8

0.
57

10
3.

33
0.

98
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

12
4

RC
P

3.
09

0.
28

5.
44

0.
49

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

07
CM

P
9.

26
0.

4
16

.3
1

0.
7

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

07
89

5
RC

P
2.

54
0.

09
4.

51
0.

15
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
97

8
RC

P
36

.3
1

0.
18

67
.8

8
0.

34
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
97

8
RC

P
37

.0
9

0.
18

68
.2

9
0.

34
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
04

4
HD

PE
3.

39
0.

47
4.

41
0.

62
0

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

01
18

7
Ea

rt
he

n
71

9.
87

0.
11

10
68

.9
8

0.
17

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

97
8

RC
P

40
.4

7
0.

2
76

.1
3

0.
38

4
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0

01
94

7
RC

P
18

0
58

0
66

31
1

15
1

13



m
e

D'
 o

r H
'

(d
ia

m
et

er
) 

or
 (h

ei
gh

t)
B'

 (w
id

th
)

Ba
rr

el
s

Sh
ap

e
Sl

op
e 

(ft
/f

t)
M

at
er

ia
l

Q
co

n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)

Q
co

n 
vs

 
Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
(1

0

Di
m

en
si

on
s

2 -
ye

ar
10

-y
ea

r

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
81

3
HD

PE
6.

98
0.

3
12

.5
2

0.
54

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

39
6

HD
PE

10
.2

7
0.

38
18

.4
2

0.
69

0
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
01

41
7

Ea
rt

he
n

71
9.

72
0.

48
10

67
.4

5
0.

71
0

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

01
33

8
Ea

rt
he

n
72

8.
42

0.
5

10
99

.9
9

0.
75

0
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
04

71
3

Ea
rt

he
n

75
7.

26
0.

28
11

41
.8

4
0.

42
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
16

6
CO

N
C

3.
27

0.
62

4.
63

0.
88

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
19

09
8

HD
PE

13
.9

1
0.

14
14

.3
4

0.
15

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
58

7
RC

P
3.

41
0.

42
7.

51
0.

93
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

67
AB

S
7.

28
0.

54
9.

86
0.

73
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
62

1
HD

PE
1.

27
0.

45
2.

24
0.

8
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
88

1
HD

PE
3.

05
0.

43
5.

44
0.

77
0

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

00
70

2
CO

N
C

50
.2

7
0

94
.3

2
0

0
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
01

34
5

EA
R

49
.8

9
0

94
.0

7
0.

01
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
37

5
RC

P
44

.0
3

1.
21

44
.6

6
1.

22
1

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

01
42

1
CO

N
C

0.
16

0.
01

0.
02

0
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
75

RC
P

0.
66

0.
21

1.
18

0.
38

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

30
4

RC
P

3.
24

0.
26

5.
78

0.
46

2
6

1
TR

IA
N

GU
LA

R
0.

07
36

7
CO

N
C

1.
11

0.
01

1.
93

0.
01

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

07
77

7
RC

P
6.

57
0.

22
13

.0
1

0.
44

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
45

1
RC

P
27

.0
4

0.
28

40
.1

0.
42

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
71

4
RC

P
28

.1
9

0.
36

43
.6

1
0.

55
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

97
6

RC
P

1
0.

07
1.

93
0.

13
0

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

03
7

Ea
rt

he
n

72
9.

88
0.

06
10

80
.1

8
0.

1
0

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

01
39

1
Ea

rt
he

n
73

0.
34

0.
05

10
81

.2
1

0.
08

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
05

6
CO

N
C

3.
92

0.
03

12
.3

8
0.

11
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

48
6

RC
P

28
.3

6
0.

99
45

.9
9

1.
61

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

83
1

RC
P

43
.5

4
0.

14
65

.0
8

0.
21

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

81
8

RC
P

28
.0

8
0.

22
42

.8
9

0.
33

6.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
85

4
RC

P
37

5.
28

0.
77

61
7.

42
1.

27
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
11

69
6

RC
P

9.
02

0.
25

15
.5

7
0.

43
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

29
33

3
CM

P
0.

16
0

0.
25

0
6.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

84
9

RC
P

21
9.

74
0.

45
32

9.
47

0.
68

6.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
04

1
RC

P
15

6.
46

0.
29

25
6.

18
0.

48
6.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

56
4

RC
P

15
6.

67
0.

24
25

4.
35

0.
39

6.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
27

1
RC

P
17

0.
86

0.
63

26
5.

03
0.

97
3

9
1

RE
CT

_C
LO

SE
D

0.
03

79
5

RC
B

11
1.

94
0.

17
25

4.
14

0.
39

3
9

1
RE

CT
_C

LO
SE

D
0.

00
14

1
RC

B
80

.0
1

0.
64

15
5.

56
1.

24
6.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

71
6

RC
P

16
6.

08
0.

37
26

4.
69

0.
6

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

34
9

RC
P

0.
42

0.
01

0.
56

0.
01

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
16

12
9

RC
P

1.
05

0.
01

1.
6

0.
02

6.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
84

RC
P

21
9.

13
0.

25
32

9.
4

0.
37

6.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
68

7
RC

P
36

8.
14

0.
37

57
4.

87
0.

57
4.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

16
7

RC
P

10
.3

6
0.

13
38

.3
2

0.
48

4.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
20

5
RC

P
11

.5
7

0.
13

40
.2

8
0.

45
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
35

5
RC

P
7.

74
0.

19
14

.9
7

0.
38

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

3
HD

PE
4.

53
0.

18
7.

7
0.

3
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
30

4
HD

PE
4.

53
0.

18
7.

69
0.

3
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
50

7
HD

PE
4.

52
0.

09
7.

67
0.

16
6.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

26
5

RC
P

38
6.

15
0.

65
58

9.
57

1
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
49

6
RC

P
3.

14
0.

2
8.

7
0.

55
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
89

RC
P

9.
34

0.
03

11
.9

7
0.

04
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

03
9

RC
P

0.
56

0.
05

2.
02

0.
19

4.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
16

6
RC

P
13

.3
8

0.
17

38
.9

7
0.

49
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
48

2
RC

P
63

.3
5

0.
36

10
6.

49
0.

61
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

31
21

5
RC

P
63

.3
4

0.
08

10
6.

49
0.

13
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
40

7
HD

PE
3.

46
0.

08
5.

66
0.

14
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

25
7

RC
P

29
.1

1
0.

31
49

.0
3

0.
52

0
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
02

04
9

Co
nc

re
te

67
1.

56
0.

26
89

5.
63

0.
34

0
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
01

42
7

Co
nc

re
te

65
7.

97
0.

3
87

5.
9

0.
4

0
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
00

49
5

Co
nc

re
te

64
2.

8
0.

5
81

9.
83

0.
64

0
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
02

72
2

Co
nc

re
te

66
1.

4
0.

22
87

9.
17

0.
29

0
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
05

10
9

Co
nc

re
te

36
2.

41
0.

09
53

0.
32

0.
13

0
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0
01

88
3

C
t

66
4

07
0

05
87

7
65

0
07



m
e

D'
 o

r H
'

(d
ia

m
et

er
) 

or
 (h

ei
gh

t)
B'

 (w
id

th
)

Ba
rr

el
s

Sh
ap

e
Sl

op
e 

(ft
/f

t)
M

at
er

ia
l

Q
co

n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)

Q
co

n 
vs

 
Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
(1

0

Di
m

en
si

on
s

2 -
ye

ar
10

-y
ea

r

5
0

2
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

88
2

RC
P

26
3.

28
0.

37
49

6.
96

0.
7

4
8

1
RE

CT
_O

PE
N

0.
03

10
5

Ea
rt

he
n

0
0

0
0

4
8

1
RE

CT
_O

PE
N

0.
03

03
8

Ea
rt

he
n

0
0

0
0

4
6

1
RE

CT
_C

LO
SE

D
0.

01
02

2
Ea

rt
he

n
0

0
0

0
6

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
94

1
RC

P
31

0.
9

0.
76

46
2.

45
1.

13
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
05

89
6

RC
P

13
.3

5
0.

52
22

.3
8

0.
88

1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

49
5

AB
S

0.
78

0.
18

1.
27

0.
29

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

87
7

RC
P

31
6.

91
0.

8
49

5.
78

1.
25

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

02
6

RC
P

31
9.

4
0.

74
49

8.
37

1.
16

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

38
7

RC
P

31
0.

57
0.

4
46

2.
82

0.
59

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

95
CM

P
2.

27
0.

19
3.

8
0.

32
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

69
2

RC
P

6.
59

0.
48

11
.4

3
0.

84
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
96

5
AB

S
0.

93
0.

11
1.

48
0.

17
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

98
8

RC
P

5.
71

0.
14

11
.9

0.
29

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
84

2
CM

P
7.

52
0.

6
12

.2
5

0.
98

3
8

1
RE

CT
_O

PE
N

0.
02

63
3

RC
B

77
.8

3
0.

12
20

1.
13

0.
32

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

07
66

3
CM

P
21

.8
9

1.
39

22
.3

8
1.

42
3

4.
6

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

42
9

RC
P

53
.7

1.
23

60
.3

7
1.

38
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

13
3

RC
P

20
.8

5
0.

29
36

.2
6

0.
5

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
01

9
CM

P
1.

44
0.

1
2.

33
0.

16
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

18
2

RC
P

11
.9

9
0.

16
21

.9
6

0.
3

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
22

2
RC

P
15

.4
0.

25
28

.4
6

0.
47

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

76
2

RC
P

19
.5

9
0.

52
34

.6
9

0.
92

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
19

6
RC

P
1.

28
0.

02
2.

09
0.

03
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

65
7

RC
P

4.
56

0.
34

7.
89

0.
58

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

26
2

RC
P

15
.1

1
0.

59
26

.8
6

1.
06

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

08
02

5
CM

P
3.

38
0.

21
6.

24
0.

39
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
41

9
RC

P
67

.7
9

0.
65

91
.0

9
0.

88
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
23

8
RC

P
68

.2
0.

45
92

.8
6

0.
61

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

20
7

RC
P

12
7.

1
1.

07
18

3.
98

1.
55

1.
25

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

10
59

2
RC

P
1.

08
0.

05
0.

88
0.

04
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
03

9
CM

P
12

6.
26

0.
48

18
3.

44
0.

69
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

17
4

RC
P

59
.9

6
3.

51
78

.2
3

4.
58

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
64

6
RC

P
59

.9
5

0.
9

78
.5

7
1.

18
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
13

2
RC

P
67

.5
7

0.
57

90
.6

9
0.

77
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
93

7
RC

P
8.

13
0.

05
13

.4
9

0.
09

1
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
07

01
8

HD
PE

0.
96

0.
1

1.
52

0.
16

6.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
96

6
RC

P
31

7.
33

0.
62

48
6.

52
0.

94
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
73

2
HD

PE
0.

63
0.

09
1.

01
0.

15
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
52

7
RC

P
9.

46
0.

2
17

.8
0.

37
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
67

2
RC

P
11

2.
98

0.
34

21
6.

95
0.

64
3.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
55

13
8

RC
P

0.
79

0
1.

31
0

6
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

25
5

RC
P

10
7.

16
0.

17
20

7.
85

0.
33

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
59

4
RC

P
3.

9
0.

04
6.

48
0.

07
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

07
20

1
HD

PE
3.

65
0.

06
6.

06
0.

1
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

68
5

RC
P

6.
78

0.
2

14
.8

9
0.

44
1

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

02
97

6
Co

nc
re

te
0

0
0

0
2.

75
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

43
2

CM
P

15
.2

7
0.

34
29

.4
4

0.
66

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
09

3
RC

P
10

.2
7

0.
48

22
.8

1
1.

07
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
16

42
8

CM
P

3.
43

0.
15

6.
14

0.
27

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

30
6

RC
P

79
.7

8
0.

55
17

4.
84

1.
21

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
42

6
RC

P
6.

09
0.

25
10

.2
5

0.
42

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
76

2
CM

P
2.

8
0.

2
4.

45
0.

33
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
73

Co
nc

re
te

0.
7

0.
11

1.
2

0.
19

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
39

4
CO

N
C

10
.2

8
0.

14
23

.2
8

0.
31

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

62
1

RC
P

11
9.

53
0.

44
16

5.
45

0.
61

2
4

1
RE

CT
_O

PE
N

0.
00

03
4

Ea
rt

he
n

2.
11

0.
58

4.
14

1.
14

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
10

05
7

CO
N

C
0.

12
0

0.
16

0
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

06
13

9
RC

P
9.

23
0.

16
18

.7
3

0.
33

0.
5

3
1

TR
IA

N
GU

LA
R

0.
02

35
9

CO
N

C
0.

17
0.

03
0.

27
0.

05
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

10
68

RC
P

0.
17

0
0.

27
0

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

23
5

CO
N

C
8.

96
0.

12
14

.7
7

0.
2

1
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0

04
99

8
RC

P
0

24
0

01
0

43
0

02



m
e

D'
 o

r H
'

(d
ia

m
et

er
) 

or
 (h

ei
gh

t)
B'

 (w
id

th
)

Ba
rr

el
s

Sh
ap

e
Sl

op
e 

(ft
/f

t)
M

at
er

ia
l

Q
co

n 

(2
-y

ea
r)

(c
fs

)

Q
co

n 
vs

 
Q

ca
p3

Q
co

n 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Q
co

n 
vs

 Q
ca

p3
(1

0

Di
m

en
si

on
s

2 -
ye

ar
10

-y
ea

r

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

07
00

2
CO

N
C

23
.1

2
0.

21
31

.2
1

0.
29

0.
5

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

02
87

8
Co

nc
re

te
15

.8
6

2.
6

19
.8

2
3.

25
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

49
2

CO
N

C
21

.6
5

0.
25

28
.7

3
0.

33
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

86
4

RC
P

16
.3

8
0.

24
29

.2
9

0.
42

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
46

9
HD

PE
4.

01
0.

32
6.

87
0.

54
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

42
6

RC
P

24
.5

3
0.

38
41

.2
1

0.
65

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
04

21
9

O
th

er
0.

29
0.

04
0.

54
0.

08
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
10

62
3

RC
P

4.
3

0.
13

7.
73

0.
23

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

04
23

3
RC

P
24

.2
8

0.
29

40
.6

4
0.

48
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
08

84
1

RC
P

8.
48

0.
27

14
.9

9
0.

48
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
08

94
9

RC
P

11
.0

1
0.

35
19

.5
6

0.
62

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

07
28

7
RC

P
7.

19
0.

25
12

.7
7

0.
45

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

11
8

RC
P

24
.0

9
0.

34
40

.9
1

0.
58

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

61
6

RC
P

23
.5

0.
45

40
.2

1
0.

77
3

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

01
38

7
RC

P
31

.0
4

0.
4

44
.0

5
0.

56
2.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

68
2

RC
P

19
.1

8
0.

36
33

.8
1

0.
64

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

10
76

1
RC

P
19

.0
2

0.
55

33
.6

6
0.

98
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
01

31
7

RC
P

4.
47

0.
37

7.
35

0.
61

2.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

07
20

4
RC

P
16

.0
4

0.
15

26
.7

8
0.

24
1.

5
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

63
4

CM
P

2.
46

0.
2

4.
39

0.
36

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
19

86
7

CO
N

C
0.

21
0

0.
34

0.
01

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
03

61
1

RC
P

42
.1

3
0.

33
71

.8
6

0.
57

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

03
34

6
RC

P
2.

18
0.

11
3.

91
0.

2
0

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

04
95

1
O

th
er

1.
05

0.
01

2
0.

01
1

3
1

PA
RA

BO
LI

C
0.

17
94

5
O

th
er

1.
44

0.
02

2.
74

0.
03

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

74
4

RC
P

22
.2

9
0.

39
39

.4
5

0.
69

1
3

1
PA

RA
BO

LI
C

0.
06

74
O

th
er

10
.5

8
0.

21
20

.2
9

0.
4

0
0

1
IR

RE
GU

LA
R

0.
03

53
9

O
th

er
0

0
0

0
4

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
77

7
RC

P
56

.8
0.

45
94

.4
7

0.
75

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

00
64

8
RC

P
1.

85
0.

22
2.

85
0.

34
0

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

02
57

6
CO

N
C

0
0

0
0

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
33

92
2

CM
P

19
.2

7
0.

09
33

.5
2

0.
16

4
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

45
6

RC
P

78
.0

7
0.

35
13

1.
69

0.
59

3
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
04

72
7

RC
P

44
.0

3
0.

3
84

.9
8

0.
59

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

10
36

7
RC

P
5.

26
0.

16
8.

96
0.

26
0

0
1

IR
RE

GU
LA

R
0.

08
46

8
O

th
er

3.
44

0.
01

6.
06

0.
02

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

07
68

4
RC

P
6.

52
0.

22
11

.2
7

0.
39

1.
5

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
63

7
RC

P
6.

77
0.

4
11

.6
7

0.
68

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
02

89
9

RC
P

3.
5

0.
09

5.
69

0.
15

2
0

1
CI

RC
U

LA
R

0.
00

55
8

RC
P

7.
04

0.
42

12
.1

3
0.

72
2

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

02
13

7
RC

P
7.

53
0.

23
12

.1
0.

37
1

0
1

CI
RC

U
LA

R
0.

05
59

1
AC

3.
7

0.
44

6.
79

0.
81

2
4

1
RE

CT
_O

PE
N

0.
02

75
6

O
th

er
2.

09
0.

01
4.

12
0.

02



In
ve

rt
 

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax In

(1
00

-y

34
1.

40
3

34
1.

40
3

0
34

4.
82

0
24

3.
07

Ye
s

34
5.

2
0

28
6.

28
YE

S
34

7.
76

0
34

6.
77

1
34

6.
77

1
0

34
6.

77
0

0
N

o
34

6.
77

0
0

N
O

34
6.

99
0

34
7.

27
5

34
7.

27
5

0
34

7.
27

0
0

N
o

34
7.

28
0

0
YE

S
34

7.
84

0
32

9.
82

5
32

9.
82

5
0

33
3.

52
0

67
1.

56
Ye

s
33

3.
98

0
89

5.
63

YE
S

33
4.

2
0

32
8.

59
2

32
8.

59
2

0
33

1.
4

0
65

7.
23

Ye
s

33
1.

88
0

87
6.

56
YE

S
33

2.
2

0
32

6.
44

9
32

6.
44

9
0

32
8.

91
0

65
7.

97
Ye

s
32

9.
28

0
87

5.
9

YE
S

32
9.

5
0

32
2.

37
4

32
2.

37
4

0
44

4.
62

0
10

.2
9

N
o

32
4.

2
0

87
9.

17
YE

S
32

4.
44

0
30

3.
90

1
30

3.
90

1
0

42
9.

18
0

10
.2

8
N

o
30

7.
17

0
89

1.
94

YE
S

30
7.

49
0

44
4

47
9.

38
2

35
.3

82
32

3.
89

0
66

2.
04

Ye
s

44
4.

97
0

24
.2

8
N

O
44

5.
15

0
42

8.
44

3
43

3.
44

3
5

30
6.

79
0

66
9.

07
Ye

s
43

0.
99

0
27

.3
6

N
O

43
3.

52
0

45
3.

15
3

45
3.

89
0

45
4.

89
0

0
Ye

s
45

4.
89

0
0

YE
S

45
4.

89
0

40
2.

10
5

40
8.

10
5

6
40

5.
52

0
18

4.
14

N
o

40
7.

36
0

29
6.

33
N

O
40

8.
11

0
29

8.
4

33
2.

83
5

34
.4

35
30

0.
87

0
13

0.
94

N
o

30
2.

3
0

29
9.

03
N

O
30

4.
38

0
34

3.
64

5
34

3.
64

5
0

34
9.

23
0

32
6.

79
Ye

s
34

9.
9

0
50

6.
86

YE
S

34
9.

98
0

44
2.

14
9

44
2.

14
9

0
44

2.
29

0
0.

59
Ye

s
44

2.
35

0
1.

47
YE

S
44

2.
39

0
38

3
38

3.
48

7
<N

ul
l>

38
4.

16
0

22
3.

19
Ye

s
38

4.
16

0
22

3.
19

YE
S

38
4.

16
0

39
5.

27
39

8.
27

3
39

5.
47

0
18

.9
5

N
o

39
5.

51
0

25
.6

4
N

O
39

5.
54

0
40

6.
66

3
40

7.
05

9
0

40
6.

66
0

0
N

o
40

6.
66

0
0

N
O

40
6.

66
0

37
9.

73
8

37
9.

73
8

0
37

9.
89

0
4.

81
Ye

s
37

9.
95

0
8.

3
YE

S
38

0.
03

0
38

7.
4

39
8.

92
9

11
.5

29
38

9.
54

0
28

9.
03

N
o

39
0

0
40

8.
32

N
O

39
0.

54
0

38
3.

6
38

9.
57

5
5.

97
5

38
5.

01
0

29
5.

61
N

o
38

5.
34

0
40

8
N

O
38

5.
69

0
38

6.
82

2
38

6.
82

2
0

38
7.

02
0

7
Ye

s
38

7.
1

0
11

.9
4

YE
S

38
7.

22
0

35
4

36
0.

31
7

<N
ul

l>
35

4.
99

0
6.

55
N

o
35

4.
99

0
6.

55
N

O
35

4.
99

0
29

5.
35

8
30

1.
35

8
<N

ul
l>

29
6.

01
0

7.
53

N
o

29
6.

01
0

7.
53

N
O

29
6.

01
0

36
8.

04
4

37
1.

04
4

<N
ul

l>
36

8.
04

0
0

N
o

36
8.

04
0

0
N

O
36

8.
04

0
34

5.
70

1
35

2.
20

1
6.

5
34

6.
14

0
2.

5
N

o
34

6.
28

0
4.

25
N

O
34

6.
46

0
0

0
0

28
3.

24
0

72
6.

1
Ye

s
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

41
4.

41
2

41
4.

41
2

0
0

0
0

N
o

41
4.

41
0

0
N

O
41

4.
41

0
30

3.
5

31
4.

06
7

10
.5

67
41

4.
41

0
0

N
o

30
5.

11
0

50
.9

4
N

O
30

5.
71

0
37

2.
88

37
3.

33
5

0
30

4.
64

0
26

.6
6

N
o

37
4.

76
0

19
1.

57
YE

S
37

5.
73

0
38

6.
91

9
39

3.
91

9
7

37
4.

22
0

11
0.

24
Ye

s
38

9.
41

0
13

2.
86

N
O

39
1.

88
0

35
2.

41
6

35
2.

55
6

0
38

8.
73

0
78

.7
2

N
o

35
8.

57
2.

22
24

0.
67

YE
S

35
8.

89
0.

16
3

35
5.

65
1

35
5.

65
1

0
35

6.
19

1.
29

99
.5

4
Ye

s
36

0.
7

4.
06

12
.0

7
YE

S
36

0.
7

0.
18

3
35

4.
44

6
35

4.
44

6
0

36
0.

7
4.

06
12

.0
7

Ye
s

36
0.

58
0

27
1

YE
S

36
0.

58
0

34
8.

96
3

35
7.

96
3

9
36

0.
58

0
27

1
Ye

s
35

1.
5

0
23

7.
68

N
O

35
1.

92
0

33
9.

92
5

34
8.

92
5

9
35

0.
53

0
11

8.
12

N
o

34
2.

94
0

27
4.

27
N

O
34

4.
02

0
37

3.
97

4
37

3.
97

4
0

34
1.

97
0

12
2.

31
N

o
37

5.
95

20
.7

5
20

.7
5

YE
S

37
6.

91
1.

55
0

0
0

37
5.

22
11

.4
5

11
.4

5
Ye

s
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

37
4.

02
1

37
4.

02
1

0
0

0
0

N
o

37
4.

21
0

6.
18

YE
S

37
4.

25
0

37
6.

37
37

6.
54

8
0

37
4.

17
0

3.
52

Ye
s

37
8.

43
14

.0
1

16
.1

3
YE

S
37

9.
51

0.
85

9
40

8.
99

7
40

8.
99

7
0

37
7.

8
7.

43
9.

63
Ye

s
40

9.
19

0
2.

74
YE

S
40

9.
24

0
40

7.
59

40
7.

59
0

40
9.

14
0

1.
44

Ye
s

40
8.

59
0

4
YE

S
40

8.
67

0
44

3.
09

44
3.

09
0

40
8.

25
0

2.
17

Ye
s

44
3.

3
1.

36
11

.3
7

YE
S

44
3.

34
0.

07
7

46
0.

33
6

46
1.

22
6

0
44

3.
24

0.
69

6.
21

Ye
s

46
2.

88
12

.7
5

12
.7

5
YE

S
46

2.
92

0.
97

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
on

di
tio

n 
Ju

nc
tio

ns
 R

es
ul

ts
 S

um
m

ar
y 

Ta
bl

e
Di

m
en

si
on

s
2-

ye
ar

 
10

-y
ea

r
10

0-
ye

a



In
ve

rt
 

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax In

(1
00

-y

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
on

di
tio

n 
Ju

nc
tio

ns
 R

es
ul

ts
 S

um
m

ar
y 

Ta
bl

e
Di

m
en

si
on

s
2-

ye
ar

 
10

-y
ea

r
10

0-
ye

a

48
2.

69
4

49
0.

69
4

8
47

7.
76

2.
96

15
.8

N
o

48
3.

79
0.

29
22

.7
2

N
O

48
4

0.
01

1
43

3
43

7.
46

5
4.

46
5

48
3.

51
0.

18
13

.1
6

N
o

43
3.

66
3.

77
4.

45
N

O
43

3.
88

0.
22

7
37

3.
7

37
5.

55
7

0.
55

7
43

3.
51

2.
02

2.
69

N
o

37
4.

28
0

0.
09

N
O

37
4.

56
0

43
0

44
2.

83
5

12
.8

35
37

4.
05

0
0.

05
N

o
43

2.
25

0
16

5.
49

N
O

43
2.

41
0

41
1

41
8.

95
2

7.
95

2
43

1.
85

0
12

3.
45

N
o

41
3.

01
0

71
.8

4
N

O
41

6.
06

0
41

9.
74

3
41

9.
74

3
0

41
2.

35
0

42
.1

1
N

o
42

2.
88

1.
58

34
.8

9
YE

S
42

3.
18

0.
07

6
44

3.
15

9
44

9.
15

9
6

42
1.

93
0.

98
20

.9
7

Ye
s

44
4.

12
0

15
.6

7
N

O
44

6.
6

0
43

9.
99

5
44

4.
99

5
5

44
3.

89
0

9.
41

N
o

44
2.

46
0

20
.2

9
N

O
44

5
0

38
8.

52
7

39
8.

82
7

10
.3

44
1.

11
0

12
.1

8
N

o
39

4.
18

0
27

1.
76

N
O

39
6.

84
0

38
8.

35
5

39
7.

35
5

9
39

1.
96

0
15

3.
52

N
o

39
3.

98
0

28
7.

96
N

O
39

6.
45

0
38

7.
71

6
39

4.
71

6
7

39
1.

25
0

16
2.

23
N

o
39

3.
57

0
28

6.
45

N
O

39
5.

73
0

39
0

39
7.

70
9

7.
70

9
39

0.
56

0
16

2.
79

N
o

39
7.

41
2.

69
26

7.
74

N
O

39
8.

99
0.

14
41

2.
20

8
41

7.
20

8
5

39
4.

6
1.

67
15

2.
74

N
o

41
4

0
52

.3
1

N
O

41
7.

47
0

43
0.

76
4

43
0.

76
4

0
41

3.
5

0
31

.8
8

N
o

43
1.

81
0

0.
24

YE
S

43
1.

81
0

39
6

43
3.

73
4

37
.7

34
43

1.
8

0
0.

16
Ye

s
40

4.
72

0
46

.4
9

N
O

40
5.

07
0

44
2.

39
44

2.
47

5
0

40
4.

13
0

46
.5

1
N

o
44

4.
42

13
.4

9
13

.6
8

YE
S

44
4.

46
0.

84
9

40
9.

80
6

41
6.

80
6

7
44

3.
93

7.
4

7.
59

Ye
s

41
3.

4
20

.4
4

62
.5

6
N

O
41

3.
89

1.
44

33
2.

27
6

33
2.

69
1

0
41

2.
23

11
.0

2
34

.0
3

N
o

33
5.

11
33

.5
4

33
.5

4
YE

S
33

6.
26

3.
55

32
9.

32
7

32
9.

32
7

0
33

4.
21

19
.2

8
19

.2
8

Ye
s

33
3.

59
32

.1
4

27
5

YE
S

33
5.

16
2.

46
32

4.
25

33
3.

38
9.

13
33

3.
3

18
.0

7
16

4.
27

Ye
s

33
0.

77
0

34
5.

44
N

O
33

4.
57

0
37

8.
33

38
2.

41
4.

08
32

8.
65

0
17

9.
71

N
o

38
2.

75
9.

27
69

.8
5

YE
S

38
2.

94
0.

41
3

38
4.

01
3

39
1.

51
3

7.
5

38
1.

49
5.

29
45

.7
9

N
o

38
9.

31
0

31
1.

21
N

O
39

1.
65

0
37

6.
5

38
6.

89
2

10
.3

92
38

6.
7

0
18

0.
48

N
o

38
0.

86
0

34
0.

12
N

O
38

2.
32

0
37

4.
32

7
37

5.
50

4
0

37
9.

57
0

18
5.

48
N

o
37

7.
48

4.
27

96
.5

9
YE

S
37

7.
51

0.
21

8
40

6.
68

9
41

2.
18

9
5.

5
37

7.
42

2.
39

51
.6

9
Ye

s
40

8.
03

0
47

.7
4

N
O

40
8.

28
0

40
0.

41
8

40
7.

41
8

7
40

7.
72

0
29

.2
2

N
o

40
1.

72
13

.4
2

55
.3

N
O

40
1.

99
0.

86
9

38
9.

92
2

39
6.

92
2

7
40

1.
46

8.
02

35
.5

9
N

o
39

2.
82

0
65

.9
1

N
O

39
3.

15
0

39
0.

70
1

39
7.

70
1

7
39

1.
17

0
43

.6
1

N
o

39
2.

87
0

56
.0

1
N

O
39

3.
28

0
38

3
39

5.
74

1
12

.7
41

39
1.

79
0

36
.3

3
N

o
38

6.
99

0
33

0.
54

N
O

38
7.

65
0

38
5.

83
39

5.
86

4
10

.0
34

38
6.

08
0

21
9.

89
N

o
39

2.
16

0
58

5.
88

N
O

39
4.

7
0

39
7.

87
39

7.
87

0
39

0.
13

0
37

5.
3

N
o

39
8.

25
4.

63
4.

63
YE

S
39

8.
32

0.
24

6
0

0
0

39
8.

19
2.

83
2.

83
Ye

s
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

40
4.

78
6

40
5.

75
0

0
0

0
N

o
40

4.
87

0
5.

41
N

O
40

4.
9

0
0

0
0

40
4.

85
0

2.
98

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
37

4.
2

38
0.

26
6.

06
0

0
0

N
o

37
8.

56
0

39
.5

7
N

O
37

8.
94

0
38

9.
45

39
7.

45
8

37
7.

51
0

13
.6

7
N

o
39

4.
72

0
51

7.
42

N
O

39
5.

38
0

39
0.

22
4

39
7.

97
4

7.
75

39
3.

24
0

33
0.

64
N

o
39

5.
93

0
48

9.
97

N
O

39
6.

52
0

39
7.

72
9

40
1.

72
9

4
39

4.
08

0
31

9.
53

N
o

39
8.

02
0

1.
27

N
O

39
9.

78
0

39
3.

46
4

40
1.

21
4

7.
75

39
7.

95
0

0.
78

N
o

39
9.

31
0

48
8.

67
N

O
40

0.
04

0
40

9.
6

41
6.

35
9

6.
75

9
39

7.
52

0
31

6.
96

N
o

41
5.

41
0

18
3.

98
N

O
41

6.
55

0
42

5.
11

7
42

5.
11

7
0

41
3.

16
0

12
6.

64
N

o
42

5.
73

6.
77

13
.5

2
YE

S
42

5.
9

0.
37

2
33

3.
49

3
33

3.
49

3
0

42
5.

59
4.

06
8.

15
Ye

s
33

6.
95

0.
17

85
.4

4
YE

S
33

7.
31

0.
00

5



In
ve

rt
 

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax In

(1
00

-y

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
on

di
tio

n 
Ju

nc
tio

ns
 R

es
ul

ts
 S

um
m

ar
y 

Ta
bl

e
Di

m
en

si
on

s
2-

ye
ar

 
10

-y
ea

r
10

0-
ye

a

45
0.

91
45

9.
58

5
8.

67
5

43
3.

36
0

5.
12

N
o

45
1.

42
0

3.
92

N
O

52
9.

36
0

44
7.

38
45

5.
65

2
8.

27
2

45
1.

29
0

2.
23

N
o

44
7.

85
0

3.
91

N
O

52
9.

99
0

43
6.

24
44

2.
71

6
6.

47
6

44
7.

73
0

2.
22

N
o

43
6.

72
0

5.
45

N
O

52
4.

35
0

43
4.

82
44

2.
08

7.
26

43
6.

6
0

3.
1

N
o

43
5.

46
0

8.
82

N
O

50
5.

65
0

43
6.

92
44

7.
81

8
10

.8
98

43
5.

28
0

4.
93

N
o

43
7.

69
0

15
.8

9
N

O
51

3.
45

0
43

9.
82

44
8.

26
2

8.
44

2
43

7.
49

0
9.

12
N

o
44

0.
28

0
3.

9
N

O
52

7.
32

0
45

3.
1

46
2.

78
6

9.
68

6
44

0.
16

0
2.

21
N

o
45

3.
57

0
3.

93
N

O
53

4.
18

0
44

3.
04

44
9.

18
6

6.
14

6
45

3.
45

0
2.

24
N

o
44

3.
5

0
3.

9
N

O
52

6.
65

0
41

0
42

1.
92

7
11

.9
27

44
3.

39
0

2.
21

N
o

41
0.

2
0

0.
98

N
O

46
1.

2
0

43
9.

70
9

43
9.

89
6

0
41

0.
16

0
0.

62
N

o
44

0.
06

0
5.

95
YE

S
44

0.
1

0
34

1.
39

6
34

1.
39

6
0

44
0.

01
0

3.
41

Ye
s

34
2.

98
0

56
.3

YE
S

34
3.

7
0

31
6.

02
2

31
6.

02
2

0
34

2.
48

0
29

.4
3

Ye
s

31
6.

04
0

1.
2

YE
S

31
6.

05
0

45
4.

34
3

45
4.

34
3

0
31

6.
04

0
0.

7
Ye

s
45

4.
5

0
4.

14
YE

S
45

4.
54

0
35

0.
39

2
35

0.
39

2
0

45
4.

44
0

2.
11

Ye
s

35
0.

39
0

0
N

O
35

0.
39

0
44

5.
99

7
44

5.
99

7
0

35
0.

39
0

0
N

o
44

6.
49

0
15

.0
3

YE
S

44
6.

57
0

28
5.

63
2

28
5.

76
8

0
44

6.
42

0
9.

5
Ye

s
29

0.
98

0
48

2.
4

YE
S

29
1.

43
0

43
1.

60
2

43
1.

60
2

0
29

0.
66

0
38

0.
57

Ye
s

43
2.

24
0

27
.9

3
YE

S
43

2.
42

0
27

6.
63

5
27

6.
63

5
0

43
2.

09
0

15
.8

6
Ye

s
27

8.
95

0
11

39
.6

7
YE

S
27

9.
27

0
28

5.
23

3
28

5.
23

3
0

27
8.

38
0

75
4.

79
Ye

s
28

8.
63

0
10

81
.6

2
YE

S
28

9.
56

0
30

3
31

9.
99

3
0

28
8.

07
0

73
1.

01
Ye

s
31

1.
9

0
1.

52
N

O
31

1.
91

0
42

9.
34

5
42

9.
40

7
0

31
1.

89
0

0.
91

N
o

42
9.

6
0

4.
12

YE
S

42
9.

78
0

31
6.

03
1

31
6.

03
1

0
42

9.
51

0
1.

94
Ye

s
31

9.
01

0
89

4.
89

YE
S

31
9.

26
0

42
5.

58
3

42
5.

58
3

0
31

8.
67

0
68

0.
38

Ye
s

42
5.

66
0

6.
62

YE
S

42
5.

69
0

43
1.

88
1

43
1.

88
1

0
42

5.
64

0
4.

1
Ye

s
43

5.
2

0
79

.4
1

YE
S

43
6.

83
0

42
5.

70
1

42
5.

70
1

0
43

4.
27

0
45

.7
4

Ye
s

42
5.

76
0

3.
12

YE
S

42
5.

78
0

39
2.

82
9

39
2.

82
9

0
42

5.
75

0
1.

97
Ye

s
39

3.
04

0
54

.1
YE

S
39

3.
06

0
43

3.
40

8
43

7.
94

3
4.

53
5

39
3.

01
0

43
.0

9
Ye

s
43

3.
83

0
24

3.
4

N
O

43
3.

93
0

30
7.

49
30

7.
49

0
43

3.
76

0
17

8.
42

N
o

31
2.

2
0

15
7.

22
YE

S
31

3.
01

0
42

9.
22

6
42

9.
22

6
0

31
1.

56
0

89
.7

9
Ye

s
42

9.
63

0
15

.4
4

YE
S

42
9.

73
0

40
4.

75
4

40
9.

93
4

5.
18

42
9.

56
0

8.
68

Ye
s

40
8.

51
0

68
.2

9
N

O
41

0.
03

0
43

4.
67

7
43

4.
82

5
0

40
7.

29
0

37
.0

9
N

o
43

5
0

5.
25

YE
S

43
5.

06
0

0
0

0
43

4.
92

0
2.

54
Ye

s
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
40

9.
93

7
41

4.
93

7
5

0
0

0
N

o
41

0.
05

0
0.

27
N

O
41

1.
99

0
41

5.
68

2
42

2.
68

2
7

41
0.

03
0

0.
17

N
o

41
5.

77
0

0.
27

N
O

41
5.

79
0

0
0

0
41

5.
75

0
0.

17
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
28

7.
2

29
0.

41
9

3.
21

9
0

0
0

N
o

29
0.

82
0

40
.9

9
YE

S
29

1.
58

0
28

8.
01

7
29

2.
51

7
4.

5
29

0.
57

0
23

.5
6

Ye
s

29
0.

95
0

33
.6

6
N

O
29

1.
85

0
39

1.
02

5
39

2.
02

5
1

29
0.

74
0

19
.0

2
N

o
39

3.
22

0
46

.9
9

YE
S

39
3.

42
0

0
0

0
39

2.
92

0
29

.8
Ye

s
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
44

0
44

1.
07

3
1.

07
3

0
0

0
N

o
44

0.
7

0
4.

63
N

O
44

0.
76

0
31

1.
50

6
31

6.
50

6
5

44
0.

65
0

2.
57

N
o

31
3.

41
0.

4
20

.6
7

N
O

31
4.

26
0.

01
6



In
ve

rt
 

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax In

(1
00

-y

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
on

di
tio

n 
Ju

nc
tio

ns
 R

es
ul

ts
 S

um
m

ar
y 

Ta
bl

e
Di

m
en

si
on

s
2-

ye
ar

 
10

-y
ea

r
10

0-
ye

a

35
4

35
4.

56
6

0.
56

6
30

3.
21

0
2.

95
N

o
35

4.
01

0
0.

14
N

O
35

4.
02

0
41

4.
03

5
41

4.
19

2
0

35
4.

01
0

0.
04

N
o

41
4.

08
0

1.
14

N
O

41
4.

1
0

0
0

0
41

4.
07

0
0.

72
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

39
5.

66
6

39
5.

66
6

0
0

0
0

N
o

39
6.

09
0

86
.8

6
YE

S
39

6.
09

0
43

8.
34

7
43

8.
34

7
0

39
6.

09
0

86
.8

6
Ye

s
43

8.
38

0
0.

55
YE

S
43

8.
39

0
44

8.
44

4
44

8.
44

4
0

43
8.

37
0

0.
32

Ye
s

44
8.

68
0

1.
26

YE
S

44
8.

74
0

44
3.

33
5

44
3.

33
5

0
44

8.
62

0
0.

71
Ye

s
44

3.
83

0
1.

23
YE

S
44

3.
89

0
40

0.
33

1
40

0.
33

1
0

44
3.

75
0

0.
69

Ye
s

40
2.

42
0

27
.8

2
YE

S
41

5.
22

0
41

3
41

4.
25

9
1.

25
9

40
1.

54
0

15
.7

9
Ye

s
41

5.
21

0
29

.9
2

YE
S

41
5.

46
0

42
7.

74
6

43
9.

24
6

11
.5

41
5.

03
0

17
.0

4
Ye

s
42

9.
65

0
27

.4
2

N
O

43
5.

1
0

43
1.

07
7

43
7.

07
7

6
42

9.
09

0
15

.3
9

N
o

43
1.

08
0

0
N

O
43

4.
73

0
43

1.
67

6
43

6.
67

6
5

43
1.

08
0

0
N

o
43

1.
68

0
0

N
O

43
4.

69
0

43
7.

80
5

43
7.

80
5

0
43

1.
68

0
0

N
o

43
7.

86
0

0.
97

YE
S

43
7.

88
0

0
0

0
43

7.
85

0
0.

58
Ye

s
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

43
2.

41
3

43
3.

27
5

0
0

0
0

N
o

43
2.

56
0

15
.5

1
N

O
43

2.
57

0
46

9.
20

6
47

6.
12

3
6.

91
7

43
2.

53
0

10
.9

5
N

o
47

0.
28

0
9.

06
N

O
47

3.
91

0
46

2.
42

46
9.

99
2

7.
57

2
46

9.
96

0
5.

49
N

o
47

3.
46

0
80

.1
1

YE
S

47
8.

54
0

46
5.

86
1

47
0.

86
1

5
46

4.
33

0
47

.0
7

N
o

46
7.

08
0

25
.5

5
N

O
47

1.
11

0
48

5.
91

2
49

5.
58

6
9.

67
4

46
6.

48
0

13
.1

N
o

48
6.

51
0

25
.5

6
N

O
48

6.
76

0
27

7.
5

28
3.

03
7

5.
53

7
48

6.
34

0
13

.1
N

o
28

0.
17

0
90

.3
3

N
O

28
0.

85
0

27
7.

2
28

2.
04

5
4.

84
5

27
9.

44
0

51
.7

N
o

28
0.

05
0

92
.9

1
N

O
28

0.
62

0
30

6.
84

9
30

6.
84

9
0

27
9.

34
0

52
.5

1
N

o
31

0.
11

0
88

7.
3

YE
S

31
0.

45
0

45
9.

18
6

45
9.

93
7

0.
75

1
30

9.
73

0
66

6.
03

Ye
s

45
9.

24
0

3.
15

N
O

45
9.

25
0

43
9.

10
8

49
4.

57
55

.4
62

45
9.

22
0

1.
93

N
o

43
9.

43
0

3.
57

N
O

43
9.

51
0

47
9

48
0.

00
9

1.
00

9
43

9.
36

0
2.

27
N

o
47

9
0

0
N

O
47

9
0

42
6.

02
1

43
3.

10
5

7.
08

4
47

9
0

0
N

o
42

6.
78

0
6.

67
N

O
42

7.
01

0
44

9.
19

5
48

3.
48

2
34

.2
87

42
6.

62
0

4.
12

N
o

44
9.

53
0

3.
59

N
O

44
9.

62
0

41
5.

53
3

42
1.

53
3

6
44

9.
47

0
2.

28
N

o
41

5.
63

0
0.

5
N

O
41

5.
65

0
39

3.
28

40
6.

28
13

41
5.

61
0

0.
32

N
o

39
3.

9
0

10
.5

4
N

O
39

4.
08

0
34

8.
92

5
34

8.
92

5
0

39
3.

76
0

6.
39

N
o

34
9.

83
0

53
.7

6
YE

S
35

0.
24

0
43

6.
26

6
44

9.
40

7
13

.1
41

34
9.

55
0

27
.9

9
Ye

s
44

4.
49

0.
92

51
.9

N
O

44
2.

99
0.

04
1

44
5.

58
2

45
0.

58
2

5
43

7.
97

0.
59

40
.3

N
o

44
5.

93
0

5.
79

N
O

44
6.

03
0

43
2.

86
6

44
3.

86
7

11
.0

01
44

5.
85

0
3.

42
N

o
43

6.
09

0
49

.6
8

N
O

43
6.

68
0

44
2.

07
44

7.
07

5
43

4.
56

0
40

.1
5

N
o

44
2.

22
0

0.
75

N
O

44
2.

25
0

47
8.

34
4

47
9.

04
7

0.
54

7
44

2.
19

0
0.

48
N

o
47

8.
34

0
0

N
O

47
8.

34
0

41
3.

95
7

42
0.

95
7

7
47

8.
34

0
0

N
o

41
5.

13
0

54
.1

2
N

O
41

5.
21

0
40

4.
53

41
1.

53
7

41
5

0
43

.1
6

N
o

40
5.

84
0

54
.1

N
O

40
5.

92
0

0
0

0
40

5.
7

0
43

.1
1

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
43

5.
19

7
43

9.
19

7
4

0
0

0
N

o
44

3.
49

0
7.

65
YE

S
44

6.
83

0
33

6.
14

5
33

6.
40

9
0

44
9.

38
0

4.
27

Ye
s

33
8.

03
0

35
.5

2
YE

S
33

8.
38

0
49

2.
56

7
49

2.
56

7
0

33
7.

89
0

17
.6

8
Ye

s
49

8.
06

0
4.

32
YE

S
49

6.
31

0
35

4
36

3.
99

8
9.

99
8

49
2.

74
0

0.
5

Ye
s

35
4.

56
0

22
.7

2
N

O
35

4.
74

0



In
ve

rt
 

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax In

(1
00

-y

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
on

di
tio

n 
Ju

nc
tio

ns
 R

es
ul

ts
 S

um
m

ar
y 

Ta
bl

e
Di

m
en

si
on

s
2-

ye
ar

 
10

-y
ea

r
10

0-
ye

a

48
9.

97
2

49
0.

41
9

0
31

1.
58

0
12

.9
N

o
49

0.
01

0
0.

99
N

O
49

0.
03

0
31

9.
95

5
32

4.
95

5
5

49
0

0
0.

55
N

o
32

1.
34

0
22

.7
3

N
O

32
1.

87
0

40
6.

11
6

40
6.

11
6

0
32

0.
97

0
12

.9
5

N
o

40
6.

19
0

2.
39

YE
S

40
6.

23
0

37
5.

22
6

37
5.

22
6

0
40

6.
17

0
1.

34
Ye

s
37

5.
82

0
4.

46
YE

S
37

5.
99

0
42

9.
62

43
6.

77
3

7.
15

3
37

5.
69

0
2.

81
Ye

s
43

0.
55

0
17

.6
4

N
O

49
6.

73
0

40
2.

2
41

6.
52

2
14

.3
22

43
0.

28
0

9.
81

N
o

40
4.

49
0

79
.1

4
N

O
44

1.
75

0
42

1.
8

43
7.

23
3

15
.4

33
40

3.
65

0
46

.6
1

N
o

42
3.

55
0

41
.8

3
N

O
50

2.
57

0
42

9.
62

6
43

8.
12

6
8.

5
42

2.
76

0
24

.6
3

N
o

43
0.

88
0

21
.7

N
O

43
5.

79
0

44
3.

33
1

44
7.

83
1

4.
5

43
0.

38
0

12
.9

3
N

o
44

3.
83

0
4.

46
N

O
44

3.
99

0
46

2.
38

5
46

9.
88

5
7.

5
44

3.
71

0
2.

55
N

o
46

2.
76

0
4.

48
N

O
46

2.
87

0
41

9.
26

4
42

3.
76

4
4.

5
46

2.
67

0
2.

56
N

o
42

5.
01

0
20

.7
4

YE
S

42
5.

77
0

44
7.

13
8

45
0.

13
8

3
42

1.
69

0
12

.7
9

N
o

45
0.

15
0

62
.0

5
YE

S
45

0.
27

0
41

5.
8

42
2.

62
1

6.
82

1
45

0.
04

0
35

.0
9

N
o

42
1.

05
0

15
.9

9
N

O
42

3.
2

0
40

3.
37

6
41

9.
87

6
16

.5
41

6.
91

0
12

.9
2

N
o

41
4.

27
0

31
.3

8
N

O
41

8.
97

0
40

7.
03

3
41

1.
53

3
4.

5
40

8.
43

0
22

.1
7

N
o

41
5.

95
0

3.
92

YE
S

42
1.

24
0

41
3.

4
43

3.
95

7
20

.5
57

40
8.

59
0

1.
86

N
o

42
5.

63
0

63
.1

5
N

O
48

7.
16

0
40

7.
93

42
2.

15
8

14
.2

28
41

5.
02

0
36

.8
9

N
o

41
0.

16
0

64
.0

8
N

O
46

1.
16

0
37

1.
91

1
37

7.
41

1
5.

5
40

9.
36

0
37

.6
N

o
37

2.
25

4.
73

4.
73

N
O

37
2.

77
0.

27
4

35
3.

29
3

35
7.

79
3

4.
5

37
2.

16
2.

54
2.

54
N

o
35

3.
82

6.
16

6.
16

N
O

35
4.

01
0.

38
6

32
6.

42
7

32
9.

42
7

3
35

3.
68

3.
44

3.
44

N
o

32
6.

8
1.

22
1.

22
N

O
32

6.
9

0.
04

7
44

0.
89

1
44

1.
85

0
32

6.
71

0.
71

0.
71

N
o

44
1.

92
1.

23
1.

23
YE

S
44

1.
93

0.
05

7
45

1.
81

9
45

1.
81

9
0

44
1.

91
0.

72
0.

72
Ye

s
45

1.
84

0.
87

0.
87

YE
S

45
1.

84
0.

03
7

50
4

50
6.

22
2

2.
22

2
45

1.
83

0.
5

0.
5

Ye
s

50
4

0
0

N
O

50
4

0
41

8.
67

3
41

8.
86

9
0

50
4

0
0

N
o

41
9.

05
0.

27
0.

27
YE

S
41

9.
09

0.
01

2
36

7.
26

1
37

2.
76

1
5.

5
41

9.
03

0.
18

0.
18

Ye
s

36
8.

95
4.

64
90

.8
2

N
O

37
1.

81
0.

2
41

9.
44

1
42

6.
44

1
7

36
8.

51
2.

83
52

.7
6

N
o

41
9.

44
0

0
N

O
42

0.
13

0
41

8
42

6.
00

9
8.

00
9

41
9.

44
0

0
N

o
41

8
0

0
N

O
41

8.
4

0
31

0.
58

5
31

4.
08

5
3.

5
41

8
0

0
N

o
31

1.
18

5.
48

5.
48

N
O

31
1.

33
0.

23
3

37
0.

13
7

37
5.

63
7

5.
5

31
1.

06
3.

39
3.

39
N

o
37

1.
05

2.
98

31
.2

1
N

O
37

1.
17

0.
16

9
37

2.
60

1
37

4.
52

4
0

37
0.

92
1.

8
23

.1
3

N
o

37
2.

64
2.

8
2.

8
N

O
37

2.
65

0.
15

9
37

2.
14

37
2.

14
0

37
2.

63
1.

69
1.

69
N

o
37

5.
16

4.
26

28
.8

2
YE

S
37

5.
71

0.
19

4
30

0.
31

1
30

4.
81

1
4.

5
37

4.
57

2.
71

21
.6

6
Ye

s
30

1.
57

1.
49

33
.8

2
N

O
30

6.
56

0.
07

4
49

7
49

9.
01

4
2.

01
4

30
1.

11
0.

88
19

.0
8

N
o

49
8.

67
0

3.
91

N
O

50
0.

32
0

30
9.

35
8

31
3.

85
8

4.
5

49
7.

57
0

2.
18

N
o

31
0.

09
14

.9
9

14
.9

9
N

O
31

3.
41

0.
98

9
30

9.
88

2
31

4.
38

2
4.

5
30

9.
89

8.
48

8.
48

N
o

31
0.

37
7.

74
7.

74
N

O
31

0.
72

0.
47

8
30

6.
31

7
31

0.
81

7
4.

5
31

0.
24

4.
3

4.
3

N
o

30
7.

17
4.

61
19

.5
9

N
O

31
1.

5
0.

32
6

30
6.

21
8

31
0.

71
8

4.
5

30
6.

93
2.

55
11

.0
2

N
o

30
6.

92
5.

07
12

.8
N

O
30

9.
71

0.
33

4
28

6.
7

29
1.

38
6

4.
68

6
30

6.
73

2.
92

7.
21

N
o

29
0.

9
0.

75
40

.9
4

N
O

29
1.

7
0.

04
6

28
7.

52
1

29
1.

02
1

3.
5

29
0.

35
0.

46
23

.9
5

N
o

29
0.

91
7.

35
7.

35
N

O
29

1.
63

0.
34

1
28

6.
60

4
29

0.
10

4
3.

5
29

0.
77

4.
46

4.
46

N
o

29
0.

85
3.

45
73

.7
YE

S
29

1.
63

0.
21

6
32

9.
60

8
33

2.
60

8
3

29
0.

33
1.

99
30

.4
9

Ye
s

33
0.

95
23

.6
2

23
.6

2
N

O
33

2.
22

1.
7

0
0

0
33

0.
55

13
.4

9
13

.4
9

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
30

3.
68

2
30

6.
68

2
3

0
0

0
N

o
30

4.
33

13
.4

3
15

.0
9

N
O

30
4.

58
0.

90
4

45
4.

56
7

45
4.

91
0

30
4.

16
7.

68
8.

5
N

o
45

4.
67

0
11

.9
3

N
O

45
4.

72
0



In
ve

rt
 

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax In

(1
00

-y

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
on

di
tio

n 
Ju

nc
tio

ns
 R

es
ul

ts
 S

um
m

ar
y 

Ta
bl

e
Di

m
en

si
on

s
2-

ye
ar

 
10

-y
ea

r
10

0-
ye

a

0
0

0
29

7.
1

4.
08

7.
57

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
29

6.
45

30
1.

45
5

0
0

0
N

o
29

7.
7

1.
1

12
.1

3
N

O
29

8.
06

0.
04

7
43

3.
30

6
43

5.
30

6
2

29
7.

35
0.

72
7.

04
N

o
43

4.
5

15
.5

7
19

.8
7

N
O

43
5.

01
1.

04
43

2.
33

9
43

7.
33

9
5

43
4.

16
8.

92
11

.2
9

N
o

43
3.

88
7.

17
27

.0
2

N
O

43
4.

51
0.

45
44

4.
93

8
45

0.
43

8
5.

5
43

3.
46

4.
25

15
.5

3
N

o
44

5.
8

1.
13

28
.9

3
N

O
44

6.
13

0.
05

6
47

0.
20

5
47

5.
20

5
5

44
5.

57
0.

7
15

.2
4

N
o

47
0.

89
4.

41
4.

41
N

O
47

4
0.

24
7

42
9

44
1.

50
3

12
.5

03
47

0.
72

2.
66

2.
66

N
o

42
9.

75
0

7.
69

N
O

42
9.

99
0

0
0

0
42

9.
57

0
4.

54
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

46
9.

72
7

47
5.

58
8

5.
86

1
0

0
0

N
o

47
0.

5
0.

47
4.

86
N

O
47

3.
89

0.
02

1
47

0.
74

7
47

5.
74

7
5

47
0.

28
0.

3
2.

95
N

o
47

1.
79

12
.5

6
12

.5
6

N
O

47
4.

79
0.

72
1

46
9.

84
5

47
4.

84
5

5
47

1.
51

7.
27

7.
27

N
o

47
0.

5
4.

29
4.

29
N

O
47

3.
95

0.
24

3
46

8.
33

5
47

4.
76

3
6.

42
8

47
0.

32
2.

58
2.

58
N

o
46

9.
9

0.
63

24
.0

4
N

O
47

3.
37

0.
03

1
46

9.
45

47
6.

33
9

6.
88

9
46

9.
46

0.
4

14
.3

8
N

o
47

0.
56

0.
67

13
.2

3
N

O
47

3.
98

0.
02

8
46

9.
03

7
47

2.
03

7
3

47
0.

23
0.

44
7.

71
N

o
47

0.
02

1.
5

1.
5

N
O

47
2.

56
0.

06
7

47
1.

48
8

47
5.

98
8

4.
5

46
9.

52
0.

97
0.

97
N

o
47

1.
73

1.
7

1.
7

N
O

47
1.

79
0.

07
3

46
5.

74
2

47
2.

23
4

6.
49

2
47

1.
68

1.
09

1.
09

N
o

46
8.

65
4.

01
31

.4
7

N
O

47
1.

49
0.

19
3

46
6.

24
3

47
0.

24
3

4
46

7.
03

2.
45

18
.8

8
N

o
46

8.
67

2.
68

2.
68

N
O

47
0.

92
0.

13
46

3.
5

47
0.

89
8

7.
39

8
46

7.
05

1.
67

1.
67

N
o

46
7.

63
1

35
.0

8
N

O
47

0.
23

0.
04

5
46

0.
40

2
47

9.
88

4
0

46
4.

89
0.

65
21

.8
6

N
o

46
0.

42
0

0.
22

N
O

46
0.

43
0

46
8.

74
5

47
3.

74
5

5
46

0.
42

0
0.

13
N

o
46

9.
03

2.
69

2.
69

N
O

47
0.

29
0.

12
1

46
3.

95
46

8.
95

5
46

8.
97

1.
73

1.
73

N
o

46
7.

67
2.

12
2.

12
N

O
47

0.
02

0.
09

5
47

0.
03

3
47

4.
53

3
4.

5
46

4.
89

1.
35

1.
35

N
o

47
1.

29
50

.6
5

50
.6

5
N

O
47

4.
67

1.
63

45
9.

57
4

46
7.

93
2

8.
35

8
47

0.
92

28
.8

8
28

.8
8

N
o

46
6.

1
3.

44
10

1.
95

N
O

46
8.

09
0.

17
48

8.
67

1
49

3.
67

1
5

46
1.

62
2.

14
62

.0
2

N
o

48
9.

84
0.

51
25

.5
4

N
O

49
5.

46
0.

02
45

7.
56

4
46

6.
56

4
9

48
9.

48
0.

32
13

.1
N

o
46

5.
47

3.
08

89
.8

8
N

O
46

7.
7

0.
13

8
28

5.
79

5
29

0.
79

5
5

45
9.

69
1.

98
65

.5
3

N
o

28
6.

46
15

.3
1

21
.8

6
N

O
28

6.
68

0.
90

7
29

3.
13

1
29

3.
63

7
0

28
6.

3
8.

97
12

.5
1

N
o

29
3.

21
8.

82
8.

82
N

O
29

3.
24

0.
52

28
0.

84
4

28
5.

84
4

5
29

3.
19

4.
78

4.
78

N
o

28
1.

64
0.

1
23

.8
8

N
O

28
2.

12
0.

00
4

39
1.

38
6

39
1.

38
6

0
28

1.
42

0.
07

13
.6

1
N

o
39

3.
06

0
37

5.
58

YE
S

39
3.

4
0

31
8.

42
9

32
3.

42
9

5
39

2.
75

0
27

4.
05

Ye
s

31
8.

65
2.

8
2.

8
N

O
31

8.
71

0.
20

7
35

1.
07

5
35

6.
07

5
5

31
8.

6
1.

63
1.

63
N

o
35

1.
24

1.
53

1.
53

N
O

35
1.

28
0.

08
7

36
2.

87
1

36
7.

87
1

5
35

1.
2

0.
92

0.
92

N
o

36
3.

04
1.

84
1.

84
N

O
36

3.
09

0.
12

6
46

5.
19

46
9.

69
4.

5
36

3
1.

08
1.

08
N

o
46

5.
6

2.
33

2.
33

N
O

46
5.

73
0.

14
4

46
4.

55
6

47
0.

05
6

5.
5

46
5.

5
1.

31
1.

31
N

o
46

4.
95

2.
15

4.
47

N
O

46
5.

07
0.

13
2

43
8.

16
6

44
2.

66
6

4.
5

46
4.

86
1.

25
2.

56
N

o
43

8.
93

1.
32

5.
68

N
O

44
0.

6
0.

07
2

43
3.

98
3

44
0.

48
3

6.
5

43
8.

73
0.

82
3.

3
N

o
43

4.
92

0
11

.2
3

N
O

43
8.

94
0

43
4.

87
9

43
9.

37
9

4.
5

43
4.

66
0

6.
49

N
o

43
5.

66
5.

91
5.

91
N

O
43

9.
27

0.
30

5
46

0.
50

3
46

5.
00

3
4.

5
43

5.
45

3.
45

3.
45

N
o

46
0.

75
2.

14
2.

14
N

O
46

0.
81

0.
09

7
43

0.
53

2
43

5.
03

2
4.

5
46

0.
69

1.
27

1.
27

N
o

43
2.

17
8.

95
8.

95
N

O
43

7.
93

0.
43

4
42

1.
07

3
42

1.
07

3
0

43
1.

49
5.

47
5.

47
N

o
42

2.
88

0
25

.7
3

YE
S

42
3.

18
0

41
7.

1
42

3.
22

2
6.

12
2

42
1.

93
0

15
.3

Ye
s

42
1.

98
2.

13
17

.2
9

N
O

42
3.

8
0.

10
7

40
7.

47
1

41
1.

97
1

4.
5

41
8.

18
1.

3
12

.9
1

N
o

41
9.

31
0.

78
4.

18
YE

S
42

1.
21

0.
03

6
40

7.
64

41
2.

14
4.

5
40

8.
57

0.
51

0.
63

N
o

41
6.

03
1.

81
2.

41
YE

S
42

1.
21

0.
08

9
40

5.
45

9
40

8.
95

9
3.

5
40

8.
6

1.
12

1.
12

N
o

41
8.

64
5.

58
9.

03
YE

S
42

1.
08

0.
25

8



In
ve

rt
 

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax In

(1
00

-y

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
on

di
tio

n 
Ju

nc
tio

ns
 R

es
ul

ts
 S

um
m

ar
y 

Ta
bl

e
Di

m
en

si
on

s
2-

ye
ar

 
10

-y
ea

r
10

0-
ye

a

47
0.

31
2

47
4.

81
2

4.
5

47
0.

93
1.

52
1.

52
N

o
47

0.
56

0.
63

3.
32

N
O

47
0.

63
0.

02
8

49
7.

88
3

50
2.

88
3

5
47

0.
51

0.
41

2.
02

N
o

49
8.

77
25

.0
9

25
.0

9
N

O
49

9.
2

2.
18

46
9.

67
4

47
4.

67
4

5
49

8.
5

12
.8

3
12

.8
3

N
o

46
9.

87
1.

22
1.

22
N

O
46

9.
92

0.
05

5
42

2.
79

7
42

2.
79

7
0

46
9.

84
0.

78
0.

78
N

o
42

2.
93

0
10

.7
7

YE
S

42
3.

2
0

46
5.

8
47

5.
71

8
9.

91
8

42
2.

9
0

6.
44

Ye
s

46
6.

12
0.

93
3.

23
N

O
46

6.
19

0.
04

1
47

6.
55

48
1.

55
5

46
6.

05
0.

6
2.

05
N

o
47

6.
75

0.
26

1.
11

N
O

47
6.

79
0.

01
2

48
0.

05
5

48
5.

05
5

5
47

6.
71

0.
17

0.
7

N
o

48
0.

24
0.

86
0.

86
N

O
48

0.
29

0.
04

3
48

3.
29

48
8.

29
5

48
0.

2
0.

53
0.

53
N

o
48

3.
37

0.
43

0.
43

N
O

48
3.

38
0.

01
9

42
6.

97
6

43
1.

97
6

5
48

3.
35

0.
27

0.
27

N
o

42
7.

49
3.

26
3.

26
N

O
42

7.
65

0.
16

2
45

8.
88

4
46

5.
88

4
7

42
7.

37
1.

96
1.

96
N

o
46

5.
8

3.
63

91
.7

N
O

46
7.

79
0.

18
1

43
7.

47
6

44
2.

47
6

5
46

0.
72

2.
24

63
.6

3
N

o
43

8.
15

4.
09

4.
5

N
O

43
8.

35
0.

21
44

1.
62

9
44

6.
62

9
5

43
8

2.
52

2.
77

N
o

44
1.

75
0.

41
0.

41
N

O
44

1.
78

0.
01

7
41

6.
14

1
42

1.
14

1
5

44
1.

73
0.

26
0.

26
N

o
41

6.
38

0.
51

0.
51

N
O

41
6.

43
0.

02
4

39
5.

46
7

40
0.

46
7

5
41

6.
33

0.
32

0.
32

N
o

39
5.

99
2.

4
2.

89
N

O
39

6.
12

0.
12

2
42

9.
61

7
42

9.
61

7
0

39
5.

88
1.

48
1.

79
N

o
42

9.
87

0
26

.6
9

YE
S

42
9.

97
0

39
4.

78
4

40
6.

78
4

12
42

9.
8

0
15

.2
8

Ye
s

39
5.

17
0.

43
3.

29
N

O
39

5.
39

0.
01

9
39

3.
91

5
40

8.
91

5
15

39
5.

09
0.

28
2.

04
N

o
39

4.
36

0.
94

4.
2

N
O

39
5.

3
0.

05
39

5.
71

3
40

2.
71

3
7

39
4.

26
0.

58
2.

6
N

o
39

6.
92

7.
22

10
.7

5
N

O
39

7.
4

0.
39

6
39

6.
20

9
40

1.
20

9
5

39
6.

62
4.

38
6.

54
N

o
39

6.
98

3.
62

3.
62

N
O

39
7.

45
0.

19
9

38
9.

99
9

40
4.

99
9

15
39

6.
71

2.
21

2.
21

N
o

39
1.

49
4.

64
85

.4
9

N
O

39
1.

98
0.

21
7

38
8.

18
39

3.
18

5
39

1.
1

2.
93

48
.0

1
N

o
38

9.
55

14
.0

6
14

.0
6

N
O

39
0.

72
0.

83
5

38
6.

2
39

5.
21

4
9.

01
4

38
9.

17
8.

3
8.

3
N

o
38

6.
69

0.
96

17
.5

7
N

O
38

6.
84

0.
05

4
38

7.
3

39
2.

92
5

5.
62

5
38

6.
58

0.
58

10
.5

3
N

o
38

8.
61

2.
82

16
.8

1
N

O
38

9.
17

0.
14

8
44

3.
51

9
44

8.
01

9
4.

5
38

8.
27

1.
73

9.
99

N
o

44
3.

65
0.

52
0.

52
N

O
44

3.
68

0.
02

5
43

2.
4

43
5.

59
9

3.
19

9
44

3.
62

0.
33

0.
33

N
o

43
5.

36
1.

64
1.

64
N

O
43

6.
83

0.
09

6
45

2.
71

3
45

4.
46

5
0

43
5.

23
0.

98
0.

98
N

o
45

2.
71

0
0

N
O

45
2.

71
0

43
2

43
4.

95
9

2.
95

9
45

2.
71

0
0

N
o

43
5.

34
84

.2
6

85
.9

YE
S

43
6.

83
4.

02
42

5.
90

3
43

0.
90

3
5

43
5.

22
46

.9
6

47
.9

2
Ye

s
42

6.
39

0.
78

3.
13

N
O

42
6.

51
0.

03
7

41
2.

18
8

41
2.

18
8

0
42

6.
29

0.
49

1.
98

N
o

41
3.

04
0.

43
4.

2
YE

S
41

3.
58

0.
01

8
41

2.
88

3
41

5.
88

3
3

41
2.

81
0.

28
2.

67
Ye

s
41

3.
1

0.
45

0.
45

N
O

41
3.

6
0.

02
42

8.
43

8
43

3.
43

8
5

41
3.

06
0.

29
0.

29
N

o
42

8.
64

0.
64

0.
64

N
O

42
8.

68
0.

03
41

3.
31

6
41

3.
31

6
0

42
8.

6
0.

4
0.

4
N

o
41

3.
58

0.
64

1.
69

YE
S

41
3.

64
0.

02
8

42
7.

83
43

4.
83

7
41

3.
53

0.
41

1.
07

Ye
s

42
8.

15
1.

73
2.

37
N

O
42

8.
23

0.
08

50
1.

67
7

50
1.

67
7

0
42

8.
09

1.
1

1.
5

N
o

50
4.

41
18

.6
6

18
.6

6
YE

S
50

6.
26

1.
18

44
0.

07
4

44
5.

07
4

5
50

3.
24

10
.2

4
10

.2
4

Ye
s

44
1.

61
0.

54
4.

24
N

O
44

3
0.

02
4

43
4.

43
3

43
9.

43
3

5
44

0.
23

0.
35

0.
35

N
o

43
4.

7
2.

29
2.

29
N

O
43

4.
77

0.
11

5
0

0
0

43
4.

65
1.

42
1.

42
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

43
0.

77
9

43
5.

77
9

5
0

0
0

N
o

43
1.

7
1.

49
52

.1
5

N
O

43
1.

76
0.

06
7

43
3

43
5.

85
5

2.
85

5
43

1.
6

0.
95

41
.8

8
N

o
43

3.
23

1.
03

1.
76

N
O

43
3.

28
0.

04
4

43
8.

97
2

44
4.

45
6

5.
48

4
43

3.
19

0.
67

1.
15

N
o

44
5.

19
0.

49
59

.0
3

YE
S

44
6.

1
0.

02
1

44
6.

57
7

45
1.

57
7

5
44

0.
5

0.
3

36
.2

9
N

o
44

7.
1

5.
78

5.
78

N
O

44
7.

25
0.

37
8

44
0.

95
2

44
5.

95
2

5
44

6.
98

3.
41

3.
41

N
o

44
5.

22
6.

3
6.

3
N

O
44

6.
14

0.
41

5
44

7.
93

2
45

3.
43

2
5.

5
44

1.
37

3.
71

3.
71

N
o

44
8.

25
2.

84
2.

84
N

O
44

8.
34

0.
17

7
44

2.
99

6
45

0.
34

2
7.

34
6

44
8.

18
1.

69
1.

69
N

o
44

6.
21

3.
56

50
.4

8
N

O
46

4.
93

0.
20

4



In
ve

rt
 

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax In

(1
00

-y

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
on

di
tio

n 
Ju

nc
tio

ns
 R

es
ul

ts
 S

um
m

ar
y 

Ta
bl

e
Di

m
en

si
on

s
2-

ye
ar

 
10

-y
ea

r
10

0-
ye

a

43
6.

28
7

43
6.

28
7

0
43

8.
8

10
5.

11
13

1.
77

N
o

43
9.

57
0

71
.6

5
YE

S
43

9.
63

0
43

3.
78

5
44

2.
22

6
8.

44
1

43
9.

5
0

39
.8

8
Ye

s
43

9.
77

3.
6

36
.0

5
N

O
44

2.
59

0.
17

8
43

4.
21

5
44

8.
69

5
14

.4
8

43
8.

52
2.

24
25

.0
5

N
o

44
2.

11
0.

67
34

.0
6

N
O

44
7.

67
0.

03
43

4.
29

7
45

3.
45

5
19

.1
58

43
9.

49
0.

43
22

.8
1

N
o

44
2.

58
0.

29
33

.3
9

N
O

44
8.

61
0.

01
6

43
6.

53
9

44
1.

53
9

5
43

9.
69

0.
17

22
.4

8
N

o
44

4.
33

15
.6

6
15

.6
6

YE
S

45
2.

24
0.

94
3

43
4.

63
9

44
2.

21
8

7.
57

9
44

2.
59

9.
28

9.
28

Ye
s

44
4.

05
0.

62
16

.2
9

YE
S

45
1.

49
0.

02
7

43
4.

42
1

44
5.

12
9

10
.7

08
44

0.
87

0.
41

12
.7

7
N

o
44

3.
21

1.
76

33
.0

9
N

O
44

9.
98

0.
09

43
4.

49
4

44
6.

57
8

12
.0

84
43

9.
99

1.
08

22
.3

3
N

o
44

3.
55

2.
01

31
.3

2
N

O
45

0.
76

0.
09

1
43

4.
77

3
43

8.
89

2
4.

11
9

44
0.

16
1.

29
21

.4
3

N
o

44
4.

03
0.

67
6.

87
YE

S
45

1.
24

0.
02

9
43

4.
91

43
7.

84
1

2.
93

1
44

3.
52

0.
44

4.
56

Ye
s

44
4

0.
73

6.
73

YE
S

45
0.

94
0.

03
2

43
4.

99
9

43
7.

49
9

2.
5

44
6.

96
0.

48
4.

31
Ye

s
44

3.
58

3.
66

7.
64

YE
S

44
7.

23
0.

17
9

0
0

0
44

9.
2

2.
28

4.
03

Ye
s

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
43

7.
98

5
44

1.
98

5
4

0
0

0
N

o
44

3.
21

2.
31

9.
95

YE
S

44
4.

03
0.

10
9

47
2.

58
7

47
8.

08
7

5.
5

44
1.

22
1.

45
5.

36
N

o
47

3.
07

5.
01

15
.6

8
N

O
47

3.
21

0.
34

6
47

2.
78

6
47

8.
28

6
5.

5
47

2.
95

2.
81

8.
81

N
o

47
3.

83
10

.7
1

10
.7

1
N

O
47

4.
19

0.
61

45
2.

04
7

45
7.

04
7

5
47

3.
55

6.
02

6.
02

N
o

45
2.

34
0.

17
1.

08
N

O
45

2.
41

0.
00

8
45

1.
19

45
6.

19
5

45
2.

28
0.

11
0.

67
N

o
45

1.
36

0.
26

1.
32

N
O

45
1.

4
0.

01
2

45
2.

8
45

8.
15

2
5.

35
2

45
1.

32
0.

16
0.

81
N

o
45

3.
07

0.
08

0.
92

N
O

45
3.

13
0.

00
9

45
3.

63
8

45
8.

63
8

5
45

3.
01

0.
05

0.
57

N
o

45
3.

87
0.

77
0.

77
N

O
45

3.
93

0.
03

9
45

3.
18

3
45

8.
18

3
5

45
3.

82
0.

48
0.

48
N

o
45

3.
48

0.
07

0.
84

N
O

45
3.

56
0.

00
3

42
7.

57
2

43
3.

07
2

5.
5

45
3.

42
0.

05
0.

52
N

o
43

5.
25

30
.3

8
30

.3
8

YE
S

43
6.

97
2.

56
49

5.
50

1
49

5.
50

1
0

43
1.

62
16

.7
4

16
.7

4
N

o
49

5.
66

0.
86

0.
94

YE
S

49
5.

78
0.

03
2

42
4.

5
43

2.
56

2
8.

06
2

49
5.

65
0.

53
0.

82
Ye

s
42

7.
76

0
21

2.
93

N
O

42
8.

32
0

45
0.

60
4

45
0.

60
4

0
42

6.
64

0
11

0.
08

N
o

45
0.

79
0

5.
35

YE
S

45
0.

86
0

37
0.

65
4

37
6.

65
4

6
45

0.
74

0
3.

15
Ye

s
37

2.
36

41
.8

7
41

.8
7

N
O

37
3.

17
2.

9
39

1.
6

40
2.

97
11

.3
7

37
1.

91
24

.8
24

.8
N

o
39

3.
59

3.
11

81
.5

2
N

O
40

7.
25

0.
16

5
38

6.
39

39
8.

82
6

12
.4

36
39

2.
98

1.
86

48
.2

8
N

o
38

7.
72

4.
45

85
.5

N
O

39
3.

07
0.

24
8

37
2.

6
37

8.
94

1
6.

34
1

38
7.

38
2.

67
50

.7
N

o
37

5.
08

0.
19

10
2.

09
N

O
37

6.
39

0.
00

8
43

5.
55

44
1.

67
6.

12
37

4.
41

0.
12

60
.5

7
N

o
43

6.
39

8.
83

8.
83

N
O

50
6.

42
0.

65
44

1.
27

44
9.

52
4

8.
25

4
43

6.
15

4.
92

4.
92

N
o

44
1.

82
8.

83
8.

83
N

O
51

4.
47

0.
61

5
43

0.
42

43
7.

45
7

7.
03

7
44

1.
68

4.
98

4.
98

N
o

43
4.

2
8.

89
17

.6
4

N
O

50
3.

92
0.

63
4

43
3.

55
44

1.
86

7
8.

31
7

43
1.

6
5.

01
9.

9
N

o
43

3.
89

1.
23

1.
23

N
O

52
1.

91
0.

06
9

44
7

45
4.

61
6

7.
61

6
43

3.
81

0.
76

0.
76

N
o

44
7.

86
4.

77
4.

77
N

O
51

5.
63

0.
28

44
4.

94
45

2.
22

9
7.

28
9

44
7.

63
2.

75
2.

75
N

o
44

5.
45

1.
4

7.
15

N
O

51
4.

83
0.

08
8

42
7

43
1.

23
3

4.
23

3
44

5.
33

0.
85

4.
19

N
o

42
8.

73
0

22
.5

5
N

O
42

9.
14

0
43

5.
68

44
3.

84
9

8.
16

9
42

8.
4

0
13

.0
1

N
o

43
5.

85
1.

88
1.

88
N

O
50

5.
52

0.
08

8
42

6.
07

44
0.

73
5

14
.6

65
43

5.
81

1.
18

1.
18

N
o

42
6.

91
1.

22
19

.6
2

N
O

50
4.

76
0.

05
6

42
5.

46
43

7.
15

4
11

.6
94

42
6.

7
0.

78
11

.4
7

N
o

42
6.

42
13

.8
5

22
.1

4
N

O
50

5.
42

0.
88

1
45

4.
8

47
0.

70
9

15
.9

09
42

6.
17

8.
23

13
.0

1
N

o
45

5.
16

3.
93

3.
93

N
O

53
5.

01
0.

23
2

41
2.

9
42

1.
03

9
8.

13
9

45
5.

07
2.

24
2.

24
N

o
41

3.
09

0.
98

0.
98

N
O

46
1.

18
0.

04
4

43
9.

21
44

7.
81

9
8.

60
9

41
3.

05
0.

62
0.

62
N

o
43

9.
73

1.
67

5.
45

N
O

52
7.

08
0.

08
3

42
9.

98
44

2.
53

2
12

.5
52

43
9.

6
0.

97
3.

1
N

o
43

0.
31

0.
42

2.
61

N
O

50
4.

97
0.

02
1

40
6.

5
41

4.
63

8.
13

43
0.

24
0.

27
1.

64
N

o
40

7.
02

2.
66

2.
66

N
O

44
2.

47
0.

12
44

6.
8

45
4.

93
8.

13
40

6.
89

1.
59

1.
59

N
o

44
7.

41
1

5.
93

N
O

51
5.

4
0.

06



In
ve

rt
 

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax In

(1
00

-y

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
on

di
tio

n 
Ju

nc
tio

ns
 R

es
ul

ts
 S

um
m

ar
y 

Ta
bl

e
Di

m
en

si
on

s
2-

ye
ar

 
10

-y
ea

r
10

0-
ye

a

42
5.

9
43

4.
02

8
8.

12
8

44
0.

8
1.

41
1.

41
N

o
42

6.
51

4.
19

21
.7

6
N

O
49

1.
87

0.
22

7
43

2.
62

44
3.

87
5

11
.2

55
42

6.
35

2.
54

12
.3

N
o

43
2.

91
0.

32
2.

2
N

O
50

5.
47

0.
01

6
40

5.
99

41
4.

12
8

8.
13

8
43

2.
85

0.
2

1.
38

N
o

40
6.

69
13

.7
8

16
.4

N
O

44
2.

45
0.

79
6

37
3

39
1.

79
7

18
.7

97
40

6.
53

8.
15

9.
71

N
o

37
3.

22
2.

05
2.

05
N

O
37

3.
27

0.
09

8
36

6.
46

39
0.

01
3

23
.5

53
37

3.
18

1.
29

1.
29

N
o

36
7.

75
0.

84
34

.0
8

N
O

36
8.

11
0.

03
4

36
8

38
7.

89
2

19
.8

92
36

7.
56

0.
54

25
.7

6
N

o
36

9.
17

0.
38

33
.9

5
N

O
36

9.
49

0.
01

3
40

5.
62

7
40

5.
62

7
0

36
9

0.
24

25
.6

6
N

o
40

5.
79

0
22

YE
S

40
5.

83
0

38
6.

84
8

38
6.

84
8

0
40

5.
79

0
20

.2
1

Ye
s

38
6.

85
0

0
YE

S
38

6.
85

0
39

7
40

1.
21

4
4.

21
4

38
6.

85
0

0
Ye

s
39

9.
42

0
42

.3
4

N
O

39
9.

55
0

36
1.

25
38

8.
12

8
26

.8
78

39
9.

22
0

28
.0

8
N

o
36

3
0.

23
34

.1
2

N
O

36
3.

65
0.

00
9

41
8.

4
42

6.
73

4
8.

33
4

36
2.

69
0.

15
25

.7
9

N
o

41
9.

14
1.

46
7.

62
N

O
41

9.
43

0.
07

42
7.

13
42

9.
19

8
2.

06
8

41
8.

93
0.

77
4.

08
N

o
42

7.
59

2.
18

2.
18

N
O

42
7.

74
0.

14
2

41
9.

38
42

9.
33

7
9.

95
7

42
7.

45
1.

07
1.

07
N

o
42

0.
19

0
4.

26
N

O
42

0.
56

0
42

3.
3

43
2.

75
6

9.
45

6
41

9.
97

0
2.

42
N

o
42

3.
85

0.
28

4.
29

N
O

42
4.

05
0.

01
3

42
5.

45
43

4.
69

9.
24

42
3.

71
0.

18
2.

44
N

o
42

5.
97

0.
22

4.
04

N
O

42
6.

15
0.

01
42

7.
56

43
6.

55
4

8.
99

4
42

5.
83

0.
14

2.
28

N
o

42
8.

03
0.

31
3.

86
N

O
42

8.
2

0.
01

5
43

0
43

8.
44

4
8.

44
4

42
7.

91
0.

2
2.

17
N

o
43

0.
51

3.
55

3.
55

N
O

43
0.

7
0.

25
1

41
5.

78
42

5.
21

5
9.

43
5

43
0.

38
1.

97
1.

97
N

o
41

6.
22

0.
08

7.
67

N
O

41
6.

36
0.

00
3

41
7.

06
42

5.
18

5
8.

12
5

41
6.

1
0.

05
4.

11
N

o
41

7.
31

0.
26

1.
22

N
O

41
7.

38
0.

01
2

43
4

43
7.

08
6

3.
08

6
41

7.
27

0.
17

0.
78

N
o

43
7.

19
6.

75
23

.3
7

YE
S

43
9.

49
0.

42
8

41
5.

53
42

3.
83

7
8.

30
7

43
6.

03
3.

96
13

.2
4

N
o

41
5.

97
5.

14
6.

32
N

O
41

6.
12

0.
31

3
40

4.
32

7
40

4.
32

7
0

41
5.

85
2.

64
3.

4
N

o
40

4.
53

0
6.

32
YE

S
40

4.
58

0
38

1.
44

38
1.

44
0

40
4.

49
0

3.
4

Ye
s

38
1.

81
0

7.
89

YE
S

38
1.

89
0

42
3.

62
42

5.
75

2.
13

38
1.

73
0

4.
25

Ye
s

42
3.

74
0.

08
0.

08
N

O
42

3.
77

0.
00

4
42

3.
07

42
5.

20
2

2.
13

2
42

3.
72

0.
05

0.
05

N
o

42
3.

13
0

0.
08

N
O

42
3.

15
0

42
3.

84
42

5.
93

3
2.

09
3

42
3.

12
0

0.
05

N
o

42
4.

18
0.

9
0.

9
N

O
42

4.
25

0.
04

42
7.

47
43

5.
59

8
8.

12
8

42
4.

12
0.

58
0.

58
N

o
43

6.
6

1.
41

25
.1

6
YE

S
43

7.
05

0.
06

3
42

7.
06

43
5.

53
2

8.
47

2
43

5.
9

0.
89

21
.9

3
Ye

s
43

4.
95

0.
91

0.
91

N
O

43
5.

66
0.

04
42

2.
78

6
42

2.
78

6
0

43
4.

38
0.

6
0.

6
N

o
42

4.
07

0
22

YE
S

42
4.

43
0

41
9.

98
2

41
9.

98
2

0
42

4.
03

0
20

.2
1

Ye
s

42
0

0
0.

47
YE

S
42

0
0

44
8.

39
8

44
8.

66
8

0
41

9.
99

0
0.

3
Ye

s
44

8.
4

0
0

N
O

44
8.

4
0

41
7

42
5.

26
4

8.
26

4
44

8.
4

0
0

N
o

41
7.

06
0.

24
0.

24
N

O
41

7.
08

0.
01

2
37

8.
81

8
37

8.
81

8
0

41
7.

05
0.

16
0.

16
N

o
37

8.
82

0
0

YE
S

37
8.

82
0

45
4.

41
46

1.
53

1
7.

12
1

37
8.

82
0

0
Ye

s
45

9.
77

1.
71

1.
71

N
O

46
1.

98
0.

09
7

45
9.

72
46

5.
83

9
6.

11
9

45
4.

58
0.

99
0.

99
N

o
48

2.
02

4.
43

4.
65

YE
S

47
7.

01
0.

24
1

45
8.

88
7

46
5.

47
6

6.
58

9
46

0.
13

2.
6

2.
6

N
o

48
0.

85
3.

32
8.

93
YE

S
47

5.
82

0.
20

1
46

2.
2

46
9.

35
7.

15
45

9.
58

1.
92

4.
51

N
o

46
8.

41
5.

32
5.

32
N

O
47

0.
3

0.
31

1
46

1.
25

46
9.

36
6

8.
11

6
46

2.
63

3.
07

3.
07

N
o

46
7.

89
3.

01
8.

31
N

O
47

0.
09

0.
17

6
45

4.
3

46
1.

80
7

7.
50

7
46

1.
72

1.
74

4.
81

N
o

46
3.

32
0.

39
2.

66
YE

S
46

5.
26

0.
01

8
45

4
46

1.
57

6
7.

57
6

45
7.

83
0.

22
0.

89
N

o
46

3.
24

6.
95

19
.4

3
YE

S
46

5.
2

0.
41

3
45

5.
28

5
46

6.
09

10
.8

05
45

7.
78

3.
92

11
.6

3
N

o
46

5.
03

0
16

.9
6

N
O

46
7.

75
0

45
1.

00
7

45
1.

00
7

0
45

8.
23

0
9.

1
N

o
45

1.
01

0
0

YE
S

45
1.

01
0

45
5.

3
46

2.
80

4
7.

50
4

45
1.

01
0

0
Ye

s
46

1.
91

5.
92

5.
92

N
O

46
4.

82
0.

46
2

45
0

46
2.

57
7

12
.5

77
45

5.
74

3.
29

3.
29

N
o

46
1.

69
0

15
.3

3
N

O
46

3.
65

0



In
ve

rt
 

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax In

(1
00

-y

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
on

di
tio

n 
Ju

nc
tio

ns
 R

es
ul

ts
 S

um
m

ar
y 

Ta
bl

e
Di

m
en

si
on

s
2-

ye
ar

 
10

-y
ea

r
10

0-
ye

a

45
5.

84
46

2.
96

8
7.

12
8

45
6.

52
1.

11
1.

11
N

o
45

7.
15

2.
98

2.
98

N
O

46
8.

01
0.

16
7

45
1.

63
45

9.
76

1
8.

13
1

45
6.

15
1.

73
1.

73
N

o
45

7.
05

0.
87

1.
98

N
O

46
0.

87
0.

04
44

6.
59

45
4.

72
4

8.
13

4
45

1.
75

0.
53

0.
53

N
o

45
1.

14
3.

77
4.

74
N

O
45

6.
49

0.
19

44
7.

52
45

5.
64

7
8.

12
7

44
6.

92
2.

24
2.

85
N

o
45

1.
12

1.
05

1.
37

N
O

45
6.

44
0.

05
4

44
5.

15
45

4.
27

9
9.

12
9

44
7.

72
0.

62
0.

62
N

o
45

1.
04

1.
5

1.
5

N
O

45
6.

18
0.

13
4

43
3.

08
6

43
6.

08
6

3
44

5.
3

0.
7

0.
7

N
o

43
6.

58
3.

37
38

.2
9

YE
S

43
6.

76
0.

20
9

45
5.

02
46

3.
14

9
8.

12
9

43
6.

44
1.

89
22

.3
3

Ye
s

45
7.

17
0

4.
87

N
O

46
7.

72
0

45
4.

84
46

2.
95

6
8.

11
6

45
5.

42
0

2.
83

N
o

46
1.

92
0

8
N

O
46

4.
65

0
45

1.
2

46
1.

32
3

10
.1

23
45

5.
23

0
4.

4
N

o
46

0.
11

2.
26

2.
26

N
O

46
2.

25
0.

10
6

44
8.

14
5

46
1.

11
5

12
.9

7
45

2.
92

1.
37

1.
37

N
o

45
9.

72
0

14
.9

N
O

46
1.

9
0

44
2.

29
5

45
4.

85
2

12
.5

57
45

2.
54

0
13

.2
5

N
o

45
1.

03
0

27
.3

1
N

O
45

6.
12

0
42

6.
48

43
4.

60
8

8.
12

8
44

5.
15

0
22

.6
5

N
o

43
4.

94
0

20
.4

6
YE

S
43

5.
62

0
45

0.
38

3
46

3.
00

9
12

.6
26

43
4.

38
0

20
.2

4
N

o
46

1.
84

0
11

.4
N

O
46

3.
72

0
45

3.
29

46
1.

41
1

8.
12

1
45

4.
87

0
10

.5
7

N
o

45
9.

8
0

1.
95

N
O

46
2.

01
0

44
8.

47
9

46
1.

42
9

12
.9

5
45

3.
48

0
0.

99
N

o
46

0.
1

0
14

.9
3

N
O

46
2.

19
0

44
5.

94
5

45
9.

33
1

13
.3

86
45

2.
92

0
12

.9
9

N
o

45
6.

93
0

19
.4

2
N

O
46

0.
3

0
40

7.
16

1
40

7.
71

6
0

44
9.

94
0

15
.6

9
N

o
40

7.
21

0
3.

35
N

O
40

7.
23

0
44

7.
26

45
5.

38
9

8.
12

9
40

7.
19

0
1.

86
N

o
45

1.
11

8.
26

8.
26

N
O

45
6.

58
0.

44
45

4.
91

4
45

8.
04

8
3.

13
4

44
7.

6
4.

87
4.

87
N

o
45

4.
91

0
0

N
O

45
4.

91
0

45
2.

05
45

5.
67

3.
62

45
4.

91
0

0
N

o
45

2.
05

0
0

N
O

45
2.

05
0

45
0.

87
45

2.
90

6
2.

03
6

45
2.

05
0

0
N

o
45

0.
87

0
0

N
O

45
0.

87
0

44
6.

34
2

44
9.

96
2

3.
62

45
0.

87
0

0
N

o
44

6.
34

0
0

N
O

44
6.

34
0

44
3.

95
4

44
7.

57
4

3.
62

44
6.

34
0

0
N

o
44

3.
95

0
0

N
O

44
3.

95
0

44
0.

49
8

44
4.

11
8

3.
62

44
3.

95
0

0
N

o
44

0.
5

0
0

N
O

44
0.

5
0

43
7.

81
44

1.
43

3.
62

44
0.

5
0

0
N

o
43

7.
81

0
0

N
O

43
7.

81
0

43
4.

69
1

43
8.

31
1

3.
62

43
7.

81
0

0
N

o
43

4.
69

0
0

N
O

43
4.

69
0

43
3.

39
43

7.
01

3.
62

43
4.

69
0

0
N

o
43

3.
39

0
0

N
O

43
3.

39
0

45
5.

32
3

45
5.

32
3

0
43

3.
39

0
0

N
o

45
7.

48
0

4.
51

YE
S

45
7.

5
0

42
4.

88
5

42
7.

01
5

2.
13

45
7.

47
0

2.
7

Ye
s

42
5.

19
0

2.
15

N
O

42
5.

29
0

42
5.

51
5

42
7.

65
7

2.
14

2
42

5.
1

0
1.

05
N

o
42

6.
05

0
2.

16
N

O
42

6.
21

0
44

8.
89

9
46

0.
17

9
11

.2
8

42
5.

9
0

1.
06

N
o

45
7.

08
0

6.
34

N
O

46
0.

9
0

39
9.

53
5

40
5.

16
5

5.
63

44
9.

96
0

3.
32

N
o

39
9.

94
0

7.
89

N
O

40
0.

08
0

42
3.

75
43

0.
33

9
6.

58
9

39
9.

83
0

4.
25

N
o

42
3.

92
0.

48
0.

48
N

O
42

3.
96

0.
02

4
42

3.
5

42
7.

79
2

4.
29

2
42

3.
89

0.
3

0.
3

N
o

42
5.

99
2.

54
22

N
O

43
1.

39
0.

10
8

45
8.

12
1

46
0.

24
1

2.
12

42
5.

66
1.

53
20

.2
1

N
o

45
8.

12
0

0
N

O
45

8.
12

0
42

3.
00

4
42

5.
13

4
2.

13
45

8.
12

0
0

N
o

42
3.

2
0

0.
89

N
O

42
3.

25
0

37
2.

02
5

37
2.

02
5

0
42

3.
17

0
0.

57
N

o
37

5.
39

5.
77

33
.9

1
YE

S
37

7.
56

0.
32

6
39

2.
17

9
39

2.
17

9
0

37
4.

64
2.

17
25

.6
1

Ye
s

39
5.

03
5.

84
33

.9
8

YE
S

39
7.

07
0.

48
5

42
2.

52
43

3.
73

5
11

.2
15

39
4.

49
1.

78
24

.5
9

Ye
s

42
5.

94
0

20
3.

71
N

O
42

6.
72

0
0

0
0

42
4.

84
0

10
3.

69
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

37
8.

24
7

37
8.

24
7

0
0

0
0

N
o

37
8.

91
0

30
.1

7
YE

S
37

9.
06

0
37

3.
58

2
37

3.
58

2
0

37
8.

85
0

23
.1

2
Ye

s
37

5.
4

0
37

.1
8

YE
S

37
7.

56
0

37
6.

55
9

37
6.

55
9

0
37

4.
66

0
25

.9
1

Ye
s

37
7.

07
0

36
.7

9
YE

S
37

7.
57

0
45

6.
75

9
45

6.
75

9
0

37
7

0
25

.8
2

Ye
s

46
3.

3
2.

27
2.

27
YE

S
46

5.
3

0.
27

8



In
ve

rt
 

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax In

(1
00

-y

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
on

di
tio

n 
Ju

nc
tio

ns
 R

es
ul

ts
 S

um
m

ar
y 

Ta
bl

e
Di

m
en

si
on

s
2-

ye
ar

 
10

-y
ea

r
10

0-
ye

a

32
2.

30
4

32
2.

30
4

0
34

5.
87

0.
9

2.
8

N
o

32
2.

46
0.

15
9.

67
YE

S
32

2.
55

0.
00

4
42

5.
49

2
42

7.
61

2
2.

12
32

2.
39

0.
09

2.
81

Ye
s

42
5.

78
2.

37
2.

37
N

O
42

5.
94

0.
49

4
39

0.
33

39
2.

45
3

2.
12

3
42

5.
65

0.
7

0.
7

N
o

39
0.

71
2.

84
5.

21
N

O
39

0.
93

0.
68

9
43

6.
1

43
6.

1
0

39
0.

54
0.

82
1.

51
N

o
43

9.
44

0
6.

14
YE

S
43

9.
45

0
33

7.
82

8
33

7.
82

8
0

43
9.

43
0

3.
72

Ye
s

33
7.

96
0.

46
6.

18
YE

S
33

8.
04

0.
01

4
43

6.
34

8
43

8.
47

8
2.

13
33

7.
9

0.
24

2.
01

Ye
s

43
6.

5
0.

63
0.

63
N

O
43

6.
57

0.
08

3
40

2.
12

40
4.

42
3

2.
30

3
43

6.
43

0.
19

0.
19

N
o

40
2.

37
1.

34
2.

11
N

O
40

2.
49

0.
12

9
37

9.
62

38
1.

75
2

2.
13

2
40

2.
26

0.
42

0.
65

N
o

37
9.

95
0.

96
4.

14
N

O
38

0.
09

0.
08

2
34

0.
22

5
34

0.
22

5
0

37
9.

81
0.

3
1.

29
N

o
34

0.
46

0.
76

4.
03

YE
S

34
0.

54
0.

02
6

36
7.

81
36

9.
93

5
2.

12
5

34
0.

38
0.

35
1.

32
Ye

s
36

8.
27

3.
02

8.
44

N
O

36
8.

5
0.

31
6

39
0.

53
2

39
0.

53
2

0
36

8.
08

0.
93

2.
53

N
o

39
0.

53
0

0
N

O
39

0.
53

0
35

1.
84

2
35

1.
84

2
0

39
0.

53
0

0
N

o
35

1.
84

0
0

N
O

35
1.

84
0

39
5.

13
9

39
5.

13
9

0
35

1.
84

0
0

N
o

39
5.

14
0

0
YE

S
39

5.
14

0
41

1.
31

8
41

1.
31

8
0

39
5.

14
0

0
Ye

s
41

1.
32

0
0

YE
S

41
1.

32
0

42
6.

06
6

42
6.

06
6

0
41

1.
32

0
0

Ye
s

42
7.

17
0

27
.5

YE
S

42
7.

33
0

42
0.

91
4

42
0.

91
4

0
42

7.
02

0
15

.3
Ye

s
42

1.
07

0.
19

0.
19

YE
S

42
1.

11
0.

00
8

42
6.

15
42

6.
15

0
42

1.
02

0.
07

0.
07

Ye
s

42
6.

44
1.

08
1.

08
YE

S
42

6.
53

0.
09

8
44

0
44

7.
67

8
7.

67
8

42
6.

33
0.

34
0.

34
Ye

s
44

0.
82

6.
29

14
.4

4
N

O
44

1.
16

0.
37

2
39

2.
52

40
2.

84
10

.3
2

44
0.

6
3.

57
8.

16
N

o
40

0.
04

2.
11

61
.4

2
N

O
39

9.
95

0.
09

1
45

1.
59

45
9.

71
6

8.
12

6
39

4.
03

1.
34

33
.7

8
N

o
45

2.
42

6.
22

6.
22

N
O

45
2.

83
0.

37
2

39
3.

58
9

40
1.

93
5

8.
34

6
45

2.
19

3.
48

3.
48

N
o

40
8.

92
19

.6
6

59
.3

YE
S

41
0.

33
1.

58
39

1.
75

40
2.

43
6

10
.6

86
39

5.
07

11
.1

1
32

.6
6

N
o

39
4.

27
5.

49
71

.0
3

N
O

39
5.

21
0.

33
4

45
1.

26
45

9.
38

6
8.

12
6

39
3.

51
3.

23
39

.2
2

N
o

45
1.

89
2.

07
8.

28
N

O
45

2.
12

0.
13

2
39

5.
14

40
2.

37
6

7.
23

6
45

1.
73

1.
2

4.
67

N
o

41
9.

99
26

.9
1

39
.8

YE
S

42
4.

54
2.

15
39

6.
12

4
40

1.
75

4
5.

63
39

6.
27

15
.3

8
22

.5
2

N
o

39
6.

12
0

0
N

O
39

6.
12

0
0

0
0

39
6.

12
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
46

5.
98

2
46

5.
98

2
0

0
0

0
N

o
46

6.
95

0
1.

61
YE

S
46

6.
96

0
41

1.
08

2
42

0.
58

2
9.

5
46

6.
94

0
0.

97
Ye

s
41

7.
58

11
.1

5
25

.0
7

N
O

42
1.

66
0.

61
6

37
8.

15
37

8.
15

0
41

2.
01

6.
71

18
.5

5
N

o
37

8.
36

0
27

.0
7

YE
S

37
8.

42
0

44
0.

79
9

44
0.

79
9

0
37

8.
33

0
20

.9
9

Ye
s

44
0.

8
0

0
YE

S
44

0.
8

0
0

0
0

44
0.

8
0

0
Ye

s
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
37

8.
83

6
37

8.
83

6
0

0
0

0
N

o
37

8.
84

0
0

YE
S

37
8.

84
0

44
7.

83
3

44
7.

83
3

0
37

8.
84

0
0

Ye
s

44
9.

44
0

4.
92

YE
S

44
9.

45
0

34
2.

94
1

34
3.

50
3

0
44

9.
4

0
3.

28
Ye

s
34

2.
94

0
0

N
O

34
2.

94
0

29
2.

76
7

29
8.

54
5

5.
77

8
34

2.
94

0
0

N
o

29
4.

17
6.

57
6.

57
N

O
29

8.
94

0.
36

5
29

7.
74

7
30

3.
53

5
5.

78
8

29
3.

66
3.

81
3.

81
N

o
29

8.
54

37
.0

9
37

.0
9

N
O

30
0.

74
2.

27
29

9.
74

7
30

5.
53

5.
78

3
29

8.
34

21
.4

1
21

.4
1

N
o

30
0.

07
2.

16
2.

16
N

O
30

0.
15

0.
10

2
29

4.
58

7
30

0.
36

5
5.

77
8

29
9.

99
1.

25
1.

25
N

o
29

5.
23

0.
19

15
.3

3
N

O
29

7.
21

0.
00

7
29

8.
60

7
30

4.
38

7
5.

78
29

5.
07

0.
12

8.
94

N
o

29
9.

16
13

15
.1

5
N

O
29

9.
34

0.
74

6
29

2.
46

7
29

5.
24

9
2.

78
2

29
9.

03
7.

6
8.

84
N

o
29

2.
88

2.
78

2.
91

N
O

29
5.

98
0.

12
6



In
ve

rt
 

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax In

(1
00

-y

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
on

di
tio

n 
Ju

nc
tio

ns
 R

es
ul

ts
 S

um
m

ar
y 

Ta
bl

e
Di

m
en

si
on

s
2-

ye
ar

 
10

-y
ea

r
10

0-
ye

a

44
3.

66
9

44
3.

66
9

0
29

3.
62

0.
07

25
.2

5
N

o
44

4.
29

0
14

.1
5

YE
S

44
4.

37
0

43
1.

82
43

9.
22

6
7.

40
6

44
4.

22
0

7.
82

Ye
s

43
2.

33
1.

52
6.

01
N

O
43

2.
47

0.
07

9
33

6.
08

35
7.

69
8

21
.6

18
43

2.
21

0.
94

3.
57

N
o

33
7.

34
0

49
.1

N
O

33
7.

69
0

34
8.

62
35

5.
95

5
7.

33
5

33
7.

07
0

31
.2

4
N

o
34

9.
28

4.
46

35
.6

6
N

O
34

9.
48

0.
28

41
2.

22
42

0.
40

4
8.

18
4

34
9.

13
2.

53
22

.1
4

N
o

41
2.

55
0.

96
0.

96
N

O
41

2.
65

0.
04

4
40

7.
92

8
40

7.
92

8
0

41
2.

47
0.

6
0.

6
N

o
40

8
0

5.
98

YE
S

40
8.

02
0

34
2.

31
7

34
2.

31
7

0
40

7.
98

0
3.

55
Ye

s
34

4.
87

0.
71

23
.1

9
YE

S
34

5.
22

0.
03

36
0.

34
1

36
0.

34
1

0
34

4.
35

0.
46

17
.2

Ye
s

36
2.

48
0.

75
21

.4
1

YE
S

36
2.

49
0.

03
1

37
4.

54
4

37
4.

54
4

0
36

1.
62

0.
46

6.
19

Ye
s

37
7.

36
19

.6
7

23
.3

5
YE

S
37

8.
82

1.
19

43
2.

82
44

0.
41

2
7.

59
2

37
6.

41
11

.3
2

13
.1

2
Ye

s
43

3.
27

4.
51

4.
51

N
O

43
3.

39
0.

22
1

38
7.

52
5

38
7.

52
5

0
43

3.
16

2.
64

2.
64

N
o

38
9.

06
12

.9
9

14
.7

7
YE

S
38

9.
81

0.
93

5
0

0
0

38
8.

62
7.

59
8.

65
Ye

s
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

41
1.

92
41

8.
78

9
6.

86
9

0
0

0
N

o
41

2.
35

1.
18

2.
13

N
O

41
2.

46
0.

06
38

3.
68

5
38

3.
68

5
0

41
2.

26
0.

72
1.

32
N

o
38

3.
79

0
6.

46
YE

S
38

3.
81

0
37

3.
47

7
37

3.
47

7
0

38
3.

77
0

4.
01

Ye
s

37
3.

67
0

15
.4

8
YE

S
37

3.
7

0
35

5.
51

35
5.

51
0

37
3.

65
0

10
.0

3
Ye

s
35

6.
7

0
11

.9
1

YE
S

35
9.

66
0

40
6.

45
9

40
6.

45
9

0
35

5.
75

0
5.

85
Ye

s
40

6.
49

0
2.

11
YE

S
40

6.
51

0
33

7.
12

35
7.

48
4

20
.3

64
40

6.
48

0
1.

3
Ye

s
33

8.
24

0
49

.0
3

N
O

33
8.

57
0

35
0.

45
35

6.
52

6.
07

33
7.

99
0

31
.2

2
N

o
35

3.
45

31
.3

3
31

.3
3

N
O

35
6.

78
1.

33
34

5.
99

5
34

5.
99

5
0

35
1.

54
19

.6
19

.6
N

o
34

6.
59

0
23

.1
2

YE
S

34
6.

63
0

36
5.

02
7

36
5.

02
7

0
34

6.
52

0
17

.1
6

Ye
s

36
7.

16
14

.4
18

.3
3

YE
S

36
7.

78
0.

58
5

36
0.

44
8

36
0.

44
8

0
36

6.
53

8.
94

11
.1

9
Ye

s
36

2.
47

0
21

.9
5

YE
S

36
2.

5
0

35
4.

15
5

35
4.

15
5

0
36

1.
62

0
6.

25
Ye

s
35

7.
91

26
.7

2
38

.2
6

YE
S

36
0.

6
1.

33
35

3.
95

4
35

3.
95

4
0

35
6.

67
15

.5
3

22
.2

4
Ye

s
35

7.
36

0
21

.2
6

YE
S

35
9.

99
0

35
0.

94
9

35
0.

94
9

0
35

4.
46

0
10

.8
9

Ye
s

35
7.

36
2.

25
21

.5
7

YE
S

35
9.

99
0.

09
3

35
0.

10
5

35
0.

10
5

0
35

4.
15

1.
48

11
.1

3
Ye

s
35

6.
7

0
38

.6
8

YE
S

35
9.

65
0

34
8.

91
34

8.
91

0
35

3.
64

0
13

.0
7

Ye
s

35
6.

7
12

.5
8

24
.2

YE
S

35
9.

65
0.

50
3

38
8.

10
4

39
0.

23
4

2.
13

35
3.

63
7.

81
17

.2
7

Ye
s

38
8.

33
0

5.
7

N
O

38
8.

39
0

34
9.

13
4

34
9.

13
4

0
38

8.
29

0
3.

34
N

o
35

6.
7

0
49

.5
1

YE
S

35
9.

65
0

34
8.

96
7

34
8.

96
7

0
35

3.
63

0
17

.7
3

Ye
s

35
0.

43
0

78
.0

6
YE

S
35

1.
9

0
37

2.
14

37
8.

53
9

6.
39

9
34

9.
47

0
32

.4
4

Ye
s

37
3.

28
4.

14
29

.2
7

N
O

37
9.

38
0.

32
8

37
3.

61
37

8.
66

5.
05

37
2.

92
2.

32
16

.2
4

N
o

37
5.

36
25

.1
3

25
.1

3
N

O
37

9.
58

1.
86

41
2.

19
42

6.
46

2
14

.2
72

37
4.

48
13

.9
13

.9
N

o
41

3.
4

0
24

.8
6

N
O

41
7.

32
0

41
4.

5
42

1.
10

6
6.

60
6

41
3.

05
0

13
.8

5
N

o
41

6.
04

24
.8

6
24

.8
6

N
O

42
3.

6
1.

87
40

8.
75

1
40

8.
75

1
0

41
5.

54
13

.8
2

13
.8

2
N

o
40

8.
83

0
24

.8
3

YE
S

40
8.

86
0

33
6.

02
34

1.
74

2
5.

72
2

40
8.

81
0

13
.8

5
Ye

s
33

6.
15

0.
42

0.
42

N
O

33
6.

18
0.

01
9

30
9.

39
1

30
9.

39
1

0
33

6.
12

0.
25

0.
25

N
o

30
9.

4
0

0.
41

YE
S

30
9.

4
0

32
9.

40
2

32
9.

40
2

0
30

9.
4

0
0.

25
Ye

s
32

9.
96

0
49

.1
8

YE
S

33
0.

99
0

38
0.

18
2

38
0.

18
2

0
32

9.
82

0
31

.3
Ye

s
38

0.
7

0
12

4.
98

YE
S

38
0.

7
0

30
3.

18
5

30
3.

18
5

0
38

0.
7

0
12

4.
98

Ye
s

31
2.

19
0

77
8.

06
YE

S
31

3.
03

0
0

0
0

31
1.

51
0

51
4.

92
Ye

s
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
43

9.
75

4
44

2.
52

4
0.

52
4

0
0

0
N

o
44

2.
39

0
16

.8
1

N
O

44
2.

48
0

39
9.

04
40

5.
42

1
6.

38
1

44
2.

31
0

8.
6

N
o

40
4.

13
0

11
0.

25
N

O
40

4.
95

0



In
ve

rt
 

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax In

(1
00

-y

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
on

di
tio

n 
Ju

nc
tio

ns
 R

es
ul

ts
 S

um
m

ar
y 

Ta
bl

e
Di

m
en

si
on

s
2-

ye
ar

 
10

-y
ea

r
10

0-
ye

a

28
4.

72
28

7.
16

2
0

28
8.

88
3.

81
3.

81
N

o
28

4.
72

0
0

N
O

28
4.

72
0

29
0.

03
1

29
0.

3
0

28
4.

72
0

0
N

o
29

0.
06

2.
99

2.
99

N
O

29
0.

07
0.

18
1

28
4.

02
3

28
9.

02
3

5
29

0.
05

1.
69

1.
69

N
o

28
4.

02
0

0
N

O
28

4.
02

0
28

6.
25

9
29

1.
25

9
5

28
4.

02
0

0
N

o
28

6.
26

0
0

N
O

28
6.

26
0

39
0.

63
6

39
0.

63
6

0
28

6.
26

0
0

N
o

39
0.

64
0

0
YE

S
39

0.
64

0
45

6.
90

1
45

6.
90

1
0

39
0.

64
0

0
Ye

s
45

6.
95

0
4.

62
YE

S
45

6.
95

0
40

7.
80

5
41

2.
80

5
5

45
6.

95
0

4.
58

Ye
s

40
9.

51
0

31
.1

N
O

42
4.

12
0

43
2.

83
43

4.
83

2
40

8.
74

0
17

.8
1

N
o

43
2.

89
0

8.
77

N
O

43
2.

91
0

43
2

43
9.

13
3

7.
13

3
43

2.
87

0
5.

07
N

o
43

2
0

0
N

O
43

2
0

42
7.

5
43

8.
76

7
11

.2
67

43
2

0
0

N
o

42
8.

28
0

7.
69

N
O

42
8.

51
0

44
4.

59
6

45
0.

09
6

5.
5

42
8.

1
0

4.
53

N
o

44
6.

69
51

.8
9

53
.8

3
N

O
47

7.
68

3.
62

27
9.

40
6

28
4.

40
6

5
44

5.
67

28
.5

4
29

.5
8

N
o

27
9.

41
0

0
N

O
27

9.
41

0
27

8.
84

1
28

9.
84

1
11

27
9.

41
0

0
N

o
27

8.
84

0
0

N
O

27
8.

84
0

27
7.

33
7

28
8.

33
7

11
27

8.
84

0
0

N
o

27
7.

34
0

0
N

O
27

7.
34

0
27

6.
15

9
28

1.
15

9
5

27
7.

34
0

0
N

o
27

6.
35

0
0.

96
N

O
27

6.
4

0
39

6.
06

8
39

6.
06

8
0

27
6.

3
0

0.
54

N
o

39
8.

6
29

.1
5

37
.2

6
YE

S
39

9.
78

1.
71

27
2.

26
9

27
7.

26
9

5
39

7.
83

15
.9

20
.7

5
Ye

s
27

4.
64

0
5.

16
N

O
27

6.
28

0
27

9.
66

5
28

4.
66

5
5

27
4.

23
0

6.
17

N
o

27
9.

85
0

0.
96

N
O

27
9.

91
0

28
2.

60
7

28
7.

60
7

5
27

9.
81

0
0.

54
N

o
28

2.
61

0
0

N
O

28
2.

61
0

27
3.

80
9

27
8.

30
9

4.
5

28
2.

61
0

0
N

o
27

4.
55

0
1.

76
N

O
27

8.
9

0
28

5
28

7
2

27
4.

06
0

0.
61

N
o

28
5.

81
0

7.
61

N
O

28
6.

09
0

28
4.

5
28

8.
1

3.
6

28
5.

6
0

4.
34

N
o

28
5.

31
0

7.
61

N
O

28
5.

6
0

28
3.

96
28

8.
96

5
28

5.
1

0
4.

34
N

o
28

4.
59

0
7.

61
N

O
28

5.
05

0
28

2.
5

28
8.

17
5.

67
28

4.
43

0
4.

33
N

o
28

3.
97

6.
8

14
.1

2
N

O
28

4.
84

0.
37

5
ll>

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

28
3.

54
3.

78
7.

94
N

o
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

#V
AL

U
E!

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
42

9.
30

7
42

9.
30

7
0

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
Ye

s
42

9.
39

0
0.

35
YE

S
42

9.
41

0
33

5.
95

6
33

5.
95

6
0

42
9.

37
0

0.
21

Ye
s

33
5.

96
0

0
YE

S
33

5.
96

0
30

2.
98

1
30

7.
48

1
4.

5
33

5.
96

0
0

Ye
s

30
2.

98
0

0
N

O
30

2.
98

0
30

0.
13

2
30

9.
63

2
9.

5
30

2.
98

0
0

N
o

30
0.

13
0

0
N

O
30

0.
13

0
29

7.
61

3
30

2.
61

3
5

30
0.

13
0

0
N

o
29

7.
61

0
0

N
O

29
7.

61
0

28
9.

10
3

29
4.

10
3

5
29

7.
61

0
0

N
o

28
9.

1
0

0
N

O
28

9.
1

0
30

7.
26

6
30

7.
39

2
0

28
9.

1
0

0
N

o
30

7.
27

0
0

N
O

30
7.

27
0

28
3.

74
2

28
3.

74
2

0
30

7.
27

0
0

N
o

28
3.

74
0

0
N

O
28

4.
83

0
27

9.
14

6
28

2.
11

3
0

28
3.

74
0

0
N

o
28

0.
18

0
98

.2
3

N
O

28
1.

71
0

ll>
34

1.
7

<N
ul

l>
27

9.
96

0
76

.7
N

o
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

#V
AL

U
E!

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
30

8.
57

31
4.

57
6

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
Ye

s
30

9.
85

0
19

.7
8

N
O

31
0.

26
0

44
3.

96
1

44
3.

96
1

0
30

9.
48

0
10

.2
9

N
o

44
4.

14
0

8.
75

YE
S

44
4.

2
0

42
3.

85
9

42
3.

85
9

0
44

4.
09

0
4.

87
Ye

s
42

3.
9

0
2.

82
YE

S
42

3.
92

0
42

2.
08

42
2.

08
0

42
3.

89
0

1.
58

Ye
s

42
2.

46
0

37
.2

6
YE

S
42

2.
51

0
40

8.
71

3
41

7.
12

2
8.

40
9

42
2.

35
0

21
Ye

s
41

2.
3

0
61

.7
1

N
O

41
3.

65
0

32
9.

57
4

33
0.

63
9

0
41

1.
13

0
33

.6
N

o
33

3.
82

0
27

8.
55

YE
S

33
5.

13
0

33
8

34
0.

91
8

2.
91

8
33

3.
57

0
16

1.
4

Ye
s

33
9.

71
0

60
.3

3
N

O
33

9.
99

0
39

1.
51

1
39

6.
01

1
4.

5
33

9.
46

0
33

.3
N

o
39

2.
13

0
4.

51
N

O
39

2.
35

0
39

9.
37

4
39

9.
37

4
0

39
1.

97
0

2.
54

N
o

39
9.

37
0

0
N

O
39

9.
37

0



In
ve

rt
 

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax In

(1
00

-y

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
on

di
tio

n 
Ju

nc
tio

ns
 R

es
ul

ts
 S

um
m

ar
y 

Ta
bl

e
Di

m
en

si
on

s
2-

ye
ar

 
10

-y
ea

r
10

0-
ye

a

40
2.

29
4

40
2.

29
4

0
0

0
0

N
o

40
2.

34
0

1.
06

YE
S

40
2.

35
0

37
6

37
8.

88
9

2.
88

9
40

2.
33

0
0.

64
Ye

s
37

9.
99

0
33

9.
53

YE
S

38
0.

68
0

37
4.

21
4

37
5.

21
4

1
37

9.
12

0
19

4.
65

Ye
s

37
7.

57
0

77
.4

4
YE

S
37

8.
12

0
37

0.
86

8
37

0.
89

2
0

37
6.

45
0

3.
27

Ye
s

37
5.

64
0

39
9.

03
YE

S
37

6.
26

0
36

7.
07

6
36

7.
07

6
0

37
4.

6
0

22
1.

45
Ye

s
37

2.
24

0
46

4.
01

YE
S

37
2.

79
0

35
8.

08
2

35
8.

08
2

0
37

1.
12

0
28

5.
64

Ye
s

36
3.

39
0

44
0.

04
YE

S
36

4.
16

0
39

1.
49

2
39

4.
49

2
3

36
1.

92
0

28
5.

15
Ye

s
39

3.
34

0
10

.2
4

N
O

39
3.

51
0

38
6

39
0.

02
2

4.
02

2
39

2.
94

0
3.

05
N

o
39

3.
69

0
87

.0
2

YE
S

39
5.

57
0

42
8.

66
43

2.
66

4
38

9.
54

0
44

.2
6

N
o

42
8.

66
0

0
N

O
42

8.
66

0
43

1.
29

6
43

1.
29

6
0

42
8.

66
0

0
N

o
43

1.
34

0
1.

93
YE

S
43

1.
37

0
41

9.
92

7
41

9.
92

7
0

43
1.

33
0

1.
11

Ye
s

42
1.

04
0

41
.4

7
YE

S
42

1.
36

0
0

0
0

42
0.

77
0

21
.1

8
Ye

s
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
37

3.
79

1
37

3.
79

1
0

0
0

0
N

o
37

8.
39

0
23

4.
2

YE
S

37
8.

8
0

37
3.

41
37

3.
41

0
37

7.
49

0
14

7.
12

Ye
s

37
8.

39
0

15
.5

3
YE

S
37

8.
81

0
34

3.
80

4
34

3.
80

4
0

37
7.

5
0

7.
74

Ye
s

35
0.

07
15

.4
47

1.
73

YE
S

35
0.

12
1.

04
36

4.
91

7
36

4.
91

7
0

34
9.

27
9.

05
26

5.
31

Ye
s

36
5.

31
0

5.
23

YE
S

36
5.

39
0

33
4.

37
7

33
9.

87
7

5.
5

36
5.

24
0

3.
18

Ye
s

33
9.

37
0

89
8.

32
N

O
34

0.
95

0
33

5.
84

3
33

5.
84

3
0

33
8.

1
0

57
0.

16
N

o
34

2.
06

6.
52

48
9.

22
YE

S
34

2.
45

0.
32

1
0

0
0

34
1.

45
3.

88
31

8.
64

Ye
s

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
31

4.
35

2
31

4.
35

2
0

0
0

0
N

o
31

4.
83

0
15

.8
2

YE
S

31
5.

22
0

42
2.

07
7

43
3.

57
7

11
.5

31
4.

74
0

11
.8

1
Ye

s
42

4.
86

0
20

1.
71

N
O

42
5.

39
0

44
4.

1
45

1.
75

2
7.

65
2

42
3.

94
0

10
3.

3
N

o
44

4.
82

0
5.

52
N

O
44

5.
08

0
37

7.
89

5
37

8.
23

8
0

44
4.

61
0

3.
14

N
o

37
7.

91
0

1.
53

N
O

37
7.

92
0

38
3.

75
8

38
8.

00
8

4.
25

37
7.

91
0

0.
92

N
o

38
3.

96
0

0.
43

N
O

38
4

0
40

1.
88

40
7.

88
6

38
3.

91
0

0.
26

N
o

40
5.

12
0

16
5.

45
N

O
40

5.
79

0
39

6.
2

40
0.

69
8

4.
49

8
40

4.
44

0
11

9.
53

N
o

39
8.

8
0

20
1.

6
N

O
40

0.
02

0
43

6.
53

1
44

1.
03

1
4.

5
39

8.
08

0
14

2.
84

N
o

43
9.

81
0

70
.5

2
N

O
44

0.
01

0
44

1.
48

9
44

6.
98

9
5.

5
43

9.
59

0
39

.3
7

N
o

44
1.

49
0

0
N

O
44

1.
49

0
39

2.
36

4
39

7.
86

4
5.

5
44

1.
49

0
0

N
o

39
3.

6
21

.9
6

28
.4

6
N

O
39

4.
06

1.
07

34
7.

44
9

35
6.

44
9

9
39

3.
29

13
.2

3
16

.9
2

N
o

35
0.

76
2.

65
27

4.
59

N
O

35
1.

15
0.

21
2

32
9.

52
33

4.
52

5
34

9.
4

1.
57

11
9.

4
N

o
33

6.
37

12
.6

3
42

1.
85

YE
S

33
7.

24
0.

78
6

38
1.

62
7

38
6.

12
7

4.
5

33
3.

49
7.

24
22

7.
72

N
o

38
2.

88
2.

48
22

.5
4

N
O

38
6.

6
0.

11
7

38
0.

89
6

38
5.

89
6

5
38

2.
48

1.
37

12
.5

7
N

o
38

2.
39

0.
28

37
.5

2
N

O
38

6.
2

0.
01

2
45

2.
01

45
9.

23
6

7.
22

6
38

1.
95

0.
18

21
N

o
45

7.
78

0
15

5.
15

N
O

45
9.

69
0

28
0.

66
28

0.
66

0
45

3.
9

0
10

4.
34

N
o

28
3.

48
0

10
92

.9
9

YE
S

28
4.

88
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

42
4.

5
42

8.
38

3.
88

42
5.

45
7.

02
7.

02
N

o
42

5.
8

12
.4

7
12

.4
7

N
O

42
6.

67
0.

95
45

0.
76

4
45

5.
26

4
4.

5
45

1.
46

1.
18

5.
65

N
o

45
1.

78
2.

09
10

.2
3

N
O

45
5

0.
12

3
45

1.
85

5
45

6.
35

5
4.

5
45

2.
41

4.
48

4.
48

N
o

45
2.

65
8.

14
8.

14
N

O
45

5.
67

0.
54

6
39

8.
47

7
40

3.
97

7
5.

5
39

9.
39

0
24

.3
2

N
o

39
9.

7
0

40
.6

8
N

O
39

9.
98

0
38

8.
50

8
39

4.
00

8
5.

5
38

9.
58

0.
25

24
.5

1
N

o
38

9.
97

0.
59

41
.1

8
N

O
39

0.
38

0.
02

7
36

8.
50

7
37

3.
00

7
4.

5
36

9.
38

6.
52

7.
56

N
o

36
9.

96
12

.4
8

14
.8

4
N

O
37

3.
35

0.
76

2



In
ve

rt
 

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax In

(1
00

-y

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
on

di
tio

n 
Ju

nc
tio

ns
 R

es
ul

ts
 S

um
m

ar
y 

Ta
bl

e
Di

m
en

si
on

s
2-

ye
ar

 
10

-y
ea

r
10

0-
ye

a

41
8.

75
8

42
3.

25
8

4.
5

41
8.

94
0.

41
0.

41
N

o
41

8.
98

0.
64

0.
64

N
O

41
9.

03
0.

02
8

33
1.

45
4

33
1.

45
4

0
33

4.
43

0
65

3.
14

Ye
s

33
4.

96
0

88
4.

54
YE

S
33

5.
12

0
43

2.
52

8
43

7.
02

8
4.

5
43

3.
12

4.
71

4.
71

N
o

43
3.

33
7.

95
7.

95
N

O
43

4.
59

0.
63

6
43

0.
90

2
43

5.
40

2
4.

5
43

1.
41

1.
4

6.
1

N
o

43
1.

58
2.

32
10

.2
6

N
O

43
3.

29
0.

15
8

43
0.

83
5

43
7.

33
5

6.
5

43
1.

11
1.

17
1.

17
N

o
43

1.
18

1.
97

1.
97

N
O

43
1.

28
0.

13
3

36
8.

51
9

37
3.

01
9

4.
5

36
8.

93
0.

53
5.

7
N

o
36

9.
05

0.
87

10
.3

7
N

O
36

9.
23

0.
05

2
43

0.
99

43
0.

99
0

43
1.

32
1.

54
2.

88
Ye

s
43

1.
42

2.
56

4.
85

YE
S

43
1.

53
0.

13
2

42
0.

79
2

42
5.

29
2

4.
5

42
1.

78
1.

06
5.

8
N

o
42

2.
21

1.
81

9.
06

N
O

42
3.

75
0.

10
1

44
5.

97
9

45
1.

97
9

6
44

6.
9

1.
23

16
.9

1
N

o
44

7.
23

1.
93

30
.1

2
N

O
44

7.
36

0.
08

9
44

9.
7

45
5.

7
6

44
9.

97
1.

09
5.

21
N

o
45

0.
03

1.
72

8.
27

N
O

45
0.

11
0.

08
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
36

7.
45

5
36

7.
45

5
0

36
7.

46
0

0.
13

Ye
s

36
7.

46
0

0.
21

YE
S

36
7.

46
0

42
1.

18
2

42
1.

18
2

0
42

1.
39

4.
16

14
.7

9
Ye

s
42

1.
47

6.
78

25
.4

7
YE

S
42

1.
55

0.
27

7
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

44
0.

59
8

44
1.

43
9

0
44

0.
82

0
3.

09
N

o
44

0.
91

0
5.

46
N

O
44

1.
01

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
39

7.
02

6
40

4.
02

6
7

39
7.

14
1.

03
1.

03
N

o
39

7.
17

1.
65

1.
65

N
O

39
7.

21
0.

07
7

39
8.

34
6

40
2.

34
6

4
39

8.
64

0.
78

0.
78

N
o

39
8.

72
1.

27
1.

27
N

O
39

9.
65

0.
06

3
40

1.
57

40
5.

57
4

40
1.

93
2.

12
2.

12
N

o
40

2.
04

3.
46

3.
46

N
O

40
2.

3
0.

17
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

33
3.

57
9

33
9.

07
9

5.
5

33
6.

05
0

66
0.

04
N

o
33

6.
62

0
99

4.
41

N
O

33
6.

85
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

40
3.

07
40

7.
07

4
40

3.
25

0.
67

0.
67

N
o

40
3.

3
1.

07
1.

07
N

O
40

3.
36

0.
04

8
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
33

3.
77

4
33

7.
27

4
3.

5
33

6.
34

0.
26

3.
63

N
o

33
6.

94
0.

41
18

.3
1

N
O

33
7.

16
0.

02
43

0.
00

4
43

0.
00

4
0

49
1.

71
15

.8
6

15
.8

6
Ye

s
53

0.
5

27
.9

6
27

.9
6

YE
S

53
0.

5
1.

89



In
ve

rt
 

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax In

(1
00

-y

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
on

di
tio

n 
Ju

nc
tio

ns
 R

es
ul

ts
 S

um
m

ar
y 

Ta
bl

e
Di

m
en

si
on

s
2-

ye
ar

 
10

-y
ea

r
10

0-
ye

a

44
3.

02
6

44
8.

52
6

5.
5

44
3.

64
8.

29
8.

29
N

o
44

3.
87

15
.0

7
15

.0
7

N
O

44
4.

18
1.

04
43

7
44

2.
91

6
5.

91
6

43
7.

33
1.

42
4.

14
N

o
43

7.
42

2.
4

6.
82

N
O

43
7.

53
0.

15
5

32
1.

13
7

32
5.

38
7

4.
25

32
1.

83
4.

6
19

.5
1

N
o

32
2.

09
7.

96
34

.8
7

N
O

32
2.

8
0.

50
6

42
6.

88
2

43
1.

38
2

4.
5

42
7.

28
2.

56
5.

26
N

o
42

7.
41

4.
45

8.
96

N
O

42
7.

54
0.

26
2

40
7.

34
7

41
1.

01
7

3.
67

40
7.

35
0

0
N

o
40

7.
35

0
0

N
O

40
7.

35
0

41
1.

92
7

41
5.

59
7

3.
67

41
1.

93
0

0
N

o
41

1.
93

0
0

N
O

41
1.

93
0

39
9.

29
6

39
9.

29
6

0
40

1.
05

0
3.

43
Ye

s
40

1.
08

0
6.

12
YE

S
40

1.
1

0
43

0.
39

7
43

3.
39

7
3

43
0.

63
1.

06
1.

06
N

o
43

0.
7

1.
8

1.
8

N
O

43
2.

08
0.

11
9

43
1.

3
43

4.
55

4
3.

25
4

43
1.

56
0.

65
0.

65
N

o
43

1.
63

1.
06

1.
06

N
O

43
2.

59
0.

06
3

43
0.

72
43

4.
59

4
3.

87
4

43
1.

17
1.

23
1.

87
N

o
43

1.
32

2.
07

3.
12

N
O

43
2.

57
0.

12
7

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
37

9.
11

2
38

3.
11

2
4

37
9.

45
0.

92
0.

92
N

o
37

9.
55

1.
54

1.
54

N
O

37
9.

68
0.

07
8

33
7.

71
33

7.
71

0
33

9.
29

26
.3

4
45

.8
Ye

s
33

9.
93

46
.6

3
83

.9
9

YE
S

34
0.

86
4.

38
44

6.
85

7
45

1.
10

7
4.

25
44

7.
53

3.
18

3.
18

N
o

44
7.

84
5.

62
5.

62
N

O
45

0.
87

0.
36

4
36

0.
34

3
38

8.
34

3
28

36
1.

2
11

.1
4

32
.2

4
N

o
36

1.
39

19
.1

7
47

.7
8

N
O

36
1.

64
0.

82
5

40
9.

78
6

41
4.

28
6

4.
5

41
0.

16
3.

45
3.

45
N

o
41

0.
29

6.
16

6.
16

N
O

41
0.

45
0.

36
5

43
2.

41
2

43
6.

91
2

4.
5

43
2.

63
1.

81
1.

81
N

o
43

2.
7

3.
19

3.
19

N
O

43
2.

78
0.

15
9

39
8.

47
7

39
8.

47
7

0
39

8.
78

0
11

.8
7

Ye
s

39
9.

01
0

24
.8

7
YE

S
39

9.
3

0
41

0.
04

5
41

3.
04

5
3

41
3

3.
48

3.
48

N
o

41
3.

05
6.

47
6.

47
YE

S
41

3.
11

0.
33

8
44

0.
39

8
44

4.
89

8
4.

5
44

0.
66

2.
16

2.
16

N
o

44
0.

73
3.

6
3.

6
N

O
44

0.
82

0.
18

2
43

3.
95

8
43

6.
95

8
3

43
7.

41
0.

57
2.

72
Ye

s
43

7.
45

0.
9

4.
48

YE
S

43
7.

49
0.

04
2

38
7.

67
2

38
7.

67
2

0
38

7.
82

4.
84

4.
84

Ye
s

38
7.

85
8.

33
8.

33
YE

S
38

7.
88

0.
49

44
9.

98
3

44
9.

98
3

0
44

9.
98

0
0

N
o

44
9.

98
0

0
N

O
44

9.
98

0
29

8.
49

3
30

1.
99

3
3.

5
29

9.
08

2.
87

2.
87

N
o

30
0.

8
4.

94
61

.1
3

N
O

30
3.

86
0.

45
2

29
8.

90
1

30
2.

90
1

4
30

0.
94

11
.3

7
11

.3
7

N
o

30
4.

35
20

.4
7

98
.5

8
YE

S
30

4.
75

1.
36

29
8.

6
30

2.
86

3
4.

26
3

30
0.

75
1.

3
24

.0
6

N
o

30
2.

27
2.

19
10

7.
31

N
O

30
3.

81
0.

11
1

32
0.

98
9

32
5.

48
9

4.
5

32
1.

31
1.

57
1.

57
N

o
32

1.
42

2.
86

2.
86

N
O

32
1.

54
0.

15
8

32
0.

26
4

32
4.

76
4

4.
5

32
0.

51
0.

84
2.

41
N

o
32

0.
6

1.
49

4.
34

N
O

32
0.

69
0.

08
4

36
9.

07
36

9.
49

4
0.

42
4

37
2.

31
0

20
8.

33
Ye

s
37

2.
7

0
30

8.
51

YE
S

37
2.

85
0

31
3.

43
7

31
7.

93
7

4.
5

31
3.

68
2.

85
2.

85
N

o
31

3.
76

5.
02

5.
02

N
O

31
3.

86
0.

29
7

33
8.

27
8

33
8.

27
8

0
33

8.
68

5.
95

6.
95

Ye
s

33
8.

83
9.

63
13

.3
YE

S
33

9.
01

0.
38

5
33

0.
32

33
0.

32
0

33
0.

6
2.

55
3.

81
Ye

s
33

0.
77

4.
59

9.
89

YE
S

33
0.

98
0.

24
4

31
1.

12
4

31
1.

12
4

0
31

1.
44

2.
01

3.
95

Ye
s

31
1.

67
3.

67
12

.4
1

YE
S

31
1.

97
0.

20
2

28
3.

82
9

28
3.

82
9

0
28

6.
3

14
.5

74
0.

38
Ye

s
28

6.
56

24
.9

5
10

95
.0

3
YE

S
28

8.
08

1.
95

43
3.

12
4

43
8.

12
4

5
43

3.
8

5.
41

5.
41

N
o

43
4.

03
9.

55
9.

55
N

O
43

4.
39

0.
79

42
6.

3
43

0.
8

4.
5

42
7.

15
10

.6
2

11
.1

8
N

o
42

7.
5

19
20

.0
5

N
O

42
8.

21
0.

92
6

44
4.

32
2

44
4.

32
2

0
44

4.
34

0
0.

91
Ye

s
44

4.
35

0
1.

53
YE

S
44

4.
36

0
46

2.
18

7
46

5.
85

7
3.

67
46

2.
43

0.
91

0.
91

N
o

46
2.

51
1.

54
1.

54
N

O
46

2.
61

0.
07

2
42

4.
93

1
43

0.
43

1
5.

5
42

5.
83

0
16

.3
8

N
o

42
6.

17
0

29
.2

9
N

O
42

6.
64

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

43
1.

61
7

43
4.

61
7

3
43

2.
73

2.
55

5.
99

N
o

43
2.

73
2.

55
5.

99
N

O
43

2.
73

0.
08

2
43

2.
27

6
43

4.
27

6
2

43
2.

97
3.

46
3.

46
N

o
43

2.
97

3.
46

3.
46

N
O

43
2.

97
0.

10
5

45
8.

91
6

45
8.

91
6

0
45

8.
92

0
0

Ye
s

45
8.

92
0

0
YE

S
45

8.
92

0
47

0.
13

5
47

0.
13

5
0

47
0.

13
0

0
N

o
47

0.
13

0
0

N
O

47
0.

13
0



In
ve

rt
 

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax In

(1
00

-y

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
on

di
tio

n 
Ju

nc
tio

ns
 R

es
ul

ts
 S

um
m

ar
y 

Ta
bl

e
Di

m
en

si
on

s
2-

ye
ar

 
10

-y
ea

r
10

0-
ye

a

44
9.

51
3

44
9.

51
3

0
44

9.
82

5.
82

5.
82

Ye
s

44
9.

89
10

.2
9

10
.2

9
YE

S
44

9.
98

0.
61

2
39

6.
52

1
40

0.
52

1
4

39
7.

84
12

.8
3

15
.6

6
N

o
39

8.
49

22
.8

2
29

.6
6

N
O

40
2.

9
1.

28
43

7.
61

4
44

2.
11

4
4.

5
43

7.
91

2.
23

2.
23

N
o

43
8

4
4

N
O

43
8.

11
0.

19
8

40
8.

85
41

4.
84

1
5.

99
1

41
0.

47
0

45
.2

4
N

o
41

1.
06

0
77

.5
7

N
O

41
2.

5
0

29
8.

29
2

29
8.

29
2

0
29

9.
02

0
84

.3
2

Ye
s

29
9.

95
0

22
2.

26
YE

S
30

2.
08

0
42

7.
43

5
43

0.
43

5
3

42
7.

8
2.

21
2.

21
N

o
42

7.
92

3.
82

3.
82

N
O

42
8.

07
0.

20
9

36
1.

94
2

36
6.

44
2

4.
5

36
2.

63
7.

36
7.

36
N

o
36

2.
95

12
.9

7
12

.9
8

N
O

36
6.

51
0.

85
7

35
8.

77
7

36
3.

77
7

5
36

0.
07

9.
59

22
.4

3
N

o
36

0.
6

16
.6

8
39

.6
5

N
O

36
1.

53
1.

19
35

9.
05

1
36

3.
55

1
4.

5
36

0.
12

5.
1

5.
1

N
o

36
0.

65
8.

96
8.

96
N

O
36

1.
74

0.
50

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

35
1.

67
1

35
1.

67
1

0
35

1.
71

0
0.

33
Ye

s
35

1.
72

0
0.

54
YE

S
35

1.
73

0
35

2.
44

2
35

5.
44

2
3

35
2.

58
0.

17
0.

17
N

o
35

2.
65

0.
28

0.
28

N
O

35
2.

7
0.

01
35

6.
71

7
35

6.
71

7
0

35
6.

74
0

0.
33

Ye
s

35
6.

75
0

0.
61

YE
S

35
6.

76
0

35
7.

83
8

35
9.

83
8

2
35

8.
1

0.
45

0.
45

N
o

35
8.

2
0.

79
0.

79
N

O
35

8.
36

0.
03

2
33

5.
49

2
34

1.
49

2
6

33
6.

95
2.

5
64

.7
3

N
o

33
7.

5
4.

35
11

2.
2

N
O

33
8.

28
0.

22
5

29
3.

53
2

29
3.

53
2

0
29

7.
17

0
72

2.
72

Ye
s

29
7.

77
0

10
76

.1
7

YE
S

29
8.

98
0

35
7.

02
1

36
3.

02
1

6
35

8.
44

6.
39

63
.4

N
o

35
8.

96
10

.6
8

10
9.

87
N

O
35

9.
38

0.
49

8
32

4.
51

8
32

9.
51

8
5

32
5.

99
13

.8
8

47
.3

4
N

o
32

6.
75

24
.0

4
79

.7
6

N
O

33
0.

22
1.

77
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

32
3.

25
32

9.
25

6
32

5.
35

1.
9

11
2.

74
N

o
32

6.
27

3.
21

19
3.

47
N

O
32

9.
93

0.
14

5
30

7.
73

5
31

4.
23

5
6.

5
30

9.
83

7.
84

12
8.

11
N

o
31

0.
67

13
.2

21
9.

58
N

O
31

5.
21

0.
60

1
31

7.
90

5
32

4.
40

5
6.

5
31

9.
79

14
.1

6
12

4.
16

N
o

32
0.

54
24

.2
1

21
2.

96
N

O
32

5.
11

2.
04

34
3.

74
2

34
3.

74
2

0
34

4.
13

2.
03

36
.0

7
Ye

s
34

4.
27

3.
42

64
.6

7
YE

S
34

4.
45

0.
15

6
38

8.
17

8
39

2.
67

8
4.

5
38

8.
55

2.
37

2.
37

N
o

38
8.

68
4.

28
4.

28
N

O
38

8.
85

0.
25

5
38

7.
08

1
39

1.
58

1
4.

5
38

7.
53

4.
06

6.
42

N
o

38
7.

69
7.

29
11

.5
7

N
O

38
7.

91
0.

57
7

32
3.

81
4

32
3.

81
4

0
32

3.
92

0
6.

39
Ye

s
32

3.
97

0
11

.5
2

YE
S

32
4.

02
0

31
1.

84
3

31
1.

84
3

0
31

4.
18

0
66

6.
85

Ye
s

31
4.

51
0

88
4.

75
YE

S
31

4.
8

0
28

6.
49

1
29

0.
99

1
4.

5
28

7.
52

4.
17

21
.2

6
N

o
28

8.
04

7.
31

38
.1

N
O

29
1.

06
0.

42
2

28
9.

44
29

3.
94

4.
5

29
0.

24
12

.6
9

17
.1

3
N

o
29

0.
55

22
.1

2
30

.1
8

N
O

29
4.

02
1.

68
27

2.
35

1
27

6.
60

1
4.

25
27

4.
12

1.
6

4.
55

N
o

28
1.

48
2.

69
5.

6
YE

S
28

0.
99

0.
15

2
28

2.
9

28
3.

14
7

0.
24

7
28

2.
91

0
0.

02
N

o
28

2.
91

0
0.

02
N

O
28

2.
91

0
28

2.
8

28
6.

59
3.

79
28

3.
56

0.
53

1.
38

N
o

28
3.

98
0.

89
2.

44
N

O
28

4.
85

0.
03

5
28

8.
33

2
28

8.
55

2
0

28
8.

33
0

0
N

o
28

8.
33

0
0

N
O

28
8.

33
0

28
3.

66
4

28
6.

66
4

3
28

3.
76

0.
18

0.
18

N
o

28
3.

97
0.

29
0.

29
N

O
28

4.
84

0.
01

28
7.

79
3

29
2.

29
3

4.
5

28
7.

99
1.

01
1.

01
N

o
28

8.
05

1.
73

1.
73

N
O

28
8.

12
0.

07
4

38
1.

25
3

38
1.

25
3

0
38

1.
25

0
0

N
o

38
1.

25
0

0
N

O
38

1.
25

0
34

2.
78

9
34

2.
78

9
0

34
3.

21
1.

61
1.

61
Ye

s
34

3.
34

3.
02

3.
02

YE
S

34
3.

48
0.

16
29

9.
02

1
29

9.
02

1
0

30
2.

46
0

67
7.

08
Ye

s
30

2.
83

0
90

9.
69

YE
S

30
3.

12
0

34
1.

77
2

34
1.

77
2

0
34

1.
82

0
1.

63
Ye

s
34

1.
84

0
3.

07
YE

S
34

1.
86

0
36

4.
49

6
36

4.
49

6
0

36
4.

58
0

0.
24

Ye
s

36
4.

6
0

0.
47

YE
S

36
4.

62
0

36
4.

83
2

36
7.

83
2

3
36

5.
08

0.
36

0.
36

N
o

36
5.

17
0.

65
0.

65
N

O
36

5.
29

0.
02

7
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

39
0.

48
1

39
0.

48
1

0
39

0.
48

0
0

N
o

39
0.

48
0

0
N

O
39

0.
48

0
36

5.
52

6
36

8.
51

7
0

36
6.

54
0.

98
0.

98
N

o
36

6.
55

1.
82

1.
82

N
O

36
6.

56
0.

08
4



In
ve

rt
 

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax In

(1
00

-y

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
on

di
tio

n 
Ju

nc
tio

ns
 R

es
ul

ts
 S

um
m

ar
y 

Ta
bl

e
Di

m
en

si
on

s
2-

ye
ar

 
10

-y
ea

r
10

0-
ye

a

33
9.

34
3

33
9.

34
3

0
33

9.
34

0
0

N
o

33
9.

34
0

0
N

O
33

9.
34

0
28

9.
19

6
28

9.
19

6
0

29
2.

02
0

72
4.

61
Ye

s
29

2.
53

0
10

79
.6

4
YE

S
29

3.
41

0
35

5.
08

6
35

9.
08

6
4

35
5.

3
0.

87
0.

87
N

o
35

5.
38

1.
59

1.
59

N
O

35
5.

47
0.

06
9

33
0.

67
3

33
0.

91
8

0
33

0.
7

0
0.

83
N

o
33

0.
71

0
1.

53
N

O
33

0.
73

0
36

1.
33

2
36

1.
33

2
0

36
1.

33
0

0
N

o
36

1.
33

0
0

N
O

36
1.

33
0

36
9.

97
4

37
0.

06
9

0
36

9.
97

0
0

N
o

36
9.

97
0

0
N

O
36

9.
97

0
32

5.
29

9
32

5.
29

9
0

32
5.

35
0

2.
03

Ye
s

32
5.

37
0

3.
6

YE
S

32
5.

39
0

33
5.

38
4

33
5.

38
4

0
33

5.
67

2.
04

2.
04

Ye
s

33
5.

76
3.

61
3.

61
YE

S
33

5.
86

0.
17

6
30

7.
13

3
31

1.
63

3
4.

5
30

7.
75

3.
74

4.
95

N
o

30
7.

95
6.

3
8.

11
N

O
31

1.
03

0.
37

3
30

6.
43

5
31

0.
68

5
4.

25
30

6.
96

1.
93

6.
93

N
o

30
7.

15
3.

38
11

.7
4

N
O

31
0.

49
0.

21
8

31
0.

14
5

31
3.

64
5

3.
5

31
0.

34
0.

73
2.

41
N

o
31

0.
39

1.
19

3.
73

N
O

31
0.

45
0.

07
4

32
2.

38
1

32
6.

63
1

4.
25

32
3.

23
13

.8
14

.6
9

N
o

32
3.

58
24

.5
5

26
.4

4
N

O
32

4.
66

1.
92

34
4.

65
2

34
4.

65
2

0
34

4.
66

1.
21

1.
21

Ye
s

34
4.

67
2

2
YE

S
34

4.
67

0.
08

8
33

8.
43

9
33

9.
36

8
0

33
8.

44
0.

19
0.

19
N

o
33

8.
45

0.
31

0.
31

N
O

33
8.

45
0.

01
32

5.
41

7
32

5.
41

7
0

32
5.

42
0

0
Ye

s
32

5.
42

0
0

YE
S

32
5.

42
0

36
0.

87
5

36
0.

87
5

0
36

0.
88

0
0

Ye
s

36
0.

88
0

0
YE

S
36

0.
88

0
35

5
36

1.
56

4
6.

56
4

35
5.

96
1.

91
12

.9
2

N
o

35
6.

37
3.

4
22

.7
9

N
O

35
7.

36
0.

19
1

35
6.

52
3

36
1.

52
3

5
35

7.
18

11
.0

2
11

.0
2

N
o

35
7.

44
19

.3
7

19
.3

7
N

O
35

8.
09

1.
21

41
4.

17
1

41
4.

83
7

0
41

4.
17

0
0

N
o

41
4.

17
0

0
N

O
41

4.
17

0
35

5.
64

7
35

5.
79

7
0

35
5.

65
0

0
N

o
35

5.
65

0
0

N
O

35
5.

65
0

38
5.

75
9

38
9.

25
9

3.
5

38
6.

65
10

.0
8

10
.7

8
N

o
38

7.
02

17
.6

5
19

.0
3

N
O

38
7.

69
1.

16
38

5.
22

6
38

9.
72

6
4.

5
38

5.
73

1.
78

12
.4

2
N

o
38

5.
9

3.
09

21
.9

9
N

O
38

6.
11

0.
17

2
41

7.
53

3
41

7.
70

1
0

41
8.

06
0

23
.1

6
Ye

s
41

8.
26

0
39

.6
2

YE
S

41
8.

49
0

40
9.

42
2

40
9.

42
2

0
40

9.
62

0.
31

0.
31

Ye
s

40
9.

68
0.

54
0.

54
YE

S
40

9.
74

0.
02

1
32

6
32

8.
43

9
2.

43
9

32
6.

31
1.

44
1.

44
N

o
32

6.
4

2.
37

2.
37

N
O

33
0.

04
0.

11
3

33
0.

83
9

33
5.

33
9

4.
5

33
1.

04
0.

88
0.

88
N

o
33

1.
09

1.
45

1.
45

N
O

33
1.

14
0.

06
7

34
6.

68
4

35
1.

18
4

4.
5

34
7.

13
0.

37
2.

52
N

o
34

7.
28

0.
65

4.
27

N
O

34
7.

46
0.

02
7

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
36

9.
36

2
37

3.
86

2
4.

5
36

9.
6

0
2.

16
N

o
36

9.
67

0
3.

64
N

O
36

9.
75

0
36

9.
67

9
37

4.
17

9
4.

5
37

0.
14

2.
17

2.
17

N
o

37
0.

29
3.

64
3.

64
N

O
37

0.
48

0.
16

1
43

2
43

2.
92

3
0.

92
3

43
2.

32
1.

35
1.

35
N

o
43

2.
43

2.
3

2.
3

N
O

43
2.

58
0.

11
9

38
5

40
1.

04
7

16
.0

47
38

5.
17

0.
03

0.
27

N
o

38
5.

21
0.

05
0.

43
N

O
38

5.
26

0.
00

2
38

6.
15

5
39

0.
40

5
4.

25
38

6.
28

0.
24

0.
24

N
o

38
6.

32
0.

39
0.

39
N

O
38

6.
35

0.
01

4
41

2.
28

8
41

2.
28

8
0

41
2.

75
0

27
.0

9
Ye

s
41

2.
88

0
47

.5
6

YE
S

41
3.

06
0

38
3

38
9.

31
6.

31
38

3.
32

1.
64

1.
89

N
o

38
3.

43
2.

96
3.

38
N

O
38

3.
55

0.
15

37
6.

6
37

7.
15

3
0

37
6.

64
0.

56
2.

44
N

o
37

6.
65

0.
9

4.
26

N
O

37
6.

67
0.

03
4

34
2.

61
5

34
7.

11
5

4.
5

34
3.

14
5.

96
6.

96
N

o
34

3.
34

10
.3

9
12

.3
4

N
O

34
3.

63
0.

51
9

32
9.

83
9

33
5.

33
9

5.
5

33
0.

98
0.

99
21

.1
1

N
o

33
1.

44
1.

57
37

.8
1

N
O

33
2.

17
0.

06
33

0.
27

4
33

5.
02

4
4.

75
33

1.
26

8.
63

11
.8

1
N

o
33

1.
7

15
.1

1
20

.9
2

N
O

33
2.

44
0.

96
3

33
4.

50
1

33
4.

50
1

0
33

5.
12

3.
17

3.
18

Ye
s

33
5.

35
5.

78
5.

8
YE

S
33

5.
57

0.
29

5
33

2.
06

1
33

7.
06

1
5

33
7.

13
0

0
Ye

s
33

7.
13

0
0.

01
YE

S
33

7.
13

0
43

8.
01

44
2.

01
4

43
8.

51
1

4.
5

N
o

43
8.

67
1.

69
7.

38
N

O
43

8.
83

0.
07

6
44

0.
64

5
44

4.
64

5
4

44
1.

26
3.

53
3.

53
N

o
44

2.
23

6.
1

6.
1

N
O

44
5.

26
0.

30
4

40
5.

68
41

0.
18

4.
5

40
5.

71
4.

58
4.

58
N

o
40

5.
73

8.
06

8.
06

N
O

40
5.

74
0.

43
7



In
ve

rt
 

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax In

(1
00

-y

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
on

di
tio

n 
Ju

nc
tio

ns
 R

es
ul

ts
 S

um
m

ar
y 

Ta
bl

e
Di

m
en

si
on

s
2-

ye
ar

 
10

-y
ea

r
10

0-
ye

a

42
5.

42
1

42
5.

42
1

0
42

6.
25

5.
46

5.
46

Ye
s

42
6.

29
9.

68
9.

68
YE

S
42

6.
33

0.
70

1
43

7.
82

2
44

2.
32

2
4.

5
43

8.
38

3.
83

3.
83

N
o

43
8.

6
6.

79
6.

79
N

O
43

8.
95

0.
50

8
43

7.
23

8
44

1.
73

8
4.

5
43

7.
8

0.
53

4.
37

N
o

43
8.

02
0.

85
7.

66
N

O
43

8.
37

0.
04

4
43

3.
48

43
6.

98
3.

5
43

4.
05

0.
76

5.
08

N
o

43
4.

22
1.

19
8.

78
N

O
43

4.
47

0.
05

3
43

2.
71

4
43

7.
21

4
4.

5
43

3.
55

0.
35

4.
19

N
o

43
3.

91
0.

57
7.

16
N

O
43

7.
21

0.
02

8
43

3.
05

2
43

7.
55

2
4.

5
43

3.
79

3.
84

3.
84

N
o

43
4.

13
6.

6
6.

6
N

O
43

7.
55

0.
34

3
43

7.
38

1
44

1.
88

1
4.

5
43

7.
5

0.
62

0.
62

N
o

43
7.

53
0.

96
0.

96
N

O
43

7.
56

0.
04

1
42

9.
74

7
44

1.
74

7
12

43
0.

12
0

4.
01

N
o

43
0.

25
0

6.
87

N
O

43
0.

43
0

43
1

43
1.

43
8

0.
43

8
43

1.
12

0
5.

86
N

o
43

1.
12

0
5.

86
N

O
43

1.
12

0
38

8.
89

8
39

4.
39

8
5.

5
38

9.
73

0.
95

24
.4

N
o

39
0.

01
1.

52
41

.5
7

N
O

39
0.

42
0.

06
7

43
7.

69
1

43
8.

01
3

0
43

8.
09

0.
61

0.
61

Ye
s

43
8.

11
0.

98
0.

98
YE

S
43

8.
13

0.
04

6
43

8.
04

8
43

8.
04

8
0

43
8.

66
3

3
Ye

s
43

8.
69

5.
25

5.
25

YE
S

43
8.

72
0.

33
3

42
8.

17
8

43
3.

17
8

5
42

8.
93

9.
51

9.
51

N
o

42
9.

21
16

.6
6

16
.6

6
N

O
43

0.
55

1.
1

42
3.

42
2

42
8.

42
2

5
42

4.
5

1.
58

10
.9

7
N

o
42

4.
92

2.
74

19
.2

N
O

42
7.

34
0.

13
40

6.
70

5
41

1.
20

5
4.

5
40

6.
98

3.
46

3.
46

N
o

40
7.

06
5.

7
5.

7
N

O
40

7.
16

0.
22

7
42

9.
44

5
43

3.
69

5
4.

25
43

0.
15

0
2.

9
N

o
43

0.
43

0
4.

87
N

O
43

2.
05

0
42

7.
77

43
2.

02
4.

25
42

8.
19

0
2.

86
N

o
42

8.
32

0
4.

77
N

O
42

8.
44

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

39
9.

82
5

39
9.

96
5

0
39

9.
95

0
0.

15
N

o
39

9.
96

0
0.

26
N

O
39

9.
97

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

43
9.

85
3

43
9.

85
3

0
43

9.
97

0
5.

6
Ye

s
44

0.
02

0
10

YE
S

44
0.

09
0

40
1.

70
8

40
1.

70
8

0
40

2.
49

0
0.

17
Ye

s
40

2.
5

0
0.

26
YE

S
40

2.
5

0
39

5.
87

1
39

5.
87

1
0

39
6.

35
0

5.
17

Ye
s

39
6.

37
0

8.
53

YE
S

39
6.

4
0

39
6.

81
6

39
6.

81
6

0
39

7.
05

5.
23

5.
23

Ye
s

39
7.

13
8.

61
8.

61
YE

S
39

7.
24

0.
49

1
40

4.
36

7
40

4.
36

7
0

40
4.

4
0.

18
0.

18
Ye

s
40

4.
4

0.
27

0.
27

YE
S

40
4.

41
0.

01
40

0.
66

7
40

1.
92

3
0

40
0.

71
2.

23
2.

23
N

o
40

0.
72

3.
85

3.
85

N
O

40
0.

74
0.

18
1

40
3.

79
1

40
8.

29
1

4.
5

40
4.

53
3.

8
5.

34
N

o
40

4.
81

6.
06

8.
77

N
O

40
5.

71
0.

29
1

40
3.

02
5

40
7.

69
5

4.
67

40
3.

57
1.

16
6.

47
N

o
40

3.
75

1.
93

10
.6

4
N

O
40

4.
04

0.
10

8
38

7.
76

9
39

2.
43

9
4.

67
38

8.
65

1.
8

8.
16

N
o

38
8.

96
2.

96
13

.4
3

N
O

38
9.

5
0.

14
6

43
2.

73
3

43
5.

73
3

3
43

2.
89

1.
17

1.
17

N
o

43
2.

94
1.

83
1.

83
N

O
43

3
0.

08
4

40
4.

7
41

1.
90

9
7.

20
9

40
5.

99
0.

6
51

.9
N

o
40

6.
13

0.
98

63
.1

N
O

40
6.

29
0.

05
2

37
7.

08
6

38
0.

22
1

3.
13

5
37

7.
38

0
15

.2
7

N
o

37
7.

51
0

29
.4

4
N

O
37

7.
59

0
40

7.
17

4
41

1.
67

4
4.

5
40

7.
38

0.
94

0.
94

N
o

40
7.

44
1.

57
1.

57
N

O
40

7.
52

0.
10

5
40

5.
17

4
41

2.
17

4
7

40
6.

9
7.

38
52

.4
1

N
o

40
7.

07
12

.2
4

62
.2

2
N

O
40

7.
27

0.
86

4
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

39
2.

01
3

39
7.

01
3

5
39

2.
4

1.
31

1.
31

N
o

39
2.

5
2.

14
2.

14
N

O
39

2.
63

0.
10

7
38

7.
39

38
7.

39
0

38
7.

78
0

1.
24

Ye
s

38
8.

08
0

2.
29

YE
S

38
8.

48
0

43
9

44
7.

55
8.

55
44

0.
42

7.
24

9.
59

N
o

44
3.

89
12

.5
6

16
.3

8
N

O
44

6.
78

0.
83

5
44

0
44

8.
48

2
8.

48
2

44
0.

43
2.

35
2.

35
N

o
44

3.
9

3.
95

3.
95

N
O

44
7.

81
0.

19
5

45
7

46
6.

87
3

9.
87

3
45

9.
2

3.
85

10
4.

15
N

o
46

5.
22

6.
42

16
0.

08
N

O
46

7.
1

0.
37

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

39
8.

60
5

40
3.

10
5

4.
5

39
9.

05
2.

02
2.

02
N

o
39

9.
18

3.
35

3.
35

N
O

39
9.

35
0.

20
8

42
6.

09
9

42
6.

09
9

0
42

6.
31

0
7.

03
Ye

s
42

6.
4

0
12

.9
2

YE
S

42
6.

52
0

41
5.

00
2

41
5.

32
5

0
41

5.
04

1.
9

2.
27

N
o

41
5.

05
2.

93
3.

57
N

O
41

5.
06

0.
12

9



In
ve

rt
 

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax In

(1
00

-y

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
on

di
tio

n 
Ju

nc
tio

ns
 R

es
ul

ts
 S

um
m

ar
y 

Ta
bl

e
Di

m
en

si
on

s
2-

ye
ar

 
10

-y
ea

r
10

0-
ye

a

48
7.

09
1

49
2.

59
1

5.
5

48
7.

32
1.

19
1.

5
N

o
48

7.
4

2
2.

66
N

O
48

7.
5

0.
09

6
50

3.
89

50
6.

89
3

50
3.

89
0

0
N

o
50

3.
89

0
0

N
O

50
3.

89
0

39
2.

33
39

5.
33

3
39

2.
73

0
5.

05
N

o
39

2.
85

0
7.

95
N

O
39

3.
03

0
40

7
41

0.
83

2
3.

83
2

40
7.

91
5.

12
5.

12
N

o
40

8.
32

8.
07

8.
07

N
O

40
8.

83
0.

37
5

40
9.

77
3

40
9.

77
3

0
40

9.
77

0
0

N
o

40
9.

77
0

0
N

O
40

9.
77

0
40

7.
65

6
41

0.
65

6
3

40
7.

66
0

0
N

o
40

7.
66

0
0

N
O

40
7.

66
0

42
6.

02
5

42
9.

02
5

3
42

6.
05

0
2.

21
N

o
42

6.
06

0
3.

82
N

O
42

6.
08

0
40

8.
17

9
41

1.
17

9
3

40
8.

18
0

0
N

o
40

8.
18

0
0

N
O

40
8.

18
0

42
1.

79
1

42
6.

29
1

4.
5

42
2.

17
0.

93
1.

44
N

o
42

2.
29

1.
6

2.
48

N
O

42
2.

44
0.

07
7

42
8.

61
7

43
3.

11
7

4.
5

42
8.

73
0.

51
0.

51
N

o
42

8.
77

0.
88

0.
88

N
O

42
8.

8
0.

03
9

40
4.

31
6

40
7.

31
6

3
40

4.
5

0
2.

81
N

o
40

4.
55

0
4.

47
N

O
40

4.
61

0
49

2.
69

2
49

5.
69

2
3

49
2.

8
0.

72
0.

72
N

o
49

2.
84

1.
28

1.
28

N
O

49
2.

88
0.

06
7

45
1.

57
5

45
6.

57
5

5
45

1.
75

0.
53

2.
39

N
o

45
1.

8
0.

91
4.

34
N

O
45

1.
87

0.
04

2
45

6.
44

6
46

1.
44

6
5

45
6.

73
1.

87
1.

87
N

o
45

6.
83

3.
44

3.
44

N
O

45
6.

94
0.

18
7

39
9

40
0.

5
1.

5
40

0.
41

0
15

.6
2

N
o

40
0.

74
0

26
.7

YE
S

40
0.

84
0

41
9.

64
1

42
4.

14
1

4.
5

41
9.

82
0.

51
0.

51
N

o
41

9.
87

0.
8

0.
8

N
O

41
9.

92
0.

03
6

35
7.

82
7

35
7.

82
7

0
35

8.
13

0
23

.2
Ye

s
35

8.
26

0
41

.3
7

YE
S

35
8.

45
0

42
8.

12
5

43
1.

62
5

3.
5

42
8.

32
0.

86
0.

86
N

o
42

8.
37

1.
38

1.
38

N
O

42
8.

44
0.

06
8

42
8.

17
7

43
1.

67
7

3.
5

42
8.

4
0.

9
0.

9
N

o
42

8.
46

1.
44

1.
44

N
O

42
8.

53
0.

07
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

47
7

48
2.

09
4

5.
09

4
47

7.
17

0.
35

0.
54

N
o

47
7.

21
0.

54
0.

83
N

O
47

7.
25

0.
02

3
47

7.
52

7
48

2.
02

7
4.

5
47

7.
65

0.
19

0.
19

N
o

47
7.

68
0.

29
0.

29
N

O
47

7.
71

0.
01

2
46

3.
59

3
46

7.
09

3
3.

5
46

3.
88

1.
03

1.
03

N
o

46
3.

95
1.

6
1.

6
N

O
46

4.
05

0.
07

1
46

3.
37

1
46

6.
87

1
3.

5
46

3.
64

1.
28

1.
28

N
o

46
3.

72
2

2
N

O
46

3.
83

0.
09

47
4.

54
1

47
8.

04
1

3.
5

47
4.

89
1.

57
1.

57
N

o
47

4.
98

2.
56

2.
56

N
O

47
5.

1
0.

12
1

44
0.

84
7

44
5.

34
7

4.
5

44
1.

06
1.

18
1.

18
N

o
44

1.
11

1.
85

1.
85

N
O

44
1.

17
0.

08
5

43
5.

39
3

44
0.

39
3

5
43

5.
74

0.
1

4.
8

N
o

43
5.

83
0.

16
7.

61
N

O
43

5.
94

0.
00

7
28

4.
14

9
28

4.
96

0
28

6.
83

0
46

9.
24

Ye
s

28
7.

05
0

54
2.

84
YE

S
28

7.
66

0
43

6.
20

4
44

0.
70

4
4.

5
43

6.
68

0.
41

3.
52

N
o

43
6.

81
0.

67
5.

61
N

O
43

6.
98

0.
03

4
43

7.
66

2
44

1.
66

2
4

43
7.

83
0.

66
0.

66
N

o
43

7.
88

1.
05

1.
05

N
O

43
7.

93
0.

05
1

43
6.

43
4

44
0.

93
4

4.
5

43
6.

99
2.

46
2.

46
N

o
43

7.
16

3.
91

3.
91

N
O

43
7.

39
0.

18
6

39
8.

07
40

1.
57

3.
5

39
8.

86
4.

91
7.

17
N

o
39

9.
4

9.
23

13
.8

9
N

O
40

1.
28

0.
55

6
39

7.
29

2
40

1.
79

2
4.

5
39

8.
34

1.
97

9.
12

N
o

39
8.

8
3.

53
17

.3
6

N
O

39
9.

37
0.

22
4

36
8

37
3.

28
6

5.
28

6
36

8.
6

2.
18

9.
72

N
o

36
8.

89
3.

91
19

.2
4

N
O

37
1.

07
0.

23
2

38
2.

69
38

2.
76

3
0

38
2.

69
0

0
N

o
38

2.
69

0
0

N
O

38
2.

69
0

39
4.

66
1

40
0.

27
1

3
39

4.
67

0.
41

0.
41

N
o

39
4.

68
1.

09
1.

09
N

O
39

4.
68

0.
05

4
39

9.
67

6
40

2.
67

6
3

40
0.

02
0.

15
1.

51
N

o
40

0.
15

0.
24

2.
84

N
O

40
1.

48
0.

01
41

4.
17

4
41

4.
41

5
0

41
4.

21
0

1.
34

N
o

41
4.

23
0

2.
69

N
O

41
4.

25
0

27
1.

9
27

4.
05

2.
15

27
3.

7
0

25
.8

5
N

o
27

4.
39

0
19

9.
81

YE
S

27
5.

16
0

41
9.

29
5

41
9.

45
1

0
41

9.
3

0
0

N
o

41
9.

3
0

0
N

O
41

9.
3

0
44

5.
03

9
44

8.
03

9
3

44
5.

04
0

0
N

o
44

5.
04

0
0

N
O

44
5.

04
0

46
1.

00
1

46
1.

00
1

0
46

1.
24

2.
03

2.
03

Ye
s

46
1.

32
3.

61
3.

61
YE

S
46

1.
4

0.
18

1
41

0.
16

2
41

3.
16

2
3

41
0.

39
1.

38
1.

38
N

o
41

0.
47

2.
62

2.
62

N
O

41
0.

56
0.

15
4

41
4.

24
9

41
7.

24
9

3
41

4.
25

0
0

N
o

41
4.

25
0

0
N

O
41

4.
25

0



In
ve

rt
 

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax In

(1
00

-y

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
on

di
tio

n 
Ju

nc
tio

ns
 R

es
ul

ts
 S

um
m

ar
y 

Ta
bl

e
Di

m
en

si
on

s
2-

ye
ar

 
10

-y
ea

r
10

0-
ye

a

39
2.

39
2

39
2.

39
2

0
39

2.
44

0
1.

81
Ye

s
39

2.
46

0
3.

38
YE

S
39

2.
49

0
31

7.
99

2
32

2.
49

2
4.

5
31

8.
57

3.
23

3.
23

N
o

31
8.

81
5.

83
5.

83
N

O
31

9.
23

0.
37

7
27

1.
63

2
27

1.
85

2
0

27
3.

7
0

46
6.

33
Ye

s
27

4.
36

0
89

4.
77

YE
S

27
5.

06
0

31
6.

71
5

32
4.

71
5

8
31

7.
33

2.
3

5.
5

N
o

31
7.

53
4.

06
9.

84
N

O
31

7.
82

0.
28

6
31

2.
36

6
31

7.
36

6
5

31
2.

71
3.

89
3.

89
N

o
31

2.
83

7.
17

7.
17

N
O

31
2.

97
0.

35
5

30
8.

46
3

31
3.

96
3

5.
5

30
9.

02
7.

09
10

.9
6

N
o

30
9.

22
12

.9
20

.0
4

N
O

30
9.

47
0.

77
1

30
5.

90
8

31
1.

90
8

6
30

6.
42

0.
71

10
.8

9
N

o
30

6.
6

1.
14

20
.3

2
N

O
30

6.
87

0.
05

30
4.

32
3

31
1.

32
3

7
30

5.
18

0.
26

26
.0

8
N

o
30

5.
58

0.
4

49
.6

8
N

O
30

6.
1

0.
01

7
30

6.
59

8
31

1.
09

8
4.

5
30

6.
75

0.
65

0.
65

N
o

30
6.

8
1.

15
1.

15
N

O
30

6.
86

0.
05

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
31

2.
78

9
31

2.
78

9
0

31
3.

21
1.

18
1.

18
Ye

s
31

3.
44

2.
16

2.
16

YE
S

31
3.

68
0.

10
5

30
6.

50
1

31
1.

50
1

5
30

7.
44

2.
65

2.
65

N
o

30
7.

68
4.

1
4.

1
N

O
30

8.
01

0.
17

5
36

9.
19

9
37

3.
69

9
4.

5
36

9.
82

5.
18

5.
18

N
o

37
0.

09
9.

51
9.

51
N

O
37

0.
65

0.
58

8
39

3.
76

5
39

3.
76

5
0

39
3.

94
4.

51
4.

51
Ye

s
39

4
8.

05
8.

05
YE

S
39

4.
07

0.
47

38
2.

15
38

6.
65

4.
5

38
2.

93
11

.1
8

11
.1

8
N

o
38

3.
28

20
.0

3
20

.0
3

N
O

38
6.

78
1.

98
38

1.
59

5
38

6.
09

5
4.

5
38

2.
21

2.
8

3.
17

N
o

38
2.

88
5.

1
8.

25
N

O
38

6.
42

0.
31

7
42

2
42

4.
45

8
2.

45
8

42
2.

72
5.

31
6.

3
N

o
42

2.
96

9.
28

11
.3

5
N

O
42

3.
27

0.
56

2
40

0.
34

40
3.

34
3

40
3.

37
2.

79
3.

13
Ye

s
40

3.
42

4.
81

5.
59

YE
S

40
3.

46
0.

27
4

40
3.

58
2

40
3.

58
2

0
40

3.
82

5.
91

5.
91

Ye
s

40
3.

88
9.

79
9.

79
YE

S
40

3.
95

0.
47

3
38

7.
69

9
39

2.
19

9
4.

5
38

8.
04

4.
19

4.
19

N
o

38
8.

19
7.

66
8.

5
N

O
38

8.
69

0.
48

8
38

4.
08

7
39

2.
08

7
8

38
5.

95
9.

42
94

.5
4

N
o

38
6.

6
16

.2
2

16
1.

33
N

O
38

7.
62

1.
23

38
9.

03
4

39
4.

03
4

5
38

9.
25

0.
77

0.
77

N
o

38
9.

42
1.

32
1.

32
N

O
39

1.
88

0.
07

2
39

9.
91

6
40

6.
91

6
7

40
1.

54
6.

67
78

.2
3

N
o

40
2.

11
11

.9
2

13
1.

88
N

O
40

3.
35

0.
83

5
36

5.
90

1
36

6.
05

6
0

36
5.

9
0

0
N

o
36

5.
9

0
0

N
O

36
5.

9
0

40
3.

59
1

40
9.

59
1

6
40

5.
35

11
.9

1
72

.0
9

N
o

40
5.

97
21

.1
1

12
0.

79
N

O
40

8.
33

1.
36

41
2.

15
5

41
9.

15
5

7
41

3.
67

2.
66

59
.1

5
N

o
41

4.
17

4.
8

97
.5

4
N

O
41

5.
14

0.
28

41
0.

75
1

41
7.

75
1

7
41

2.
07

2.
7

61
.5

2
N

o
41

2.
48

4.
91

10
1.

79
N

O
41

3.
52

0.
31

8
42

8.
97

43
2.

97
4

42
9.

45
3.

75
3.

75
N

o
42

9.
66

6.
72

6.
72

N
O

43
3

0.
37

4
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

41
6.

93
7

41
6.

93
7

0
41

8.
75

3.
73

3.
73

Ye
s

41
8.

77
6.

52
6.

52
YE

S
41

8.
79

0.
33

5
37

2.
20

2
37

8.
20

2
6

37
2.

66
5.

71
10

.6
3

N
o

37
2.

82
9.

78
19

.2
5

N
O

37
3.

03
0.

51
8

37
4.

63
6

37
9.

13
6

4.
5

37
5.

13
2.

6
5.

4
N

o
37

5.
34

4.
53

10
.3

7
N

O
37

5.
65

0.
20

7
35

1.
32

6
35

7.
32

6
6

35
2.

22
13

.7
25

.1
7

N
o

35
2.

55
23

.4
4

44
.5

N
O

35
3.

15
1.

79
37

8.
86

6
38

3.
36

6
4.

5
37

9.
33

2.
78

2.
78

N
o

37
9.

48
4.

76
4.

76
N

O
37

9.
69

0.
21

41
2.

74
7

41
7.

74
7

5
41

3.
68

0
15

.3
5

N
o

41
4.

08
0

27
.4

N
O

41
8.

14
0

29
4.

13
8

29
4.

13
8

0
29

8.
58

0
42

5.
2

Ye
s

29
9.

11
0

59
9.

59
YE

S
29

9.
93

0
34

6.
54

3
35

1.
04

3
4.

5
34

7.
18

2.
9

5.
65

N
o

34
7.

42
5.

04
9.

76
N

O
34

7.
84

0.
25

7
41

0.
04

5
41

4.
04

5
4

41
0.

33
3.

54
3.

54
N

o
41

0.
41

6.
2

6.
2

N
O

41
0.

52
0.

40
1

35
4.

50
6

35
9.

00
6

4.
5

35
5.

86
6.

56
9.

84
N

o
35

6.
85

11
.3

8
17

.2
6

N
O

35
8.

69
0.

66
7

36
9.

95
9

37
5.

95
9

6
37

1.
15

7.
94

19
.3

2
N

o
37

1.
58

13
.9

34
.5

3
N

O
37

2.
42

0.
83

8
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

37
5.

7
37

6.
7

1
37

5.
7

0
0

N
o

37
5.

7
0

0
N

O
37

5.
7

0
43

2.
41

2
43

5.
41

2
3

43
2.

52
0.

32
0.

32
N

o
43

2.
54

0.
51

0.
51

N
O

43
2.

58
0.

02
2

42
1.

32
6

42
1.

65
3

0
42

1.
34

0
0.

17
N

o
42

1.
35

0
0.

27
N

O
42

1.
35

0



In
ve

rt
 

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax In

(1
00

-y

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
on

di
tio

n 
Ju

nc
tio

ns
 R

es
ul

ts
 S

um
m

ar
y 

Ta
bl

e
Di

m
en

si
on

s
2-

ye
ar

 
10

-y
ea

r
10

0-
ye

a

35
7.

60
4

36
2.

10
4

4.
5

35
7.

95
1.

38
1.

38
N

o
35

8.
07

2.
5

2.
5

N
O

35
8.

21
0.

12
1

35
0.

92
9

35
0.

92
9

0
35

1.
04

0
1.

34
Ye

s
35

1.
07

0
2.

45
YE

S
35

1.
1

0
34

2.
59

3
34

7.
59

3
5

34
3.

8
8.

52
8.

82
N

o
34

4.
44

15
.3

7
16

.1
9

N
O

34
7.

6
0.

91
4

37
5.

14
38

5.
14

10
37

5.
94

7.
35

14
.6

6
N

o
37

6.
25

13
.3

3
26

.0
6

N
O

37
6.

74
0.

81
8

38
3.

77
8

38
6.

77
8

3
38

5.
93

0.
22

0.
26

N
o

38
5.

93
0.

41
0.

47
N

O
38

5.
94

0.
01

8
37

9.
69

2
38

2.
69

2
3

37
9.

79
0.

11
0.

11
N

o
37

9.
82

0.
2

0.
2

N
O

37
9.

85
0.

00
8

37
7.

03
1

38
0.

03
1

3
37

7.
84

0.
75

0.
86

N
o

37
8.

54
1.

6
1.

79
N

O
37

9.
81

0.
09

2
40

3.
98

1
40

3.
98

1
0

40
4.

09
0

0.
26

Ye
s

40
4.

12
0

0.
46

YE
S

40
4.

16
0

40
6.

56
3

41
1.

06
3

4.
5

40
6.

76
0.

27
0.

27
N

o
40

6.
83

0.
47

0.
48

N
O

40
6.

9
0.

01
9

30
6.

04
6

30
6.

13
8

0
31

3.
13

0
57

0.
34

Ye
s

31
3.

98
0

83
9.

16
YE

S
31

4.
71

0
44

2.
34

6
44

5.
34

6
3

44
2.

68
3

3
N

o
44

2.
79

5.
43

5.
43

N
O

44
2.

93
0.

32
9

41
7.

13
4

42
0.

13
4

3
41

7.
24

0.
18

0.
18

N
o

41
7.

27
0.

31
0.

31
N

O
41

7.
3

0.
01

2
43

6.
58

4
43

9.
58

4
3

43
6.

65
0.

1
0.

1
N

o
43

6.
67

0.
16

0.
16

N
O

43
6.

68
0.

00
6

41
1.

91
7

41
8.

49
8

3
41

1.
92

0
0.

28
N

o
41

1.
93

0
0.

47
N

O
41

1.
93

0
42

3.
96

5
42

9.
46

5
5.

5
42

4.
68

3.
79

10
.8

7
N

o
42

4.
95

6.
8

19
.3

8
N

O
42

5.
51

0.
61

8
45

7
45

8.
05

4
1.

05
4

45
7.

08
0.

1
0.

1
N

o
45

7.
1

0.
16

0.
16

N
O

45
7.

12
0.

00
6

45
3.

77
8

45
7.

69
9

3.
5

45
3.

79
0.

21
0.

27
N

o
45

3.
8

0.
35

0.
45

N
O

45
3.

8
0.

01
3

45
2.

59
2

45
2.

59
2

0
45

2.
61

0
0.

27
Ye

s
45

2.
61

0
0.

44
YE

S
45

2.
62

0
45

6.
73

2
45

6.
73

2
0

45
6.

98
0

0.
03

Ye
s

45
6.

98
0

0.
05

YE
S

45
6.

98
0

42
1.

29
8

42
5.

79
8

4.
5

42
1.

61
1.

29
1.

29
N

o
42

1.
71

2.
34

2.
34

N
O

42
1.

83
0.

12
33

7.
32

1
33

7.
32

1
0

33
7.

56
0.

35
0.

35
Ye

s
33

7.
63

0.
55

0.
55

YE
S

33
7.

71
0.

01
7

41
6.

80
1

41
6.

85
5

0
41

6.
86

0
1.

28
Ye

s
41

6.
89

0
2.

32
YE

S
41

6.
92

0
40

3.
91

9
40

3.
91

9
0

40
4.

29
0

2.
29

Ye
s

40
4.

31
0

3.
87

YE
S

40
4.

33
0

43
9.

35
5

43
9.

35
5

0
43

9.
82

1.
38

1.
38

Ye
s

44
0.

07
2.

58
2.

58
YE

S
44

0.
43

0.
13

9
44

8.
23

2
45

1.
23

2
3

44
8.

39
0.

72
0.

72
N

o
44

8.
44

1.
25

1.
25

N
O

44
8.

49
0.

05
6

40
6

40
8.

02
3

2.
02

3
40

6.
38

0.
78

0.
85

N
o

40
6.

53
1.

43
1.

55
N

O
40

6.
81

0.
06

6
40

4.
49

9
40

4.
49

9
0

40
4.

63
0

0.
83

Ye
s

40
4.

64
0

1.
51

YE
S

40
4.

66
0

42
1.

72
3

42
4.

72
3

3
42

1.
77

0.
08

0.
08

N
o

42
1.

78
0.

12
0.

12
N

O
42

1.
79

0.
00

5
40

1.
15

7
40

1.
15

7
0

40
1.

31
0.

31
0.

54
Ye

s
40

1.
37

0.
63

1.
08

YE
S

40
1.

42
0.

03
40

8.
23

4
40

8.
23

4
0

40
8.

35
0.

24
0.

24
Ye

s
40

8.
4

0.
46

0.
46

YE
S

40
8.

44
0.

02
2

37
7.

26
2

37
7.

26
2

0
37

7.
29

0
0.

53
Ye

s
37

7.
3

0
1.

06
YE

S
37

7.
32

0
32

2.
54

9
32

8.
02

7
4.

02
7

32
2.

7
0

4.
76

N
o

32
3.

27
0

7.
19

N
O

32
4.

3
0

48
7.

00
3

48
7.

00
3

0
48

7
0

0
N

o
48

7
0

0
N

O
48

7
0

45
9.

71
5

45
9.

71
5

0
45

9.
71

0
0

N
o

45
9.

71
0

0
N

O
45

9.
71

0
45

8.
20

9
45

8.
40

7
0

45
8.

21
0

0
N

o
45

8.
21

0
0

N
O

45
8.

21
0

46
5.

83
7

46
6.

29
8

0
46

5.
84

0
0

N
o

46
5.

84
0

0
N

O
46

5.
84

0
42

0.
67

7
42

5.
17

7
4.

5
42

0.
87

0.
27

1.
18

N
o

42
1.

02
0.

46
4.

02
N

O
42

2.
3

0.
02

41
6.

88
1

42
4.

88
1

8
41

8.
53

0.
45

39
.4

3
N

o
41

9.
17

0.
78

69
.7

N
O

42
1.

93
0.

03
5

41
5.

70
1

42
7.

70
1

12
41

7.
45

15
.0

1
54

.1
N

o
41

8.
09

26
.9

1
91

.2
1

N
O

42
0.

52
2.

48
41

5
42

7.
36

1
12

.3
61

41
6.

67
1.

21
55

.1
5

N
o

41
7.

3
2.

03
92

.4
4

N
O

41
9.

5
0.

12
1

41
3.

6
42

0.
6

7
41

5.
48

1.
83

56
.9

N
o

41
6.

18
3.

31
94

.5
N

O
41

7.
96

0.
20

1
42

5.
94

8
42

9.
94

8
4

42
7.

08
17

.6
3

17
.6

3
N

o
43

0.
09

31
.2

1
31

.2
1

YE
S

43
0.

25
3.

47
31

7.
12

8
31

7.
12

8
0

32
2.

49
0

52
8.

97
Ye

s
32

3.
22

0
92

6.
5

YE
S

32
3.

82
0

42
0.

07
4

42
5.

32
4

5.
25

42
0.

42
1.

73
3.

16
N

o
42

0.
55

3.
08

6.
03

N
O

42
2.

56
0.

17
2



In
ve

rt
 

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax In

(1
00

-y

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
on

di
tio

n 
Ju

nc
tio

ns
 R

es
ul

ts
 S

um
m

ar
y 

Ta
bl

e
Di

m
en

si
on

s
2-

ye
ar

 
10

-y
ea

r
10

0-
ye

a

43
4.

40
1

43
4.

40
1

0
43

4.
81

0
0.

03
Ye

s
43

4.
83

0
0.

05
YE

S
43

4.
85

0
43

7.
07

8
43

7.
45

8
0

43
7.

63
4.

97
4.

97
Ye

s
43

7.
66

8.
95

9.
64

YE
S

43
7.

7
0.

54
3

43
7.

24
4

43
7.

24
4

0
43

7.
64

2.
35

2.
4

Ye
s

43
7.

71
4.

16
4.

16
YE

S
43

7.
83

0.
24

8
44

0.
5

44
3.

02
5

2.
52

5
44

0.
76

0.
26

2.
59

N
o

44
0.

91
0.

45
4.

62
N

O
44

1.
09

0.
01

9
44

1.
91

2
44

6.
41

2
4.

5
44

2.
44

2.
35

2.
35

N
o

44
2.

62
4.

2
4.

2
N

O
44

2.
86

0.
24

5
43

6.
59

6
43

9.
59

6
3

43
7.

82
0.

5
11

.3
7

N
o

43
9.

7
0.

76
20

.1
2

YE
S

43
9.

77
0.

03
3

40
4.

18
3

40
6.

01
0

40
4.

18
0

0
N

o
40

4.
18

0
0

N
O

40
4.

18
0

43
6.

99
5

44
0.

49
5

3.
5

43
8.

14
10

.8
9

10
.8

9
N

o
44

0.
15

19
.2

9
19

.2
9

N
O

44
0.

71
1.

98
47

9.
45

8
48

2.
12

8
2.

67
47

9.
46

0
0

N
o

47
9.

46
0

0
N

O
47

9.
46

0
47

8.
19

5
48

2.
19

5
4

47
8.

74
3.

4
3.

71
N

o
47

9.
02

6.
11

6.
82

N
O

48
2.

27
0.

38
4

46
8.

79
46

8.
79

0
46

8.
96

0
3.

7
Ye

s
46

9.
01

0
6.

79
YE

S
46

9.
04

0
49

1.
85

7
49

1.
85

7
0

49
2.

02
0.

56
0.

56
Ye

s
49

2.
07

1
1

YE
S

49
2.

13
0.

04
2

43
0.

38
1

43
3.

88
1

3.
5

43
1.

16
0

5.
69

N
o

43
4.

01
0

10
.4

3
YE

S
43

4.
1

0
43

5.
31

1
43

8.
64

1
3.

33
43

8.
71

0
4.

05
Ye

s
43

8.
75

0
7.

7
YE

S
43

8.
81

0
44

8.
00

5
44

8.
00

5
0

44
8.

1
0.

98
11

.7
7

Ye
s

44
8.

13
1.

71
18

.0
3

YE
S

44
8.

16
0.

1
44

9.
53

4
44

9.
92

7
0

44
9.

86
15

.4
2

15
.5

1
N

o
44

9.
95

27
.7

7
27

.7
7

YE
S

45
0.

07
2.

63
42

4.
21

2
42

4.
21

2
0

42
4.

21
0

0
N

o
42

4.
21

0
0

N
O

42
4.

21
0

40
8.

44
6

40
8.

44
6

0
40

8.
45

0
0

Ye
s

40
8.

45
0

0
YE

S
40

8.
45

0
40

7.
03

2
41

1.
03

2
4

40
8.

6
13

.9
3

20
.2

5
N

o
41

0.
31

25
.0

1
33

.1
N

O
41

1.
56

2.
04

40
6.

5
41

1.
09

4.
59

40
8.

32
3.

53
23

.3
2

N
o

41
0.

13
6.

41
38

.1
9

N
O

41
1.

51
0.

47
40

5.
8

41
1.

16
2

5.
36

2
40

8.
01

2.
7

25
.8

N
o

40
9.

71
4.

72
55

.3
2

N
O

41
1.

81
0.

24
5

40
5.

55
41

1.
55

6
40

7.
91

1.
14

85
.3

6
N

o
40

9.
24

2.
02

15
4.

02
N

O
41

1.
37

0.
10

9
40

7.
38

7
41

3.
38

7
6

40
9.

88
3.

07
40

.4
7

N
o

41
3.

87
5.

36
65

.7
2

YE
S

41
4.

21
0.

26
5

39
7.

15
6

40
3.

65
6

6.
5

39
9.

79
4.

62
93

.5
5

N
o

40
2.

54
8.

07
16

8.
78

N
O

40
4.

79
0.

53
3

39
6.

86
3

40
3.

86
3

7
39

9.
55

0.
26

98
.6

8
N

o
40

2.
06

0.
43

18
0.

35
N

O
40

4.
6

0.
01

9
42

4.
21

7
43

0.
21

7
6

42
4.

9
0.

22
18

.1
3

N
o

42
5.

13
0.

35
32

.4
5

N
O

42
5.

46
0.

01
6

42
4.

94
7

43
0.

94
7

6
42

5.
41

4.
77

4.
77

N
o

42
5.

58
8.

54
8.

54
N

O
42

5.
84

0.
70

2
41

1.
43

5
41

4.
93

5
3.

5
41

4.
13

0
0

N
o

41
4.

57
0

0
N

O
41

4.
83

0
34

4.
85

9
34

4.
89

2
0

34
5.

69
0

66
.4

7
Ye

s
34

6.
03

0
10

3.
79

YE
S

34
6.

46
0

41
8.

36
2

42
4.

36
2

6
42

0.
01

7.
64

27
.0

3
N

o
42

0.
77

13
.1

4
49

.4
5

N
O

42
1.

46
0.

77
41

8.
22

42
4.

22
6

41
9.

21
0.

9
27

.8
5

N
o

41
9.

63
1.

59
55

.6
N

O
42

0.
53

0.
09

5
43

0.
02

6
43

6.
02

6
6

43
0.

86
9.

17
13

.8
1

N
o

43
1.

11
16

.3
7

22
.7

9
N

O
43

1.
5

1.
38

42
8.

53
2

43
4.

03
2

5.
5

42
9.

34
2.

19
19

.1
3

N
o

42
9.

67
3.

68
35

.7
N

O
43

0.
15

0.
22

43
2.

27
7

43
8.

27
7

6
43

2.
83

13
.1

5
13

.1
5

N
o

43
3.

02
23

.5
9

23
.5

9
N

O
43

3.
27

1.
96

44
0.

02
4

44
3.

02
4

3
44

2.
17

0.
29

0.
29

N
o

44
2.

18
0.

44
0.

44
N

O
44

2.
18

0.
01

8
43

9.
70

3
43

9.
70

3
0

43
9.

82
0.

22
0.

22
Ye

s
43

9.
84

0.
35

0.
35

YE
S

43
9.

87
0.

01
6

43
7.

63
7

43
7.

63
7

0
43

7.
68

0
0.

24
Ye

s
43

7.
69

0
0.

36
YE

S
43

7.
71

0
46

0.
53

1
47

0.
03

1
9.

5
46

1.
58

0.
16

30
.0

4
N

o
46

1.
96

0.
27

54
.1

4
N

O
46

2.
42

0.
01

1
44

8.
85

7
45

2.
35

7
3.

5
45

0.
47

1.
62

35
.2

1
N

o
45

1.
07

3
62

.5
6

N
O

45
2.

44
0.

18
6

38
5.

53
9

38
7.

23
5

0
38

5.
58

0
2.

85
N

o
38

5.
59

0
4.

81
N

O
38

5.
61

0
44

9.
3

45
3.

3
4

45
0.

51
5.

86
5.

86
N

o
45

1.
11

10
.5

10
.5

N
O

45
2.

53
0.

62
7

46
4.

83
6

46
9.

33
6

4.
5

46
5.

78
0.

18
28

.1
9

N
o

46
6.

13
0.

27
49

.6
1

N
O

46
6.

95
0.

01
2

46
1.

02
1

46
5.

52
1

4.
5

46
2.

8
0.

21
28

.3
6

N
o

46
3.

53
0.

32
49

.8
7

N
O

46
4.

58
0.

01
4

46
5.

80
7

47
0.

30
7

4.
5

46
7.

19
11

.2
1

28
.0

8
N

o
46

7.
97

20
.0

9
49

.5
8

N
O

46
9.

7
1.

49



In
ve

rt
 

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax In

(1
00

-y

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
on

di
tio

n 
Ju

nc
tio

ns
 R

es
ul

ts
 S

um
m

ar
y 

Ta
bl

e
Di

m
en

si
on

s
2-

ye
ar

 
10

-y
ea

r
10

0-
ye

a

48
6.

59
3

48
6.

59
3

0
48

6.
59

0
0

N
o

48
6.

59
0

0
N

O
48

6.
66

0
50

1.
84

7
50

6.
34

7
4.

5
50

2.
19

2.
17

2.
17

N
o

50
2.

31
3.

88
3.

88
N

O
50

2.
46

0.
22

8
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
37

3.
30

8
37

3.
30

8
0

37
3.

69
0

1.
97

Ye
s

37
3.

7
0

3.
28

YE
S

37
3.

72
0

49
3.

81
1

49
8.

31
1

4.
5

49
4.

63
1.

59
8.

01
N

o
49

5.
03

2.
9

13
.8

4
N

O
49

8.
69

0.
18

4
48

8.
67

3
49

3.
17

3
4.

5
48

9.
54

1.
73

9.
56

N
o

49
0.

41
3.

12
16

.5
4

N
O

49
3.

16
0.

19
2

48
4.

25
1

48
8.

75
1

4.
5

48
5.

25
3.

73
13

.0
1

N
o

48
5.

67
6.

75
22

.4
9

N
O

48
6.

14
0.

46
7

47
3.

84
5

47
8.

34
5

4.
5

47
4.

73
2.

5
17

.7
1

N
o

47
5.

04
4.

1
30

.9
N

O
47

5.
4

0.
17

6
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

43
4.

67
7

43
6.

67
7

2
43

4.
68

0
0

N
o

43
4.

68
0

0
N

O
43

4.
68

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

50
9.

21
1

51
2.

21
1

3
50

9.
28

0.
13

0.
13

N
o

50
9.

3
0.

23
0.

23
N

O
50

9.
32

0.
00

9
41

5.
31

5
42

0.
31

5
5

41
5.

8
6.

23
6.

42
N

o
41

5.
96

11
.0

3
11

.3
7

N
O

41
6.

17
0.

61
9

40
7.

62
41

1.
66

7
4.

04
7

40
8.

31
1.

46
12

.8
7

N
o

40
8.

53
2.

23
22

.2
5

N
O

40
8.

8
0.

09
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
41

1.
2

41
5.

40
2

4.
20

2
41

1.
67

4.
8

4.
94

N
o

41
1.

81
8.

12
8.

42
N

O
41

2.
12

0.
55

4
39

9.
39

40
3.

35
2

3.
96

2
40

0.
6

8.
67

58
.9

2
N

o
40

1.
12

14
.3

5
10

0.
06

N
O

40
3.

57
0.

86
3

40
1.

63
40

5.
35

2
3.

72
2

40
2.

21
2.

49
15

.3
9

N
o

40
2.

39
4.

18
26

.7
5

N
O

40
3.

29
0.

21
1

39
6.

45
40

1.
54

5.
09

39
8.

31
8.

72
75

.2
N

o
39

9.
39

15
.3

5
12

9.
39

N
O

40
1.

75
0.

95
8

39
3.

38
4

39
9.

88
4

6.
5

39
7.

64
0.

41
22

4.
27

N
o

39
8.

29
0.

65
33

5.
2

N
O

39
9.

44
0.

03
2

39
2.

19
1

39
8.

69
1

6.
5

39
7.

6
3.

02
25

8
N

o
39

7.
98

4.
73

33
9.

19
N

O
39

8.
98

0.
21

5
39

2
40

2.
34

2
10

.3
42

39
6.

56
0.

51
25

5.
09

N
o

39
7.

66
0.

81
33

8.
66

N
O

39
8.

04
0.

04
39

1.
7

40
2.

53
1

10
.8

31
39

6.
42

3.
55

27
2.

69
N

o
39

7.
29

5.
69

36
4.

21
N

O
39

7.
86

0.
28

1
44

2.
51

1
44

7.
01

1
4.

5
44

2.
86

2.
5

3.
12

N
o

44
2.

96
4.

14
5.

19
N

O
44

3.
08

0.
19

3
44

2.
60

8
44

7.
10

8
4.

5
44

2.
93

0.
63

0.
63

N
o

44
3.

03
1.

06
1.

06
N

O
44

3.
14

0.
04

3
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

44
0.

84
6

44
5.

34
6

4.
5

44
1.

08
0.

28
3.

41
N

o
44

1.
15

0.
48

5.
67

N
O

44
1.

23
0.

02
3

43
1.

52
3

43
8.

02
3

6.
5

43
4.

84
5

11
7.

08
N

o
43

6.
13

8.
31

16
2.

1
N

O
43

6.
98

0.
38

8
39

7.
02

39
9.

76
3

2.
74

3
39

8.
73

4.
67

13
8.

61
N

o
39

9.
35

7.
71

19
5.

6
N

O
40

0.
49

0.
43

6
39

7.
52

8
40

1.
02

8
3.

5
39

8.
78

5.
61

5.
73

N
o

39
9.

68
9.

34
9.

56
N

O
40

1.
05

0.
44

6
41

1.
5

41
8.

35
4

6.
85

4
41

2.
83

16
.2

2
33

.7
3

N
o

41
3.

42
28

.0
2

56
.4

N
O

41
7.

3
2.

04
41

0.
5

41
8.

13
6

7.
63

6
41

2.
06

4.
06

45
.2

5
N

o
41

2.
77

6.
66

77
.6

6
N

O
41

5.
46

0.
35

1
42

1.
22

6
42

5.
72

6
4.

5
42

1.
65

0
0.

02
N

o
42

1.
97

0
0.

03
N

O
42

5.
83

0
42

6.
97

6
43

1.
47

6
4.

5
42

7.
8

0.
36

6.
44

N
o

42
8.

11
0.

56
10

.7
9

N
O

43
1.

48
0.

02
3

44
0.

16
4

44
0.

16
4

0
44

0.
16

0
0

N
o

44
0.

16
0

0
N

O
44

0.
16

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

43
8.

33
5

43
8.

33
5

0
43

8.
33

0
0

N
o

43
8.

33
0

0
N

O
43

8.
33

0
43

1.
23

5
44

3.
49

3
3.

67
43

4.
92

0.
81

0.
81

N
o

43
4.

92
1.

29
1.

29
N

O
43

4.
93

0.
05

7
45

0.
53

2
45

0.
53

2
0

45
0.

53
0

0
N

o
45

0.
53

0
0

N
O

45
0.

53
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0



In
ve

rt
 

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax In

(1
00

-y

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
on

di
tio

n 
Ju

nc
tio

ns
 R

es
ul

ts
 S

um
m

ar
y 

Ta
bl

e
Di

m
en

si
on

s
2-

ye
ar

 
10

-y
ea

r
10

0-
ye

a

46
9.

65
3

46
9.

65
3

0
46

9.
65

0
0

N
o

46
9.

65
0

0
N

O
46

9.
65

0
41

3.
25

3
41

9.
15

9
0

41
5.

79
6.

06
6.

86
N

o
41

5.
8

9.
93

11
.5

7
N

O
41

5.
82

0.
53

3
46

4.
82

9
46

9.
32

9
4.

5
46

5.
59

15
.7

7
15

.7
7

N
o

46
5.

96
28

.3
4

28
.3

4
N

O
46

9.
45

1.
96

43
7.

45
4

44
1.

95
4

4.
5

43
7.

96
9.

69
9.

99
N

o
43

8.
13

16
.9

5
17

.5
8

N
O

43
8.

37
1.

08
44

3.
67

1
44

8.
17

1
4.

5
44

4.
42

8.
68

8.
68

N
o

44
4.

67
14

.4
9

14
.4

9
N

O
44

6.
88

0.
75

9
43

9.
60

2
44

4.
60

2
5

44
0.

9
0.

59
12

.6
3

N
o

44
2.

08
0.

92
21

.7
8

N
O

44
4.

42
0.

03
9

44
4.

67
3

44
8.

67
3

4
44

4.
88

0.
74

0.
74

N
o

44
4.

94
1.

2
1.

2
N

O
44

6.
71

0.
06

5
44

4
44

9.
11

7
5.

11
7

44
4.

67
0.

35
3.

03
N

o
44

4.
88

0.
56

4.
97

N
O

44
6.

43
0.

02
7

44
4.

27
1

44
8.

77
1

4.
5

44
4.

96
2.

69
2.

69
N

o
44

5.
19

4.
44

4.
44

N
O

44
6.

7
0.

24
7

44
2.

11
7

44
6.

61
7

4.
5

44
2.

58
0.

05
3.

05
N

o
44

2.
74

0.
07

5.
03

N
O

44
5.

44
0.

00
3

44
5.

67
7

44
9.

67
7

4
44

5.
85

0.
65

0.
65

N
o

44
5.

91
1.

1
1.

1
N

O
44

6.
08

0.
05

7
44

5.
69

45
0.

69
5

44
6.

7
1.

05
16

.9
1

N
o

44
7.

15
1.

68
32

.2
7

N
O

44
7.

37
0.

07
7

43
4.

44
7

43
4.

44
7

0
43

4.
52

0
1.

36
Ye

s
43

4.
54

0
2.

33
YE

S
43

4.
58

0
45

4.
76

9
45

9.
76

9
5

45
5.

76
7.

37
16

.0
5

N
o

45
6.

35
12

.6
2

30
.7

N
O

45
9.

94
0.

80
2

45
6.

38
3

46
1.

38
3

5
45

7
0.

13
9.

33
N

o
45

7.
32

0.
19

18
.9

2
N

O
46

0.
61

0.
00

8
43

7.
93

6
44

1.
60

6
3.

67
44

1.
81

20
.3

9
22

.8
Ye

s
44

1.
81

20
.3

9
22

.8
YE

S
44

1.
81

0.
74

1
43

6.
40

6
44

0.
90

6
4.

5
43

9.
64

0.
17

0.
17

N
o

43
9.

97
0.

26
0.

26
N

O
44

0.
3

0.
01

2
43

7
44

0.
91

8
3.

91
8

43
9.

67
9.

86
38

.5
9

N
o

44
0.

09
16

.6
1

69
.5

9
N

O
44

0.
53

0.
99

3
42

9.
20

6
43

4.
70

6
5.

5
42

9.
34

0.
72

0.
72

N
o

43
1.

09
1.

14
9.

52
N

O
43

1.
12

0.
05

43
4.

52
1

43
9.

02
1

4.
5

43
5.

3
11

.0
6

11
.0

6
N

o
43

6.
66

19
.5

4
19

.5
4

N
O

43
9.

82
2.

03
42

5.
87

43
4.

37
3

8.
50

3
42

8.
43

8.
36

61
.4

5
N

o
43

1.
5

14
.4

7
16

6.
88

N
O

43
1.

6
0.

97
3

42
5.

5
43

4.
52

7
9.

02
7

42
8.

28
7.

48
79

.4
1

N
o

43
0.

45
12

.7
1

21
4.

85
N

O
43

0.
73

0.
77

4
43

3.
34

4
43

7.
34

4
4

43
5.

75
11

.8
4

11
.8

4
N

o
43

7.
36

20
.3

5
20

.3
5

YE
S

43
7.

83
1.

97
38

7.
04

9
38

7.
80

9
0.

76
38

7.
86

0
8.

04
Ye

s
38

8.
12

0
13

.2
6

YE
S

38
8.

47
0

43
2.

74
7

43
6.

74
7

4
43

5.
7

4.
47

36
.1

6
N

o
43

7.
16

7.
58

75
.8

5
YE

S
43

7.
12

0.
59

3
44

8.
23

2
45

0.
06

2
1.

83
44

8.
23

0
0

N
o

44
8.

23
0

0
N

O
44

8.
23

0
44

7.
81

8
44

7.
81

8
0

44
7.

82
0

0
Ye

s
44

7.
82

0
0

YE
S

44
7.

82
0

49
4.

37
3

50
0.

37
3

6
49

4.
54

1.
02

1.
02

N
o

49
4.

58
1.

67
1.

67
N

O
49

4.
64

0.
08

3
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
45

1.
96

45
2.

96
1

45
3.

02
6.

14
6.

14
Ye

s
45

3.
1

10
.7

7
10

.7
7

YE
S

45
3.

19
0.

82
4

43
0.

29
6

43
4.

79
6

4.
5

43
0.

51
0.

54
0.

73
N

o
43

0.
6

0.
98

1.
42

N
O

43
1.

97
0.

04
5

43
3.

59
1

43
8.

09
1

4.
5

43
4.

13
4.

07
4.

07
N

o
43

4.
31

6.
85

6.
85

N
O

43
4.

6
0.

35
8

42
8.

56
9

43
1.

56
9

3
42

9.
31

7.
52

7.
52

N
o

42
9.

63
13

13
N

O
43

0.
38

1.
04

40
4.

17
9

40
4.

17
9

0
40

4.
79

0
58

.0
8

Ye
s

40
4.

88
0

73
.9

6
YE

S
40

4.
98

0
43

3.
62

43
7.

62
4

43
3.

74
0.

2
0.

2
N

o
43

3.
8

0.
46

0.
46

N
O

43
3.

87
0.

02
2

42
7.

25
6

42
9.

75
6

2.
5

42
8.

4
0.

89
0.

89
N

o
42

8.
74

1.
58

1.
58

N
O

42
9.

18
0.

09
3

42
6.

8
42

7.
84

9
1.

04
9

42
8.

23
0.

19
13

.2
5

Ye
s

42
8.

43
0.

31
22

.9
6

YE
S

42
8.

65
0.

01
2

41
4.

45
4

41
8.

45
4

4
41

5.
53

16
.9

5
16

.9
5

N
o

41
5.

95
29

.7
9

29
.7

9
N

O
41

7.
14

2.
61

39
7.

70
3

40
0.

20
3

2.
5

40
0.

28
2.

91
28

.1
5

Ye
s

40
1.

16
4.

92
42

.9
2

YE
S

40
1.

88
0.

29
2

39
4.

55
7

40
1.

55
7

7
39

6.
84

2.
37

11
3.

94
N

o
39

8.
95

4
20

6.
38

N
O

40
1.

43
0.

25
8

39
3.

89
1

40
1.

39
1

7.
5

39
6.

1
5.

71
11

7.
96

N
o

39
8.

41
9.

61
21

3.
68

N
O

40
0.

48
0.

54
9

43
7.

13
3

44
1.

63
3

4.
5

43
7.

68
2.

06
2.

06
N

o
43

7.
86

3.
58

3.
58

N
O

43
8.

1
0.

18
9

43
6.

65
4

44
0.

90
4

4.
25

43
7.

07
2.

23
4.

25
N

o
43

7.
21

3.
88

7.
4

N
O

43
7.

38
0.

20
9



In
ve

rt
 

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax In

(1
00

-y

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
on

di
tio

n 
Ju

nc
tio

ns
 R

es
ul

ts
 S

um
m

ar
y 

Ta
bl

e
Di

m
en

si
on

s
2-

ye
ar

 
10

-y
ea

r
10

0-
ye

a

38
9.

99
2

39
8.

99
2

9
39

1.
96

1.
82

1.
82

N
o

39
4.

24
2.

93
13

.8
3

N
O

39
6.

88
0.

15
7

38
9.

5
39

8.
26

1
8.

76
1

39
4.

49
0

15
2.

71
N

o
39

7.
1

0
26

7.
66

N
O

39
8.

45
0

39
3.

45
8

39
8.

95
8

5.
5

39
3.

77
3.

06
3.

2
N

o
39

3.
99

5.
31

8.
71

N
O

39
7.

28
0.

44
3

39
0.

69
4

39
5.

19
4

4.
5

39
1.

26
1.

31
1.

51
N

o
39

3.
99

2.
1

3.
11

N
O

39
5.

77
0.

10
8

39
0.

14
6

39
4.

64
6

4.
5

39
0.

75
7.

96
8

N
o

39
3.

72
14

.1
1

14
.1

8
N

O
39

5.
72

0.
95

38
7.

21
39

4.
71

7.
5

38
9.

82
0.

41
16

2.
8

N
o

39
3.

26
0.

64
28

6.
33

N
O

39
5.

24
0.

02
8

38
4.

5
39

0.
95

7
6.

45
7

38
7.

16
0.

74
18

0.
4

N
o

38
9.

9
1.

2
31

1.
2

N
O

39
2.

39
0.

06
3

38
7.

10
3

39
1.

60
3

4.
5

38
8.

23
15

.8
6

17
.1

7
N

o
39

2.
05

28
.2

8
30

.7
3

YE
S

39
2.

57
2.

68
39

0.
3

39
7.

54
7.

24
39

4.
65

0
15

2.
02

N
o

39
7.

55
0

26
6.

76
YE

S
39

9.
02

0
39

4
39

6.
96

7
2.

96
7

39
5.

27
4.

31
45

.5
6

N
o

39
7.

86
7.

23
71

.2
7

YE
S

39
9.

11
0.

40
3

39
0.

41
5

39
6.

91
5

6.
5

39
4.

69
3.

04
15

2.
21

N
o

39
7.

63
5.

15
27

4.
42

YE
S

39
9.

04
0.

32
1

39
8.

77
6

40
3.

77
6

5
40

0.
31

9.
52

40
.1

7
N

o
40

2.
21

15
.5

8
66

.1
7

N
O

40
4.

19
0.

79
7

39
5.

81
6

39
9.

81
6

4
39

7.
66

1.
95

41
.8

1
N

o
39

9.
01

3.
17

66
.1

5
N

O
40

0.
69

0.
14

9
41

2.
26

41
7.

26
5

41
3.

51
4.

47
4.

47
N

o
41

4.
02

7.
14

7.
14

N
O

41
7.

46
0.

35
5

44
0.

43
7

44
0.

43
7

0
44

0.
9

5.
66

5.
66

Ye
s

44
1.

05
9.

77
9.

77
YE

S
44

1.
31

0.
73

2
44

1.
48

2
44

1.
48

2
0

44
1.

96
5.

06
5.

06
Ye

s
44

1.
98

9.
01

9.
01

YE
S

44
2.

02
0.

55
6

43
1.

11
8

43
6.

61
8

5.
5

43
2.

19
0.

59
19

.8
4

N
o

43
2.

57
0.

97
32

.3
8

N
O

43
6.

3
0.

06
2

43
0.

49
8

43
6.

49
8

6
43

1.
56

1.
37

21
.0

9
N

o
43

1.
99

2.
26

34
.3

1
N

O
43

5.
97

0.
13

2
43

1.
75

3
43

6.
25

3
4.

5
43

2.
56

6.
6

19
.3

N
o

43
2.

87
11

.5
3

31
.5

4
N

O
43

6.
38

0.
82

9
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

46
5.

03
7

46
5.

52
5

0
46

5.
04

0
0

N
o

46
5.

04
0

0
N

O
46

5.
04

0
41

9.
20

1
42

4.
20

1
5

42
0.

32
7.

17
27

.9
6

N
o

42
0.

71
12

.3
5

45
.8

9
N

O
42

2.
86

0.
95

7
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

45
1.

13
2

45
1.

13
2

0
45

1.
13

0
0

N
o

45
1.

13
0

0
N

O
45

1.
13

0
44

1.
83

6
44

8.
83

6
7

44
2.

92
0.

22
14

.6
1

N
o

44
4.

79
0.

37
24

.9
4

N
O

44
5.

61
0.

01
6

44
5.

49
3

44
9.

49
3

4
44

5.
96

4.
09

4.
09

N
o

44
6.

72
7.

32
7.

32
N

O
44

9.
89

0.
46

4
44

7.
61

8
45

2.
11

8
4.

5
44

7.
95

1.
42

1.
42

N
o

44
8.

06
2.

52
2.

52
N

O
44

8.
18

0.
12

7
44

2.
61

1
44

5.
61

1
3

44
3.

61
7.

83
9.

2
N

o
44

5.
3

14
.0

4
16

.5
N

O
44

5.
95

1.
18

44
8.

67
2

44
8.

67
2

0
44

9.
21

1.
23

1.
23

Ye
s

44
9.

54
2.

13
2.

13
YE

S
44

9.
7

0.
09

8
43

6.
79

9
44

0.
29

9
3.

5
44

0.
93

2.
91

9.
54

Ye
s

44
1.

01
5.

23
17

.2
1

YE
S

44
1.

1
0.

31
7

43
7.

29
2

44
0.

29
2

3
44

0.
94

3.
92

6.
13

Ye
s

44
1.

02
7.

07
11

.3
4

YE
S

44
1.

11
0.

44
8

39
5.

89
8

39
5.

89
8

0
39

5.
92

0
2.

01
Ye

s
39

5.
93

0
3.

34
YE

S
39

5.
94

0
42

2.
29

2
42

6.
29

2
4

42
2.

64
1.

87
1.

87
N

o
42

2.
77

3.
36

3.
36

N
O

42
2.

95
0.

19
2

39
8.

03
40

3.
53

5.
5

40
4.

5
17

.3
3

48
.5

7
Ye

s
40

5.
09

30
.6

7
65

.4
2

YE
S

40
5.

37
2.

19
39

7.
69

40
3.

69
6

40
4.

48
0.

18
49

.8
8

Ye
s

40
4.

99
0.

28
65

.4
2

YE
S

40
5.

34
0.

01
2

41
5.

29
42

0.
79

5.
5

41
6.

28
3.

62
21

.7
3

N
o

41
6.

67
6.

24
38

.6
7

N
O

41
7.

32
0.

36
8

43
7.

58
6

44
2.

08
6

4.
5

43
8.

22
5.

9
5.

9
N

o
43

8.
49

10
.6

10
.6

N
O

43
9.

16
0.

60
8

43
6.

72
44

1.
72

5
43

7.
49

0.
76

18
.4

5
N

o
43

7.
8

1.
25

32
.9

8
N

O
43

8.
18

0.
07

3
44

0.
39

6
44

4.
89

6
4.

5
44

0.
79

2.
6

2.
6

N
o

44
1.

06
4.

57
4.

57
N

O
44

1.
57

0.
22

7
43

9.
5

44
4.

5
5

44
0.

55
0.

21
12

.3
N

o
44

0.
96

0.
33

21
.9

N
O

44
1.

42
0.

01
6

44
5.

06
4

45
0.

06
4

5
44

6.
07

6.
53

9.
68

N
o

44
6.

57
11

.7
2

17
.3

1
N

O
45

0.
14

0.
74

8
44

6.
5

45
0.

79
9

4.
29

9
44

7.
05

3.
21

3.
21

N
o

44
7.

33
5.

78
5.

78
N

O
45

1.
13

0.
39

4
40

1.
52

8
40

1.
52

8
0

40
1.

64
8.

44
8.

44
Ye

s
40

1.
68

14
.1

2
14

.1
2

YE
S

40
1.

73
0.

76
45

4.
78

6
45

8.
28

6
3.

5
45

5.
81

0.
73

2.
21

N
o

45
6.

52
1.

27
3.

87
N

O
45

7.
89

0.
06

8



In
ve

rt
 

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax In

(1
00

-y

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
on

di
tio

n 
Ju

nc
tio

ns
 R

es
ul

ts
 S

um
m

ar
y 

Ta
bl

e
Di

m
en

si
on

s
2-

ye
ar

 
10

-y
ea

r
10

0-
ye

a

45
1.

25
3

45
4.

25
3

3
45

4.
33

4.
02

6.
62

Ye
s

45
4.

39
7.

23
13

YE
S

45
4.

45
0.

49
3

43
7.

32
4

43
9.

82
4

2.
5

43
9.

48
3.

71
3.

71
N

o
43

9.
58

6.
73

6.
73

N
O

43
9.

64
0.

43
8

43
4.

39
5

44
0.

89
5

6.
5

43
4.

46
0.

06
0.

06
N

o
43

4.
48

0.
09

0.
09

N
O

43
4.

5
0.

00
3

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
44

2.
03

5
44

2.
03

5
0

44
3.

03
4.

32
4.

36
Ye

s
44

3.
57

7.
91

8.
01

YE
S

44
4.

41
0.

39
8

43
7.

61
43

7.
61

0
43

7.
91

0
3.

48
Ye

s
43

7.
96

0
6.

71
YE

S
43

8.
02

0
49

5.
41

49
5.

41
0

49
5.

63
0

0.
32

Ye
s

49
5.

71
0

0.
56

YE
S

49
5.

85
0

46
4.

61
1

46
4.

61
1

0
46

4.
72

0.
28

0.
28

Ye
s

46
4.

75
0.

46
0.

46
YE

S
46

4.
78

0.
02

45
4.

90
1

45
4.

90
1

0
45

5.
1

0
0.

27
Ye

s
45

5.
11

0
0.

44
YE

S
45

5.
12

0
46

1.
24

9
46

1.
24

9
0

46
1.

3
1.

52
1.

52
Ye

s
46

1.
32

2.
86

2.
86

YE
S

46
1.

35
0.

14
44

8.
15

45
1.

02
2

2.
87

2
45

0.
07

2.
72

3.
28

N
o

45
0.

94
4.

83
4.

95
N

O
45

1.
06

0.
28

5
44

8.
3

45
0.

80
1

2.
50

1
45

0.
08

0.
58

0.
58

N
o

45
0.

93
0.

99
0.

99
YE

S
45

0.
98

0.
05

44
5.

42
8

44
8.

92
8

3.
5

44
9.

6
3.

71
7.

82
Ye

s
44

9.
73

6.
55

9.
99

YE
S

44
9.

81
0.

38
7

44
6.

50
7

44
9.

50
7

3
44

9.
77

7.
09

7.
09

Ye
s

44
9.

83
12

.5
4

12
.5

4
YE

S
44

9.
9

0.
81

3
44

5.
04

3
44

9.
04

3
4

44
9.

36
0.

38
7.

91
Ye

s
44

9.
38

0.
63

9.
82

YE
S

44
9.

39
0.

03
44

4.
5

44
8.

32
3

3.
82

3
44

5.
27

1.
67

10
.2

9
N

o
44

5.
73

2.
91

24
.0

7
N

O
44

5.
98

0.
20

5
44

6.
74

44
7.

60
1

0
44

8.
43

0.
94

7.
44

Ye
s

44
8.

6
1.

67
12

.3
2

YE
S

44
8.

61
0.

08
5

49
1.

42
1

49
1.

42
1

0
49

1.
57

0
1.

78
Ye

s
49

5.
71

0
14

.5
6

YE
S

50
0.

66
0

44
6.

62
8

45
0.

12
8

3.
5

44
7.

07
2.

37
2.

37
N

o
44

7.
24

4.
09

4.
09

N
O

44
7.

42
0.

27
1

44
7.

35
6

44
7.

35
6

0
44

8.
46

0
2.

09
Ye

s
44

8.
68

0
4.

12
YE

S
44

8.
77

0
43

2.
40

6
43

5.
90

6
3.

5
43

2.
41

0
0

N
o

43
2.

41
0

0
N

O
43

2.
41

0
41

6.
47

3
41

9.
47

3
3

41
6.

59
2.

85
2.

85
N

o
41

6.
63

4.
81

4.
81

N
O

41
6.

68
0.

24
4

45
7.

82
6

45
7.

82
6

0
45

9.
84

5.
95

5.
95

Ye
s

45
9.

87
10

.7
4

10
.7

4
YE

S
45

9.
9

0.
85

45
0.

20
7

45
0.

20
7

0
45

0.
3

0.
22

0.
22

Ye
s

45
0.

32
0.

36
0.

36
YE

S
45

0.
34

0.
01

5
46

4.
58

2
46

4.
58

2
0

46
4.

62
0.

4
0.

4
Ye

s
46

4.
63

0.
74

0.
74

YE
S

46
4.

65
0.

03
3

46
0.

44
6

46
0.

44
6

0
46

0.
52

0
0.

01
Ye

s
46

0.
52

0
0.

02
YE

S
46

0.
52

0
44

4.
36

7
44

7.
86

7
3.

5
44

5.
09

4.
89

4.
89

N
o

44
5.

36
8.

78
8.

79
N

O
44

5.
75

0.
45

5
46

2.
85

4
46

8.
35

4
5.

5
46

4.
04

2.
42

36
.3

1
N

o
46

8.
36

3.
88

12
0.

14
YE

S
46

8.
81

0.
19

44
5.

72
6

44
9.

97
6

4.
25

44
5.

83
0.

49
0.

49
N

o
44

5.
86

0.
82

0.
82

N
O

44
5.

9
0.

03
5

42
9.

44
5

43
4.

44
5

5
43

0.
38

8.
25

18
.5

4
N

o
43

0.
79

14
.7

33
.3

6
N

O
43

5.
13

1.
53

42
9.

88
3

43
4.

88
3

5
43

0.
94

9.
86

10
.3

4
N

o
43

1.
44

17
.5

6
18

.3
7

N
O

43
5.

69
1.

73
42

8.
87

1
43

2.
87

1
4

42
9.

2
1.

58
1.

58
N

o
42

9.
32

2.
83

2.
83

N
O

42
9.

47
0.

14
9

42
6.

5
43

1.
5

5
42

7.
64

2.
48

20
.9

7
N

o
42

8.
18

4.
24

37
.2

9
N

O
43

1.
77

0.
23

43
3.

27
43

3.
27

0
43

3.
27

0
0

N
o

43
3.

27
0

0
N

O
43

3.
27

0
40

6.
56

41
3.

69
9

7.
13

9
40

7.
85

3.
99

37
.0

7
N

o
40

8.
81

7.
21

68
.1

9
N

O
41

0.
52

0.
39

3
43

3.
51

7
43

3.
51

7
0

43
3.

52
0

0
Ye

s
43

3.
52

0
0

YE
S

43
3.

52
0

37
0.

02
6

37
8.

52
6

8.
5

37
1.

32
4

21
.3

2
N

o
37

1.
91

7.
18

39
.2

5
N

O
37

2.
76

0.
51

6
39

2.
71

5
39

7.
21

5
4.

5
39

2.
98

1.
59

1.
59

N
o

39
3.

06
2.

84
2.

84
N

O
39

3.
17

0.
16

1
39

1.
65

39
3.

88
6

0
39

1.
66

0.
61

0.
61

N
o

39
1.

67
0.

92
0.

92
N

O
39

1.
67

0.
04

39
0.

88
39

6.
88

6
39

1.
55

3.
38

17
.3

5
N

o
39

1.
79

6.
16

31
.4

3
N

O
39

2.
08

0.
32

34
0.

69
1

34
5.

19
1

4.
5

34
1.

87
4.

79
33

.3
2

N
o

34
2.

35
8.

01
60

.2
9

N
O

34
3.

21
0.

46
4

35
6.

77
5

36
2.

27
5

5.
5

35
7.

56
6.

25
28

.9
6

N
o

35
7.

85
11

.2
9

52
.9

6
N

O
35

8.
23

0.
57

2
36

8.
53

6
37

4.
03

6
5.

5
36

9.
47

2.
72

23
.5

3
N

o
36

9.
83

4.
87

43
.2

7
N

O
37

0.
34

0.
25

6
40

4.
52

4
40

8.
52

4
4

40
4.

59
0.

12
0.

12
N

o
40

4.
61

0.
19

0.
19

N
O

40
4.

63
0.

00
6



In
ve

rt
 

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax In

(1
00

-y

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
on

di
tio

n 
Ju

nc
tio

ns
 R

es
ul

ts
 S

um
m

ar
y 

Ta
bl

e
Di

m
en

si
on

s
2-

ye
ar

 
10

-y
ea

r
10

0-
ye

a

32
9.

34
5

33
5.

34
5

6
33

0.
93

0.
45

29
.0

4
N

o
33

1.
67

0.
72

50
.5

8
N

O
33

5.
54

0.
03

5
33

0.
77

4
33

5.
27

4
4.

5
33

1.
55

9.
06

9.
34

N
o

33
2.

14
16

.0
1

16
.4

6
N

O
33

5.
86

1.
16

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
32

8.
01

1
33

4.
26

1
6.

25
32

8.
96

0.
89

29
.8

8
N

o
33

0.
97

1.
45

52
.3

2
N

O
33

4.
66

0.
07

9
32

4.
39

3
33

3.
39

3
9

32
8.

64
0.

31
17

0.
58

N
o

33
0.

85
0.

48
32

0.
3

N
O

33
4.

65
0.

02
2

32
4.

89
5

33
3.

89
5

9
32

8.
65

1.
34

20
.4

9
N

o
33

0.
98

2.
36

51
.0

5
N

O
33

5.
46

0.
15

9
33

0.
3

33
2.

10
9

1.
80

9
33

3.
34

9.
41

19
.9

5
Ye

s
33

3.
57

16
.2

1
30

.4
9

YE
S

33
5.

19
0.

97
1

32
6.

97
5

33
1.

47
5

4.
5

33
1.

72
10

.2
8

82
.9

4
Ye

s
33

3.
6

17
.2

9
29

1.
11

YE
S

33
5.

31
0.

88
3

32
5.

46
6

33
3.

46
6

8
32

9.
83

3.
07

44
1.

01
N

o
33

1.
98

5.
19

65
4.

36
N

O
33

4.
98

0.
24

8
39

9
39

9
0

39
9

0
0

N
o

39
9

0
0

N
O

39
9

0
37

0.
88

2
37

0.
88

2
0

37
0.

88
0

0
N

o
37

0.
88

0
0

N
O

37
0.

88
0

36
2.

89
9

36
6.

89
9

4
36

3.
97

6.
24

9.
3

N
o

36
5.

07
11

.1
4

16
.5

4
N

O
36

8.
13

0.
75

6
36

3.
31

6
36

7.
81

6
4.

5
36

4.
01

3.
1

3.
1

N
o

36
5.

15
5.

51
5.

51
N

O
36

8.
12

0.
36

4
41

8.
83

6
41

8.
83

6
0

41
9.

24
2.

83
2.

83
Ye

s
41

9.
35

4.
49

4.
49

YE
S

41
9.

5
0.

21
2

37
6.

3
38

1.
8

5.
5

37
7.

89
4.

89
51

.1
2

N
o

37
8.

51
8.

79
87

.7
N

O
38

2.
36

0.
55

4
39

9.
73

1
40

4.
23

1
4.

5
40

0.
03

2.
55

2.
55

N
o

40
0.

13
4.

52
4.

52
N

O
40

0.
25

0.
24

4
38

3.
94

8
38

6.
94

8
3

38
7.

49
3.

44
42

.6
3

Ye
s

38
7.

87
6.

56
80

.3
9

YE
S

38
8.

15
0.

32
3

39
9.

59
3

40
4.

68
5.

08
7

40
0.

91
4.

89
40

.4
5

N
o

40
1.

4
9.

05
75

.8
6

N
O

40
1.

89
0.

66
6

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
42

0.
76

8
42

3.
76

8
3

42
0.

95
0.

65
0.

65
N

o
42

1
1.

07
1.

07
N

O
42

1.
07

0.
05

2
38

8.
84

8
39

2.
34

8
3.

5
38

8.
85

0
0

N
o

38
8.

85
0

0
N

O
39

2.
37

0
37

7.
13

1
38

6.
13

1
9

38
0.

75
6.

57
18

5.
02

N
o

38
2.

24
10

.9
7

31
6.

72
N

O
38

3.
96

0.
58

5
38

1.
03

38
6.

03
5

38
1.

25
1.

19
1.

19
N

o
38

1.
32

2.
04

2.
04

N
O

38
2.

24
0.

12
7

37
4.

12
5

37
8.

62
5

4.
5

37
4.

69
2.

75
2.

75
N

o
37

6.
07

4.
86

4.
86

N
O

37
7.

83
0.

27
5

45
4.

19
2

45
4.

23
4

0
45

4.
38

0
0.

72
Ye

s
45

4.
44

0
1.

27
YE

S
45

4.
51

0
37

5.
23

4
37

7.
23

4
2

37
6.

58
3.

29
3.

29
N

o
37

7.
74

5.
5

5.
5

YE
S

37
8.

16
0.

27
4

37
2.

62
8

37
7.

12
8

4.
5

37
4.

67
4.

41
7.

14
N

o
37

5.
93

7.
81

12
.5

4
N

O
37

7.
55

0.
37

3
37

1.
62

8
37

6.
62

8
5

37
4.

64
3.

43
10

.4
N

o
37

5.
79

5.
99

18
.4

6
N

O
37

7.
13

0.
42

1
35

9.
27

7
36

1.
27

7
2

36
1.

83
2.

88
2.

88
Ye

s
36

3.
17

4.
72

7.
44

YE
S

36
3.

71
0.

20
6

39
3.

3
39

5.
16

9
1.

86
9

39
3.

99
1.

28
1.

28
N

o
39

4.
29

2.
26

2.
26

N
O

39
5.

62
0.

11
4

39
2.

97
1

39
5.

97
1

3
39

3.
46

1.
79

3.
05

N
o

39
3.

83
3.

22
5.

46
N

O
39

5.
3

0.
19

5
38

2.
40

1
38

5.
40

1
3

38
3.

29
8.

34
49

.9
3

N
o

38
3.

55
14

.4
8

94
.2

9
N

O
38

3.
7

0.
87

1
37

6.
51

5
37

9.
51

5
3

37
8

0.
17

49
.9

8
N

o
37

8.
34

0.
32

94
.2

4
N

O
37

8.
51

0.
01

4
42

9.
84

2
43

2.
67

2
2.

83
42

9.
84

0
0

N
o

42
9.

84
0

0
N

O
42

9.
84

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
42

6.
56

4
42

9.
56

4
3

42
9.

62
0.

67
0.

67
Ye

s
42

9.
64

1.
15

1.
15

YE
S

42
9.

67
0.

05
6

42
7.

59
5

43
0.

59
5

3
42

9.
62

0
0.

16
N

o
42

9.
64

0
0.

02
N

O
42

9.
67

0
42

7.
3

43
0.

23
3

2.
93

3
42

7.
79

0.
66

0.
66

N
o

42
8

1.
18

1.
18

N
O

42
8.

34
0.

06
4

42
7.

09
3

43
0.

09
3

3
42

7.
77

2.
59

3.
24

N
o

42
7.

97
4.

61
5.

78
N

O
42

8.
25

0.
31

1
42

6.
71

42
7.

30
4

0.
59

4
42

6.
81

0
3.

24
N

o
42

6.
85

0
5.

78
N

O
42

6.
89

0
43

8.
31

6
43

8.
31

6
0

43
8.

7
1.

11
1.

11
Ye

s
43

8.
78

1.
94

1.
94

YE
S

43
8.

87
0.

09
4

42
9.

87
2

43
4.

37
2

4.
5

43
0.

35
3.

62
6.

57
N

o
43

0.
57

6.
48

13
.0

1
N

O
43

1.
02

0.
53

7
40

7.
47

41
1.

97
4.

5
40

7.
74

1.
01

1.
01

N
o

40
8.

08
1.

59
1.

59
N

O
40

8.
42

0.
07

8



In
ve

rt
 

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax In

(1
00

-y

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
on

di
tio

n 
Ju

nc
tio

ns
 R

es
ul

ts
 S

um
m

ar
y 

Ta
bl

e
Di

m
en

si
on

s
2-

ye
ar

 
10

-y
ea

r
10

0-
ye

a

40
0

40
2.

10
4

2.
10

4
40

1.
79

1.
14

1.
14

N
o

40
1.

8
1.

84
1.

84
N

O
40

1.
81

0.
08

7
39

2.
19

3
39

6.
69

3
4.

5
39

2.
84

5.
47

7.
39

N
o

39
3.

38
9.

14
12

.2
5

N
O

39
5.

71
0.

59
1

38
9.

91
5

39
4.

41
5

4.
5

39
0.

62
8.

42
9.

02
N

o
39

2.
57

14
.0

5
15

.4
6

N
O

39
6.

7
0.

83
8

38
4.

69
39

4.
50

2
9.

81
2

38
7.

1
0.

45
37

5.
55

N
o

38
7.

89
0.

71
61

7.
9

N
O

38
8.

35
0.

03
1

39
1.

40
1

39
6.

40
1

5
39

1.
47

0.
16

0.
16

N
o

39
1.

49
0.

25
0.

25
N

O
39

1.
61

0.
01

2
39

1.
81

4
39

6.
81

4
5

39
1.

96
0.

64
1.

05
N

o
39

2
1.

05
1.

6
N

O
39

2.
06

0.
06

37
5.

70
6

38
5.

20
6

9.
5

37
9.

62
2.

35
38

7.
01

N
o

38
1.

12
3.

83
59

5.
89

N
O

38
3.

14
0.

18
37

7.
7

39
5.

71
6

18
.0

16
38

1.
2

9.
64

16
3.

9
N

o
38

2.
35

16
.3

26
6

N
O

38
4.

62
1.

05
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

38
4.

85
2

39
0.

85
2

6
38

5.
32

0.
4

48
.3

4
N

o
38

5.
38

0.
63

86
.3

9
N

O
38

5.
46

0.
02

8
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

38
0.

16
5

38
4.

16
5

4
38

0.
39

1.
24

1.
24

N
o

38
0.

39
1.

24
1.

24
N

O
38

0.
39

0.
03

6
37

4.
5

37
9.

66
8

5.
16

8
37

7.
49

3.
88

27
.9

2
N

o
37

8.
59

6.
4

39
.3

5
N

O
37

9.
09

0.
35

4
37

5
37

8.
01

1
3.

01
1

37
7.

6
1.

27
3.

25
N

o
37

9.
13

1.
99

11
.6

8
YE

S
37

9.
31

0.
09

2
37

4.
80

8
37

7.
80

8
3

37
7.

54
0.

53
0.

59
N

o
37

8.
51

0.
87

1.
65

YE
S

37
8.

61
0.

04
3

37
4.

3
37

9.
25

8
4.

95
8

37
7.

52
10

.4
2

18
.4

6
N

o
37

8.
57

17
.1

53
.9

9
N

O
37

8.
99

0.
92

6
37

3.
39

7
37

3.
41

0
37

7.
5

3.
56

39
0.

58
Ye

s
37

8.
39

6.
03

60
3.

84
YE

S
37

8.
8

0.
34

4
37

1.
50

7
38

0.
50

7
9

37
3.

22
3.

36
63

.2
9

N
o

37
3.

76
5.

37
10

6.
53

N
O

37
4.

83
0.

26
35

8.
75

36
7.

49
6

8.
74

6
36

1.
16

2.
93

15
3.

55
N

o
36

2.
25

4.
89

27
0.

82
N

O
36

9.
29

0.
29

2
36

1.
88

7
36

9.
88

7
8

36
4.

28
5.

6
10

6.
38

N
o

36
4.

93
9.

33
15

5.
11

N
O

37
0.

64
0.

56
7

36
3.

09
5

36
3.

09
5

0
36

3.
78

0
3.

18
Ye

s
36

4.
1

0
5.

22
YE

S
36

4.
52

0
41

6.
70

7
42

1.
70

7
5

41
7.

58
0

15
.2

2
N

o
41

7.
97

0
27

.7
4

N
O

41
9.

83
0

35
1.

03
8

35
6.

03
8

5
35

1.
43

0.
4

3.
48

N
o

35
1.

54
0.

64
6.

01
N

O
35

2.
22

0.
03

2
34

6.
05

3
35

2.
05

3
6

34
9.

57
2.

96
12

.7
1

N
o

35
0.

44
4.

87
23

.3
4

N
O

35
2.

47
0.

27
1

34
7.

11
5

35
2.

11
5

5
34

9.
58

5.
88

9.
08

N
o

35
0.

46
9.

58
14

.9
N

O
35

2.
55

0.
52

1
34

4
34

8.
18

9
4.

18
9

34
4.

88
8.

04
8.

04
N

o
34

7.
77

13
.8

2
37

.7
N

O
34

8.
88

1.
02

36
6.

76
6

37
2.

26
6

5.
5

36
7.

72
2.

69
29

.2
6

N
o

36
8.

05
4.

47
49

.2
7

N
O

36
8.

96
0.

25
8

35
2.

16
35

9.
34

5
7.

18
5

35
4.

44
4.

38
53

.1
5

N
o

35
6.

93
7.

11
11

2.
85

N
O

36
0.

42
0.

36
8

35
1.

67
35

9.
39

4
7.

72
4

35
4.

28
2.

41
10

5.
74

N
o

35
6.

64
3.

98
16

3.
98

N
O

36
0.

35
0.

21
8

36
9.

75
5

37
5.

75
5

6
37

0.
73

1.
77

26
.5

N
o

37
1.

04
2.

95
44

.6
8

N
O

37
1.

49
0.

17
4

36
6.

5
37

1.
11

2
4.

61
2

36
7.

04
3.

2
3.

2
N

o
36

7.
2

5.
25

5.
25

N
O

36
7.

4
0.

27
3

35
8.

05
6

36
4.

55
6

6.
5

35
9.

12
0.

22
24

.1
6

N
o

35
9.

31
0.

33
32

.9
7

N
O

35
9.

39
0.

01
4

42
0.

28
4

42
5.

28
4

5
42

1.
17

14
.1

8
14

.1
8

N
o

42
1.

55
25

.5
2

25
.5

2
N

O
42

8.
83

1.
51

33
6.

3
34

1.
43

6
5.

13
6

33
8.

9
1.

91
27

1.
75

N
o

34
0.

56
3.

03
57

8.
47

N
O

34
2.

63
0.

15
33

7.
2

34
2.

84
5.

64
33

9.
69

10
.2

6
22

9
N

o
34

1.
38

17
.0

5
57

3.
2

N
O

34
3.

82
1.

04
35

7.
32

8
35

7.
32

8
0

35
7.

48
0

0.
22

Ye
s

35
7.

53
0

1.
4

YE
S

35
8.

55
0

35
1.

10
6

35
1.

10
6

0
35

1.
11

0
0

Ye
s

35
1.

11
0

0
YE

S
35

1.
14

0
41

9.
95

2
44

3.
95

2
24

42
0.

55
0.

24
9.

19
N

o
42

0.
72

0.
37

15
.1

4
N

O
42

0.
95

0.
01

6
41

4.
31

9
41

7.
31

9
3

41
7.

96
0.

24
9.

3
Ye

s
41

7.
99

0.
36

15
.3

7
YE

S
41

8.
03

0.
01

6
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
39

9.
28

5
40

4.
28

5
5

40
0.

04
0.

23
10

.7
8

N
o

40
0.

31
0.

35
18

.8
2

N
O

40
2.

12
0.

01
4

45
1.

16
45

1.
91

0
45

1.
22

0
4.

91
N

o
45

1.
24

0
9.

06
N

O
45

1.
27

0
41

7.
67

42
2.

42
4.

75
41

8.
22

10
.5

9
10

.5
9

N
o

41
8.

41
18

.5
3

18
.5

3
N

O
41

8.
68

1.
43



In
ve

rt
 

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

Ri
m

 
El

ev
at

io
n

(fe
et

)

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(2

-y
ea

r)
 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(2

-
ye

ar
) 

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(2
-

ye
ar

)
 (c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(2
-y

ea
r)

M
ax

. 
HG

L 
(1

0-
ye

ar
) 

(fe
et

)

M
ax

. 
La

te
ra

l 
In

flo
w

 
(1

0-
ye

ar
)

(c
fs

)

M
ax

. 
To

ta
l 

In
flo

w
 

(1
0-

ye
ar

)
(c

fs
)

Su
rc

ha
rg

in
g

(1
0-

ye
ar

)

M
ax

. H
GL

(1
00

-y
ea

r)
 (f

ee
t)

M
ax

. L
at

er
al

 
In

flo
w

 
(1

00
-y

ea
r)

 (c
fs

)

M
ax In

(1
00

-y

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
on

di
tio

n 
Ju

nc
tio

ns
 R

es
ul

ts
 S

um
m

ar
y 

Ta
bl

e
Di

m
en

si
on

s
2-

ye
ar

 
10

-y
ea

r
10

0-
ye

a

39
4.

70
8

40
2.

65
8

7.
95

39
8.

69
0.

3
31

0.
76

N
o

40
0.

68
0.

49
46

3.
12

N
O

40
1.

65
0.

02
6

39
8.

47
2

40
3.

47
2

5
40

0.
9

2.
31

2.
31

N
o

40
2.

18
3.

85
3.

85
N

O
40

3.
27

0.
22

7
41

2.
09

3
41

6.
59

3
4.

5
41

3.
17

3.
55

23
.0

4
N

o
41

5.
21

6.
18

38
.6

2
N

O
41

7.
34

0.
36

5
41

3.
65

4
41

8.
15

4
4.

5
41

4.
39

6.
59

6.
59

N
o

41
5.

56
11

.4
3

11
.4

5
N

O
41

8.
43

0.
7

40
2.

25
40

6.
25

4
40

3.
91

0.
94

0.
94

N
o

40
5.

59
1.

5
1.

5
N

O
40

6.
46

0.
07

6
40

0.
60

7
40

5.
60

7
5

40
3.

91
8.

43
9.

4
N

o
40

5.
57

14
.2

5
15

.8
N

O
40

6.
44

0.
88

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o

0
0

0
N

O
0

0
40

0.
82

1
40

5.
82

1
5

40
3.

89
5.

84
5.

84
N

o
40

5.
52

9.
69

11
.7

8
N

O
40

6.
53

0.
56

6
40

3.
35

9
40

7.
85

9
4.

5
40

8.
53

22
.6

4
22

.6
4

Ye
s

40
8.

65
39

.8
6

39
.8

6
YE

S
40

8.
75

5.
03

40
3.

20
9

40
7.

70
9

4.
5

40
4.

2
7.

58
7.

58
N

o
40

7.
57

12
.8

1
13

.1
2

N
O

40
7.

83
0.

81
4

41
4.

97
8

42
0.

47
8

5.
5

41
5.

66
9.

24
12

N
o

41
5.

92
16

.6
2

21
.9

7
N

O
41

6.
32

1.
13

41
2.

95
7

41
8.

45
7

5.
5

41
3.

81
2.

99
15

.5
2

N
o

41
4.

16
5.

38
28

.5
1

N
O

41
4.

87
0.

37
2

40
6.

41
2

41
1.

41
2

5
40

7.
33

5.
5

20
.8

1
N

o
40

8.
03

9.
26

36
.4

8
N

O
41

0.
14

0.
55

40
5.

40
5

40
9.

90
5

4.
5

40
6.

05
1.

47
1.

47
N

o
40

7.
53

2.
4

2.
4

N
O

41
0.

93
0.

12
9

41
0.

08
2

41
4.

58
2

4.
5

41
0.

63
1.

33
1.

33
N

o
41

1.
41

2.
21

2.
21

N
O

41
5.

2
0.

11
8

41
5.

43
4

41
9.

93
4

4.
5

41
6.

03
4.

58
4.

59
N

o
41

6.
26

7.
89

7.
93

N
O

41
9.

62
0.

5
41

3.
72

2
41

7.
72

2
4

41
4.

83
14

.8
6

15
.1

2
N

o
41

5.
49

26
.3

5
26

.8
9

N
O

41
7.

95
2.

43
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

o
0

0
0

N
O

0
0

40
5.

18
40

9.
21

4
4.

03
4

40
7.

57
3.

34
19

3.
73

N
o

40
8.

78
5.

58
29

7.
8

N
O

40
9.

41
0.

31
4

40
4.

78
41

0.
31

5
5.

53
5

40
6.

6
0.

95
54

.3
4

N
o

40
8.

16
1.

54
61

.7
9

N
O

40
8.

9
0.

07
7

40
6.

82
41

1.
68

3
4.

86
3

41
0.

43
4.

15
19

1.
95

N
o

41
1.

63
7.

02
28

0.
59

N
O

41
1.

76
0.

40
7

41
0

41
5.

47
9

5.
47

9
41

3.
31

0.
78

12
5.

87
N

o
41

5.
59

1.
25

18
3.

52
YE

S
41

6.
73

0.
05

8
41

0.
86

7
41

6.
86

7
6

41
3.

24
1.

23
68

.8
2

N
o

41
5.

68
2.

04
92

.6
1

N
O

41
6.

74
0.

11
2

41
2.

03
2

41
6.

28
2

4.
25

41
3.

16
0.

57
0.

88
N

o
41

5.
41

0.
94

0.
94

N
O

41
6.

49
0.

05
4



 

 

 



y
p

y
p

y
72

 
$2

6,
80

7 
1

0.
08

$9
,5

50
 

$1
,2

69
 

$1
0,

81
9 

1
0.

08
$4

7,
11

0 
$6

,3
44

 
$5

3,
45

4 
Av

er
ag

e
$/

sq
ft

Sm
al

l
72

 
$2

6,
89

2 
2

0.
17

$9
,6

20
 

$1
,2

69
 

$1
0,

88
9 

2
0.

17
$4

7,
22

0 
$6

,3
44

 
$5

3,
56

4 
1

$2
6,

80
7 

$1
3.

40
 

$1
0,

81
9

91
7 

$2
9,

28
7 

3
0.

25
$9

,8
20

 
$1

,9
70

 
$1

1,
79

0 
3

0.
25

$4
8,

62
0 

$9
,8

28
 

$5
8,

44
8 

2
$2

6,
89

2 
$1

3.
45

 
$1

0,
88

9
20

7 
$3

8,
55

2 
4

0.
33

$1
2,

73
0 

$2
,9

24
 

$1
5,

65
4 

4
0.

33
$6

2,
37

0 
$1

4,
33

7 
$7

6,
70

7 
3

$2
9,

28
7 

$1
4.

64
 

$1
1,

79
0

91
4 

$4
5,

33
9 

5
0.

42
$1

2,
78

0 
$5

,4
74

 
$1

8,
25

4 
5

0.
42

$6
2,

50
0 

$2
7,

99
6 

$9
0,

49
6 

4
$3

8,
55

2 
$1

9.
28

 
$1

5,
65

4
77

7 
$5

2,
03

7 
6

0.
50

$1
5,

30
0 

$5
,8

61
 

$2
1,

16
1 

6
0.

50
$7

3,
86

0 
$2

9,
64

5 
$1

03
,5

05
 

5
$4

5,
33

9 
$2

2.
67

 
$1

8,
25

4
70

0 
$5

5,
39

1 
7

0.
58

$1
5,

50
8 

$7
,0

19
 

$2
2,

52
7 

7
0.

58
$7

4,
66

2 
$3

5,
51

2 
$1

10
,1

74
 

6
$5

2,
03

7 
$2

6.
02

 
$2

1,
16

1
62

4 
$5

8,
74

6 
8

0.
67

$1
5,

71
7 

$8
,1

77
 

$2
3,

89
4 

8
0.

67
$7

5,
46

3 
$4

1,
38

0 
$1

16
,8

43
 

7
$5

5,
39

1 
$2

7.
70

 
$2

2,
52

7
5 4

7 
$6

2,
10

0 
9

0.
75

$1
5,

92
5 

$9
,3

35
 

$2
5,

26
0 

9
0.

75
$7

6,
26

5 
$4

7,
24

7 
$1

23
,5

12
 

8
$5

8,
74

6 
$2

9.
37

 
$2

3,
89

4
47

0 
$6

5,
45

3 
10

0.
83

$1
6,

13
3 

$1
0,

49
3 

$2
6,

62
6 

10
0.

83
$7

7,
06

7 
$5

3,
11

4 
$1

30
,1

81
 

9
$6

2,
10

0 
$3

1.
05

 
$2

5,
26

0
39

4 
$6

8,
80

8 
11

0.
92

$1
6,

34
2 

$1
1,

65
2 

$2
7,

99
4 

11
0.

92
$7

7,
86

8 
$5

8,
98

2 
$1

36
,8

50
 

10
$6

5,
45

3 
$3

2.
73

 
$2

6,
62

6
31

7 
$7

2,
16

2 
12

1.
00

$1
6,

55
0 

$1
2,

81
0 

$2
9,

36
0 

12
1.

00
$7

8,
67

0 
$6

4,
84

9 
$1

43
,5

19
 

11
$6

8,
80

8 
$3

4.
40

 
$2

7,
99

4
00

1 
$8

7,
32

6 
24

2.
00

$1
9,

50
0 

$1
7,

16
0 

$3
6,

66
0 

24
2.

00
$8

5,
70

0 
$8

6,
07

5 
$1

71
,7

75
 

12
$7

2,
16

2 
$3

6.
08

 
$2

9,
36

0
63

3 
$9

4,
53

8 
36

3.
00

$2
1,

10
0 

$1
8,

73
1 

$3
9,

83
1 

36
3.

00
$9

2,
58

0 
$9

3,
12

4 
$1

85
,7

04
 

24
$8

7,
32

6 
$4

3.
66

 
$3

6,
66

0
00

0 
$1

03
,3

55
 

48
4.

00
$2

3,
40

0 
$2

0,
00

0 
$4

3,
40

0 
48

4.
00

$1
03

,2
80

 
$1

00
,0

00
 

$2
03

,2
80

 
36

$9
4,

53
8 

$4
7.

27
 

$3
9,

83
1

48
$1

03
,3

55
 

$5
1.

68
 

$4
3,

40
0

f 
ca

sh
 v

al
ue

 lo
ss

.
N

ot
e:

Th
e 

$/
sq

ft 
is 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

sq
ua

re
 fo

ot
 a

ss
ig

ne
d



De
sc

rip
tio

n
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
st

 
 C

os
t_

De
si

gn
 

 C
os

t_
To

ta
l 

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

Co
st

2
P&

D 
Co

st
To

ta
l C

os
t

Bu
nd

le
d 

FC
 P

rio
rit

y 
Sc

or
e

68
St

or
m

 D
ra

in
 P

ip
e

33
6,

56
3.

91
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
16

1,
55

0.
68

$ 
   

   
  

49
8,

11
4.

58
$ 

   
   

  
1,

17
3,

10
6.

71
$ 

   
   

   
56

3,
09

1.
22

$ 
   

   
  

1,
73

6,
19

7.
93

$ 
   

  
78

82
66

.8
06

3
St

or
m

 D
ra

in
 P

ip
e

39
,4

52
.1

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

18
,9

37
.0

4
$ 

   
   

   
  

58
,3

89
.2

2
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
17

3,
10

6.
71

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

09
1.

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

73
6,

19
7.

93
$ 

   
  

78
82

66
.8

06
3

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

 P
ip

e
7,

13
9.

19
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
42

6.
81

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

10
,5

66
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
17

3,
10

6.
71

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

09
1.

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

73
6,

19
7.

93
$ 

   
  

78
82

66
.8

06
3

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

 P
ip

e
82

,7
60

.1
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
39

,7
24

.8
7

$ 
   

   
   

  
12

2,
48

5.
00

$ 
   

   
  

1,
17

3,
10

6.
71

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

09
1.

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

73
6,

19
7.

93
$ 

   
  

78
82

66
.8

06
3

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

 P
ip

e
66

,6
97

.3
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
32

,0
14

.7
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
98

,7
12

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

17
3,

10
6.

71
$ 

   
   

   
56

3,
09

1.
22

$ 
   

   
  

1,
73

6,
19

7.
93

$ 
   

  
78

82
66

.8
06

3
Cl

ea
no

ut
11

,6
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

56
8.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
17

,1
68

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

17
3,

10
6.

71
$ 

   
   

   
56

3,
09

1.
22

$ 
   

   
  

1,
73

6,
19

7.
93

$ 
   

  
78

82
66

.8
06

3
Cl

ea
no

ut
11

,6
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

56
8.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
17

,1
68

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

17
3,

10
6.

71
$ 

   
   

   
56

3,
09

1.
22

$ 
   

   
  

1,
73

6,
19

7.
93

$ 
   

  
78

82
66

.8
06

3
Cl

ea
no

ut
11

,6
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

56
8.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
17

,1
68

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

17
3,

10
6.

71
$ 

   
   

   
56

3,
09

1.
22

$ 
   

   
  

1,
73

6,
19

7.
93

$ 
   

  
78

82
66

.8
06

3
Cl

ea
no

ut
11

,6
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

56
8.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
17

,1
68

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

17
3,

10
6.

71
$ 

   
   

   
56

3,
09

1.
22

$ 
   

   
  

1,
73

6,
19

7.
93

$ 
   

  
78

82
66

.8
06

3
Cl

ea
no

ut
11

,6
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

56
8.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
17

,1
68

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

17
3,

10
6.

71
$ 

   
   

   
56

3,
09

1.
22

$ 
   

   
  

1,
73

6,
19

7.
93

$ 
   

  
78

82
66

.8
06

3
Cl

ea
no

ut
11

,6
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

56
8.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
17

,1
68

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

17
3,

10
6.

71
$ 

   
   

   
56

3,
09

1.
22

$ 
   

   
  

1,
73

6,
19

7.
93

$ 
   

  
78

82
66

.8
06

3
Cl

ea
no

ut
11

,6
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

56
8.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
17

,1
68

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

17
3,

10
6.

71
$ 

   
   

   
56

3,
09

1.
22

$ 
   

   
  

1,
73

6,
19

7.
93

$ 
   

  
78

82
66

.8
06

3
Cl

ea
no

ut
11

,6
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

56
8.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
17

,1
68

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

17
3,

10
6.

71
$ 

   
   

   
56

3,
09

1.
22

$ 
   

   
  

1,
73

6,
19

7.
93

$ 
   

  
78

82
66

.8
06

3
In

le
t

13
,7

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
61

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
,3

87
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
17

3,
10

6.
71

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

09
1.

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

73
6,

19
7.

93
$ 

   
  

78
82

66
.8

06
3

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

17
3,

10
6.

71
$ 

   
   

   
56

3,
09

1.
22

$ 
   

   
  

1,
73

6,
19

7.
93

$ 
   

  
78

82
66

.8
06

3
In

le
t

13
,7

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
61

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
,3

87
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
17

3,
10

6.
71

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

09
1.

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

73
6,

19
7.

93
$ 

   
  

78
82

66
.8

06
3

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

17
3,

10
6.

71
$ 

   
   

   
56

3,
09

1.
22

$ 
   

   
  

1,
73

6,
19

7.
93

$ 
   

  
78

82
66

.8
06

3
In

le
t

13
,7

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
61

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
,3

87
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
17

3,
10

6.
71

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

09
1.

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

73
6,

19
7.

93
$ 

   
  

78
82

66
.8

06
3

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

17
3,

10
6.

71
$ 

   
   

   
56

3,
09

1.
22

$ 
   

   
  

1,
73

6,
19

7.
93

$ 
   

  
78

82
66

.8
06

3
In

le
t

13
,7

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
61

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
,3

87
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
17

3,
10

6.
71

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

09
1.

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

73
6,

19
7.

93
$ 

   
  

78
82

66
.8

06
3

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

17
3,

10
6.

71
$ 

   
   

   
56

3,
09

1.
22

$ 
   

   
  

1,
73

6,
19

7.
93

$ 
   

  
78

82
66

.8
06

3
In

le
t

13
,7

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
61

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
,3

87
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
17

3,
10

6.
71

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

09
1.

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

73
6,

19
7.

93
$ 

   
  

78
82

66
.8

06
3

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

17
3,

10
6.

71
$ 

   
   

   
56

3,
09

1.
22

$ 
   

   
  

1,
73

6,
19

7.
93

$ 
   

  
78

82
66

.8
06

3
In

le
t

13
,7

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
61

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
,3

87
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
17

3,
10

6.
71

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

09
1.

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

73
6,

19
7.

93
$ 

   
  

78
82

66
.8

06
3

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

17
3,

10
6.

71
$ 

   
   

   
56

3,
09

1.
22

$ 
   

   
  

1,
73

6,
19

7.
93

$ 
   

  
78

82
66

.8
06

3
He

ad
w

al
l

9,
97

6.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

78
8.

48
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
14

,7
64

.4
8

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

17
3,

10
6.

71
$ 

   
   

   
56

3,
09

1.
22

$ 
   

   
  

1,
73

6,
19

7.
93

$ 
   

  
78

82
66

.8
06

3
In

le
t

13
,7

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
61

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
,3

87
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
17

3,
10

6.
71

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

09
1.

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

73
6,

19
7.

93
$ 

   
  

78
82

66
.8

06
3

He
ad

w
al

l
9,

97
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
78

8.
48

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

14
,7

64
.4

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
17

3,
10

6.
71

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

09
1.

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

73
6,

19
7.

93
$ 

   
  

78
82

66
.8

06
3

He
ad

w
al

l
9,

97
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
78

8.
48

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

14
,7

64
.4

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
17

3,
10

6.
71

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

09
1.

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

73
6,

19
7.

93
$ 

   
  

78
82

66
.8

06
3

I n
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

17
3,

10
6.

71
$ 

   
   

   
56

3,
09

1.
22

$ 
   

   
  

1,
73

6,
19

7.
93

$ 
   

  
78

82
66

.8
06

3
In

le
t

13
,7

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
61

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
,3

87
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
17

3,
10

6.
71

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

09
1.

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

73
6,

19
7.

93
$ 

   
  

78
82

66
.8

06
3

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

17
3,

10
6.

71
$ 

   
   

   
56

3,
09

1.
22

$ 
   

   
  

1,
73

6,
19

7.
93

$ 
   

  
78

82
66

.8
06

3
In

le
t

13
,7

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
61

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
,3

87
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
17

3,
10

6.
71

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

09
1.

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

73
6,

19
7.

93
$ 

   
  

78
82

66
.8

06
3

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

17
3,

10
6.

71
$ 

   
   

   
56

3,
09

1.
22

$ 
   

   
  

1,
73

6,
19

7.
93

$ 
   

  
78

82
66

.8
06

3
In

le
t

13
,7

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
61

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
,3

87
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
17

3,
10

6.
71

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

09
1.

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

73
6,

19
7.

93
$ 

   
  

78
82

66
.8

06
3

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

17
3,

10
6.

71
$ 

   
   

   
56

3,
09

1.
22

$ 
   

   
  

1,
73

6,
19

7.
93

$ 
   

  
78

82
66

.8
06

3

As
se

t a
nd

 P
ro

je
ct

 C
os

ts
As

se
t C

os
ts

Pr
oj

ec
t C

os
ts



De
sc

rip
tio

n
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
st

 
 C

os
t_

De
si

gn
 

 C
os

t_
To

ta
l 

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

Co
st

2
P&

D 
Co

st
To

ta
l C

os
t

Bu
nd

le
d 

FC
 P

rio
rit

y 
Sc

or
e

As
se

t a
nd

 P
ro

je
ct

 C
os

ts
As

se
t C

os
ts

Pr
oj

ec
t C

os
ts

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

17
3,

10
6.

71
$ 

   
   

   
56

3,
09

1.
22

$ 
   

   
  

1,
73

6,
19

7.
93

$ 
   

  
78

82
66

.8
06

3
In

le
t

13
,7

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
61

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
,3

87
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
17

3,
10

6.
71

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

09
1.

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

73
6,

19
7.

93
$ 

   
  

78
82

66
.8

06
3

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

17
3,

10
6.

71
$ 

   
   

   
56

3,
09

1.
22

$ 
   

   
  

1,
73

6,
19

7.
93

$ 
   

  
78

82
66

.8
06

3
Co

nn
ec

to
r

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
1,

17
3,

10
6.

71
$ 

   
   

   
56

3,
09

1.
22

$ 
   

   
  

1,
73

6,
19

7.
93

$ 
   

  
78

82
66

.8
06

3
In

le
t

13
,7

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
61

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
,3

87
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
17

3,
10

6.
71

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

09
1.

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

73
6,

19
7.

93
$ 

   
  

78
82

66
.8

06
3

He
ad

w
al

l
9,

97
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
78

8.
48

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

14
,7

64
.4

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
17

3,
10

6.
71

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

09
1.

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

73
6,

19
7.

93
$ 

   
  

78
82

66
.8

06
3

Co
nn

ec
to

r
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

1,
17

3,
10

6.
71

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

09
1.

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

73
6,

19
7.

93
$ 

   
  

78
82

66
.8

06
3

He
ad

w
al

l
9,

97
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
78

8.
48

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

14
,7

64
.4

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
17

3,
10

6.
71

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

09
1.

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

73
6,

19
7.

93
$ 

   
  

78
82

66
.8

06
3

O
th

er
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

1,
17

3,
10

6.
71

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

09
1.

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

73
6,

19
7.

93
$ 

   
  

78
82

66
.8

06
3

He
ad

w
al

l
9,

97
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
78

8.
48

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

14
,7

64
.4

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
17

3,
10

6.
71

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

09
1.

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

73
6,

19
7.

93
$ 

   
  

78
82

66
.8

06
3

He
ad

w
al

l
9,

97
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
78

8.
48

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

14
,7

64
.4

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
17

3,
10

6.
71

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

09
1.

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

73
6,

19
7.

93
$ 

   
  

78
82

66
.8

06
3

He
ad

w
al

l
9,

97
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
78

8.
48

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

14
,7

64
.4

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
17

3,
10

6.
71

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

09
1.

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

73
6,

19
7.

93
$ 

   
  

78
82

66
.8

06
3

He
ad

w
al

l
9,

97
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
78

8.
48

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

14
,7

64
.4

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
17

3,
10

6.
71

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

09
1.

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

73
6,

19
7.

93
$ 

   
  

78
82

66
.8

06
3

He
ad

w
al

l
9,

97
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
78

8.
48

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

14
,7

64
.4

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
17

3,
10

6.
71

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

09
1.

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

73
6,

19
7.

93
$ 

   
  

78
82

66
.8

06
3

He
ad

w
al

l
9,

97
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
78

8.
48

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

14
,7

64
.4

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
17

3,
10

6.
71

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

09
1.

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

73
6,

19
7.

93
$ 

   
  

78
82

66
.8

06
3

He
ad

w
al

l
9,

97
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
78

8.
48

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

14
,7

64
.4

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
17

3,
10

6.
71

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

09
1.

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

73
6,

19
7.

93
$ 

   
  

78
82

66
.8

06
3

He
ad

w
al

l
9,

97
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
78

8.
48

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

14
,7

64
.4

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
17

3,
10

6.
71

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

09
1.

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

73
6,

19
7.

93
$ 

   
  

78
82

66
.8

06
3

He
ad

w
al

l
9,

97
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
78

8.
48

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

14
,7

64
.4

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
17

3,
10

6.
71

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

09
1.

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

73
6,

19
7.

93
$ 

   
  

78
82

66
.8

06
3

He
ad

w
al

l
9,

97
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
78

8.
48

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

14
,7

64
.4

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
17

3,
10

6.
71

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

09
1.

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

73
6,

19
7.

93
$ 

   
  

78
82

66
.8

06
3

78
He

ad
w

al
l

9,
97

6.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

78
8.

48
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
14

,7
64

.4
8

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

17
3,

10
6.

71
$ 

   
   

   
56

3,
09

1.
22

$ 
   

   
  

1,
73

6,
19

7.
93

$ 
   

  
78

82
66

.8
06

3
98

He
ad

w
al

l
9,

97
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
78

8.
48

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

14
,7

64
.4

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
17

3,
10

6.
71

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

09
1.

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

73
6,

19
7.

93
$ 

   
  

78
82

66
.8

06
3

45
He

ad
w

al
l

9,
97

6.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

78
8.

48
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
14

,7
64

.4
8

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

17
3,

10
6.

71
$ 

   
   

   
56

3,
09

1.
22

$ 
   

   
  

1,
73

6,
19

7.
93

$ 
   

  
78

82
66

.8
06

3
Co

nn
ec

to
r

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
1,

17
3,

10
6.

71
$ 

   
   

   
56

3,
09

1.
22

$ 
   

   
  

1,
73

6,
19

7.
93

$ 
   

  
78

82
66

.8
06

3
Co

nn
ec

to
r

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
1,

17
3,

10
6.

71
$ 

   
   

   
56

3,
09

1.
22

$ 
   

   
  

1,
73

6,
19

7.
93

$ 
   

  
78

82
66

.8
06

3
He

ad
w

al
l

9,
97

6.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

78
8.

48
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
14

,7
64

.4
8

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

17
3,

10
6.

71
$ 

   
   

   
56

3,
09

1.
22

$ 
   

   
  

1,
73

6,
19

7.
93

$ 
   

  
78

82
66

.8
06

3
Co

nn
ec

to
r

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
1,

17
3,

10
6.

71
$ 

   
   

   
56

3,
09

1.
22

$ 
   

   
  

1,
73

6,
19

7.
93

$ 
   

  
78

82
66

.8
06

3
St

or
m

 D
ra

in
 P

ip
e

12
,4

28
.3

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
96

5.
63

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

18
,3

94
.0

1
$ 

   
   

   
  

80
7,

14
0.

03
$ 

   
   

   
   

38
7,

42
7.

21
$ 

   
   

  
1,

19
4,

56
7.

24
$ 

   
  

91
79

90
.7

64
6

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

 P
ip

e
17

1,
74

2.
50

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

82
,4

36
.4

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

25
4,

17
8.

89
$ 

   
   

  
80

7,
14

0.
03

$ 
   

   
   

   
38

7,
42

7.
21

$ 
   

   
  

1,
19

4,
56

7.
24

$ 
   

  
91

79
90

.7
64

6
St

or
m

 D
ra

in
 P

ip
e

24
,5

16
.3

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
,7

67
.8

4
$ 

   
   

   
  

36
,2

84
.1

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

80
7,

14
0.

03
$ 

   
   

   
   

38
7,

42
7.

21
$ 

   
   

  
1,

19
4,

56
7.

24
$ 

   
  

91
79

90
.7

64
6

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

 P
ip

e
12

4,
80

8.
97

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

59
,9

08
.3

1
$ 

   
   

   
  

18
4,

71
7.

27
$ 

   
   

  
80

7,
14

0.
03

$ 
   

   
   

   
38

7,
42

7.
21

$ 
   

   
  

1,
19

4,
56

7.
24

$ 
   

  
91

79
90

.7
64

6
St

or
m

 D
ra

in
 P

ip
e

63
,1

51
.1

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
,3

12
.5

4
$ 

   
   

   
  

93
,4

63
.6

7
$ 

   
   

   
  

80
7,

14
0.

03
$ 

   
   

   
   

38
7,

42
7.

21
$ 

   
   

  
1,

19
4,

56
7.

24
$ 

   
  

91
79

90
.7

64
6

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

 P
ip

e
62

,9
10

.7
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

,1
97

.1
5

$ 
   

   
   

  
93

,1
07

.8
9

$ 
   

   
   

  
80

7,
14

0.
03

$ 
   

   
   

   
38

7,
42

7.
21

$ 
   

   
  

1,
19

4,
56

7.
24

$ 
   

  
91

79
90

.7
64

6
St

or
m

 D
ra

in
 P

ip
e

10
1,

47
8.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
48

,7
09

.4
4

$ 
   

   
   

  
15

0,
18

7.
44

$ 
   

   
  

80
7,

14
0.

03
$ 

   
   

   
   

38
7,

42
7.

21
$ 

   
   

  
1,

19
4,

56
7.

24
$ 

   
  

91
79

90
.7

64
6

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

 P
ip

e
59

,2
27

.9
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
28

,4
29

.4
3

$ 
   

   
   

  
87

,6
57

.4
1

$ 
   

   
   

  
80

7,
14

0.
03

$ 
   

   
   

   
38

7,
42

7.
21

$ 
   

   
  

1,
19

4,
56

7.
24

$ 
   

  
91

79
90

.7
64

6
In

le
t

13
,7

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
61

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
,3

87
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

80
7,

14
0.

03
$ 

   
   

   
   

38
7,

42
7.

21
$ 

   
   

  
1,

19
4,

56
7.

24
$ 

   
  

91
79

90
.7

64
6

He
ad

w
al

l
9,

97
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
78

8.
48

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

14
,7

64
.4

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

80
7,

14
0.

03
$ 

   
   

   
   

38
7,

42
7.

21
$ 

   
   

  
1,

19
4,

56
7.

24
$ 

   
  

91
79

90
.7

64
6



De
sc

rip
tio

n
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
st

 
 C

os
t_

De
si

gn
 

 C
os

t_
To

ta
l 

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

Co
st

2
P&

D 
Co

st
To

ta
l C

os
t

Bu
nd

le
d 

FC
 P

rio
rit

y 
Sc

or
e

As
se

t a
nd

 P
ro

je
ct

 C
os

ts
As

se
t C

os
ts

Pr
oj

ec
t C

os
ts

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
80

7,
14

0.
03

$ 
   

   
   

   
38

7,
42

7.
21

$ 
   

   
  

1,
19

4,
56

7.
24

$ 
   

  
91

79
90

.7
64

6
In

le
t

13
,7

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
61

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
,3

87
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

80
7,

14
0.

03
$ 

   
   

   
   

38
7,

42
7.

21
$ 

   
   

  
1,

19
4,

56
7.

24
$ 

   
  

91
79

90
.7

64
6

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
80

7,
14

0.
03

$ 
   

   
   

   
38

7,
42

7.
21

$ 
   

   
  

1,
19

4,
56

7.
24

$ 
   

  
91

79
90

.7
64

6
In

le
t

13
,7

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
61

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
,3

87
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

80
7,

14
0.

03
$ 

   
   

   
   

38
7,

42
7.

21
$ 

   
   

  
1,

19
4,

56
7.

24
$ 

   
  

91
79

90
.7

64
6

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
80

7,
14

0.
03

$ 
   

   
   

   
38

7,
42

7.
21

$ 
   

   
  

1,
19

4,
56

7.
24

$ 
   

  
91

79
90

.7
64

6
Cl

ea
no

ut
11

,6
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

56
8.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
17

,1
68

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
80

7,
14

0.
03

$ 
   

   
   

   
38

7,
42

7.
21

$ 
   

   
  

1,
19

4,
56

7.
24

$ 
   

  
91

79
90

.7
64

6
In

le
t

13
,7

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
61

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
,3

87
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

80
7,

14
0.

03
$ 

   
   

   
   

38
7,

42
7.

21
$ 

   
   

  
1,

19
4,

56
7.

24
$ 

   
  

91
79

90
.7

64
6

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
80

7,
14

0.
03

$ 
   

   
   

   
38

7,
42

7.
21

$ 
   

   
  

1,
19

4,
56

7.
24

$ 
   

  
91

79
90

.7
64

6
In

le
t

13
,7

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
61

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
,3

87
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

80
7,

14
0.

03
$ 

   
   

   
   

38
7,

42
7.

21
$ 

   
   

  
1,

19
4,

56
7.

24
$ 

   
  

91
79

90
.7

64
6

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
80

7,
14

0.
03

$ 
   

   
   

   
38

7,
42

7.
21

$ 
   

   
  

1,
19

4,
56

7.
24

$ 
   

  
91

79
90

.7
64

6
Co

nn
ec

to
r

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
80

7,
14

0.
03

$ 
   

   
   

   
38

7,
42

7.
21

$ 
   

   
  

1,
19

4,
56

7.
24

$ 
   

  
91

79
90

.7
64

6
St

or
m

 D
ra

in
 P

ip
e

58
,1

12
.4

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

27
,8

93
.9

9
$ 

   
   

   
  

86
,0

06
.4

6
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
62

3,
43

3.
18

$ 
   

   
   

77
9,

24
7.

92
$ 

   
   

  
2,

40
2,

68
1.

10
$ 

   
  

12
15

59
9.

74
St

or
m

 D
ra

in
 P

ip
e

28
1,

18
4.

97
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
13

4,
96

8.
78

$ 
   

   
  

41
6,

15
3.

75
$ 

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

 P
ip

e
48

2,
05

3.
74

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

23
1,

38
5.

79
$ 

   
   

  
71

3,
43

9.
53

$ 
   

   
  

1,
62

3,
43

3.
18

$ 
   

   
   

77
9,

24
7.

92
$ 

   
   

  
2,

40
2,

68
1.

10
$ 

   
  

12
15

59
9.

74
Cl

ea
no

ut
11

,6
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

56
8.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
17

,1
68

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

Cl
ea

no
ut

11
,6

00
. 0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
56

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
62

3,
43

3.
18

$ 
   

   
   

77
9,

24
7.

92
$ 

   
   

  
2,

40
2,

68
1.

10
$ 

   
  

12
15

59
9.

74
Cl

ea
no

ut
11

,6
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

56
8.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
17

,1
68

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

Cl
ea

no
ut

11
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
56

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
62

3,
43

3.
18

$ 
   

   
   

77
9,

24
7.

92
$ 

   
   

  
2,

40
2,

68
1.

10
$ 

   
  

12
15

59
9.

74
Cl

ea
no

ut
11

,6
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

56
8.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
17

,1
68

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

Cl
ea

no
ut

11
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
56

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
62

3,
43

3.
18

$ 
   

   
   

77
9,

24
7.

92
$ 

   
   

  
2,

40
2,

68
1.

10
$ 

   
  

12
15

59
9.

74
Cl

ea
no

ut
11

,6
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

56
8.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
17

,1
68

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

O
th

er
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

1,
62

3,
43

3.
18

$ 
   

   
   

77
9,

24
7.

92
$ 

   
   

  
2,

40
2,

68
1.

10
$ 

   
  

12
15

59
9.

74
In

le
t

13
,7

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
61

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
,3

87
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
62

3,
43

3.
18

$ 
   

   
   

77
9,

24
7.

92
$ 

   
   

  
2,

40
2,

68
1.

10
$ 

   
  

12
15

59
9.

74
In

le
t

13
,7

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
61

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
,3

87
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
62

3,
43

3.
18

$ 
   

   
   

77
9,

24
7.

92
$ 

   
   

  
2,

40
2,

68
1.

10
$ 

   
  

12
15

59
9.

74
In

le
t

13
,7

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
61

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
,3

87
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
62

3,
43

3.
18

$ 
   

   
   

77
9,

24
7.

92
$ 

   
   

  
2,

40
2,

68
1.

10
$ 

   
  

12
15

59
9.

74
He

ad
w

al
l

9,
97

6.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

78
8.

48
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
14

,7
64

.4
8

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

O
ut

le
t

9,
97

6.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

78
8.

48
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
14

,7
64

.4
8

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74



De
sc

rip
tio

n
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
st

 
 C

os
t_

De
si

gn
 

 C
os

t_
To

ta
l 

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

Co
st

2
P&

D 
Co

st
To

ta
l C

os
t

Bu
nd

le
d 

FC
 P

rio
rit

y 
Sc

or
e

As
se

t a
nd

 P
ro

je
ct

 C
os

ts
As

se
t C

os
ts

Pr
oj

ec
t C

os
ts

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

Co
nn

ec
to

r
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

1,
62

3,
43

3.
18

$ 
   

   
   

77
9,

24
7.

92
$ 

   
   

  
2,

40
2,

68
1.

10
$ 

   
  

12
15

59
9.

74
Co

nn
ec

to
r

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

Co
nn

ec
to

r
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

1,
62

3,
43

3.
18

$ 
   

   
   

77
9,

24
7.

92
$ 

   
   

  
2,

40
2,

68
1.

10
$ 

   
  

12
15

59
9.

74
Co

nn
ec

to
r

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

O
th

er
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

1,
62

3,
43

3.
18

$ 
   

   
   

77
9,

24
7.

92
$ 

   
   

  
2,

40
2,

68
1.

10
$ 

   
  

12
15

59
9.

74
He

ad
w

al
l

9,
97

6.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

78
8.

48
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
14

,7
64

.4
8

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

He
ad

w
al

l
9,

97
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
78

8.
48

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

14
,7

64
.4

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
62

3,
43

3.
18

$ 
   

   
   

77
9,

24
7.

92
$ 

   
   

  
2,

40
2,

68
1.

10
$ 

   
  

12
15

59
9.

74
He

ad
w

al
l

9,
97

6.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

78
8.

48
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
14

,7
64

.4
8

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

Cl
ea

no
ut

11
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
56

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
62

3,
43

3.
18

$ 
   

   
   

77
9,

24
7.

92
$ 

   
   

  
2,

40
2,

68
1.

10
$ 

   
  

12
15

59
9.

74
Cl

ea
no

ut
11

,6
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

56
8.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
17

,1
68

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

Cl
ea

no
ut

11
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
56

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
62

3,
43

3.
18

$ 
   

   
   

77
9,

24
7.

92
$ 

   
   

  
2,

40
2,

68
1.

10
$ 

   
  

12
15

59
9.

74
Cl

ea
no

ut
11

,6
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

56
8.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
17

,1
68

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74



De
sc

rip
tio

n
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
st

 
 C

os
t_

De
si

gn
 

 C
os

t_
To

ta
l 

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

Co
st

2
P&

D 
Co

st
To

ta
l C

os
t

Bu
nd

le
d 

FC
 P

rio
rit

y 
Sc

or
e

As
se

t a
nd

 P
ro

je
ct

 C
os

ts
As

se
t C

os
ts

Pr
oj

ec
t C

os
ts

Cl
ea

no
ut

11
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
56

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
62

3,
43

3.
18

$ 
   

   
   

77
9,

24
7.

92
$ 

   
   

  
2,

40
2,

68
1.

10
$ 

   
  

12
15

59
9.

74
Cl

ea
no

ut
11

,6
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

56
8.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
17

,1
68

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

Cl
ea

no
ut

11
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
56

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
62

3,
43

3.
18

$ 
   

   
   

77
9,

24
7.

92
$ 

   
   

  
2,

40
2,

68
1.

10
$ 

   
  

12
15

59
9.

74
Cl

ea
no

ut
11

,6
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

56
8.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
17

,1
68

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

Cl
ea

no
ut

11
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
56

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
62

3,
43

3.
18

$ 
   

   
   

77
9,

24
7.

92
$ 

   
   

  
2,

40
2,

68
1.

10
$ 

   
  

12
15

59
9.

74
He

ad
w

al
l

9,
97

6.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

78
8.

48
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
14

,7
64

.4
8

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

He
ad

w
al

l
9,

97
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
78

8.
48

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

14
,7

64
.4

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
62

3,
43

3.
18

$ 
   

   
   

77
9,

24
7.

92
$ 

   
   

  
2,

40
2,

68
1.

10
$ 

   
  

12
15

59
9.

74
Co

nn
ec

to
r

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
1,

62
3,

43
3.

18
$ 

   
   

   
77

9,
24

7.
92

$ 
   

   
  

2,
40

2,
68

1.
10

$ 
   

  
12

15
59

9.
74

Co
nn

ec
to

r
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

1,
62

3,
43

3.
18

$ 
   

   
   

77
9,

24
7.

92
$ 

   
   

  
2,

40
2,

68
1.

10
$ 

   
  

12
15

59
9.

74
Ch

an
ne

l
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#N

/A
Ch

an
ne

l
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#N

/A
Ch

an
ne

l
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#N

/A
Ch

an
ne

l
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#N

/A
Ch

an
ne

l
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#N

/A
Ch

an
ne

l
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#N

/A
Ch

an
ne

l
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#N

/A
Ch

an
ne

l
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#N

/A
Ch

an
ne

l
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#N

/A
Ch

an
ne

l
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#N

/A
Ch

an
ne

l
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#N

/A
Ch

an
ne

l
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#N

/A
Ch

an
ne

l
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#N

/A
Ch

an
ne

l
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#N

/A
Ch

an
ne

l
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#N

/A
Ch

an
ne

l
<N

ul
l>

<N
ul

l>
<N

ul
l>

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#N

/A
St

or
m

 D
ra

in
 P

ip
e

18
7,

86
7.

17
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
90

,1
76

.2
4

$ 
   

   
   

  
27

8,
04

3.
42

$ 
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

 P
ip

e
69

,8
54

.5
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
33

,5
30

.1
9

$ 
   

   
   

  
10

3,
38

4.
74

$ 
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

 P
ip

e
65

,3
21

.3
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
31

,3
54

.2
2

$ 
   

   
   

  
96

,6
75

.5
2

$ 
   

   
   

  
6,

77
4,

45
5.

26
$ 

   
   

   
3,

25
1,

73
8.

52
$ 

   
  

10
,0

26
,1

93
.7

8
$ 

   
62

49
53

4.
22

2
St

or
m

 D
ra

in
 P

ip
e

17
2,

85
9.

62
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
82

,9
72

.6
2

$ 
   

   
   

  
25

5,
83

2.
23

$ 
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

 P
ip

e
25

7,
35

8.
35

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

12
3,

53
2.

01
$ 

   
   

  
38

0,
89

0.
36

$ 
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

 P
ip

e
12

7,
51

8.
61

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

61
,2

08
.9

3
$ 

   
   

   
  

18
8,

72
7.

55
$ 

   
   

  
6,

77
4,

45
5.

26
$ 

   
   

   
3,

25
1,

73
8.

52
$ 

   
  

10
,0

26
,1

93
.7

8
$ 

   
62

49
53

4.
22

2
St

or
m

 D
ra

in
 P

ip
e

27
6,

22
4.

40
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
13

2,
58

7.
71

$ 
   

   
  

40
8,

81
2.

12
$ 

   
   

  
6,

77
4,

45
5.

26
$ 

   
   

   
3,

25
1,

73
8.

52
$ 

   
  

10
,0

26
,1

93
.7

8
$ 

   
62

49
53

4.
22

2
St

or
m

 D
ra

in
 P

ip
e

13
7,

59
5.

97
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
66

,0
46

.0
7

$ 
   

   
   

  
20

3,
64

2.
04

$ 
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

 P
ip

e
22

5,
28

9.
75

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

10
8,

13
9.

08
$ 

   
   

  
33

3,
42

8.
83

$ 
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

 P
ip

e
13

9,
58

8.
02

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

67
,0

02
.2

5
$ 

   
   

   
  

20
6,

59
0.

26
$ 

   
   

  
6,

77
4,

45
5.

26
$ 

   
   

   
3,

25
1,

73
8.

52
$ 

   
  

10
,0

26
,1

93
.7

8
$ 

   
62

49
53

4.
22

2
St

or
m

 D
ra

in
 P

ip
e

9,
59

6.
90

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

60
6.

51
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
14

,2
03

.4
1

$ 
   

   
   

  
6,

77
4,

45
5.

26
$ 

   
   

   
3,

25
1,

73
8.

52
$ 

   
  

10
,0

26
,1

93
.7

8
$ 

   
62

49
53

4.
22

2



De
sc

rip
tio

n
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
st

 
 C

os
t_

De
si

gn
 

 C
os

t_
To

ta
l 

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

Co
st

2
P&

D 
Co

st
To

ta
l C

os
t

Bu
nd

le
d 

FC
 P

rio
rit

y 
Sc

or
e

As
se

t a
nd

 P
ro

je
ct

 C
os

ts
As

se
t C

os
ts

Pr
oj

ec
t C

os
ts

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

 P
ip

e
51

,4
05

.6
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

,6
74

.7
3

$ 
   

   
   

  
76

,0
80

.4
1

$ 
   

   
   

  
6,

77
4,

45
5.

26
$ 

   
   

   
3,

25
1,

73
8.

52
$ 

   
  

10
,0

26
,1

93
.7

8
$ 

   
62

49
53

4.
22

2
St

or
m

 D
ra

in
 P

ip
e

31
5,

16
0.

81
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
15

1,
27

7.
19

$ 
   

   
  

46
6,

43
8.

00
$ 

   
   

  
6,

77
4,

45
5.

26
$ 

   
   

   
3,

25
1,

73
8.

52
$ 

   
  

10
,0

26
,1

93
.7

8
$ 

   
62

49
53

4.
22

2
St

or
m

 D
ra

in
 P

ip
e

24
8,

80
7.

98
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
11

9,
42

7.
83

$ 
   

   
  

36
8,

23
5.

81
$ 

   
   

  
6,

77
4,

45
5.

26
$ 

   
   

   
3,

25
1,

73
8.

52
$ 

   
  

10
,0

26
,1

93
.7

8
$ 

   
62

49
53

4.
22

2
St

or
m

 D
ra

in
 P

ip
e

13
5,

42
3.

37
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
65

,0
03

.2
2

$ 
   

   
   

  
20

0,
42

6.
59

$ 
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

 P
ip

e
9,

17
8.

28
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
40

5.
57

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

13
,5

83
.8

5
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

 P
ip

e
31

4,
79

9.
83

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

15
1,

10
3.

92
$ 

   
   

  
46

5,
90

3.
74

$ 
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

 P
ip

e
24

3,
69

4.
06

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

11
6,

97
3.

15
$ 

   
   

  
36

0,
66

7.
21

$ 
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

 P
ip

e
31

,2
33

.3
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
14

,9
92

.0
2

$ 
   

   
   

  
46

,2
25

.4
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
6,

77
4,

45
5.

26
$ 

   
   

   
3,

25
1,

73
8.

52
$ 

   
  

10
,0

26
,1

93
.7

8
$ 

   
62

49
53

4.
22

2
St

or
m

 D
ra

in
 P

ip
e

15
,2

50
.0

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

7,
32

0.
02

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

22
,5

70
.0

6
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

 P
ip

e
54

,5
15

.0
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
26

,1
67

.2
1

$ 
   

   
   

  
80

,6
82

.2
2

$ 
   

   
   

  
6,

77
4,

45
5.

26
$ 

   
   

   
3,

25
1,

73
8.

52
$ 

   
  

10
,0

26
,1

93
.7

8
$ 

   
62

49
53

4.
22

2
St

or
m

 D
ra

in
 P

ip
e

11
4,

98
6.

41
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
55

,1
93

.4
8

$ 
   

   
   

  
17

0,
17

9.
89

$ 
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

 P
ip

e
13

,5
47

.6
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

50
2.

89
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,0
50

.5
8

$ 
   

   
   

  
6,

77
4,

45
5.

26
$ 

   
   

   
3,

25
1,

73
8.

52
$ 

   
  

10
,0

26
,1

93
.7

8
$ 

   
62

49
53

4.
22

2
St

or
m

 D
ra

in
 P

ip
e

68
,4

38
.0

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

32
,8

50
.2

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

10
1,

28
8.

36
$ 

   
   

  
6,

77
4,

45
5.

26
$ 

   
   

   
3,

25
1,

73
8.

52
$ 

   
  

10
,0

26
,1

93
.7

8
$ 

   
62

49
53

4.
22

2
St

or
m

 D
ra

in
 P

ip
e

65
,6

54
.8

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

31
,5

14
.3

1
$ 

   
   

   
  

97
,1

69
.1

3
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

 P
ip

e
87

,4
30

.3
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
41

,9
66

.5
7

$ 
   

   
   

  
12

9,
39

6.
93

$ 
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

 P
ip

e
20

,1
59

.9
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
9,

67
6.

78
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
29

,8
36

.7
4

$ 
   

   
   

  
6,

77
4,

45
5.

26
$ 

   
   

   
3,

25
1,

73
8.

52
$ 

   
  

10
,0

26
,1

93
.7

8
$ 

   
62

49
53

4.
22

2
St

or
m

 D
ra

in
 P

ip
e

35
,1

38
.2

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

16
,8

66
.3

5
$ 

   
   

   
  

52
,0

04
.5

9
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

 P
ip

e
16

,7
70

.4
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
8,

04
9.

80
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
24

,8
20

.2
1

$ 
   

   
   

  
6,

77
4,

45
5.

26
$ 

   
   

   
3,

25
1,

73
8.

52
$ 

   
  

10
,0

26
,1

93
.7

8
$ 

   
62

49
53

4.
22

2
St

or
m

 D
ra

in
 P

ip
e

10
,3

94
.0

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
98

9.
16

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

15
,3

83
.2

4
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

 P
ip

e
18

,4
25

.9
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
8,

84
4.

47
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
27

,2
70

.4
5

$ 
   

   
   

  
6,

77
4,

45
5.

26
$ 

   
   

   
3,

25
1,

73
8.

52
$ 

   
  

10
,0

26
,1

93
.7

8
$ 

   
62

49
53

4.
22

2
St

or
m

 D
ra

in
 P

ip
e

85
,4

57
.5

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

41
,0

19
.6

4
$ 

   
   

   
  

12
6,

47
7.

21
$ 

   
   

  
6,

77
4,

45
5.

26
$ 

   
   

   
3,

25
1,

73
8.

52
$ 

   
  

10
,0

26
,1

93
.7

8
$ 

   
62

49
53

4.
22

2
St

or
m

 D
ra

in
 P

ip
e

44
,5

84
.2

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

21
,4

00
.4

4
$ 

   
   

   
  

65
,9

84
.7

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

 P
ip

e
14

,0
54

.9
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

74
6.

38
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,8
01

.3
4

$ 
   

   
   

  
6,

77
4,

45
5.

26
$ 

   
   

   
3,

25
1,

73
8.

52
$ 

   
  

10
,0

26
,1

93
.7

8
$ 

   
62

49
53

4.
22

2
St

or
m

 D
ra

in
 P

ip
e

30
,6

79
.0

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

14
,7

25
.9

3
$ 

   
   

   
  

45
,4

04
.9

4
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

 P
ip

e
5,

15
3.

30
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
47

3.
58

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

7,
62

6.
88

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

 P
ip

e
31

,5
34

.1
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

,1
36

.3
8

$ 
   

   
   

  
46

,6
70

.4
9

$ 
   

   
   

  
6,

77
4,

45
5.

26
$ 

   
   

   
3,

25
1,

73
8.

52
$ 

   
  

10
,0

26
,1

93
.7

8
$ 

   
62

49
53

4.
22

2
St

or
m

 D
ra

in
 P

ip
e

25
,1

26
.4

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
,0

60
.6

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

37
,1

87
.0

9
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

 P
ip

e
26

7,
86

2.
03

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

12
8,

57
3.

78
$ 

   
   

  
39

6,
43

5.
81

$ 
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

Cl
ea

no
ut

11
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
56

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

Cl
ea

no
ut

11
,6

00
. 0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
56

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

Cl
ea

no
ut

11
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
56

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

Cl
ea

no
ut

11
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
56

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

Cl
ea

no
ut

11
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
56

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

Cl
ea

no
ut

11
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
56

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

Cl
ea

no
ut

11
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
56

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

Cl
ea

no
ut

11
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
56

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2



De
sc

rip
tio

n
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
st

 
 C

os
t_

De
si

gn
 

 C
os

t_
To

ta
l 

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

Co
st

2
P&

D 
Co

st
To

ta
l C

os
t

Bu
nd

le
d 

FC
 P

rio
rit

y 
Sc

or
e

As
se

t a
nd

 P
ro

je
ct

 C
os

ts
As

se
t C

os
ts

Pr
oj

ec
t C

os
ts

Cl
ea

no
ut

11
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
56

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

Cl
ea

no
ut

11
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
56

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

Cl
ea

no
ut

11
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
56

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

Cl
ea

no
ut

11
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
56

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

Cl
ea

no
ut

11
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
56

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

Cl
ea

no
ut

11
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
56

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

Cl
ea

no
ut

11
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
56

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

Cl
ea

no
ut

11
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
56

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

Cl
ea

no
ut

11
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
56

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

Cl
ea

no
ut

11
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
56

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

Cl
ea

no
ut

11
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
56

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

Cl
ea

no
ut

11
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
56

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

Cl
ea

no
ut

11
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
56

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

Cl
ea

no
ut

11
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
56

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

Cl
ea

no
ut

11
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
56

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

Cl
ea

no
ut

11
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
56

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
6,

77
4,

45
5.

26
$ 

   
   

   
3,

25
1,

73
8.

52
$ 

   
  

10
,0

26
,1

93
.7

8
$ 

   
62

49
53

4.
22

2
In

le
t

13
,7

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
61

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
,3

87
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
6,

77
4,

45
5.

26
$ 

   
   

   
3,

25
1,

73
8.

52
$ 

   
  

10
,0

26
,1

93
.7

8
$ 

   
62

49
53

4.
22

2
In

le
t

13
,7

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
61

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
,3

87
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
6,

77
4,

45
5.

26
$ 

   
   

   
3,

25
1,

73
8.

52
$ 

   
  

10
,0

26
,1

93
.7

8
$ 

   
62

49
53

4.
22

2
He

ad
w

al
l

9,
97

6.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

78
8.

48
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
14

,7
64

.4
8

$ 
   

   
   

  
6,

77
4,

45
5.

26
$ 

   
   

   
3,

25
1,

73
8.

52
$ 

   
  

10
,0

26
,1

93
.7

8
$ 

   
62

49
53

4.
22

2
In

le
t

13
,7

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
61

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
,3

87
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
6,

77
4,

45
5.

26
$ 

   
   

   
3,

25
1,

73
8.

52
$ 

   
  

10
,0

26
,1

93
.7

8
$ 

   
62

49
53

4.
22

2
In

le
t

13
,7

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
61

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
,3

87
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
6,

77
4,

45
5.

26
$ 

   
   

   
3,

25
1,

73
8.

52
$ 

   
  

10
,0

26
,1

93
.7

8
$ 

   
62

49
53

4.
22

2
In

le
t

13
,7

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
61

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
,3

87
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
6,

77
4,

45
5.

26
$ 

   
   

   
3,

25
1,

73
8.

52
$ 

   
  

10
,0

26
,1

93
.7

8
$ 

   
62

49
53

4.
22

2
O

ut
le

t
9,

97
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
78

8.
48

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

14
,7

64
.4

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

I n
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
6,

77
4,

45
5.

26
$ 

   
   

   
3,

25
1,

73
8.

52
$ 

   
  

10
,0

26
,1

93
.7

8
$ 

   
62

49
53

4.
22

2
In

le
t

13
,7

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
61

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
,3

87
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
6,

77
4,

45
5.

26
$ 

   
   

   
3,

25
1,

73
8.

52
$ 

   
  

10
,0

26
,1

93
.7

8
$ 

   
62

49
53

4.
22

2
In

le
t

13
,7

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
61

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
,3

87
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
6,

77
4,

45
5.

26
$ 

   
   

   
3,

25
1,

73
8.

52
$ 

   
  

10
,0

26
,1

93
.7

8
$ 

   
62

49
53

4.
22

2
In

le
t

13
,7

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
61

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
,3

87
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
77

4,
45

5.
26

$ 
   

   
   

3,
25

1,
73

8.
52

$ 
   

  
10

,0
26

,1
93

.7
8

$ 
   

62
49

53
4.

22
2

In
le

t
13

,7
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
87

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
6,

77
4,

45
5.

26
$ 

   
   

   
3,

25
1,

73
8.

52
$ 

   
  

10
,0

26
,1

93
.7

8
$ 

   
62

49
53

4.
22

2



 Homelessness Partnership Plan 

 February 18, 2020 

P a g e  | 1 

CITY OF LEMON GROVE 
 

CITY COUNCIL 

STAFF REPORT 
Item No. 4 

Meeting Date: February 18, 2020 

Submitted to: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

Department: City Manager’s Office 

Staff Contact: Mike James, Assistant City Manager / Public Works Director 

 mjames@lemongrove.ca.gov 

Item Title: Lemon Grove Homelessness Partnership Plan 

 

Recommended Action:  That the City Council receives the report and provides 

direction to staff regarding the Lemon Grove Homelessness Partnership Plan.   
 

Summary:  The passage of Senate Bill 850 (SB 850) in July of 2018, provided $18.8 

million to the San Diego County region to provide immediate assistance to people 

experience homelessness.  A portion of that total grant amount, equal to $1.9 million, was 

allocated specifically to those partners that would increase the level of homeless services 

in the East San Diego County Region.   

 

This staff report details what partnership activities have occurred in the City and what are 

some of the impacts to City workload.  Lastly, staff seeks direction from the City Council 

regarding options to fund or consider moving forward.  This plan is dynamic in that staff 

recommends that at least every six months it should be brought back to the City Council 

to evaluate its progress, funding thresholds, and progress.  Staff recommends that during 

the next City Council goal setting workshop, staff returns with an update and further 

requests.   
 

Background:  The Homeless Emergency Aid Program (HEAP) authorized by Senate Bill 

850 (SB 850) and signed into law on July 27, 2018, provided $18.8 million of one-time 

block grant funds to be distributed by the San Diego Regional Task Force on the Homeless 

(RTFH) for distribution within San Diego County over a two-year period.  The deadline 

to expend all grant funds is June 30, 2021.  That funding intended to provide immediate 

emergency assistance to people experiencing homelessness or who are at imminent risk 

of homelessness within San Diego County.   

 

On November 6, 2018, the Lemon Grove City Council adopted Resolution No. 2018-3617, 

which declared a shelter crisis in the City.  This declaration was necessary to allow the 



 Homelessness Partnership Plan 

 February 18, 2020 

P a g e  | 2 

City’s participation in an East San Diego County request for community based 

organizations to receive HEAP funds to fund homeless services.  That Resolution of 

Support and Declaration was provided to the RTFH, which staff believes helped to 

strengthen the amount of funds that were allocated to the four (4) entities that committed 

to serving the East County Region.  A summary of the partners that received funds to 

support East San Diego County is shown below.   

 

Exhibit 1:  HEAP Funded Partners 

Entity Sub recipients Funds 

Received 

Area of Focus 

Crisis House N/A $300,000 Outreach, Rapid Rehousing, 

Client Flex Funds 

Family Health 

Centers of San 

Diego (FHCSD) 

N/A $285,000 Housing Navigation, Client 

Flex Funds 

Home Start – 

East County 

Collaboration 

PATH $500,000 Street Outreach, Rapid 

Rehousing, Client Flex 

Funds, Youth 

(Prevention/Diversion, 

Outreach, Client Flex Funds, 

Youth Housing Navigation) 

Home Start – 

East County 

Youth 

Homelessness 

Project 

 $123,916 Prevention and Diversion, 

Outreach, Client Flex Funds, 

Youth Housing Navigation. 

Salvation Army 211, Alpha Project, 

Home Start, 

Interfaith Shelter 

Network, The 

Center, VVSD, VCS 

$886,491 Prevention/Diversion, Client 

Flex Funds 

 

Collectively, there was $1.9 million awarded to entities that committed to focus 

specifically on the East County Region in their application to the RTFH for HEAP Funds.  

These funds were allocated for the first year only, and there is no guarantee that the 

entities will continue to receive funding into the second year of the HEAP Grant Program.  

At this time, staff is still awaiting the financial update from the four (4) partners to 

determine if they will continue to support to Lemon Grove, as well as the East County 

Region’s efforts, with homeless services.   

 

Based on the Annual Point in Time Count (PIT), Exhibits 2 and 3, detail the City’s total 

number of homeless individuals when compared to the East County and San Diego 

County as a whole.   



 Homelessness Partnership Plan 

 February 18, 2020 

P a g e  | 3 

 

Exhibit 2:  Summary of PIT Count 

Year Lemon Grove Total East County Total County Total 

2019 35 1,052 8,102 

2018 52 1,087 8,576 

2017 36 685 9,116 

2016 12 668 8,692 

2015 11 888 8,742 

2014 34 794 8,506 

 

Exhibit 3:  Graph Comparing Lemon Grove and East County Counts 

 
 

The pattern that the city has experience since 2014 is consistent with the overall East 

County and San Diego County trends especially during the 2017 and 2018 years.   

 

At the time of the report, staff did not have the results from the 2020 Point in Time count 

that occurred on January 23, 2020.  However, based on the 2019 count, 35 individuals 

surveyed were experiencing homelessness.  Like past counts, each number is a snapshot 

of one morning’s work with volunteers made up of both City and County residents.  The 

primary reason for the count is help identify those that are experiencing homeless with a 

secondary goal to establish a measurable number in which future grant funds may be used 

to allocate amounts throughout the County.   

 

Discussion:  On September 27, 2019, staff met with three of the four partners outlined 

in Exhibit 1.  From that meeting, staff learned that each partner awarded HEAP funds had 

a specific role in the East County region.  While some of the tasks may overlap, each 

partner is focused on a different type service.   

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Lemon Grove Compared to East County

Lemon Grove East County



 Homelessness Partnership Plan 

 February 18, 2020 

P a g e  | 4 

 

1. Crisis House:  Based out of El Cajon, Crisis House focuses on urban homelessness 

while providing housing navigation, case management, expanded street outreach, 

meals, rapid rehousing, and client flexible assistance, which includes but not 

limited to application fees, moving deposits, and utility payments.  Crisis House 

received $300,000 of HEAP funds for Year 1:  $150,563.70 allocated for staff and 

operations, $135,000 for rapid rehousing, and $14,436.30 for flex client funds.   

 

At the time this report was finalized a summary of Crisis House’s activities in the 

City was not available.   

 

2. Home Start – East County Collaboration:  Based out of San Diego, Home Start 

works closely with its sub recipient People Assisting the Homeless (PATH) who 

provides an Enhanced Outreach Team, together this partnership provides 

coordinated and targeted street based outreach to individuals experiencing 

homelessness in East County, including families, those with severe mental illness, 

and transitional age youth.  Home Start also has a memorandum of understanding 

with Crisis House to provide outreach and rapid rehousing in the East County.  

HEAP funds are used for street outreach services, rapid rehousing assistance and 

client flexible assistance which includes but not limited to short term motel/hotel 

vouchers, transportation assistance, small amounts of food, rent, utilities, 

deposits, car repairs, one-time move in assistance, impound fees, application fees, 

prescription assistance, credit repair if credit issues are jeopardizing the housing 

or application process, and expungement through the Clean Slate Clinic.  This 

project received $500,000 of HEAP funds for Year 1:  $237,126 allocated for staff 

and operations, $255,000 for rapid rehousing, and $7,874 for flex client funds.   

 

3. Home Start – East County Youth Homelessness Project:  Employs a youth 

housing navigator to provide housing prevention, diversion, housing navigation, 

and street outreach services.  The program dedicated to unaccompanied minors 

and transitional age youth between the ages of 18 and 24 in East County, which 

includes Lemon Grove.  Client flexible assistance includes short-term motel/hotel 

vouchers, transportation assistance, small amounts of food, rent, utilities, 

deposits, car repairs, one-time move in assistance, impound fees, application fees, 

prescription assistance, credit repair if credit issues are jeopardizing the housing 

or application process, and expungement through the Clean Slate Clinic.  This 

project received $123,916 of HEAP funds for Year 1:  $85,916 allocated for staff 

and operations, $4,000 for prevention client funds, $28,000 for diversion client 

funds, and $6,000 for flex client funds.   

 

Home Start has been very active in the City.  Earlier this month staff received a 

summary of their activities, which is summarized below:   



 Homelessness Partnership Plan 

 February 18, 2020 

P a g e  | 5 

 Placed one household in permanent housing through rapid rehousing and is 

working with four other households.   

 Outreach team has engaged with twenty-four (24) individuals and is providing 

ongoing case-management to six (6) of them.   

 Distributed hygiene packs/socks to nineteen (19) people. 

 Assisted twelve (12) people with obtaining free California Identification Cards.  

 Provided additional referrals for services to ten (10) people. 

 

Additionally, there are three specific examples that highlight the Home Start’s 

successes in Lemon Grove.   

 

a. After receiving information from the City about a family living at the Lemon 

Grove Avenue Trolley Station, Home Start’s outreach staff engaged with the 

family to develop trust and build rapport.  They were able to enroll the 

household into its active outreach caseload and start working with them 

closely to connect them to resources.  The outreach staff placed the 

household in a motel while they started working with Home Start’s Rapid 

Rehousing Case Manager.  After being entered into the Coordinated Entry 

System in two weeks, the family was matched to Home Start’s Rapid 

Rehousing Program.  The household faced many barriers during the 

housing search because of a lack of income and prior evictions.  However, 

in less than a month Home Start was able to get the family approved for an 

apartment and they moved into their new permanent home shortly 

thereafter.  

 

b. During regular outreach in Lemon Grove, Home Start staff engaged with 

two transitional aged youth living in a car.  The outreach staff developed 

rapport with the youth and enrolled them onto our active caseload.  Both 

referred to Home Start’s Youth System’s Navigator and placed in a motel.  

Currently, both youth are searching for employment.  In addition, the 

individuals  received California Identification Cards, created resumes and 

are learning job-searching skills.   

 

c. Home Start outreach staff encountered a person at the park who was at risk 

of being evicted due to non-payment of rent.  The person received a three-

day notice to pay or quit from the property owner.  The outreach staff 

immediately connected this person to Home Start’s Homelessness 

Prevention Program. Through the program Home Start was able to pay the 

past due rent to prevent the client from being evicted.  Home Start also 

provided additional case management to ensure the client had the 

knowledge and resources to avoid this situation in the future.   

 



 Homelessness Partnership Plan 

 February 18, 2020 

P a g e  | 6 

4. Salvation Army:  Based out of El Cajon, the program focuses on prevention and 

diversion collaborations with a multitude of partners.  This project received 

$886,491 of HEAP funds for Year 1:  $161,491 allocated for staff and operations, 

$494,375 for prevention client funds, and $230,625 for diversion client funds.  The 

partners that were listed in the HEAP Grant Application included:  

 

a. 211 San Diego – A free source of information to access community, health, 

social and disaster services by dialing 211.  The call is free, confidential and 

available in more than 200 languages.   

 

b. Alpha Project – Focuses on assisting severe mental illness (SMI), terminally 

ill/end of life clients, including illness such as Cancer, Parkinson's, ALS etc.   

 

c. Home Start – Similar services previously described.   

 

d. Interfaith Shelter Network – Coordinating efforts of participating 

congregations, social service agencies and governmental programs to 

provide shelter and other resources to homeless individuals and families 

with the goal of moving them toward self-sufficiency.   

 

e. San Diego LGBT Community Center (The Center) – Provides assistance 

and services to the lesbian, gay, bisexual and transgender community and 

their families, and those living with or affected by HIV/AIDS.   

 

f. Veterans Community Services – Focus on helping military service 

members and veteran’s transition successfully into civilian life.  Committed 

to reducing the risks of homelessness, drug abuse, violence, and family 

disruptions that have accompanied inadequate transitional programs for 

wounded and disabled veterans in San Diego County.   

 

g. Veterans Village of San Diego (VVSD) – Committed to leaving no one 

behind, VVSD is focused on serving homeless military veteran’s within San 

Diego County with housing, homeless court, employment & training, 

rehabilitation and mental health services.   

 

h. A Way Back Home – A reunification program that has been very successful 

in El Cajon, by reuniting individuals experiencing homelessness with their 

family that are living outside of California.   

 

At the time this report was finalized, a summary of Salvation Army’s activities in 

the City was not available.   

 



 Homelessness Partnership Plan 

 February 18, 2020 

P a g e  | 7 

The partner that staff did not meet with in September was Family Health Center of San 

Diego (FHCSD).  At the time that staff met with the other three providers, staff was not 

aware that there was a fourth partner who had agreed to support the East County.  It was 

not until December 2020, when staff asked the RTFH for a list of all East County Service 

Providers did it realize there was another homeless outreach/service partner that would 

serve the City.  The details of what the FHCSD provides are listed below.   

 

Family Health Centers of San Diego (FHCSD):  Focus on housing navigation 

services for individual adults and families, especially the chronically homeless 

suffering from mental health issues, substance use disorder, and/or chronic 

medical concerns (e.g. HIV+ HCV, diabetes) in East and South County.   

 

The health needs population will benefit from housing navigation, cross referrals 

to other housing services such as prevention and diversion, and access to FHCSD 

- provided wraparound services including primary and dental health, substance 

abuse and mental health counseling, benefits assistance, and intensive case 

management, trauma informed care, and other evidence based practice 

interventions as appropriate to the client's specific situation, needs, and personal 

values and goals.   

 

Satellite Resource Centers (SRC) and Housing Navigators (HN) will support the 

expansion of coordinated, timely, and impactful housing navigation services 

leading to housing placement, beyond what is currently available in San Diego, 

through the establishment of two (2) SRC's in areas of highest need and near two 

FHCSD clinic sites.  In addition to the primary goal of obtaining housing, HN's will 

promote quality of life and self-sufficiency by assessing client needs for other 

supportive services on an ongoing basis, providing assisted and unassisted 

referrals, and helping schedule and attending appointments (as requested by the 

client) for medical, dental, mental health, SAT, vocational training, legal, and other 

services. 

 

This project received $285,000 of HEAP funds for Year 1:  $212,365 allocated for 

staff and operations and $72,635 for flex client funds.   

 

Since meeting with the partners in September, staff has primarily worked with Home 

Start’s case manager during field responses.  Using the example from the Home Start 

discussion on pages 4-5 of this report, staff contacts a Homeless Outreach Specialist who 

will respond in the field by contact families or individuals experiencing homeless.  That 

differs from the services that Crisis House provides, because Crisis House focuses on 

established service locations where homeless individuals frequent to receive some form 

of service, food, clothing or shelter.  In either instance, Home Start continues to serve as 

the City’s primary point of contact.  Any follow up referrals, from Home Start to the other 

three partners or vice versa, occurs automatically based on the type of service needed.   



 Homelessness Partnership Plan 

 February 18, 2020 

P a g e  | 8 

 

Lastly, staff is also aware of the presence of the Interfaith Shelter Network, which is 

heavily supported by the Lemon Grove faith based community, that provides assistance 

to those experiencing homelessness in the City.  While not coordinated by the City, staff 

understands that food pantries, providing clothing, supporting a rotational winter shelter, 

and mobile showers are available in the City.   

 

With the presence of these partners, staff has still seen an increase for City resources that 

are required to mitigate the homeless encampments, as well as respond to calls for service 

from the businesses and residents.  The next section details the impacts that the City 

manages as they directly relate to Public Works, Sheriff’s Department and Fire 

Department activities.   

 

Impacts to the City Services:  The majority of the homeless calls for service emanate from 

the businesses, residents and guests in the City.  On average, the Public Works 

Department receives five (5) calls per week regarding requests that are directly related to 

homelessness (e.g. camps, illegal dumping, shopping carts, and debris in the right-of-way, 

blocking the right-of-way, or creating a disturbance in public).  While some of the calls 

are relayed to the Sheriff’s Department to respond, and vacate the individuals from the 

area; there are those calls that involve camps on private property, camps and debris near 

the underpasses of State Route 94 and 125 or in San Diego MTS right-of-way, and camps 

in vacant lots, shopping carts and debris in open channel creeks in the City.   

 

In most cases, a two-person Public Works field team will respond to manage the call for 

service.  However, in instances when a homeless encampment is found to be in the public 

right-of-way, it requires a significant amount of work to remove the camp.  Typically, the 

steps include posting a public notice at the camp notifying of the date and time of the 

cleaning, coordinating with the Sheriff’s Department for assistance, mobilization of 

Public Works heavy equipment, wearing the property personnel protective equipment 

during the work, delivery of an EDCO provided dumpster(s), and the presence of the 

majority of the Public Works field team which often exceeds 3-5 people for at least four 

(4) hours.  In order to provide a cost estimate to clear a small camp Exhibit 4 was created 

to show the fiscal impact.  Keep in the mind that this estimate does not account for 

administrative staff time to coordinate the clean up because that role can vary from Front 

Counter Personnel to Department Directors, the cost for Sheriff’s presence since they are 

patrol deputies on duty at the time, nor the cost for the dumpster because it is provided 

by EDCO.   

 

Exhibit 4:  Three Employees for a Four-Hour Camp Clean Up 

Description Fully Burdened 

Cost Per Hour 

Quantity Number of 

Hours 

Total 

Cost 

Supervisor $54 1 4 $216 

Tech II $42 1 4 $168 



 Homelessness Partnership Plan 

 February 18, 2020 

P a g e  | 9 

Tech I $28 1 4 $112 

Vehicles/Equipment $65 3 4 $780 

Total Cost    $1,276 

 

Staff currently responds to a minimum of three (3) larger encampment clean-ups per 

quarter.  Taking into account the information in Exhibit 4 staff estimates a total annual 

cost of $15,312, to respond and clean up smaller homeless encampments.  The other 

service area impacted by homelessness is public safety.  A summary of homeless relate 

activities related to the Sheriff’s and Fire Department summarized is shown below.   

 

Sheriff’s Department:  Since 2017, the Sheriff’s Department has seen a noticeable 

increase in the number of homeless related contacts occurring in the City.  Exhibit 5 shows 

the history of only those contacts that resulted in a crime or arrest report.  

 

Exhibit 5:  Transient Related Crimes (by type) Per Year (Jan. 2015 through Feb. 2020) 

Crime Type 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

  Property       

    Larceny Theft 1  20 28 41 5 

    Non-Residential Burglary   1 1 2  

       

    Residential Burglary   1 1 1 1 

    Theft From a Vehicle    2 2  

    Vehicle Theft    4 7  

  Property       

    Assault 3   9 11 5 

    Rape    1   

    Robbery    6 8  

Total 4 0 22 52 72 11 

 

The Sheriff’s Department began to focus more on recording incidents that involve 

homeless individuals because the City began to receive more calls for service and City staff 

began attending local and regional homeless meetings to learn more about what are some 

solutions available.  Based on the direction from the City, the Sheriff’s Department began 

to log all cases/crimes that involved homeless individuals.  Some additional observations 

include:  

 Calls for service involving homelessness has increased over time.   

 An estimated 90% or more of the homeless calls for service involve a mental illness, 

being under the influence of alcohol, drugs or both.   

 There is no methodology in place that tracks daily radio calls for homelessness, 

however, general observation concludes that those calls have increased over time.  

That conclusion supported by a trend that is very clear when looking at Exhibit 5, 

there are increasing incidents occurring annually since 2017.  If the current trend 



 Homelessness Partnership Plan 

 February 18, 2020 

P a g e  | 10 

continues in 2020, the estimated number of incidents may increase to as high as 

88.   

 

It is very apparent that the Sheriff’s Department must be involved in the solutions that 

the City considers moving forward but it should not be sole solution to solve 

homelessness.  Often times, the calls for service that require the Sheriff’s Department to 

respond are related to homeless individuals committing a crime, being under the 

influence of drugs or alcohol, trespassing on to private property, or causing disturbance 

in the public.  During each of the examples, our Sheriff’s Department responds, tries to 

provide information about services that are available nearby, but those offers are often 

rejected, hence there is no other recourse for the Sheriff’s Department to take when a 

crime is not committed, because being homeless in and of itself is not a crime.   

 

It is important to note that there have been legal changes, which influenced the Sheriff 

Department’s ability to respond to residents calls for services that involve homelessness.  

The most notable occurring in December 2019, when the United States Supreme Court 

denied a petition by the City of Boise to review the case Martin v. Boise.  This left in place 

by an earlier ruling of the 9th Circuit that homeless persons cannot be punished for 

sleeping outside on public property in the absence of adequate alternative shelter.  That 

means if there were no options of sleeping indoors, the City could not criminalize 

homeless people for sleeping outdoors or on public property.  This directly affects the City 

because there are no homeless shelters within City limits; therefore, there are no 

alternative shelters, and ultimately cannot be a citable action.  However, there are two 

distinct circumstances when the City may cite individuals that may or may not be 

homeless.  First, per Lemon Grove Municipal Code 12.20.050 states in part, “It is unlawful 

to remain upon the grounds of any city park, or any part thereof, except between the hours 

of dawn to dusk.”  This applies to all individuals and is mutually exclusive of their housing 

status.  Second, 647(C) of the California Penal Code, states, “every person who willfully 

and maliciously obstructs the free movement of any person on any street, sidewalk or 

other public place or on or in any place open to the public is guilty of a misdemeanor.”  

This situation may occur when a camp blocks a sidewalk and force pedestrians to walk 

into the street or on to private property.   

 

Fire Department:  The Fire Department began the same tracking process for their calls 

for service as they relate to homeless individuals beginning in 2017.  In Exhibit 6, a 

summary of homeless calls for service summarizes the total calls for service and homeless 

calls for service.   

  



 Homelessness Partnership Plan 

 February 18, 2020 

P a g e  | 11 

 

Exhibit 6:  Fire Department Call For Service Comparison 

Fire Engine 2017 2018 2019 Total 

Homelessness Calls For Service 128 259 167 554 

Percentage of Total Calls 5% 6% 4% 5% (average) 

# of Total Calls 2,236 4,163 4,054 10,453 

 

The percentage of total calls related to homelessness has remained relatively constant 

when compared to the total number of calls for service.   

 

Options Moving Forward:  Understanding the fiscal impacts that the City currently has, 

there are no available discretionary funds available to support the Homelessness 

Partnership Plan.  However, staff included the following options for the City Council to 

discuss and provide feedback to staff.  If the City Council wishes to pursue some of these 

options staff will return with options to reducing funding to other programs in order to 

fund these options.   
 

Option #1:  Continue to Participate in the ECHTF.  Staff recommends continuing to 

participate in the meetings with the East County Homeless Task Force (ECHTF), which 

operates under the East County Chamber of Commerce, to share information and 

participate in regional discussions.  As a reminder, the ECHTF requested that the City 

participate in a $33,100 annual cost-sharing model in 2017, which was before the HEAP 

funds were allocated.  At that time, no items were selected for funding.  Those items 

included:   

1. Hire an ECHTF Director:  This position will identify and prioritize key problem 
areas based on the 11 teams that are a part of the ECHTF.   
 Lemon Grove:  $5,000.  Total Need:  $40,000.   
 

2. Marketing Program:   
Signage:  Adopt the idea that there are better ways to support homeless 
individuals rather than giving directly to them.  The sign has already been created 
and the City of El Cajon already posted them in frequently known homeless 
panhandling areas.   
 Lemon Grove:  $42 per sign.  Total Need:  Unknown.   
 

3. Posters:  Allow businesses to place posters in storefront windows that educate 
businesses and residents about the drawbacks to giving directly to panhandlers.  
The benefits of businesses participating is that the poster will not count towards 
the advertising space limitation.   
 Lemon Grove:  $0 (funded by the business community).  Total Need:  $0 
 

4. Access to Services:  This is a new app solution for homeless individuals to access 
available services from their mobile phones.  ConnectEC.org was produced by the 
East County Leadership Team and will work with text only or smart phones.  
Bracelets with numbers to text and cards for wallets will also be provided.   
 Lemon Grove:  Unknown.  Total Need:  Unknown. 



 Homelessness Partnership Plan 

 February 18, 2020 

P a g e  | 12 

 

5. Portable Showers:  For the east county region, the showers will be supported by 
the faith & service community.  These showers will be used in conjunction with 
additional services for the homeless.   
 Lemon Grove:  $2,600.  Total Need:  $26,000. 
 

6. Reunification Program:  East County Salvation Army supported program that will 
connect homeless with family members that are willing to accept them at their 
destination.   
 Lemon Grove:  $2,000 ($500 per individual).  Total Need:  Unknown.   
 

7. Housing Navigator:  This request is to fund a housing navigator for Lemon Grove 
to assist with case work and to help with long term housing.  It will be managed 
through Crisis House and will focus only on homeless individuals in Lemon Grove.   
 Lemon Grove:  $7,500.  Total Need:  Unknown.   
 

8. Rental Assistance:  Request support for rental assistance for up to five homeless 
family’s coordinated by Crisis House.  This will assist families with the first three 
months of rent.   
 Lemon Grove:  $16,000.  Total Need:  Unknown.   
 

Option #2:  Continue to Partner with East County Cities and the County of San Diego.  

Since 2017, the East County Cities (El Cajon, La Mesa and Santee) and the County of San 

Diego have met to discussion various partnerships that would be beneficial to the entire 

East County Region.  By collectively voicing the concerns specific to the East County 

Region, this partnership may result in the City receiving assistance, service or funding 

from the RTFH, the County, and the State of California.   

 Cost:  $0.   

 

Option #3:  Update the City’s Website.  The City Council directed staff to host a Homeless 

Services Workshop on November 20, 2019.  One of the primary requests from the 

residents and business owners that attended was there is no readily accessible 

information available.  Staff can create a webpage on the City’s website that can share 

information about the City partners and the priorities for the City Council concerning 

homelessness within the City.   

 Cost:  $0.   
 

Option #4:  Offer Workspace for Home Start to Operate within City Hall.  After having 

additional discussions with Home Start, City staff learned that they are interested in 

expanding on its current partnership to increase its presence in the City.  City staff has 

reviewed the current workstation layout in City Hall and concluded the feasibility of 

adding an additional workstation in City Hall that can accommodate a Homeless 

Outreach Specialist from Home Start.  City staff estimates that Home Start require 

minimal resources from the City.  Staff can return to the City Council with a no-fee lease 

agreement with Home Start to occupy a workstation in City Hall.  

 Cost:  $0.   



 Homelessness Partnership Plan 

 February 18, 2020 

P a g e  | 13 

 

Option #5:  Contract Clean Up Services to a Contractor.  The estimated city staff cost to 

cleaning up homeless camps each year east equals $15,000.  There are third party 

companies that respond to illegal camp cleanup projects as well as monitor “hot spot” 

illegal camp locations.  However, that cost will likely exceed what staff is currently 

estimating.  The greatest benefit to exploring this option is enable the streets division 

employees to focus on other city priorities rather than responding to clean up homeless 

camps.   

 Cost:  $9,000 for one day/one encampment clean up (estimate provided in 2018).   

 

Option #6:  Explore Grants and Other Funds.  When researching the programs that other 

San Diego County cities have implemented to assist with homelessness there are other 

funds that have been used in this manner as well as the possibility of new funds that may 

be allocated to the region.  Those funds include:  

 California State Budget FY 2020-2021 ($1.4 billion of new money for homeless 

services and housing),  

 Community Development Block Grant Fund,  

 General Fund,  

 Reserve Fund, and 

 Regional Task Force on the Homeless (San Diego Continuum of Care). 

 

If this is an option that the City Council would like to further explore it can return with 

options during the FY 2020-2021 budget process.   

 Cost:  Unknown.   

 

Option #7:  Contract with Home Start for an Outreach Specialist.  A full time Outreach 

Specialist would work exclusively in Lemon Grove and would be the most responsive tool 

to address homelessness in the City.  Under the current model, Home Start staff is 

allocated to the entire East County Region.  A dedicated Outreach Specialist could 

consistently and intensively work with people experiencing homelessness in Lemon 

Grove while also leveraging all of our other resources to connect those in need with 

housing and support services.   

 Cost:  $80,000 per year.   

 

Conclusion:  The single greatest reason why the staff is not recommending a more 

robust partnership at this time is lack of unallocated discretionary funds to pay for 

services or staffing.  Without additional funds, the only two ways to support these options 

are to use the General Reserve Fund or reallocated funds from other City services.  For 

example, Community Development Block Grant funds may be used to fund homeless 

services, however, that would reduce the amount of funds available for street 

rehabilitation.   

 



 Homelessness Partnership Plan 

 February 18, 2020 

P a g e  | 14 

Staff seeks feedback from the City Council on which of the options presented the City 

Council would like staff to pursue or not.  Additionally, if there are other activities that 

the City Council desires, staff could incorporate that analysis into the annual goal-setting 

workshop for further discussion.  

Environmental Review:   

 Not subject to review  Negative Declaration 

 Categorical Exemption, Section        Mitigated Negative Declaration 

 

Fiscal Impact:  There is no direct fiscal impact with this discussion.  Depending on the 

feedback from the City Council, staff will return at a future meeting with the fiscal impact 

of each option selected for implementation.   

 

Public Notification:  None.   

 

Staff Recommendation:  That the City Council receives the report and provides 

direction to staff regarding the Lemon Grove Homelessness Partnership Plan.   

 

Attachments:  None. 



 

 FY 2019-20 Mid-Year Budget Update 
 February 18, 2020 

P a g e  | 1 

 

CITY OF LEMON GROVE 
 

CITY COUNCIL  
STAFF REPORT 

Item No. 5 

Meeting Date: February 18, 2020 

Submitted to: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

Department: City Manager’s Office 

Staff Contact: Lydia Romero, City Manager  
 Rod Greek, Interim Admin Services Director 
 lromero@lemongrove.ca.gov and rgreek@lemongrove.ca.go 

Item Title: Fiscal Year 2019-20 Mid-Year Budget Update 

 
Recommended Action:   
Adopt a resolution (Attachment C) approving the Fiscal Year 2019-20 City of Lemon 
Grove Mid-Year Budget 
Adopt a resolution (Attachment D) approving the Fiscal Year 2019-20 Appropriations 
Limit. 
Authorize the transfer of $804,924 from the FY 18-19 Fund balance to the City’s 115 Trust 
for investment towards future CalPERS obligations. 
 

Summary: 
On June 18, 2019, the City Council adopted the Fiscal Year 2019-20 Lemon Grove 
Consolidated Operating and Capital Budget.  In keeping with best financial practices, 
mid-way through the fiscal year the City Council shall adjust the adopted budget to reflect 
revised revenue and expenditure projections, and the results of the prior year financial 
audit.  Besides improving the accuracy of the approved budget, this procedure is designed 
to provide the City Council and the public with a review of City’s financial health. 
  

Discussion: 
Proposed mid-year adjustments are included for budget line items that are projected to 
be over/under the original adopted budget by at least $5,000 or represent new line items 
that were not previously in the budget. 
 
General Fund:  
The following table compares a summary of the adopted FY 2019-2020 General Fund 
Budget with the proposed mid-year adjustments.  
 
 

1 of 18



 

 FY 2019-20 Mid-Year Budget Update 
 February 18, 2020 

P a g e  | 2 

 

      FY 2019‐2020 

      Adopted     Proposed 

General Fund    

   Balance Forward   $      6,280,923      $        6,280,923  

   Revenue           14,054,324           14,506,228  

   Expenditures         (14,606,428)         (14,832,428) 

   Reserve Revenue                            ‐                   ‐  

   Transfers                126,072                 107,302  

   Ending Balance   $        5,854,891      $        6,062,025  

 
 

The following discussion of mid-year adjustments will present the adjustments in terms 
of their net impact on the budget, rather than what the new total for each specific line 
item or account will be.  
 
Staff recommends that General Fund revenues be increased in total by $451,904. See 
attachment A for the detailed breakdown of adjustments. The main drivers are: 

 Additional $190,000 of Property Tax, due to rising property values. 
 Additional $186,904 due to a reimbursement from SDG&E for Lemon Grove 

Avenue Realignment costs incurred in FY2019. 
 Additional $68,000 in Permit Fees, due to increased activity. 
 Additional $28,000 of Rent Revenue as original projection did not include CPI 

adjustment.  
 Reduction of ($62,000) Passport processing fees as there is lower activity than 

anticipated. 
 Reduction of $(20,000) in Administrative Citations as anticipated proceeds from 

a settlement were shifted to FY2019 from FY2020. 
 
Transfer activity is reflected in the budget book at the end of the revenue section. This 
section of the budget includes any inter-fund transfer to or from the General Fund. The 
proposed mid-year transfer adjustment is in attachment A, and has to do with the 
Successor Agency for the Redevelopment Authority. Staff recommends that General Fund 
transfers be decreased by $18,770 for Administrative costs related to the 2019 A&B Bonds 
which were issued to redeem the outstanding 2007 and 2010 bonds. These costs were 
expensed directly to the Successor Agency rather than to the general fund as originally 
budgeted. 
 
Staff recommends that General Fund expenditures be increased by $216,000. See 
attachment A for details on each line item included in the adjustment. The most 
significant changes are: 

 Increase of $150,000 in Fire JPA costs due to reorganization of Heartland Fire & 
Rescue Joint Powers Authority.  

2 of 18



 

 FY 2019-20 Mid-Year Budget Update 
 February 18, 2020 

P a g e  | 3 

 

 Increase of $33,000 in Public Works for emergency repairs on vehicles, HVAC, 
lighting and plumbing; and for additional workload related to storm response, 
dropbox, and opening/closing of public facilities. 

 Increase of $28,000 for election costs. 
 Increase of $10,000 for costs related to FLSA litigation, investigations and a 

CalPERS audit. 
 Increase of $5,000 for SANDAG membership dues. 

 
After the proposed mid-year budget adjustments, total General Fund resources total 
$14,613,530, while total General Fund expenditures total $14,832,428. Estimated 
expenditures exceed estimated resources by $218,898, which means the General Fund is 
still expected to end the fiscal year in a deficit. The original budget had projected a 
$426,032 deficit.  We’ve made every effort to hold positions vacant, trim costs where 
absolutely necessary.  The increases we are requesting are necessary to continue to 
provide minimum service levels to the community.  Fortunately we were able to offset the 
increase in costs with projected increases in revenue which is closing the gap in our 
original budget deficit. 
 
This is an indicator that the City’s long-term structural deficit is continuing. The City has 
implemented cost cutting measures by underfunding needs on the expenditure side. 
Deferring investment in capital replacement and staff is not a long-term solution. In 
addition, general economic projections show a recession or slow-down coming in the next 
few years. Therefore, the City needs to continue to prioritize generating new sources of 
revenue. 
 
FY18/19 General Fund Surplus 
The General Fund ended FY18-19 with a surplus of $804,924. In accordance with the 
City’s adopted General Reserve Policy, half is required to be transferred to reserves and 
the other half is to be used for one-time expenditures per direction from the City Council. 
In December 2019, Council directed staff to investment the entire surplus of $804,924 in 
the City’s 115 Pension Trust.  Council’s direction is consistent with the existing general 
reserve policy as the 115 trust is a reserve account. 
 
As a reminder, investing the cash in a 115 Trust, rather than in an extra payment directly 
to CalPERS or keeping the funds in the District’s and City’s pooled cash investments, 
maintains local control of the investment while providing the opportunity for investment 
in options that have the potential to generate higher interest earnings. The District’s 
initial deposit into the 115 Trust was made in October 2018. Over the last year (Oct 2018 
– Oct 2019), the 115 Trust has returned net interest earnings of 9.3%. 
 
 
 

3 of 18



 

 FY 2019-20 Mid-Year Budget Update 
 February 18, 2020 

P a g e  | 4 

 

General Fund Current Year Finance Report: 
Since the General Fund has been the focal point of the City’s on-going financial worries, 
staff thought it was important to provide the City Council and general public with 
additional financial reporting on a regular basis. Attachment C is review of the General 
Fund revenue and expenditure activity between July 1, 2019 and December 31, 2019 and 
a comparison to the prior year’s activity. Once the proposed mid-year budget is adopted, 
the budget column on the report will be updated. Staff will provide this report to Council 
on a quarterly basis. 
 
Other Funds 
In addition to the General Fund, a few of the other funds have line items that are projected 
to be more than $5,000 different than the original budget.  
 
Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Fund (07) 
The City received an additional payment from the County beyond the contracted 
$100,000 annual amount. 
 
Transportation Development Act (TDA) (10) 
The original budget will be decreased for a reimbursement amount for FY2019 due to 
actual costs coming in lower than anticipated and a reduction in cost estimates for 
allowable street repair expenditures.  These changes result in a $10,000 decrease to the 
fund balance. 
 
Sanitation District: Operating (15) 
Received refund of $550,899 from City of San Diego Metro JPA for annual expense 
reconciliation.  This reduces our annual expenditure budget for Metro Capacity and 
Treatment by the same amount. Funds were placed in the 115 Trust per direction from 
District Board in December 2019. 
 
Sanitation District: Capital (16) 
Continued Rehabilitation of sewer mains is resulting in an increase of $270,000 in 
expenditures for this fund. 
 
Appropriations Limit 
As mentioned during the discussion of the Annual Financial Report for FY18-19 at the 
December 17, 2019, City Council meeting, the audit found that last year’s adopted 
Appropriations Limit (or Gann Limit) was understated by $240. Each year’s limit is 
calculated from the prior year’s limit, therefore, the FY19-20 Appropriations Limit 
Council adopted in June 2019 is also incorrect. Attachment E is the amended FY20 
Appropriation Limit to adopt based on the corrected calculation. 
 

4 of 18



 

 FY 2019-20 Mid-Year Budget Update 
 February 18, 2020 

P a g e  | 5 

 

Environmental Review: 

 Not subject to review  Negative Declaration 

 Categorical Exemption, Section        Mitigated Negative Declaration 

 
Fiscal Impact:  
Approving the Mid-Year Budget update authorizes expenditures within those budget 
limits. 
___ 
 
Public Notification: 
None. 
 
Staff Recommendation:   
Adopt a resolution approving the Fiscal Year 2019-20 City of Lemon Grove Mid-Year 
Budget; 
Adopt a resolution approving the revised Fiscal Year 2019-20 Appropriations Limit. 
Authorize the transfer of $804,924 from the General Fund to the City’s 115 Trust for 
investment towards future CalPERS obligations. 
 
Attachments: 
Attachment A – Proposed FY2019-20 Budget Adjustments 
Attachment B – July 1, 2019 – December 31, 2019 Finance Report 
Attachment C – Resolution Approving FY2019-20 Lemon Grove Budget 
Attachment D – Resolution Approving FY2019-20 Appropriations Limit 
 

5 of 18



ATTACHMENT A

General Fund

Adopted Budget 6,280,923$  

REVENUE

Description Adjustment Reason

Property Tax Secured and Unsecured 190,000           Higher growth than anticipated

Rent Revenue ‐ Long Term 28,000              Original projection didn't include CPI adjustment

Fire Plan Review & Inspection 5,000                More activity than projected

Fire Cost Recovery 24,000              More activity than projected

Building Permits 40,000              More activity than projected

Planning Permits 20,000              More activity than projected

Engineering Permits 8,000                More activity than projected

Passport Processing Fees (62,000)            Less activity than projected

Cost Recovery 186,904           Reimbursement from SDG&E for LG Realignment costs inc rred in FY19

Other Revenues 12,000              Received reimbursement for staff time on Successor Agency Bond Refunding

Administrative Citations (20,000)            Proceeds from settlement with property owner counted as FY19 revenue

Interest Revenue ‐ LAIF 20,000              Interest rates staying slightly higher than estimated

Increase in Revenue 451,904          

TRANSFERS

Description Adjustment Reason

Interfund Transfer ‐ Successor Agency (18,770)            Paid some admin costs directly from Fund 60

Decrease in Transfers (18,770)           

EXPENDITURES

Description Adjustment Reason

City Council

Membership and Dues 5,000                SANDAG Dues increased $4,535 from FY19

Human Resources

Professional Services 10,000              Costs related to FLSA litigation, investigations and a CalPERS audit

Fire

Quarterly JPA Reconcilation 150,000           Costs related to reorganization

Public Works

Repair & Maintenance ‐ Vehicles 5,000                Emergency repairs on aging fleet

Overtime ‐ Public Works 10,000              Additional work required due to storms, dropbox and opening/closing facilities

Lighting Maintenance 8,000                Emergency parking lot lights for recreation center

Repair and Maintenance ‐ Facilities 10,000              Emergency HVAC, lighting and plumbing repairs

Non‐Departmental

Election Costs 28,000              LG specific measure added to March ballot

Increase in Expenditures 226,000          

Original Revenue 14,054,324     

Increase in Revenue 451,904          

Original Transfers 126,072          

Decrease in Transfers (18,770)           

Original Expenditures (14,606,428)   

Increase in Expenditures (226,000)         

Increase in Reserve Revenue ‐                   

Revised Budget 6,062,025$  

City of Lemon Grove FY 2019‐2020 Budget Adjustments
Exhibit 1 of Budget Resolution

6 f 18



Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 37,462$

REVENUE

Description Adjustment Reason

Supplemental Law Enforcement Services 55,948 Received additional payment

Original Revenue 100,000

Increase in Revenue 55,948

Original Expenditures (130,000)

Ending Fund Balance 63,410$

Transportation Development Act (TDA)

Beginning Fund Balance (12,349)$

REVENUE

Description Adjustment Reason

Revenue TDA (30,794) Reimbursement for FY19 based on actuals

EXPENDITURE

Description Adjustment Reason

Street Repairs (21,000) Outside of allowable TDA expenditures

Original Revenue 121,220

Decrease in Revenue (30,794)

Original Expenditures (142,494)

Decrease in Expenditures 21,000

Ending Fund Balance (64,417)$

7 of 18



Sanitation District: Operating

Beginning Fund Balance 9,056,502$

EXPENSE

Description Adjustment Reason

Metro Annual Capacity & Treatment (550,899) METRO JPA Annual Reconciliation refund

Original Revenue 8,411,389

Original Expenditures (8,830,008)

Decrease in Expenditures 550,899

Ending Fund Balance 9,188,782$

Sanitation District: Capital

Beginning Fund Balance 10,363,583$

EXPENSE

Description Adjustment Reason

FY 17 18 Sewer Main Rehab Construction 270,000 Projected in FY19, but work continued into FY20

Original Revenue 1,545,000

Original Expenditures (2,356,495)

Increase in Expenditures (270,000)

Ending Fund Balance 9,282,088$

8 of 18



As of Dec 31, 2019

General Fund Revenue & Expenditure
*Expect total % expended to be approximately 50%

Revenue Budget YTD % Collected PY YTD Variance

Sales Tax 5,547,721.00 2,064,967.60 37% 2,435,685.10 15%

Property Tax 2,716,430.00 1,133,792.32 42% 1,020,437.59 11%

Property Tax In Lieu 2,742,418.00 0% #DIV/0!

Franchise Fees 1,070,100.00 307,855.54 29% 318,106.53 3%

Building Permits 250,000.00 228,639.95 91% 228,196.60 0%

Other Rev 2,036,031.00 1,150,534.35 57% 1,091,275.75 5%

TOTAL REV 14,362,700.00$ 4,885,789.76$ 34% 5,093,701.57$ 4%

Expenditures Budget YTD % Expended PY YTD Variance

City Council 115,186.00 61,306.65 53% 40,081.38 53%

City Manager 283,646.00 134,679.39 47% 127,331.34 6%

Human Resources 102,531.00 60,526.90 59% 45,435.54 33%

City Clerk 111,459.00 53,553.22 48% 32,060.71 67%

City Attorney 195,000.00 79,215.69 41% 92,946.23 15%

Finance 388,663.00 196,049.73 50% 137,725.43 42%

Public Safety 6,590,770.00 2,168,535.68 33% 2,103,020.30 3%

Fire 4,547,556.00 2,512,805.56 55% 2,464,332.59 2%

Community Development 626,876.00 335,379.32 54% 330,888.99 1%

Public Works 1,580,741.00 807,538.31 51% 699,072.27 16%

Non Departmental 64,000.00 6,493.50 10% 18,855.18 66%

TOTAL EXP 14,606,428.00$ 6,416,083.95$ 44% 6,091,749.96$ 5%

Narrative:

Above is a brief overview of the City's General Fund activity from July 1st through December 31st of the 2019 2020 fiscal year.

ATTACHMENT B

GF Revenue

$4.9M
$14.4M$0M

GF Expenditures

$6.4M
$14.6M$0M

Highlights:
Sales tax revenue is lagging last year by 15% but is up an average of 2.9% over the past 2 fiscal years. The first few months of FY2019were high due to

systems issues at the State. Property tax revenue is up 11% halfway through the year. Other revenue is over 50%mainly due to receipt of the LG
Realignment reimbursement. Building Permit activity is consistent with last fiscal year at this time reflecting consistent economic activity for Lemon Grove.

Halfway through the fiscal year expenditures should be around 50% of the budget. Overall, we are under that percentage (44%) mainly due to the
Sheriff's Department being one month behind in their billing. Fire is at 55% expended mainly due to increased use of overtime to backfill for absences due to
injuries.

Salaries and Benefits for the General Fund are about 3.4% over where we would expect them to be at mid year. This is mainly due to Overtime in both
Fire and Public Works, and Retirement across the board.

9 of 18



500 1,000 1,500 2,000 2,500

City Council

City Manager

Human Resources

City Clerk

City Attorney

Finance

Public Safety

Fire

Community Development

Public Works

Exp by Dept FY19 vs. FY20

FY 2019 FY 2020

2,436

1,020

318
228

1,091

2,065

1,134

308 229

1,151

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

Sales Tax Property Tax Franchise Fees Building Permits Other Rev

Revenue: FY19 vs. FY20

FY 2019 FY 2020

REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
AS OF

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2019

10 of 18



Department FY 19/20 Budget % of Total
Administration          1,260,485.00 9%

Public Safety          6,590,770.00 45%

Fire          4,547,556.00 31%

Community Development            626,876.00 4%

Public Works          1,580,741.00 11%

Total Budget      14,606,428.00 100.00%

Administration

Public Safety

Fire

Community Development

Public Works

Capital Expenditures
Op Supplies & Services
Contracted Services
Salaries & Benefits

FY 2020 BUDGET

FY 2020 EXPENDITURES THROUGH December 31, 2019

$14.6 M

$6.4 M

11 of 18



FY 2019-20 Mid-Year Budget Update 
February 18, 2020 
P a g e  | 6

Attachment C

RESOLUTION NO. 2020- 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, 
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE MID-YEAR 

BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020 AND AUTHORIZING EXPENDITURES 
THERETO

WHEREAS, on June 18, 2019 the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2019-

3666 approving the Consolidated Budget for Fiscal Year 2019-20; and

WHEREAS, said Budget warrants revision to reflect new information regarding 

revenue and expenditure projections; and 

WHEREAS, said Budget warrants revision to reflect actions taken by the City 

Council since its adoption that impact the Budget; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the proposed revisions. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 

Lemon Grove, California, hereby

1. Approves the Lemon Grove Fiscal Year 2019-20 Mid-Year Budget (Exhibit 1); 

and

2. Authorizes expenditures thereto. 

12 of 18



FY 2019-20 Mid-Year Budget Update 
February 18, 2020 
P a g e  | 7

    

Attachment C

PASSED AND ADOPTED on February 18, 2020, the City Council of the City of 

Lemon Grove, California, adopted Resolution No. 2020-_____, passed by the following 

vote:

AYES:

 NOES: 

 ABSENT: 

 ABSTAIN: 

      __________________________

      Raquel Vasquez, Mayor 

Attest:

__________________________ 

Shelley Chapel, MMC, City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

_________________________
Kristen Steinke, City Attorney 

13 of 18



EXHIBIT 1

General Fund

Adopted Budget 6,280,923$  

REVENUE

Description Adjustment Reason

Property Tax Secured and Unsecured 190,000           Higher growth than anticipated

Rent Revenue ‐ Long Term 28,000              Original projection didn't include CPI adjustment

Fire Plan Review & Inspection 5,000                More activity than projected

Fire Cost Recovery 24,000              More activity than projected

Building Permits 40,000              More activity than projected

Planning Permits 20,000              More activity than projected

Engineering Permits 8,000                More activity than projected

Passport Processing Fees (62,000)            Less activity than projected

Cost Recovery 186,904           Reimbursement from SDG&E for LG Realignment costs incurred in FY19

Other Revenues 12,000              Received reimbursement for staff time on Successor Agency Bond Refunding

Administrative Citations (20,000)            Proceeds from settlement with property owner counted as FY19 revenue

Interest Revenue ‐ LAIF 20,000              Interest rates staying slightly higher than estimated

Increase in Revenue 451,904          

TRANSFERS

Description Adjustment Reason

Interfund Transfer ‐ Successor Agency (18,770)            Paid some admin costs directly from Fund 60

Decrease in Transfers (18,770)           

EXPENDITURES

Description Adjustment Reason

City Council

Membership and Dues 5,000                SANDAG Dues increased $4,535 from FY19

Human Resources

Professional Services 10,000              Costs related to FLSA litigation, investigations and a CalPERS audit

Fire

Quarterly JPA Reconcilation 150,000           Costs related to reorganization

Public Works

Repair & Maintenance ‐ Vehicles 5,000                Emergency repairs on aging fleet

Overtime ‐ Public Works 10,000              Additional work required due to storms, dropbox and opening/closing facilities

Lighting Maintenance 8,000                Emergency parking lot lights for recreation center

Repair and Maintenance ‐ Facilities 10,000              Emergency HVAC, lighting and plumbing repairs

Non‐Departmental

Election Costs 28,000              LG specific measure added to March ballot

Increase in Expenditures 226,000          

Original Revenue 14,054,324     

Increase in Revenue 451,904          

Original Transfers 126,072          

Decrease in Transfers (18,770)           

Original Expenditures (14,606,428)   

Increase in Expenditures (226,000)         

Increase in Reserve Revenue ‐                   

Revised Budget 6,062,025$  

City of Lemon Grove FY 2019‐2020 Budget Adjustments
Exhibit 1 of Budget Resolution

14 of 18



Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 37,462$

REVENUE

Description Adjustment Reason

Supplemental Law Enforcement Services 55,948 Received additional payment

Original Revenue 100,000

Increase in Revenue 55,948

Original Expenditures (130,000)

Ending Fund Balance 63,410$

Transportation Development Act (TDA)

Beginning Fund Balance (12,349)$

REVENUE

Description Adjustment Reason

Revenue TDA (30,794) Reimbursement for FY19 based on actuals

EXPENDITURE

Description Adjustment Reason

Street Repairs (21,000) Outside of allowable TDA expenditures

Original Revenue 121,220

Decrease in Revenue (30,794)

Original Expenditures (142,494)

Decrease in Expenditures 21,000

Ending Fund Balance (64,417)$

15 of 18



Sanitation District: Operating

Beginning Fund Balance 9,056,502$

EXPENSE

Description Adjustment Reason

Metro Annual Capacity & Treatment (550,899) METRO JPA Annual Reconciliation refund

Original Revenue 8,411,389

Original Expenditures (8,830,008)

Decrease in Expenditures 550,899

Ending Fund Balance 9,188,782$

Sanitation District: Capital

Beginning Fund Balance 10,363,583$

EXPENSE

Description Adjustment Reason

FY 17 18 Sewer Main Rehab Construction 270,000 Projected in FY19, but work continued into FY20

Original Revenue 1,545,000

Original Expenditures (2,356,495)

Increase in Expenditures (270,000)

Ending Fund Balance 9,282,088$

16 of 18



FY 2019-20 Mid-Year Budget Update 
February 18, 2020 
P a g e  | 8

Attachment D

RESOLUTION NO. 2020- 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, 
CALIFORNIA, ESTABLISHING THE APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT FOR FISCAL 

YEAR 2019-2020 

WHEREAS, on June 18, 2019 the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2019-

3668 establishing the Appropriations Limit for Fiscal Year 2019-20; and

WHEREAS, each year’s appropriation limit calculation begins with the prior 

fiscal year’s appropriation limit; and 

WHEREAS, each year the City hires an independent accountant to perform 

agreed-upon procedures applied to the Appropriations Limitation prescribed by Article 

XIIIB of the California Constitution to assist the City in meeting the requirements of 

Section 1.5 of Article XIIIB of the California Constitution; and 

WHEREAS, during the independent accountant’s review of the adopted fiscal 

year 2018-2019 Appropriations Limit, they found the limit to be understated by $240; 

and

WHEREAS, the fiscal year 2019-2020 Appropriations Limit has been 

recalculated using the information from the State Department of Finance listed in 

Resolution No. 2019-3668 and the corrected FY2018-2019 limit; and 

WHEREAS, the fiscal year 2019-2020 Appropriations Limit adopted by this 

Resolution supersedes the limit adopted by Resolution No. 2019-3668. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 

Lemon Grove, California, hereby establishes the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Appropriations 

Limit at $52,075,183. 

17 of 18



FY 2019-20 Mid-Year Budget Update 
February 18, 2020 
P a g e  | 9

Attachment D

PASSED AND ADOPTED on February 18, 2020, the City Council of the City of 

Lemon Grove, California, adopted Resolution No. 2020-_____, passed by the following 

vote:

AYES:

 NOES: 

 ABSENT: 

 ABSTAIN: 

      __________________________

      Raquel Vasquez, Mayor 

Attest:

__________________________ 

Shelley Chapel, MMC, City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

_________________________
Kristen Steinke, City Attorney 

18 of 18


	Agenda Summary REGULAR Meeting
	Item 1.A - Waive Full Text Reading of All Ordinance on the Agenda
	Item 1.B - City of Lemon Grove Payment Demands
	Item 1.B - City of Lemon Grove Payment Demands
	Demands Feb 18 2020

	Item 1.C - Approval of City Council Meeting Minutes
	Item 1.C - Approval of City Council Meeting Minutes
	02-04-2020

	Item 1.D - Accept the 2017-18 Sewer CIP as complete
	Item 2 - CUP-190-0002 MMD - Harris Street
	Item 3 - Acceptance of the Drainage Master Plan Update
	Item 3 - Acceptance of the Drainage Master Plan Update -Shelley's review - Mike Finaled
	(February 18, 2020) Acceptance of the Drainage Master Plan Update - Final Report

	Item 4 - Lemon Grove Homelessness Partnership Program 
	Item 5 - FY2020 Mid-Year Budget Update Complete
	Item 5 - FY2020 Mid-Year Budget Update FINAL
	Item 5 - FY2020 Mid-Year Budget Update - PDF PAGES ONLY




